
1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular and Joint City Council / Folsom 
Redevelopment Successor Agency / Folsom Public 
Financing Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority 
/ South of 50 Parking Authority Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
December 14, 2021 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

 

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/Downloads/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


2 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Regular and Joint City Council / Folsom Redevelopment Successor 
Agency / Folsom Public Financing Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority / 

South of 50 Parking Authority Meeting 
 

Folsom City Council Chambers 
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 

 

 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, December 14, 2021 6:30 PM 
 

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor 

 

Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember 
Kerri Howell, Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361 and the Governor’s proclamation of a State of Emergency due to the 

coronavirus (COVID-19) public health emergency, the Folsom City Council, staff, and members of the 

public may participate in this meeting via teleconference. 

 

Members of the public wishing to participate in this meeting via teleconference may 

email CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us no later than thirty minutes before the meeting to obtain call-in 

information.  Each meeting may have different call-in information.  Verbal comments via teleconference 

must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person public comment 

at City Council meetings. 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilmembers:     Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Kozlowski 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
mailto:CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


3 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

1. Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming January 2022 as Tamil Heritage 
Month in the City of Folsom 

2. Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming Sikh Awareness and Appreciation 
Month in the City of Folsom 

3. Presentation by PG&E on PG&E Overhead Transmission Lines Vegetation Management and 
Tree Removal Project 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion. 

4. Approval of October 26, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 

5. Approval of November 9, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 

6. Appointment of Representative to the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 

7. Ordinance No. 1318 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 10.20.510 of the 
Folsom Municipal Code to Increase Parking Penalty in Certain Areas of the Historic District 
(Second Reading and Adoption) 

8. Ordinance No. 1319 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Sections 3.20.040 of the 
Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Responsible Parties for Municipal Services (Second 
Reading and Adoption) 

9. Ordinance No. 1320 – An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Replacing the 
Garbage Collection Ordinance as Set Forth in Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal Code to 
Incorporate New State Law Mandates (Second Reading and Adoption) 

10. Receive and File SB-165 Annual Reports for Community Facilities Districts No. 13, No. 14, No. 
2013-1, No. 16, No. 17, No. 18, No. 19, No. 20, No. 21, No. 22, and No. 23 to Comply with the 
Local Agency Special Tax Bond And Accountability Act 

11. Resolution No. 10751 – A Resolution of the City Council Making Findings to Continue 
Teleconferencing Options for Public Meetings Under AB 361 

12. Resolution No. 10752 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 
to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 20-034) with Water Works Engineers, LLC for Design 
Services for the Folsom Blvd 27-Inch Trunk Sewer Project (SECAP Project) 

13. Resolution No. 10753 - A Resolution Authorizing the Police Department to Accept a U.S. 
Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance, Alzheimer’s & 
Developmental Disability Tracking Devices Grant in The Amount Of $121,491 and Appropriation 
of Funds 

14. Resolution No. 10754 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Downtown Ford Sales to Purchase Two Ford Trucks for the Parks & Recreation Department  

Page 3



4 

15. Resolution No.10755 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 3 
to the Contract with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. for Grant Application Assistance for the 
Folsom Placerville Rail Trail Project (Contract No. 173-21 17-013) and Appropriation of Funds 

16. Resolution No. 10757 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Lease 
Agreement between the City of Folsom and Kelli Vaccaro, a Sole Proprietor Doing Business as 
Kid's Inc., for Lease of City Property Located at 405 Natoma Station Drive 

17. Resolution No. 10761 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Design and 
Consulting Services Contract with TJKM for the Folsom Lake Crossing and East Natoma Street 
Safety Improvements Project and Appropriation of Funds 

18. Resolution No. 10762 - A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of an Amendment to the 
Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of Folsom and the Folsom Middle 
Management Group 

19. Resolution No. 10763 - A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of an Amendment to the 
Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of Folsom and International Union of 
Operating Engineers, Local 39 

20. Resolution No. 10764 - A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of an Amendment to the 
Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire 
Department Middle Management Employees 

21. Resolution No. 10765 - A Resolution Accepting the AB1600 Development Fees Annual Report 
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

22. Resolution No. 10766 – A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the Sacramento Metropolitan Air 
Quality Management District for Sacramento Emergency Clean Air and Transportation Program 
Funding for Two Zero Emission Electric Refuse Trucks 

23. Resolution No. 10773 - A Resolution Authorizing Additional Spending Under the Current 
Agreement with Schaefer Systems Inc. (Contract No. 173-21 17-067) for the Purchase of 
Residential Solid Waste Containers and Appropriation of Funds 

24. Resolution No. 10774 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction 
Agreement with Sierra National Construction, Inc. for the Duchow Way at Rumsey Way 
Intersection Drainage Improvement Project 

25. Resolution No. 10778 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Memorandum of 
Understanding Between the City of Folsom and the Folsom Police Officers Association (FPOA) 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

26. Resolution No. 10775 – A Resolution of the City Council Setting Forth Results of Protests in 
Connection with Utility Rate Hearing Conducted Pursuant to Proposition 218 and Establishing 
New Solid Waste Rates and Fees 

27. City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended Improvement 
Area No. 3 and Improvement Area No. 7 

i. Resolution No. 10767 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling 
Special Mailed Ballot Election Related to Change Proceedings for Improvement Area No. 3 
within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

ii. Resolution No. 10768 – A Resolution of Change of the City Council of the City of Folsom 
Relating to Improvement Area No. 3 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District 
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

Page 4



5 

iii. Resolution No. 10769 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom to 
Designate Improvement Area No. 7 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District 
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and to Levy Special Taxes therein 

iv. Resolution No. 10770 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Deeming it 
Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 7 of City of Folsom 
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

v.  Resolution No. 10771 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling 
Special Mailed Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 
(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 7 

vi. Resolution No. 10772 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring 
Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No. 7 

vii. Ordinance No. 1321 – An Uncodified Ordinance Levying a Special Tax for the Fiscal 
Year 2021-22 and Following Fiscal Years Solely within and Relating to Improvement Area 
No. 3 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
(Introduction and First Reading) 

viii. Ordinance No. 1322 – An Uncodified Ordinance Levying Special Taxes for the Fiscal 
Year 2021-22 and Following Fiscal Years Solely within and Relating to Improvement Area 
No. 7 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
(Introduction and First Reading) 

 

28. Broadstone Estates Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map Extension – Southeast corner 
of Placerville Road and U.S. Highway 50 (PN 21-234) 

i.  Resolution No. 10759 – A Resolution extending the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative 
Subdivision Map for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision project (PN 21-234) 

29. Folsom Heights Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map Extension – Northeast corner of 
the Folsom Plan Area (PN 21-234) 

i.  Resolution No. 10760 – A Resolution extending the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative 
Subdivision Map for the Folsom Heights Subdivision project (PN 21-233) 

30. Resolution No. 10777 - A Resolution of the City Council Approving the Sale of Surplus Land 
Located at 300 Persifer Street Property to Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento, Inc. for 
Purpose of Developing Affordable Housing 

OLD BUSINESS: 

31. Resolution No. 10744 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Fiber Networks 
Installation Agreement with SiFi Networks Folsom LLC for the Installation of a Fiber Optic 
Network in the City of Folsom 

NEW BUSINESS: 

32. Resolution No. 10776 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Approving an Affordable Housing 
Loan in the Amount of $6,860,000 from the City’s Housing Fund to Mangini Place Affordable, LP, 
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Loan Agreement and Related Documents for the 
Construction of 152 Affordable Housing Units at the Mangini Place Multifamily Affordable 
Housing Development, and Appropriation of Funds 

33. Appointment of At-Large Member to the Folsom Planning Commission 

Page 5



6 

34. Appointment of Three At-Large Members to the Folsom Historic District Commission and 
Appointment of Planning Commissioner to Serve on the Historic District Commission 

CONVENE JOINT MEETING 

JOINT CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

JOINT CITY COUNCIL / FOLSOM REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY / FOLSOM PUBLIC 
FINANCING AUTHORITY / FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY / SOUTH OF 50 PARKING 

AUTHORITY MEETING 

ROLL CALL: Council / Board Members:   Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Kozlowski 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

35. Approval of the September 14, 2021 Joint City Council / Successor Agency / Public Financing 
Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Meeting 
Minutes 

36. Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom 
Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking 
Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of September 2021 

ADJOURNMENT 

RECONVENE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

ELECTION: 

37. Selection of Mayor and Vice Mayor for 2022 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council is in recess the second half of December 2021 
The next regular meeting is scheduled for January 11, 2022. 

 

 
 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

Page 6



7 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

  

Page 7

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
https://municode.sharepoint.com/sites/WebMeetingsTeam/Shared%20Documents/_Customers/California/Folsom%20California/Meetings%20Project/Templates/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page is Intentionally Left Blank 

 

Page 8



Page 9

12/14/2021 Item No.1.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 10

12/14/2021 Item No.1.



PROCMION
OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM

PROCI-AIMING

SIKH AWARENESS AND APPRECIATION MONTH
in the City of Folsom

WHEREAS, Sikhs first arrived in the United States more than 125 years ago; and Sikhs
worked in many capacities, including on farms, in lumber mills and for the Western Pacific
and Pacific Eastern Railroads on the Pacific Coast, and on the Panama Canal;

WHEREAS, Sikhs are the fifth largest religious group by numberwith more than 25 million
around the world; an estimated 500,000 Americans are of Sikh origin and more than a

third of the nation's Sikh population resides in California; and

WHEREAS, Sikh Americans pursue diverse professions and walks of life, making rich

contributions to the social, cultural, and economic vibrancy of the United States, including
service as members of the United States Armed Forces; they have made and continue to
make significant contributions to our great nation in public service, in agriculture,
medicine, trucking, science and technology, and distinguish themselves by fostering great
respect among people through faith and service; and

WHEREAS, the month of November is significant for the Sikh celebrations of Diwali, the
birthday of the first Guru and founder of Sikhism, Guru Nanak, in 1469 and installation of
the Sikh Scriptures as the final and eternal Guru in 1708; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom seeks to further the diversity of its community and afford
all residents the opportunity to better understand, recognize, and appreciate the rich
history and shared experiences of Sikh Americans:

NOW, THEREFORE, l, Michael D. Kozlowski, Mayor of the City of Folsom, on behalf of
the Folsom City Council, do hereby proclaim November 2021, as Sikh Awareness and
Appreciation Month.

PROGLAIMED this 14th day of December 2021.

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Attest:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Page 11

12/14/2021 Item No.2.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 12

12/14/2021 Item No.2.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

PG&E staff will provide a presentation regarding PG&E's Overhead Transmission Lines
Vegetation Management and Tree Removal Project.

Submitted,

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

1

MEETING DATE: r2lt4l202t

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: Presentation by PG&E on PG&E Overhead Transmission Lines
Vegetation Management and Tree Removal Project

FROM: City Clerk's Department

Page 13

12/14/2021 Item No.3.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 14

12/14/2021 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page 140 
Folsom City Council 

October 26, 2021 

City Council Special Meeting 
MINUTES 

Tuesday, October 26, 2021 5:00 PM 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City 
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference. 

CALL TO ORDER 

The special City Council meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50 
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlowski presiding. 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilmembers Present: 

Councilmembers Absent: 

Participating Staff: 

Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember 
Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor 
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember 
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor 

Kerri Howell, Councilmember (arrived during closed session) 

City Manager Elaine Andersen 
City Attorney Steve Wang 
Interim Human Resources Director John Spittler 
City Clerk Christa Freemantle 

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 

1. Conference with Labor Negotiator - Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 Agency 
Negotiator: Interim Human Resources Director John Spittler; Employee Organization: 
Folsom Police Officers Association 

2. Conference with Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation - Pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54956.9(d)(1): Mitchel Bates v. City of Folsom, Workers' Compensation Appeals 
Board Case Nos. ADJ9139909, ADJ7204423, ADJ9140026, ADJ14317401, ADJ8782589, 
ADJ9034854, ADJ14317402, ADJ14317086, ADJ9200445, ADJ14317072, and 
ADJ14317075 

3. Conference with Real Property Negotiator - Pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.8: Real property located at 300 Persifer Street in Folsom, APN: 070-0172- 
048. Negotiating Parties: City Manager Elaine Andersen on behalf of the City of Folsom, 

DRAFT - Not official until approved f?y the Ciry Counal 
Page 15

12/14/2021 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page 141 
Folsom City Council 

October 26, 2021 
Leah Miller on behalf of Habitat for Humanities of Greater Sacramento, and Halley Crumb 
on behalf of Retraining the Village. Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Sale 

Motion by Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to 
adjourn to Closed Session for the above referenced items. Motion carried with the 
following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Councilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Kozlowski 
Councilmember(s): None 
Councilmember(s): Howell 
Councilmember(s): None 

RECONVENE 

City Attorney Steve Wang announced that no final action was taken during Closed Session. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, the meeting was 
adjourned at 6:37 p.m. 

SUBMITTED BY: 

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk 

ATTEST: 

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor 

DRAFT -Not officia! until approved ry the City Council 
Page 16

12/14/2021 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page 142 
Folsom City Council 

October 26, 2021 

City Council Regular Meeting 
MINUTES 

Tuesday, October 26, 2021 6:30 PM 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City 
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference. 

CALL TO ORDER 

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:37 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50 
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlowski presiding. 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilmembers Present: 

Councilmembers Absent: 

Participating Staff: 

Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember 
Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor 
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember 
Kerri Howell, Councilmember 
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor 

None 

City Manager Elaine Andersen 
City Attorney Steve Wang 
City Clerk Christa Freemantle 
Community Development Director Pam Johns 
City Engineer Steve Krahn 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

AGENDA UPDATE 

City Clerk Christa Freemantle announced that item 3 on the Consent Calendar was continued to 
the November 9, 2021, City Council meeting and item 17 was moved up on the agenda after the 
Consent Calendar. 

DRAFT -Not official until approved ry the City Council 
Page 17

12/14/2021 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page 143 
Folsom City Council 

October 26, 2021 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

None 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 

1. Folsom Plan Area Quarterly Report 

Community Development Director Pam Johns introduced the item and City Engineer Steve 
Krahn made a presentation and responded to questions from the City Council. 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion. City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion. 

2. Approval of October 12, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes 

3. Appointment of At-large Utility Commissioner (Continued to November 9, 2021 
meeting) 

4. Regional Early Action Planning Grant Contracts 

i. Resolution No. 10716 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 
Professional Services Agreement with Opticos for the Multi-Family and Residential 
Mixed-Use Design, Density, and Market Feasibility Analysis 

ii. Resolution No. 10717 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 
Professional Services Agreement with Ascent Environmental, Inc. for Implementation of 
Housing Element Program H-2 

5. Resolution No. 10727 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an 
Agreement with Cisco Capital Leasing to Purchase Network Routers 

6. Resolution No. 10728 - A Resolution Authorizing Submission of Folsom Transportation 
Development Act Claim for Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities Fiscal Year 2021-22 to the 
Sacramento Area Council of Governments 

7. Resolution No. 10729 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute 
Amendment No. 1 to the Contract with RRM Design Group for Additional Structural 
Engineering Design Work for the Trail Connections Project (Contract No. 173-21 21-001) 
and Appropriation of Funds 

8. Resolution No. 10730 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Program 
Supplement Agreements to Administering Agency-State Agreement 03-5288S21 

9. Resolution No. 10732 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an 
Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding Agreement (Contract No. 174-21 20- 
062) with the Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority for the Scott Road 
Realignment Project and Appropriation of Funds 

DRAFT -Not offiaa! until approved ry the Ciry Council 
Page 18

12/14/2021 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page 144 
Folsom City Council 

October 26, 2021 

10. Resolution No. 10733 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 
Construction Change Order with VSS International, Inc. for the Pavement Resurfacing 
Project Fiscal Year 2020-21, Project No. 8017 

11. Resolution No. 10734 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Contract 
Amendment No. 1 with WEST Consultants, Inc. (Contract No. 174-21 19-038) for the 
Weather Station Project Phase II, Project No. PW1703 

12. Resolution No. 10735 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Russell 
Ranch Phase 38 Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Russell Ranch 
Phase 38 Subdivision 

13. Resolution No. 10736 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 
Construction Agreement with Sierra National Construction, Inc. for the On-Call Concrete 
and Asphalt Maintenance Services Project and Appropriation of Funds 

14. Resolution No. 10737 - A Resolution of the City Council Making Findings to Continue 
Teleconferencing Options for Public Meetings Under AB 361 

Motion by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez, second by Councilmember Kerri Howell to 
approve Consent Calendar items 2 and 4-14. 

Motion carried with the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Councilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Kozlowski 
Councilmember(s): None 
Councilmember(s): None 
Councilmember(s): None 

Item taken out of order: 

OLD BUSINESS: 

17. Update on Online Mapping Tools for By-District Election Under the California Voting 
Rights Act 

City Attorney Steve Wang introduced the item and gave an overview of the multiple public 
hearings and the timeline. Consultant Doug Yoakam from NOC made a presentation and 
responded to questions from the City Council. 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

15. Mangini Ranch Phase 1 C South -North of White Rock Road, South of Mangini Parkway, 
and westerly of Savannah Parkway in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan. (PN 21-001) 

i. Resolution No. 10731 -A Resolution to Approve a Small Lot Vesting Tentative 
Subdivision Map, Minor Administrative Modifications, Planned Development Permit 

DRAFT -Not effi1,ial until approved qy the Ciry Couna! 
Page 19

12/14/2021 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page 145 
Folsom City Council 

October 26, 2021 

and Design Review to Allow 115 Residential Units and Approval of Street Names for 
the Mangini Ranch 1 C South Project 

Community Development Director Pam Johns introduced the item. Planning Consultant Kathy 
Pease from Management Advisory Services made a presentation and responded to questions 
from the City Council. 

Mayor Mike Kozlowski opened the public hearing at 7:14 p.m. Hearing no public comments, the 
public hearing was closed. 

Motion by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez, second by Councilmember Kerri Howell to 
approve Resolution No. 10731. 

Motion carried with the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Councilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Kozlowski 
Councilmember(s): None 
Councilmember(s): None 
Councilmember(s): None 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS (continued from earlier section) 

16. PG&E Overhead Transmission Lines Vegetation Management and Tree Removal and 
Direction to Staff 

Mayor Mike Kozlowski introduced the item. City Manager Elaine Andersen and City Attorney 
Steve Wang provided background information and responded to questions from the City 
Council. 

The following speakers addressed the City Council: 

1. Bruce Cline 
2. Robert Goss 
3. Julie Cline 
4. Jim Kerstein 
5. Cici Robinson 
6. Carter Robinson 
7. Dean Prodromos 
8. Tanya Morales 
9. Jennifer Lane 
10. Sharon Kindel 
11. John Combs 

The following speakers addressed the City Council via teleconference: 

1. Jaya Badiga 
2. Patty Soulsby 

The City Council further discussed the issue and staff responded to their questions. 

DRAFT -Not official until approved ry the Ciry Council 
Page 20

12/14/2021 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page 146 
Folsom City Council 

October 26, 2021 

The City Council directed the City Manager to work with Mayor Mike Kozlowski and send a very 
strongly worded letter to PG&E regarding the tree cutting issues and to file a complaint with the 
California Public Utilities Commission. 

Item Taken Out of Order: Old Business Item No. 17 was moved to after the Consent 
Calendar. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

17. Update on Online Mapping Tools for By-District Election Under the California Voting 
Rights Act 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

City Manager Elaine Andersen thanked the employees who worked during the recent storm. 
She spoke of the upcoming Veterans Day Parade and the City Halloween events at the Police 
Department and the Zoo. 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla commented regarding the recent storm and thanked the staff 
who worked during the storm. 

Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez spoke about a homeless success story and thanked the 
organizations who helped the family. She reported taking an economic development 
certification class, spoke about activities in the Historic District and concluded with comments 
regarding the PG&E oak tree removal issue. 

Councilmember Kerri Howell commented regarding traffic and safe driving during the storm. 
She spoke of the regional committee meetings coming up and commented regarding the traffic 
light cycle at Natoma Street and Prison Road. She encouraged everyone to be careful on 
Halloween. 

Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino commented regarding the frequency of the Folsom Plan Area 
Quarterly report updates and reported about attending the Folsom Tourism and Economic 
Development Corporation board meeting. 

Mayor Mike Kozlowski discussed recent City related events he attended and reminded 
everyone that there are a lot of opportunities to be involved in the community. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, Mayor Mike Kozlowski 
adjourned the meeting at 9:02 p.m. 

DRAFT - Not official until approved by the Ciry Cound! 
Page 21

12/14/2021 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page 147 
Folsom City Council 

October 26, 2021 

SUBMITTED BY: 

Christa Freemantle, C ity Clerk 

ATTEST: 

M ike Kozlowski, Mayor 

DRAFT -Not offiaa! until approved ry the City CounczJ 
Page 22

12/14/2021 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page 148
Folsom City Council

November 9,2021

City Gouncil Special Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, November 9,2021 5:00 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.

CALL TO ORDER

The special City Council meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlowski presiding.

ROLL CALL:

Councilmembers Present Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

Councilmem bers Absent:

Participating Staff:

None

City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
lnterim Human Resources Director John Spittler
City Clerk Christa Freemantle

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES:

1. Conference with Labor Negotiator - Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957.6. Agency Negotiator: lnterim Human Resources Director John Spittler. Employee
Organizations: Folsom Police Officers Association

2. Conference with Real Property Negotiator - Pursuant to Government Code section
54956.8: Real property located at 300 Persifer Street in Folsom, APN: 070-0172-
048. Negotiating Parties: City Manager Elaine Andersen on behalf of the City of Folsom,
Leah Miller on behalf of Habitat for Humanities of Greater Sacramento, and Halley Crumb
on behalf of Retraining the Village. Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Sale

3. Conference with Real Property Negotiator - Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.8
405 Natoma Station Drive. Negotiating Parties: City Manager Elaine Andersen on behalf of
the City of Folsom, and Kelly Vaccaro on behalf of Kids lnc. Under Negotiation: Price and
Terms of Lease

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued fu the Ciry Council
Page 23

12/14/2021 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 149
Folsom City Council

November 9,2021

4. Conference with Real Property Negotiator - Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.8
905 Leidesdorff Street-Retail Space. Negotiating Parties: City Manager Elaine Andersen on
behalf of the City of Folsom, and Taryn Grows and Charlie Grows on behalf of Uncle
Charlie's Firehouse & Brew, LLC. Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Lease

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
adjourn to Glosed Session for the above referenced items. Motion carried with the
following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
Gouncilmember(s): None
Gouncilmember(s): Howell
Gouncilmember(s): None

RECONVENE

City Attorney Steve Wang announced that no final action was taken during Closed Session

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was temporarily adjourned at 6:45 p.m. and reconvened at 9:29 p.m. after the
Regular City Council meeting.

RECONVENE

The special meeting reconvened at 9:29 p.m. after adjournment of the regular City Council
meeting to continue closed session,

City Attorney Steve Wang announced that no final action was taken during Closed Session

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, the meeting was
adjourned at 10:57 p.m.

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST:

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

DRAFT - Not ffidal until approued bjt the Ciry Coundl
Page 24

12/14/2021 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 150
Folsom City Council

November 9,2021

Gity Gouncil Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, November 9,2021 6:30 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.

CALL TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at6:47 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlowski presiding.

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present: Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

Councilmem bers Absent: None

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Finance Director/CFO Stacey Tamagni
Public Works Director Mark Rackovan
Revenue Services Supervisor Elizabeth Hanna
General Services Manager Marie McKeeth

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited

AGENDA UPDATE

City Clerk Christa Freemantle announced that item 14 under New Business had additional
information.

DRAFT - Not fficial antil approued b1 the Cig Council
Page 25

12/14/2021 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 151
Folsom City Council

November 9,2021

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

1. Bhaskar Vempati addressed the City Council regarding the Diwali Festival of Lights
2. HSS and severalyouths presented a cultural dance performance

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS

1. Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming the Month of November as
Veterans and Military Families Month in the City of Folsom

Mayor Mike Kozlowski presented the proclamation to Fair Oaks American Legion Auxiliary Post
383 member Suzanne \Mnters and American Legion Post 632 Folsom Commander Tish
Lovesone.

2. City Manager's Financial Update for the First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2021-22

Finance Director/CFO Stacey Tamagni made a presentation and responded to questions from
the City Council.

CONSENT CALENDAR:

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one
motion, City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion,

3. Resolution No. 10738 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 20-052) with Holistic System
lntegration Solutions for Additional Professional Services for the lmplementation of the
New TRAK|T Permitting System

4. Resolution No, 10739 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Construction Agreement with Allied Construction Services for the Fire Station No. 36
Roof Replacement Project and Appropriation of Funds

5. Resolution No. 10740 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford to Purchase Two Ford Trucks for the Parks &
Recreation Department and Appropriation of Additional Funds

6. Resolution No. 10741 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Professional Services Agreement with Solitude Lake Management for the American River
Canyon North Waterfall Rehabilitation Project

7 . Resolution No. 10742 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Program
Supplement Agreement F029 Rev. 1 to Administering Agency-State Agreement for
Federal-Aid Projects No. 03-5288F15 with Caltrans for the Empire Ranch lnterchange
US-50 at Empire Ranch Road Project, Federal Project No. 5288(043), Project No.
PW1804 and Appropriation of Funds

8. ltem pulled for discussion

DRAFT - Not oficial until approued fui the Ci4t Council
Page 26

12/14/2021 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 152
Folsom City Council

November 9,2021

L Resolution No. 10745 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the South Coast Air Quality
Management District for the Replacement of Two Diesel Refuse Trucks with Two Zero
Emission Electric Refuse Trucks

10. Resolution No. 10746 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Bennett Engineering Services lnc. for Design Services for the Basin 4
Sewer Phase 1 Project

1 1. Resolution No. 10750 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford to Purchase Eight Ford Pickup Trucks for the Public
Works Department and the Environmental and Water Resources Department

Motion by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez, second by Councilmember Kerri Howellto
approve Gonsent Galendar items 3 - 7 and 9 - 11.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED FOR DISCUSSION

8. Resolution No. 10743 -A Resolution Authorizing the City Managerto Execute an
Agreement with Water Systems Optimization, lnc. to Complete the Water Distribution
System Leak and Loss Detection Survey

Councilmember Kerri Howell explained that she pulled the item for clarification of the staff report
regarding the leak detection system.

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve Resolution No. 10743.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

NEW BUSINESS:

12. Appointment of At-Large Utility Commissioner

City Clerk Christa Freemantle explained that this appointment is to replace the current vacancy
on the Utility Commission and the voting process.

DRAFT - Not oficial until approued fut the Ci4t Council
Page 27

12/14/2021 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 153
Folsom City Council

November 9,2021

The City Council appointed Mark Menz to the Utility Commission with the term ending in
December 2022.

13. City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended
lmprovement Area No. 3 and lmprovement Area No. 7

i. Resolution No. 1 0747 - A Resolution of Consideration of the City Council of the City of
Folsom to (1) Amend the Boundaries of lmprovement Area No. 3 within the City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch); (2) Amend the Rate and
Method of Apportionment for lmprovement Area No. 3 within the City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), and (3) Amend the Appropriations
Limit and the Maximum Bonded lndebtedness and Related Matters

ii. Resolution No. 10748 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Approving a Proposed Boundary Map and Designating lmprovement Area No. 7 within
the "City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" and to Levy
Special Taxes therein

iii. Resolution No. 10749 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Declaring the Necessity for lncurring Bonded lndebtedness in and for lmprovement Area
No. 7 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and
Calling for a Public Hearing thereon

Finance Director/CFO Stacey Tamagni made a presentation and responded to questions from
the City Council. Consultant Stephanie Parson from NBS responded to additional questions
from the City Council.

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve Resolution No. 10747.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

Motion by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez, second by Councilmember Kerri Howellto
approve Resolution No. 10748.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

Motion by Councilmember Kerri Howell, second by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve Resolution No. 10749.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

DRAFT - Not oficial antil approued b1 the Ciry Coancil
Page 28

12/14/2021 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 154
Folsom City Council

November 9,2021

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s): Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
Gouncilmember(s): None
Gouncilmember(s): None
Gouncilmember(s): None

14, Resolution No. 10744 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Fiber
Networks lnstallation Agreement with SiFi Networks Folsom LLC for the lnstallation of a
Fiber Optic Network in the City of Folsom

Public Works Director Mark Rackovan introduced the item and Scott Bradshaw of SiFi Networks
made a presentation and responded to questions from the City Council.

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino to approve
Resolution No. 10744.

There was further discussion by the City Council.

A substitute motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario
Rodriguez to continue the item to the December 14,2021 Gity Gouncil meeting.

Substitute Motion carried with the following roll callvote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

15. Ordinance No. 1318 -An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 10.20.510
of the Folsom Municipal Code to lncrease Parking Penalty in Certain Areas of the Historic
District (lntroduction and First Reading)

Public Works Director Mark Rackovan made a presentation and responded to questions from
the City Council.

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
introduce and conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 1318.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

DRAFT - Not oficial until approued fu the Ciry Coancil
Page 29

12/14/2021 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 155
Folsom City Council

November 9,2021

16. Ordinance No. 1319 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 3.20.040 of
the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Responsible Parties for Municipal Services
(lntroduction and First Reading)

Revenue Services Supervisor Elizabeth Hanna made a presentation and responded to
questions from the City Council.

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
introduce and conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 1319.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

17. Ordinance No. 1320 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Replacing the
Garbage Collection Ordinance as Set Forth in Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal
Code to lncorporate New State Law Mandates (lntroduction and First Reading)

Public Works Director Mark Rackovan introduced the item and General Services Manager Marie
McKeeth made a presentation and responded to questions from the City Council.

Motion by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez, second by Gouncilmember Kerri Howellto
introduce and conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 1320.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

CITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen gave an update regarding the PG&E oak tree removal issue and
announced that PG&E would be at the December 14 City Council meeting to make a
presentation and share information. She discussed the proposed Solid Waste rate increase and
protest hearing and talked about the by-district election mapping and the upcoming public
hearing. She concluded with information about the Veteran's Parade.

COUNCIL GOMMENTS:

Mayor Mike Kozlowski commented regarding allthe work done on the PG&E tree issue and
thanked staff.

DRAFT - Not offdal until approued b1 the CiE Coancil
Page 30

12/14/2021 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 156
Folsom City Council

November 9,2021

Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez spoke of upcoming events including the Folsom Women's
Conference, the Foothill Wine Festival and the Veteran's Parade.

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla commented regarding the recent FCUSD 2X2 meetings he
attended, the Regional Water Authority meeting he attended as a guest, the Veteran's Day
Parade and the SeeClickFix ap.

Councilmember Kerri Howell commented regarding traffic and safe driving in the rain. She
spoke of recent meetings of Regional Sanitation and Regional Transit and the progress on the
South East Connector project.

Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino thanked staff for the additional details in recent staff reports. She
commented regarding the upcoming City by-district election discussions and the state
redistricting progress as it pertains to our area. She spoke of partnering with the Greater Folsom
Partnership to help Folsom businesses who are struggling due to the lack of employees.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski congratulated Twin Lakes Food Bank and Folsom Police Foundation for
their successful fundraising galas. He commented regarding the recent NorCal Ultras Race and
the upcoming Foothill Wine Fest. He encouraged everyone to shop in Folsom this holiday
season. He stated that the City Council would resume Closed Session at this time.

City Attorney Steve Wang announced that the City Council would adjourn the City Council
special meeting after Closed Session.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, Mayor Mike Kozlowski
adjourned the meeting back to the special meeting at 9:29 p.m.

SUBMITTED BY:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued b1t the Ciry Council Page 31

12/14/2021 Item No.5.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 32

12/14/2021 Item No.5.



ilr{-t1..9(}sr
.'. v

(, Frrrarlr.a tr *ivr"ia

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
Staff recommends that the City Council appoints Craig Burnett as the representative to the
Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District for a four-year term ending in
December 2025.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE
California Health and Safety Code section 2000 et seq. creates the Mosquito Abatement and
Vector Control District Law and provides the authority for the organization of mosquito
abatement and vector control districts.

In 1946, the Sacramento County-Yolo County Mosquito Abatement District was formed by
joint resolution of the Board of Supervisors for Sacramento and Yolo counties. The purpose
of the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District, in part, is to conduct effective
programs for the surveillance, prevention, abatement, and control of mosquitoes and other
vectors. Within the District boundaries arc2,013 squaxe miles, encompassing both Sacramento
and Yolo counties.

The City of Folsom is an active participant in the district and our current representative's term
expires at the end of December, 2021. A Notice of Vacancy was published in the Folsom
Telegraph, posted on the City of Folsom's web page and on the bulletin boards located atCity
Hall.

I

MEETING DATE: t2lt4l202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Appointment of Representative to the Sacramento-Yolo
Mosquito and Vector Control District

FROM: City Clerk's Department

Page 33

12/14/2021 Item No.6.



POLICY / RULE
California Health and Safety Code section202I(d) states, in part, that when a district is located
in two or more counties and contains both incorporated tenitory and unincorporated territory,
the board of supervisors of each county may appoint one person to the board of trustees, and

the city council of each city that is located in whole or part within the district may appoint one
person to the board of trustees.

ANALYSIS
Staff has received one application for the vacant seat from the current appointee, CraigBumett.
Mr. Burnett has served as the City of Folsom's representative to the Sacramento County-Yolo
County Mosquito Abatement District since 1978.

ATTACHMENTS
Application received from the following individual:

1. Craig Burnett

Respectfully submitted,

Christa Freemantle, CMC
City Clerk

2
Page 34

12/14/2021 Item No.6.



ril5-ff'l tllTtrr I:ILERK'S OEPI
1-5 fl*T'f l ntt9:42

SlrF 
'rr{rLt4l\{[

Folsom Commission and Committee

APPLICATION

lhanklou foryour interest in serving on a Folsom commission or committee.
orar >c'>.:a'i.ar a

BdoreYouBegin:
. Please read this form and instructions carefully.
. Complete all pages and sigrr the application.
. Applicationsremain activbfor six months after submittal.

Return completed appHcationa to :
City Clerk's Department, Folsom City Hall, 5o Natoma Street, Folsom, C*{. 9563o

Appllcantlnformafion: (All infonnation is required)

Name:

Residence Address:

Email:

Phone:

Craig R. Burnett

fl cca-craig@comcast. net

Retired

Employer and Occupation: Retired

Currently Serving on a Commission/Committee? If yes, please specify:

Sac-Yolo Mosquito & Vector Gontrol District Board; Folsom Lake College Philanthropy Council

Foleom Residenc,y / Reglctered Voter Verificatlon: Commission and Committee members must be
residents and registered voters of Folsom.

Registeredto vote? IndicateYes / No Yes

Financial Disclosure / Ethics Tlaining:
Indicate Yes / No:

YesI understand that commission and committee members must file statements disclosing
financial information.

I understand that commission and committee members must complete ethics and
harassment training.

Inilicate Yes / No:

Yes

Trrrth and Accuracy: I certiff that the information contained on this form is true and accurate:

Signature: Cralg R. Burnett Digihlly signed by Craig R. Bumetl
Dete: 202'1. 10.1 I 1 5:53:32 {7'00' Date: October 18,2421

Important Public Records Information: The eity may receive requests from the public to review documents such as

this form anil the city is obligated to release these public records, including all information contained on the form.

.

Page 1 of4
Updated May 2o2r

Page 35

12/14/2021 Item No.6.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Graig R. Burnett

Choice of Commission or Commlttee:
(If you are interested in multiple commissions, please rank them numerically according to your preference)

Arts and Culture Commission

Historic District Commission*

Please identifu which seatyou qualifr for:

representative who is actively involved with historic presen'ation
representativewho is a resident of the Historic Disbict
rqlresentativewho owns a businesswithin the Sutter Street Subarea
Planning Commissioners
representative from a Historic District business outside the Sutter Street Subarea
architect, landscape architect, or other design professional with orpertise in historic preservation

Landscaping and Ligbing District Advisory Committee*

Please advisewhich L&L Districtyou live in:

District of Residence:

LibraryCommission

Parks and Recreation Cornmission

Planning Commission

TlafficSafep Committee*

Please identify which seat you qualify for:

representative representing a wide cross section of interests
representative who has demonstrated an interest in or a concern for pedestrian and bicycle safety

UtilityCommission

X other: Sacramento - Yolo County Mosquito & Vector Control District

*Application Supplenent Required:
Supplemental information is required for the Historic District Commission, Iandscape and Lighting District Advisory
Committee, and the Traffic Safety Committee. These boards have special qualification requirements for certain seats.

Continueto nextpage

Page 2 of 4

Page 36

12/14/2021 Item No.6.



FOISOM COMMISSION A}ID COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Craig R, Burnett

fnformational Questions: (you must answer all four questions, for all commissions or committees you are applying
for):

r. Why do you want to serve on this commission or committee:

I have lived in Folsom over 60 years and I'm a third generation Folsom area resident. For the past 10 years
I've served as president of the Folsom Concert Association (FCA) which brings affordable concerts to residents
of Folsom and the surrounding communities.

I was elected and served 2l years on the Folsom Cordova Unified School District Board of Education. I'm a
founding member of the Folsom Athletic Association, member of the Folsom Chamber of Commerce and past
member of the Folsom Parks & Recreation Commission.

I formerly served on the City of Folsom's Oversight Successor Agency Board unwinding bond funds from the
Cit/s past Redevelopnent Agency.

I believe in being a respohsible citrzen and with that comes grving back to the community through voluntary
service.

I have a deep and abiding interest in protecting the environment and public health from insect borne
disease.

I want to continue serving on the Board as I have the knowledge and dedication to ensure the
Sacramento - Yolo Mosquito & Vector Control District (SYMVCD) is fiscally sound and socially just.

z. What do you think is(are) the top issue(s) facing this commission or committee:

"The mission of the District is to provide safe, effective and economical mosquito control to protect the health
and welfare of the District's residents. To achieve this, the District utilizes an lntegrated Pest Management
Approach that includes publlc informatlon, surveillance of mosquito populations that can pose a threat, use of
mosquitofish as a form of biological control, working with landowners to prevent mosquitoes from developing
on their properties and chemical control to significantly reduce mosquito populations that pose a threat of
disease."

The critical issue facing SYMVCD is trying to prevent the invasive Aedes aegypti disease carrying
mosquito from becoming endemic to Sacramento & Yolo counties. The Aedes aegypti mosquito can
carry Yellow Fever, Zika, Dengue and Chikungunya disease. lt is a day biting mosquito that lays its
eggs in dry containers waiting for water for the eggs to hatch. Since it can lay eggs in something as
small as a bottle cap or a pefs dish in a backyard it is often very difficult to find the source of the
mosquito. The eggs can be viable for a whole year in a dry state. They can also breed in water
containers in a home. This requires mosquito technicians to inspect homes, backyards and
surrounding areas.

This will require many more technicians which will have a dramatic effect on the District's budget.

One of the other major issues is the expanding growth of organically grown rice which prevents the
Condnueto nent page

Page 3 of4

Page 37

12/14/2021 Item No.6.



FOISOM COMMISSION A}TD COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Craig R. Burnett

g . Briefly describe how your experiences qualify you to serve on the commission or committee:

I have a BA in Chemistry from Califomia State University Sacramento (CSUS) and a Master of
Environmental Management from the University of San Francisco (USF). I believe I have unique and
qualiffing experience having worked for the Sacramento - Yolo Mosquito & Vector Control (SYMVCD)
in summers while aftending CSUS. I have beon thc City of Folsom's appointed goveming board
member to SYMVCD for a number of years. As a current trustee, I have been elected to all Board
leadership positions and presently serve as president.

I'm fiscally conservative and always keep a sharp eye on District expenditures. I lnstituted the 5-year
budget plan for forecasting projects and budget expendltures for capital improvements and new
technology. I required the 5 year plan to be updated every year and the status briefed to the board on
a regular basis.

I've been a staunch supporter of Folsom for many, many years in posts to the media, TV, etc.

4. Which commission or committee meetings have you attended?

I have attended all SYMVCD board meeting and all Folsom Lake College Phllanthropy meetings. As a

member of the now defunct City of Folsom's Oversight Successor Agency Board I attended all the meetings. On
the Folsom Cordova Unified School District Board I attended all the meetings, some eveNr lasting past midnight.

I attend the Folsom City Council meetings and make a yearly presentation to the Council on mosquito confrol
efforts.

ENDOFAPPLICATIONFORM

Return completed applications tor
City Oerk s Department, Folsom City Hall, 5o Natoma Street, Folsom, C"4, gS6go

Page 4 of4

Page 38

12/14/2021 Item No.6.



1j ;: il .ii 1;'.i ;) 
.ii;i,.lr

Folsom City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council conduct the second reading
and adopt Ordinance No. 1318 - Ordinance ofthe City ofFolsom Amending Section 10.20.510
of the Folsom Municipal Code to Increase Parking Penalty in Certain Areas of the Historic
District.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

In 2019 the City Council directed the formation of the Historic District Ad Hoc Parking
Solutions Committee, which was a committee comprised of residents, business owners and
other community stakeholders to develop recommendations to address the parking issues
facing the Historic Distriot. The committee completed their work in Spring 2020 and,reported
their findings and recommendations back to City Council, which the City Council then in turn
directed staff to implement over time.

One of the committee's high-priority recommendations was to increase the frequency and
scope of parking enforcement. Another recommendation, to implement and enforce a
residential permit parking progftrm, is also under way (as a temporary pilot) but will require
consistent parking enforcement to be effective. Currently the fine for violating a parking
regulation anywhere in the City of Folsom is $25 and has been that amount since 1994. In
terms of the value of the dollar, a $25 fine may not be the detenent it was almost three decades
ago; many motorists seem to be willing to accept a $25 fine and either pay it or ignore it.

I

MEETING DATE: t2/14/202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1318 - Ordinance of the City of Folsom
Amending Section 10.20.510 of the Folsom Municipal Code to
lncrease Parking Penalty in Certain Areas of the Historic Distict
(Second Reading and Adoption)

FROM: Public Works Department

Page 39

12/14/2021 Item No.7.



Increasing the amount of the fine may make a more effective deterrent, which in tum improves
compliance with posted parking restrictions and maximizes the effectiveness of parking
management strategies.

prscus$roN

Given the concentration of parking demand in the Historic District, and the success of parking
strategies being tied directly to compliance, staff is recommending that the fine for parking
violations in certain designated areas of the Historic District be increased from $25 to $75.
This increase would only apply with the portion of the Historic District bounded by, and to
include Coloma Street, Leidesdorff Street, Folsom Boulevard, and Natoma Street. A map
diagram of the affected area is attached as Attachment No. 2 to this StaffReport. This increased
fine is supported by the Folsom Historic District Association and the Historic Folsom
Residents Association.

The ordinance was introduced at the November 9, 2021 meeting. No changes have been made
to the ordinance since the first reading.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

This action should not have any significant financial impact to the City of Folsom for
increasing the parking fine amount from $25 to $75 in the designated area of the Historic
District. If implemented, the additional revenue from the increased fines would have a
negligible impact to the City's general fund.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the Califomia Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15061(bX3) of the CEQA Guidelines.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Ordinance No. 1318 - Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 10.20.510
of the Folsom Municipal Code to lncrease Parking Penalty in Certain Areas of the
Historic District

2. Map diagram showing designated area in the Historic Distict subject to the new $75
parking penalty

Mark Rackovan, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

2

Page 40

12/14/2021 Item No.7.



Attachment 1

Page 41

12/14/2021 Item No.7.



ORDINANCE NO. 1318

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF'FOLSOM
AMENDING SECTION 10.20.510 OF THE F'OLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE TO

INCREASE PARKING PENALTY IN
CERTAIN AREAS OF'THE HISTORIC DISTRICT

The City Council of the City of Folsom does hereby ordain as follows:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Section 10.20.510 of the Folsom Municipal
Code as it pertains to the amount of parking penalties. Specifically, this Ordinance seeks to
increase the amount of the parking penalty from $25 to $75 within an area of the Historic District
bounded by, and to include Coloma Street, Leidesdorff Street, Folsom Boulevard, and Natoma
Street.

SECTION 2 AMENDMENT TO CODE

Section 10.20.510 of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

10.20.510 General.

The violation of any section of this chapter, unless otherwise specified, shall be punishable
by a parking penalty of twenty-five dollars for each violation. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
violations that occur within the portion of the Historic District bounded by, and to include Coloma
Street, Leidesdorff Street, Folsom Boulevard, and Natoma Street, shall be punishable by a parking
penalty of seventy-five dollars for each violation.

SECTION 3 SCOPE

Except as set forth in this Ordinance, all other provisions of the Folsom Municipal Code
shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 4 NO MANDATORY DUTY OF'CARE

This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a manner
that imposes upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory duty of care towards
persons and property within or without the City, so as to provide a basis of civil liability for
damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

SECTION 5 SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance or any part thereof
is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any court of competent

Ordinance No. l3l8
Page I of2 Page 42

12/14/2021 Item No.7.



jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions
of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council declares that it would have passed each

section irrespective of the factthat any one or more section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase

be declared unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective.

SECTION 6 EFFECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage and

adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its adoption
in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City
Council on November 9,2021 and the second reading occuned at the regular meeting of the City
Council on December 14,2021.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council Member
the foregoing Ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City

of Folsom, State of California, this l4thday of December 2021, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. l3l8
Page2 of2 Page 43

12/14/2021 Item No.7.



Attachment 2

Page 44

12/14/2021 Item No.7.



Page 45

12/14/2021 Item No.7.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 46

12/14/2021 Item No.7.



t"'{-il3,h{ $i}'[
rt ..Y.rt,lr.! l\ I !t' ta

Folsom City Council
Staff Re

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Move to adopt Ordinance No. 1319 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section

3.20.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Responsible Parties for Municipal

Services (Second Reading and Adoption).

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Section 3.20.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code to

iAeniigr^ttrat real property owners are responsible for payment of municipal services provided

to theii properties tuih ut solid waste, water, and sanitary sewer service'

As a health and safety requirement, services are not terminated or interrupted in between

occupants. When u r6id"ttt moves into a new property, we allow rental occupants to open

utitity accounts in their name if the real property owner has a current business license certificate

and a $240 deposit is added to the new utility account. Additionally, commercial accounts

allow for a split amongst individual tenants for flat rate services provided to one parcel. We

are the only agency suieyed in our region that allows for these utility services to transfer to a

tenant andior iplit services amongst tenants on one parcel'

California Health and Safety Code 5473 allows delinquent utility charges to be collected as a

direct levy on the property iax roll. Folsom Municipal Code 3.20.040 also allows for unpaid

charges to be collectea on the property tax roll, and the Revenue Division administers this

1

t2ll4l202lMEETING DATE:

Consent CalendarAGENDA SECTION:

Ordinance No. 1319 - An Ordinance

Amending Section 3.20.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code

Pertaining to Responsible Parties for Municipal Services

(Second Reading and AdoPtion)

of the City of FolsomSUBJECT:

Finance DepartmentFROM:

Page 47

12/14/2021 Item No.8.



process annually. As the city has grown over the years, having utility accounts in the tenant's

name has resultea in u sigttift"ati increase in staff time processing and managing tenant

accounts, and presented unique challenges for the City to collect delinquent payments'

Ordinance No. 1319 was presented for introduction and first reading at the November 9 City

council meeting. No changes have been made to the ordinance since first reading'

POLICY / RULE

Amendments and revisions to the Folsom Municipal code must be reviewed and approved

by the City Council.

ANALYSN

The proposed ordinance amendment would identiff that the owner of real property is

responsible for utility service charges_. This is in accordance with califomia Health and Safety

Code secti on 547i' ,i.rrq. and Fokom Municipal Code section 3'20'040, which allow

delinquent service .nuigm *a applicable penalties_to be collected on the tax roll and paid by

the real property o*rr"r. Since property taxes are the responsibility of, and billed to, the real

property owner, the best pru"ti.. io, ih"r. utility services is to also bill directly to the real

property owner.

Rental properties located in American River Canyon are serviced by San Juan Water District'

and they are already subject to this practice with the water portion of their utility bill. El Dorado

Irrigation District, which will servi a future portion of the Folsom Plan Area, also adheres to

ttt."prurtir" of biliing the real property owner for utility services.

Thirty percent of the monthly tumover in utility accounts is due to changes in tenants' and the

same amount of custom", ,"*i". time is spent identifiingnew account responsibility. The real

prop"rty owner 
"f 

; p;;;lis an official County recorded document that can be searched atany

ii*i Uv staff. This'amendment allows the City to provide municipal service billing more

efficiently, economically, and accurately. Property owners may, if they desire' contractually

affange with their tenants for making the utility payments'

The Revenue Division is recommending an lg-month transition after this ordinance is

approved. As new rental starts are requeste-d, staff will provide an explanation of the change in

p'rJ".rr, what this "fr*g. 
means to ihem as a customer or property owner, and how a tenant

"an 
b" authorized to receive a copy of the utility bill'

ATTACHMENT

l. ordinance No. 1319 - An ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Sections

3.20.040of the Folsom Municipal Code (Second Reading and Adoption)

)
Page 48

12/14/2021 Item No.8.



Tamagni, Finance Director

J

Page 49

12/14/2021 Item No.8.



ORDINANCE NO. 1319

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM AMENDING SECTION 3.20.040

OF THE F'O MUNICIP CODE PERTAINING TO RESPONSIBLE
PARTIES X'OR MUNICIPAL SERVICES

The City Council of the City of Folsom does hereby ordain as follows:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Section 3.20.040 of the Folsom

Municipal iode to clarifi that real property owners are responsible for payment of

-*,"C.tp"t r."rtres provided to their properties such as solid waste, watet, and sanitary

sewer service.

SECTION 2 AMENDMENT TO CODE

Section 3.20.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as

follows:

3.20.040 Collection methods.

A. The owner of real property to which one or more municipal services are rendered

shall be responsible and liabli for the payment of all municipal service charges, and the

city may uiilir" all procedures available under this Code or state law to collect payment.

B. Charges for municipal services rendered to a parcel of real property shall be billed

to the owneiof that property as identified by the Sacramento County Clerk Recorder's

Office, addressed to the owner at the owner's address shown in the Sacramento County

Clerk Recorder's Office.

C. At the request of the real property owner submitted on a form approved by the

Finance Director, a copy of the UiU fot municipal service charges may be sent to the

owner,s tenants, renteis, or the owner's authorized representative, provided that the

municipal services account shall remain in the owner's name and the owner shall remain

fully responsible and liable for the payment of such municipal service charges as if the

bill had been sent to the owner.

D. The property owner shall be fully responsible for payment of all municipal

services ,"nd.t.d to ttre owner's property, and the city shall have no responsibilrty for,

nor any involvement in, the allocation, billing, and collection of these costs by the owner

from the owner's tenants, renters, or others.

Ordinance No. 1319

Page I of3

Page 50

12/14/2021 Item No.8.



E. The methods of collection set forth in this Chapter are in addition to any other

method permitted or allowed by law and shall not repeal any existing law or ordinance

now in effect with respect to collection of delinquent utility payments or service

termination and restoration for delinquent accounts. Unpaid charges may become a lien

on any property to the extent authorized by law.

SECTION 3 SCOPE

Except as set forth in this Ordinance, all other provisions of the Folsom Municipal

Code shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 4 NO MANDATORY DUTY OF'CARE

This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a
manner that imposes upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory duty

of care towards persons and property within or without the City, so as to provide a basis

of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by law'

SECTION 5 SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance or any

part thereof is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any

court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness

of the remainittg portions of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council

declares that it would have passed each section irrespective of the fact that any one or

more section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase be declared unconstitutional,

invalid, or ineffective.

SECTION 6 EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage

and adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after

its adoption in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This Ordinance was introduced, and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of
the City Council on November 9,2021and the second reading occurred at the regular

meeting of the City Council on December 14,2021'

On a motion by Councilmember seconded by Councilmember

, the foregoing Ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of
Folsom, State of Califomia, this 14th day of December 2021, by the following roll-call

vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

OrdinanceNo. 1319

Page2 of3

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Page 51

12/14/2021 Item No.8.



ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1319

Page 3 of3

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 52

12/14/2021 Item No.8.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council conduct the second reading
and adopt Ordinance No. 1320 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Replacing
the Garbage Collection Ordinance as Set Forth in Chapter 8,32 of the Folsom Municipal Code
to Incorporate New State Law Mandates.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

In 2006, the City Council adopted the most recent update to the Garbage Collection ordinance
(Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 8.32) primarily to incorporate program changes that had
been established in alignment with state recycling and source reduction mandates and to
continue to maintain and operate essential garbage collection service to meet community
needs. Since then, several new state mandates have been adopted and the Solid Waste Division
(Division) is again proposing changes in response to these mandates.

SB 1383 was signed into California law in20l6 as part of the state's broader effort to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions. The Califomia Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
(CalRecycle) finalized the regulations in November 2020 and is working with jurisdictions to
ensure waste hauling programs are amended, to divert upto26 million tons of organic material
from landfills annually by 2025 in order to reduce methane emissions and support the state's
climate goals.

MEETING DATE: t2/14/202r

AGENDA SECTION; Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1320 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom
Repealing and Replacing the Garbage Collection Ordinance as
Set Forth in Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal Code to
Incotporate New State Law Mandates (Second Reading and
Adoption)

FROM: Public Works Department

Page 53

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



Complying with the complex framework of SB 1383 requires major alteration to the City's
solid waste collection program, necessitating a full repeal and replacement of the current
garbage collection ordinance, including renaming the ordinance from "Garbage Collection" to
"Waste and Recycling Collection". The new ordinance clearly provides the details of
operations (containers, collections, materials, charges), permissions, city responsibilities,
waivers, education and enforcement and other relevant topics surrounding the organics,
recycling and garbage collection programs in accordance with SB 1383.

The Division has been actively working on planning for the required program changes

including a comprehensive rate study and rate increase proposal, securing capacity for organics
processing, design of new educational materials, route adjustments to accommodate weekly
collection of organic waste, a procurement policy update, and coordination with other
departments to ensure compliance. The adoption of an enforceable ordinance is one of the
mandates of SB 1383, and this ordinance repeal and replacement is the next essential step of
the planned approach and process to enact city-wide S81383 compliant programs mandated to
start in January of 2022.

DISCUSSION

The proposed ordinance repeal and replacement is prepared in accordance with the requirement
of SB 1383. The ordinance was introduced and the first reading conducted at the November 9,

2021 meeting; no changes have been made to this item since the first reading.

The new ordinance addresses how Folsom will collect garbage, recycling and organics, and

also specifies how the City's programs will serve all residents and businesses, to work together
to prevent food waste from going into landfills, and to reduce edible food waste and rescue it
for the food insecure. The Division is required to track the metrics closely and report them
annually to CalRecycle. At present, deficiencies in Folsom's organic waste recycling program
and infrastructure have resulted in the city being put under a corrective action plan with
CalRecycle pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18996.2.

Due to the significant number of changes included in the proposed new ordinance, the Division
has attached both the current version and the revised version of the ordinance rather than a

marked-up copy. In addition to the changes for SB 1383, staff completed a comprehensive

review of all existing language. The revisions include updates to outdated references and

definitions, clarified details for existing programs, and consolidated language that is duplicated

in other areas of the Folsom Municipal Code. Below are highlights of the updates specific to

sB 1383:

Section 8.32,045, self-hauler requirements, was added to speci$ how recycling
requirements must be met by anyone who self-hauls waste from premises located

within the City. Organic materials must be recycled using one of the methods

2

Page 54

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



a

o

a

a

outlined. In the case of commercial businesses, there are also record keeping
requirements,

section 8,32.125, commercial containers required, placement, appearance and
labeling, was added to outline the requirements of businesses to provide containers
with specific labeling for all individuals who may generate waste on their premises.

Section 8.32.140 (B), charges for collection, was revised to establish the responsible
party for compliance with SB 1383 when businesses must share waste services. A
lack of clarity regarding who is responsible for compliance has been a banier that
confributed to our current non-compliance status with the existing commercial
organics recycling mandate.

Section 8.32. I 9l , sufficient service required, was revised to include the requirement
for both residents and businesses to participate in organics recycling.

Section 8.32.22A, exemption from participation in residential curbside recycling,
was revised and renamed "waivers". The revised language significantly limits the
circumstances in which a resident or business will not be required to participate in
the recycling and organics services.

sections 8.32.265, requirements for commercial edible food generatorso and
8.32.370, requirements for edible food recovery oryanizations and services, were
added to facilitate the implementation of an edible food recovery prograrn.
Generators and food recovery organizations have specific obligations including
contracts and record keeping for food recovery efforts and specifically who must
participate and when. Edible food recovery capacity planning and program will
begin with "tier oneo' by 2022, including supermarkets, grocery stores with less than
10,000 square feet, food service providers, food distributors, and wholesale food
vendors. "Tier two" will begin by 2024, to include restaurants with less than 250
seats or less than 5,000 square feet, hotels with food service and less than 200 rooms,
health facilities with food service and less than 100 beds, large venues, large events,
and schools with food service.

o Section 8.32.275, inspections and investigations was added to outline the City's
right to perform compliance inspections and the customer's obligation to provide
any necessary access.

o 8.32.280, enforcement, was revised to add compliance details relating to the
implementation and ongoing enforcement of sB 1383. In summary, beginning
January 1, 2022, the city will focus on implementing the city-wide food scraps
composting program through weekly collections, outreach, education and coaching
to compliance, providing educational materials to the residents or businesses
describing their obligations under this chapter, The City's current non-compliance
status with the existing commercial organics recycling mandate and the contractual

a

J

Page 55

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



obligation to provide minimally contaminated material to our facilities or face
penalty, necessitates enforcement actions to be taken as needed. Enforcement action
will be done according to the enforcement response plan, following delivery of
educational materials and issuanse of notices of violations in the case of
contamination in any container, starting in2022.

The new ordinance allows the City of Folsom to comply with SB 1383, establishing a program
and process by which the City contributes to the state meeting methane emissions riduition
targets, a harmful short-lived climate pollutant. SB 1383 establishes targets to achieve a 50
percent reduction in the level of the statewide disposal of organic waste from the 2014 level
by 2020 and a 75 percent reduction by 2025.

Methane emissions resulting from the decomposition of organic waste in landfills are a
significant source of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions contributing to global climate change.
Food waste alone accounts for approximately l7 to 18 percent of t-otal landfill disposal.
In$easing food waste prevention, encouraging edible food rescue, and expanding the
composting and diversion of organic waste throughout the City, per this ordinance, iJtrow
Folsom will contribute to the reduction of methane emissions from California's landfills.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Program changes required by SB 1383 and outlined in the new ordinance will have a significant
impact to the Solid Waste Fund. A comprehensive rate analysis has been completed and a rate
increase to mitigate the impacts of SB 1383 is cunently being proposed, with a public hearing
scheduled for December 14,2021. Enforcement efforts required by SB 1383 may result in
some nominal revenue to the Solid Waste Fund.

ENYIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the Califomia Environmental euality
Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Sections $3A7 and 15308.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Ordinance No. 1320 - Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Replacing the
Garbage Collection Ordinance as Set Forth in Chapter 8.32 of thC FolsornMunicipal
Code to Incorporate New State Law Mandates

2. Current Version of Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal Code (Passed and Adopted
February 14,2006)

4

Page 56

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



Rackovan, Public Works Director

5

Page 57

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 1

Page 58

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



ORDINANCE NO. 1320

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF F'OLSOM
REPEALING AND REPLACING THE GARBAGE COLLECTION ORDINANCE AS

SET FORTH IN CHAPTER 8.32 OF THE F'OLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE TO
INCORPORATE NEW STATE LAW MANDATES

The City Council of the City of Folsom does hereby ordain as follows

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to repeal and re-enact Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal
Code to conform with new state law requirements pertaining to short lived climate pollutants and

the implementation of an organic waste separation program, including but not limited to SB 1383

adopted during the 2016legislative session and regulations finalized by CalRecycle on
November 3,2020,1o take effect January 1,2022.

SECTION 2 REPEAL AND RE.ENACTMENT TO CODE

Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby repealed and re-enacted to read as

follows

Chapter 8.32
WASTE AND RECYCLING COLLECTION

Sections:
8.32.005 Definitions.
8.32.010 Citv responsibility.
8.32.020 Permission required.
8.32.030 Burning" burving. on-site private disposal prohibited-Compost exception.

2.040 Private
8.32.045 Self-hauler requirements.
8.32.050 Placine in containers Gene@lltr.
8.32.080 Residential containerization.
8.32.090 Residential/commercial prohibited materials.
8.32.100 Residential container location and holiday requirements.
8.32.101 Service to below-ground containers prohibited.

8.32.1 10 Location requirements.
8.32.111 Fees for automated solid waste containers.
8.32.1 15 Commercial business containerization.
8.32. I 20 Container/dumpster enclosure-Business location
8.32.125 Container appearance and labeling.
8.32.130 Special solid waste service.
8.32.135 Collection

Ordinance No. 1320

Page I of28

bv Citv council

Page 59

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



8.32.140 Charges for collection and compliance administration.
8.32.150 Fees and charges-Due date.
8.32.160 Charses-Collection authqa6/.
8.32.170 Charges-Nonpayment-Violation.
8.32. 1 80 Charses-Nonpayment-Discontinuance.
8.32.185 Charges-Contamination in containers.
8.32.190 Accumulation prohibited.
8.32.191 Sufficient service required.
8.32.192 Exclusive use of containers.
8.32.210 Scavensins of solid waslB.
8.32.220 Waivers.
8.32.230 Contamination of containerized recyclables and organic waste----contamination

monitoring.
8.32.240 Replacement fee for damaged containers.
8.32.250 Bulky Waste Program requirements.
8.32.260 Frequency of residential service change requests.
8.32.265 Requirements for commercial edible food generators.

8.32.270 Requirements for edible food recovery organizations and services.
8.32.275 Inspections and investigations.
8.32.280 Enforcement.
8.32.285 Penalties.
8.32.290 Enforcement procedures-Notice to correct.
8.32.300 Remedies cumulative.

8.32.005 Definitions.
A. ooAlley" shall mean a passage or way providing a secondary means of vehicular access to
abutting lots not intended for general traffic circulation.

B. "Automated container" shall mean a container owned by the City, made of commercially
manufactured plastic, steel, or other appropriate material, designed to be lifted, dumped, and

returned by City solid waste collection vehicles. Automated containers may be described as:

automated cans, cans, containers, dumpsters, roll-off or compactor containers.

C. "Biohazardous waste" shall have the same meaning as in California Health and Safety

Code Section 1 17690(bxl).

D. "Bulky Waste Program" shall mean a City program designed to provide collection of
bulky items that will not fit into a residential container. This may include, but is not limited to,
appliances, lumber, and toys. An appointment is required.

E. "Commercial business" shall mean a firm, partnership, proprietorship, joint-stock
company, corporation, or association, whether for-profit or nonprofit, strip mall, industrial
facility, or a multifamily residential dwelling. A multi-family residential dwelling that consists of
fewer than five (5) units is not a Commercial Business for purposes of implementing this
ordinance.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page2 of28 Page 60

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



F. "Commercial edible food generator" shall mean and include "tier one commercial edible
food generators" and ootier two commercial edible food generators".

G. ooCommunity composting" shall mean any activity that composts green material,
agricultural material, food material, or vegetative food material, alone or in combination, so long
as the total amount of feedstock and compost on-site at any one time does not exceed 100 cubic
yards and 750 square feet.

H. ooCompost" shall mean the product resulting from the controlled biological decomposition
of organic wastes that are source separated from the municipal solid waste stream, or which are

separated at a centralized facility.

I. ooConstruction and demolition waste" shall mean used or discarded materials resulting
from construction, renovation, remodeling, repair or demolition operations on any pavement,
house, commercial building, or other structure and such other materials as may be removed
during the normal cleanup process of such construction, renovation, remodeling, repair, or
demolition operations.

J. "Curbside recycling" shall mean the placement of recyclables in a City-supplied
container for collection by the City.

K. "Department" shall mean the City of Folsom Public Works Department.

L. ooDirector" shall mean the City of Folsom Public Works Director or his/trer designee

unless otherwise stated or indicated by context.

M. "Division" shall mean the Solid Waste Division of the Department.

N. "Edible food" shall mean food intended for human consumption. For the purposes of this
ordinance "edible food" is not solid waste if it is recovered and not discarded. Nothing in this
ordinance requires or authorizes the recovery of edible food that does not meet the food safety
requirements of the California Retail Food Code.

O. "Food recovery organization" shall mean an entity that engages in the collection or
receipt of edible food from commercial edible food generators and distributes that edible food to
the public for food recovery either directly or through other entities, including, but not limited to:

1. A food bank as defined in Section 113783 of the Health and Safety Code;

2. A nonprofit charitable organization as defined in Section 113841 of the Health
and Safety code; and,

3. A nonprofit charitable temporary food facility as defined in Section 113842 of the
Health and Safety Code.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 3 of28 Page 61

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



P. "Food recovery service" shall mean a person or entity that collects and transports edible
food from a commercial edible food generator to a food recovery organization or other entities
for food recovery.

a. ooFood service provider" shall mean an entity primarily engaged in providing food
services to institutional, governmental, commercial, or industrial locations of others based on
contractual arrangements with these types of organizations.

R. "Food waste" shall mean food scraps and trimmings and other putrescible waste that
result from food production, preparation, cooking, storage, consumption, or handling. Food
waste includes but is not limited to: meat, fish and dairy waste, fruit and vegetable waste and
grain waste.

S. "Garbage" shall mean discarded solid materials resulting from residential activities,
industrial and commercial operations. Garbage does not include useful commercial or industrial
by-products, recyclable materials, organic waste, construction and demolition waste, inert waste,

medical waste, hazardous waste, orbiohazardous waste.

T. "Green waste" shall mean non-contaminated material composed of organic matter or
plant matter which is the result of seasonal variations or landscape and gardening activities.
Green waste includes, without limitation, grass clippings, shrubbery, leaves, tree trimmings,
branches, flowers, plant stalks, untreated wood, Christmas trees and other plant material. Green

waste does not include human waste, animal waste or manure.

U. "Grocery store" shall mean a store primarily engaged in the retail sale of canned food,
dry goods, fresh fruits and vegetables, fresh meats, fish, and poultry, and any areathat is not
separately owned within the store where the food is prepared and served, including a bakery,
deli, and meat and seafood departments.

V. ooHazardous waste" shall mean those wastes resulting from products purchased by the
general public for use which, because of the quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical or
infectious characteristics, may pose a substantial known or potentialhazard to human health or
the environment when improperly treated, disposed or otherwise managed.Hazardous Waste

includes Household Hazardous Waste.

W. "High diversion organic waste processing facility" shall mean a facility that is in
compliance with the reporting requirements of 14 CCR Section 18815.5(d) and meets or exceeds

an annual average mixed waste organic content recovery rate of 50 percent between January 1,

2022 and December 3I,2024, and75 percent after January I,2025, as calculated pursuant to 14

CCR Section 18815.5(e) for organic waste received from the'oMixed waste organic collection
stream" as defined in 14 CCR Section na02@)(11.5\

X. ooHouseholdhazardous waste" shall mean those hazardous waste materials discarded,

typically in small quantities, by households (as opposed to large quantities disposed by
businesses). Typical household hazardous waste includes used motor oil and oil filters, antifreeze
and other vehicle fluids, paints and varnish, pesticides, electronic waste and cleaning supplies.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 4 of28

Page 62

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



Household Hazardous Waste does not include waste generated in the course of operating a

business concem at a residence.

Y. "Illegal dumping" shall mean to throw or place, or direct another person to throw or
place, other than in receptacles provided therefor, upon the private land or waters of another
person without the permission of the owner, or upon public lands or waters, or upon any public
place, any solid waste, rubbish, trash, garbage, debris, recyclable material, organic waste, or
hazardous waste.

Z. "Inert waste" shall mean waste materials that do not react in the environment including
but not limited to rock, concrete, brick, sand, soil, ceramics, and cured asphalt. oolnert waste"
does not include any waste that meets the definition of "designated waste," as defined in Water
Code Secti on 13 17 3, or "Hazardous Waste".

AA. "Large event" shall mean an event, including, but not limited to, a sporting event or a flea
market, that charges an admission price, or is operated by a local agency, and serves an average

of more than 2,000 individuals per day of operation of the event, at a location that includes, but
is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned park, parking lot, golf course, street

system, or other open space when being used for an event.

BB. *Large venue" shall mean a permanent venue facility that annually seats or serves an

average of more than 2,000 individuals within the grounds of the facility per day of operation of
the venue facility. For purposes of this ordinance, a site under common ownership or control that
includes more than one Large Venue that is contiguous with other Large Venues in the site, is a
single Large Venue.

CC. "Medical waste" shall mean waste which is generated or produced as a result of any of
the following actions: diagnosis, treatment, immunization, or care of humans or animals, the
production or testing of biologicals, sharps waste, waste generated in autopsy, necropsy, or
preparation of a body for final disposition such as cremation or interment, research pertaining to
any of the above, and waste generated in the cleanup of trauma scenes.

DD. "Multi-family dwelling" shall mean of, from, or pertaining to residential premises with
five (5) or more dwelling units. Multi-family dwellings do not include hotels, motels, nursing
homes or other congregate-care or institutional facilities, which are considered commercial
businesses.

EE. ooOrganic waste" shall mean solid waste containing material originated from living
organisms and,their metabolic waste products, including but not limited to food waste, green

waste, landscape and pruning waste, organic textiles and carpets, lumber, wood, paper products,
printing and writing paper, manure, biosolids, digestate, and sludges.

FF. 'oOrganic waste generator" shall mean a person or entity that is responsible for the initial
creation of organic waste.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 5 of28

Page 63

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



GG. 'oOrganic waste processing facility" shall mean any facility selected by the City's
collector that is designed, approved by the City, or specifically designated by the City, operated,

and legally permitted for the pulpose of receiving and processing organic waste.

HH. 'oPerson" shall mean an individual, trust, firm, joint stock company, commercial business

concern, partnership, association, limited liability company, corporation, and public entity.

II. "Private driveway" shall mean a private roadway owned by a private person, business,

association or other private entity.

JJ. ooPremises" shall mean a specific lot or area of real property served by the City or any

such lot or area in general. 'oPremises" includes permanent and transient human dwellings and

places of accommodation, cofilmerce, or recreation.

KK. "Prohibited container contaminants" shall mean:

1. Discarded materials placed in the designated recycling container that are not
acceptable source separated recyclables for the City's designated recycling
container.

2. Discarded materials placed in the designated organic waste container that are not
acceptable source separated organic waste for the City's designated organic waste

container.

3. Discarded materials placed in the garbage container that are acceptable source

separated recyclables and/or source separated organic waste.

4. Discarded materials placed in any container in violation of section 8.32.090.

5. Acceptable materials for each container are identified and updated regularly on
the Division website or as printed on a City container. They may also be found on
printed material including, but not limited to flyers, customer service notices, and

container labels.

LL. "Putrescible" shall mean to rot; subject to decomposition by microorganisms.

MM. "Recyclables" shall mean recyclable material including, but not limited to: newspaper,

magazines, mixed paper, plastic bottles, cardboard, glass bottles, aluminum and steel cans and

other materials published on the Division website, on the container or printed materials as

acceptable in designated recycling containers.

NN. "Rendering bin" is a closed leakproof containment for uncontaminated fats, oils and

grease from the food preparation process that can be used as a source of material that is free of
impurities and can be recycled into products.

OO. "Refuse" shall mean and include any of the following:

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 6 of28 Page 64

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



1. Garbage, waste, or rubbish.

2. Unused or discarded collections of materials, including but not limited to treated

or painted wood, bedding, crockery, tires or construction debris.

PP. "Residential" shall mean any premises in the City, whether or not owner-occupied,

designed for people to live in.

aa. ooRubbish" shall mean non-putrescible solid waste consisting of combustible and non-

combustible waste, such as ashes, paper, cardboard, tin cans, yard clippings, wood, glass,

bedding, crockery, or litter of any kind.

RR. "SB 1383" shall mean the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants Reduction Strategy known as

Senate Bill 1383 which establishes the regulatory requirements for jurisdictions, generatots,

haulers, solid waste facilities, and other entities to achieve the organic waste disposal reduction

targets codified in Section 39730.6 of the Health and Safety Code and Chapter 13.1 of division
30 of the Public Resource Code.

SS. "Self-hauler" shall mean a generator that collects solid waste at their premises or place of
business for the purpose of hauling those materials in their own vehicles to a permitted solid
waste facility in compliance with the requirements of this chapter.

TT. oosharps" shall mean any device having acute rigid corners, edges, or protuberances

capable of cutting or piercing, including, but not limited to, all of the following:

1. Hypodermic needles, hypodermic needles with syringes, blades, needles with
attached tubing, syringes contained with biohazardous waste, acupuncture
needles, and root canal files.

2. Broken glass items, such as Pasteur pipettes and blood vials contaminated with
biohazardous waste.

3. Any item capable of cutting or piercing that is contaminated with trauma scene

waste

4. Pen needles, intravenous needles, lancets, and other devices that are used to
penetrate the skin for the delivery of medications.

UU. "Source separated" means materials, including but not limited to commingled

recyclables, that have been separated or kept separate from the mixed solid waste stream, at the
point of generation, for the purpose of additional sorting or processing those materials for
recycling or reuse in order to return them to the economic mainstream in the form of raw
material for new, reused, or reconstituted products which meet the quality standards necessary to
be used in the marketplace.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page7 of28 Page 65

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



VV. "Solid waste" shall mean all putrescible and non-putrescible solid, semi-solid, and liquid
wastes, including garbage,trash, organics, recyclables, refuse, rubbish, ashes, industrial wastes,

demolition and construction wastes, abandoned vehicles and parts thereof discarded home and

industrial appliances, manure, vegetable or animal solid and semi-solid wastes and other
discarded waste (whether of solid or semi-solid consistency); provided that such wastes do not
contain wastes which must be managed as hazardous wastes, or wastes which contain soluble
pollutants in concentrations which exceed applicable water quality objectives, or could cause

degradation of waters of the state.

WW. "Tier one commercial edible food generator" shall mean a commercial edible food
generator that is one of the following:

l. Supermarkets with gross annual sales of $2,000,000 or more.

2. Grocery store with a total facility size equal to or greater than 10,000 square feet.

3. Food service provider.

4. Wholesale food vendor.

5. Food Distributor.

XX. "Tier Two commercial edible food generator" shall mean a commercial edible food
generator that is one of the following:

1. Restaurant with 250 or more seats, or atotal facility size equal to or greater than
5,000 square feet.

2. Hotel with an on-site food facility and 200 or more rooms.

3. Health facility with an on-site food facility and 100 or more beds.

4. Largevenue.

5. Large event.

6. A state agency with a cafeteria with 250 or more seats or total cafeteria facility
size equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet.

7. A local education agency facility with an on-site food facility

YY. o'Universal waste" shall have the same meaning as in Section6626l.9 of Title22,
California Code of Regulations as may be amended.

ZZ. o'Venue facility" shall mean a public, nonprofit, or privately owned or operated stadium,
amphitheater, arena, hall, amusement park, conference or civic center, zoo, aquatium, airport,

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 8 of28 Page 66

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



racetrack, horse track, performing arts center, fairground, museuln, theater, or other public

attraction facility.

8.32.010 City responsibility.
The City, its duly authorized agents, servants, or employees, shall have the exclusive right to
gather, collect, recycle, or dispose of all solid waste within the City.

8.32.020 Permission required.
A. No person may collect, gather, recycle, or dispose of solid waste within the City without
permission of the City council. (Ord. 1049 $ 2 @aA,2006)

B. All residential dwellings and commercial businesses shall subscribe with the City's waste

hauling services for garbage and recycling, and the City or a City-approved hauling service for
organic waste. Commercial businesses that meet the self-hauler requirements in section 8.32.045

may self-haul recycling and organics in lieu of subscribing with the City for those services.

C. If recyclables and/or organic waste are hauled by another entity, the City may inspect

records, pursuant to section I.09.025 of this Code, to veriff that the services are not being
provided for a net cost.

8.32.030 Burning, burying, on-site private disposal prohibited-Compost exception.
No person shall burn, bury, or otherwise dispose of or process solid waste on any premises in the

City except for composting of organic wastes in a compost process as specified in the Division's
Regional Recycling Backyard Composting Guide or Commercial Composting and Mulching
Operations Conditions for Approval.

8.32.040 Private removal requirements.
This chapter shall not be construed as prohibiting the owner or tenant of any premises in the City
from carrying away any such solid waste, on an infrequent or occasional basis in order to reduce

the amount to be taken away by the City or its duly authorized agents, but no person shall be

authorized by this section to carry away such solid waste if such person receives the benefits of
the use of any such solid waste for feed for poultry, hogs, or other livestock unless such person

receives permission from the Director. All solid waste removal by an owner or tenant of any

premises is subject to the self-haul requirements of 8.32.045. This section shall not be construed

as relieving any person from paying the regular solid waste fees.

8.32.045 Self-hauler requirements.
A. Self-haulers shall source separate all recyclable materials and organic waste generated

on-site from other solid waste or shall haul all collected wastes, to a high diversion waste

processing facility, which also processes organic waste

B. Self-haulers shall haul their source separated recyclable materials to a facility that
recovers those materials.

C. Self-haulers shall haul their source separated organic waste to a solid waste facility,
operation, activity, or property that processes or recovers source separated organic waste.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page9 of28 Page 67

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



Alternatively, self-haulers may haul their source separated organic waste to a high diversion

organic waste processing facility.

D. Self-haulers that are commercial businesses shall keep for a minimum of 5 years a record

of the amount of organic waste delivered to each high diversion organic waste processing facility
or other solid waste facility, operation, activity, or property that properly processes or recovers

organic waste. This record shall be subject to inspection upon request of the City as specified by

SB1383, at least every 5 years. The records shall include the following information:

1. Delivery receipts and weight tickets from the entity accepting the waste including
the date and identifuing information about the facility.

2. The amount of material in cubic yards or tons transported by the generator to each

entity.

If the material is transported to an entity that does not have scales on-site or employs scales

incapable of weighing the self-hauler's vehicle in a manner that allows it to determine the weight

of materials received, the self-hauler is not required to record the weight of material but shall

keep a record of the entities that received the organic waste.

8.32.050 Placing in containers-Generally.
The person responsible for any premises in the City shall gather the solid waste and put it into

the appropriate container for that premises.

8.32.080 Residential containerization.
All garbage, recyclables and organic waste shall be containerized as follows:

A.
City

Garbage shall be placed in the standard plastic gray garbage containers provided by the

B. Organic waste shall be placed in standard plastic green containers provided by the City or
its authorized agent (black containers in service as of January I,2022 may continue to be used

for organic waste until January I,2036).

I Green waste shall not exceed four inches in diameter and shall not protrude above

the lid of the container. Green waste shall be loosely placed in the container.

2. Food waste shall be contained in compostable bags.

C. Recyclables shall be placed loosely (not in bags) in the standard plastic blue container
provided by the City.

D. All items shall be containerized with the lid completely closed for automated container

services. Material shall not be packed tightly in the containers and must fall freely when the can

is tipped.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page l0 of28 Page 68

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



F. Items not contained within automated cans will not be collected, except by appointment
through the Bulky Waste Program as defined under Section 8.32.250

G. Residential containers shall not exceed ninety-six gallons and shall have a total weight
limit of two hundred pounds per container.

8.32.090 ResidentiaUcommercial prohibited materials.
A. Unless otherwise permitted by written contract with the City, the following materials will
not be collected in any City provided container:

1. Dirt, rocks, sod, asphalt, brick, concrete, large metal objects, tile, landscaping
bark, furniture;

B.

2. Construction and demolition debris;

3. Appliances, tires, tree stumps;

4. Oversized or excess waste that prevents the lid from closing or material from
falling freely from the container during normal service procedures.

The following materials will not be collected in any City provided container:

1. Liquids, hot ashes, coal;

2. Flammables;

3. Live ammunition;

4. Household hazardous waste;

5. Hazardous waste.

C. No person shall place in any City container any wearing apparel, bedding or other refuse

from homes or other places where highly infectious or contagious diseases have prevailed; any

explosive substance, poison, hazardous chemical, offal, or fecal matter.

D. Disposal of medical orbiohazardous waste shall be performed through a licensed
collection and disposal company, which complies with all applicable laws and regulations,
including, but not limited to, California Health and Safety Code Sections 117600 through
1 18360.

8.32.100 Residential container location and holiday requirements.
A. Residences Having Street Frontage Only. Residential containers for garbage, recycling
and organic waste shall be placed for collection at the street curb or edge of road right-of-way by
6:00 a.m. on scheduled collection day, holidays included, and removed from the street and

screened from public view by 6:00 a.m. of the following day. The wheels of the containers must

Ordinance No. 1320

Page ll of28
Page 69

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



be placed in the gutter with the handle facing the residence. Containers must be at least three feet

from any obstruction such as automobiles, trailers, motor homes, fences, lampposts, portable

basketball hoops, mailboxes, or other automated containers. Containers shall not block
pedestrian access.

B. Residences with Alley Access. Residential containers for garbage, recycling and organic

waste shall be placed for collection adjacent to the alley property line, with direct access from
the alley by 6:00 a.m. on scheduled collection day, holidays included. The base of the container

must be placed on a stable, level surface with the handle facing the residence. Containers must be

at least three feet from any obstructions such as automobiles, trailers, motor homes, fences,

portable basketball hoops, lampposts, mailboxes, or other automated containers.

C. Residences with Private Driveways. Residential containers for garbage, recycling and

organic waste shall be placed for collection at the nearest public road right-of-way by 6:00 a.m.

on scheduled collection days, holidays included, and removed from the right-of-way and

screened from public view by 6:00 a.m. of the following day. The container must be placed on a

level surface with the handle facing the shoulder of the road. Containers must be at least three

feet from any obstructions such as automobiles, trailers, motor homes, fences, portable basketball

hoops, lampposts, mailboxes, or other automated containers. Containers shall not block
pedestrian access.

D. Collection trucks may come back for garbage, recycling, and organic waste put out after

the truck has passed a residence upon request, subject to payment of an extra pickup service

charge.

E. For purposes of this section, "screened" means blocked from public view from the street

or public right-of-way with a permanent fence, enclosure, landscaping, or other comparable

facility as approved by the Director.

8.32.101 Service to below-ground containers prohibited.
City personnel shall not service containers stored below the surface of the ground.

8.32.1 10 Location requirements.
The City shall not collect solid waste from above the first floor of any premises, nor from the

basement of any premises. City shall not collect solid waste when containers are not placed at a

position and in a manner that allows for collection.

8.32.111Fees for automated solid waste containers.
A. Fee Established. Each dwelling unit to be serviced by City-owned automated container
collection shall pay a fee equal to the then cost of providing the containers. The fee shall be

adjusted on July l st of each fiscal year by the Director to reflect the most recent cost per

container actually purchased by the City, plus the cost of labor and equipment necessary to

deliver the containers to the new dwelling.

B. Ownership. The City shall retain ownership of all City provided containers. Persons

owning or renting property served by such containers are responsible for the security of the

Ordinance No. 1320

Page 12 of28 Page 70

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



containers. In the event of fire, theft, or other damage or disappearance of a container from the

property, a replacement container shall be obtained from the City upon payment of the

established fees. Persons owning or renting property served by such containers shall, upon

vacating the premises, leave the primary containers for the next occupant in a secure location
upon the premises. Persons who have ordered an extra container shall, upon vacating the
premises, contact the City to have the extra container removed. Persons owning or renting
property served by such containers are responsible for the appearance and cleanliness ofthe
container.

C. Replacement Containers. A replacement container may be obtained upon payment of the

fee established by City Council. Replacement of a container no longer usable due to normal wear

shall not be subject to a replacement fee.

8.32.115 Commercial business containerization.
All garbage, recyclables and organic waste shall be containerized as follows:

A. Garbage shall be placed in the standard gray garbage containers provided by the City

B. Organic waste shall be placed in standard green or brown containers (or containers with a

green, yellow, or brown lid) provided by the City or a City approved hauler.

C. Recyclables shall be placed in the standard blue container or containers with a blue lid
provided by the City (white containers in service as of January 1,2022 may continue to be used

for recyclables until January 1,2036).

8.32.120 Container/dumpster enclosure-Business location.
A. Solid waste containers/dumpster enclosures at places of business shall be located in such

place as shall be convenient to the Division and must be approved by the Director. City-approved
solid waste enclosures are to be used for solid waste removal containers only unless approved in
advance by the Director. Storage of other equipment or material is prohibited. Enclosure
maintenance is the responsibility of the landlord, property owner, property manager, or
management company. Enclosures shall be maintained in working order and floors shall be free

of debris. The property owner shall be liable for damage to or spills from any other equipment

stored in the solid waste enclosure.

B. All items shall be containerized with the lid completely closed for automated container

services. Material shall not be packed tightly in the containers and must fall freely when the

container is tipped.

C. Items not contained within automated containers will not be collected, except by
appointment.

D. Commercial containers shall have a not to exceed weight limit of 1,800 pounds per

container.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page l3 of28

Page 71

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



E. New commercial business properties shall provide enclosure space for garbage,

recyclable, and organic waste containers, including rendering bins as applicable, for the use of
the property. Should the use of an existing commercial business property change to require a

rendering bin, the business served by the rendering bin shall be responsible for ensuring that the

rendering bin is stored in a secure location that does not impede waste collection services.

8.32.125 Commercial Containers required, placementn appearance and labeling.
Customers that are commercial businesses shall:

A. Supply and allow access to an adequate number, size and location of containers with
sufficient labels and colors (conforming with requirements in Section 8.32.115) for employees,

contractors, tenants, and customers, consistent with the collection services or, if self-hauling, per

the commercial businesses' instructions to support compliance with its self-haul program, in
accordance with Section 8.32.045 .

B. Excluding multi-family dwellings, provide containers for the collection of source

separated organic waste materials and source separated recyclable materials in all indoor and

outdoor areas where disposal containers for materials generated by that business are provided for
customers. Such containers do not need to be provided in restrooms. If a commercial business

does not generate any of the materials that would be collected in one type of container, then the

business does not have to provide that particular container in areas where disposal containers are

provided for customers. The containers provided by the business shall have:

1. A body or lid that conforms to the color requirements specified in Section
8.32.rr5.

2. Container labels that include language or graphic images, or both, indicating the
primary material accepted and the primary materials prohibited in that container,
or containers with imprinted text or graphic images that indicate the primary
materials accepted and primary materials prohibited in the container.

3. Notwithstanding subsection (B)(l), a commercial business is not required to
replace functional containers, including containers purchased prior to January 1,

2022, that do not comply with the requirements of subsection (B)(1) before the
end of the useful life of those containers, or before January 1,2036, whichever
occurs first.

8.32.130 Special solid waste service.
A. Container Service. The tenant, occupant, owner, or lessee of any premises in the City
may temporarily obtain additional City automated container(s) for the purpose of disposing of
garbage or source separated solid waste. The person requesting this special trash service is

responsible to pay for the service in accordance with a fee set by the City council. The City will
be responsible for delivery and pickup of the automated container to and from the premises of
the person requesting service.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page 14 of28
Page 72

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



B. Container/Roll-Off Service. The tenant, occupant, owner, or lessee of any premises in the

City may temporarily obtain aCity dumpster or roll-off container, in addition to standard

services, for the purpose of disposing of garbage or source separated solid waste. The person

requesting this special trash service is responsible to pay for the service in accordance with a fee

set by the City council. The City will be responsible for delivery and pickup of the dumpster or
roll-off container to and from the premises of the person requesting service.

C. Collection of Household Hazardous Waste (HHW). The tenant, occupant, owner or lessee

of any residential premises in the City may request special collection of household hazardous

waste through appointment with the Division. Commercial businesses may request special

collection of universal wastes through appointment with the Division.

D. Disposal of Medical and Biohazardous Waste. The tenant, occupant, owner, or lessee of
any premises in the City shall not dispose of any medical or biohazardous waste in a City-owned
collection container. Disposal of medical or biohazardous waste shall be performed through a

licensed collection and disposal company, which complies with all applicable laws and

regulations, including, but not limited to, California Health and Safety Code

Sections 117600 through 118360.

8.32.135 Collection charges-Established by City council.
All charges for solid waste collection shall be established or modified by resolution of the City
council. The Director shall, with the approval of the City Manager, recommend changes in the

collection charges when appropriate.

8.32.140 Charges for collection and compliance administration.
A. Residential.

1. A property owner of each and every dwelling, house, or residence shall be

responsible for paying to the City, a fixed minimum solid waste fee based upon
current established solid waste rates which shall be set by the City council. Such

fee, based upon service of one collection per week for garbage and organic waste,

and one collection every other week for recyclables, applies and is payable

without consideration of whether there is any garbage, recyclables, or organic
waste to remove from the premises.

2. Residential solid waste service may be discontinued upon written request for a
period of no less than two months when a dwelling, house, or residence will be

unoccupied. Municipal service charges may be discontinued pursuant to section
3.20.020 of this code.

3. For collection of additional containers beyond those covered by the fixed
minimum charges established in this chapter, the collection charge shall be set by
resolution of the City council for each additional garbage, recyclable, or organic
waste container.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page 15 of28
Page 73

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



4. An additional or special pickup may be requested beyond the minimum service

required by this chapter. Each such additional or special pickup shall be subject to

a fixed fee. The fixed fee for additional or special pickups shall be set by
resolution of the City council.

B. Commercial.

1. A property owner of each and every commercial business shall be responsible for
paying to the City, afixed minimum charge as set forth by the City council as a

solid waste fee. Such fixed minimum charge is based upon service of one

collection per week, without consideration of whether there is any solid waste to
remove from the premises.

A landlord, property owner, property manager, or management company with
multiple tenants who must share a commercial container shall be responsible for
the solid waste utility bill of the tenants and compliance with SBl383.

2. Commercial Container, Roll-Ofl and Additional Services. The Director may

approve the placing of solid waste in containers other than automated cans such as

roll-off containers. The fixed fee and additional service charges will be set by
resolution of the City council. Such charge shall include all costs to the City,
including, but not limited to, labor, equipment operation, maintenance and

depreciation, administrative overhead, recycling, landfill closure and landfill
operation costs. Standard commercial charges for commercial containers and roll-
off containers may be established by the Director subject to the approval of the

City council.

3. An additional or special pickup may be requested beyond the minimum service

required by this chapter. Each such additional or special pickup shall be subject to

a fixed fee. The fixed fee for additional or special pickups shall be set by
resolution of the City council.

4. Commercial customers are also charged a monthly recycling compliance fee, as

established by the City council, for the administration of state mandated recycling
programs. The monthly recycling compliance fee is waived if the commercial

customer subscribes to City recycling collection service'

C. Adjustment of Bills for Billing Error

l. Where the City overcharges or undercharges a customer's solid waste bill as the

result of a billing elror, the City may render an adjusted bill for the amount of the

undercharge, without interest, and shall issue a refund or credit to the customer

for the amount of the overcharge, without interest, computed back to the date that
the City determines the billing error commenced, except that the period of
adjustment shall not exceed one year for a refund and six months for an

undercharge.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page 16 of28 Page 74

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



8.32.150 Fees and charges-Due date.
Solid waste service fees and charges are due and payable as described in section3.20.070 of this
code.

8.32.160 Charges-Collection authority.
The City finance department shall collect all charges and fees with the assistance of the City
attorney as necessary or appropriate.

8.32.17 0 Charges-Nonpayment-Violation.
The nonpayment by any person of the solid waste fee after notice given by the City finance

department by bill rendered to such person, or left on the premises, is a violation of this chapter.

8.32. 1 80 Charges-Nonpayment-Discontinuance.
The City shall have the right in addition to any other remedies to discontinue solid waste service

for nonpayment of solid waste fees or charges.

8.32.185 Charges-Contamination in containers.
The City shall establish fees or charges for contamination found in containers pursuant to Section

8.32.230. Fees or charges shall be established by resolution of the City council.

8.32.190 Accumulation prohibited.
No person shall permit solid waste to accumulate upon the premises owned, occupied or
managed by such person.

8.32.191 Suffi cient service required.
A. The person responsible for any premises or commercial business in the City shall accept

solid waste collection service sufficient to remove garbage and organic waste generated by or
accumulating weekly from the premises and recyclables generated by or accumulating every

other week from the premises. The Director may order additional service for any premises or
commercial business where the Department determines necessary, at the customer's expense. If
additional service is needed, a customer may use additional containers or select a larger-capacity

container from the container choices available from the Department. Commercial-route

customers may also request container collection more frequently than once a week.

B. All Residential customers shall:

1. Subscribe to the Crty's organic waste collection services for all organic waste

generated. The City shall have the right to review the number and size of a
customer's containers to evaluate adequacy of capacity provided for each type of
collection service for proper separation and containment of materials; and,

customers shall adjust the number or size of containers for collection services as

requested by the City. Generators may additionally manage their organic waste by
preventing or reducing their organic waste (source reduction), managing organic
waste on site (composting), and/or using a community composting site.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page l7 of28
Page 75

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



2. Participate in the City's organic waste collection services by placing designated

materials in designated containers.

3. Customers shall not place prohibited container contaminants in collection
containers.

C. All customers that are commercial businesses shall:

1. Subscribe to the City's collection services and comply with requirements of those

services. The City shall have the right to review the number and size of a
customer's containers and frequency of collection to evaluate adequacy of
capacity provided for each type of collection service; for proper separation and

containment of materials; and commercial businesses shall adjust their service

level for their collection services as requested by the City.

2. Participate in the City's organic waste collection service(s) by placing designated

materials in designated containers.

3. Customers shall not place prohibited container contaminants in collection
containers.

4. If a commercial business wants to self-haul recycling or organic waste, it must

meet the self-hauler requirements in Section 8.32.045 of this ordinance.

5. Nothing in this Section prohibits a customer from preventing or reducing waste

generation (source reduction), managing organic waste on site (composting), or
using a community composting site.

8.32.192 Exclusive use of containers.
A. It is unlawful for any person to dump or place any material into or to utilize any solid
waste container, bin, or dumpster without consent of the property owner or tenant in charge of
the property.

B. It is unlawful for any person to enter into a solid waste container, whether or not a notice

has been placed on such container.

8.32.210 Scavenging of solid waste.
No person shall remove solid waste from residential containers or commercial containers that arc
designated for collection by the City or its authorized agent.

8.32.220 Waivers.
A. Residential. In exceptional circumstances, a waiver may be granted to individual(s) from
participating in residential curbside recycling and/or organics recycling, upon approval from the

Director in hislher sole discretion. The Director may grant one or more of the following types of
waivers to a residential generator of solid waste:

Ordinance No. 1320

Page 18 of28 Page 76

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



1. Reasonable Accommodation. The Director may waive a property owner's

obligation to comply with the requirements of Section 8.32.191(B) if the property

ownef provides documentation, or the City has evidence from staff, or any

medical professional, demonstrating that compliance with this Chapter would act

as a barrier to fair housing opportunities or health-related reasons prevent

individual(s) from comPlYing.

2. Physical Space Waiver. The Director may waive the obligation to comply with
the requirements of Section S.32.191(B) if the property ownerprovides
documentation, or the City has evidence from staff, licensed architect, or licensed

engineer, demonstrating that the premises contain severe space constraints which
prevent the placement of a recycling and/or organic container at the household.

B. Commercial. In exceptional circumstances, a waiver may be granted to a commercial

business from participating in recycling and/or organics recycling, upon approval from the

Director in his/her sole discretion. The Director may grant one or more of the following types of
waivers to a commercial business that is a generator of solid waste:

1. De Minimis Waiver: The Director may waive a commercial business' obligation

to comply with some or all of the organic waste requirements of this chapter if the

commercial business provides documentation or the City has evidence

demonstrating that:

a. The commercial business' total solid waste collection service is two cubic

yards or more per week and organic waste subject to collection in the

designated recycling container or designated organic waste container

comprises less than 20 gallons per week per applicable container of the

business' total waste; or

b. The commercial business' total solid waste collection service is less than two

cubic yards per week and organic waste subject to collection in the designated

recycling container or the designated organic waste container comprises less

than l0 gallons per week per applicable container of the business' total waste.

c. Any commercial business granted a de minimis waiver shall notiff the City if
circumstances change such that the organic waste generated exceeds the

threshold required for the waiver, in which case the waiver will be rescinded.

d. Any commercial business granted a de minimis waiver shall provide to the

City written verification of eligibility for the de minimis waiver every 5 years.

Physical Space Waiver: The Director may waive a commercial business'

obligations to comply with some or all of the recyclable materials andlor organic

waste collection service requirements if the City has evidence from its own staff,

a City approved hauler, licensed architect, or licensed engineer demonstrating that

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 19 of28

2

Page 77

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



the premises contain severe space constraints which prevent the placement of the

collection containers required for compliance with this chapter.

3. Waivers will not be granted for any commercial business that sells or produces

food.

C. Any customer requesting a waiver shall make the request in writing on an application
provided by the Division.

D. Waivers are conditioned upon and subject to: (1) the requesting party continuing to reside

at the location specified in the application; and (2) the circumstances justifuing the waiver
remaining unchanged. Customers who are granted a waiver must notifu the Director, in writing,
of any change in the circumstances supporting the grant of waiver within thirty days of such

change in circumstances.

E. Waivers may be revoked at any time at the discretion of the Director

5.32.230 Contamination of containerized recyclables and organic wast+Contamination
monitoring.
A. No person shall place nonrecyclable materials into automated containers, dumpsters, or
roll-off containers that are designated for the collection of recyclables or organic waste.

B. To the extent practical through education, training, inspection, and/or other measures,

commercial businesses, shall prohibit employees from placing materials in a container not
designated for those materials per the City's collection service or, if self-hauling, per the

commercial business's instructions to support its compliance with its self-haul program, in
accordance with Section 8.32.045.

C. Commercial businesses shall periodically inspect organic waste, recycling, and garbage

containers for contamination and inform employees and agents, including but not limited to
custodial vendors if containers are contaminated and of the requirements to keep contaminants

out of those containers.

D. Commercial businesses shall annually provide information to employees, contractors,

tenants, and customers about organic waste recovery requirements and about proper sorting of
source separated organic waste and source separated recyclable materials.

E. Commercial businesses shall provide education information to new tenants before or
within fourteen (14) days of occupation of the premises. The education information provided

shall describe requirements to keep source separated organic waste and source separated

recyclable materials separate from garbage and the location of containers and the rules governing

their use at each property.

F. Commercial businesses shall provide or affange access for the City or its representative

to their properties during all inspections conducted in accordance with Section8.32.270 to
confirm compliance with the requirements of this ordinance.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page2} of28
Page 78

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



A.

B.
feet)

G. Commercial businesses shall accommodate and cooperate with the collector's remote

monitoring program for inspection of the contents of containers for prohibited container

contaminants, to evaluate generator' s compliance.

8.32.240 Replacement fee for damaged containers.
The Director shall have the authority to assess the cost for the replacement of any containers that

have been damaged or destroyed due to the customer's negligence or misuse.

8.32.250 Bullcy Waste Program requirements.
Any and all materials deposited curbside for the purposes of participating in the Bulky Waste

Program must meet the following criteria:

All pickups must be secured by an appointment.

All piles must be no more than five cubic yards in size (seven feet by six feet by three

C. All materials must be placed curbside, no earlier than one day prior to the scheduled pick-
up, and by 6:00 a.m. on the scheduled collection date.

D. Material must be placed at the edge of the street, not within the gutter area, not on a

sidewalk, or on private property.

The Bulky Waste Program will only accept materials that consist of:

1. Green waste;

2. Lumber/wood;

3. Furniture/mattresses;

4. Lawn mowers (remove gas and oil);

5. Barbeques (remove propane tanks);

6. Metals;

7. Large appliances;

8. Tires.

Any materials placed curbside that do not meet the above requirements shall be considered

illegal dumping and any person who commits such act(s) shall be subject to the penalties set

forth in Folsom Municipal Code Section 8.34.040.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page2l of28

E

Page 79

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



8.32.260 Frequency of residential service change requests.

Residents will be allowed two service change requests after receiving the residential gatbage,

recycling, and organic waste cans at no charge for one year from implementation of the City's
organics recycling program applicable to all categories of service. New residents will be allowed

one service change request after receiving initial residential garbage, recycling and organic waste

cans at no charge for one year from the start date of their utility account applicable to all
categories of service. Additional service change requests will be charged an administrative fee as

set by resolution of the City council.

The categories of service change include:

A. Changing the size and number of garbage containers'

B. Changing the size and number of recycling containers.

C. Changing the size and number of organic waste containers.

8.32.265 Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators.
A. Tier One commercial edible food generators shall comply with the requirements of this

section commencing on January 1,2022, and Tier Two commercial edible food generators shall

comply commencing on January 1,2024 or sooner.

B. Large venue or large event operators not providing food services, but allowing for food to

be provided by others, shall require food facilities operating at the large venue or large event to

comply with the requirements of this section, commencing on January 1,2024 or sooner.

C. Commercial Edible Food Generators shall comply with the following requirements:

1. Arrange to recover the maximum amount of edible food that would otherwise be

disposed.

2. Contract with or enter into a written agreement with food recovery organizations

or food recovery services for: (i) the collection of edible food for food recovery;

or, (ii) acceptance of the edible food that the commercial edible food generator

self-hauls to the food recovery organization for food recovery.

3. Shall not intentionally spoil edible food that is capable of being recovered by a
food recovery organization or a food recovery service.

4. Allow the City's designated enforcement entrty or designated third party

enforcement entity to access the premises and review records pursuant to 14 CCR

Section 18991.4.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page22 of28 Page 80

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



5. Keep records that include the following information:

a. A list of each food recovery service or organization that collects or receives its

edible food pursuant to a contract or written agreement established under 14

CCR Section I 8991.3(b).

b. A copy of all contracts or written agreements established under 14 CCR

Section 18991.3(b).

c. A record of the following information for each of those food recovery services

or food recovery organizations:

The name, address and contact information of the food recovery service or
food recov ery or ganization.

ii. The types of food that will be collected by or self-hauled to the food
recovery service or food recovery organization.

iii. The established frequency that food will be collected or self-hauled.

iv. The quantity of food, measured in pounds recovered per month, collected

or self-hauled to a food recovery service or food recovery organization for
food recovery.

D. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to limit or conflict with the protections

provided by the California Good Samaritan Food Donation Act of 2017, the Federal Good

Samaritan Act, or share table and school food donation guidance pursuant to Senate Bill 557 of
2017.

8.32.270 Requirements for Edible Food Recovery Organizations and Services.

A. Food recovery services collecting or receiving edible food directly from commercial

edible food generators, via a contract or written agreement established under 14 CCR Section

I8991.3(b), shall maintain the following records:

1. The name, address, and contact information for each commercial edible food
generator from which the service collects edible food.

2. The quantity in pounds of edible food collected from each commercial edible food
generator per month.

3. The quantity in pounds of edible food transported to each food recovery

or ganization per month.

4. The name, address, and contact information for each food recovery organization

that the food recovery service transports edible food to for food recovery.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page23 of28 Page 81

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



B. Food recovery organizations collecting or receiving edible food directly from commercial

edible food generators, via a contract or written agreement established under 14 CCR Section
18991.3(b), shall maintain the following records:

1. The name, address, and contact information for each commercial edible food
generator from which the organization receives edible food.

2. The quantity in pounds of edible food received from each commercial edible food
generator per month.

3. The name, address, and contact information for each food recovery service that

the organization receives edible food from for food recovery.

C. Food recovery organizations and food recovery services that have their primary address

physically located in the City and contract with or have written agreements with one or more

commercial edible food generators pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b) shall report to the

City the total pounds of edible food recovered in the previous calendar year from the Tier One

and Tier Two commercial edible food generators they have established a contract or written
agreement with pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b) no later than July 1 annually.

D. In order to support edible food recovery capacity planning assessments or other studies

conducted by the County, City, special district that provides solid waste collection services, or its
designated entity, food recovery services and food recovery organizations operating in the City
shall provide information and consultation to the City, upon request, regarding existing, or
proposed new or expanded, food recovery capacity that could be accessed by the City and its
commercial edible food generators. A food recovery service or food recovery organization
contacted by the City shall respond to such request for information within 60 days unless a

shorter timeframe is otherwise specified by the City.

8.32.275 Inspections and Investigations

A. The City's representatives are authorized to conduct inspections and investigations, at

random or otherwise, of any collection container, collection vehicle loads, or transfer,
processing, or disposal facility for materials collected from customers, or source separated

materials, to confirm compliance with this chapter by organic waste generators, commercial
businesses, property owners, commercial edible food generators, haulers, self-haulers, food
recovery services, and food recovsry organizations, subject to applicable laws.

l. This Section does not allow the City to enter the interior of a private residential
property for inspection.

2. For the purposes of inspecting commercial business containers for compliance
with this chapter, the City may conduct container inspections for prohibited
container contaminants using remote monitoring, which may involve installation
of remote monitoring equipment on or in any collection container. Commercial
businesses shall accommodate and cooperate with the remote monitoring.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page24 of28 Page 82

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



B. Any regulated entity shall provide or arrange for access during all inspections (with the
exception of residential property interiors) and shall cooperate with the City's representative
during such inspections and investigations. Such inspections and investigations may include

confirmation of proper placement of materials in containers, edible food recovery activities,
records, or any other requirement of this chapter.

C. Failure to provide or arrange for: (i) access to an entity's premises; or (ii) access to
records for any inspection or investigation is a violation of this section.

8.32.280 Enforcement.
A. This chapter shall be enforced pursuant to the provisions of Chapters 1 .08 to 1 . 1 0 of the
Folsom Municipal Code and any other enforcement mechanism available to the City under the
Folsom Municipal Code andlor applicable law.

B. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this chapter, the Director shall enforce the
provisions of this chapter.

C. Compliance Deadline Extension Considerations. The City may extend the compliance
deadlines set forth in a Notice of Violation issued in accordance with Section 8.32.290 if it finds
that there are extenuating circumstances beyond the control of the respondent that make
compliance within the deadlines impracticable, including the following:

1. Acts of God such as earthquakes, wildfires, flooding, and other emergencies or
natural disasters;

2. Delays not related to fault of the respondent, in obtaining discretionary permits or
other govemment agency approvals; or,

3. Deficiencies in organic waste recycling infrastructure or edible food recovery
capacity and the City is under a corrective action plan with CalRecycle pursuant
to 14 CCR Section 18996.2 due to those deficiencies.

D. Education Period for Residential and Multi-Family. Beginning January 1,2022, and
through December 31,2023, if the City determines thataresidence or multi-family dwelling is
not in compliance with this chapter, it shall provide educational materials to the entity describing
its obligations under this chapter and a notice that compliance is required, and that violations
may be subject to administrative civil penalties. Except for multi-family dwellings, there will be

no education period for commercial businesses.

E. Civil Penalties for Non-Compliance. If the City determines that an organic waste
generator, self-hauler, hauler, Tier one or Tier two commercial edible food generator, food
recovery organization, food recovery service, or other entity is not in compliance with this
chapter, it shall document the noncompliance or violation, issue a notice of violation, and take

enforcement action as needed.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page25 of28 Page 83

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



8.32.285 Penalties.
A. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this chapter, a violation of this chapter shall be an

administrative violation as defined in Section 1.08.020 of this code. In addition to enforcement
by any procedure set forth in Chapters 1 .08 to I .10, except as provided in this section, any
violation of this chapter shall be punishable as an infraction and shall be punishable by:

1. For a first violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $50-$100 per
violation.

2. For a second violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $100-$200 per
violation.

3. For a third violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $250-$500 per
violation.

4. Subsequent violations of this chapter shall be subject to the range of monetary
sanctions set forth in Section 1.09.012(A)(5) and may be imposed on a per day
basis for each violation.

B. Each and every day during which a violation of this chapter continues, except in cases in
which a given time has been allowed for corrective action to be taken, shall be a separate and
distinct offense.

C. Violations of Section 8.32.090(8), (C), and (D); 8.32.190, and8.32.210 shall be a
misdemeanor, which shall be punishable by a fine not to exceed one thousand dollars, or by
imprisonment in the county jail for not more than six months, or by both such fine and
imprisonment.

D. Each of the sanctions for administrative violations identified in Chapter 1.09 of this code
shall be available for enforcement of the provisions of this chapter.

8.32.290 Enfo rcem ent procedures-Notice to co rrect.
A. Prior to the suspension, revocation, or denial of any permit, or the assessment of any fee,
penalty, or charge, or the commencement of any other enforcement action pursuant to this
chapter, the enforcement authority may pursue the procedures set forth in Chapter 1.09 of this
code. The rights to judicial review set forth in Sections 1.09.050 through 1.09.059 of this code
shall apply.

B. A notice to correct shall not be required to commence the administrative hearing
procedures set forth in Chapters 1 .08 through I .10 of this code. Pursuant to Section I.09.024(A)
of this code, a notice of administrative violation shall be served in accordance with the
provisions of Section 1.09.027 of this code.

8.32.300 Remedies cumulative.
The remedies set forth in this chapter are cumulative to any other remedy available to the City.
Pursuit of one remedy shall not preclude any other remedy, and nothing contained in this chapter

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 26 of 28 Page 84

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



shall limit or be deemed to prevent the City from pursuing any other remedy available to the City
under the City's code or any other applicable law.

SECTION 3 SCOPE

Except as set forth in this ordinance, all other provisions of the Folsom Municipal Code
shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 4 NO MANDATORY DUTY OF CARE

This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a manner
that imposes upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory duty of care towards
persons and property within or without the City, so as to provide a basis of civil liability for
damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

SECTION 5 SEYERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance or any part thereof
is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions
of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council declares that it would have passed each
section irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase
be declared unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective.

SECTION 6 EFFECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage and
adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its adoption
in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City
Council on November 9,2021, and the second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the City
Council on December 14,2021.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council Member
the foregoing ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the

City of Folsom, State of Californi4 this l4th day of December, 2021 by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

Ordinance No. 1320
Page27 of28 Page 85

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1320

Page28 of28 Page 86

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 2

Page 87

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



ORDINANCE NO. 1049

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM REPEALING AND REPLACING
TITLE E, CHAPTER 8.32 OF THE FOLSOM MLJNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING

GARBAGE COLLECTION

THE CITY COI.JNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM DOES ORDATN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION I PURPOSE

The purpose of this ordinance is to repeal and replace Chapter 8.32 of Title 8, of the

Fglsom Municipal Code (the "code") pertaining to Garbage Collection. Chapter 8.32 will
be amended to align the code requirements with current and future services to be
provided by the Utilities Department.

SECTION 2

Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal Code is repealed and replaced to read as follows:

Chapter 8.32

GARBAGE COLLECTION

Sections:
8.32.005
8.32.010
8.32.Q20
8.32.030
8.32.040
8.32.050
8.32.070
8.32.080
8.32.090
8.32.100
8.32.r01
8.32.1l0
8.32.1 I l
8.32.r20
8.32.130
8.32.t35
8.32.140
8.32.150
8.32.160
8.32.t70
8.32.180
8.32.190
8.32.t9t

Definitions.
City responsibility.
Permission required.
Burning, burying, on-site private disposal prohibited; Compost Exception.
Pri vate removal rcquirements.
Placing in containers-Generally.
Department--Removal intervals.
Residential contai nerizati on.
Residential/Commercial prohibited materials.
Residential receptacle location and holiday requirements.
Service to below-ground containen prohibited.
Location requirements.
Automated solid waste containers
Contai ner/Dumpster Enc losure - Busi ness Location
Special solid waste service.
Collection charges-Established by City Council
Charges for Collection
Fees and Charges--Due date.
Charges--Col lecti on authority.
Charges-Nonpayment--Viol ation.
Charges-Nonpayment--Di sconti nuance.
Accumulation prohibited.
Suffi cient Service Required

Ordinance No.1049
Page 1 ol 14

Page 88

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



8.32.r92
8.32.2t0
8.32.220
8.32.230
8.32.240
8.32.250
8.32.260
8.32.270
8.32.280
8.32.29Q
8.32.300

Exclusive use of containers.
Scavenging of recyclable materials.
Exception from participation in Residential Curbside Recycling
Contamination of containerized recyclables & green waste.

Replacement fee for damaged containers
Nei ghborhood Cleanup requirements.
Frequency of Residential Service Change Requests
Enforcement.
Penalties.
Enforcement procedures, notice to coffect.
Remedies Cumulative.

8.32.005 Definitions

A. "Alley Ways" Shall mean a recorded easement for public access near a residential property

or between residential properties.

B. "Biohazardous Waste" Shall mean laboratory waste including human or animal specimen

cultures from medical and pathology laboratories. Cultures and stock of infectious agents from
research and industrial laboratories. Waste from the production of bacteria, viruses, spor€s,

discarded live and attenuated vaccines used in human health care or rcsearch, discarded animal
vaccines. Human or animal surgery specimens or tissues, which may contain infectious agents

known to be contagious to humans. Waste containing discarded materials contaminated with
excretion exudates or secretions from humans that are requircd to be isolated by infection control
staff the attending physician or local health officer to protect others from highly communicable
diseases.

C. "Container" Shall mean commercially manufactured plastic or steel solid waste containers
owned by the City designed to be lifted, dumped and returned by City solid waste packers.
Containers may be described as: automated cafis, bins, commercial containers, drop box, roll-off
or compactor containers.

D. "Curbside Recyclingtt Shall mean the placement of recyclables in a city supplied cart for
collection by the city.

E. "Department" Shall mean the City of Folsom, Utilities Department.

F. "Director" Shall mean the City of Folsom Director of Utilities or hiVher designee unless
otherwise stated or indicated by context.

G. "Division" Shall mean the Utilities Department, Solid Waste Division.

H. "Garbage" Shall mean all putrescible animal and vegetable waste resulting from packaging,
storing, handling, preparation, cooking and consumption of food and all other materials not
defined as recyclables or yard waste. Garbage to be removed from places of business shall
consist of garbage as above dcfined and packing boxes, crates and packing materials.

Ordinance No. 1049
Page 2 ol 14

Page 89

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



I. ,.Hazardous Wastet'Shall mean those wastes resulting from products purchased by the

general public for use which, because of the quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical or

infectious characteristics, may pose a substantial known or potential hazard to human health or

the environment when improperly trcated, disposed or otherwise managed. It shall be unlawful

for any person to deposit for collection in any receptacle(s) provided pursuant to this Chapter any

item of "hazardous waste" as defined by an applicable federal, state or local law.

J, ,,Household Hazardous Waste" Shall mean those hazardous waste materials discarded,

typically in small quantities, by households (as opposed to large quantities disposed by business),

Typical household hazardous waste includes used motor oil and oil filters, antifreeze and other

vehicle fluids, paints and varnish, pesticides, electronic waste and cleaning supplies.

K. ,,Illegal Dumpingl' Shall mean to throw or place, or direct another person, to throw or place,

other than in receptacles provided therefore, upon the private land or waters of another person,

without the permission of the owner, or upon public lands or waters, or upon any public place

any rubbish, trash, garbage, debris, or recyclable material.

L. "Inerts" Shall mean waste materials that do not react in the environment.

M. ..Medical Waste" Shall mean waste which is generated or produced as a result of any of the

following actions: diagnosis, treatment, or immunization of humans or animals. Research

pertaining to the above. The production or testing of biologicals and sharps waste.

N. 'Neighborhood Clean-Up" Shall mean a city program designed to provide clean-up of bulky
items that will not fit into a residential container. This may include appliances, lumber and toys.

An appointment is required.

O. '3Persontt Shall mean an individual, trust, firm, joint stock company, business concem,
partnership, association, limited liability company, and corporation, including, but not limited to
a government corporation.

P. "Private Driveways" Shall mean a private roadway owned by a private penion or business

Q. '?rcmises" Shall mean a specific lot or area of real property served by the City or any such

lot or area in general. "Premises" includes permanent and transient human dwellings and places
of accommodation, commerce or recreation.

R. "Premises with Multi-unit Dwelllngs" Shall mean an area of one or more premises
operating in whole or part under unified management or ownership, with housing facilities for
more than a single-family residence. Such facilities include duplex or multiplex dwellings,
apartments, condominiums, and trailer parks. Distinguished from this definition for purposes of
requirements affecting premises with multi-unit dwellings are hotels, motels, hospitals, nursing
homes or other congregate-care or institutional facilities, which are generally served as a

commercial-service account.

S. "Putrescible" Shall mean to rot, subject to decomposition by microorganisms.

Ordinance No.1049
Page 3 of 14

Page 90

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



T. "Recyclables" Shall mean necyclable material including, but not limited to: newspaper,
magazines, mixed paper, plastic bottles, cardboard, glass bottles, aluminum and steel cans and
other materials not defined as garbage.

U. "Sharps" Shall mean any device having acute rigid cornerc, edges, or protuberances capable
of cutting or piercing, including, but not limited to, all of the following:

a. Hypodermic needles, hypodermic needles with syringes, blades, needles with attached
tubing, syringes contained with biohazardous waste, acupuncture needles, and root
canal files.

b. Broken glass items, such as Pasteur pipettes and blood vials contaminated with
biohazardous waste.

c. Any item capable of cutting or piercing that is contaminated with trauma scene waste.

V. "Solid Waste" Shall mean nonhazardous, noninfectious waste materials including garbage,
yard waste, and recyclable material.

W. "Utilities Director" Shall mean the City of Folsom Director of Utilities or hiVher designee.

X. "Yard wastet' or ttGreen Wasie" Shall meart materials consist of trimmings from lawns,
shrubs, plants, and foliage from trees and gardens.

8.32.010 City responsibility.
The city, its duly authorized agent, servants, or employees, shall have the exclusive right

to gather, collect, recycle or dispose of solid waste within the city.

8.32.020 Permission required.
No person may collect, g&ther, recycle or dispose of solid waste within the city without

permission of the City Council.

8.32.030 Burning,Burying,On-sitePrivateDisposalProhibited;CompostException.
No person shall burn, bury, or othenvise dispose of or process solid waste on any

premises in the City except for composting of garden wastes in a compost process, approved by
the Utilities Director.

832.M0 Private removal requircments.
This chapter shall not be construed as prohibiting the owner or tenant of any premises in

the city from carrying away any such solid waste, on an infrcquent or occasional basis in order to
reduce the amount to be taken away by the city or its duly authorized agents, but no penon shall
be authorized by this section to carry away such solid waste if such penion receives the benefits
of the use of any such solid waste for feed for poultry, hogs, or other livestock unless such
person receives permission from the Utilities Director. This section shall not be construed as
relieving any person from paying the regular solid waste fees.

8.32.050 Placing in containers-Generally.
The person in charge of any premises in the City shall gather the solid waste rogether and

put it into a receptacle provided by the Utilities Department for that premises.

Ordinance No. 1(Xg
Page 4 ol 14

Page 91

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



8.32.070 Department--Removal intervals.
All solid waste accumulated at, or on any premises within the city, shall bc rcmoved by

the Utilities, Department, Solid Waste Division, at regular intenvals, as determined by the
Utilities Director.

8.32.080 Residential containerization.
All garbage, recyclables and yard waste shall be containerized as follows:

A. Carbage/Putrescible waste must be placed in the standard plastic garbage containers
provided by the City not exceeding ninety six gallons with a total weight limit of two

. hundred pounds per container.

B. Yard waste shall be placed in standard plastic containers provided by the City. Tree limbs
shall not exceed four inches in diameter and shall not protrude above the lid of the
container. Loose branches, cuttings, trimmings, etc. which are not containerized shall not
be collected except through the Neighbor hood Clean-up as defined under section
8.32.250.

C. Recyclables shall be placed in the standard plastic container provided by the City.

D. Municipal solid waste which does not fall into the above categories (A, B and C) is
Garbage and must be placed in the appropriate container

8.32.090 Residential/Commercialprohibitedmaterials.
A. Materials which will not be collected in 60-65 gallon and 90-95 gallon containers include:

l. Dirt, rocks, sod, concrete, large metal objects, furniture;

2. Construction and remodeling debris;

B. Materials which will not be collected in any City container include:

l. Flammables;

2. Live ammunition;

3. Household Hazardous Waste;

4 Hazardous Waste;

C. No person shall place any wearing apparel, bedding or other refuse from homes or other
places where highly infectious or contagious diseases havc prevailed or any explosive
substance, poison, hazardous chemical, offal, or fecal matter.

Ordinance No. 1049
Page 5 of 14

Page 92

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



D. Hazardous medical waste, including, but not limited to sharps, shall be handled by a
licensed medical waste hauler and shall not be disposed of in materials offered for
collection by the city.

8.32.100 Residential container location and holiday requirements.
A. Residences having street frontage only. Residential containers for solid waste, recycling

and yard waste shall be placed for collection at the street curb or edge of road rightof-way
by 6:00 a.m. on scheduled collection day, holidays included, and be removed from the
street and screened from public view by 6:00 a.m. of the following day. The wheels of the
containers will be placed in the gutter with the handle facing the residence. Containers will
be at least three (3) feet from any obstruction such as automobiles, trailers, motor homes,
fences, lampposts, portable basketball hoops, mailboxes, or other automated containers.
Containers are not to block pedestrian access,

B. Residences with alley way access. Residential containers for solid waste, rccycling and
yard waste shall be placed for collection adjacent to the alley property line, with direct
access from the alley way by 6:00 a.m. on scheduled collection day, holidays included.
The base of the container will be placed on a stable, level surface with the handle facing
the residence. Containers will be at least three (3) feet from any obstructions such as
automobiles, trailers, motor homes, fences, portable basketball hoops, lampposts,
mailboxes, or other automated containers.

C, Residences with private driveways. All solid waste, recycling and yard waste must be
placed at the nearest road right-of-way by 6:00 a.m. on scheduled collection day, holidays
included and removed from the right-of-way and screened from public view by 6:00 a.m.
of the following day. The container must be placed on a level surface with the handle
facing the shoulder of the road. Containers will be at least thrce (3) feet from any
obstructions such as automobiles, trailers, motor homes, fences, portable basket ball hoops,
lampposts, mailboxes, or other automated containers.

yard waste put out after
service charge.

E. For purposes of this Section, "Screen" means blocked from public view from the street or
fubJic right-of-way with a perrnanent fence, enclosure, landscaping, or other comparable
facility as approved by the Dircctor.

8.32.101 Service to below-ground containers prohibited.
Utilities Department personnel shall not service containers stored below the surface of the

ground,

8.32.1l0 Locationrequirements.
The Utilities Department shall not collect garbage from above the first floor of any

premises, nor from the basement of any premises.

8.32.1I I Automated solid waste containers.

A. Fee Established. Each dwelling unit to be serviced by City-owned sixty-five and
ninety-five gallon automated container collection shall pay a fee upon issuance of a
building permit equal to the then cost of providing the containers. The fee shall be

Ordinance No. 1O49
Page 6 of 14

D. Collection trucks will come back for solid waste, recycling, and
the truck has passed a resi{ence upon payment of an extra pick-up

Page 93

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



adjusted on July I't of each fiscal year by the Utilities Director to reflect the most r€cent
cosr per container actually purchased by the City, plus the cost of labor and equipment
necessary to deliver the containers to the new dwelling. Containers shall be delivered upon
issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the residence by the chief building inspector.

B. Ownership. The City shall rctain ownership of the sixty-five and ninety-five gallon
automated solid waste containers. Persons owning or renting property served by such

containers are responsible for the security of the containers. In the event of fire, theft, or other
disappearance of container from the property a replacement container shall be obtained from
the City upon payment of the fee established in subsection A of this section. Persons owning
or rEnting property served by such containers shall, upon vacating the premises, leave the

primary containers for the next occupant in a secure location upon the premises. Persons who
have ordered an extra container shall, upon vacating the prcmises, contact the city to have the

extra container removed. Persons owning or renting property senved by such containers are

responsible for the appearance and cleanliness of the container.

C. Replacement Containers. A replacement container may be obtained upon payment
of the fee established in subsection A of this section. Replacement of a container no longer
usable due to normal wear shall not be subject to a replacement fee.

8.32.120 ContainerlDumpsterEnclosure--Businesslocation.
Solid waste containerVdumpster enclosures at places of business shall be located in such

place as shall be convenient to the Solid Waste Division and must be approved by the Utilities
Director. City approved solid waste enclosures are to be used for solid waste removal equipment
only. Storage of other equipment or material will not be allowed. The property owner shall be
liable for damage to or spills from any other equipment stored in the solid waste enclosure.

8.32.130 Special solid waste service.
A. Container Service. The tenant, occupant, owner or lessee of any premises in the city may
obtain a city commercial container for the purpose of disposing of brush and tree cuttings,
trash and inorganic solid waste, excluding the following materials: (a) dirt, rocks, sod,
concrete, large metal objects, fumiture.; (b) flammables and liquids; (c) live ammunition; (d)
paints, oils, and acids. The person requesting special trash service is responsible to pay for the
service in accordance with a fee set by the City Council. The city shall be responsible for
delivery and pick-up of the commercial bin to and from the premises of the persons requesting
service.

B. Container/Roll-off Service - The tenant, occupant, owner or lessee of any premises in the
city may obtain a city commercial ten, twenty, thirty or fony yard roll-off container for the
purpose of disposing of recyclables, brush and tree cuttings, trash and inorganic solid waste,
excluding the following materials: (a) dirt, sod, large metal objects, furniture; (b) flammables
and liquids; (c) live ammunition; (d) paints, oils and acids. The person requesting special trash
service is responsible to pay for the service in accordance with a fee set by the City Council.
The city shall be responsible for delivery and pickup of the commercial container to and from
the premises of the persons requesting service.

Ordinance No. 1049
Page 7 ol 't4

Page 94

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



C. Collection of Household Hazardous Waste (HHW)- The tenant, occupant, owner or lessee

of any residential premises in the city may request special collection of the following materials

through appointment with the City's Utilities Department HHW Division: flammables and

liquids, pesticides, paints, oils and oil filters batteries, anti freeze, pool chemicals, propane

tanks, TV's and computer monitors.

D. Disposal of Medical and Bio-hazardous Waste - The tenant, occupant, owner or lessee of
any premises in the city shall not dispose of any medical or bio-hazardous waste in a city-
owned collection container. Disposal of medical or bio-hazardous waste shall be performed
through a licensed collection and disposal company, which complies with all applicable laws
and regulations, including but not limited to, California Health & Safety Code, Sections
I 17600-l 18360.

8.32.135 Collectioncharges-EstablishedbyCityCouncil.
All charges for solid waste collection shall be established or modified by resolution of the

City Council. The schedule of fees shall remain on file and be available in the office of the
Finance Director. The Utilities Director shall, with the approval of the city manager, recommend
changes in the above fees when the cost of solid waste collection makes it appropriate.

8.32.140 Charges for Collection.
A. Residential

l. Each and every householder or tenant occupying any dwelling, house, or
residence, shall pay to the City, or its authorized agent, a fixed minimum solid
waste fee based upon current established solid waste rates which shall be set by
City Council. Such fee is based upon service of one (l) call per week for garbage
and one (l) call every other week for recyclables and yard waste without
consideration of whether therc is any garbage, recyclables or yard waste to remove
from the premises.

2.

Ordinance No. 1049
Page 8 ot 14

Solid waste service may be discontinued upon written request for a period of no
less than two (2) months when a dwelling, house, or residence will be unoccupied.
The minimum time of discontinuing service will be two (2) months, A service
charge equal to two (2) months solid waste charge will be charged to the utility
user for the removal and redelivery of the assigned automated containers when
service has been temporarily discontinued. This service charge will be paid at the
time service is discontinued. Upon occupancy of a dwelling, house or residence the
utility user must contact the City Finance Department to restart service. If the
occupant of a dwelling, house, or residence does not contact the City to restart
service, the City may bill back to the discontinuance of service all monthly
charges.

3. For collection of additional containers beyond those covered by the fixed
minimum charges established in this chapter, the collection charge shall be set by
Resolution of the City Council for each additional solid waste container.

4. An additional or special pickup may be requested beyond the minimum service
required by this chapter. Each such additional or special pickup shall be subject to

Page 95

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



a fixed fee. The fixed fee for additional or special pickups shall be set by
Rcsolution of the City Council.

B. Commercial

l. A landlord, property owner, or property manager or management company of each
and every siorC, shop, apartment, house, rooming house, or factory that has a
commercial container shall pay to the City, or its authorized agent, a fixed
minimum charge as set forth by the City Council as a solid waste fee. Such fixed
minimum charge is based upon service of (l) call per week, without consideration
of whether there is any solid waste to remove from the premises.

A landlord, property owner, or property manager or management company wi_th

multiple tenants who must share a commercial container shall be responsible for
the solid waste utility bill of the tenants. Responsibility to pay the solid waste
utility bill of the landlord, property owner, or property manager or management
company will become mandatory effective six months from the date of the
adoption of this ordinance to allow time to renew rental or lease contracts with
tenants

2. Commercial Container, Roll-off, and Additional Services. The Utilities Director
may approve the placing of solid waste in containen other than ninety-five (95)
gallon automated cans such as roll-off containers. The fixed fee and additional
service charges will be set by Resolution of the City Council. Such charge shall
include all costs to the City, including, but not limited to, labor, equipment
operation, maintenance and depreciation, administrative overhead, recycling,
landfill closure and landfill operation costs. Standard, commercial, charges for
commercial containers and roll-off containers may be established by the Utilities
Director subject to the approval of the City Council.

3. An additional or special pickup may be requested beyond the minimum service
required by this chapter. Each such additional or special pickup shall be subject to
a fixed fee. The fixed fee for additional or special pickups shall be set by
Resolution of the City Council.

C. Adjustment of Bills for Billing Error.

l. Where the City overcharges or undercharges a customer's solid waste bill as the
result of a billing error, the City may render an adjusted bill for the amount of the
undercharge, without interest, and shall issue a refund or credit to the customer for
the amount of the overcharge, without interest, for the same periods as for the
billing enor. Adjusted billing shall be computed back to the date that the City
determines the billing etror commenccd, except that the period of adjustment shall
not exceed one (l) year for a rcfund and six (6) months for an undercharge.

8.32.150 Fees and Charges-Due date.
Solid waste service fees and charges shall be paid on the first of each and every month

and are delinquent on the tenth day of each month and shall be paid in advance.

8,32.160 Charges-Collection authority.
The city Finance Department shall collect all charges and fees with the assistance of the

City Attomey as necessary or appropriate.

Ordinance No. 1049
Pago I ol 14

Page 96

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



8.32.170 Charges--Nonpayment--Violation.
The nonpayment by any person of the solid waste fee after notice given by the city

Finance Department by bill rendered to such p€rson, or left on the premises is a violation of this
chapter.

8.32.180 Charges-Nonpayment--Discontinuance.
The city shall have the right in addition to any other remedies to discontinue solid waste

service for nonpayment of solid waste fees or charges.

8,32.190 Accumulation prohibited.
No person shall permit solid waste to accumulate upon the premises owned or occupied

by such person.

8.32.191 SufficientServiceRequired.
Customers must accept solid waste collection service sufficient to remove solid waste

generated by or accumulating weekly from the premises. The Utilities Director may order
additional service on behalf of the customer where the department determines necessary. [f
additional service is needed, a customer may use additional containers or select a larger-capacity
container from the container choices available from the department. Commercial-route
customers may also request more frequent container collection or dumps mor€ than once a week.

8.32.192 Exclusive use of containers.
A. It is unlawful for any person to dump or place any material into, or to utilize, any solid waste
container, bin or dumpster without consent of the property owner or tenant in charge of the
property.

B. It is unlawful for any person, without the consent of the property owner or tenant
in charge of the property, to enter into a solid waste container, whether or not a
notice has been placed on such container, for the purpose of salvaging solid waste
therein or for the purpose of utilizing the receptacle to rest or sleep therein.

8.32.210 Scavenging of recyclable materials.
No person shall remove recyclable materials from residential containers or commercial
dumpsters that are designated for city collection. Such material includes, but is not limited to:
newspapers, magazines, yard trimmings, wood waste, books, glass bottles, cardboard, plastic
bottles, aluminum and steelcans.

8.32.220 ExemptionfromparticipationinResidentialCurbsideRecycling.
At the discretion of the Utilities Director, an exemption may be granted to individual(s) from
participating in Residential Curbside Recycling upon approval from the Utilities Director, in
his/her sole discretion. Exemptions may be granted based on the following criteria:

A. Individual(s) who perform back yard composting at their household
B. Individual(s) who perform grass cycling at their household
C. Individual(s) or Home Owner's Associations whose gardener takes green waste to a

recycler
D. A lack of yard waste or recyclables being generated at household

Ordinance No. 1049
Page '10 ol 14

Page 97

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



E. Health related reasons which prevent individual(s) from wheeling carts to the curb
F. Severe space constraints which prevents the placement of additional containers at

household

Individuals must request an exemption in writing and such request must provide a detailed
explanation of the basis for the request, include supporting documentation and any other
information or documentation rcasonably requested by the Utilities Director. Exemptions may be

revoked by the Utilities Director at any time at the discretion of the Utilities Director.
Exemptions are conditioned upon and subject to l) the requesting party continuing to reside at
the location specified in the request; and, 2) the circumstances justifying the exemption
remaining unchanged. Individuals or associations who are granted an exemption must notify the

Utilities Director, in writing, of any change in the circumstances supporting the grant of
exemption within 30 days of such change in circumstances.

8.32.230 Contamination of containerized recyclables & yard waste.
No person shall place non-recyclable materials into city-provided Containers, roll-off

containers or dumpsters that are designated for the city collection of Recyclables or Yard Waste.
Commercial or residential recycling or yard waste containers may be removed from service if
excessive and frequent contamination is found in the container. Excessive and frequent
contamination is defined as three violations within a one-year period. If a residential container is
removed from service, no rate reduction will be provided. If a commercial container is removed
from service, for contamination, the existing charge will be discontinued concurrently with the
removal of the bin.

8.32.240 Replacement fee for damaged containers.
The Utilities Director shall have the authority to assess the cost for the replacement of

containers, roll offs or dumpsters that have been damaged or destroyed due to the customer's
negligence or misuse.

8.32.250 NeighborhoodCleanupRequirements.
Any and all materials deposited curbside for the purposes of participating in the

Neighborhood Clean-up program must meet the following criteria:

A. All pickups must be secured by an appointment
B. All piles must be no more than five cubic yards in size (7' x 6' x 3')
C. All materials must be placed curbside by 6:00 a.m. on the scheduled collection date
D. Material must be placed at the edge of the street and not on a sidewalk
E. All materials must only consist of
l. Yard waste (leaves and grass must be bagged)
2. Lumber/wood
3. Furniture/mattresses
4. [,awn mowers (remove gas & oil)
5. Barbeques (remove propane tanks)
6. Metals
7. I-arge appliances
8. Tires (no more than three)

Ordinance No. 1049
Pago 11 of 14

Page 98

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



Any materials placed curbside that do not meet thc above requirements shall be considered
illegal dumping and any person who commits such act(s) shall be subject to the penalties set

forth in Folsom Municipal Code Section 8.34.0,f0.

8.32.260 Frequency of Residential Service Change Requests.
Residents will be allowed three service change r€quests after receiving the rcsidential

solid waste, recycling and yard waste carts at no charge for one year of the City's recycling
program applicable to all categories of service. Additional service change requests will be

charged an administrative fee of $20.00 or as otherwise set by the City Council by Resolution.

The categories of service change include:

A. Changing the size and number of garbage containers
B. Changing the size and number of recycling containers
C. Changing the size and number of yard waste containen

8.32.270 Enforcement.

A. This chapter shall be enforced pursuant to the provisions of Chapters 1.08 to 1.10,

inclusive, of Title I of the Folsom Municipal Code and any other enforcement
mechanism available to the City under the Folsom Municipal Code and/or applicable law.

B. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Chapter, the Utilities Director shall
enforce the provisions of this chapter.

8.32.280 Penalties.

A. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Chaptex a violation of this chapter shall be
an administrative violation as defined in Section 1.08.020 of this code. In addition to
enforcement by any procedure set forth in Chapters t.08 to 1.10, inclusive, except as
provided in this section, any violation of this chapter shall be punishable as an infraction
and shall be punishable by: (l) a fine not exceeding fifty dollars for a first violation; (2) a
fine not exceeding onc hundred dollan for a second violation within one year; (3) a fine
not exceeding two hundred fifty doilars for each additional violation within one year.

B. Each and every day during which a stationary violation continues, except in cases in
which a given time has been allowed for corrective action to be taken, shall be a separate
and distinct offense.

C. Violations of Section 8.32.090 (B), (C), and (D); 8.32.190, and 8.32.210 shall be a
misdemeanor, which shall be punishable by a fine not to exceed $1,000, or by
imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 6 months, or by both such fine and
imprisonment.

D. Each of the sanctions for administrative violations identified in Chapter 1.09 of this
code shall be available for enforcement of the provisions of this chapter. The range of

Ordinance No. 1049
Page 12 of 14

Page 99

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



monetary sanctions available for a violation of this chapter shall be as set forth in Section

1.09.012(4)(5) and may be imposed on a per day basis for each violation.

8.32.290 Enforcement procedures, notice to conect.

A. Prior to the suspension, revocation, or denial of any permit, or the assessment of any

fee, penalty, or charge, or the commencement of any other enforcement action purcuant to
this chapter, the enforcement authority may pursue the procedures set fonh in Chapter 1.09

of this code. The rights to judicial review set forth in Sections 1.09.050 to 1.09.059,
inclusive, of this code shall apply.

B. A notice to corect shall not be required to commence the administrative hearing
procedures set forth in Chapters 1.08 to 1.10, inclusive, of this code. Pursuant to Section
1.09.024(A) of this code, a notice of administrative violation shall be served in accordance
with the provisions of Section 1.09.027 of this code.

8.32.300 Remedies cumulative.

The remedies set forth in this chapter are cumulative to any other remedy available to the
city. Pursuit of one remedy shall not preclude any other remedy, and nothing contained in this
chapter shall limit or be deemed to prevent the city from pursuing any other remedy available to
the city under the city's code or any other applicable law.

SECTION 3

Except as set forth in this ordinance, all other provisions of Chapter 8.32 remain
in full force and effect.

SECTION 4 SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any
reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this ordinance and each
section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion thercof, inespective of the fact that any
one or more sections, subsections, clauses, phrases or portions be declared invalid or
unconstitutional.

SECTION 5 EFFECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage
and adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its
adoption in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Folsom.

Ordinance No. 1049
Page 13 ol 14

Page 100

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City
Council on January 24,2006, and by a majority vote of the Council Members present, further

reading was waived.

On a motion by Council Member Miklos, seconded by Council Member Starsky, the

foregoing ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom, State of
California, this l4th day of February 2006 by the following roll-call vote, to wit:

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this l4s day of February 2006, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s)

Council Member(s)

Council Member(s)

Council Member(s)

Miklos, Starsky, Morin

Howell

King

None

-7
J. Morin, MA

ATTEST:

iJ DEPUTY CITY CLERK

Effective: March 16, 2006

Ordlnancs No. 1049
Page 14 ol 14

Page 101

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 102

12/14/2021 Item No.9.



['t0Ls f}]rg.
(, rtrrtll.a t. l.!Yr r!

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council receive and file 58-165 Annual Reports for
Community Facilities Districts No. 13, No. 14, No. 2013-1, No. 16, No. 17, No. 18, No. 19,

No. 20, No. 21, No. 22, and No. 23 to Comply with the Local Agency Special Tax Bond and
Accountability Act.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Local Agency Special Tax Bond and Accountability Act (the "Act"), enacted by Senate
Bill 165, is codified in California Government Code Sections 50075 through 50077 and 53410
through 53412. The Act requires:

o that any local special tax measure subject to voter approval contain a statement
indicating the specific single purpose of the special tax

o that the proceeds ofthe special tax be applied to that purpose
o the creation of an account into which the proceeds shall be deposited
o an annual report containing specified information concerning the use of the proceeds.

The Act imposes similar accountability requirements with respect to any local bond measure
that is subject to voter approval that would provide for the sale of bonds by a local agency.

1

MEETING DATE: t2/t41202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Receive and File 58-165 Annual Reports for Community
Facilities Districts No. 13, No. 14, No. 2013-1, No. 16, No. 17,
No. 18, No. 19, No. 20, No. 21, No. 22, andNo. 23 to Comply
with the Local Agency Special Tax Bond and Accountability Act

F'ROM: Finance Department

Page 103

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



These requirements only apply to local agencies thathave imposed special taxes or issued bond
measnres subject to voter approval after January 1,2001.

The City currently has seventeen districts which have imposed special taxes or issued bond
measures subject to voter approval after January 1,2001. These districts are:

a Community Facilities District No. 13 (American River Canyon North Maintenance
District)
Community Facilities District No. 14 (Parkway II)
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Water Facilities and Supply)
Community Facilities District No. 16 (The Islands at Parkshore) Improvement Area I
Community Facilities District No. 16 (The Islands at Parkshore) Improvement Area2
Community Facilities District No. 17 (Willow Hill Pipeline)
Community Facilities District No. 18 (Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide Improvements
and Services)
Community Facilities District No. 19 (Mangini Ranch)
Community Facilities District No. 20 (Russell Ranch)
Community Facilities District No. 21 (White Rock Springs Ranch)
Community Facilities District No. 22 (Folsom Heights)
Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area I
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area2
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 3
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 4

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 5
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 6

The Chief Fiscal Officer of these sixteen districts hereby submits the annual reports for each
of these districts.

POLICY / RULE

1. California Government Code, Section 50075.3 states the chief fiscal officer of the
levying local agency shall file a report with its governing body no later than January l,
2002 and at least once a year thereafter. The annual report shall contain both the
following: (a) The amount of funds collected and expended; and (b) the status of any
project required or authorized to be funded as identified in Section 50075.1(a).

2. California Government Code, Section 53411states the chief fiscal officer of the issuing
local agency shall file a report with its goveming body no later than January 1,2002
and at least once ayear thereafter. The annual report shall contain both the following:
(a) The amount of funds collected and expended; and (b) the status of any project
required or authorized to be funded as identified in Section 53410(a).

a

a

o

o

a

a

a

a

a

a

2
Page 104

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



3. California Govemment Code, Section 50075.1(a) requires a statement indicating the
specific pu{poses of the special tax.

4. California Govemment Code, Section 53a10@) requires a statement indicating the
specific purposes of the bond.

ANALYSIS

Community Faoilities Distriut No. 13, Ameriuan River Canyon North Maintenance District,
was established July 24, 2001 primarily to fund the maintenance of landscape areas in
American River Canyon North, as well as collecting for other authorized services. In fiscal
year 2021, the district collected $I07,253 and expended $112,834. The cash balance at year
end was 983,279 and the status of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 14, Parkway II, was established September 25,2001 to
finance the acquisition and construction of certain public facilities within the district.
$ 18,200,000 in bonds were issued May 9, 2002, and partially advance refunded July 19, 2007 .

In fiscal year 2018, additional bonds were issued. The 2007 bonds were refunded on July 1 1,

2017, and with the final maturity for the bonds in this district remaining at September 1,2032.
In fiscal year 2021, the district expended $9,147 from the acquisition and construction fund,
leaving a balance of $1,995,333 remaining.

Community Facilities District No. 2013-1, Water Facilities and Supply, was established
January 14, 2014 to fund all or a portion of the water treatment and storage and distribution
facilities, water supply costs, and other costs pursuant to the Water Supply and Facilities Plan
and Agreement. In fiscal year 2021the district collected 51,987,727 and expended$I,993,434.
The cash balance atyear end was $863,711, and the status of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 16, The Islands at Parkshore, was established March 10,
2015 to finance the acquisition and construction of certain public facilities within the district,
and to fund ongoing maintenance of the improvements within the district. In fiscal year 202t
the Improvement Area 1 expended $1,698,311 from bond proceeds, leaving a remaining
balance of $0. The debt service reserve account for Improvement Area I had a balance of
$430,680. On July 18,2019, bonds were issued for Improvement Area2.In fiscal year 2021,
the district expended $2,623,738 from bond proceeds, leaving a balance of $174,72I
remaining. The debt service reserve account for Improvement Area 2 had a balance of
$238,720. In fiscal year 2021 the district collected an amount of $192,133 and expended
$81,148 for maintenance. The cash balance at year end was $427,188, and the status of the
district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 17, Willow Hill Pipeline, was established March 24,2015
to finance water facilities, including the Willow Hill Transmission Pipeline construction and
rehabilitation project, within or in the vicinity of CFD No. 17. In fiscal year 2021the district
had no collection nor expenses for the project fund, leaving a balance of $0. The debt service

J
Page 105

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



reserve account for the district had expenditures of $l ,27 6 in the cunent year with no revenues,

leaving a balance of $408,485. The status of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 18, Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide Improvements and

Services, was established December 8, 2015 to finance the Willow Hill Pipeline facilities,
offsite water facilities, sanitary sewer system, aquatic center phase I and2, quarry road, water
infrastructure, interchanges, selected trails and roadway widenings, and other backbone

facilities to serve the Folsom Plan Area. In addition, the planned services to be financed
include the maintenance of parks, trails, landscape corridors, medians and open spaces; streets,

street light and satbty light maintenance; and storm drainage facilities maintenance. In fiscal
year 2021the district collected 5749,7t9 and expended $158,943. The cash balance at year

end was $998,113, and the status of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 19, Mangini Ranch, was established January 12,2016 to
finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, recycled water
system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space improvements;
Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized
services to be funded from the levy include open space improvements, operations, and

management; landscape corridor maintenance; street light, median, storm water, and

community amenities maintenance; and miscellaneous cost related to any of the items
described above. $28,530,000 in bonds were issued August I0,2017 .In fiscal year 2020, an

additional $14,040,000 in bonds were issued. In fiscal year 2021the district had no collection
nor expenses for the project fund, leaving a balance of $0. In fiscal year 2021the debt service

reserve account expended $38,316, leaving a balance of $3,244,695. In fiscal year 2021 the
district collected $157,609 and expended $24,221 in the maintenance account. The cash

balance atyear end was $440,892, and the status of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 20, Russell Ranch, was established November 14, 2017 to
finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, recycled water
system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space improvements;
Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; and other expenses. In fiscal year 202I the
district had no collection nor expenses for the project fund, leaving a balance of $0. In fiscal
year 2021 the debt service reserve account collected $313, leaving a balance of$1,022,500.

Community Facilities District No. 21, White Rock Springs Ranch, was established February
13, 2018 to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system,

recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space

improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; and other expenses. On
December 5, 2019 $9,695,000 in bonds were issued. In fiscal year 2021, and additional
$11,815,000 in bonds were issued. In fiscal year 2021the district expended $8,620,417 from
bond proceeds, leaving a balance of 52,979,962 inthe project fund. The debt service reserve

account had a balance of $1,550,011. The capitalized interest account expended $240,172,
leaving abalance of $169,418.

4
Page 106

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Community Facilities District No. 22, Folsom Heights, was established November 27 ,2018 to
finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, recycled water
system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space improvements;
Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized
services to be funded from the levy include landscape corridor maintenance; open space

improvements, street light maintenance; and miscellaneous cost related to any of the items
described above, As of June 30,2021 the district had no collections nor expenses. The status
of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 1, was established
May 26,2020to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system,
recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space

improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee

Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the
levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous cost related to any of the items
described above. $12,925,000 in bonds were issued on October 30, 2020.In fiscal yeu 2021
the district expended $9,704,352 from bond proceeds, leaving a balance of $2,180,800 in the
project fund. The debt service reserve account had a balance of $883,031. The capitalized
interest account expended $17 | ,337 , leaving a balance of $255 ,121 . As of June 3 0, 2021 the
maintenance account had no collections or expenses, and the status of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 2, was established
May 26,2020to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system,
recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space

improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee

Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the
levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous cost related to any of the items
described above, As of June 30, 2021fhe district had no collections nor expenses. The status
of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 3, was established
May 26,2020to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system,
recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space

improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee

Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the
levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous cost related to any of the items
described above, As of June 30, 2021the district had no collections nor expenses. The status
of the district is on-going.

5
Page 107

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 4, was established

May 26,2020to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system,

recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space

improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee

Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the
levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous cost related to any of the items

described above, As of June 30,2021the district had no collections nor expenses. The status

of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 5, was established

May 26,2020 to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system,

recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space

improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee

Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the
levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous cost related to any of the items
described above, As of June 30,2021the district had no collections nor expenses. The status

of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 6, was established

May 26,2020to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system,

recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space

improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee

Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the
levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous cost related to any of the items
described above, As of June 30,2021the district had no collections nor expenses. The status

of the district is on-going.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no discemable financial impact on the City of Folsom.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review pursuant to CEQA Guidelines $ 15061(bX3).

ATTACHMENT

1. 5B-165 Annual Report for Community Facilities Districts

6
Page 108

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Submitted,

Tamagni
Finance Director

7 Page 109

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



SENATE BILL 765

Senate Bill 165, filed with the Secretary of State on September 19, 2000, enacted the Local Agency

Special Tax and Bond Accountability Act. This Act requires that any local special tax or local bond

measure subject to voter approval contain a statement indicating the specific purposes of the special

tax, require that the proceeds of the special tax be applied to those purposes, require the creation of an

account into which the proceeds shall be deposited, and require an annual report containing specified

information concerning the use of the proceeds. The Act only applies to any local special tax measure or
local bond measure adopted on orafterJanuary L,2O0t in accordance with Section 50075.1 orSection
53410 of the California Government Code.

Some of the requirements of the Act are handled at the formation of the SpecialTax District and others

are handled through annual reports. This Section of this report intends to comply with Section 50075.3

or Section 534L1of the California Government Code that states:

"The chief fiscal officer of the issuing local agency shall file a report with its governing body no later than

January L,2002, and at least once a year thereafter. The annual report shall contain all of the following:
(a) The amount of funds collected and expended.
(b) The status of any project required or authorized to be funded as identified in subdivision (a) of

Section 50075.1 or Section 53410."

The requirements of the Act apply to the funds for the following Districts:

Community Facilities District No. 13, American River Canyon North
Established luly 24, ZOO1

Purpose of Special Tax

Community Facilities District No. 13, American River Canyon North ("CFD") primarily funds the
maintenance of landscape areas of American River Canyon North included within the boundaries of the
CFD. ln addition to the maintenance costs, the CFD also provides funding for costs associated with
collecting and administering the special taxes and annually administering the CFD. The special tax funds

levied may pay for any authorized service. The City may also accumulate funds for authorized services.

The CFD's authorized services include the following:

L. The repair and maintenance of parkways, landscaping, open space, greenbelts, bikeways,

irrigation facilities, soundwalls, street lights on arterial parkways, monuments and signs, and other
appurtenance within and along public right-of-way.

2. Cost of scheduled inspections of the maintenance of landscaped areas.

3. Utility bills associated with the maintenance of landscaped areas.

4. CFD formation and annual administration costs.

5. Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

legal, and administration.

1
Page 110

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Fiscal Year 2020/21 Collections & Expenditures

CFD #13 Detail

June 30, 2020 Maintenance District Fund Gash Balance:

Revenues:
American Rirer Canyon North Direct Levy

lnterest Earned
Total Rerenues

Expenses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly Landscape Maintenance
Repairs & Replacement
Departmental Charges
Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total Expenses:

Change in ReceiublesiLiabi lities

June 30, 2021 Maintenance District Fund Gash Balance:

$ 88,860

$ 106,477
776

$ 107,253

$ 28,742
53,368

4,459
1,638

278
23,503

$ 111,988

(846)

$ 83,279

06l?ol2o2o
Balance

Amount
Collected

Expended
Amount

06130l202t
Balance

Service
Status

S88,860 5to7,2s3 s772,834 593,279 On-going

2
Page 111

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 14 (Parkway Phase llf

Established Septem ber 25, 2OOt"

Purpose of Special Tax

Community Facilities District No. 14 (Parkway Phase ll) ("CFD") provided funds to finance the acquisition
and construction of certain public facilities and the payment of certain fees relating to public facilities
generally described as the construction of portions of Blue Ravine Road, Parkway Drive, East Natoma

Street and the Oak Avenue Parkway/Blue Ravine Road lntersection, together with street lights,

soundwalls and larrdscapirrg arrtl hardscape irnprovetttetrts, the constructiott of drainage inrprovenrents
within Humbug/Willow Creek Parkway, improvements to the existing sewer lift station at Willow Creek

Parkway and related force mains and the construction of fire facilities and parks within the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Collections & Expenditures

Series 2017 Special Tax Refunding Bonds

Bonds lssued July It,2OL7
s14,640,000

CFD #14 Detail

June 30, 2020 Acquisition & Consilruction Fund Gash Balance: $ 2,004,479

Revenues:
Proceeds from Series 2017 Refunding Bonds
lnterest Earned
Transfers ln

(12,e10)

Total Relenues $ (12,e10)

Expenses:
Construction
Transfers Out

Total Expenses:

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 2021 Acquisition & Construction Fund Gash Balance:

3

3,763

$

$

$

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

05l30l2O2o

Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

05l30l2021.

Balance

Refunding

Escrow

Deposit
5L5,240,76s so $15,240,764 so So So $o

Project Fund 1,790,000 2,016,292 tt,8t3 2,004,479 (L2,9L0) (3,763) 1,995,333

Cost of
lssuance

88,992 88,992 0 0 0 0 0

Bond

Proceeds
389 389 0 0 0 0

$ 1,995,333

Page 112

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Water Facilities and Supply)
Established January L4, 201,4

Purpose of Special Tax

Water Treatment. Storase and Distribution Facilities

Generally, all work and improvements to design, construct, install and upgrade the public water
treatment, storage and distribution facilities described below, all to be located on public property
(whether the dedicated road right-of-way, dedicated easements, or publicly-owned land), including but
not limited to mobilization, clearing, grubbing, tree removal, protcctivc fcncing and crosion control,

dewatering, lime treatment, trenching, and related appurtenant work and facilities, together with the

costs and expense of engineering design, plan review, construction-related surety bonds or like security
instruments, construction staking and management, inspection, permitting costs, and any like fees and

costs incidental to such construction and installation for the following items:
o Water Systems Optimization Review Program costs including:

o Costs for engineering, tests and studies, legal and other professional services and

project administration
o Willow Hill pipeline lining improvement costs

o Water treatment, pumping and conveyance facilities required to treat, pump and convey water
from the City's water treatment plant to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan including:

o Water treatment plant upgrades

o Pump station, booster pumps and related appurtenances
o Additional water conveyance facilities and connections

Water Supplv Costs

Annual water supply costs to the City pursuant to the Water Supply and Facilities Plan and Agreement
between the City of Folsom and Certain Landowners in the Folsom Plan Area recorded on January 24,
20L3.

Other Costs

ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos

Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the
facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation and environmental remediation); engineering
and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction
of the public facilities; costs of project/construction managemenU costs (including the costs of legal

services) associated with the formation of the district; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the
amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out
the authorized purposes of the distric! and any other expenses incidental to the formation and

implementation of the district and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the
authorized facilities.

0613012020
Balance

Amount
Collected

Expended
Amount

06l30l2O2t
Balance

Project
Status

s869,418 5L,987,727 $L,993,434 s863,711 On-going

4

FiscalYear 2O2O|2LCo ns & Exoenditures

Page 113

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



CFD #2013-1 Detail

June 30, 2020 Fund Cash Balance:

Revenues:
CFD 2013-1 Water Facilities & Supply Direct Levy

Prepayment
lnterest Earned

Total Rercnues:

Expenses:
Water System Optimization Repayment (6 of 10)

Water Supply
CFD Admin
Transfers Out

Total Expenses:

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30,2021 Fund Casfi Balance:

$ 869,418

$ 1,960,905
15,352
11,571

$ 1,987,727

179,813
2,659,882

18,296
39,779

$ 2,897,769

904,334

$ 863,711

$

5
Page 114

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 16 (The lslands at Parkshore)

lmprovement Area No. 1 and lmprovement Area No. 2

Established March LO, z0ts
lmprovement Area No. 1 Bonds lssued March 15, 2018

lmprovement Area No. 2 Bonds lssued July 18, 2019

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The planned public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 16 (The lslands at Parkshore) ("CFD")

include the following: construction of sanitary sewers (including gravity sewers, manholes and

appurtenances), storm drains (including inlets, outlets, channels, structures, junctions, manholes and

catch basins), water facilities (including distribution mains and appurtenances), power, telephone and

gas utilities, street improvements (including curbs, gutters, sidewalks, landscaping and striping, traffic

signals and street lights), bridge improvements, park improvements, landscaping and slope planting, all

within or in the vicinity of the CFD. The public facilities shall include all related clearing and grubbing,

grading and appurtenances, and any removal or temporary signage or markings related thereto.

All street and bridge improvements include widening, paving and/or re-paving, striping, and/or re-

striping, pedestrian sidewalks or other related improvements or appurtenances, and utilities are located

within the public right of way.

All facilities and related costs eligible to be funded include all City development impact fees, sewer

connection fees, water connection fees, drainage fees, traffic mitigation fees, park fees, and other City

fees related to facilities.

All public facilities shall include attributed costs of engineering, design, planning, construction staking,

materials testing and coordination of the public facilities. The public facilities should be constructed

pursuant to plans and specifications approved by the City (or other governmental entity that will own

and operate the same).

The foregoing description of the types of facilities eligible to be financed is general in nature and

includes any appurtenant work and incidental expenses relating to the facilities. The final nature and

location of the facilities will be determined upon the preparation of final plans and specifications for
such facilities.

Services

It is intended that the CFD will be eligible to fund all or a portion of the costs of construction, operation,

maintenance, repair, and servicing of parks, landscaping and irrigation improvements, street and

landscape lighting, fencing and/or walls, sidewalks, trails, pathways, water quality/drainage basins,

wetlands, and appurtenant facilities within or adjacent to the CFD.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements and for
the future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with

6
Page 115

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



its own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Collections & Expenditures

lmprovement Area L Facilities

CFD #16lAl Fund Detail

June 30, 2020 Acquisition and Consfruction Fund Gash Balance: $ 1,698,311

Revenues:
Proceeds fom Series 2018 Bonds

lnterest Eamed
Total Rercnues

Expenses:
Payment Requisition No. 2 to Lewis Land Dewlopers, LLC $ 1,698,31 1

Total Expenses:

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 2021 Acquisition and Gonstruction Fund Cash Balance:

$ 1,698,31 1

lmprovement Area 2 Facilities

$

$

$

$

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

06l30l2o2O

Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

06lsol2021.

Balance

Project

Fund
54,932,77s 54,932,77s $3,23q,q68 S1,698,311 So S1,698,311 SO

Cost of
lssuance

333,096 333,096 333,096 0 0 0 0

Reserve

Fund
430,680 430,680 0 428,883 1,797 0 430,680

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

06l30l2o2O

Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

06l30l2O2t
Balance

Project

Fund
$2,798,453 52,798,459 so s2,798,459 So $2,623,738 5174,72t

Cost of
lssuance

25L,582 251,582 25t,582 0 0 0 0

Reserve

Fund
237,773 237,773 0 237,773 947 0 238,720

7
Page 116

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



CFD #{6 lA2 Fund Detail

June 30, 2020 Acquisition and Gonstruction Fund Gash Balance

Revenues:
Proceeds fom Series 2019 Bonds

lnterest Eamed
Total Rerenues

Expenses:
Progress Payment #1 to Lewis Land Dewlopers, LLC

Total Expenses:

Change in Receilables/Liabil ities

June 30, 2021 Acquisition and Construction Fund Cash Balance:

CFD #16 Maintenance Fund Detail

June 30, 2020 Maintenance Disfrict Fund Cash Balance

Revenues:
CFD #16 (lAl) Services Direct LevY

CFD #16 (lA2) Services Direct Lery

lnterest Eamed
Total Rercnues

b<penses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly Landscape Maintenance
Repairs & Replacement
Departmental Charges

Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total Expenses:

Change i n Receirables/Liabilities

June 30, 202{ Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance

$ 2,798,459

$

$

$

$ 2,623,738

Services

$ 2,623,738

$ 174,721

$ 316,202

94,296
94,125

3,712

$ 192,133

10,498
50,070
5,432

15,707

$ 81,707

$

$

559

8

06l30l2o2o
Balance

Amount
Collected

Expended

Amount
05l30l2O2t

Balance

Project
Status

s3t6,202 Srgz,rss s81,148 5427,188 On-going

$ 427,188

Page 117

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 17 (Willow Hill Pipelinef

Established March 24, 2Ot5

Purpose of Special Tax

The planned public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 17 (Willow Hill Pipeline) ("CFD") include

the following: water facilities (including the Willow Hill Transmission Pipeline construction and

rehabilitation project, and all ancillary work necessary or appropriate related thereto), all within or in
the vicinity of the CFD. The public facilities shall include all related clearing and grubbing, grading and

appurtenances, and any removal or temporary signage or markings related thcrcto.

CFD bond proceeds may not be used to pay, or reimburse previously-paid, development related fees,

including, but not limited to, development impact fees, City community services fee, development
processing fees, school fees, sewer connection fees, water connection fees, drainage fees, traffic
mitigation fees, and other City fees related to facilities.

All public facilities shall include attributed costs of engineering, design, planning, construction staking,

materials testing and coordination of the public facilities. The public facilities should be constructed
pursuant to plans and specifications approved by the City (or other governmental entity that will own

and operate the same).

The foregoing description of the types of facilities eligible to be financed is general in nature and

includes any appurtenant work and incidental expenses relating to the facilities. The final nature and

location of the facilities will be determined upon the preparation of final plans and specifications for
such facilities.

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Collections & Expenditures

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

06l30l2o2O

Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current

Year

Expenses

05l30l202t
Balance

Acquisition and

Construction Fund
S5,7oo,ooo s5,700,000 s5,7o0,ooo So So $o so

Reserve Account 408,381 413,823 4,062 409,761 0 1,276 408,485

Underwriter's
Discount

96,254 96,254 96,254 0 0 0

Cost of lssuance 327,t95 346,289 308,t32 0 0 0 0

9
Page 118

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



CFD #17 Fund Detail

June 30, 2020 Acquisition and Construction Fund Cash Balance: $

Revenues:
Proceeds ftom Series 2015A Bonds

Total Rewnues

b<penses:
Progress Payment to Water Fund (Willow Hill

Pipeline Project)
Total Expenses

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 202{ Acquisition and Con$ruction Fund Gadr Balance:

$

$

$

$

$

10
Page 119

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 18

(Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide lmprovements and Services)

Established December 8, 2015

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The planned public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 18 (Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide

lmprovements and Services) ("CFD") include the following:

Willow Hill Pipeline Facilities - These facilities consist of water facilities (including the Willow Hill

Transmission Pipeline construction and rehabilitation project, and all ancillary work necessary or
appropriate related thereto), all within or in the vicinity of the CFD. The improvements shall include all

related clearing and grubbing, grading and appurtenances, and any removal or temporary signage or
markings related thereto.

Off-site Water Facilities - These facilities consist of existing and new facilities such as a water treatment
plant, a pump station and expansion thereof, transmission pipelines, reservoirs, and the distribution
system to serve the Folsom Plan Area.

Sanitary Sewer System - These facilities include a series of transmission pipelines, pump stations, and

force mains, to serve the Folsom Plan Area.

Aquatic Center Phase 1 - These facilities include a competitive swimming pool, a recreation activity
pool, and related support pool-related buildings and structures, such as maintenance and locker room
facilities, which will serve the Folsom Plan Area.

Quarry Road -These facilities include the special road design along Prairie City Road from U.S. Highway

50 to White Rock Road or alternative route to accommodate heavy truck traffic to and from potential

future aggregate quarry sites south of the Folsom Plan Area as identified in the City's Truck

Management Plan approved by the City Council on December 6,20Lt via Resolution 8933.

Water lnfrastructure - These facilities include the development of water pipelines, booster pump

stations, pressure regulating stations, water treatment plant, water reservoirs, land costs, off-site

capacity building, and systems optimization efforts throughout the CFD.

Aquatic Center Phase 2 - These facilities include a community center, gymnasium, multi-purpose
classrooms, a senior center, teen activity rooms which will serve the Folsom Plan Area.

Selected Trails - These facilities consist of a portion of the 30 miles of trails proposed to be built in the
Folsom Plan Area. The comprehensive bike system consists of Class I paths and Class ll bike lanes

connecting residential neighborhoods with schools, parks, and other major destinations. The plan costs

include trails, intersection protection, trail bridges, undercrossings, and design fees.

lnterchanges - These facilities include the modifications to existing interchanges and the construction of
new Highway 50 interchange improvements including the acquisition of land.

Selected Roadway Widenings - These facilities include the necessary infrastructure improvements to
widen the Oak Avenue, Empire Ranch Road, and Prairie City Road from two to four lanes.

LI
Page 120

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Other Backbone Facilities - These consist of additional backbone public facilities needed to serve the

Folsom Plan Area. The additional backbone public facilities include parks, transit services, fire facilities

and equipment, police facilities and equipment, municipal service center, corporation yard, solid waste,

branch library, a nd transportation.

All facilities shall include attributed costs of engineering, design, planning, construction staking,

materials testing and coordination of the facilities. The facilities should be constructed pursuant to
plans and specifications approved by the City (or other governmental entity that will own and operate

the same).

The foregoing description of the types of facilities eligible to be financed is general in nature and

includes any appurtenant work and incidental expenses relating to the facilities. The final nature and

location of the facilities will be determined upon the preparation of final plans and specifications for
such facilities.

Services

The planned services to be financed by the CFD include the following: park, trail, landscape corridor,
median, and open space maintenance; street, street light and safety light maintenance; and storm

drainage facilities maintenance.

The CFD annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance

and servicing of turf, ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, drainage facilities and drainage

systems, street lighting, fencing, soundwalls, sidewalks, monuments, statuary, fountains, water quality
ponds, park facilities, open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the open space

areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other buffer areas between
the open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, drainage swales and other ornamental
structures and facilities, entry signage, street pavers, art work, and monuments and all necessary

appurtenances, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and equipment,

as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs include an

allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or
facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Collections & Expenditures

06l30l2O2o
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

0613012021.

Balance

Project

Status

s407,337 5749,719 S158,943 Sg98,tt: On-going

72
Page 121

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



CFD #18 Detail

June 30, 2020 Maintenance District Fund Gash Balance

Revenues:
Area-Wide Maintenance Direct Levy

Reimbursements
lnterest Eamed

Total Rercnues

Expenses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly Landscape Maintenance
Repairs & Replacement
Departmental Charges
Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total Expenses:

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 2021 Maintenance District Fund Gash Balance:

$
$

$ 407,337

744,337

5,382

$ 749,719

$ 70,460
101,359

18,701

1,120

$ 191,640

32,697

$ 998,113

13
Page 122

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 19 (Mangini Ranch)

Established January L2, 2OtG

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 lssued August 23,2Ot7
SpecialTax Revenue Bonds, Series 2019 lssued August 7,20L9

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 19 (Mangini Ranch) ("CFD") include the
following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and culverts;

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails
(including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and

traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements
including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed above

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm
drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation
improvements:

o Scott Road.
o Easton Valley Parkway-from Scott Road to Placerville Road.

o Street "A"-from Scott Road to Placerville Road.

o Street "B"-from Scott Road to White Rock Road.

o White Rock Road-at selected intersections.
r Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the

CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet
the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to: water
storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; site

lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances, gate

valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -
such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

t4
Page 123

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain
improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but
may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and water quality
meabures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage ways/channels, pump
stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping and signage and other
improvements related thereto.

Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities
designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be

limited to pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main line; force mains;

lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related thereto; and related sewer system
improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development within the CFD. These facilities include, but
may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting, drainage,
sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for
authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized
facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements
that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on
September 8,2OI5, including any future amendments thereto.

Other Expenses: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental expenses as authorized by the Mello-
Roos Community Facilities Act of L982, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing
the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering
and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidentalto the construction
of the public facilities; costs of project/construction managemenU costs (including the costs of legal

services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination
of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing
reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out
the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the
authorized facilities.

Services

The authorized services to be funded from the levy and collection of annual special taxes include those
set forth below in addition to the costs associated with collecting and administering the special taxes
and annual administering the CFD. The CFD will be eligible to fund all or a portion of the costs of
reconstruction and/or rehabilitation, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement, and servicing of
the following items not otherwise subject to funding from the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. L8 (Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide lmprovements and Services):

Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including general

maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and bike trails and

their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions] within open space), creation
and maintenance of fire breaks, permits, vandalism/graffiti, flood conveyance (vegetation/tree

15
Page 124

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



removals), beaver dam removals, outfall/drainage swale maintenance, erosion control/bank
stabilization, native planting/replanting, pre and post emergent, maintenance activities as required by a
404 permit, and open space overarching maintenance & management plan and repair and replacement
of facilities within open space areas in the project area.

The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within the CFD,

including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

The maintenance of street lights, including any utility costs related thereto

The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.

Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse

Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales constructed
between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.

Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering, GlS,

legal, and city and county administration costs.

The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs, reconstruction or
replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry
monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities maintained
by the CFD as determined by the administrator.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:
obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, rehabilitating, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment,
apparatus or facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or
fixtures in areas to be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of personnel necessary or convenient
to provide the services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and

replacements and for the future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by

the City, either with its own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof.

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Fund

Initial

Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

06l30l2o2o
Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

06l30l2o2t
Balance

Project

Fund
S41,o5o,5oo 54t,072,408 s4t,072,408 So So So So

Underwriter's

Discount
408,799 408,799 408,799 0 0 0 0

Cost of
lssuance

685,000 685,000 685,000 0 0 0 0

Reserve

Fund
3,180,625 3,299,370 5,359 3,2g3,ott 0 38,316 3,244,695

Capitalized

lnterest
1,487,509 1,487,509 L,497,5O9 0 0 0 0

16 Page 125

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



CFD #19 Fund Detail

June 30, 2020 Acquisition and Gonstruction Fund Cash Balance: $

Revenues:
Proceeds ftom Series 2017 Bonds
Proceeds fom Series 2019 Bonds

lnterest Earned
Total Rerenues:

Expenses:
Progress Payment #10 to Mangini lmprorcment Co., lnc

Progress Payment #111o Mangini lmprorement Co., lnc

Progress Payment #121o Mangini lmprowment Co., lnc

Progress Payment #13 to Mangini lmprolement Co., lnc
Total Expenses:

Change in Receiwbles/Liabi lities

June 30, 2021 Acquisition and Conslruction Fund Cash Balance:

CFD #19 Detail

June 30, 2020 Maintenance District Fund Gasfi Balance:

$

$

$

$

$

Services

Revenues:
Mangini Ranch Maintenance Direct Levy

Reimbursements
lnterest Eamed

Total Rewnues

Expenses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly Landscape I\ilaintenance
Repairs & Replacement
Departmental Charges
Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total Expenses:

Change in ReceiwblesiLiabilities

June 30, 2021 Maintenance District Fund Gadr Balance

77

$

$ 307,504

$ 153,497

4,112
$ 157,609

12,081
'14,274

459

501

$ 27,314

3,095

$ 440,892

0613012020

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

061301202t

Balance

Project

Status

s307,504 $157,609 s24,22r $44O,892 On-going

Page 126

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 20 (Russell Ranchf

Established November 1 4, 2Ot7
Bonds lssued June 5, 2018

Purpose of Special Tax

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 20 (Russell Ranch) ("CFD") include any and all

improvements that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City

Council on September 8,2015, including any future amendments thereto. These facilities, include, but
are lrot linrited to:

o Zone 4/5 Booster Pump Station;
o Zone 5 Water Tank and Zone 6 Booster Pump Station;
o Highway 50 Water Transmission Line;

o Alder Creek Parkway lmprovements; and
o Grand Prairie lmprovements.

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and culverts;

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails
(including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and

traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements
including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed above

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm
drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation
improvements:

o Placerville Road-from Highway 50 to White Rock Road.

o Alder Creek Parkway-from Scott Road to the Empire Ranch Road.

o Grand Prairie Road-from Alder Creek Parkway to Placerville Road.

o Scott Road-from Alder Creek Parkway to Street "A".
o Empire Ranch Road-from property line to White Rock Road.

o Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the
CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Potable and Non-Potable Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all on- and

off-site backbone water and recycled (or non-potable water facilities) designed to meet the needs of
development within the CFD. These facilities include, but are not limited to, potable and non-potable
mains, valves, pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related
thereto such as site clearing, grading, and paving; services, and appurtenances; wells; water treatment,
distribution, and storage facilities; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; site

lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain
improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but
may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls, and water quality

18
Page 127

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



measures; detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage ways/channels, pump

stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates and fencing; and striping and signage and other
improvements related thereto.

Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include all wastewater facilities designed to
meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to,
pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main line; force mains; lift stations;

odor-control facilities; and permitting related thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway, Open Space and Preserve lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all
improvements to parks, parkways, and open space reqrtired for develnpment within the CFD. These

facilities include, but may not be limited to grading; turf, shrubs and trees; landscaping irrigation; site
lighting; drainage; sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing
(including soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges; public arU active and passive park and open space

improvements (including respites and overlooks); related monumentation and signage; storm drain
crossings; environmental mitigation for wetlands, hawk, and other species for infrastructure under the
Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program and authorized facilities herein; access gates and fencing; and

related park, open space and preserve improvements.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental
expenses as authorized by the Act, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the
facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering and

surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction of
the public facilities; costs of project/construction managemen! costs (including the costs of legal

services) associated with the formation of the District; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the
amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing
reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out
the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the
authorized facilities.

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Collections & Expenditures

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

06l30l2O2o
Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

06l30l2O2t
Balance

Project

Fund
s12,000,000 Stz,olg,37L 5L2,0L9,37t So So So so

Underwriter's

Discount
135,864 135,864 135,864 0 0 0 0

Cost of
lssuance

3L8,236 318,236 3L8,236 0 0 0 0

Reserve

Fund
L,022,500 1,o22,500 312 L,022,t87 313 0 L,022,500

Capitalized

lnterest
804,968 804,968 804,968 0 0 0 0

79
Page 128

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



CFD #20 Fund Detail

June 30, 2020 Acquisition and Construction Fund Cash Balance:

Revenues:
Proceeds from Series 2017 Bonds

Total Rewnues

F.xpenses:
Progress Payment #4 TNHC Russell Ranch LLC

Total Expenses

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 2021 Acquisition and Construction Fund Cash Balance

$

$
$

$

$

20
Page 129

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 21 (White Rock Springs Ranch)

Established February 13, z0tg
Special Tax Bonds, Series 2019 lssued December 5,2OL9

Special Tax Bonds, Series 2021 lssued April 8,2O2l

Purpose of Special Tax

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 2L (White Rock Springs Ranch) ("CFD") include

any and all improvements that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by

the City Council on September 8, 2015, including any future amendments thereto. These facllltles,
include, but are not limited to:

o Zone 4/5 Booster Pump Station;
o Zone 5 Water Tank and Zone 6 Booster Pump Station;
o Highway 50 Water Transmission Line;

o Street "A" lmprovements;
o Alder Creek Parkway lmprovements; and
o Grand Prairie Road lmprovements.

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and culverts;

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, Underground utilities and

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails
(including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and

traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements
including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed herein

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm
drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation
improvements:

o Placerville Road-from Highway 50 to White Rock Road.

o Grand Prairie Road-from Alder Creek Parkway to Placerville Road.

o Scott Road-from Alder Creek Parkway to Street "A".
o Street "N' -ftom Placerville Road to Empire Ranch Road.

o Sycamore Creek Crossing.
o Rock Springs Ranch Road.
o Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the

CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Potable and Non-Potable Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all on- and

off-site backbone water and recycled (or non-potable water facilities) designed to meet the needs of
development within the CFD. These facilities include, but are not limited to, potable and non-potable
mains, valves, pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related
thereto such as site clearing, grading, and paving; services, and appurtenances; wells; water treatment,
distribution, and storage facilities; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; site

lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates and

fencing; and striping and signage.

2L
Page 130

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain
improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but

may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls, and water quality

measures; detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage ways/channels, pump

stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates and fencing; and striping and signage and other
improvements related thereto.

Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include all wastewater facilities designed to
meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to,
pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force mains; lift
stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related thereto; and related sewer system

improvements.

Park, Parkway, Open Space and Preserve lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all

improvements to parks, parkways, and open space required for development within the CFD. These

facilities include, but may not be limited to grading; turf, shrubs and trees; landscaping irrigation; site

lighting; drainage; sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing
(including soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges; public ar! active and passive park and open space

improvements (including respites and overlooks); related monumentation and signage; storm drain
crossings; environmental mitigation for wetlands, hawk, and other species for infrastructure under the
Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program and authorized facilities herein; access gates and fencing; and

related park, open space and preserve improvements.

Payment of Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program ("SPlF") Obligation: Authorized facilities include
payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF obligations
within the entire CFD:

o SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component);
o SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component;
e SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee ComponenU and
o SPIF Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental
expenses as authorized by the Act, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the
facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering and

surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction of
the public facilities; costs of project/construction management; costs (including the costs of legal

services) associated with the formation of the CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the
amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out
the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the
authorized facilities.

22
Page 131

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Fiscal Year 2020/21 Collections & Expenditures

CFD #21 Fund Detail

June 30, 2020 Acquisition and Gonslruction Fund Gash Balance: $ 95,245

Revenues:
Proceeds fiom Series 2019 Bonds

Proceeds from Series 2021 Bonds

lnterest Earned
Total Rewnues:

Expenses:
Progress Payment #4a Paulson Re Master Fund ll LLC-PSNF

Progress Payment #5 Paulson Re Master Fund ll LLC-PSNF

Progress Payment #6 Paulson Re Master Fund ll LLC-PSNF
Total Expenses:

Change in Receirables/Liabilities

June 30, 2021 Acquisition and Construction Fund Gash Balance:

$
1 1,505,016

118

$ 11,505,134

$ 95,245
3,781,355
4,743,817

$ 8,620,417

$ 2,979,962

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

0613012020

Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

06l30l2o2t
Balance

Project

Fund
s2t,106,647 59,696,877 59,601,631 sgs,zqs S11,505,134 s8,620,4L7 52,979,962

Underwriter's

Discount
230,285 LO2,767 0 0 L27,5L8 L27,5I8 0

Cost of
lssuance

650,000 335,000 0 0 315,000 315,000 0

Reserve

Fund
1,550,000 75L,000 0 0 799,Ort 0 1,550,011

Capitalized

I nterest
505,560 336,245 96,070 24O,t75 t69,415 240,172 L69,4L8

23
Page 132

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 22 (Folsom Heights)

Established November 27, 2OLg

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 22 (Folsom Heights) ("CFD") include the
following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligiblc roadway improvcmcnts includc, but arc not limitcd to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and culverts;

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails
(including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and

traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements
including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed herein

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm
drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation
improvements:

o Summit Street
o Prima Drive
o Empire Ranch Road
o Alder Creek Parkway
e Folsom Heights Drive
o Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property

within the CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities, including those
expected to be owned or managed by the City and/or the El Dorado lrrigation District, designed to meet
the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:
water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by
generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system
facilities, including those expected to be owned or managed by the City and/or the El Dorado lrrigation
District, designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,
but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,
gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto
- such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by
generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

24
Page 133

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping

and signage and other improvements related thereto.

Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities,

including those expected to be owned or managed by the City and/or the El Dorado lrrigation District,

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but

may not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines;

force mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for
authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,2015, including any future amendments thereto.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Act, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the

facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering and

surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction of
the public facilities; costs of project/construction management; costs (including the costs of legal

services) associated with the formation of the CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the

amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out

the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the
authorized facilities.

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
o Landscape corridor and enhanced open space maintenance; and

o Street light maintenance.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

25
Page 134

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or
facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the

future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

06l30l2o2O

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

06l30l2O2t
Balance

Project

Status

so So 5o so On-going

06l30l2o2O

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

06l30l2o2t
Balance

Project

Status

so So so 5o On-going

26
Page 135

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch!

lmprovement Area 1
Established May 26, 2O2O

Bonds lssued October 30,2O2O

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the

followlng:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street
lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;
masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities
include the following transportation improvements:

o All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet

the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping

and signage and other improvements related thereto.

27
Page 136

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities
include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for
authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized
facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements
that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,2015, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities
include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)
SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component
SPI F Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental
expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,
the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,
remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

management; costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of
taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,
inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
. Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 4O4 permit and Operations and Management
Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June9, 20t7, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

a

a

a

28
Page 137

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within
the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

o The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
o Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
o Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.
o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.
o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.

o The levy of special taxes to aucurrrula[e sirrking funds for anLicipated future repairs or
replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry
monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities
maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the
enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry
signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or
facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund
administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

29
Page 138

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Facilities

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Collections & Expenditures

CFD #23,1A1 Fund Detail

June 30, 2020 Acquisition and Construction Fund,Cash Balance:

Revenues:
Proceeds from Series 2020 Bonds

lnterest Earned
Total Rewnues:

Expenses:
Progress Payment #1 Goodfellow Bros. LLC

Progress Payment #2 Goodfellow Bros. LLC
Total Expenses

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 2021 Acquisition and Construction Fund Cash Balance:

Services

$

$ 11,884,303
850

$ 11,885,153

$ 6,623,456
3,090,996

$ 9,704,352

$ 2,180,800

Fund

Initial

Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

0613012O2o

Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

06l30l2O2t
Balance

Project

Fund
sLL,g76,L20 so so So s11,985,153 59,704,352 52,190,900

Underwriter's

Discount
t47,82t 0 0 0 t47,821 147,821 0

Cost of
lssuance

260,000 0 0 0 260,000 260,000 0

Reserve

Fund
883,000 0 0 0 883,031 883,031

Capitalized

I nterest
426,458 0 0 0 426,458 t7L,337 255,t21

06l30l2O2O

Balance

Amount
Collected

Expended

Amount

05l30l2o2L
Balance

Project

Status

$o So so so On-going

30
Page 139

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch|

lmprovement Area 2
Established May 26, 2O2O

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the
following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry
seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete andlor pavers; joint trenches, underground
utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street
lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion
control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;
masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities
include the following tra nsportatio n im provements:

All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.
a

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet
the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:
water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by
generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,
gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -
such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities
include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping
and signage and other improvements related thereto.

31
Page 140

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities
designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force
mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities
include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for
authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized
facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements
that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,20L5, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities
include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)
SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component
SPI F Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,
the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction
managemenU costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of
taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,
inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
o Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]
within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post
emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 4O4 permit and Operations and Management
Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June9, 20t7, and repair and
replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

a

a

a

a

32
Page 141

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within
the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

r The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
o Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
r Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.
o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.
o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.
r The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry
monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities
maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the
enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry
signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or
facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

06l30l2O2O

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

06l30l2O2t
Balance

Project

Status

So so $o So On-going

06l30l2o2O
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

061301202t

Balance

Project

Status

so So So so On-going

33
Page 142

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3
Established May 25, 2020

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the
following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry
seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground
utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street
lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion
control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;
masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities
incl ude the fol lowing tra nsportation im proveme nts:

All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet
the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:
water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by
generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,
gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping
and signage and other improvements related thereto.

a

34 Page 143

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities
designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force
mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities
include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for
authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements
that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,2015, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities
include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)
SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental
expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,
the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,
remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

managemenU costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of
taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,
inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
o Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale
maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management
Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9, 20L7, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

a

a

a

a

35
Page 144

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within
the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

o The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
o Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
o Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.
o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.
o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.

o The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinl<ing funds for anticipatcd futurc rcpairs or
replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry
monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities
maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the
enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry
signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or
facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

06l30l2O2o

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

06l30l2o2t
Balance

Project

Status

So So so so On-going

0613012020

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

06l30l2O2t
Balance

Project

Status

so 5o So so On-going

35
Page 145

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
Established May 26, 2O2O

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the
following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry
seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground
utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street
lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion
control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;
masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities
include the following transportation improvements:

All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.
a

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet
the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:
water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by
generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system
facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,
but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,
gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -
such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities
include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage
ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping
and signage and other improvements related thereto.

37
Page 146

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities
designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force
mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities
include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for
authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized
facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements
that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,20L5, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities
include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)
SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental
expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,
the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,
remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

managemenU costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of
taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,
inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
o Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management
Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June9, 20t7, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

a

a

a

a

38
Page 147

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within
the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

o The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
o Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
r Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.
o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.
o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.
r The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry
monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities
maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,
sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the
enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry
signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:
obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or
facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund
administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

06l30l2O2o
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

0613012021.

Balance

Project

Status

So so so so On-going

0613012020

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

06l30l2O2t
Balance

Project

Status

So so $o so On-going

39
Page 148

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Established May 26, 2020

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the
following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry
seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground
utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street
lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion
control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;
masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible
improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities
include the following transportation improvements:

a All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet
the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:
water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by
generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water seruice; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system
facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,
gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -
such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and
fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain
improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities
include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage
ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping
and signage and other improvements related thereto.

40
Page 149

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities
designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may
not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force
mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities
include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for
authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized
facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements
that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on
September 8,2015, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities
include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)
SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental
expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,
the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,
remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction
managemenU costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos
CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of
taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,
inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
. Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]
within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale
maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post
emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management
Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June9, 2017, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

4L
Page 150

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



o The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within
the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

o The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
o Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
o Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.
o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.
o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.
r The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry
monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities
maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the
enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry
signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:
obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or
facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund
administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

06l30l2020
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

06l30l2O2r
Balance

Project

Status

so so So $o On-going

0613012020

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount
06l30l2O2t

Balance

Project

Status

So so So So On-going

42
Page 151

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
Established May 26, 2O2O

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the
following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and
culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry
seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground
utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street
lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion
control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;
masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible
improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable
and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities
include the following transportation improvements:

All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

a

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet
the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:
water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,
pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by
generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system
facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,
but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,
gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and
fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain
improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities
include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage
ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping
and signage and other improvements related thereto.

43
Page 152

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities
designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force
mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for
authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized
facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements
that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,2075, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SP|F

obligations within the entire CFD:

SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)
SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component
SPI F Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,
the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,
remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction
managemenU costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos
CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of
taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,
inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
o Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]
within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management
Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June9, 2017, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

a

a

a

a

44
Page 153

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within
the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

o The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
o Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
o Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.
o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.
o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.
o The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry
monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities
maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the
enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry
signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:
obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or
facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund
administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

06l30l2O2o

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

06l30l2O2t
Balance

Project

Status

5o $o so So On-going

06l30l2020
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

051301202t

Balance

Project

Status

So so so $o On-going

45
Page 154

12/14/2021 Item No.10.



'i)l,'-: Ij\.l

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council pass and adopt the following Resolution:

Resolution No 10751 - A Resolution of the City Council Making Findings to Continue
Teleconferencing Options for Public Meetings Under AB 361.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Pursuant to AB 361, the City Council passed Resolution No. 10737 on October 26,2021 to
allow public meetings to continue offer teleconferencing as an option. In order to continue
offering teleconferencing as an option for public meetings, City Council action is required
every 30 days.

The rapid spread of the novel coronavirus2019 (COVID-19) throughout California and the
United States caused Governor Newsom to declare a state of emergency on March 4,2020.
The Sacramento County Board of Supervisors ratified the declaration of a state of emergency
by the County Health Officer on March 10,2020, and the Folsom City Council made a

similar declaration of a local emergency on March 16,2020.

In an effort to promote social distancing and reduce the rapid spread of COVID-I9, Governor
Newsom signed Executive Order N-29-20 on March 17,2020 to allow public meetings be

conducted via teleconferencing. Pursuant to the Governor's Executive Order N-08-21 dated
June 1 I , 2021 , Executive Order N-29-20 applies through the end of September 3 0, 2021 .

1

MEETING DATE: t2lr4l202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1 075 1 - A Resolution of the City Council
Making Findings to Continue Teleconferencing Options for
Public Meetings Under AB 361

FROM: City Attorney's Office

Page 155

12/14/2021 Item No.11.



California Legislature passed Assembly Bill 361 as an urgency measure to allow local
governments to continue offer teleconferencing as an option for public meetings. AB 361

was signed into law by Governor Newsom on September 16, 2021, and becomes operative on
October 1,2021.

POLICY / RULE

In order for the City to continue to offer teleconferencing as an option in public meetings,
AB 361 requires findings be made every 30 days that the nature of the emergency
continues to impact the ability to meet safely in person, or that the State or local officials
continue to impose or recommend social distancing.

ANALYSIS

In light of the expiration of Executive Order N-29-20, California Legislature passed

Assembly Bill 361 as an urgency measure to allow public meetings to continue to offer
teleconferencing as an option, provided that the local legislative body makes findings every
30 days that the nature of the emergency continues to impact the ability to meet safely in
person, or that the State or local officials continue to impose or recommend social distancing.

Notwithstanding national and local vaccination efforts, new variants of COVID-I9 have
continued the wide spread of COVID-19 throughout communities. The COVID-19 public
health emergency continues to pose athreat to the public's health and safety, and the
circumstances of the State of Emergency proclaimed by Governor Newsom on March 4,
2020 have not yet been abated.

Due to the fact that the COVID-I9 public health emergency continues to impact the ability to
meet safety in person, and that state and local officials continue to recommend social
distancing, the City Council has the ability to make necessary findings under AB 361 to
allow the City to continue offer teleconferencing as an option for City public meetings.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Negligible.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is not considered a project under Section 15061(bX3) of the California
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines, and as such is exempt from environmental review.

2
Page 156

12/14/2021 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT

l. Resolution No. 10751 - A Resolution of the City Council Making Findings to Continue
Teleconferencing Options for Public Meetings Under AB 361

Respectfu lly submitted,

Steven W*g, City Attorney

J
Page 157

12/14/2021 Item No.11.



RESOLUTION NO. 10751

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL MAKING FINDINGS TO CONTINUE
TELECONF'ERENCING OPTIONS FOR PUBLIC MEETINGS UNDER AB 361

WHEREAS, the Governor of the State of California proclaimed on March 4,2020 a State
of Emergency to exist in California as a result of the threat from the rapid spread of a respiratory
illness caused by novel coronavirus2019 (COVID-l9); and

WHER.EAS, on March10,2020 the Sacramento County Board of Supervisors ratified the
County Public Health Officer's Proclamation of Local Public Health Emergency in Sacramento
County due to the threat to public health and safety from COVID-I9; and

WHEREAS, on March 16,2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 10408 and
proclaimed the existence of a local emergency in the City of Folsom; and

WHEREAS, Sacramento County has documented community transmission of COVID-
19, with multiple cases of diagnosed patients and fatalities, and the County Health Officer has
recommended measures to promote social distancing to prevent rapid transmission of COVID-19;
and

WHEREAS, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill 361 on September 16,202I to
allow meetings of legislative bodies to be conducted via teleconference, starting October 1,2021,
provided that findings are made every 30 days to continue teleconference meetings under AB 361.

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby finds that it has reconsidered the circumstances of the State of Emergency, that the COVID-
19 public health emergency continues to impact the ability to meet safely in person, and that State
or local officials continue to impose or recommend social distancing.

BE IT FURTHERRESOLVED thatpublic meetings of the City of Folsommay continue
to offer teleconferencing as an option under AB 361.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December, 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

ATTEST:

Resolution No. 10751
Page I of2

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 158

12/14/2021 Item No.11.



Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10751
Page2 of2

Page 159

12/14/2021 Item No.11.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 160

12/14/2021 Item No.11.



Folsom City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and
adopt Resolution No. 10752 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 20-034) with Water Works
Engineers, LLC for Design Services for the Folsom Blvd. 27-lnch Trunk Sewer Project
(SECAP Project).

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources (EUrR) Department identifies sewer infrastructure
rehabilitation and replacement projects through sewer master plans and ongoing sewer
condition assessment programs. As part of the City's Sewer System Management Plan for its
wastewater collection system, the EWR Department performs ongoing condition assessments

on the wastewater system and corrects any defects/deficiencies identified through this process.
Through these efforts, City staff identified the Folsom Blvd. 27-inch Trunk Sewer
Rehabilitation Project as needing improvements.

In July 2020,through ResolutionNo. 10486, City Council authorized an agreement with Water
Works Engineers, LLC to provide design services for the Folsom Blvd. 27-Inch Trunk Sewer
Project (SECAP Project). The agreement with Water Works Engineers, LLC covered
additional field studies (i.e., potholing, surveying), CEQA, alternative analysis of two

1

MEETING DATE: t2lt4l202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10752 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Amendment No. I to the Agreement
(Contract No. 173-21 20-034) with Water Works Engineers, LLC
for Design Services for the Folsom Blvd. 27-Inch Trunk Sewer
Proj ect (SECAP Proj ect)

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 161

12/14/2021 Item No.12.



constraints including the pipeline crossing of Willow Creek and a high point in the existing
27-inch sewer pipeline at the intersection of Folsom Blvd. and Blue Ravine, environmental
permitting, and50oh design level plans. AmendmentNo. 1 is for Water Works Engineers, LLC
to provide additional design services in order to take the 50%o design level plans to 100%o design
level plans.

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute AmendmentNo. 1 to the Agreement
(Contract No. 173-21 20-034) with Water Works Engineers, LLC for design services for the
Folsom Blvd. 27-Inch Trunk Sewer Project (SECAP Project).

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,
and construction with a value of $62,657 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

The original design scope of work for the Folsom Blvd. 27-lnchTrunk Sewer Project (SECAP
Project) included developing 50% design level plans to address project constraints at the creek
crossing and at the intersection of Folsom Blvd. and Blue Ravine. Now that the project
constraints have been analyzed, the scope of work within Amendment No. 1 includes:

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment No. I to the agreement
(Contract No. 173-21 20-034) with Water Works Engineers, LLC for design services for the
Folsom Blvd. 27-lnchTrunk Sewer Project (SECAP Project). Amendment No. I will be in the
amount of $164,714 and the new total contract amount, including Amendment No. 1 is
$388,135.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Folsom Blvd. 27-Inch Trunk Sewer Project (SECAP Project) is included in the Capital
Improvement Plan with a Fiscal Year 2021-22 project budget of $6,005,000. The
Environmental & Water Resources Department recommends that Amendment No. 1 to the
agreement (Contract No. 173-21 20-034) for design services be awarded to Water Works
Engineers, LLC for an additional $164,714 for a new total contract not to exceed amount of
$388,135. Sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Sewer Capital Fund (Fund 531)
in Fiscal Year 2021-22.

2
Page 162

12/14/2021 Item No.12.



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An initial review of the project indicates that the project likely qualifies for a "replacement
and/or improvement of existing infrastructure with negligible or no expansion of use" and

therefore is categorically exempt from environmental review under the California
Environmental quality Act as noted in Title 14 - California Code of Regulations, Chapter 3 -
Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Article 19 -
Categorical Exemptions, Section 15301 (Existing Facilities), 15302 (Replacement or
Reconstruction), and/or 15304 (minor Alterations to Land). In the event that any findings
require additional CEQA work or analysis beyond the work required for the Notice of
Exemption this will be brought back to City Council for consideration and approval.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10752 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment
No. I to the Agreement (ContractNo. 173-21 20-034) with Water Works Engineers, LLC for
Design Services for the Folsom Blvd. 27-Inch Trunk Sewer Project (SECAP Project)

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

-t
Page 163

12/14/2021 Item No.12.



RESOLUTION NO. 10752

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT
NO. I TO THE AGREEMENT (CONTRACT NO. 173-21 20-034) WITH WATER WORKS

ENGINEERS, LLC FOR DESIGN SERVTCES FOR THE FOLSOM BOULEVARD 27-INCH
TRUNK SEWER PROJECT (SECAP PROJECT)

WHEREAS, the City is currently implementing its Sanitary Sewer System Management
Plan which consists of condition assessment, as well as operation and system improvements; and

WHEREAS, the City is continuing to update its System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance
Plan to identify recommended system capacity improvements; and

WHEREAS, the City has identified this project to help proactively ensure that future
General Plan and Buildout sewer flow conditions are accounted for in the ultimate operation of the
sanitary sewer collection system; and

WHEREAS, Water Works Engineers, LLC by reason of their past experience and abilities
for performing these types of services, are qualified to perform the required engineering services for
the project; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Sewer Capital Fund (Fund
531) in the amount of $164,714; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute Amendment No. I to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21

20-034) with Water Works Engineers, LLC for Design Services for the Folsom Blvd.27-Inch Trunk
Sewer Project (SECAP Project) in the amount of $164,714, bringing the new total contract amount,
including AmendmentNo. 1 to $388,135.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this l4th day of December 2021, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No, 10752
Page I of I Page 164

12/14/2021 Item No.12.



h
Folsom City Council

Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staffrecommends that the City Council approve Resolution No. 10753 - A Resolution
Authorizing the Police Deparfrnent to Accept a U.S. Deparftnent of Justice, Office of Justice
Programso Bureau of Justice Assistance, Alzheimer's & Developmental Disability Tracking
Devices Grant in The Amount Of $121,491 and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Folsom Police Department utilizes all resources to assist in the location of a missing
person. Both the Police and Fire Departments employ a person-centered approach that
minimizes restictive interventions and has a direct link to individuals and families of
individuals with forms of dementia or developmental disabilities. Some of these individuals
are already enrolled in the progressive location assistance services offered currently:
H.E.L.P. (Help Every Lost Person), Project Lifesaver, and Vitals Aware Services.
Unfortunately, many Folsom residents are unaware of these services that may benefit them.
With the assistance of grant funding, the Police Department can address the problem by
raising awareness and purchasing and providing tracking technology "tool kits" for those
individuals who are identified as being at risk and wish to voluntarily participate in the
Deparhnent's program. These tool kits will include the offering of enrollment in the tlree
assistance progftms already offered as well as tacking technology such as a Project

I

MEETING DATE: r2lr4l202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10753 - A Resolution Authorizing the Police
Department to Accept a U.S. Department of Justice, Office of
Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance, Alzheimer's &
Developmental Disability Tracking Devices Grant in The
Amount Of $121,491 and Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Police Department

Page 165

12/14/2021 Item No.13.



Lifesaver tansmitter band and/or Vitals beacon. Additionally, we intend to partner with Ring
video doorbells and offer their products to qualified residents as part of the tool kit.

With additional funding we plan to expand our assistance programs to ensure the safety and
reduce the incidence of wandering persons, facilitate their rescue and recovery, and recognize
or respond appropriately to calls involving these individuals. In order to accomplish these
goals, the Folsom Police Deparfinent has been awarded a Grant in the amount of $121,491.

These funds will be used to relmburse the Folsom Police Department for tacking device
equipment and supplies, alert programs, and naining devices. There are no matching fund
requirements associated with this grant and the grant activity period runs from October l,
2021 ttnough September 30,2024.

POLICY / RULE

This grant acceptance and appropriation of funds requires city council approval,

ANALYSIS

By participating in the Alzheimer's & Developmental Disability Tracking Devices Grant
program, the Police Department will offer the community life-saving technology at no cost
and assist the Office of Justice Programs in developing best practices for these noninvasive
and nonpermanent tracking methods. The goal of this proactive program is to purchase,
develop, and implement locally based tracking technology for individuals with forms of
demenfia such as Alzheimer's disease or developmental disabilities such as autism or
Down's Syndrome, who, due to their condition, wander from safe environments

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact associated with this grant. Equipment, supplies, alert programso and
training device costs related to work done under the Alztreimer's & Developmental Disability
Tracking Devices grant will be reimbursed by the U.S. Depanment of Justice, Office of
Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance. The grant funding as well as associated
expenses will require an additional appropriation in the Fiscal Year 2021-22Police
Department Budget in the General Fund (Fund 010). The requested appropriation for FY
2021 - 22 is $49,098.44 . The remainder of the grant expenses and revenue will be included
in the FY 2022-23 (36,443.48) and2023-24 (35,948.08) during the budget process for those
fiscal years.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

There is no environmental impact.

2

Page 166

12/14/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 10753 - A Resolution Authorizing the Police Departrnent to Accept a U.S.
Departnent of Justice, Oflice of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance, Alzheimer's
& Developmental Disability Tracking Devices Grant in The Amount Of $121,491 and
Appropriation of Funds

HilLnan, Chief of Police

3

Page 167

12/14/2021 Item No.13.



RESOLUTION NO. 10753

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE POLICE DEPARTMENT TO ACCEPT A U.S.
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS, BUREAU OF JUSTICE

AS SISTAI\ CF,, ALZH'EIMERO S & DEYELOPMENTAL DISABILITY TRACKING
DEYTCES GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $121,491 AND APPROPRTATTON OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom's Mission is to provide a safe, healthy, and vibrant
community through innovation, responsive, and effective delivery of services to maintain and
enhance the quality of life of our residents; and,

WHEREAS, the city of Folsom's Core Values support innovations; and,

WHEREAS, the Police Department believes the program will enhance and expand public
safety efforts; and,

WHEREAS' the Police Department has been awarded a grant in the amount of $121.491 to
fund this project; and,

WHEREAS, an additional appropriation will be required in the Police Department FY 202I-
22Budget in the General Fund (Fund 010), in the amount of $49,098; and,

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attomey.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the acceptance of a grant titled the Alzheimer's and Developmental Disability Tracking
Devices Grant from the Department of Justice in the amount of $121,491.

NOW' THEREFORE' BE IT FURTHER RESOLYED that the Finance Director is
authorized to appropriate an additional $49,098 in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Police Department
Budget in the General Fund (Fund 010) to be reimbursed by the Department of Justice.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December, 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10753
Page I of I

Page 168

12/14/2021 Item No.13.



ffi
-[rd-aLtdtW.]L
ar 5t.r4lr.a ai !nll,rl

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Parks & Recreation Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt
Resolution No. 10754 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Downtown Ford Sales to Purchase Two Ford Trucks for the Parks &
Recreation Department.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On May 25,2021, The City Council appropriated $82,000 for the purchase of two trucks for
the Parks and Recreation Department in the General Fund.

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that contracts for supplies,
equipment, services and construction with an estimated value of $62,657 or greater shall be

awarded by the City Council.

ANALYSIS

Staff received three bids for the trucks with the lowest bid received at$41,770.29 per truck
from Downtown Ford Sales.

I

MEETING DATE: I2lt4l202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10754 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Downtown Ford Sales

to Purchase Two Ford Trucks for the Parks & Recreation
Department

F'ROM: Parks and Recreation Department

Page 169

12/14/2021 Item No.14.



The vehicles are needed to replace an aging vehicle in the Lighting and Landscape division
that is no longer reliable as well as to obtain a properly outfitted vehicle for part-time park
maintenance staff assigned to park renovation projects. Three quotes were obtained from
local Ford dealerships with the lowest bid received coming from Downtown Ford Sales in the
amount of $41,770.29 per truck which includes delivery, sales tax and tire fees.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

A total of $82,000 was appropriated in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operuting Budget for the
purchase of two trucks for the Parks and Recreation Department. The Lighting and
Landscape Services division had $40,000 appropriated and can absorb the additional
$1,770.29 for one vehicle. The Park Maintenance division had $42,000 appropriated for one
vehicle in the General Fund (Fund 010) in Fleet Management.

There are sufficient fi.rnds available in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 General Fund (Fund 010)
Operating Budget for the purchase of two vehicles.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This purchase is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental

Quality Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10754 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with Downtown Ford Sales to Purchase Two Ford Trucks for the Parks &
Recreation Department

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione,
Parks and Recreation Director

2
Page 170

12/14/2021 Item No.14.



RESOLUTION NO. 10754

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH DOWNTOWN FORD SALES TO PURCHASE TWO FORD

TRUCKS FOR THE PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, on May 25, 2021, City Council appropriated $82,000 to replace two
vehicles for Parks and Recreation; and

WHEREAS, three quotes were obtained and the lowest cost for each vehicle is
541,770.29 at Downtown Ford Sales; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Fiscal Year 2021-22
General Fund Operating Budget (Fund 010) for both vehicles;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute an agreement, in a form acceptable to the
City Attomey, with Downtown Ford Sales to purchase two Ford trucks for the Parks &
Recreation Department in a not-to-exceed amount of $83,540.58.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14ft day of December, 2021 by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No, 10754
Page I of I Page 171

12/14/2021 Item No.14.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 172

12/14/2021 Item No.14.



I'' {-! ,L. Fc.'{-f -lt}g
a! &iri(-lr,G lr lslr ll

Folsom City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
Staff Recommends the City Council Approve Resolution No. 10755 - A Resolution
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 3 to the Contract with Kimley-Horn
and Associates, Inc. for Grant Application Assistance for the Folsom Placerville Rail Trail
Project (ContractNo. 173-21 17-013) and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE
The City of Folsom Bikeway Master Plan identifies a Class I bike trail, referred to as the
Folsom Placerville Rail Trail, extending from the Humbug-Willow Creek Trail near Mercy
Hospital to White Rock Road, with eventual plans to extend into El Dorado County to the City
of Placerville. The ultimate alignment would extend through Sacramento and El Dorado
counties totaling approximately 30 miles.

The proposed project would provide Class I Trail improvements for bicycles and pedestrians
for approximately 1.25 miles from Humbug-Willow Creek Trail, which is partway between
Creekside Drive and Oak Avenue Parkway on the west, to Iron Point Road on the east. Most
of the proposed project would parallel East Bidwell Street along the Southern Pacific
Placerville Branch right-of-way and would be within the existing Sacramento-Placerville
Transportation Corridor (SPTC) Joint Powers Authority (JPA).

In March 2017, the City Council awarded a contract to Kimley-Horn and Associates to prepare
the environmental analysis and design/engineering plans (up to 30Vo complete) for the Folsom

I

MEETING DATE: r2lt4l202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10755 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Amendment No. 3 to the Contract with
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. for Grant Application
Assistance for the Folsom Placerville Rail Trail Project (Contract
No. 173-21 17-013) and Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

Page 173

12/14/2021 Item No.15.



Placerville Rail Trail Project. The objective in applying for the grant is to seek the remaining
funding needed to complete the design and obtain funds for construction.

With City Council approval, Kimley-Horn and Associates is prepared to assist the City with
submitting a grant application for Caltrans ATP Cycle 6 to fully fund the Folsom-Placerville
Rail Trail Project.

POLICY / RULE
In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code, Public Works projects or
purchases costing $62,657 or greater shall be awarded by the City Council.

ANALYSIS
On December 3, 2015, the Sacramento Area Council of Governments Board approved the
City's grant application to the Regional Active Transportation Funding Program in the amount
of $1,048,036 to provide partial funding for environmental, preliminary design, and
construction of the Folsom Placerville Rail Trail. The original scope of work for Kimley-Horn
and Associates included environmental and preliminary engineering design services to develop
plans up to 30Vo complete. Staff is now seeking to fully fund the Folsom-Placerville Rail Trail
project for design/engineering and construction through the Active Transportation Program
(ATP) Cycle 6 Medium Infrastructure grant application.

The Folsom-Placerville Rail Trail Contract Amendment No. 1 authorized for Kimley-Horn and
Associates to prepare additional environmental studies requested by Caltrans during the
environmental review phase of the project. The Folsom-Placerville Rail Trail Contract
AmendmentNo. 2 authorized additional services from Kimley-Horn and Associates to prepare
the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for the proposed project. Contract
Amendment No. 3 would authorize Kimley-Horn and Associates to assist the City with the
preparation of a grant application for the Active Transportation Program (ATP) Cycle 6

Medium Infrastructure grant application as provided by the Caltrans Division of Local
Assistance (DLA). The grant application will be prepared in a manner consistent with the
Caltrans published guidelines.

The extra work associated with the proposed grant assistance services is an amount not-to-
exceed $23 ,937 .25 for a total contract amount of $312,206.25 .

FINANCIAL IMPACT
The current contract with Kimley-Horn and Associates, is in the amount of $288,629. Contract
Amendment No. 3, which provides grant assistance services, is an amount not-to-exceed
$23,937 .25 which would come from the Transportation System Management Fund (Fund 206)
to cover the grant application assistance services. The total value of the amended contract will
increase to $312,566.5. The Transportation System Management Fund has funding available
for the additional appropriation. This additional appropriation will be as a transfer from the
Transportation System Management Fund to the Trail Grant Fund (Fund 223) and will also
increase the project budget to $1,233,838.

2 Page 174

12/14/2021 Item No.15.



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
An environmental analysis will be prepared in accordance with the (NEPA) (42 U.S.C. 54321-
4370) and the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), (Public Resources Code [PRC]
21000 et seq.).

ATTACHMENT
l. Resolution No. 10755 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute

Amendment No. 3 to the Contract with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. for Grant
Application Assistance for the Folsom Placerville Rail Trail Project (Contract No. 173-21

17-013) and Appropriation of Funds

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione,
Parks and Recreation Department Director

a
J

Page 175

12/14/2021 Item No.15.



RESOLUTION NO. 10755

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE
AMENDMENT NO.3 TO THE CONTRACT WITH KIMLEY.HORN AND

ASSOCIATES,INC. F'OR GRANT APPLICATION ASSISTANCE FOR THE FOLSOM
PLACERVILLE RArL TRAIL PROJECT (CONTRACT NO. 173-2117-013) AND

APPROPRIATION OF F'UNDS

WHEREAS, on February 27,2017 Kimley-Hom and Associates was selected based on
their qualifications and expcricncc in cnginccring dcsign scrviccs; and

WHEREAS, it was determined that additional grant funding is necessary to complete the

full scope of the project; and

WHEREAS, the additional cost for grant assistance services is 523,937.25, for a revised
total not-to-exceed contract amount of $312,566.50; and

WHEREAS, there are sufficient funds available in the Transportation System

Management Fund (Fund 206) in Fiscal Year 2021-22 for the additional appropriation in the
amount of $23,937 .25 for atotal project budget of $1,233,838.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 3 in the amount of $23,937.25 to the
contract with Kimley-Horn and Associates for grant funding assistance for the Folsom Placerville
Rail Trail Project.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized to appropriate an

additional 523,937 .25 from the Transportation System Management Fund (Fund 206) as a transfer
to the Trail Grant Fund (Fund 223).

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAINJ

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10755

Page I of I Page 176

12/14/2021 Item No.15.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / COUNCIL ACTION

The Parks and Recreation Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt
Resolution No. 10757- A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a Lease

Agreement Between the City of Folsom and Kelli Vaccaro, a Sole Proprietor Doing Business

as Kid's Inc., for Lease of City Property Located at 405 Natoma Station Drive.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On April 23,202I, the City released a Request for Proposal (RFP) to lease the city-owned
building space at405 Natoma Station Drive. One proposal was received and was deemed

non-responsive. On June 22,2021 City Council approved Resolution No. 10654-4
Resolution Rejecting all Bids for Short or Long Term Lease at 405 Natoma Station Drive.
Staff received direction to re-issue the RFP and include additional advertising venues to

expand the reach. On July 12,2021, the RFP was re-issued with proposals being due on
August 31,2021.

POLICY / RULE

A city may lease property owned, held, or controlled by it for a period not to exceed 55

years. Government Code Section 37380.

I

MEETING DATE: t2lr4l202l

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10757 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Lease Agreement Between the City of
Folsom and Kelli Vaccaro, a Sole Proprietor Doing Business as

Kid's Inc., for Lease of City Property Located at 405 Natoma
Station Drive

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

Page 177

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



ANALYSIS

On August 31,202I one proposal was received from Kid's Inc. Staff assembled a team of
seven reviewers; six (6) were city staff and one (1) person was from the Folsom Greater

Partnership. Staff reviewed the proposal and had several follow-up questions regarding

obtaining full-year financial information, repayment terms for their Paycheck Protection

Program (PPP) loan, estimated value of tenant improvements, clarification about a sub-lease

clause, and confirmation that the applicant would be paying for the interior Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) improvements.

There were a few additional requests and terms that required further direction from City
Council. Those items were discussed at closed session on November 9 and staff received the

direction needed to proceed with creating the Lease Agreement in Attachment2. Kid's Inc.

has reviewed and commented on the attached lease and is prepared to sign the agreement

should City Council approve this Resolution.

Below are the major terms of the proposed lease:

o l0-year lease with option to renew the lease for two additional terms of 5

years each, for a potential total term of20 years

r Lease term would begin April 1, 2022 and end March 31,2032 (initial 10

years)
. City to waive up to $4,500 in City-imposed building permit fees for tenant

improvements
o Lessee is solely responsible for all interior improvements necessary to comply

with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)
o Lessee will be allowed to enter the premises on December 20,2021 through

March 31,2022 without payment of rent to construct and install tenant
improvements

o Lessee shall pay $2.00 per square foot in rent (the building is 10,000 square

feet). Annual escalator willbe 3%;o.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

In year 1, monthly revenue will be $20,000 or $240,000 annually. By year 10, monthly
revenue will be $26,095 or $313,140 annually. City is responsible to complete exterior ADA
improvements which are estimated to be approximately $120,000 and other landscape and

inigation repairs estimated at approximately $20,000. Sufficient funds are available in the

General Fund in the Facilities Budget (Fund 010).

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The proposed lease of an existing public facility is exempt from environmental review under
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301 of the CEQA
Guidelines.

2 Page 178

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10757 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a
Lease Agreement Between the City of Folsom and Kelli Vaccaro, a Sole Proprietor
Doing Business as Kid's Inc., for Lease of City Property Located at405 Natoma
Station Drive

2. Proposed Lease Agreement between the City of Folsom and Kelli Vaccaro, Sole

Proprietor Doing Business as Kid's Inc.

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione, Director of Parks and Recreation

J
Page 179

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



ATTACHMENT NO. I

Page 180

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



RESOLUTION NO. 10757

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A LEASE
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF FOLSOM AND KELLI VACCARO, A SOLE
PROPRIETOR DOING BUSINESS AS KID'S INC., FOR LEASE OT' CITY PROPERTY

LOCATED AT 405 NATOMA STATION DRIVE

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to lease the City-owned building at 405 Natoma
Station Drive; and

WHEREAS, a Request for Proposal (RFP) was released on April 23,2021with one non-
responsive submittal; and

WHEREAS, City Council directed staff to re-issue RFP on hne22,2021; and

WHEREAS, the RFP was re-issued on July 12,2021, and one proposal was received on
August 31,2021which was deemed to be responsive; and

WHEREAS' the City desires to enter into a lease agreement with Kelli Vaccaro, a sole
proprietor doing business as Kid's Inc. for the lease of City-owned building at 405 Natoma
Station Drive.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a lease agreement, in a form to be

approved by the City Attorney, between the City of Folsom and Kelli Vaccaro, a sole proprietor
doing business as Kid's Inc., for the lease of City-owned building at 405 Natoma Station Drive.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December 2021, by the following roll-call
vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10757
Page I of I Page 181

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 182

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



LEASE AGREEMENT

This Lease Agreement is made and entered into as of this _day of December,202l
between the City of Folsom ("Lessor") and Kelli Vaccaro, a sole proprietor doing business as

Kids Inc. (ool-essee").

WHEREAS, Lessor owns of the former Brighton School building located at 405 Natoma

Station Drive in Folsom, California, comprising approximately 10,314 square feet of building
area (the "Facility"), described more fully in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein

by reference.

WHEREAS, Lessor hereby leases to Lessee and Lessee leases from Lessor for the term,
at the rental, and upon all the conditions set forth herein the Facility, together with all
improvements thereon and appurtenances thereto, and subject to the conditions set forth below,
the continuous and unintemrpted right of Lessee and its officers, employees, business invitees,
customers and patrons, of access to and from Facility.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, in consideration of the mutual promises,

covenants, terms and conditions set forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration,
the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, do hereby agree as

follows:

1. TERM. The term of this Lease shall be ten (10) years, commencing April I,2022
and ending on March 3I,2032, unless sooner terminated pursuant to any provisions hereof.

Lessee has the option to renew the Lease for two additional terms of 5 years each upon giving
Lessor not less than 180 days prior written notice of Lessee's exercise of said option prior to the

expiration of the initial or subsequent extended term. Failure to provide notice within the time
herein provided to exercise the first option shall cause both options to terminate. Rent during the

option term(s) shall be the then-prevailing market rent as determined by the Lessor at Lessor's
reasonable discretion following consultation with the Lessee.

2. RENT. Lessee shall pay to Lessor as rent for use of the Facility at the rates

shown in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. This Lease is net of
taxes, utilities, and insurance.

3. USE. During the term of this Lease, and any renewal hereof, Lessee shall use the

Facility only as a preschool and childcare center, including afterschool programs, and for no

other use. Included in this Lease is the non-exclusive license to Lessee for Lessee to use up to 83

parking spaces in the parking lot and up to 5 (non-ADA stalls) designated parking stalls for
transport vans for purposes associated with this Lease. Lessee shall not permit any act or acts in
or on the Facility or use the Facility or suffer it to be used in any manner which will cause a

cancellation of any fire, liability, or other insurance policy covering the Facility or any part

thereof.

1

Page 183

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



4. REPAIRS, MAINTENANCE, AND UTILITIES.

a. Lessor hereby grants Lessee a temporary license to enter into the Facility to
construct and install Lessee' s tenant improvements from December 20 , 2021 through March 3 1 ,

2022 without payment of rent. Lessee shall bear all risks of loss, including but not limited to
personal injury and property damage, while operating under this license.

b. Lessor agrees to waive up to $4,500 in City-imposed building permit fees for
tenant-improvements to the Facility desired by Lessee. Lessee shall comply with all City
requirements for project submittal, plan review, plan check, inspection, and pay all fees

(including non-City fees) applicable to Lessee's improvements except for the amount waived
above. Subject to the foregoing, Lessee is solely responsible for all interior improvements
necessary to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) at Lessee's sole cost and

expense.

c. Lessor warrants that all operating systems in the Facility, including without
limitation, HVAC, plumbing, electrical, and lighting shall be in good working order for the first
6 months of the Lease term. Except for warranty defects, Lessee shall maintain repair and

replace all operating systems, including without limitation, HVAC, plumbing, electrical, and

lighting, and shall procure an HVAC maintenance contractor to service and maintain HVAC.

d. Lessee shall provide and pay for maintenance and repair of the exterior area of the

Facility, including, but not limited to, the exterior roof, mechanical units, and exterior side walls;
provided that Lessee shall not be responsible for maintenance or repair attributable to exterior
landscaping and inigation of the Facility.

e. The Lessee shall pay the total cost of the water, sewer, electricity, gas, telephone,
internet, communication services, alarm services, and other utility services inside the Facility.

f. The Lessee shall provide, perform, and pay for maintenance, repair, and janitorial
services for the Facility.

5. ALTERATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS. Lessee shall have the right to make

alterations and improvements to the Facility subject to the following terms and conditions:

a. No alterations or improvements made by Lessee shall in any way impair the
structural stability of the building or diminish the value of the property.

b. All alterations or improvements (except for interior painting, and hanging of
pictures or similar objects) shall be first approved in writing by the Lessor, but said approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld by Lessor.

c. Lessee shall keep the Facility and every part of the Facility free and clear of any

mechanics' liens or other liens arising out of the construction of any such alterations or
improvements.

2

Page 184

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



d. All alterations and improvements made to the Facility shall become the property

of the Lessor and shall remain on and be surrendered with the Facility at the expiration or sooner

termination of this Lease or any renewal or extension of this Lease.

e. Lessee's personal property and its trade fixtures, including machinery, equipment,

and furnishings, shall remain the property of Lessee and may be removed by Lessee. Any
personal property, trade fixtures, or equipment not removed by Lessee within thirty (30) days

after the termination of this Lease or any extension thereof, shall automatically become the

property of the Lessor. Lessee shall repair any damage to the Facility caused by Lessee's

removal of its personal property, trade fixtures, or equipment, but Lessee shall have no

obligation to remove such items from the Facility at any time.

6. ENTRY AND INSPECTION. Lessee shall permit Lessor or Lessor's agents to

enter the Facility at all reasonable times and upon reasonable notice for the purpose of inspecting

the Facility, and shall permit Lessor, at any time within sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of
this Lease to place upon the Facility any usual ooTo Let" or "For Lease" signs, and permit persons

desiring to lease the Facility to inspect the Facility at reasonable times.

7. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Lessee shall not use, store, or dispose of any

hazardous substances upon the Facility, except the use and storage ofsuch substances that are

customarily used in Lessee's business, and are in compliance with all environmental laws.

Hazardous substances means any hazardous waste, substance, or toxic materials defined or
regulated under any law or regulations.

8. MECHANICS LIENS. Lessee agrees to keep the Facility from any and all claims

of claims of persons or firms or corporations who, at the request of Lessee or its employees or
contractors, furnish labor or materials to or for the benefits of the Facility and Lessee further
agrees to hold Lessor harmless from any and all claims.

9. DAMAGE/DESTRUCTION. If the Facility is damaged or destroyed in whole or
in part by fire other casualty strictly unrelated to Lessee's actions, inactions, or operations,

Lessor shall repair and restore the Facility to a good tenantable condition. Rent shall abate

wholly if the entire Facility is untenantable, or shall abate pro rata for the portion rendered

untenantable in case only a portion of the Facility is untenantable, until the Facility is restored to

a tenantable condition. Lessor shall commence and complete all work required to be done under

this Section with reasonable promptness and diligence, but Lessor shall not in default in any

required performance if delay in performance results from, flood, stotm, labor disputes, shortage

of materials or transportation facilities, governmental regulations, war, act of God or other causes

beyond Lessor's reasonable control. If Lessor shall not commence such repair or restoration

within thirty (30) days after such damage or destruction shall occur or if repair or restoration will
require more than one hundred twenty (120) days to complete, Lessor or Lessee may thereafter,

at its option, terminate this Lease by giving written notice of its election to do so at any time
prior to the commencement of such repair or restoration. In that event, this Lease shall terminate

as of the date such notice is received by the intended recipient of the notice.

J

Page 185

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



Notwithstanding any other provisions to the contrary, Lessee shall insure and shall be

solely responsible for repairing and restoring Lessee's trade fixtures and personal property

located in or on the Facility in the event of damage or destruction of the Facility.

10. FIRE INSURANCE. Lessee shall maintain, during the term of this Lease and any

renewal hereof, coverage against loss or damage to the Facility in the amount of not less than
ninety (90) percent of its full insurable value, against perils included within the classifications of
fire, extended coverage, vandalism, malicious mischief and special extended perils.

11. INSURANCE. Lessee, at its sole cost, shall maintain liability and property

damage insurance during the entire term of this Lease as required in Exhibit C attached hereto

and incorporated herein by reference.

12. SIGNS. Any and all signs or advertisements of any nature extending into, on, or
located over the Facility, shall conform to all City of Folsom zoning and building codes and shall

be approved by Lessor in writing prior to construction, use, or erection thereof.

13. TAXES. The terms of this Lease may result in the creation of a possessory

interest. If such possessory interest is vested in a private party to this Lease, the private party
may be subjected to payment of personal property taxes levied on such interest. Lessee shall be

solely responsible for the payment of, and shall pay before they become delinquent, all taxes,

assessments and fees assessed or levied upon Lessee or the Facility, or any interest therein,
including, but not limited to, buildings, structures, fixtures, equipment or other property installed,

or constructed thereon. Lessee fuither agrees not to allow such taxes, assessments or fees to

become delinquent and as such to become a lien against the Facility or any improvement thereto.
Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to prevent or prohibit Lessee from contesting the

validity or amount of any such tax, assessment or fee in the manner authorized by law. The
obligation to make any payments pursuant to this Section shall survive the expiration of the term
of this Lease.

Unless otherwise provided by this Section, Lessee shall pay Lessor any other taxes,

assessments, or fees, which the Lessor may become obligated to pay in connection with the

ownership or maintenance of the Facility.

14. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING. Lessee shall not encumber, assign, sublet,

or otherwise transfer this Lease, any right or interest in this Lease, or any right or interest in the
Facility, without the prior written consent of Lessor, which may be withheld at Lessor's sole and

complete discretion. A consent of Lessor to one assignment, subletting, or occupation and use

by another person shall not be deemed to be a consent to any subsequent assignment, subletting,
or occupation and use by another person. Any encumbrance, assignment, transfer, or subletting
in violation of this requirements hereof, whether it be voluntary or involuntary, by operation of
law, or otherwise, is void and shall, at the option of Lessor, terminate this Lease.

4

Page 186

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



15. TERMINATION OF LEASE.

a. In the event the Lessee determines in good faith that it no longer practicably,

economically, or operationally can do business from the Facility, upon making a reasonable

showing of same to Lessor, Lessee shall have the right to terminate this Lease upon giving ninety
(90) days prior written notice to Lessor.

b. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that Lessor shall and hereby does

reserve the right to cancel or terminate this Lease prior to expiration of the term or renewed or
extended term hereof as follows:

If the Lessee is in default or breach of this Lease, as specified in Section
18 of this Lease or as otherwise provided by law; or,

(ii) Upon 365 days notice without cause.

16. RIGHTS AFTER TERMINATION. In the event of termination for default or

unsatisfactory performance by the Lessee, the Lessor shall have the right (unless otherwise

specified in the termination notice), at once and without further notice to the Lessee, or surety, to
enter and take possession of the Facility occupied by the Lessee, and expel, oust and remove any

and all parties who may occupy any portion of the Facility covered by this Lease, and any and all
goods and chattels belonging to the Lessee or his associates which may be found in or upon

same, without being liable for prosecution or to any claim for damages therefor. Upon such

termination by the Lessor, all rights, powers and privileges of the Lessee shall cease, and the

Lessee shall immediately vacate any and all space occupied by Lessee under this Lease, and shall

make no claims of any kind whatsoever against the Lessor, its agents or representatives, by
reason of such termination, or any act incident thereto.

17. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. During the term of this Lease and any renewals

hereof, Lessee shall promptly execute and comply with all Federal, State, County, and City
statutes, ordinances, regulations, laws, or other requirements applicable to the occupancy of the

Facility, and the operation of the Facility as a preschool and childcare center.

18. DEFAULTS/REMEDIES.

LESSEE

The occurrence of any one or more of the following events constitutes a material default
and breach ofthis Lease by Lessee:

a. The failure by Lessee to make any payment of rent or any other payment required

to be made by Lessee hereunder, as and when due, where the failure continuous for a period of
twenty (20) calendar days after written notice thereof from Lessor to Lessee.

b. The failure by Lessee to observe or perform any of the covenants, conditions, or
provisions of this Lease to be observed or performed by Lessee, other than those described in

(i)

5

Page 187

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



Subsection a., above, where the failure continues for a period of thirty (30) calendar days after

notice thereof from Lessor to Lessee; provided, however, that if the nature of Lessee's default is

such that more than thirty (30) calendar days ate reasonably required for its cure, then Lessee

shall not be deemed in default if Lessee commences such sure within the thirty (30) day period

and thereafter diligently completes the cure.

c. The appointment of a receiver or the making of any general assignment, or
general arrangement for the benefit of creditors.

The filing of a petition in bankruptcy by or against Lessee.

The judicial declaration of Lessee as bankrupt.

f. The appointment of a trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all
Lessee's assets located at the Facility or of Lessee's interest in this Lease, if possession is not
restored within thirty (30) calendar days.

g. The attachment, execution or other judicial seizure of substantially all Lessee's

assets located at the Facility or of Lessee's interest in this Lease, if the seizure is not discharged

within thirty (30) calendar days.

In the event of any such default or breach with the exception of bankruptcy or
receivership, by Lessee, Lessor may, after giving written notice as provided above, pursue those

remedies available to Lessor under the laws or judicial decisions of the State of California. In
the event of bankruptcy or receivership, this Lease shall immediately terminate and possession of
the Facility shall immediately return to Lessor.

If Lessee breaches this Lease or is in default, as provided above, the Lessor may

terminate this Lease upon written notice as provided herein. On such termination, the Lessor

may recover from Lessee:

(D The worth at the time of award of the unpaid rent which has been earned

at the time of termination;

(iD The worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid rent
which would have been earned after termination until the time of award

exceeds the amount of such rental loss that Lessee proved could have been

unreasonably avoided;

(iii) The worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid rent for
the balance of the term after the time of award exceeds the amount of such

rental loss for such period that Lessee proves could be reasonably avoided;
and

(iv) Any other amount necessary to compensate Lessor for all the detriment
proximately caused by Lessee's failure to perform his obligations under

d.

e.

6

Page 188

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



this Lease, or which in the ordinary course of things would likely to result

therefrom.

The "worth at the time of award" of the amounts referred to in Subsections (i) and (ii)
hereinabove is computed by allowing interest at the legal rate. The worth at the time of award of
the amount referred to in paragraph (iii) of this Subsection is computed by discounting such

amount at the legal rate of interest.

Even though Lessee breaches this Lease or is in default, as provided above, this Lease

continues in effect for so long as the Lessor does not terminate Lessee's right of possession; and

the Lessor may enforce all its rights and remedies under this Lease, including the right to recover

the rent as it becomes due under this Lease, unless the breach by Lessee constitutes a breach and

abandonment of the Lease, in which case the Lessor may enforce all its rights and remedies

except its right to recover rent as it becomes due.

The rights of the Lessor under this Lease shall be cumulative to all other rights or
remedies now or hereafter given to Lessor by law. Nothing in this Lease affects the right of
Lessor to equitable relief where such relief is appropriate.

Nothing in this Lease affects the rights of the parties under statutory provisions relating to

actions for unlawful detainer, forcible entry, and forcible detainer. If Lessor brings an action in
unlawful detainer, and possession of the property is no longer an issue because possession of the

property is delivered to Lessor before trial or, if there is no trial, before judgment is entered,

unless Lessor amends the complaint to state a claim for damages not recoverable in the unlawful
detainer proceeding, the bringing of an unlawful detainer, forcible entry, or forcible detainer

action as described hereinabove does not affect Lessor's right to bring a separate action for relief
on termination, or in equity; but no relief shall be requested and no damages shall be recovered

in the subsequent action for any detriment for which claim for damages was made and

determined on the merits in the previous action.

Efforts by the Lessor to mitigate the damages caused by Lessee's breach of this Lease do

not waive the Lessor's right to recover damages under this Section.

Nothing in this Section affects the right of the Lessor to indemnification for liability
arising prior to the termination of this Lease for personal injuries or property damage as provided

in Section 25 of this Lease.

19. DEFAULTSiREMEDIES.

LESSOR:

Lessor shall not be in default unless Lessor fails to perform obligations required of it
within a reasonable time, but in no event later than thirty (30) days after written notice by Lessee

to Lessor; provided that if the nature of Lessor's obligation is such that more than thirty (30)

days are reasonably required for performance, then Lessor shall not be in default if Lessor

7

Page 189

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



commences perfonnance within the thirty (30) day period and thereafter diligently complete

performance.

If Lessor defaults in the performance of any of the obligations or conditions required to

be performed by Lessor under this Lease, Lessee may, after giving notice as provided above

elect to terminate this Lease upon giving thirty (30) days written notice to Lessor of its intention

to do so. In that event, this Lease shall terminate upon the date specified in the notice, unless

Lessor has meanwhile cured the default. The foregoing shall be Lessee's sole remedy in the

event of a breach or default by Lessor.

20. CONDEMNATION. If all of the Facility or any portion thereof is taken under

the power of eminent domain, solely under the threat of the exercise of said power, or disposed

of to satisff federal requirements (all of which are herein called "condemnation"), this Lease

shall automatically terminate as of the date the condemning authority takes title possession,

whichever occurs first.

Any award or payment made upon condemnation of all or any part of the Facility shall be

the property of Lessor, whether such award or payment is made as compensation for the taking

of the fee or as severance damages; provided Lessee shall be entitled to the portion of any such

award or payment for loss of or damage to Lessee's trade fixture or removable personal property.

21. WAIVER. In the event that either Lessor or Lessee shall at any time or times

waive any breach of this Lease by the other, such waiver shall not constitute a waiver of any

other or succeeding breach of this Lease, whether of the same or any other covenant, condition or

obligation. Waiver shall not be deemed effective until and unless signed by the waiving party.

22. BINDING EFFECT. This Lease shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their

heirs, personal representatives, administrators, successors and assigns.

23. ASSUMPTION OF NEW OWNER. In the event Lessor transfers any interest in
the Facility to any other party or entity, this Lease shall remain in full force and effect, with the

new owner assuming the role of Lessor with all the rights and duties specified in this Lease.

24. SURRENDER. Lessee agrees to take good care of the Facility and to commit no

waste, and suffer no injury to be done to the same, and to return the possession of the same to

Lessor at the expiration of the term, in as good condition as at the commencement of this Lease,

normal and wear tear, unavoidable accidents and damage by casualty excepted.

If Lessee fails to surrender the Facility upon the expiration or termination of this Lease,

Lessee shall indemniff and hold the Lessor harmless from all liability and expense resulting

from the delay or failure to surrender, including, without limitation, claims made by any

succeeding tenant founded on or resulting from Lessee's failure to surrender.

25. INDEMNITY. Lessee shall indemnifu, protect, defend, save and hold Lessor, its

officers, employees, and agents, harmless from any and all claims or causes of action for death or

injury to persons, or damage to property resulting from intentional or negligent acts, errors, or

8

Page 190

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



omissions of Lessee or Lessee's officers, employees, volunteers, and agents during performance

of this Lease, or from any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the

extent caused, in whole or in part, by the willful misconduct, negligent acts, or omissions of
Lessee or its employees, subcontractors, or agents, or by the quality or character of Lessee's

work, or resulting from the negligence of the Lessor, its officers, employees, volunteers and

agents, except for loss caused solely by the gross negligence ofthe Lessor. It is understood that

the duty of Lessee to indemniff and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in
Section 2778 of the California Civil Code. Acceptance by Lessor of insurance certificates and

endorsements required under this Lease does not relieve Lessee from liability under this

indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall

survive the termination of this Lease and shall apply to any damages or claims for damages

whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this

Lease, Lessee acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this Section and that it is a material

element of consideration.

26. NOTICES. All notices and other communications contemplated shall be in
writing and shall be deemed given when personally delivered or received by mail, and shall be

personally delivered or mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage and fees

paid, as follows:

Lessor: City of Folsom
Attn: City Manager
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, California 95630

Lessee: Kids Inc.
c/o Kelli Vaccaro
139 Stonington Way
Folsom, California 95630

27. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. All preliminary and contemporaneous agreements and

understandings are merged and incorporated into this Lease which contains the entire agreement

between the parties. This Lease may not be modified or amended in any manner except by an

instrument in writing executed by the parties hereto.

28. VENUE. This Lease and all matters relating to it shall be governed by the laws of
the State of California and any action brought relating to this Lease shall be held exclusively in a

state court in the County of Sacramento

29. ATTACHMENTS, HEADINGS, TERMS. All attachments referred to herein are

hereby incorporated by reference into this Lease. The headings and underscoring contained

herein are for convenience purposes only and shall not be used to interpret nor be deemed to

extend or limit the specific sections. The work or words enclosed in quotation marks shall be

construed as defined terms for purposes of this Lease. The terms "Lessor" and Lessee" shall be

9

Page 191

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



construed to mean, when required by the context, the directors, officers, employees, invitees,

contractors, materialmen, servants and agents of Lessor and Lessee.

30. ATTORNEY'S FEES. If either party named herein brings an action to enforce

the terms of this Lease or to declare rights hereunder, the prevailing party in any such action, on
trial or appeal, shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees to be paid by losing party as fixed
by the Court.

31. EXECUTION AND DELIVERY. This Lease shall not be binding nor confer any
rights upon either party unless and until executed and mutually delivered by and between both
parties.

32. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES. This Lease does not create the relationship of
principal and agent or a partnership or joint venture, or of any association other than that of
Lessor and Lessee.

aa
-1 -t.

this Lease.
TIME OF ESSENCE. Time and specific performance are each of the essence of

34. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE. The person or persons executing this Lease on
behalf of the parties hereto warrants and represents that he/she/they has/have the authority to
execute this Lease on behalf of their entity and has/have the authority to bind their party to the

performance of its obligations hereunder.

35. COUNTERPARTS. This Lease may be executed in one or more counterparts
with each counterpart being deemed an original. No counterpart shall be deemed to be an

original or presumed delivered unless and until the counterparts executed by the other parties

hereto are in the physical possession of the party or parties seeking enforcement thereof.

IEND OF DOCUMENT - SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWSI

10

Page 192

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Lease to be executed on the date

first above written.

LESSEE:
Kelli Vaccaro, a sole proprietor doing business as

Kids Inc.

(If a corporation, must be signed by two fficers
of the corporation per Corporations Code

section 313.)

Date Tax I.D. Number

Signature Signature

Print Name PrintName

Title

LESSOR:
CITY OF FOLSOM, A Municipal Corporation:

Title

Date

ATTEST:

Elaine Andersen, City Manager

FUNDING AVAILABLE:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk Date

ORIGINAL APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Stacey Tamagni, Finance Director Date

ORIGINAL APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Lonaine Poggione
Parks and Recreation Director

Date Steven Wang, City Attorney

ll

Date

Page 193

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



EXHIBIT A

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

APN: 072-0850-029

ADDRESS: 405 NATOMA STATON DRTVE

LOCATION: WITHIN ERNIE SHELDON YOUTH COMPLEX

t2
Page 194

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



EXHIBIT B

FACILITY LEASE RATES fOT

405 NATOMA STATION DRIVE

Time Period S/nsr/nno s/MoNrH
December 20,

202L - March 31,

2022 No Rent No Rent

April 1, 2022 -

March 3L,2023
s

2.OO / nsP

s
20,000

plus

NNN

April 1,2023-
March 3L,2024

s
2.06 /RSF

s
20,600

plus
NNN

April 1, 2024 -

March 3L,2025
s
2.72 / RSF

s
2t,2L8

plus

NNN

April1,2025-
March 3L,2026

s
2.79 / RSF

s
21,855

plus

NNN

April 1, 2026 -

March 31,2027
s
2.25 / nsr

s
22,51O

plus

NNN

April 1,2027-
March 31,2028

s
2.32 / RSF

s
23,L85

plus
NNN

April 1, 2028 -

March 37,2029
s
2.39 / RSF

s
23,88!

plus

NNN

April L,2O29-
March 31,2030

s
2.46 / RSF

s
24,597

plus

NNN

April L, 2030 -

March 3t,203!
s
2.s3 / RSF

s
25,335

plus

NNN

April 1,2O3L-
March 3L,2032

s
2.6L / RS F

s
26,095

plus

NNN

(Escalation is

based on 3% per
year)

13

Page 195

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



EXHIBIT C
INSURANCE

NOTE: The word ooConsultant" in this Exhibit refers to either'oConsultant" or o'Contractor" as

the term is used in the Agreement/Contract to which this Exhibit is attached.

A. During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain in full force and effect at

all times during the term of the contract, at its sole cost and expense, policies of insurance

as set forth herein:

General Liability:
a. General liability insurance including, but not limited to, protection for claims of

bodily injury and property damage liability, personal and advertising injury
liability and product and completed operations liability.

b. Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial
General Liability coverage form CG 0001 (occurrence).

c. Claims-made coverage is not acceptable.

d. The limits of liability shall not be less than:

Each occurrence: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)

Products & Completed Operations: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)

Personal & Advertising Injury: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)

e. If a general aggregate limit of liability is used, the minimum general aggregate

shall be twice the 'each occuffence' limit or the policy shall contain an

endorsement stating that the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the
project that is the subject ofthe contract.

f. If a products and completed operations aggregate limit of liability is used, the

minimum products and completed operation aggregate shall be twice the 'each
occunence' limit or the policy shall contain an endorsement stating that the
products and completed operations aggregate limit shall apply separately to the
project which is the subject of the contract.

g. If the Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the

City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained

by the Consultant. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the City.

Automobile Liability:
h. Automobile liability insurance providing protection against claims of bodily

injury and property damage arising out of ownership, operation, maintenance,

or use of owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles.

i. Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office Automobile
Liability coverage form CA 0001, symbol 1 (any auto).

j. The limits of liability per accident shall not be less than:

t4

Page 196

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



Combined Single Limit One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)

k. If Automobile Liability coverage, as required above, is provided by the
Commercial General Liability form, the General Liability policy shall include
an endorsement providing automobile liability as required above.

Workers' Compensation

l. Workers' Compensation Insurance, with coverage as required by the State of
California (unless the Consultant is a qualified self-insurer with the State of
California), and Employer' s Liability coverage.

m. Employer's Liability Coverage with a limit not less than $ 1 ,000,000 per accident
for bodily injury and disease.

n. Consultant shall sign and file with the City department responsible for this
Agreement/Contract the Worker's Compensation Certificate contained in the
Project Manual.

Insurance Required in the Supplementar.v Conditions: Consultant shall be required to
comply with all conditions as stipulated in the Standard Construction Specifications,
any supplementary conditions and any special provisions as applicable.

Professional Liabilitv Insurance
If required, effors and omissions, malpractice or professional liability insurance
with coverage of not less than $1,000,000 per claim.

Other Insurance Provisions :

o. The Consultant's General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall
contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

i. The City, its officials, employees, agents and volunteers shall be covered
and specifically named as additional insureds on a separate endorsement as

respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the
Consultant, products and completed operations of the Consultant, premises
owned, occupied, or used by the Consultant, or automobiles owned, leased,
hired, or borrowed by the Consultant in a form acceptable to the City
Attorney.

ii. The Endorsement requirement may be satisfied with express provisions in
the insurance policy(ies) which identifies any person or entity required to
be included as an insured under the policy. A copy of the declarations page
identifting the policy number, and pertinent provisions in the policy
providing additional insured coverage shall be provided to the City.

iii. The policy shall contain no special limitations on the scope of coverage
afforded to the City, its officials, employees, agents or volunteers.

p. For any claims related to the project, the Consultant's General Liability and
Automobile insurance coverage shall be primary insurance in their coverage of
the City and its officers, officials, employees, agents, or volunteers, and any
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, officials,
employees, agents or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance
and shall not contribute with it.

q. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies on the

15

Page 197

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



part of the Consultant, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect
coverage provided to the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents or
volunteers.

r. The Consultant's Workers Compensation and Employer's Liability policies
shall contain an endorsement that waives any rights of subrogation against the
City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers.

s. Each insurance policy shall state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided,
canceled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits, non-renewed, or
materially changed except after 30 days prior written notice hy certified mail
has been given to the City. Ten days prior written notice by certified mail shall
be given to the City in the event of cancellation due to nonpayment of premium.

Acceptabilitv of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Bests' rating of
no less than A:VII.

The Consultant shall furnish the City with Certificates of Insurance and endorsements or
insurance binders, signed by a person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on
its behalf, evidencing the coverage required by this section, the Standard
Specifications, Special Provisions and/or any Supplementary Conditions. The
Consultant shall furnish complete, certified copies of all required insurance
policies" including original endorsements specificallv required hereunder if
requested.

The Consultant shall report, by telephone to the Project Manager within 24 hours, and
also report in writing to the City within 48 hours, after Consultant or any
Subcontractors or agents have knowledge of, any accident or occurrence involving
death of or serious injury to any person or persons, or damage in excess of Ten
Thousand Dollars ($10,000) to property of the City or others, arising out of any work
done by or on behalf of the Consultant as part of the contract.

Such report shall contain:

t. the date and time of the occurrence,

u. the names and addresses of all persons involved, and

v. a description of the accident or occuffence and the nature and extent of the injury
or damage.

The City, at its discretion, may increase the amounts and types of insurance coverage
required hereunder at any time during the term of the contract by giving 30 days
written notice.

If the Consultant fails to procure or maintain insurance as required by this section, the
Standard Specifications, and any Supplementary Conditions, or fails to furnish the
City with proof of such insurance, the City, at its discretion, may procure any or all
such insurance. Premiums for such insurance procured by the City shall be deducted
and retained from any sums due the Consultant under the contract.

Failure of the City to obtain such insurance shall in no way relieve the Consultant from
any of its responsibilities under the contract.

The making of progress payments to the Consultant shall not be construed as relieving
the Consultant or its Subcontractors of responsibility for loss or direct physical loss,
damage, or destruction occurring prior to final acceptance by the City.

t6

Page 198

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



The failure of the City to enforce in a timely manner any of the provisions of this section
shall not act as a waiver to enforcement of any of these provisions at any time during
the term of the contract.

In the event Consultant carries Excess Liability Coverage, the Excess Liability Coverage
shall apply to any and all claims related to the project on a primary and non-
contributory basis, and the City's insurance or self-insurance coverage shall be
excess to the Consultant's Excess Liability Coverage.

EXHIBIT C

UNSURANCE REQUIREMENT]

l7

Page 199

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 200

12/14/2021 Item No.16.



tffi
h'{_t l,r$ (l.Fl
r, :rrrofrlc r; ...rtr tt

Folsom City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Departrnent recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution

No. 10761 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Design and Consulting

Services Contract with TJKM for the Folsom Lake Crossing and East Natoma Street Safety

Improvements Project and Appropriation of Fturds'

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act (FAST) was signed into law on December

4,2015.Under FAST, the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) is a core federal-aid

program to States for the pu{pose of achieving a significant reduction in fatalities and serious

injuries on all public roads. California's Local HSIP focuses on infrastructure projects with
nationally recognized crash reduction factors (CRF$. Local HSIP projects must be identified

based on crash experience, crash potential, crash rate, or other data-supported means.

Using tlre data-based sonclusions dnd recommendations of the draft2O2l Local Road Safety

ftan(lnSf), the Public Works Department applied for and received funding for three separate

HSIP funded projects.

In October 202l,City Council approved Resolution No. 10730 - A Resolution Authorizing the

City Manager to Execute Program Supplement Agreements to Administering Agency-State

Agieemeni03-5288s21. One of the three projects that received HSIP funding, identified in

RJsolution No. 10730 as the Median Barrier Project, is the subject of this engineering design

1

MEETING DATE: t2n4D02l

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SIJBJECT: ResolutionNo. 10761 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Design and Consulting Services Contact
wittr TJKM for the Folsom Lake Crossing and EastNatoma
Sfieet Safety Improvements Project and Appropriation of Funds

X'ROM: Public Works Department

Page 201

12/14/2021 Item No.17.



contract and is now named the Folsom Lake Crossing and East Natoma Street Safety

Improvement Project. Project specifics are shown in the table below:

The scope of the Design and Consulting Services Contract with TJKM will consist of field
investigations, preparing base maps and utility research, a traffic study at the intersection of
East Natoma Street and Gionata Way, project plans, specifications, and estimateso bidding and

construction support services.

HSIP requires that any engineering design component of awarded funding must be encumbered

in the same calendar year that the funds were awarded; therefore this design contract must be

encumbered no later than Desember 31,2021,

Several property owners in the La Collina Dal Lago neighborhood have expressed interest in
the results of the traffic study at East Natoma and Gionata Way. Upon completion of that study,

and prior to proceeding with any project design components that may be affected by the study,

staff plans to share the results with both the interested property owners and the Traffic Safety

Committee.

Staff publicly advertised a Request for Proposals to provide Professional Engineering Services

on September 22, 2021 and received two proposals on November 17,202I. Proposals were

received from TJKM and REY Engineers,

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.080 of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that contacts for supplies,

equipment, selices, and construction with an estimated value of $62,657 or grcater shall be

awarded by the City Council.

ANALYSIS

The proposal review panel consisted of three Public Works staff members. Each panel member

individually reviewed and scored the proposals as described in the Proposal

Evaluation/Consultant Selection section of the RFP. Each panel member was given a scoring
matrix, with the results of those reviews shown below:

2

o Folsom Lake Crossing - Folsom Dam Road and
Johnny Cash Trail enhance

o E. Natoma Street - Folsom Lake Crossing and
Gionata Way

r E. Natoma Sheet - Cimmaron Circle and Fargo Way
o Folsom Aubum Road - Pinebrook Road and Folsom

Dam Road

Construct median barrier,
install dynamic/variable speed

warning signs, and
delineators, reflectors, and/or
object markers (with retro-
reflectivity).

stare HSIP
Funding
$ 1,031,400

Page 202

12/14/2021 Item No.17.



Reviewer A Reviewer B Reviewer C

TJKM REY TJKM REY TJKM REY

Understanding of Work
(30 Points)

25 25 26 20 25 20

Experience with Similar Work
(25 Points)

20 t7 23 t8 25 20

Project Team
(10 Points)

25 l5 22 20 25 20

Familiarity with State Procedures
(10 Points)

10 r0 9 9 10 l0

Proposal Quality
(10 Points)

8 7 7 7 t0 10

Scorinq Total 8E 74 87 74 95 80

In addition to the scoring results above, the fact that TJKM has more experience on similar
projects and has a licensed traffic engineer on the project team were major deciding factors in
the consultant selection.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The City was awarded State HSIP funds in the amount of $1,031,400 for this project. The

contract with TJKM would be authorized for a not to exceed amount of $95,712.41. Staff is

requesting an appropriation in the amount of $95,712.41 from the Transportation Improvement

Fund (Fund 446) for this project, which will be reimbursed to that fund tluough Caltrans

invoicing.

It should be noted that the cost estimate from REY to provide these services was within I l%
of the cost of TJKM.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The scope of TJKM's professional services includes providing environmental evaluations and

a technical memorandum that will be submitted to Caltrans for approval of the project as it
pertains to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10761 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Design and

Consulting Services Contract with TJKM for the Folsom Lake Crossing and East Natoma

Street Safety Improvements Project and Appropriation of Funds

3

Page 203

12/14/2021 Item No.17.



Su

Mark PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

4

Page 204

12/14/2021 Item No.17.



RESOLUTION NO. 1076I

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A DESIGN

AND CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT WITH TJKM FOR THE FOLSOM LAKE

CROSSING AND EAST NATOMA STREET SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT

AND APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, using recoilrmendations of the 2021 Local Road Safety Plan, the Public

Works Department 
"ppii.Jf"t 

and received Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) funds

in the amount of $ I ,bi 1 ,400 for the design and construction of roadway safety countermeasures

on Folsom Lake Crossing, East Natoma Street and Folsom Aubum Road; and

WHEREAS, a Request for Proposal to provide Professional Engineering Services was

publicly advertised on Sepfumb er 2).; ZOZ1 and on Novemb et 17,2021 ptoposals were received

from TJKM and REY Engineers; and

WHEREAS, the proposals were individually reviewed by a proposal review panel

consisting of three public woit, Employees, with rJKM being chosen as the most qualified firm

by all reviewers; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be for the not to exceed amount of $95,712 '41; and

WHEREAS, ffi additional appropriation in the amount of $95,712.41 will be required in

the Transportation Improvement Fund (Fund 446); and

WHEREAS, there are no matching funds required to utilize these HSIP funds; and

WHEREAS'theagreementwillbeinaformacceptabletotheCityAttorney:

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the city council 9f the city of Folsom

authorizes the city Manager to Execute a Design and consurting services contract with rJKM

for the Folsom Lake Croiing and East Natoma Street Safety Improvements Project in the

amount of $95,712.41

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is

authorized to uppropriat" $gS,i2.$ from the Transportation Improvement Fund (Fund 446) '

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December 2021, by the following roll-call

vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Resolution No. 10761

Page I of2
Page 205

12/14/2021 Item No.17.



Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10761

Page2 of2
Page 206

12/14/2021 Item No.17.



.,1""{-l l, Fd {_l}}f
(, ;ir..dtt.a lr r\t{.rt

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 10762 - A Resolution
Authorizing Adoption of an Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding between the
City of Folsom and the Folsom Middle Management Group

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The existing Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the Folsom
Middle Management Group (FMMG) contains Article V, Section 2, Longevity Pay. The
wording in this section does not comply with the California Public Employees Retirement
System (CaIPERS) wording to be included in the salary calculation for retirement benefits.
Staff is proposing to remove one sentence in Article V, Section 2, Longevity Pay, paragraph
A that refers to the longevity pay being contingent on the annual performance evaluation of
the employee. This amendment will not change the percentage paid or the years of service
required to eam the longevity benefit.

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.08.040, Powers and Duties of City Manager, Subsection G describes the duties of
the City Manager to administer all contracts of which the City is a party, including contingency
appropriations for construction contracts, and assure that the city's interests are safeguarded,
terms are enforced and all elements of any contract are faithfully administered, delegating such
oversight and authority to the several departments and offices as he/she shall deem appropriate.

I

MEETING DATE: tzn4l202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: ResolutionNo. 10762 - A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of
an Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding between
the City of Folsom and the Folsom Middle Management Group

FROM: Human Resources Department
Finance Department

Page 207

12/14/2021 Item No.18.



ANALYSIS

Staff was notified by CaIPERS that a longevity-eligible employee that retired from the city
was denied longevity pay from being included in the salary calculation due to the wording in
the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). The MOU contains wording making longevity
pay contingent on a satisfactory evaluation. The city has never tied the longevity pay to a
satisfactory performance evaluation. The longevity pay is only based on length of service with
the city. This amendment will not amend the length of service or the percentage paid as

longevity pay.

Below is the current wording with the sentence to be removed shown with a strike through.

Article V, Section 2,Longevity Pay

A. Subject to subsection B below, employees hired on or before July 1, 2010 in the
FMMG bargaining unit shall be eligible to receive longevity pay beginning with
ten (10) or more years of City service.
that the eligible empleyee has reeeived an everall satisfa€tery ef abeve rating in

ien. The Longevity Pay formula is based

on2 YzYo increments and is as follows:

2ll2% after ten (10) years of City service;
an additional2 %% for a total of 5Yo after fifteen (15) years of City service;
an additional2 yr% for a total of 7 Yz% after twenty (20) years of City service.

B. Employees hired after July 1,2010 shall not be eligible to receive Longevity Pay.

Staff has been in contact with the employee representative of FMMG and they agree with the
change to the MOU.

ATTACHMENTS

l. Resolution No. 10762 - A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of the Amendment to the
Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the Folsom Middle
Management Group

2. Proposed Addendum to the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom
and the Folsom Middle Management Group

Submitted,

Garcia Tamagni
I

2

Human Resources Manager Finance Director/CFO

Page 208

12/14/2021 Item No.18.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 209

12/14/2021 Item No.18.



RESOLUTION NO. 10762

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADOPTION OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE
MEMORANDUM OF'UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF'FOLSOM AND

THE FOLSOM MIDDLE MANAGEMENT GROUP

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom and the Folsom Middle Management Group have reached an

agreement to amend the existing Memorandum of Understanding regarding certain terms and

conditions of employment:

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom that the
Addendum to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Folsom Middle
Management Group for the term of January l, 2020 to December 31, 2022 is hereby approved,
and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom authorizes the City
Manager to execute said Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding on behalf of the City
of Folsom.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December, 2021, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10762
Page I of 1

Page 210

12/14/2021 Item No.18.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 211

12/14/2021 Item No.18.



Amendment To
2019-2022

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
Between

City of Folsom and Folsom Middle Management Group G'MMG)

The Parties hereby agree to the following:

The purpose of this Amendment is to correct Article V, Section 2, to reflect the intent and

practice with regard to Longevity Pay. Contrary to the language in Article V, Section 2,

Longevity Pay has never been tied to a satisfactory perfonnance evaluation and has always been

expected to be part of salary calculation included in CaIPERS retirement. No employee has ever

been denied longevity pay due to less than satisfactory perfonnance.

Parties agree to the following:

Article V, Section 2, Longevity Pay

A. Subject to subsection B below, employees hired on or before July 1,2010 in the
FMMG bargaining unit shall be eligible to receive longevity pay beginning with
ten (10) or more years of City service.
that the eligible empleyee has reeeivedar+everall satisfaetert'er abeve rating in

ion The Longevity Pay formula is based
on2ll2o/o increments and is as follows:

2%o/o after ten (10) years of City service;
an additional2%oh for a total of 5Yo after fifteen (15) years of City service;
an additional2%Yo for a total of 7%o/o after twenty (20) years of City service.

B. Employees hired after July 1, 2010 shall not be eligible to receive Longevity Pay.

This Addendum shall be effective immediately

City of Folsom: For FMMG

Elaine Andersen
City Manager

Ryan Neves
FMMG President

Page 212

12/14/2021 Item No.18.



I"'{-ll,t:t'{,}S: ,
() iYrrilrra tr lAYr ra

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 10763 - A Resolution
Authorizing Adoption of an Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding between the
City of Folsom and the International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 39

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The existing Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the International
Union of Operating Engineers, Local 39 (IUOE) contains Article VI, Section 3, Longevity Pay.
The wording in this section does not comply with the California Public Employees Retirement
System (CaIPERS) wording to be included in the salary calculation for retirement benefits.
Staff is proposing to remove one sentence in Article VI, Section 3, Longevity Pay, paragraph
A that refers to the longevity pay being contingent on the annual performance evaluation of
the employee. This amendment will not change the percentage paid or the years of service
required to earn the longevity benefit.

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.08.040, Powers and Duties of City Manager, Subsection G describes the duties of
the City Manager to administer all contracts of which the City is aparty, including contingency
appropriations for construction contracts, and assure that the crty's interests are safeguarded,
terms are enforced and all elements of any contract are faithfully administered, delegating such
oversight and authority to the several departments and offices as he/she shall deem appropriate.

I

MEETING DATE: r2lr4l202l

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10763 - A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of
an Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding between
the City of Folsom and the Intemational Union of Operating
Engineers, Local39

FROM: Human Resources Department
Finance Department

Page 213

12/14/2021 Item No.19.



ANALYSIS

Staff was notified by CaIPERS that a longevity-eligible employee that retired from the city
was denied longevity pay from being included in the salary calculation due to the wording in
the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). The MOU contains wording making longevity
pay contingent on a satisfactory evaluation. The city has never tied the longevity pay to a
satisfactory performance evaluation. The longevity pay is only based on length of service with
the city. This amendment will not amend the length of service or the percentage paid as

longevity pay.

Below is the current wording with the sentence to be removed shown with a strike through.

Article VI, Section 3, Longevity Pay

A. Subject to subsection B below, employees in the IUOE bargaining unit shall be

eligible to receive Longevity Pay beginning with ten (10) or more years of City
service. Ler€evity Pay is eontin
reeeived an everall
#.TheLongevityPayformulaisbasedon2%Yoincrementsandisas
follows:

o 2ll2o/o after ten (10) years of City service;
. an additional 2 %% for a total of 5o/o after fifteen ( 1 5) years of City service;
o an additional 2 %% for a total of 7 %% after twenty (20) years of City service.

B. Employees hired after July 1,2010 shall not be eligible to receive Longevity Pay

Staff has been in contact with the employee representative of IUOE and they agree with the
change to the MOU.

ATTACHMENTS

l. Resolution No. 10763 - A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of the Amendment to the
Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the International Union
of Operating Engineers, Local 39

2. Proposed Addendum to the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom
and the Intemational Union of Operating Engineers, Local 39

Submitted,

I

Allison Garcia
Human Resources Manager

Tamagni

2

Finance Director/CFo

Page 214

12/14/2021 Item No.19.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 215

12/14/2021 Item No.19.



RESOLUTION NO. 10763

A RBSOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADOPTION OF'AN AMENDMENT TO THE
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF F'OLSOM AND

THE INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING ENGINEERS, LOCAL 39

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom and International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 39
(IUOE) have reached an agreement to amend the existing Memorandum of Understanding
regarding certain terms and conditions of employment:

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom that the
Addendum to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between International Union of
Operating Engineers, Local 39 for the term of September l, 2019 to June 30,2022 is hereby
approved, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom authorizes the City
Manager to execute said Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding on behalf of the City
of Folsom.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December, 2021, by the following roll-call vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10763
Page I of I

Page 216

12/14/2021 Item No.19.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 217

12/14/2021 Item No.19.



Amendment To
2019-2022

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
Between

City of Folsom and International Union of Operating Engineers, Local39

The Parties hereby agree to the following:

The purpose of this Amendment is to correct Article VI, Section 3, to reflect the intent and
practice with regard to Longevity Pay. Contrary to the language in Article VI, Section 3,

Longevity Pay has never been tied to a satisfactory perforrnance evaluation and has always been

expected to be part of salary calculation included in CaIPERS retirement. No employee has ever

been denied longevity pay due to less than satisfactory performance.

Parties agree to the following:

Article VI, Section 3, Longevity Pay

A. Subject to subsection B below, employees in the IUOE bargaining unit shall be

eligible to receive Longevity Pay beginning with ten (10) or more years of City
service. t engeviry Pay is eentin

evaluatie* The Longevity Pay formula is based ot2ll2Yo increments and is as

follows:

c 2%Vo after ten (10) years of City service;
o an additional 2%o/o for atotal of 5Yo after fifteen (15) years of City service;
. an additional 2lrYo for a total of 7%% after twenty (20) years of City

service.

B. Employees hired after July l, 2010 shall not be eligible to receive Longevity Pay

This Addendum shall be effective immediately

City of Folsom: For IUOE, Local39:

Elaine Andersen
City Manager

Chuck Thiel
Business Representative

Page 218

12/14/2021 Item No.19.



i.t.:{*bl,s{*f l}g
ti ,!rrrrlrrt l, r.!rr,i;

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 10764 - A Resolution
Authorizing Adoption of an Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding between the
City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle Management Employees

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The existing Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the City of
Folsom Fire Department Middle Management Employees (CFFDMME) contains Article III,
Section 4, Longeviff Pay. The wording in this section does not comply with the Califomia
Public Employees Retirement System (CaIPERS) wording to be included in the salary
calculation for retirement benefits. Staff is proposing to remove one sentence in Article III,
Section 4, Longeviff Pay, paragraph A that refers to the longevity pay being contingent on the
annual performance evaluation of the employee. This amendment will not change the
percentage paid or the years ofservice required to earn the longevity benefit.

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.08.040, Powers and Duties of City Manager, Subsection G describes the duties of
the City Managerto administer all contracts of whichthe Crty is aparty, including contingency
appropriations for construction contracts, and assure that the city's interests are safeguarded,

1

MEETING DATE: t2n4l202l

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10764 - A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of an
Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding between the
City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle
Management Employees

F'ROM: Human Resources Department
Finance Department

Page 219

12/14/2021 Item No.20.



terms are enforced and all elements of any contract are faithfully administered, delegating such
oversight and authority to the several departments and offices as he/she shall deem appropriate.

ANALYSIS

Staff was notified by CaIPERS that a longevity-eligible employee that retired from the city
was denied longevity pay from being included in the salary calculation due to the wording in
the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). The MOU contains wording making longevity
pay contingent on a satisfactory evaluation. The city has never tied the longevity pay to a
satisfactory performance evaluation. The longevity pay is only based on length of service with
the city. This amendment will not amend the length of service or the percentage paid as

longevity pay.

Below is the current wording with the sentence to be removed shown with a strike through.

Article III, Section 4, Longevity Pay

A. Subject to subsection B below, employees shall be eligible to receive longevity
pay beginning with ten (10) or more years of City service. f€ngoyiqiPafis

satisfaetery er abeve rating in his/her last arxrual perfermanee evaluatien, The
Longevity Pay formula is based on2.5o/o increments and is as follows:

2.5Yo after ten (10) continuous years of city service
TO 5% after fifteen (15) continuous years of city service
TO 75% after twenty (20) continuous years of city service.

B. Employees hired after July 1,2010 shall not be eligible to receive Longevity Pay.

Staff has been in contact with the employee representative of CFFDMME and they agree with
the change to the MOU.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10764 - A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of the Amendment to the
Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire
Department Middle Management Employees

2. Proposed Addendum to the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom
and the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle Management Employees

Submitted,

TamagniAllison Garcia
Human Resources Manager

2

Finance DirectoriCFO

Page 220

12/14/2021 Item No.20.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 221

12/14/2021 Item No.20.



RESOLUTION NO. 10764

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADOPTION OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF'F'OLSOM AND
CITY OF FOLSOM FIRE DEPARTMENT MIDDLE MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom and City of Folsom Fire Department Middle Management
Employees (CFFDMME) have reached an agreement to amend the existing Memorandum of
Understanding regarding certain terms and conditions of employment:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom that the
Addendum to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Folsom Middle
Management Group for the term of January l, 2020 to December 3 1, 2022 is hereby approved,
and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom authorizes the City
Manager to execute said Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding on behalf of the City
of Folsom.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this l4th day of December, 2021, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10764
Page I of I

Page 222

12/14/2021 Item No.20.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 223

12/14/2021 Item No.20.



Amendment To
2020-2022

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
Between

City of Folsom and City of Folsom Fire Department Middle Management Employees
(cx'FDMME)

The Parties hereby agree to the following:

The purpose of this Amendment is to correct Article III, Section 4, to reflect the intent and

practice with regard to Longevity Pay. Contrary to the language in Article III, Section 4,

Longevity Pay has never been tied to a satisfactory perfonnance evaluation and has always been

expected to be part of salary calculation included in CaIPERS retirement. No employee has ever

been denied longevity pay due to less than satisfactory perfonnance.

Parties agree to the following:

Article III, Section 4, Longevify Pay

A. Subject to subsection B below, employees shall be eligible to receive longevity
pay beginning with ten (10) or more years of City service. f€a,g€{riq'.+afis

The
Longevity Pay formula is based on2.5Vo increments and is as follows:

2.5%o after ten (10) continuous years of city service
TO 5% after fifteen (15) continuous years of city service
TO 7.5% after twenty (20) continuous years of city service.

B. Employees hired after July 1, 2010 shall not be eligible to receive Longevity Pay

This Addendum shall be effective immediately.

City of Folsom:

Elaine Andersen
City Manager

Mark Piacentini
CFFDMME Representative

FoT CFFDMEE:

Chad Wilson
CFFDMME Representative

Page 224

12/14/2021 Item No.20.



-[J{-bLE11.Ll.bl
!:

t' AttrCtl.a rl !At!il

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends the City Council approve ResolutionNo. 10765- A Resolution Accepting
the AB1600 Development Fees Annual Report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2021.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Following the passage of Proposition 13 in 1978, ffiffiy cities began charging fees on new
development to fund public improvements and services such as streets, transit facilities,
sewers, and storm drains. These fees are commonly known as development impact fees. In
order to ensure that these fees were spent in a timely manner and on projects for which they
were being collected, the State Legislature passed a bill known as AB 1600 (Mitigation Fee

Act). This bill applies to developer fees, increased, or imposed on or after January l, 1989.
AB 1600 enacts Government Code Sections 66000-66008 that generally contain four
requirements:

A local jurisdiction must follow the process set forth in the bill and make certain
determinations regarding the purpose and use of the fees, and establish a
oonexus" or connection between a development project or class of prbject and
the public improvement being financed with the fee.

The fee revenue must be segregated from the general fund in order to avoid
commingling of public improvement fees and the general fund.

I

I

MEETING DATE: t2lt4l202l

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10765 - A Resolution Accepting the ,4.81600
Development Fees Annual Report for the Fiscal Year ended June
30,2021

X'ROM: Finance Department

)

Page 225

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



J If a local jurisdiction has had possession of a developer fee for five years or
more and has not committed that money to a project or actually spent that
money, then it must make findings describing the continuing need for that
money. In addition, an annual report must be made of fees collected, interest
earned, projects on which fees were expended, and any transfers or loans from
the fee account. This report is to be reviewed by the local agency assessing the
fees.

If a local jurisdiction cannot make the findings required under paragraph 3, the
city or county must refund the fees collected.

4.

The attached report provides the information required by Government Code for the
development fees that fall under this disclosure requirement. In some instances, the ending
fund balance amount is less than the remaining appropriation because outstanding advances

and loans are not included in the fund balance. Cash balances are sufficient for the remaining
appropriations. No refunds have been made nor are any required. More information on these

funds and all other capital project funds is available in the annual budget adopted by Council
in May 2021 and in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR).

This report was compiled with the unaudited City financial records. The audited ACFR will
be available at the end ofthe current calendar year.

This report has been on file with the City Clerk's office as of November 30,2021

POLICY / RULE

Policy 1 1.6 of the General Plan states:

It is the Policy of the City of Folsom to require new development to bear the cost of its
increased demand/ffict on municipal services and facilities so as not to create a
greater burden on existing residents. Development contributes to the need for the
expansion and extension of the City's circulation, water, sewer, storm drainage, and
parlrs systems and other capital improvements, facilities, and equipment to adequately
serve the development area. Service expansion and extension is not necessarily site-
speciJic; rather, it is generally related to a larger area and the City as awhole. In order
to accommodate the new development, maintain an acceptable level of service, and
alleviate the fficts of the increased demand on City services, it is the policy of the City
of Folsom to require certain necessary improvements as a part of the development
and/or the payment of municipal services and facilities fees consistent with the
proportional ffict of the development on such services. . .

ANALYSIS

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 development impact fee funds for all revenues totaled
$24,132,680. Of the $24.13 million, $17,301,400 are impact fees, the remaining $6,831,280

2 Page 226

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



are grants, reimbursements, interest, and miscellaneous revenue. Expenditures totaled
$r4,795,701.

Upon review, it is determined that all fees have been spent or committed within 5 years of
receipt, and thus no refunds are required.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10765 - A Resolution Accepting the ,4.81600 Development Fees
Annual Report for the Fiscal Year Ended Jrme30,202l

2. The Development Fees Annual Report for the City of Folsom for the Fiscal Year Ended
Jwre 30,202I

Submitted,

tacey Tamagni, Finance Director

J Page 227

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 228

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



RESOLUTION NO. 10765

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE A81600 DEVELOPMENT FEES ANNUAL
REPORT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

WHEREAS' Policy 11.6 of the General Plan requires new development to bear the cost
of its increased demand/effect on municipal services and facilities so as not to create a greater

burden on existing residents; and

WHEREAS' the City of Folsom has imposed and collected the Development Impact Fees

based upon several adopted Nexus Reports that were completed in accordance with Government
Code Section 66000, et. al.; and

WHEREAS' Section 66006(b) 2 of the Government Code of the State of California
mandates that the "local agency shall review the information (concerning local agency
improvement fees) made available to the public...at the next regularly scheduled public meeting..."

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby accepts the Development Fees Annual Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 on
file in the City Clerk's office.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR
ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10765
Page I ofl

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Page 229

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 230

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Development lmpact

Fee Report

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 ,2021

City of Folsom

Page 231

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Table of Contents

Introduction ........
Housing Trust Fee Fund
Humbug Willow Creek Trails Fee Fund
Supplemental Park Fee Fund..
City-Wide Park lmprovement Fee Fund
Police Capital Fee Fund
Fire Capital Fee Fund.
General Capital Fee Fund
Transportation lmprovement Fee Fund
Drainage Capital Fee Fund
Light Rail lmpact Fee Fund
General Park Equipment Fee Fund.
Water lmpact Fee Fund
Water Capital lmprovement Fee Fund ......
Sewer Capital lmprovement Fee Fund......
Facilities Augmentation Critical Fee Fund.
Facilities Augmentation General Fee Fund
Solid Waste Capital lmprovement Fee Fund
Folsom Plan Area Highway 50 lmprovements Fee Fund..
Folsom Plan Area Highway 50 lnterchange Fee Fund
Folsom Plan Area Transit lmpact Fee Fund.
Folsom Plan Area Corporation Yard Fee Fund
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Capital Fee Fund...............
Folsom Plan Area Solid Waste Capital Fee Fund

1

2
4
7
I

24
26
28
31

34
36
38
40
42
44
46
48
50
52

Page 232

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Annual Report
Development lmpact Fees

For the Gity of Folsom
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Government Code Section 66006 requires local agencies to submit annual and five year reports detailing the
status of development impact fees. The annual report must be made available to the public and presented to the
public agency (City Council) at least fifteen days after it is made available to the public.

This report summarizes the following information for each of the development fee programs:

1. A brief description of the fee program.
2. Schedule of fees.
3. Beginning and ending balances of the fee program.
4. Amount of fees collected and the interest earned.
5. Disbursement information, including operating transfers.

ANALYSIS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 all fund revenues totaled $24,132,680, while expenditures totaled

$14,795,701.

The table below summarizes, by program, the impact fees collected in FY 2020-21.

Fiscal Year End
June 30 202',1

Housing Trust Fund
Humbug-Willow Creek Fee
Supplemental Park Fee
Park lmprovements
Police Capital
Fire Capital
General Capital
Transportation lmprovement
Drainage Capital lmprovement
Light Rail Transportation
General Park Equip Cap
Water lmpact Fee
Water Capital lmprovement
Sewer Capital
Facilities Augmentation Critical
Facilities Augmentation General
Solid Waste Capital
FPA Highway 50 lmprovement
FPA Highway 50 lnterchange
FPA Transit lmpact
FPA Corporation Yard
FPA Specific Plan Capital
FPA Solid Waste Capital

11,442.62
17,264.50

446,418.81
48,085.48
77,106.99

117,262.66
547,306.40

71,862.25
46,721.U
83,624.39
67,733.00

20't,146.12
39,834.s3

7.00
74,494.00

1,031,101.78
2,096,083.86
1,064,M6.34

661,296.66
't0,215,971.52

382j89.14

$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Total lmpact Fees Collected $ 17,301 ,399.89

Page 233

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2021
Housing Trust

Fund221

Section 3.90.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Housing Trust Fund impact fee. The housing
trust fund is intended to be utilized with other sources of funding including, but not limited to, fee deferrals, fee waivers, federal tax
credits, tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds, community development block grants, and HOME funds. The purpose of this fee is to
further the policies, goals and programs of the housing element of the City's general plan and to help facilitate the development of
affordable housing within the City.

Monies in the housing trust fund shall be used to promote the goals and policies of the housing element of the general plan; to implement
any housing assistance plan, program, or guidelines adopted by the City Council; and to increase and improve the supply of housing
affordable to low and very low income households, with priority given to residential projects which include very low income units, as well
as other housing related purposes. Housing trust funds may be used for loans, grants, equity participation or other funding mechanisms
to accomplish these purposes. The housing trust fund may be used to cover reasonable administrative, legal, consulting, or other
housing related expenses, which are not reimbursed to the City through processing fees.

HOUSING TRUST FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category
Fee per Gross
Square Foot

Office
Retail
Light lndustrial
Heavy I ndustrial/Manufacturing
Light lndustrial/Manufacturing

$
$
$
$
$

1.73
1.73
1.73
1.73
1.73

Description

Stafemenf of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2016117 FY 2017t18 FY 2018119 FY 2019n0 FY 2020t21

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

1 Loan Receivable

Available Fund Balance

$ 61,088
14,628

$

27 745
$ 279,328 $ 103,462 $ 90,188

$ 250,751
13,577
15,000

53,712
2',t,476
15,000

$ '175,956

41 ,916
6,000

$ 223,872 $ 45,011

$ 11,443
27,568

6,000

$ 94,929 $ 92,230 $ 1 1,405 $
3 771

4,067
2,222

1,310
1,956

$
1 793 5002

$ 96,722 $

$ 182,606 $

$ 1,622,490 $

94,730

8,732

1,805,096

$

$

$

'15,176 $ 6,289 $

75,012 $ 217,583 $

3,266

41,745

2,106,4221 ,813,828 $ 1,888,839

$ 2,106,422

$

$ 1,805,096 $ 1,813,828 $ 1,888 .839 $ 2,148,167

$ 849,683 $ 849,683 $ 849,683 $ 841,289 $ 841,289

$ 955,413 $ 964,145 $ 1,039,156 $ 1,26s,132 $ 1,306,877

Notes:
1 

Loan Receivable are loans issued for development of affordable housing projects.

2

Page 234

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Housing Trust

Five Year Revenue Test Using Flrst ln First Out Method
Available Revonue Current Year $ 279,328 $ 103,462 $ 90,188 $

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Ysar (z-yr Old Funds) 318,662 279,328 103,462

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) 311,517 318,662 279,328

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds) 45,906 262,693 318,662

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (Syr Old Funds) 247,516

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (6-yrs and beyond)

223,872

90,188

103,462

279,328

31 8,662

249,620

45,01 1

223,872

90,188

103,462

279,328

565,016

$

Total Revenue Available

FY 2020-21
ons

Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019.20 Projects
Operations

Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Proiects

$ 955,413 $ 964,145 $ 1,039,156 $ 1,265,132 $ 1,306,877

Notes:
Result: TheHousingTrustFaeFundrsportsfundsbeingheldbeyondthelive-yearsasdescribedbyABl600. TheCitycurrontlyhasfundingrequestsfortwoproposed
housing projects.

Capital lmprovement Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 1,310

1,956

100%

'1o00/o

1,310 $

1,956
$

$ 3,266

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 3,266 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
Fee

$ 4,067
2,222

$ 6,289

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 4,067 $'t00%
100% 2222

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 6,28e $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 1 1,405

Non-lmpact

Expenditures

$

Fee

Operations

Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2017-18
Operations

Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2016-17 Projects
Operations

Adm inistrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 't 1,405

3,77'l

100%

100o/o 771

$ 15,176 $

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures

$ 92,230 $ -

2,500
$ 94,730 $

3

$ 15,176

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 92,230
2,500

100%

10oo/o

$ 94,730

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 94,929

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 94,929 $

793
100%

1O0o/o 793

$ 96,722

Notes:I 
lnterfund lransfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

3

$ 96,722 $

Page 235

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2021
Humbug-Willow Creek Fee

Fund 223

Section 4.12.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Humbug-Willow Creek Parkway impact fee. The
Humbug-Willow Creek Parkway fund is intended to be utilized with other sources of funding including, but not limited to, the residential
construction tax, capital improvement-new construction service charge, drainage fees, Quimby Act fees, major road fees and park lmprovement
Fee. The purpose of this fee is to further the long-range planning efforts of the General Plan to develop the Humbug-Willow Creek Parkway.
New development, and the expansion of existing development within the city, generates the need for financing the planning and construction of
recreational trail, and passive recreational amenities along the Humbug-Willow Creek Parkway.

HUMBUG.WILLOW CREEK FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category Basis Fee Amount
Residential, Single Family
Residential, Multiple Family
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial/l ndushial Development

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.

276
174
151

0.0670

$
$
$
$

Description

Statement of Reverrues Expenditurcs and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2016t17 FY 2017t18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019120 FY 2020t21

Revenues
Fees
lnterest
Grant Reimbursements

Other Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

Other Expenses

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$ 47,430 $ 146,538
229

2,590,416
40,063

$ 107,206 $ 81,891 $ 't7 ,265

2,056,066
267,607

2,402,241
244,493

68,123
123,785

40,000
74,160

$ 2,371,103 $ 2,777,246 $ 2,753,940 $ 273,799 $ 131,424

$ 2,521,133 $ 2,452,'.183 $ 2,678,645

't06,013

$ 544,80e $

69,653

30,308

79,472
$ 2,521,133

$ (150,030)

$ (968,842)

$ 2,452,183

$ 325,063

$ (1,118,872)

$ 2,784,658 $

$ (30,718) $

$ (793,809) $

614,462

(340,664)

@24,527\

$ 109,780

$ 21,644

$ (1,165,191)

$

$ (1,1183721 _$_(Texgqgl

$

$ (824,527\ $ (1,165,1e1) $ (1,143,546)

$ $ $

$ (1,118,872) _s.-_lzex9q9I $ (824,527\ $ (1,165,1el) $ (1,143,546)

4

Page 236

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Humbug-Willow Creek Fee Fund

FY 2020-21 Projects

Flve Year Revenue Test Uslng Flrst ln Flrst Out Method
$s$Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year ($yrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

Result: Five Year Revenue test mel in acmrdance with Government Codo 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

$

$$$

$

$ s

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Non-lmpact
Fee

ExpendituresExpenditures
$ 30,308 $

79,472
$ 109,780 $

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures
$ sg+,sz+ $ 91,625

10,235
69 653

$ 614,462 $ 91,625

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures
$ - $ 4,515

868,568
48,500

1,691,614
28,233

106,013

37,215

$ 2,636,915 $ 41,730

Placerville Rail Trail
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019-20 Projects

$ 30,308
79,472

$ 109,780

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

100Yo

100Yo

Oak Parkway Trail Undercrossing
Placerville Rail Trail
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 201 8-l 9 Proiects

$ 626,199
10,235
69 653

$ 706,087

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

85o/o

100%
100o/o

Folsom Lake Trail Phase 2
Lake Natoma Class 1 Trail
Lake Natoma Water Front Trail
Oak Parkway Trail Undercrossing
Placerville Rail Trail
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 4,515
868,568
48,500

1,728,829
28,233

106,013

0%
100%
100o/o

98Yo
100o/o

1O0Yo

FY 2017-18 Projects

$ 2,784,6s8

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
47,212Folsom Lake Trail Phase 2

Lake Natoma Class 1 Trail
Oak Parkway Trail Undercrossing
Placerville Rail Trail

$ 1,984,345
329,160

61,878
124,012

98Yo

1jOYo
1O0Yo

't00Yo

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 1,937,133

329,'160
61,878

124,012
$ 2,452,183 $ 47,212$ 2,499,395

5

Page 237

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



FY 2016-17 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures Expenditures
$ 1,798,872 $Folsom Lake Trail Phase 2

Lake Natoma Class 1 Trail
Lake Natoma Water Front Trail
Levy Park Trail
Oak Parkway Trail Undercrossing
Placerville Rail Trail

$ 1,798,872
173,877
598,421

66,786
100,820

11,492

100o/o

99%
620/o

'l00o/o

lOOo/o

100o/o

171 ,638
371,525
66,786

100,820
11,492

$ 2,521,133 $ 229,134

2,239
226,895

$ 2,750,267

Notes:
1 Interfund transfers are used to reimburse the Genaral Fund for providing General Government support.

6

Page 238

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2021
Supplemental Park Fee

Fund 411

Section 4.10.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Park lmprovement impact fee. The fee
established by this chapter is in addition to any other fees or charges, or taxes, required by law or city code as a condition of
development, including, but not limited to, the residential construction tax levied by Chapter 17.90, capital improvement-new
construction service charge levied by Chapter '17.92, drainage fees levied by Chapter 17.95, Quimby Act fees levied by Chapter 16.32
and major road fees levied by Chapter 12.O4.fhe fee established bythis chapter is to be collected for park and recreation facilities for
which an account shall be established and funds appropriated, and for which a proposed construction schedule shall be adopted. The
fee imposed by this chapter is necessary in order to assure compliance with the applicable general plan requirements that new
development bear the cost for park and recreation infrastructure which is needed to serve such development.

SUPPLEMENTAL PARK IMPROVEMENT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

This fee is no longer charged

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Yearc

Description FY 2016117 FY 2017t18 FY 2018t19 FY 2019120 FY 2020121

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

Other Expenses

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

Available Revenue Cunent Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior FiscalYears

Total Revenue Available

$ $
3,962 3,938 5,912 5,703 3,276

$ 3,962 $ 3,938 $ S,grZ $ 5,703 $ 3,276

$

$

$ 3,962

$ 261,563

$-

$ 3,938

$ 265,525

$-
$ 3,276

$ 280,643

$$ $

$$$$

435
$-
$ 5,912

$ 269,463

435

5,268

275,375

$

$

$

$ 265,525 $ 269,463 $ 275,375 $ 280,643 $ 283.919

$ $ $ $ $

$ 265,525 $ 269,463 $ 275,375 $ 280,643 $ 283.919

Five Year Revenuo Test Using Flrct ln Flrst Out Method
o 3,902

10,491

'152,078

96,263

2,731

3,938

3,962

10,491

152,078

90,263

2,731

5,912

3,938

3,962

10,491

152,078

98,994

$

1

5,703

5,912

3,938

3,962

10,491

250,637

$ $ 3,276

5,703

5,912

3,938

3,962

261,128

$ 283,919$ 265,525 $ 269,463 $ 275,375 $ 280,643

Notes:
Result: The Supplemontal Park lmprovement Fund reports funds boing h€ld bayond the live-years as described by A81600. Pet lhe 2022 Capital lmprovement Plan

funds are reserved for the Benevenlo Family Park project. The Supplemental Park lmprovement Fund will be utilized for a total of $275,000 for this project which is

currently in the design phase.

7

Page 239

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Supplemental Park Fee
Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2020-21 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$-

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer) $

$

FY 2019-20 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

100%

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 435

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

$

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer) $ 435

$ 435

IOOYo $

$435$

FY 2018-19 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer) $ IOOYo $ $

$ $ $

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures

$$
$ $

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
ExpendituresExpenditures

$- $

$ $

FY 2017-'18 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer) $

$

100yo

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact FeesFY 2016-17 Proiects
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer) $ 10oo/o

$

1 
lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse lhe General Fund for providing Genoral Govsrnment support.

8

Page 240

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2021
Gity-Wide Park lmprovement Fund

Fund412

Section 4.10.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Park lmprovement impact fee. The fee established
by this chapter is in addition to any other fees or charges, or taxes, required by law or city code as a condition of development, including, but not
limited to, the residential construction tax levied by Chapter'17.90, capital improvement-new construction service charge levied by Chapter
lT.92,drainagefeesleviedbyChapterlT.95,QuimbyActfeesleviedbyChapterl6.32andmajorroadfeesleviedbyChapterl2.04. Thefee
established by this chapter is to be collected for park and recreation facilities for which an account shall be established and funds appropriated,
and for which a proposed construction schedule shall be adopted. The fee imposed by this chapter is necessary in order to assure compliance
with the applicable general plan requirements that new development bear the cost for park and recreation infrastructure which is needed to
serve such development.

CITY.WDE PARK IMPROVEMENT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category
Residential, Single Family
Residential, Multiple Family
Residential Senior dwelling
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial/lndustrial Development

Basls Fee Amount
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.

7,037
4,675
3,614
2,70',1

0.476

$
$
$
$
$

Description

Sfafemenf ofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Yearc

FY 2016t17 FY 2017118 FY 2018/t9 FY 2019120 FY 2020121

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Grant Reimbursements
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

Other Expenses

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End of Year

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$ 1,232,680
37,901

$ 3,819,319
34,929

$ 2,539,916
42,345

$ 2,034,287
141,800

446,419
19,163

$

(17,1191 2,643 7,334 1,488

$ 1,253,461 $ 3,854,248 $ 2,584,905 $ 2,183,421 $ 467,070

$ 1,611,108

$ 12,813

$ 5,256,400

$ zt,tgt

999,904

43,231

145,665

80,371

149,220

21,528

$

$

$

$

$

$
$ 1,623,921

$ (370,460)

$ 2,226,782

$ 5,278,137 $

$ (1,423,88e) $

$ 1,856,322 $

1 ,043,1 35

1,il1,769

432,434

$ 226,036

$ 1,957,386

$ 1,974,203

$

$

$

170,748

296,322

3,931 ,58S

$ 1,856,322 $ 432,434 $',t,974,203 $ 3,931,589 g 4,227,910

$ 6,326,934 $ $ $ $

$ (4,470,612) $ 432,4v $ 1,974,203 $ 3,931,s89 $ 4,227,910

I

Page 241

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City-Wide Park lmprovement Fund

Available Revenue Cunent Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (&yr Old Funds)

Available Revenus Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (Syrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Avallable

Flve Year Revenue Tsst Uslng Flrst In Flrst Out Method
9 1,253,461 $ 432,434 $ 1,974,203

601,804

1,057

$$ 2,183,421

1,748,168

467,070

2,183,42'l

1,577,419

$ 1 ,856,322 $ 432,434 $ 1,974,203 $ 3,931 ,589 $ 4,227 ,910

Result: Five Ysar Revenus tost met in accordancs with Governm€nt Codo 66001

Capital lmprovement Projec'ts

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees Expenditures
$

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 27,846

4,650
15,236

100,000
't,488

21,528
$ ros,zoo g 1,488

Fee

FY 2020-21 Projects
Operations
Davies Park
Benevento Park (Empire Ranch Site 51)
Sutter Middle School Gym
Memorial/Celebratory Benches
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 27,846
4,650

15,236
100,000

1,488
21,528

lOOo/o

'looo/o

100%
IOOVo

0o/o

1OjYo

$ 170,748

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees Expenditures
$ 7,334

$ 208,624
377

37,291
u,288

4,975,820
$ 5,256,400

NonJmpact
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 29,733

1,838
6,760

100,000
80,371

$ 218,702 $ 7,334

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 87,894

(5,s18)
(371)

9,216
806,040
100,000

43,231
$ 1,040,492 $ 2,643

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures
$ 208,624 $

377
37,291
34,288

4,975,820

Fee

FY 2019-20 Projects
Operations
BT Collins Park
Econome Park (Site 44)
Sutter Middle School Gym
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Projects
Operations
Livermore Park
Johnny Cash Art Park
Johnny Cash Trail Art
Econome Park (Site 44)
Sutter Middle School Gym
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 37,067
1,838
6,760

100,000
80,371

80%
100%
IOOYo

lOOo/o

100%

$ 226,036

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by Fee

Fees Expenditures
$ 2,643$ 90,537

(5,518)
(371)

9,216
806,040
100,000

43,231
$ 1 ,043,1 35

Project Amount
Expended

97Yo

100%
lOOo/o

100%
1O0o/o

lOOo/o

100%

FY 2017-18 Proiects

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
Operations
Lew Howard Park
Livermore Park
Johnny Cash Art Park
Econome Park (Site 44)

lOOo/o

1O0o/o

100%
'lO0o/o

10Oo/o

$ 5,256,400 $

10

Page 242

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



FY 2016-17 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 192,471

18,443
1,392,767

7,427

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$

58,345

380,916
$ 1,611,108 $ 439,261

OperationS
Lew Howard Park
Econome Park (Site 44)
Zoo Bam

$ 134,126
76,788

1,392,767
388,343

144o/o

24To

100o/o

2o/o

$ 1,992,024

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the Gsneral Fund for providing General Govemment support.

11

Page 243

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2021
Police Capital

Fund 428

Section 3.80.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision to implement the City General Plan, Urban Development Policy No.
11.6, and to provide for adequate police, fire and general governmental services and facilities to serve new residential, industrial and commercial
development throughout the City. The City Council determined that the existing police, fire and general governmental services and facilities
would be inadequate to accommodate the needs generated by projected new residential, industrial and commercial growth in the City, and
additional services and facilities were needed to protect and promote the health, safety and welfare of Folsom residents and businesses. Under
this section of the City's Municipal Charter the City established three improvement funds entitled the police improvement fund, the fire
improvement fund and the general government improvement fund. The amount of the capital improvement new construclion fee shall be
established by resolution adopted by the City Council of the City, and shall be based upon the determination in the Nexus Studies of: (1) the use
of the fee and the type of development on which the fee is imposed; (2) the need for the facilities and/or services created by the new residential
and commercial development; and (3) the reasonable cost of the facilities and/or services attributable to new development. (Ord. 871 $ 1 (part),
1997) All fees collected pursuant to this chapter shall be deposited in these improvement funds and shall be expended solely to finance the
planning, construction and development of the facilities and services identified in the Nexus Studies.

POLICE CAPITAL FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwdlings
Commercial Lodging
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

601
681
156
35

1.012
0.875

Oescription

Sfafement of Revenues Expenditurcs and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Yearc

FY 2016t17 FY 2017t18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020t21

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditur€s

D6bt Service - interfund transfer
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$ 242,736
6,920

535,099
7,697

$ 307,384
13,649

$ 376,561
19,536

48,085
13,505

$ $

$ 249,6s6 $ 542,796 $ 321,033 $ SgO,OgA $ 61,590

1'.t7,796

716

$ 43,185
300,000 500,000

$$$$

$ 300,000 $

$ (s0,344) $

$ 451,113 $

$-
$ 321,033

$ 443,s65

$ 1 1 8,512

$ 277,586

$ 764,598

$ 43,185

$ 18,405

$ 1,042,184

500,000

42,796

400,769

$ 400.769 $ 443,565 $ 764,598 $ 1,042,184 $ 1,060,589

$ 500,000 $ $ $ $

_$_-lee2!1I $ 443,s65 $ 764,598 $ 1,042,184 $ 1,060,589

12

Page 244

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Police Capital

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs Old Funds)

Available Revsnue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

Assigned Fund Balance

Total Availabla R6venue

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$ 249,656 $ 443,s65 $ 321,033

151,113 - 443,565

$$ 396,098

321,033

325,053

61,590

396,098

321,033

281,868

$ 400,769

500,000

443,565$764,598$1,042,184$1,060,589

$ (ee,231) $ 443,565$764,598$1,042,184$1,060,589

$

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2020-21 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended
Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
Police HQ Remodel

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019.20 Proiects

$ 43,185 100o/o

OYo

$ 43,185 $

$ 43,'185

Project
Amount

Expended
Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

$ 43,185 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
Fee

Purchase of Police Vehicles

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Proiects

$ 1 17,796

716

$ 118,512

Project
Amount

Expended

lOOo/o

lOOo/"

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

$ 1 17,796 $

716

$ 118,s12 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ $ $

FY 2017-18 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended
Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ s00,000

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 785,125Debt Ser. on Municipal Svcs. Complex (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 1,285,125

$ 1,285,125

Project
Amount

Expended

39%

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 300,000

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 1,119,410

$ 500,000 $ 785,12s

FY 2016-17 Projects
Debt Ser. on Municipal Svcs. Complex (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 1,419,410

$ 1,419,410

Notes:
1 lnterfund lransfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing Gsneral Government support.

2',tYo

$ 300,000 $ 1,119,410

13

Page 245

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2021
Fire Gapital

Fund tl41

Section 3.80.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision to implement the City General Plan, Urban Development Policy No.

11.6, and to provide for adequate police, fire and general governmental services and facilities to serve new residential, industrial and commercial
development throughout the City. The City Council determined that the existing police, fire and general governmental services and facilities
would be inadequate to accommodate the needs generated by projected new residential, industrial and commercial growth in the City, and
additional services and facilities were needed to protect and promote the health, safety and welfare of Folsom residents and businesses. Under
this section of the City's Municipal Charter the City established three improvement funds entitled the police improvement fund, the fire
improvement fund and the general government improvement fund. The amount of the capital improvement new construction fee shall be
established by resolution adopted by the City Council of the City, and shall be based upon the determination in the Nexus Studies of: (1) the use
of the fee and the type of development on which the fee is imposed; (2) the need for the facilities and/or services created by the new residential
and commercial development; and (3) the reasonable cost of the facilities and/or services attributable to new development. (Ord. 871 S 1 (part),
1997) All fees collected pursuant to this chapter shall be deposited in these improvement funds and shall be expended solely to finance the
planning, construction and development of the facilities and services identified in the Nexus Studies.

FIRE CAPITAL FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial Lodging
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

Basis Fee Amount
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

$
$
$
$
$
$

1,086
1,050
1,083

939
0.634
0.276

478,923
46,994

FY 2019t20 FY 2020n1

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sfafemenf of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Yearc

FY 2016t17 FY 2017t18 FY 2018/19Doscription

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

Debt Service - interfund transfer
Other Expenses

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$ $ $

$$

245,913
15,621

832,887
50,565

$ 503,670
26,669

77,107
(12,922)

$

$ 261,534 $ 883,452 $ 525,916 $ 530,339 $ 64,185

$ 2,008,060

52,861

$ 2,060,921$ 115,741

$ 145,793

I 2,979,173

$ 1 ,473,1 06

$ (s89,6s4)

$ 3,124,965

$ 1,867,505

$ (1,341,589)

$ 124,204

$ 406,135

$ '1,193,723

35,352
80,389

$ 1,393,613
79,493

$ 1,785,969
80,049

1,487

80,420

43,7U

$ (1,996,736)

$ 1,599,857

$3,

$ 312

124.965 $ 2,s3s,312 $ 1,193,723 $ 1,599,8s7 $ (396,879)

$ 4,457,369 $ $ $ $

_$_c.,33219q $ 2,535,312 $ 1,193,723 _$_1€99p57_ $ (396,879)

14
Page 246

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Fire Capital

Flve Year Revenue Test Uaing Flrst ln Flrst Out Method
Available Revenue CurrentYear $ 261,534 $ 883,452 $ 525,916

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds) 305,1 33 261,5U 667,807

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) 448,359 305,'1 33

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Ysar (4-yr Old Funds) 540,325 448,359

Available Revenue Prior FiscalYear (s-yrs Old Funds) 2'18,428 540,325

Available Revenue Groater than Fivs Prior Fiscal Y€ars 1.351.186 96,509

Total Revenue

$ 530,339

525,916

545,602

Assigned Fund Balance
$ 3,124,965 0 2,535,312 $ 1,193,723 $ 1,599,857 $

4,456,369

$ (1,331,404) $ 2,535,312 $ 1,193,723 $ 1,599,857 $

Result: Five Year Revenuo test met in accordancs with Govornment Code 66001

Gapital lmprovement Projects

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
Fee

FY 2020-21 Projects
Station 38 Remodel

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)
$ 2,430,715

52,861

$ 2,483,576

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

83o/o

lOOo/o

$ 2,008,060

52,861

$ 422,655

$ 2,060,921 $ 422,655

2

FY 2019-20 Projec'ts
Debt Service on Fire Station 35 (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Proiects

$ 223,388
43,784

$ 267,172

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

360/o$80,420$142,968
10OTo 43 784

$ 't24,204 $ 142,968

1

2

Debt Service on Fire Station 35 (interfund transfer)
Fire Station #39
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2017-18 Projects
Debt Service on Fire Station 35 (interfund transfer)
Fire Station #39
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2016-17 Proiects

$ 222,357
2,161,413

1,487
$ 2,385,257

Project Amount
Expended

$ 222,3',ts
3,735,921

$ 3,958,234

Project Amount
Expended

36Yo

83o/o

100o/o

$ 80,049
1,785,969

1,487

$ 142,308 1

375,444
2

$ 1,867,505 $ 517,752

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

36Yo

37o/o

$ 79,493
1 ,393,613

$ 142,820 1

2,342,308

$ 1,473,106 $ 2,485,128

Debt Service on Fire Station 35 (interfund transfer)
Fire Station #39
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 80,389
35,352

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 142,914
188,668

36%
16%

o%

$ 223,303
224,020

$ 447,323 $ 1 15,741 $ 331 ,582

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are ussd to reimburse the General Fund for the impact fee portion of the debt ssrvice payments and capital expenses.
2 lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Govemment support.

'15

Page 247

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2021
General Capital

Fund rMS

Section 3.80.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision to implement the City General Plan, Urban Development Policy
No. 11.6, and to provide for adequate police, fire and general governmental services and facilities to serve new residential, industrial and
commercial development throughout the City. The City Council determined that the existing police, fire and general governmental services
and facilities would be inadequate to accommodate the needs generated by projected new residential, industrial and commercial growth in
the City, and additional services and facilities were needed to protect and promote the health, safety and welfare of Folsom residents and
businesses. Under this section of the City's Municipal Charter the City established three improvement funds entitled the police
improvement fund, the fire improvement fund and the general government improvement fund. The amount of the capital improvement new
construction fee shall be established by resolution adopted by the City Council of the City, and shall be based upon the determination in the
Nexus Studies of: (1) the use of the fee and the type of development on which the fee is imposed; (2) the need for the facilities and/or
services created by the new residential and commercial development; and (3) the reasonable cost of the facilities and/or services
attributable to new development. (Ord. 871 $ 1 (part), 1997) All fees collected pursuant to this chapter shall be deposited in these
improvement funds and shall be expended solely to finance the planning, construction and development of the facilities and services
identified in the Nexus Studies.

GENERAL CAPITAL FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use CateEory Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwdlings
Commercial Lodging
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

1,596
1,596
1,589

228
0.498
0.495

Doicrlptlon

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Yearc

FY 20',t6117 FY 2017t18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019t20 FY 2020t21

Revenues
Fees
lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expendituree
AB t600 Expenditures
Debt Service - interfund transfer
Other Expenses
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$ 354,644
13,482

$ 1,242,626
19,876

$ 701 ,310
37,077

$ 714,359
3,681

$'t17,263
10,224

$ 368,126 $',t,262,502 $ 738,387 $ 718,041 $ 127,487

$ 16,331
400.000

4,667

$ 1 17,834
600,000

4,617

$ 42,871
1,856,110

2,702

$ 2,505 $ t,SeZ

152,745
$ 420,998

$ (52,871)

$ 881 ,191

$ 722,451

$ 540,051

$ 828,320

$ 1,901,683

$ (1,163,296)

$ 1,368,371

$ 155,250

$ 562,790

$ 205,075

$ 1,582

$ 125,90s

$ 767,865

$ 828,320 $ 1,368,371 _$_205,07!_ $ 767,865 $ 833,770

$ $ $ $$

$ 828,320 $ 1,368,371 $ 205,075 $ 767,865 $ 893,770

16
Page 248

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



General Capital

Availablo Revenue Current Year

Availabl€ Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (&yr Old Funds)

Available Revonue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year ($yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greator than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Avallable

Result: Five Year Revenue tgst met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2020-21 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Five Year Revenue Test Using Flrst ln Flrst Out Method
$ 368,126 g 1,262,502 $

217,310 105,859

242,884

205,075 $ 718,041

49,824

127,487

718,041

48,242

$

$ 828,320 $ '1,368,37'l $ 205,07s $ 767,865 $ 893,770

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$ 1,582 $ -General Government Overhead (interfund transfer) $ 1,582

$ 1,582

IOOYo

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

g 1,582 $

FY 2019-20 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 2,745

150,000

2,505

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

$ 155,250 $ 8,942

Software upgrade
Capital Equipment

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 4,U0
156,847

2,505

$ 164,192

57o/o

960/o

100o/o

2,095
6,U7

FY 2018-19 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 42,871

1,856,1 10

2 702
$ 1,901 ,683 $ 44,749

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 44,749Software upgrade

Debt Service on City Hall (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2017-'|.8 Proiecte

$ 87,620

1 ,856,110
2,702

49%
lOOo/o

100%

$ 1,946,432

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 107,484

10,350

600,000

4,617

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$$ 107,484

18,248

1,285,125

4,617

lOOo/"

57o/o

47%

1OOY"

7,898

685,12s 2

1

Fiber upgrade (City Hall campus)
Software upgrade

Debt Service on City Hall (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

20't6-17
Software upgrade

Debt Service on City Hall (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 1,415,474

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
44Yo

28%
IOOYo

$ 722,451 $ 693,023

$ 36,980

1,4',t9,410

4,667

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 16,331

400,000

4,667

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

$ 420,998 $ 1,040,059

20,649

1,019,410

$ 1 ,461,057

Notes:
1 lnterfund transfsrs are used to reimburss lhe Gon€ral Fund for providing General Government support.
2 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for the impact fee portion of the debt service payments.

17
Page 249

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2021
Transportation lmprovement Fund

Fund tl46

Section 12.04.060 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for a transportation improvement fee. The purpose of the fee is to
establish a fund for financing transportation facilities as identified in the circulation element of the city general plan and those studies which identify
specific transportation facility improvements called for in the circulation element and the estimated costs thereof. lmprovements include construction
of new transportation facilities where there are none and reconstruction of existing transportation facilities which are not sufficient to accommodate
increased traffic caused by new development. The area of benefit of the transportation facilities is the entire corporate limits of the City.

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Gategory
Single Family Residential
MultFFamily Residential
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial / Retail
lndustrial / Office
Hospital
Hotel / Motel
Other
Additional Land Uses
High Trip Commercial
Gas Stations

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft. $
Per Fueling Station $

Basis Fee Amount

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

8,168
5,717
5,717
12.27
5.33

12.27
12.27
5.23

48.67
10,914

Description

Statement ofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2016t17 FY 2017hA FY 2018t19 FY 2015120 FY 2020121

Revenues
Fees

lnterest

Olher Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
Other Expenses
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

Available Revenus Current Year

Available Rsvenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year ($f Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (+yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year ($ys Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenus Avallable

$ 4,',t47,236 $ 5,58s,431 $ 4,160,235 $ 4,363,978 $ 6,397,720

$ 1,743,678
23,905

2,379,653

4,570,833
40,237

974,361

$ 3,058,578
523,814
577,843

$ 2,339,992
355,678

1,668,308

$ s47,306
(61,334)

5,911,747

$

$ 3,289,400
53,761

130,410

1,480,795
13,186
72,728

$ 5,299,363
102,483
91,884

$ 7,927,850
152,118
41,545

$ 8,993,579
117,918
100,682

$

$ 3,473,571

$ 673,665

$ 9,527,682

1,566,709

4,O18,722

10,201,347

$ s,493,730

$ (1,333,495)

$ 14,220,069

$ 8,121,513

$ (3,757,534)

$ 12,886,574

$ 9,212,179

$ (2,814,45e)

$

$

$

_$__1_9?91,912_ $

$s, 129,040

14.220.069 $ 12,886,574 $ 9,129,040 $ 6,314,581

$ 10,201,347 $ 14,220,069 $ 12,886,574 $ 9,129,040 $ 6,314,s81

Flve Year Revenue Test Uslng Flrst ln Flrst Out Method
$ 4,'t47,236 $ 5,585,43r $ 4,160,23s

2,641,533 4,147,236 5,585,431

3'412'578 
?:311:i33 

3'140'eoo

4,363,978

4,160,235

604,827

$ 6,314,581

$ '1o,2o1,v7 $

Resull: Fiva Year Revenue tosl mst in accordance with Government Cods 66001

14,220,069$'12,886,574$9,129,040$6,314,s81

18
Page 250

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Transportation lmprovement Fund
lnterfund Loan

Per Resolution 9815 an interfund loan was approved by the City Council in the amount $5,004,701 to be used for the completion of Econome
Family Park. The resolution established the term as ten years at an interest rate equivalent to the quarterly interest earnings by all City
investments, (currently approximately 2o/o to 2.5o/o per year). During fiscal year 2018 an interfund loan was made in the amount of $2,000,000 from
the Transportation lmprovement Fund to the Park lmprovement Capital Fund. The Park Capital lmprovement Fund made a payment of $1,000,000
plus interest on June 30, 2018, $330,000 on June 30, 2019, $300,000 in December 2019, and $300,000 on March 31,2021. The Econome Family
Park opened on July 12, 2018. The interfund loan outstanding as ofJune 30,2021 is $70,000.

Gapital lmprovement Projects
Non-lmpact

Project Amount
Expended

Percent Funded by
lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures Expenditures

Fee

FY 2020-21 Proiects
East Bidwell Frontage lmprovements

Capital SE Connect Seg D3

Empire Ranch Rd lnterchange
East Bidwell Widening
East Bidwell / lron Pt Signal Delineation

Green Valley Road Widening

lntelligent Transportation System
Median lmprovement Program
Local Streets & Roads Program
New Traffic Signal lmprovement

Orangevale Bridge
Prairie City / Blue Ravine
Rainbow Bridge Repair
Riley Street Feasability Study

Traffic Signal System Upgrade

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 251,712
6,322,280

230,580
563,324
34,040

830,339
174,992

15,723
34,754
84,430

6,367
u2,415

10,306
72,4'.12
62,098

100,682

120,144

100o/o $
100%
19OYo

100%
100o/o

100o/o

95o/o

''000/o

100%
100o/o

100o/o

100o/o

100%
100o/o

43o/o

100o/o

100o/o

251,7',t2
6,322,280

230,580
563,324
34,040

830,339
't 66,019

15,723
34,754
84,430

6,367
342,415

10,306
72,412
26,653

100,682

120,'t44

$

8,973

35,445

$ 9,256,597

Project Amount
Expended

Percent Funded by
lmpact Fees

$ 9,212,179 $ 44,419

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee

Expenditures Expenditures
Fee

FY 2019-20 Prolects
East Bidwell Fronlage lmprovements

Empire Ranch Rd lnterchange
East Bidwell Widening
East Bidwell / lron Pt Signal Delineation
Green Valley Road Widening
lntelligent Transportation System
lron Point Rail Road Crossing Modifications
Local Streets & Roads Program
New Traffic Signal lmprovement
Prairie City / Blue Ravine
Rainbow Bridge Repair
Riley Street Feasibility Study
Traffic Signal System Upgrade

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 376,391
289,408
322,717
28,143

5,893,164
294,278

8,000
34,706

477,280
15,768
30,074
66,054

153,200

41,545
152,118

$ 8,182,846

100a/o $
100o/o

100Yo
100o/o

100o/o

92%
10oo/o

77o/o

100%
1O0o/o

100o/o

100o/o

80o/o

100o/o

100%

376,391
289,408
322,717

28,143
5,893,137

271,121
8,000

26,706
477,280

15,768
30,074
66,054

123,050

41,545
152,'118

$ 8,121,513 $ 61 ,333

$

26
23,157

8,000

30,150

19
Page 251

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Project Amount
Expended

Percent Funded by
lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
Fee

FY 2018-19 Proiects
East Bidwell Frontage lmprovements

East Bidwell lnfill
East Bidwell Widening
East Bidwell / lron Pt Signal Delineation

Greenback / Madison Paving
Green Valley Road Widening
Highway 50 Facilities
lntelligent Transportation System

lron Point Rail Road Crossing Modifications
Median lmprovement Program
New Traffic Signal lmprovement

Orangevale Bridge
Rainbow Bridge Repair
Regional Transportation Coordination

ROW Asset Management
Traffic Signal Syst€m Upgrade

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 218,007
598

65,808
290,820

2,',t44,312
704,818
37,U'l

148,291
761,820

3,692
2,396,298

35,395
30,851
55,000

5,079
251,001

91,884
'147 707

$ 7,389,223

Project Amount
Expended

218,007
598

65,808
290,820
416,',t74
704,818

37,841
148,291
761,820

3,692
2,396,298

35,395
30,851
3't,276

5,079
107,370

91,884
147,707

$ s,493,730 $ 1,89s,493

100o/o

100Yo
100o/o

't00%
19o/o

100o/o

100o/o

100o/o

100%
100o/"
100o/o

100o/o

100Yo

57o/o

10oo/o

43o/o

100%
100o/o

$ $

1,728J38

23,7-24

143,631

FY 2017-18 Projects
Percent Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
East Bidwell Widening
Empire Ranch Rd lnterchange

Green Valley Road Widsning
Highway 50 Facilities
lntelligent Transportation System
New Traffic Signal lmprovement
Orangevale Bridge
Rainbow Bridge Repair
Regional Transportation Coordination
ROW Asset Management
Miscellaneous Road lmprovements

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund hansfe0

FY 2016-17 Proiects
East Bidwell lnfill
East Bidwell Widening
Green Valley Road Widening
Highway 50 Facilities
lntelligent Transportation System
Natoma / Tacana Soundwall
New Traffic Signal lmprovement

Orangevale Bridge
Rainbow Bridge Repair

ROW Asset Management
Traffic Signal System Upgrade
Miscellaneous Road lmprovements

Engineering Overhead (interfund hansfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 75,954
88,339

104,469
9,785

73,583
423,211
1 70,386
426,438
47,622
23,721

1,220

1 3,1 86

72,728

$ 1,530,644

53,761

130,410

$ 3,ss5,468

$ 75,954
88,339

104,469
9,785

73,583
423,211
'139,102

426,438
47,622
23,721

1,220

1 3,1 86

72,728

$ '1,499,359 $ 31,284

Non-lmpact

IOOYo

lOOo/o

't00%
1O0o/o

100%
100o/o

82lo
10004

100Yo

100o/o

100o/o

100%

100%

$

31,284

2

I

Project Amount
Expended

$ 96,301

44,246
83,8s2
25,921

144,935
u2,562
33,419

2,299,564
78,147
42,173

180,177

Percent Funded by
lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Fee
Expenditures

1O0o/o

lOOlo

1O0o/o

lOOo/o

100o/o

100%
100%

33o/o

75%
lOOo/o

5s%
0o/o

100%

100%

96,301

44,246
83,852
25,921

144,935
u2,562
33,419

759,573
58,735
42,173
98,280

1,539,991

19,412

81,897

$ $

53,76'1

130,4 t 0

Notes:
1 lnlerfund transfers are used to reimburse lhe General Fund for providing General Government support.
2 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing Engineering support

$ 1,914,168 $ 1,il1,300

20
Page 252

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Feo Compliance 2021
Drainage Capltal

Fund 448

Section 17.95.030 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a fee to establish a drainage fund. The City Council
declares and finds that it is necessary to adopt and establish the entire City as a zone for the improvement and construction of trunk and

collection drainage facilities, including waterways, pumping plants, levees and other facilities utilized for controlling drainage and storm waters
within the City in order to promote and protect the public health, safety, comfort, convenience and general welfare from uncontrolled drainage
and storm water. (Ord. 620 S 1 , 1 988: Ord. 368 (part), 1 978)

For any residential structure, residential subdivision or parcel map, whether for single-family or multiple-family use, the fee shall be $832 per

dwelling unit. For commercial or industrial buildings, commercial or industrial subdivision and all other land uses not otherwise provided for in
this chapter or improvements appurtenant thereto, the fee shall be $5,055 per acre. When only a portion of a site is being developed, the city
engineer may, by written agreement with the property owner, defer that portion of the fees due on the undeveloped portion of the site. (Ord. 620

s 1,1s88)

DRAINAGE CAPITAL FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

FY 2016117

$ 229,517
3,758

28,118

Basis Fee Amount
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Acre
Per Acre

1,O37
1,037
1,037
6,302
6,302

$
$
$

$
$

Statement of Reverrues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Flscal Years

Description

Revenueg
Fees

lnterest
Grant Reimbursement
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
Other Expenses
AB 1600 Transfsrs Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End of Year

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

FY 2017118 FY 2018t19 FY 2019120 FY 2020121

$ 831,628
9,707

$$ 471,222
21,396
74,204

$ 261,393 $ 841,335 $ 566,823 $ 512,090

$ 488,461
23,629

71,862
10,545

82,407

$ '167,547

68,181

1-@
$ (153,320)

$ 1,064,576

_q___91_ug!_

$-
$ 91 1,255

$ 122,259

79,221

$ 147,271

213,348

87,904

89,494

459,797

78,174

$$

$ 201,480

$ 59,913

$ 160,402

$ 360,619

$ 480,716

$ 220,315

1 77,398

389,425

701,031

$ 537,971

$ (25,881)

$ 1,090,456

$

$

$

$ 220,315

$

$ 220,s15

$ 701,031 $ 1,090,456 $1

$ $ $

$ 701,031 $ 1,090,456 $ 1,064,576

21
Page 253

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Drainage Capital

Flve Year Revenue Test Uslng Flret ln Flrst Out Method
Availabls R€vonuo Cur€nt Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year ($yr Old Funds)

Available R6venue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year ($yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenu€ Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Av.llable

Resull: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Govemment Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

Project
Amount

$ 220.315 $ 701,031 $ 566,823

523,633

512,090

552,486

82,407

512,090

3'16,758

o $

$ 220.315 $ 701,031 $ 1,090,456 $ 1,064,576 $ 911,255

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee

Expenditures Expenditures
$ 67,237 $

7,307
3,654
5,616

32,'t 96
't ,1 60

1 't 5,543
3,015

$ 235,728 $ 96,841

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures
$ 11,827 $ 17,549

Fee

FY 2020-21 Projects
Storm Drain Ponds
Willow Creek Estates Storm Drain Lining
Flood Plain Mapping
NPDES
Weather Station
Annual NPDES Water Quality
Engineering Overhead (interfund hansfer)

General Govemment Overhead (interfund transfe0

FY 2019-20 Projectg
Storm Drain Ponds
Willow Creek Estates Storm Drain Lining
Bidwell @ Bluestone Storm Drain Repair
NPDES
Weather Station
Misc Expense
Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Govemment Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Proiects

$ 67,237
7,307
3,654
5,616

34,566
95,631

1 15,543
3,01s

$ 332,569

POect
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

100o/o

100Yo

10OYo

100o/o

93o/o

1%

'lOOo/o

''000/o

2,370
94,471

2

1

$ 29,376
736,1 06

71 ,100
29,093

5,493
1,026

't86,722

3,240

229,47',!
71,100
29,093

5,493
1,026

186,722

3,240

40%
31o/o

1OOY'

100%
100%
't00Yo

10lo/o

1O0o/o

506,635

$ 537,971 $ 524,184

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 7,163

10,185
156,862

3,187
$ 177,398 323,432

$ 1,062,155

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
Fee

Storm Drain Ponds
Willow Creek Estates Storm Drain Lining
Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Govemment Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2017-18 Proiects

$ 330,596
10,185

1 56,862
3,'187

$ 500,830

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 2,753

14,805
4,380

94,563
232,771

$ 360,620

Expenditures
$ 323,432

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
*-

2%
't00%
'1000h

'looa/o

Flood Plain Mapping
Storm Drain Ponds
Annual Street Projects
Weather Station
Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Govemment Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 2,753
'14,805

4,380
94,563

232,771
11,348

10oo/o

lOOo/o

100%
1O0Yo

100o/o

10OYo

$$ 360,620

22
Page 254

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



FY 2016-17 Proiocts

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 15,616
2't,384

5,750
33,220
84,214
7,461

$ 167,646 117,453

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$
33,835

3,040
80,578

Stormwater Quality Management (interfund transfer)

Flood Plain Mapping

Storm Drain Ponds
Annual Street Projects
Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Govemment Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 15,616

55,2'19

8,790
113,798

84,214
7,461

lOOo/o

39%
65To

29o/o

lOOo/o

'l0Oo/"

$ 28s,099

Notes:
1 lntsrfund transfers are used to rcimbuFe the General Fund tor provldlng Goneral Gov€rnm€nt support.
2 lnterfund tEnsfers are used to reimbuBe the General Fund for providing Engineering support

23
Page 255

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2021
Light Rall lmpact Fee

Fund 451

Section 10.50.M0 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Liqht Rail Transportation Service Fee. The
purpose of this fee is to implement the City General Plan, Urban Development Policy No. 17.20, which requires that the City develop a
long range service system to service Folsom residents and businesses. As required by the General Plan, a long range transit plan has
been developed entitled "City of Folsom Light Rail Transit lmplementation Study, Final Report, dated February 1993" (hereafter the
"transit stud/), and includes an analysis of the feasibility and financing of: (1) Continued city-operated intra-community bus service; (2)
Continued city-operated commuter bus service to downtown Sacramento and/or service to the nearest RT Meho Rail Station; and (3)
Extending RT Metro service to Folsom and the preservation of future rights-of-way.

The fee established by chapter 10.50.01 0 is in addition to any other fees or charges or taxes, required by law or city code as a condition
of development, including, but not limited to, the residential construction tax levied by Chapter 17.90, drainage fees levied by Chapter
17.95, major road fees levied by Chapter 12.04, capital improvement new construction fees levied by Chapter 17 .92 and is necessary in
order to assure compliance with the applicable general plan requirements that new development bear the cost for light rail transportation
service infrastructure which is needed to serve such development.

LIGHT RAIL IMPACT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

Basis Fee Amount
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

$
$
$
$
$

724
498
498

0.230
0.09s

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Descriptlon

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Yearc

FY 2016t17 FY 2017118 FY 20{8/19 FY 2019t20 FY 202012',1

Revenues
Fees
lnterest

Other Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

Other Expenses
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$ 143,899
5,548

$ 442,305
9,897

$ 270,286
19,781

$ 250,624
21,800

46,722
12,872

$

$ 149,447 $ 452,203 $ 290,067 $ 272,425 $ 59,594

$$ 81,999

4,685

72,937

7,054

143,966

'1o,745

67,804

3,658

127,315

78,176

$$$

$ 86,683

$ 62,764

$ 324,929

$ 79,991

$ 372,212

$ 387,693

$ 154,712

$ 135,355

$ 759,905

$ 71,462

$ 200,963

$ 895,260

$ 205,491

$ (145,8s7)

$ 1,096,223

$ 387,693 $ 759,905 $ 895,260 $ 1,096,223 $ 950,326

$ $ $ $ $

$ 387,693 $ 759,905 $ 895,260 $ 1,096,223 $ 950,326

24
Page 256

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Light Rail lmpact Fee

Flve Year Revenue Test Urlng Flrst ln Flrst Out Method
Available Revenue Curent Year $ 149,447 $ 452,203 $ 290,067

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (z-yr Old Funds) 100,106 149,447 452,203

Available Rsvenue Prior Fiscal Ysar ($yr Old Funds) 138,140 100,106 149,447

Availabls Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (+yr old Funds) - 58,149 3,543

Availabls Rsvenue Prior Fiscal Ysar ($yr old Funds)

Availabls Revonuo Grsatsr than Fivs Prior Fiscal Years

s 387,693 $ 759,905 $ 895,260 $ 1,096,223 $ 950,326

Result: Five Year Revenue tesl met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Gapital lmprovement Proiects

$ 272,425

290,067

452,203

81,528

59,594

272,425

290,067

328,240

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$ 15,538 $
88,827
22,950
78,176

48,172

$ 205,491 $ 48,172

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

$ 30,000
37,804

3,658

Expenditures
$

53,406

$ 71,462 $ 53,406

Non-lmpact
Fee

Fee
FY 2020-21 Projects

Safety Bumps
Light Rail Project
Historic Folsom Station L&L

Administrative and Engineering Overhead

FY 2019-20 Proiects
SP-JPA Admin
Landscaping
Administrative and Engineering Overhead

$ 15,538
88,827
71,122
78,176

$ 253,663

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 30,000
9'1,209

3,658
$ 124,867

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

1OjYo
100o/o

32o/o

100o/o

1O0o/o

41o/o

10oo/o

FY 2018-19 Projects

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 27,500

38,908
30,930
46,628
10,745

Expenditures

$-
42,128

$ 81,999 $ 42,128

SP-JPA Admin
Landscaping
Historic District Parking Signs
Concrete repairs in Historic District Plaza

Administrative and Engineering Overhead

FY 2017-18 Proiects

$ 27,500
93,873
30,930
46,628
10,745

100o/o

41o/o

1O0To

100o/o

100Yo

Expenditures
$

54,965

$ 154,712 $ 54,965

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 27,500

45,437

7,054

Non-lmpact
Fee

53,804

$ 79,991 $ s3,804

Non-lmpact
Fee

$ 209,677

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees Expenditures
$SP-JPA Admin

Landscaping
Administrative and Engineering Overhead

$ 27,500
99,241
7,054

10004

46lo
1O0o/o

FY 2016-17 Proiects

$ 133,795

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 27,500

25,276
25,196
4,027

SP-JPA Admin
Landscaping
Lighting Retrofit
Administrative and Engineering Overhead

$ 27,500
67,404
25,196

4,O27

100o/o

37o/o

100o/o

100o/o

$ 124,127

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the Gen€ral Fund for providing General Government and Engineering support.

25
Page 257

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2021
General Park Equipment Capital

Fund 452

Section4.l0.0l0oftheFolsomMunicipal CodeestablishestheprovisionforcollectionofaParklmprovementimpactfee. Thefeeestablished
by this chapter is in addition to any other fees or charges, or taxes, required by law or city code as a condition of development, including, but not
limited to, the residential construction tax levied by Chapter 17.90, capital improvement-new construction service charge levied by Chapter
17 .92, drainage fees levied by Chapter 17.95, Quimby Act fees levied by Chapter 16.32 and major road fees levied by Chapter 12.04. The fee
established by this chapter is to be collected for park and recreation facilities for which an account shall be established and funds appropriated,
and for which a proposed construction schedule shall be adopted. The fee imposed by this chapter is necessary in order to assure compliance
with the applicable general plan requirements that new development bear the cost for park and recreation infrastructure which is needed to
serye such development.

GENERAL PARK EQUIPMENT CAPITAL FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category Basis FeeAmount
Residential
Single Family
Single Family- HD
Multi-Family - LD
Multi-Family
Multi-Family- HD
Mobile Dwellings
Non-Residential
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

Statement of Revenues Expenditurcs and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Descrlption FY 2016117 FY 2017t1E FY 2018/19 FY 2019t20 FY 2020n1

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

94
94
94
94
94
44

0.018
0.018

$
$

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
Other Expenses
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$ 16,000 $ 6,378 $ 80,935 $

$ $18,895
621

62,546
1,160

73,302
2,458

70,988
2,498

83,624
2,344

$ $ $

$ 19,516 $ 63,707 $ 75,760 $ 73,486 $ 85,969

9,121

149

3,646

137

$

$ 16,000

$ 3,516

$ 31,034

6,378

57,329

34,550

80,935

(5,175)

91,879

9,270

64,216

86,704

3,783

82,186

150,919

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$ 34,550 $ 91,879 $ 86,704 $ 150,919 $ 233.1 05

$ $ $ $ $

$ 34.550 $ 91,879 $ 86,704 $ 150,919 $ 233,105

26
Page 258

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



General Park Equipment

Flve Ye.r Revenue Test Uelng Flrst ln Flrst Out Method
Availabls Rsvsnue Currsnt Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Ysar (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revonue Prior Fiscal Yoar (5-yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater lhan Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

$ $ $19,516

10,384

4,650

63,707

19,516

8,656

73302
13,402

73,486

75,760

1,673

85,969

73,486

73,650

$$

Result: Five Year Revonus test met in accordance with Govemment Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2020-21 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 34,550 $ 91,879 $

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

86,704 $ 150,919 $ 233,105

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee

Expenditures Expenditures
Fee

Park Maintenance Equipment (interfund transfer)
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019-20 Projects

$

$ 3,783

Project
Amount

Expended

100o/o

100%

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

$ 3,783 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

3,646
137

$ $3,646
137

Park Maintenance Equipment (interfund transfer)
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Proiects

$

$ 9,270

Project
Amount

Expended

100o/o

100o/o

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

$ 9,270 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

9,121
149

9,121
't49

$ $

$ 80,935 'looo/o $ 80,935 $

$ 80,e35 $

2
Park Maintenance Equipment (interfund transfer)
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2017-18 Projects
P

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

0%

$ 80,935

Project
Amount

Expended
Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 6,378

$ 6,378

10oo/o

iYo

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

$ 6,378 $
2

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 6,378 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 16,000

Non-lmpact

Expenditures

$ 2,595

Fee

FY 2016-17 Projects
Park Maintenance Equipment (interfund transfer)
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 18,595 86%

$ 18,595

Notes:
1 lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providlng General Government support.
2 lnterfund transf€rs are used to reimburse the General Fund where the oquipmont costs were expensed.

jYo

$ 16,000 $ z,sgs

27
Page 259

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2021
Water lmpact Fund

Fund 456

Section 13.30.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Water lmpact Fee. On October 31, 1988, the
Folsom City Council approved and adopted its General Plan (the "General Plan") identifying proposed growth within the city limits and further
identifying the impacts of such groMh upon public facilities within the city including the impacts on water supply and the water supply system.
The City of Folsom water master plan dated December 1998 (Water Plan) was adopted by the City Council on May 25, 1999 by Resolution
No. 6028. The water plan analped the City's present and projected water supply and facilities demands, and the costs of water conservation
efforts within developed areas of the City.

Section 13.30.030 established a water impact fee which is imposed on the construction of all new commercial, industrial and residential
buildings that are to be served with water supplies owned and treated by the City. This fee shall be imposed on all new construction within the
City, unless such property is otherwise exempt as provided for in Section 13.30.070 of this chapter. The fee established by this chapter is in
addition to any other fees or charges or taxes that are required by law or City code as a condition of development. (Ord. 91 2 S 1 (part), 1999).

WATER IMPACT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Gategory Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Commercial
lndustrial / Office

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Acre
Per Acre

$ 512,641
6,699

$
$
$
$

985
530

1,326
1,326

Statement of Revenues Expenditurcs and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Yearc

Description Fy 2016t17 FY 2017t18 FY 2018119 FY 20',t9120 FY 2020n1

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

Other Expenses
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End of Year

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$ 179,384
29,481
7,500

$ 330,840
94,239

$ 272,941
34,955

$ 67,733
26,224

454,001
$ 216,364 $ 519,340 $ 425,079 $ 307,896 $ 547,959

$ 34,184
103,165

$ 36,004
't22,387

$ 175,872
103,503

$ 158,198
104,226

$ 184,902
47,139

$ 137,349

$ 79,015

$ 1,826,306

$ 1s8,391

$ 360,949

$ 1,905,321

$ 279,375

$ 14s,704

$ 2,266,270

$ 262,424

$ 45,472

$ 2,411,974

$ 232,041

$ 3'15,918

$ 2,457,446

$ 1,905,321 $ 2,266,270 $ 2,411,974 $ 2,457,M6 $ 2,773,364

$ 1,283,000 $ $ $ $

$ 622,321 $ 2,266,270 $ 2,411,974 $ 2,457,446 _$ 2J?3,364_

28
Page 260

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Water lmpacl Fund

Five Year Revenue Test Uslng First ln FiFt Out Method
Available Revenue CunentYear $ 216,364 $ 519,340 $ 330,840

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yrold Funds) 128,766 216,364 519,340

Availabls Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) 288,035 128,766 216,364

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds) 335,393 288,035 128,766

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs Old Funds) 287,'140 335,393 288,035

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years t 649,623 778,372 928,629

$ 307,896

425,075

51 9,340

216,364

128,766

860,001

547,959

307,896

425,075

51 9,340

216,364

756,726

$

$ 1,905,321

1,283,000

$ 2,266,270 $ 2,411,974 $ 2,457 ,446 $ 2,773,364

Assigned Fund Balance

Total AYailabls Revenue $ 622,321 $ 2,266,270 $ 2,411,974 $ 2,457,446 $ 2,773,364

Notes:
TheWatorlmpactFeeFundroportsfundsbeingheldbeyondthefive-yearsasdsscribedbyABl600. Petlhe2021 Capital lmprovementPlanfundsarersssNedfortheEmpire

customers to reduce water use ($90,000).

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2020-21 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 142,s06

17,500
24,896
40,653

6,486

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
t-GSWC lnter-Tie Booster

Regional Water Authority
Recycled Water
Dry Year and Water Conservation (interfund transfer)
General Government Overhead (interfund transfeO

FY 2019-20 Projects

$ 142,506
17,500
24,896
40,653

6,486

100%
1O0o/o

lOOo/"

'1000/0

100Yo

$ 232,041

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 232,041 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 8,456GSWC lnter-Tie Booster

Dry Year and Water Conservation (interfund transfer)
General Govemment Overhead (int€rfund transfeO

FY 2018-19 Proiects

$ 166,654
100,000

4,226

95%
100o/o

100%

$ 158,198
100,000

4,226
$ 262,424 $ 8,456

Non-lmpact
Fee

$ 270,880

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees Expenditures
$ 40,725GSWC lnter-Tie Booster

Dry Year and Water Conservation (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2017-18 Proiects

$ 208,141

100,000

3,503
$ 311,644

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

EOYo

1O0o/o

100o/o

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 167,416

100,000

3,503
$ 270,919 $ 40,725

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

2

Fee
Expenditures
$GSWC lnter-Tie Booster

Regional Climate change analysis
Dry Year and Water Conservation (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 30,004
6,000

1 18,049

1lOYo

lOOo/o

100o/o

$ 30,004
6,000

1 18,000 49 2

1

$ 154,053 $ 154,004 $ 49

29
Page 261

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



FY 2016-17 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures
$ 34,184 $ -GSWC lnter-Tie Booster

Dry Year and Water Conservation (interfund hansfer)
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 34,184

114,804
3,165

100o/o

87o/o

1O0o/o

100,000

3,165
14,804 2

$ 1s2,153 $ 137,349 $ 14,804

Notes:
I lnterfund lransfers are used to rsimburse the General Fund for providing Genoral Government support.
2 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the Water Operating Fund. The Water Operating Fund captured the expenses for water conservation

30
Page 262

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2021
Water Connection Fund

Fund 521

Section 13.24.060 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Water Connection Fee. Water connection
charge was established to provide for the connection of water pipes to the city water system. (Ord 427, 198'l)

WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FEE SCHEDULE

Use Gateqory
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential

South Lexington Hills (1)

Mobile Dwellings

Commercial/lndustrial
3/4" meter
1" meter
1 'll2" meler
2" meter
3" meter
4" meter
6" meter
8" meter
10" meter

Basis Fee Amount
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

$
$
$
$

3,361
2,185
2,082
2,185

$ s,sss
$ 8,360
$ 16,726
$ 26,766
$ 53,il7
$ 83,69s
$ 167,449
$ 268,010
$ 385,608

Description

Statement of Reven,tes Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Yearc

FY 2016t17 FY 2017118 FY 2018119 FY 20',t9120 FY 2020121

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB ',l600 Expenditures

Other Expenses

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$ 691,148
26,458
30,300

$ 1,403,343
11,118

$ 892,951
188,406

$ 431,405
175,569

$ 201,146
(3,153)

$ 747,906 $ 1,414,462 $ 1,081,356 $ 0O0,gZ+ $ 197,993

$$ 47,608

15,995

$ 239,219 $

35,158

88,325

9,200

487,545

10,792

$ 1,499,707

9,969
$ 63,603

$ 684,303

$ 2,685,090

$ 274,377

$ 1,140,084

$ 3,369,394

$ 97,525

$ 983,832

$ 4,509,478

$ 498,337

$ 108,636

$ 5,493,310

$ 1,509,676

$ (1,311,683)

$ 5,601,946

$ 3,369,394 $ 4,509,478 $ 5,493,310 $ 5,601,946 $ 4.290,264

$ $ $ $ $

$ 3,369,394 $ 4,509,478 $ 5,493,310 $ 5,601,946 $ 4,290,264

31
Page 263

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Water Connection Capital lmprovement Fund

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior FiscalYear (s-yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Flve Year Revenue Test Using Flrst ln Flrst Out Method
$ 747,906

670,253

1,017 ,329

933,906

1,414,462

747,906

670,253

1,017 ,329
659,528

$$ 1,081,356

1,414,462

747,906

670,253

1,017 ,329

562,004

606,974

1,081,356

1,414,462

747,906

670,253

1,080,995

1 97,993

606,974

1,081,356

1,414,462

747,906

24'l,573

$ s

$ 3,369,394 $ 4,509,478 $ 5,493,310 $ 5,601 ,946 $ 4,290,264

Notes:
Tho Watsr Connection Foe Fund reports funds being hold beyond the five-years as d€scribed by A81600. Pet lne 2022 Capital lmprovemsnt Plan funds are reserved for the

Water Treatment Planl Pre-Treatmenl System lmprovement project. The Water connection Fund will be utilized for an additional $3.2 million for this proiect.

Capital lmprovement Projec'ts

FY 2020-21 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 25,314

1.474.393

9,969

$ 1,509,676 $ 127,307

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 126,509

361,036

10,792

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$

$ 498,337 $ 461,103

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 20,747

8,568

59,010

9,200

$ 97,525 $ 60,087

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 6,652

2,592
224,334

5,640

35,158

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 84,076

43,231
Water Treatment Plant Polymer Reliability & Redundancy

Water Treatment Plant PreTreatment System lmp

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 20'19-20 Proiects

$ 109,390

1,517,623

9,969

23Yo

97o/o

lOOo/o

$ 1,636,983

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
Water Treatment Plant Polymer Reliability & Redundancy

Water Treatment Plant Pre.Treatment System lmp

General Government Overhead (interfund hansfer)

FY 2018-19 Proiects
WaterT,
Water Treatment Plant Lime System Upgrades
Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System lmp

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 553,307
395,342

10,792

230h

91%

100%

426,798
34,306

$ 9s9,441

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
$ 43,U9

25,820
78,743

9,200

$ 157,612

470h

33Yo

75o/o

1000/o

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 23J02

17,252
19,732

FY 2017-18 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
Ground Water lnvestigation and Supply Grant

Urban Water Management Program

Water Treatment Plant Grading and Pump Station Reuse

Water Treatment Plant Actifl o/Polymer Capacity

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 6,652

2,592
1,643,646

11,701

35,1 58

10Oo/o

100vo

14o/o

48o/o

100%

1 ,419,31 1

6,060

$ 1,699,749 $ 274,377 $ 1,425,372

32
Page 264

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



FY 2016-17 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended
$ 11,427.95

30,233

12,946

15,995

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
Ground Water lnvestigation and Supply Grant
La Collina Dal Lago Tank
Urban Water Management Program

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

39%

10Qo/o

100o/o

100o/o

$ 4,428.75
30,233

12,946

15,995

$ 6,999.20

$ 63,603 $ 6,999$ 70,602

Notes:
I 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

33
Page 265

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2021
Sewer Capital

Fund 531

Section 1 3.25.01 0 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a sewer connection charge. This charge shall
be collected prior to the issuance of building permits for commercial/industrial development and dwelling units as established by resolution
of the city council. The purpose of the fee is to establish a fund for financing equipment and capital improvement projects required to
maintain municipal services at adequate levels as service requirements increase with the construction of commercial/industrial
developments and dwelling units.

SEWER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential

South Lexington Hills 
(1)

Mobile Dwellings

Gommercial/lndustrial
3/4" inch
1" inch
2" inch
3" inch
4" inch
6" inch
8" inch
10" inch
12" inch

Basis Fee Amount
Per Unit
Per Unit

Per Unit
Per Unit

$
$

$
$

073
839

835
949

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,073
1,073
2,149
3,438
6,446

10,744
21,487
34,379
49,419

Description

Statement ofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Yearc

FY 2016117 FY 2017n4 FY 20't8/19 FY 2019t20 FY 2020t21

Revenues
Fees
lnterest

Other Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB '1600 Expenditures

Other Expenses
AB 1 600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$ 100,642
'1,983

g 275,694 $
9,133

114,800
14,996

56,832
15,655

39,835
13,343

$ $

$ 102,625 I 284,827 $ 129,796 $ 72,487 $ 53,178

$$ 164,751

1,265

6,457

36s

$$ $

327 1,002 949

$

$

$

166,016

(63,391)

12.061

$ 6,822 $

$ 278,005 $

$ (51,330) $

$ 1,002

$ 71,485

$ 356,144

$ 949

$ 52,229

$ 427,628

327

129,469

226,675

$ (s1,330) $ 226,675 $ 356,144 $ 427,628 $ 479,857

$ $ $ $ $

$ (51,330) $ 226,67s $ 356,144 $ 427,628 $ 479,857

34
Page 266

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Sewer Capital

Available Revenue Current Year

Availabls Revenue Prlor Fiscal Year (z-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenus Prior Fiscal Ysar ($yr Old Funds)

Available Rsvenuo Prior Fiscal Yoar (+yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year ($yrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Flve Year Revenue Test Using First ln Flrst Out Method
(51,330) $ 226,675 $ 129,796

226,348

72,487

129,796

225,345

53,178

72,487

129,796

224,356

$

$ (51,330) $ 226,675 $ 356,144 $ 427,628 $ 479,857

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Gapital lmprovement Projects

Project
Amount

FY 2020.21 Proiects Expended

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$e4e$

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Engineering and Gen Government overhead $ 949

FY 20'|9-20 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

1Q9o/o

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$ 1,002 $Engineering and Gen Governmentoverhead $ 1,002

Project
Amount

FY 2018-19 Proiects Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

100o/o

Engineering and Gen Government overhead $ 327

Project
Amount

FY 2017-18 Projects Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

100% $ 327

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
System Evaluation / Capacity
Engineering and Gen Government overhead

FY 2016-17 Proiects

$ 6,457

365

100o/o $
100%

6,457

36s
$

System Evaluation / Capacity
Engineering and Gen Government overhead

$ 6,822

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 6,822

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 164,751

't,265

$

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 164,751
't,265

$ 166,016

100o/o

lOOo/o

$

$ 166,016 $

Notes:
I 

lnlsrfund transfers are used to reimburse the Gsnsral Fund for provlding Gsneral Govsrnmont and Enginsering support.

35
Page 267

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpacl Fee Compliance 2021
Facilities Augmentation Gritical

Fund 536

Section 3.40.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a facilities augmentation fee for the Folsom
south area facilities plan. The fee is intended to augment existing City fees and thereby provide the necessary means for financing the
construction of the facilities identified in the Folsom south area facilities plan.

FACILITIES AUGMENTATION CRITICAL FEE SCHEDULE

This fee is based on location and lot size. For fees related to development of property in this area please contact the City.

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 2016117 FY 2017118 FY 2018115 FY 2019120 FY 2020121

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

Other Expenses

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$$$

$$

$ $
3,616 2,306 320 691

$ 3,616 $ 2,306 $ 320 $ 691 $ 438

$ 199,284 $ 2,629 $

637 590 1,987

438

$

$ 3,616

$ 238,764

199,921

(197,615)

242,380

$ 3,219 $

$ (2,8ss) $

$ 44,766 $

144
ffi
$ 2s4

$ 40,571

_$_8991_

$-

_$__19!91_

$

$

$

1,987

(1,2e6)

41,867

$ 242,380 $ 44,766 $ 41,867 $ 40,571

$ 236,985 $ $ $

$ 5,3e5 $ 44,766 $ 41,867 _g__lg!zr_

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Rovonuo Available

Assigned Fund Balance

Total Available Revenue

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$ 3,616

3,490

5,718

4,801

1,299

22g,456 
1

$ 2,306

3,616

3,490

5,718

4,801

24,835

$

$ 242,380

236,985

320

2,306

3,616

3,490

5,718

26,417

$ 691

320

2,306

3,616

3,490

30,148

$ 144

691

320

2,306

3,616

33,787

$ 40,864$ 44,766 $ 41,867 $ 40,571

$ 5,395$44,766$41,867$40,571$40,864

Notes:
1 The Facilities Augmentation Crititcal Fund reports funds being held beyond tho five-years as described by A81600. The Water Operaling staff is currently evaluating the

Water Treatment Plant Lime System Upgrade project for possilbe revisons to the scope of the project. The change will continue to ulilize Facilities Augmenlation impact
fees which is estimated at $40,000

36
Page 268

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Facilities Augmentation Critical
Gapital lmprovement Projects

FY 2020-21 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 144

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$_2General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019-20 Proiects

$

$ 144

Project
Amount

Expended

100%

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$144$

144

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018.19
Water Treatment Lime System Upgrades

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2017-18 Projects
Water Treatment Plant Grading and Pump Station Reuse

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 20'16-17 Proiects

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 1,987

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$-$ 1,987

$ 1,987

Project
Amount

Expended

100o/.

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 1,987 $

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 23,191

$ 3,219 $ 23,191

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 199,284

637

$ 199,921 $ 1,444,362

$ 25,820

$ 26,410

Project
Amount

Expended
$ 1,643,646

637

$ 1,044,283

Project
Amount

Expended

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 2,629

590s90

1Oo/o

lOOo/o
2

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 1.444.36212o/o

100o/o

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 5,605Water Treatment Plant Mechanical Dewatering

General Government overhead (interfund hansfer)

$ 5,605.00

Notes:
2 

lnlerfund lransfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

$ 5,605.00 o%

Oo/o

$

$ $ 5,605

37
Page 269

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2021
Facilities Augmentation General

Fund 537

Section 3.40.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a facilities augmentation fee for the Folsom south
area facilities plan. The fee is intended to augment existing City fees and thereby provide the necessary means for financing the construction
of the facilities identified in the Folsom south area facilities plan.

FACILITIES AUGMENTATION GENERAL FEE SCHEDULE

This fee is based on location and lot size. For fees related to development of property in this area please contact the City

Statementof Revenues Expenditures and Changes ln Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Descrlption FY 2016117 FY 2017t18 FY 2018t19 FY 2019t20 FY 2020121

Revenues
Fees

lnterest

Other Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
Other Expenses
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

Total Revenu6 Availablo

Assigned Fund Balance

$ $ $
7,024 5,670 5,170 932

$ 7,024 $ 5,670 $ S,t ZO $e32$ 864

$ 3,040 $

$ 7

857
$

42,774

1,238 139 112 4 970

$ 323,4-32 $ 17,023 $

1

$

$

3,040

3,984

$ 44,012

$ (38,342)

$ 324,s71 $

$ (31e,402) $

18,135 $

(17,203) $

4,970

(4,106)

93,294$ 464,257 $ 468,241 $ 429,898 $ 110,497 $

$ 468.241 $ 429,898 $ 110.497 $ 93,294 $ 89,188

$ 720,770

-9 en,s2sL

$ $ $ $

$ 429,898 $ 110,497 $ 93,294 $ 89,188

Five Year Revenue Test Uslng Flrst ln Flrst Out Method
Available Revenue Cunent Year $ 7,024 $ 5,670 $ 5,170

Available Rsvonue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds) 6,233 7,024 5,670

Availabls Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (&yr Old Funds) 6,059 6,233 7,024

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (+yr Old Funds) 5,299 6,059 6,233

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (Syrs and beyond) 1,433 5,299 6,059

AvailableRevenuecreaterlhanFivePriorFiscalYears 442,1gg 
1 399,613 80,341

$ 932

5,170

5,670

7,024

6,059

68,439

864

932

5,170

5,670

7,024

69,528

$

$ 468,241 $ 429,898 $ 110,497 $ 93,294 $ 89,188

720,770

$ (252,s29) $ 429,898 $ 110,497 $ 93,294 $ 89,188

Notes:
1 TheFacilitiesAugm€ntationGeneralFundreportsfundsbeingheldbsyondthefive-yearsasdescribedbyABl600. TheStormDrainPondsprojectisinprocess. PertheFY22

Capital lmprovement Plan the estimated cost will be $100,000 and will reduce the potential for flooding in the area.

38

Page 270

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Facilities Augmentation General
Gapital lmprovement Projects

FY 2020-2'l Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$ 4,970 $General Government Overhead (interfund transfer) $ 4,970

$ 4,970

FY 2019-20 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

2
1O0o/.

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 4,970 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 17,023

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 12,353

112

$ 18,135 $ 12,353

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 323,432

1,139

$ 324,571

Non-lmpact
Fee

$ 7.164

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 42,774

1,238

$ 44,012 $ 1,600,872

Expenditures

$ 7,164

Storm Drain Ponds

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Proiects

$ 29,376

112

$ 30,488

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

58Yo

1000/
2

Storm Drain Ponds

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)
$ 330,596

1 ,139

$ 331,735

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 1,600,872

98Yo

lO0Vo

FY 2017-18 Prolects
Water Treatment Plant Grading and Pump Station Reuse

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)
$ '1,643,646

1,238

$ 1,644,884

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 3,040

Non-lmpacl
Fee

Expenditures
$ 5,750

3o/o

1O0Yo

FY 20'16-'17 Proiects
Storm Drain Ponds $ 8,790

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)
$ 8,790

Notes:
2 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Govemment support.

35Yo

0o/o

$ 3,040 $ 5,750

39

Page 271

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2021
Solid Waste Gapital lmprovement Fund

Fund 541

Section 3.20.045 of the Folsom Municipal Code established a capital improvement service charge which shall be collected prior to the
issuance of building permits for all residential development and upon application to the finance department for all commercial/industrial
development as established by resolution of the City Council. The purpose of the fee is to establish a fund for financing equipment and capital
improvement purchases required to maintain municipal services at adequate levels as service requirements increase with the construction of
commercial/industrial developments and dwelling units.

SOLID WASTE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwdlings

Commercial/lndustrial
2 yard dumpster
3 yard dumpster
4 yard dumpster
6 yard dumpster
10 yard roll-off
20 yard roll-off
30 yard roll-off
40 yard roll-off

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

$
$
$

363
166
't66

4,064
4,092
4,149
4,319

13,304
13,661
14,211
14,519

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Chang* in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2016t17 FY 2017118 FY 2018/t9 FY 2019t20 FY 2020t21

Revenues
Fees
lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
Other Expenses
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$ 77,363
175

$ $ $ $219,702
2,463

122,216
6,813

52,732
8,435

74,494
3,749

$ 77,538 $ 222,164 $ 129,029 $ 61,167 $ 78,243

$ 63,575 $ $$$

3,001 2,278

18,250

2,727

25,010

392

27,'.128

345,234
$

$

$

$

$

$

66,576

10,962

10,929

2,278

219,886

2'.t,891

20,977

108,0s2

241,777

25,402

35,765

349,830

372,362

(294,119)

385,595

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$ 21,891 $ 24',t,777 $ s+g,AsO $ 38s,595 $ 91 ,476

$ $ $ $ $

91.476$ 21.891 $ 241,777 $ 349,830 $ 385,595 $

40
Page 272

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Solid Waste Capital lmprovement Fund

Available Revsnue Currsnt Yoar

Available Revenue Pdor Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Availablo Revenue Prior FiscalYear ($yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Rovenue Prior Fiscal Year (Syrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior FiscalYears

Flve Year Revenus Test Uslng First ln FlFt Out Method
$ 21,891 $ 222,U4 $ 129,029

- 19,613 220.801

$ 61,1 67

129,025

195,399

78,243

13,233

$

$ 21,8s1 $ 241,s57 $ 349,830 $ 385,595 $ 91,476

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2020-21 Proiects

Project
Amounl

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
Fee

Garbage Containers

Solid Waste Capital Equipment (interfund transfer)
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019.20 ProJects

$ 27,128
344,',\27

1 107

$ 372,362

Project
Amount

Expended

100o/o

100o/o

IOOTo

27,128
u4,127

$ $
2

1
107

$ 372,362 $

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

$ 25,010
Expenditures

$Garbage Containers
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Projects

$ 25,010

392
$ 25,402

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 25,402 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

100o/o

100o/o 392

Garbage Containers
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 18,250

2,727

100o/o

100% 727
$ 18,2s0 $

2

$ 20,977

FY 2017-18 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $ 2,278

FY 2016-'17 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 20,977 $

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

100Yo $ z,zza $

Garbage Containers
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 63,675

3,001

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 63,675

3,001

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$IOOTo

lOOo/o

$ 66,676 $ 66,676 $

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

2 
lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the Solid Weste Operating Fund. The Solid Wasle Operating Fund captured the expenses for the purchase.

41
Page 273

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Clty of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gomplian ce 2021
Folsom Plan Area Highway 50 lmprovements

Fund tl43

Section 3.'120.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Highway 50 lmprovement Fee. The purpose
of this fee is to fund certain improvements to Highway 50 that serve the Folsom plan area such as, for example: Highway 50 segments
from Sunrise to Hazel; Hazel to Folsom Boulevard, Folsom Boulevard to Scott Road, and the Hazel interchange modifications, as
described in the PFFP and the nexus study, and including but not limited to those improvements identified in the memorandum of
understanding dated December 17,2014, entered into between the City and Caltrans.

FOLSOM PLAN AREA HIGHWAY 50 IMPROVEMENT FEE

Use Category Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

1,398
1,272
1,145
1,018

954
890
1.71
1.43
2.03
2.03
1.45

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Sfafement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Yearc

Description FY 2016t17 Ff 2017118 FY 20t8/19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020121

Revenues
Fees

lnterest

Other Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
Other Expenses
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$ $ 23,256
26

$ 313,824
(29,124)

$ 379,114
11,965

$ 1,031,102
49,022

$$$

$

$

$

$

$ 23,282 $ 284,700 $ 391,078 $ 1,080,124

$

38
$

$

$

$ 23,282

$

$ 284,700

$ 23,282

$38

$ 391,040

$ 307,982

$

$ 1,080,124

$ 699,022

$ $ 23.282 $ 307,982 $ 699,022 $ 1.779,146

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ 23.282 $ 307,982 $ 699,022 $ 1,779,146

42
Page 274

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



FPA Highway 50 lmprovements

Available Rsvenue Curront Year

Available Revenu€ Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (&yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (+yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year ($yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater lhan Five Prior FiscalYears

Total Revenue Available

Fivs Year Revenue Test Using First ln Flrst Out Method
23,282 $ 284,700

23,282

391,078

284,700

23,2M

1,080,124

391,078

284,700

23,244

$$

s $ 23,282 $ 307,982 $ 699,022 $ 1,779,146

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Gapital lmprovement Projects

FY 2O2O-21 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
Fee

$ 0o/o

OYo

ooa

$ $

$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

$

FY 2019-20 Proiects
General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $ 38 IOOYo $ 38

Oo/o

o%
$ 38

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 38$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ $

Non-lmpact
Fee

ExpendituresFY 2018-19 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

$ OYo

Oo/o

0%

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$

$

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

FY 2017-'18 Proiects
$

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

Oo/o

0%
Oo/o

$ $ $

43
Page 275

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gomplianee 2021
Folsom Plan Area Highway 50 lnterchange Fee

Fund 444

Section 3.120.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Highway 50 lnterchange Fee. The
purpose of this fee is to fund a fair share contribution toward certain Highway 50 interchanges that serve the Folsom plan area, such
as, for example, the Empire Ranch Road interchange, the Oak Avenue parkway interchange, the ScotVBidwell interchange
modifications, the Prairie City Road interchange modifications, and the Rowberry Drive Overcrossing, as described in the PFFP and
the nexus study.

FOLSOM PLAN AREA HIGHWAY 50 INTERCHANGE FEE

Use Cateqory Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

$ 640,268 $
(12,566)

FY 2020121

$ 2,096,084
74,372

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,845
2,586
2,326
2,067
1,940
'1,811

3.49
2.93
4.11
4.11
3.01

768,668
25,483

Description

Sfatemenf of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2016117 FY 2017118 FY 2018/19 FY 2019120

$ $ 47,286
52

Revenues
Fees
lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
Other Expenses
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$$$

$

$

$ 47,338 $ 627,702 $ 794,151 $ 2,170,456

$

77
$

$

$

$

$

$

47,338

$

$ 627,702

$ 47,338

$77

$ 794,074

$ 675,041

$

$ 2,170,456

$ 1,469,11s

$ $ 47,338 $ 675,041 $ 1,469,11s $ 3,639,571

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ 47,338 $ 67s,041 $ 1.469,115 $ 3,639,571

44
Page 276

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



FPA Highway 50 lnterchange

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln Firct Out Method
Available Rsv€nue Current Year

Available Revenus Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (5-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2020-21 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 47,338 $ 675,041 $ 1,469,115 $ 3,639,571

$ 47,338 $ 627,703

47,338

794,151

627,703

47,261

2,170,456

794,151

627,703

47,261

$$

$

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$-$$ 0%
0%
0o/o

General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $ 77

$

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$tt$

$ $

FY 2019-20 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

lOOo/o

o%
o%

$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 77$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$-

77

FY 2018-19 Projects
$ Oo/o

o%
0o/o

$

$ $ $

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$$-
FY 2017-18 Proiec'ts

$

$

Notes:
I 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

0o/o

Oo/o

Oo/o

$ $

45
Page 277

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Complian ce 202'l
Folsom Plan Area Transit lmpact

Fund tl49

Section 3.120.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Transit Fee. The purpose of this fee is to
fund public transit improvements in the Folsom plan area, including, but not limited to, improvements to the transit corridor, transit
parking, transit stops, and a share ofthe public transit vehicles, as described in the PFFP and the nexus study.

FOLSOM PLAN AREA TRANSIT FEE

Use Gategory Basis Fee Amount
ffiSingle Family Residential

Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Densig
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Communig Commercial
Regional Commercial

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.

1,313
1,182
1,051

984
920
1.76
1.48
2.09
2.09
1.53

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Statemenl of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
lor Last Five Fiscal Yearc

Descrlptlon FY 2016117 r:r 2U7t18 Fy 2018/19 N 2019t20 FY 2020121

Revenues
Fees
lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
Other Expenses
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$ $ 24,0'.t2
27

$ 325,208
5,680

$ 389,982
13,222

$ 1,064,446
15,331

$ $ 24,039 $ 330,888 $ 403,204 $ 1,079,777

$

39

$$$$

$

$

$

$

$

$

24,039

$

$ 330,888

$ 24,03e

$ 354,927

$3e
$ 403,165

$ 354,927

$-

$ 1,079,777

$ 758,092

$ $ 24,039 $ 758,092 $ 1,837,869

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ 24,039 $ 354,927 $ 758,092 $ 1,837,869

46
Page 278

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



FPA Transit lmpact

Flve Year Rsvenue Test Uslng First ln First Out Method
Available Revenuo Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Avallable Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (Syr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior FiscalYears

Total Revenue Available

Resull: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2020-21 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 24,039 $ 354,927 $ 758,131 $ 1,837,869

$ 24,039 $ 403,204

330,888

24,039

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

330,888

24,039

$ $ 1,079,777

403,204

330,888

24,000

$

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ oo/
o%
Oo/o

$

$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$3e

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

$

FY 2019-20 Proiects
General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $ 39

$ 39

FY 2018-19 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

QOo/o

OYo

0o/o

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 3e$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

$ $

Expenditures

$Oo/o

o%
0o/o

$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$

Non-lmpact
Fee

ExpendituresFY 20'17-18 Projects
$

$

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the ceneral Fund for providing General Government support.

0%
Oo/o

o%

$ $

$ $

47
Page 279

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2021
Folsom Plan Area Corporation Yard

Fund 459

Section 3.120.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Corporation Yard Fee. The purpose of this fee is
to fund the cost of land for the corporation yard, and the fair share of the cost of facilities and construction of the city's new corporation yard
necessary to accommodate future growth in the city and the Folsom plan area, as described in the PFFP and the nexus study.

FOLSOM PLAN AREACORPORATION YARD FEE

Use Category Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Densig
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

1,369
830
499
239
180
224

0.5't
0.35
0.41
0.46
0.37

Sfatement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Descriptlon FY 20'16117 FY 2017118 FY2018/{9 FY 2019120 FY 2020121

Revenues
Fees
lnterest

Other Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
Oth€r Expenses
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$ $ 22,752 $ 307,980
- 5,359

580,000

$ 123,134
4,708

$ 661,297
2,760

$ $ 602,752 $ 313,339 $ 127,842

$ 580,000 $ 1,99s $ 310,480

16,512

$ 664,057

$ 281,332

588

$

$

$

$

$ 580,000 $

$ 22,752 $

$$

$ 326,992 $

$ (1ee,150) $

$ 334,096 $

1,995

311,U4

22,752

281,920

382,137

134,946

$ $ 22,752 $ 334,096 $ 134,946 $ s17,083

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ 22,752 $ 334,096 $ 134,946 $ 517,083

48
Page 280

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



FPA Corporation Yard

FY 2O2O-21 Proiects

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln Firet Out ilethod
Available Revenus Current Yoar

Availabls Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year ($yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Gapital lmprovement Projects

$ 22,752 $ 313,339

- 20,757

$ 127,U2

7.'lo4
S 517,083

$ g 22,752 $ 334,096 $ 134,946 $ 517,083

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures Expenditures
$ 281,332 $ -

588
$ 281,920 $

lmpact Fee
NonJmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures

$ 310,480 $
16,512

$ 326,992 $

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures
$ t,ggs $

Purchase Corp Yard Property
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019-20 Projects

$ 281,332
588

$ 281,920

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

IOOYo

100o/o

Purchase Corp Yard Property
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 310,480

16,512
1O0o/o

lOOo/o

FY 2018-19 Projects

$ 326,992

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
Purchase Corp Yard Property $ 1,995

Project
Amount

Percent
Funded by

1000h

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures
$ 58o,0oo $

FY 2017-18 Projects Expended lmpact Fees
$ 580,000 100%

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to relmburse the General Fund for providing General Governmenl support.

49
Page 281

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Clty of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2021
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Capital

Fund 472

Section 3.120.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Specific Plan fee. The fee is comprised of 7
subcomponents as follows:
1. The general capital facilities component of the FPASP fee is to fund acquisition of general capital facilities, including, but not limited to:
furniture, fixtures and equipment for city facilities (including fire and police facilities); police and fire vehicles and uniformed personnel turnout
gear, public works vehicles and equipment, library materials, such as books, computers, and other materials; and other general capital needs
of the city in the Folsom plan area, as described in the PFFP and the nexus study.
2. The library component of the FPASP fee is to fund the construction of a branch library in the Folsom plan area, as described in the PFFP
and the nexus study.
3. The municipal services center component of the FPASP fee is to fund the construction of a municipal services center in the Folsom plan
area that allows customers to make utility bill and license payments, register for recreation programs, obtain and file building planning and
permit applications and employment applications, and request code enforcement and other public services, as described in the PFFP and the
nexus study.
4. The police component of the FPASP fee is to fund a police substation to serve the Folsom plan area, which is anticipated to include a public
information counter area, conference rooms, lockers and showers, interview rooms and supervisor offices, as described in the PFFP and the
nexus study.
5. The fire component of the FPASP fee is to fund two new fire stations to serve the Folsom plan area, as described in the PFFP and the
nexus study.
6. The parks component of the FPASP fee is to fund the construction of one hundred twenty-five acres of parkland in the Folsom plan area
comprised of two community parks, five neighborhood parks, and two local parks, as described in the PFFP and the nexus study.
7. The trails component of the FPASP fee is to fund the construction of approximately thirty miles of trails in the Folsom plan area, which
include trails, a Class 1 bike path, Class ll bike lanes, intersection protection, trail bridges, under-crossings, and design costs, as described in
the PFFP and the nexus study.

FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN FEE

Use Category
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Basis Fee Amount
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

13,568
13,568
9,725
9,725
9,725
9,725

2.95
2.20
2.52
2.75
2.32

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Yearc

FY 2016t17 F,f 2017t't8 FY 2018r19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020121

Revenues
Fees
lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

Other Expenses
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

$ $ 225,540

$ 225,790 $ 3,125,575 $ 4,419,540 $ 10,345,882

192,000

366

$ 312,072

$ 3,053,840
71,735

$ 4,',t84,947
234,593

$ 10,215,972
129,911

$

250

$$$$

$

$

$

$

$

$

225,790

$

$ 3,125,575

$ 225,790

$ 192,366

$ 4,227,174

$ 3,351,364

$ 312,072

$ 10,033,810

$ 7,578,538

$ $ 225,790 $ 3,351,364 $ 7,578,538 $ 17,612,348

50
Page 282

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



FPA Specific Plan Capital

Available Revenue Current Ysar

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Ysar (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fisc€l Year (s-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater lhan Five Prior Fiscal Yoars

Total Revenue Available

FY 2O2O-21 Proiects

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
225,7_90 $ 3,125,575

225,790

4,419,540

3,125,575

33,423

10,345,882

4,419,540

2,846,926

$$

Resull: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

$ 225,790 $ 3,351,365 $ 7,578,538 $ 17,612,348

Non-lmpact

$

Project Amount
Expended

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures Expenditures

Fee

FPA Neighborhood Park #3

Russell Ranch Bike Trail

FY 2019.20

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 32,072

280,000
$ 312,072

Project Amount
Expended

100Yo

100o/o

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

32,072
280,000

$ $

$ 312,072 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
Fee

$ 192,000

366
$ 192,366

'1000/0

lOOo/o

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

192,000

366
$ $

FY 2018-19 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

$ 192,366 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$

Project Amount
Expended

0o/o $ $

Non-lmpact
Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Fee
FY 2017-'18 Projects

Olo $

Expenditures

$-$

Notes:
1 

lnterfund lransfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Govemment support.

51
Page 283

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gomplian ce 2021
Folsom Plan Area Solid Waste Capital

Fund 5tl4

Section 3.120.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Solid Waste Fee. The purpose of this fee is
to fund solid waste vehicles and waste container purchases required to maintain the level of municipal solid waste service in the Folsom
plan area described in the PFFP and the nexus study.

Use Category

FOLSOM PLAN AREA SOLID WASTE FEE

Basis Fee l\mount
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

515
515
342
342
342
342

0.39
0.39
0.39
0.39
0.39

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Yearc

Description FY 2016117 FY 2017118 FY 2018115 FY 2019120 FY 2020121

Revenues
Fess
lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
Other Expenses
AB '1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Assigned Fund Balance

Available Fund Balance

$ $ s,sso $ 1 15,876
2,024

$ '158,853

5,067
$ 382,189

5,787

$

I

$$$$

$ 8,559 $ 117,900 $ 163,919 $ 387,976

$ 34,905

14

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

8,559 1 't7,900

8,559

$14

$ 163,905

$ 126,459

$ 34,905

$ 353,071

$ 290,365

$ $ 8,559 $ 126,4s9 $ 290,365 $ 643,436

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ 8,559 $ 126,459 $ 290,365 $ 643,436

52
Page 284

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



FPA Solid Waste Gapital

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (5-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater lhan Five Prior Fiscal Years

Five Year Revenue Test Uelng Flrct ln Flrst Out Method
8,559 $ 1 17,900

8,559

1 63,91 I
1 17,900

8,546

387,976

163,919

91,541

$ $

$ $ 8,559$126,459$290,365$643,436

Result: Five Year Revonue lest met in accordanca with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2020-21 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Garbage Containers

FY 2019-20 Proiects

$ 34,905 100o/o

Oo/o

OYo

$ 34,e05 $

$ 34,905

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 34,905 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ta

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$14General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $

FY 2018-19 Proiects

00%
OYo

0o/o

$ 14 $ 14$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ $

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ Oo/o

OYo

0o/o

$ $ $

FY 2017-18 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

$
Expenditures

$$

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used fo reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

o%
0o/o

oo/

$$ $

53
Page 285

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 286

12/14/2021 Item No.21.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No, 10766 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District for Sacramento Emergency Clean Air and Transportation Program
Funding for Two Zero Emission Electric Refuse Trucks.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Folsom 2035 General Plan adopted by the Folsom City Council includes agoalof reducing
the consumption of carbon-intensive fuels. In Fiscal Year 2A20-21 the City of Folsom
pnrchased 2L7,000 gallons of diesel fuel. Nearly 90 percent of that was utilized in the City's
fleet of refuse collection vehicles. The exhaust from diesel engines exposes the community to
dangerous green-house gas emissions. Converting to electic refuse trucks has the potential to
significantly reduce gxeen-house gas emissions produced by City operations. In addition, while
the initial purchase price of an electric refuse truck far exceeds the cost of the diesel trucks, the
operating cost is much lower, so long term savings are expected.

As authorized by Resolution No. 10617, the Solid Waste Division (Division) applied for
$200,000 of Sacramento Emergency Clean Air and Transportation Program (SECAT) frrnding
on March 30,2021. The City has been notified by the administering agency, Sacramento
Metopolitan Air Quality Management District (SMAQMD), that our projeot was approved for
funding.

I

MEETING DATE: l2lt4l202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10766 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from
the Sacramento Mefropolitan Air Quality Management District
for Sacramento Emergency Clean Air and Transportration
Program Funding for Two Zero Emission Electric Refuse Trucks

FROM: Public Works Department

Page 287

12/14/2021 Item No.22.



Due to the high cost of electric refuse vehicles, the Division is working to maximize the use of
grant funding to pilot two trucks. To secure the SMAQMD funding, it is necessary to enter
into an agreement accepting the terms of this grant; however, this does not obligate the City to
complete the project. The agreement will secure the funding in the event the City decides to
complete the project within the specified timeframe.

This grant is eligible to stack with a previous grant award of $102,361 from SMAQMD and
with our award of $240,000 from the Hybrid and Zero-emission Truck and Bus Voucher
Incentive Project (HVIP). Stacking of these three funding soruces is the highest level of
funding available to date. [f the Division is able to secure all three funding sources, the Division
will opt for this funding over the grant of Volkswagen Mitigation Funds (VW) in the amount
of $400,000 that cannot be combined with any of the others.

POLICY / RULE

The City Council Adopted Resolution No. 7332 Financial Policies of the City of Folsom on
May 25, 2004. Section D - Intergovernmental Revenues, Paragraph C - Grant Project
Resolutions states, "All grants received from the Federal or State govemment for operating or
capital purposes shall be recognized in separate grant project resolutions. A balanced grant
project resolution must be adopted prior to beginning the project."

ANALYSIS

The Division has applied for and been awarded four grants toward the purchase of two electric
refuse trucks. The VW funding is the single largest funding source at $400,000. Since the
award of the VW funding the Division became aware of the availability of a SECAT grant that
is stackable and when combined provides funding higher than VW. With this Resolution, the
Division seeks to secure $200,000 in SECAT funding, making the stackable funding the
highest combination of funding for this project.

This technology has the potential to eliminate emissions from refuse collection vehicles;
however, since the technology is relatively new and very costly, the Division would like to
purchase two residential side loaders, which are the largest portion of the collection fleet, to
pilot the technology and evaluate the effectiveness within the operation.

The Lion Electric Co. has been awarded a cooperative bidding contract from the Califomia
Department of General Services for Class 8 refuse truoks. The Lion Class 8 trucks are 100
percent electric so in addition to eliminating emissions, they will eliminate the possibility of
hydraulic spills which are costly to clean up and leave stains on City streets. The purchase
price for two Lion Electric Co. refuse trucks is estimated at $1,300,000.

The cost of the vehicles less available funding is expected to make the purchase price
comparable to the amount we would pay for a residential side loader. The cost of a side loader
in fiscal year 2O2l-22 is approximately $400,000. The reduced cost of electricity versus fuel

2

Page 288

12/14/2021 Item No.22.



and lower maintenance cost are expected to provide year over year savings. When final vehicle
specifications and cost are determined, staff will provide a retum-on-investment analysis and
request authorization to start the project.

In addition to the truck purchase price, the Division would also need to invest in charging
infrastructure. The Division previously reported an estimate of approximately $93,000 as
provided by an electrician contracted by Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD). Since
then, it has been determined that an additional transformer or a transfonner upgrade will be
necessary for the charging infrastructure. An updated estimate is not available at this time but
is expected to be much higher than the original estimate. Infrastructure planning will include
conduit and power necessary to minimize the impact of expanding the electric refuse fleet in
the future. SMUD has funding available to contribute to the cost of infrastructure; however, no
funding has been secured for the infrastructure at this time.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Acceptance of the SECAT grant does not have a direct financial impact. Upon final
determination of all available funding and project costs, the Division will request approval to
proceed with the purchase of two electric refuse vehicles. If the purchase is made using both
grants from SMAQMD combined with HVIP, there would be an initial outlay of Solid Waste
enterprise funds of approximately $970,000. After reimbursement from the grant the net cost
to the City is estimated at $730,000. The purchase price of equivalent diesel trucks is $800,000.
The electric vehicles are also expected to have a lower overall cost of ownership due to reduced
fuel and maintenance cost.

ENVI RONIVTENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10766 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the Sacramento Metropolitan
Air Quality Management District for Sacramento Emergency Clean Air and Transportation
Program Funding for Two Zero Emission Electric Refuse Trucks

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

3

Page 289

12/14/2021 Item No.22.



RESOLUTION NO. 10766

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GRANT FROM THE SACRAMENTO
METROPOLITAN AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT F'OR SACRAMENTO
EMERGENCY CLEAN AIR AND TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM FUNDING F'OR

TWO ZERO EMISSION ELECTRIC REFUSE TRUCKS

WHEREAS, the Folsom 2035 General Plan includes a commitment to reduce the
consumption of carbon-intensive fuels through the purchase of more efficient vehicles; and

WHEREAS, the Solid Waste Division desires to purchase two electric refuse vehicles to
pilot the feasibility of the technology within the City of Folsom waste collection operation; and

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District (SMAQMD)
provides funding for zero emission vehicles through the Sacramento Emergency Clean Air and
Transportation Program (SECAT); and

WHEREAS, in March 2021the Solid Waste Division applied for SECAT funding for the
purchase of two zero emission electric refuse vehicles and disposal of two diesel refuse vehicles;
and

WHEREAS, the Solid Waste Division was approved for grant funding in the amount of
$200,000; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with the Sacramento Metropolitan
Air Quality Management District accepting Sacramento Emergency Clean Air and Transportation
grant funding in the amount of $200,000.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10766
Page I of I

Page 290

12/14/2021 Item No.22.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10773 - A Resolution Authorizing Additional Spending Under the Current Agreement
with Schapfer Systems Inc. (Contract No. 173-21 17-067) for the Purchase of Residential Solid
Waste Containers and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Solid Waste Division (Division) of the Public Works Department is responsible for
providing timely collection of residential and commercial solid waste and recycling in the City
of Folsom. The Division needs to purchase recycling, refuse and green waste containers (cans)
on a continuing basis to maintain a working inventory of six diflerent can types for curbside
collection. The majority of cans purchased will be used to replace damaged cans cunently in
service; however, some will also be used to provide additional service to existing customers,
as well as to provide cans to new homes. Prompt replacement of damaged cans and providing
additional cans where needed enables the City to provide reliable and efficient service for
collection ofthe City's residential waste. In additio4 properly functioning containers help prevent
liuer and protect material from water intrusion, which can increase disposal cost and reduce the
recyclability of some material,

The Division has a contract with Schaefer Systems Inc. (Schaefer) to supply residential
collection containers. Historically the tumaround time for receiving an order is four to six

1

MEETING DATE: tzlt4l202l

AGNNDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10773 - A Resolution Authorizing Additional
Spending Under the Current Agreement with Schaefer Systems
Inc. (Contract No. 1 73 -2 1 17 -067) for the Purchase of Residential
Solid Waste Containers and Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Public Works Deparfinent

Page 291

12/14/2021 Item No.23.



weeks. Currently the Division is experiencing wait times of 16 to 18 weeks. This has resulted
in the Division occasionally running out of cans and it is anticipated that this will continue to
happen as a result of the current global supply chain issues. Schaefer has reported that the
additional demand for containers created by Senate Bill 1383 (SB 1383) combined with a

strained labor market and supply chain delays for materials and machine parts have all
contributed to their difficulty in meeting customer demands. Schaefer has recently invested in
additional equipment and technology and is working to resolve the impacts to customers,
however, in the meantime, it is prudent for the Division to purchase larger quantities to avoid
service failures.

In addition, changing plans related to commercial organics recycling is placing further strain
on the Division's container supply. The city currently has approximately 400 business accounts
that are out of compliance with organics recycling mandates. The city has historically relied
on private haulers to provide organics recycling services; however, with so many businesses
out of compliance and being placed under a compliance schedule by CalRecycle, the Division
is opting to expand services to collect food waste from businesses. The initial cost ofproviding
cans for commercial food waste was not anticipated by the current budget.

When preparing the budget for Fiscal Year202l-22the Division projected enough funding for
cans to last six weeks into the following fiscal year. To stop the cycle of running out of cans,

the Division is requesting funding that will allow adaptation to the current wait times by
purchasing enough inventory to last 18 weeks into Fiscal Year 2022-23. This will ensure the
city's ability provide consistent and reliable service.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Section 5.05 of the Adopted Charter of the City of Folsom; appropriations
in excess of the adopted budget must be approved by resolution of the City Council.

ANALYSIS

The Division executed a contract with Schaefer in Fiscal Year 2017-18 for the purchase of
cans. The contract was awarded by cooperative purchasing through National Joint Powers
Alliance (NJPA) contract #041217 .The Division has been satisfied with the quality and service
provided by Schaefer and wishes to continue purchasing residential waste cans under the
existing contract.

The contract with Schaefer allows annual spending up to the amount in the adopted budget.
The Division is requesting an increase to the Fiscal Year 2021-22 budget through the
appropriation of an additional $120,000 from the Solid Waste current cash balance. This would
ensure adequate supply to meet customet needs by increasing inventory on hand. Staff has

analyzed recent inventory patterns to estimate the monthly usage and the current inventory to
estimate ongoing needs. The current budget would supply enough containers to last
approximately eight months. This would leave us with no inventory on hand early next fiscal

2

Page 292

12/14/2021 Item No.23.



year. A purchase early in the next fiscal year could take 16 to 18 weeks to arrive, leaving the
Division and our customers without cans for months.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The increase to planned inventory of on-hand residential cans was not included in the budget
and an additional appropriation of funds inthe amount of $120,000 will be required. The funds
are currently available in the Solid Waste Operating Fund (Fund 540).

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10773 - A Resolution Authorizing Additional Spending Under the Cunent
Agreement with Schaefer Systems [nc. (Contract No. 173-21 17-067) for the Purchase of
Residential Solid Waste Containers and Appropriation of Funds.

Rackovan, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

3

Page 293

12/14/2021 Item No.23.



RESOLUTION NO. 10773

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL SPENDING UNDER THE CURRENT
AGREEMENT WrTH SCHAEFER SYSTEMS INC. (CONTRACT NO. 173-2117-067)

F'OR THE PURCHASE OF RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE CONTAINERS AND
APPROPRIATION OF' F'UNDS

WHEREAS, Solid Waste Division has an ongoing need to purchase solid waste containers
to continue to conduct solid waste and recyclables collections safely and efficiently; and

WHEREAS, Solid Waste Division has an existing contract with Schaefer Systems Inc. for
the purchase of residential waste containers; and

WHEREAS, supply chain delays have necessitated the Solid Waste Division to modifu its
inventory management strategy to maintain more inventory on hand; and

WHEREAS, the existing contract for solid waste containers allows an annual not to exceed
amount of the City Council adopted Solid Waste budget allocated for cans; and

WHEREAS, the amount budgeted for residential containers in the Fiscal Year 2021-22
Solid Waste Division budget does not support an increase to planned inventory on hand; and

WHEREAS, the Solid Waste Division included a projected cost of $387,024 for
residential collection containers in the Fiscal Year 2021-22budget; and

WHEREAS, the Solid Waste Division is requesting an additional appropriation of
$120,000 in Fiscal Year 2021-22 for the purchase of residential containers; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available in the Solid Waste Operating Fund (Fund 540);

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorize additional spending under the current agreement with Schaefer Systems, Inc. (Contract
No. 173-21 l7-067) for the Purchase of Residential Solid Waste Containers.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is
authorized to appropriate $120,000 from the Solid Waste Operating Fund (Fund 540) for the
purchase of additional residential waste collection containers.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14ft day of December 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

and

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

Resolution No. 10773
Page 7 of2

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Page 294

12/14/2021 Item No.23.



ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

ATTEST:

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10773
Page2 of2

Page 295

12/14/2021 Item No.23.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 296

12/14/2021 Item No.23.



ij ;i l.: 15 ,i+11 ij l; 1:. :,

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10774 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction Ageement
with Siena National Construction, Inc. for the Duchow Way at Rumsey Way Intersection
Drainage Improvement Proj ect.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City of Folsom currently owns and maintains a storm drain system within the Duchow
Way at Rumsey Way intersection. The existing storm drain system collects runoff from
portions of Duchow Way, Rumsey Way, and Price Way, as well as adjacent residential and
commercial private properties. The main storm drain line consists of an l8-inch pipe running
south to north along Rumsey Way, with several smaller diameter lateral pipes connecting to
the main line often without manholes or junction structures. Most segments of the pipe are
comrgated metal pipe (CMP).

In August, during routine storm drain inspections, the Public Works Department found that a
section of L2" diameter CMP had collapsed. Interim repairs were made by Public Works staff,
but during subsequent rain events in October, excessive ponding occurred throughout the
intersection. Further investigation revealed that multiple pipes within the intersection had
reduced capacity due to obshrotions caused by the continually failing pipe. Throughout
October and November, during heavy rain events, Public Works staff had to set out a sump

1

MEETING DATE: t2/t4/2021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10774 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Construction Agreement with Siena
National Construction, Inc. for the Duchow Way at Rumsey
Way Intersection Drainage Improvement Project

FROM: Public Works Department

Page 297

12/14/2021 Item No.24.



pump to drain the ponding water to minimize flooding within the intersection.

Staff developed the proposed project to replace the failing pipe and alleviate the ongoing
flooding within the intersection. The project consists of installing new City standard drain
inlets at all corners ofthe intersection and placing new 12-inch reinforced concrete storm drain
laterals with new manhole connections to the main line within the road right-of-way. The new
storm drain lines will replace the existing damaged and failing conugated metal pipe laterals
that have caused the excessive ponding to occur.

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.080, Award of Contracts of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that
contracts for supplies, equipment, services and construction with an estimated value of $62,657
or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSrc

Public Works staffprepared the bid package and solicited th,ree bids on November 12,2021.
On November 30,202I, the Public Works Department received the following bids:

l. Siena National Conshuction, Inc $ 99.069
2. Dous Veerkamp General Engineering. Inc. $ 128.629
3. Rawles Ensineerins. Inc. $ 129.200

The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $75,000. The Public Works Deparhnent has

evaluated the bids and found them to be in order and recommends that the contract be awarded
to the low-bidder, Siena National Construction, Inc. Staff will use the City's standard
agreement in a form acceptable to the City Attomey.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The contract with SierraNational Construction, Inc, would be authorized for $99,069, with the
project budgeted for a total not to exceed amount of $108,976, which will include a ten percent
contingency in the amount of $9,907.

Sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Localized Drainage Improvements Project,
Project No. 7010, which utilizes Measure A funds.

ENVIRONMENTAL R"EVIEW

This project has been deemed categorically exempt from environmental review under the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per Section 15301, Existing Facilities, and
Section 15302, Replacement or Reconstruction.

2

Page 298

12/14/2021 Item No.24.



ATTACHMENTS

l. Resolution No. 10774 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Consfruction Agreemeirt with Sierra National Constnrstion Inc. for the Duchow
Way at Rumsey Way Interseotion Drain4ge Improvement Project

2. Duchow Way at Rumsey Way Intersection Drainage Improvement Project Exhibit

Submitted,

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

3

Page 299

12/14/2021 Item No.24.



Attachment I

Page 300

12/14/2021 Item No.24.



RESOLUTION NO. 10774

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT WITH SIERRA NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION, INC.

FOR THE DUCHOW WAY AT RUMSEY WAY INTERSECTION DRAINAGE
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to repair the existing deteriorated storm drain
infrastructure within the intersection of Duchow Way, Rumsey Way, and Price Way; and

WHEREAS, the projectwas advertised and bids were opened onNovember 30, 2021;,and

WHEREAS, the lowest responsive, responsible bidder was Sierra National Construction,
Inc. with a bid of $99,069; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Localized Drainage
Improvements Project, Project No. 7010, which utilizes Measure A funds; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Auorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute a construction agreement with Sierra National
Construction, Inc. for the Duchow Way at Rumsey Way Intersection Drainage Improvement
Project for $99,069, with the budgeted amount to include a ten percent contingency for a total not
to exceed amount of $108,976.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10774
Page 1 of I Page 301

12/14/2021 Item No.24.



Attachment 2

Page 302

12/14/2021 Item No.24.



Gity Sti Ttrpe E Dl
€ristturg Dl

tf Cf,P io rEilain

'lf CtPto bc

40 lf tf RcP
cili,stnrf lf CtP

City 5!d Tlrpe B Dl
cdriiEr Dl

('tr sfid TtrDG E Dl
cliltiq

nemriilr
SDTH

4r sDtH

4tr SDrH

52 LF IT RCF
criatin; lf CilF

GitlI ltild TyDe B Dl
qistiq Dl

Gatlr $tType E Dl
€rictirE Bl

25 r5 {2r Rcp

It I.F tr RcF

it..

Iluchow Way at Rumsey Way lntersection
Ilrainage lmprovem€nt Proiect
Proiect Erhibit

Page 303

12/14/2021 Item No.24.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 304

12/14/2021 Item No.24.



$'{}La$&f

Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
The Interim Human Resources Director recommends that the City Council pass and adopt

Resolution No. 10778 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the Folsom Police Officers
Association (FPOA).

BACKGROUND / ISSUE
The existing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City of Folsom and the

Folsom Police Officers Association (FPOA) expires on December 31, 202l.The parties

began negotiations on a new MOU on August 5,2021, and reached a tentative agreement on

November 15, 202I. The FPOA ratified the tentative agreement on Decemb er 7 , 202I . The
new proposed successor MOU is being presented to the City Council on December 14,2021,
for consideration and approval.

POLICY / RULE
Government Code Title 1, Division 4, Chapter 10 commonly known as the Meyers-Milias-
Brown Act requires that representatives of the Governing Body of a public agency shall meet
and confer in good faith regarding wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of
employment with representatives of recognized employee organizations. Both parties shall
endeavor to reach a tentative agreement within the scope of representation, and, if a tentative

agreement is reached and ratified by the respective parties, they shall prepare a written
memorandum of understanding.

I

MEETING DATE: t2lt4l202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10778 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Memorandum of Understanding between
the City of Folsom and the Folsom Police Officers Association
GPOA)

FROM: Human Resources Department

Page 305

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



ANALYSIS ANd FINAITICIAL IMPACT
A tentative agreement was reached by the parties and the proposed successor Memorandum
of Understanding, which will be effective January 1,2022, contains the following changes

that have some economic impact, as outlined below. The changed provisions are as follows:

1 . The MOU term will be for three (3) years: January l, 2022, through December 3 1 ,

2024.

2. The classes of Police Officer (Lateral), Police Corporal, Police Sergeant,

Communications Supervisor, and Dispatcher II shall have one salary range, consisting
of nine (9) steps, with three (3) percent between steps.

o Employee step assignment shall be equal to the salary step the employee is
currently assigned. The cost for the adjustment to the salary ranges will cost
approximately $366,500 in the first year in salary and benefit costs.

3. A cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) is provided for each year of the agreement:

o Year I : Effective January 1,2022
. 3.5o/o for Law Enforcement employees (Peace Officers & Dispatchers)
. 3Yo for Miscellaneous employees
. The cost for the first year of the COLA will increase salary and

benefi ts approximately $544,000
o Year 2: Effective January 1,2023

. 3Yo for all Law Enforcement and Miscellaneous employees

. The cost for the second year of the COLA will increase salary and

benefi ts approximately $520,500.
o Year 3: Effective January 1,2024

. 3Yo for all Law Enforcement and Miscellaneous employees

. The cost for the third year of the COLA will increased salary and

benefits approximately $553,000.

4. A Market Adjustment will be made for Communications Supervisor in order for the

top step of the supervisory classification to be set at no less than lSYo above the top
step of the nearest subordinate rank (Dispatcher II). The cost of the market
adjustment will cost approximately $29,500 in the first year in salary and benefits.

5. Night Shift Differential
o Effective January I,2022, dispatchers and sworn personnel who are assigned

and work night shift shall receive a night shift differential of $ 1.00 per hour.
(This change is only to update curcent language.)

o Effective January I,2023, dispatchers and sworn personnel who are assigned

and work night shift shall receive a night shift differential of $ 1.25 per hour.
o Effective January I,2024, dispatchers and sworn personnel who are assigned

and work night shift shall receive a night shift differential of $ 1.50 per hour.

2

Page 306

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



6. The City may offer one or more of the following employment enhancements for
Lateral Hires (effective for both Police Officers and Dispatchers)

o Annual Leave accrual atarate consistent with the Lateral hire's last place of
employment as a police officer/dispatcher.

o Training and education incentives
o Salary step placement consistent with the candidate's previous experience as a

police officer/dispatcher.
o Crediting up to 40 hours of personal leave time (no cash value)

7. Law Enforcement Retention Pay for Peace Officers and Dispatchers will be as

follows:
o 2yr% after 10 years of full-time City service
o Additional 2 Yr% after 15 years of full-time City service

o Additional 2 Yr% after 20 years of full-time City service

The cost to add retention pay will increase salary and benefit costs approximately $7,400
in the first year.

8. A variety of non-economical and clarification language changes were also agreed

upon.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution No. 10778 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the Folsom Police

Offi cers Association (FPOA)

2. Proposed Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the FPOA
for the term of January I,2022, through December 31,2024.

Submitted,

John Spittler, Interim Human Resources Director

J

Page 307

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



Attachment 1

RESOLUTION NO. 10778

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTAI\IDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF FOLSOM
AND THE FOLSOM POLTCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION (FPOA)

Page 308

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



RESOLUTION NO. 10778

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF FOLSOM
AND THE FOLSOM POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION (FPOA)

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom and the Folsom Police Officers Association (FPOA) have

met and conferred in good faith since August 5th,2021; and

WHEREAS, the parties reached a tentative agteement on November l5th, 2021; and

WHERBAS' the members of the Folsom Police Officers Association (FPOA) ratified the
tentative agreement on December 7th,2021; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager and the City's negotiation team recommend the City Council
adopt the tentative agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CrrY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF FOLSOM' that the City Council adopts the tentative agreement between the City of
Folsom and the Folsom Police Officers Association (FPOA) for the period of January 1,

2022 to December 3 I, 2024; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Folsom authorizes the

City Manager to execute a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and

the Folsom Police Offtcers Association (FPOA).

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 14th day of December 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Page 309

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



Attachment 2

Proposed Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the FPOA
for the term of January 1, 2022, through December 3112024.

Page 310

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FOLS()M
CITY OF

OISTINCTIVE BY NATURE

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN

CITY OF FOLSOM

AND

FOLSOM POLICE OFFIGERS ASSOCIATION

January 1 , 2022 through December 31 , 2024

Page 311

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
1l'll22to 12131124

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE.....

ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION AND COVERAGE

A. Recognition
B. TotalAgreement:
C. Severability of Provisions: ...........

ARTICLE II _ MANAGEMENT RIGHTS.

ARTICLE III _ NO STRIKE

ARTICLE IV _ EMPLOYEE RIGHTS...........

A. Union Bank Time:.
B. Non-discrimination
C. Access to Personnel Files: .

D. Purging Personnel Files: ....

ARTICLE V - SALARY AND OTHER COMPENSATION.........

Salary lncreases:
Market Adjustments
Market Su
Salary Ranges:
Creation of Salary Range A and Salary Range B
Salary Step Placement: .......
Cloth in g/U n iform Al lowance :

Educational lncentive Pay: ..

Tuition Reimbursement Pol
Canine Officers:
Night Shift Differential:.....
Training Differential - Dispatchers
Training Differential
Longevity Pay
Law Enforcement Retention Pay

ARTICLE VI _ RETIREMENT

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) -- Formula:......
Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) - Retirement Benefit:.........
Retiree Health lnsurance: ..

Retiree Dental and Vision lnsurance
Social Security Retirement Plan

4

5

5
6
6

6

8

8

8
I
9
I
I

A.
B.
c.
D.
E.
F.

G,
H.
t.

J.
K.
L.
M
N.
o.

A.
B.
c.
D.
E.

10
10
10
11

12
13
13
14
17
19
19
20
20
20
21

22

22
22
22
24
24

24ARTICLE VII _ INSURANCE....

Page 312

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

Health lnsurance
IRS 125 Reimbursement Account: ..........
Health Benefits Labor-Management Committee:
Dental Insurance:
Vision Care:........
Life lnsurance
Short Term Disability Program:...
Long Term Disability Program:...

ARTICLE VIII - HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

Work Shifts and Work Schedules:
Daylight Savings Time:
Shift Rotation Schedule:
Shift Trade
Minimum Staffing Levels:
Overtime
Overtime Rotation System
Call-ln Pay:
Telephone Stand by/Court Preparation
Compensatory Time
Standby Duty - Dispatchers

ARTICLE IX _ LEAVES

Annual Leave:..........
Sick Leave: ..............
Holidays:
Use of Accrued Employee Furlough Time: ........
Maternity/Paternity Leave
FPOA Catastrophic Leave Bank:........

ARTICLE X - MISCELLANEOUS ......

Fitness for Duty: ....
City Vehicle Use:
Probationary Period:
Permanent Part-Time Employees:
Voluntary Wellness Program
Personal Leave Time
Bi-Weekly Pay Schedule

ARTICLE XI _ GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. Definition: .

B. Time Limits
C. Presentation

27
28
28
29
29
29
29
30
30
30
31

31

31

33
33
34
34
35

35

35
36
37
37
38
38
39

40

40
40
40
40

A.
B.
c.
D.
E.
F.

G.
H.

A.
B.
c.
D.
E.
F.
(r,
H.
t.

J.
K.

A.
B.
c.
D.
E.
F.

A.
B.
c.
D.
E.
F.

G,

24
26
26
26
27
27
27
27

......27

D. Procedure

Page 313

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
1l1l22lo 12131124

ARTICLE XII _ DISCIPLINE PROCEDURE......

Policy:
Definition
Persons Authorized to lnitiate Disciplinary Action
Application of Appeal Procedure:
Cause for Disciplinary Action
Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary Action
Skelly Meeting:
Appeal of Disciplinary Action: ......

ARTICLE XIII _ LAYOFF

A. Layoff.......

ARTICLE XIV _ TERM AND SIGNATURE CLAUSE

A. Term of Agreement:...........

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A. Salary Schedules ........
Attachment B. Salary Step Placement

42

42
42
42
42
43
44
44
45

46

46

49

49

51

51
54

A.
B.
c.
D.
E.
F.
G.
H.

Page 314

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

PREAMBLE

This Memorandum of Understanding, hereinafter referred to as "the Agreement",
entered into by the City of Folsom, hereinafter referred to as "the City", or "the
employer", pursuant to Section 3500 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of
California and the Folsom Police Officers Association, hereinafter referred to as "the
Association" or "FPOA" has as its purpose the promotion of harmonious labor relations
between the City and the FPOA; establishment of an equitable and peaceful procedure
for the resolution of differences; and the establishment of rates of pay, hours of work,
and other terms and conditions of employment.

It is understood and agreed that this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
supersedes and replaces all previous such actions on these points by and between the
City of Folsom and the Folsom Police Officers Association. Where ordinances and
policies that may conflict with the Memorandum of Understanding exist, the
Memorandum of Understanding will prevail.

The term "Agreement" as used herein means the written agreement provided under
section 3505.1 of the Government Code.

ARTICLE I. RECOGNITION AND COVERAGE

A. Recognition:

Folsom Police Officers Association is recognized as the exclusive representative,
as provided in the City's Employer-Employee Relations Rules for all employees
assigned to the Police Bargaining Unit in the following classifications and any
other classification which is agreed between the parties to be included in the
Police bargaining Unit.

Animal Control Officer
Community Service Officer
Commun ications Supervisor
Crime & Intelligence Analyst
Dispatcher l/ll
Police Corporal
Police Officer
Police Records Clerk
Police Records Supervisor
Police Sergeant
Property and Evidence Technician
Volunteer Coordinator

Page 5

Page 315

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



c

FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
1l1l22to 12131124

B. TotalAgreement:

This Memorandum of Understanding constitutes a full and complete agreement
by the parties and contains all of the matters upon which the parties have
reached agreement. Therefore, except as provided herein, the City and the
Association, for the duration of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly
waives the right, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to bargain
collectively, with respect to any subject or matter referred to or covered in this
Agreement, as well as any subject or matter not referred to or covered in this
Agreement.

Severabilitv of Provisions:

Should any section, clause or provision of this Agreement be declared illegal by

final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidation of such
section, clause or provision shall not invalidate the remaining portions hereof,

and such remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect for the duration
of this Agreement. ln tHe event of such invalidation, the parties agree to meet
and confer concerning substitute provisions for provisions rendered or declared
illegal.

ARTICLE II _ MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

All City rights and functions, except those which are expressly abridged by this
Agreement, shall remain vested with the City. The rights of the City include, but are not

limited to, the exclusive right to:

Manage the City generally and to determine issues of policy.

Determine the existence of facts which is the basis of management decisions.

Determine the necessity for and organization of any service or activity conducted
by the City, and to expand or diminish services.

Determine the nature, manner, means, technology, and extent of services to be
provided to the public.

Determine methods of financing.

Determine types of equipment or technology to be used.

Determine and/or change the facilities, methods, technology, means,
organizational structure, and size and composition of the work force, and to

Page 6

A.

B.

c.

D.

E.

F.

(J

Page 316

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
1l1l22lo 1213'1124

allocate and assign the work by which the City operations are to be conducted'

H. Determine and change the number of locations, relocations, and types of
operations, processes, and materials to be used in carrying out all City functions,
including, but not limited to, the right to contract for or sub-contract any work or
operation of the CitY.

l. Assign work to and schedule employees in accordance with requirements as

determined by the City, and to establish and change work schedules and

assignments upon reasonable notice and good faith meet and confer.

J. Lay off employees from duties because of lack of work or funds, or under
conditions where continued work would be ineffective or non-productive.

Establish and modify productivity and performance programs and standards.

Dismiss, suspend without pay, demote, reprimand, withhold salary step
increases, or otherwise discipline employees for cause.

Determine minimum qualifications, skills, abilities, knowledge, selection
procedures and standards, and job classifications, and to reclassify employees.

Hire, transfer, promote, and demote employees.

Determine policies, procedures, and standards for selection, training, and
promotion of employees.

Establish reasonable employee performance standards including, but not limited

to, quality and quantity standards; and to require compliance therewith'

Maintain order and efficiency in City facilities and operations'

Establish, publish, and/or modify rules and regulations to maintain order and

safety and health in the City. The City agrees to meet and confer on any items

that fall within the scope of Government Code Section 3500 et. seq.

Restrict the activity of an employee organization on the municipal property and

on municipal time except as set forth in the City's Personnel Rules.

Take any and all necessary action to carry out the mission of the City in
emergencies.

K.

L.

M.

N.

o.

P.

o.

R.

S

T

PageT

Page 317

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 1213'1124

ARTICLE III - NO STRIKE

FPOA agrees that during the term of this Agreement, neither it nor its officers,
employees, representatives, or members will engage in, encourage, sanction, support
or suggest any strikes, work stoppages, boycotts, slowdowns, mass resignations, mass

absenteeism or any other similar actions which would involve suspension of, or
interference with, the normal work of the City of Folsom. ln the event that FPOA
members participate in such activities in violation of this provision, FPOA shall notify
those members so engaged to cease and desist from such activities and shall instruct
the members to return to their normal duties.

ARTICLE IV - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

A. Union Bank Time:

Employees in the bargaining unit may, but are not required to, donate
accrued Annual Leave, Holiday Leave, or Furlough Time in no less than

one-half (.5) hour increments, into a bank of hours from which designated
FPOA representatives may draw time for the purposes of conducting
association business, including but not limited to, training programs and

seminars. Donated time will be transferred from the donating employee's
accrued Annual Leave, Holiday Leave, or Furlough Time to the Union

Bank as a one-time donation or from Annual Leave on a regular basis
each pay period.

The FPOA President or designee must approve, fill out and submit a leave
request slip for all employees using the Union Bank. The release of
employees on Union Bank Time shall be subject to the needs of the City,

as determined by the Police Chief.

3 The FPOA shall submit a request to the Police Chief or designee for the
release of employees on Union Bank Time at least 7 calendar days prior

to the desired time off or as otherwise approved by the Police Chief.

B Non-discrimination:

The City agrees not to discriminate against any employee because of
membership in the Association or because of any activities on behalf of the
Association. The City further agrees not to discriminate, harass, or reprise
against any employee as a result of their exercise of their rights under this
Agreement, or under Section 3500 et seq., of the Government Code of the State
of California.

1

2

Page 8

Page 318

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22lo 12131124

C. Access to Personnel Files:

The City shall maintain only one (1) personnel file on each person in the Human

Resources Department. A duplicate personnel file shall be maintained at the
Police Department. Both files shall be kept secured.

Upon request by an employee, the employee and/or his/her authorized
representative may review the personnel files during regular business hours,

except where denial of access is authorized by statute.

Information contained in an employee's personnel file shall be confidential and

available for inspection only to authorized managemenUadministrative personnel

and the supervisor of the employee; except, however, that information in an

employee's personnel file may be released pursuant to court order, subpoena, or
with a release signed by the employee. The department shall notify the
employee of the existence of such court order, subpoena, or a motion for court
order to gain access to the personnel file prior to the release of any information.

No materialwhich relates to the employee's conduct, attitude, work performance,

or service will be included in his/her personnel file without being signed and

dated by the author of such material. Before such material is placed in the
employee's file, the department head shall provide the employee the opportunity
to review the material and sign and date it. A copy of such material shall be
provided to the employee. The employee shall have the right to insert in his/her
file within thirty (30) days of the employer placing the item in the file,
supplementary material and a written response to any item in the file. Such
response shall remain attached to the material it supplements for as long as the

material remains in the file.

Internal affairs investigations shall be kept in a separate file under the
employee's name and shall be purged and destroyed after five (5) years. Such

files shall be maintained in the Police Department.

Purqinq Personnel Files:

Upon the request of an employee, and with the approval of the Police Chief,
counseling memos and reprimands shall be removed from personnel files after
two (2) years. These items, along with disciplinary actions (i.e., suspensions,
reductions in pay, and demotions) shall be removed and destroyed after five (5)

years in accordance with the City's records retention policy.

ARTICLE V - SALARY AND OTHER COMPENSATION

D

Page 9

Page 319

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
'll1l22lo 12131124

A.

2

Salary lncreases:

1. Effective January 1,2022, all employees in the following classes shall
receive a salary increase of 3o/o:

Animal Control Officer
Community Services Officer
Crime & lntelligence Analyst
Police Records Clerk
Police Records Supervisor
Property and Evidence Technician
Volunteer Coordinator

Effective January 1,2022, all employees in the following classes shall
receive a salary increase of 3.5%:

Commun ications SuPervisor
Dispatcher l/ll
Police Corporal
Police Officer
Police Sergeant

Effective January 1,2023, all employees shall receive a salary increase
of 3o/o.

Effective January 1,2024, all employees shall receive a salary increase
of 3o/o.

Market Adiustments:

Effective January 1,2022, the salary range for the class of Communication
Supervisor shall receive a special salary increase of approximately 2.93% (may

be adjusted slightly to fit current City salary range structure)'

Market Survev:

The City agrees to conduct a market survey of the classes of Police Officer,
Police Sergeant, Dispatcher ll, and Police Records Clerk. The survey shall be

concluded not later than 120 days prior to the expiration of this MOU. The
parties agree to meet and confer over survey results.

1. The purpose of the study is to determine the relationship of the total
compensation for employees in the job classifications identified above

Page 10

3.

4.

B

c

Page 320

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

when compared to comparable job classifications in the following
agencies: City of Elk Grove, City of Rocklin, City of West Sacramento,
City of Sacramento, City of Roseville, City of Citrus Heights, and County of
Sacramento.

2 Compensation, for purposes of this study, shall constitute the following
elements:

a. Base salary (top step in the salary range
b. Maximum contribution to health insurance
c. Uniform Allowance
d. Employer payment of employee share of retirement
e. Maximum Education/POsT lncentive Pay
f. Social Security

Study results will identify the mean (average) and relative ranking of the
base salary and total compensation, by classification, comparing the City
of Folsom to those agencies identified in subsection 1 above.

The parties agree to meet and confer not later than April 1,2024, to
discuss amendments to this Section. Topics to be discussed shall include,
but not be limited to, agencies to be surveyed, compensation elements
(data) to be collected, and tax base of agencies surveyed.

D. Salary Ranqes:

The first-year salary range for each job classification in the Police Bargaining Unit are

set forth in Attachment A, Satary Schedu/es, of this Agreement. The Salary Range for
each classification includes Salary Increases (Article V, Section A above), and any

Market Adjustment Article V, Section B above). lt is understood that implementation of
any salary increase, or market adjustment may vary slightly due to rounding.
Procedures for step advancement, promotion, demotion, transfer, and layoff as set forth

in City of Folsom Personnel Rules and Regulations, and the MOU shall apply. Should

unusual circumstances or rigid adherence to the current salary range structure cause an

unforeseen inequity, the City Manager may authorize a special salary adjustment
appropriate to the circumstance(s).

1. Effective January 1,2022, the classes of Police Officer, Police Corporal,
Police Sergeant, Communications Supervisor, and Dispatcher ll shall
have one salary range (Attachment A). The salary range for each

classification shall consist of nine (9) steps, with three (3) percent between
steps. The highest step in the existing salary range(s) for each class shall
constitute the highest step in the new salary range for each class. For all

Page 1 1

3

4.

Page 321

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
1l1l22to 12131124

other classes in the FPOA bargaining unit, the current salary range

structure shall remain unchanged.

a. When converting to the new salary range, employee step
assignment shall be equal to the salary step the employee is

assigned on January 1,2022. For example, an employee
assigned to Step Six (6) on January 1 ,2022, shall be

assigned to Step Six (6) in the new salary range'

2. Employees in the classes of Police Corporal and Police Sergeant who are

assigned to Range A on Janu ary 1 , 2022, shall convert to the new salary
range (ltem D.1 above) on the first calendar day after December 31,2024.
Range A shall continue for employees who are assigned to Range A
through December 31,2024. Employee step assignment into the new

range (ltem D.1 above) shall be equal to the Range A salary step the

employee is assigned on December 31 ,2024. Effective January 1,2022,
all new appointments into the classes of Police Corporal and Police
Sergeant shall be appointed to the new salary range (ltem D.1, above).

E. Creation of Salary Ranqe A and Salary Ranoe B:

Except for the class of Police Officer, Police Corporal, Police Sergeant, Community

Services Officer, Communications Supervisor and Dispatcher ll, each job classification

shall have two salary ranges: Range A and Range B. Procedures for step

advancement, promotion, demotion, transfer, and layoff as set forth in City of Folsom

personnel rules and the MOU shall apply. Any unit-wide salary change shall be applied

equally to Range A and Range B. Such salary changes may vary slightly due to

rounding.

Salary Range A

Where Salary Range A applies, Salary Range A shall be the salary range for employees

employed bythe City prior to February 6,2014. Said employees shall be assigned

Range A for City job classifications for the remainder of their continuous employment

with the City.

Salary Range B

Where Salary Range B applies, employees who are hired on or after February 6,2014,
shall be assigned to Salary Range B. Said employees shall be assigned Range B for
City job classifications for the remainder of their continuous employment with the City.

For classifications with Salary Range A and B, the top step of Salary Range B

Page 12

Page 322

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22lo 12131124

shall be 10Oo/o of the top step of Salary Range A for each job classification'

Except for the class of Community Services Officer, Salary Range B shall consist

of thirteen (13) salary stePs.

Community Services Officer shall have a single salary range. The salary range
for Community Services Officer shall consist of 12 steps.

Dispatcher I is a 12-month probationary/trainee position and shall have a
separate 1-step salary range. Upon successful completion of the 12-month
tralnee opportunity as Dispatcher l, employees will be promoted to Dispatcher ll.

F. Salary Step Placement:

Employee step placement in the salary range for each classification are shown in

Attachment B, Salary Step Placement.

G. Clothinq/Uniform Allowance:

1. Plain Clothes Assignments:

When the Police Chief assigns employees to a plain clothes assignment
(for more than 3 months consecutively), such employees shall receive a
clothing allowance of $1000.00 per year. Plain clothes assignments are

those assignments that require professional business attire. Other plain

clothes assignments that do not require daily wearing of professional

business attire may qualify for the allowance based upon individualwritten
approval by the Chief of Police. Appropriate justification shall be made for
such approval.

Employees assigned to a plain clothes assignment shall be responsible for
the cleaning of their own clothing, except that employees in a plain clothes
assignment may have their department issued uniforms cleaned as

needed based upon uniformed or overtime assignments.

Clothing allowance shall be paid annually in conjunction with bi-annual
shift changes, on or before January 20th and on or before July 20th of each
fiscal year. Employees assigned to a plain clothes assignment in January
or in July of each year shall receive the annual clothing allowance for the
year, payable as described above. Employees assigned to a plain clothes
assignment after shift changes will receive a pro-rated clothing allowance.

2. Sworn Personnel

Page 13

Page 323

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22lo 12131124

As provided in Section 4 below, the City agrees to provide the initial issue

of uniforms to all sworn employees and the City shall pay for the cleaning
and replacement of all uniforms.

Any proposed change to the uniforms will only be done after meet and

confer with the Association.

The City agrees to report to PERS the estimated value of $850 per fiscal
year for each uniformed employee for purposes of cleaning, maintaining
and replacing uniforms.

Non-Sworn Employees:

The City agrees to provide the initial issue of uniforms to all non-sworn
employees, consistent with department policy.

4. Uniform lssuance/Replacement -- All Employees:

The City will provide the initial issue of uniforms to all employees of the
department. The City shall replace any uniform or authorized equipment,
which has been lost, stolen, damaged or rendered unserviceable as a
result of on-duty activity. Personnel will receive authorization for uniform
replacement from their immediate supervisor.

Educational lncentive Pav:

1. Employees shall be eligible to receive education incentive pay after the employee
has completed their one (1) year probationary period.

a. Exception: Employees hired into the department as "lateral hires" shall

receive education incentive pay upon hire'

b. Exception: Employees hired as entry level Dispatcher | (step 1), which is
a trainee level, have a 12-month probationary period in the entry level
position, followed by an additional 6-month probationary period upon
promotion to Dispatcher ll (step 2). Education incentive pay eligibility
commences on the first pay period following achievement of non-
probationary status as Dispatcher ll. Obtaining POST certification quickly

will not impact date of promotion or date of educational incentive pay.

2. Police Officers and Sergeants will be entitled to receive educational incentive pay

based on the following:
Page 14

3

H

Page 324

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

Police Officers

Either:

Or:

Sergeants

Either:

a Police Officers and Police Corporals who possess the following
degree(s) from a recognized college or university:

(1) Associate of Arts degree shall receive a salary increase of
5%.

(2) Bachelor of Arts/Science degree shall receive a salary
increase of 10o/o.

(3) ln no event shall a Police Officer or Police Corporal who
possesses both an Associate of Arts degree and a Bachelor
of Arts/Science degree receive more than 10%.

Police Officers and Police Corporals who possess the following
POST certificates:

(1) lntermediate POST certificate shall receive a salary increase
of 5o/o.

Advanced POST certificate shall receive a salary increase of
10%. ln no event shall an officer who possesses both an

lntermediate POST certificate and an Advanced POST
certificate receive a salary increase of more than 10%.

(2)

b

a Sergeants who possess the following degree(s) from a recognized
college or university:
(1) Associate of Arts (AA) degree shall receive a salary increase

of 5o/o.

(2') Bachelor of Arts/Science (BA/BS) degree shall receive a
salary increase of 10o/o.

(3) In no event shall a Sergeant who possesses both an AA
degree and a BA/BS degree receive more than 10%.

Or:

b. Sergeants who possess the following POST certificates:

Page 15

Page 325

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22lo 12131124

(1)

(2)

(3)

lntermediate POST certificate shall receive a salary increase
of 5o/o.

Advanced POST certificate shall receive a salary increase of
10o/o.

ln no event shall a Sergeant who possesses both an
lntermediate POST certificate and an Advanced POST
certificate receive more than 10%.

3. With the exception of ltem 5 below, no Police Officer, Police Corporal, or
Sergeant who possesses an AA or BA/BS college degree(s) and POST

certificate(s) shall receive a total EIP salary increase of more than 10%'

4. Communications Supervisors, Dispatchers, Police Records Clerks, Property &

Evidence Technicians, Records Supervisors:

a. Dispatchers with the possession of Dispatch POST certification
shall receive 7 .5o/o.

Records Supervisor with the possession of POST certification shall

receive 7.5%.

Dispatchers. Property & Evidence Technicians or Police Records
Clerks with possession of:

Associate of Arts Degree shall receive 2.5o/o

Bachelor of Arts Degree shall receive 5%.

d With the exception of ltem 5 below, no Dispatcher or Technician
who possess an AA or BA/BS college degree(s) and Dispatch
Certification receive a total EIP salary increase of more than 10%.

5. Master's Deqree:

Employees hired priorto July 1,2010 who are in possession of a Masters
of Arts/Masters of Science degree receive an additional So/o incentive.
Degrees shall be related to the field of Law Enforcement or Public
Administration as approved by the Chief of Police. Employees hired on or
after July 1,2010 shall not qualify for an additional 5o/o for a Masters of
Arts/Masters of Science degree.

Crime & lntelliqence Analyst Certificate:

Employees in the class of Crime and Intelligence Analyst who submit

b.

c.

6

Page 16

Page 326

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

evidence that they possess a Crime & lntelligence Certificate from an

accredited institution approved by the city shall, one time only, be

advanced in the salary range by an amount equal to approximately 10o/o:

For employees assigned to range A, advancement shall equal two steps.
For employees assigned to range B, advancement shall equal four steps.

Notwithstanding subsections 1 through 5 above, for the period beginning
July 1 ,2010 and ending June 30, 2011, employee advancement from one
Education Incentive Pay level to the next EIP level shall be frozen.
Employees who would normally have advanced to a higher EIP level

during this period shall advance to the next higher level twelve (12)
months from the date they would have othenrise qualified and shall not
receive any retroactive PaYment.

l. Tuition Reimbursement Policv:

With the advance written approval of the Department and City and upon
satisfactory completion with a grade "C" or better, the City shall reimburse an

eligible, permanent unit member for the cost of tuition from a recognized college
or university (on a course-by-course basis) for courses having a strong nexus to

City law enforcement duties and benefit to the City. All classes will be taken on

the unit member's own time.

1. Eligibility:

ln order to qualify for tuition reimbursement, a unit member shall

have attained permanent status (successfully completed entry-level
probation) as a unit member in Folsom. No reimbursement will be

made for classes taken during the eligibility period or prior to
attaining permanent status.

Classes successfully challenged will not be eligible for
reimbursement.

Recognized colleges or universities are those institutions of higher
learning accredited by one or more of the following accrediting
organizations: Middle States Association of Colleges and Schools,
New England Association of Schools and Colleges, North Central
Association of Colleges and Schools, Northwest Commission on

Colleges and Universities, Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools, and Western Association of Schools and Colleges'

7

a

b

Page 17

Page 327

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22lo 12131124

2. Tuition shall be reimbursed as follows:1

For unit members who have completed a total of 60 or less
undergraduate 2semester units, the City will reimburse a unit
member in the amount of the cost of per unit tuition for a resident
student enrolled at a Los Rios Junior College District community
college.

For unit members who have a total of 61 or more undergraduate
semester units, the City will reimburse a unit member in the amount
of the cost of per semester tuition for either a part time student or
full-time student (depending on the number of units carried by the
unit member for the semester) for a California resident student
enrolled at California State University, Sacramento (CSUS).

c. For unit members who are enrolled in a graduate program, the City
will reimburse a unit member in the amount of the cost of per
semester tuition for either a part time student or full-time student
(depending on the number of units carried by the unit member for

the semester)for a California resident student enrolled at California State
University, Sacramento (CSUS).

In any one semester or quarter, the maximum reimbursement for class(es)
required books in total shall be a maximum of $500 per semester.

Approval of Tuition Reimbursement Claims

Approval of a claim for tuition reimbursement shall be as follows:

a Claims for tuition reimbursement will be denied for any course or
class that has not received prior written approval by the Department
and City.

b. Tuition reimbursement shall be on a course by course basis.

1 A college quarter system will be converted to a semester system. The semester system that
coincides with that used at CSUS will be used.

2 Upon specific approval of the Chief of Police, a unit member who has completed a total of 60
or less undergraduate semester units, may be reimbursed at the CSUS rate referenced in (b)for
a lower division course if currently enrolled in CSUS in a four-year course of study and the lower
division units are part of that course of study.

b

3.

4.

Page 18

Page 328

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
1l'll22lo 12131124

c.

(2) For each selection of an elective option, the unit member
shall obtain the approval of the Department based upon the
option most beneficial to the Department and City.

lf a course of study approval has been granted, the unit
member may submit the previously granted approval and

indicate the completed course description included in the
approval.

All requests for tuition reimbursement, whether for a single class or
a class that is part of an approved program are subject to available
funds as determined by the City. Approval for any program does
not guarantee approval or available funds for any subsequent
class.

(1) ln order to expedite tuition reimbursement, claim approval, a

unit member may seek City approval to enter into a course
of study for a specified degree or certificate. Degree or
certificate program approval must have a strong nexus to
City law enforcement duties as approved in writing by the
Department. A request for approval of a degree program or
certificate shall include a current, full course description
inclusive of mandatory core and elective course options.

(3)

Tuition reimbursement is not authorized for course work (unit credit)
that applies to previous academic or professional experience' Nor
is reimbursement authorized for course work necessitated by a
change in a course of study, major, a repetition of a course for any
reason or other academic circumstance.

Canine Officers:

Officers assigned to the Canine Program will be compensated for thirty (30)

minutes each day (at time and one-half) for time spent off-duty caring for their
dogs.

Niqht Shift Differential:

Dispatchers and sworn personnelwho work night shift shall receive a night shift

differential of $1.00 per hour. The department will designate which hours/shifts
shall qualify for payment of night shift differential.

Effective January 1, 2023, night shift differential shall increase to $1 .25 per hour.

Page 19

d

J

K.

Page 329

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

L

Effective January 1,2024, night shift differential shall increase to $1.50 per hour.

Traininq Differential - Disoatchers:

City agrees to pay employees in the classification of Dispatcher an additional So/o

salary differential when assigned the responsibility for training newly hired
Dispatche(s).

Training Differential :

When an employee is assigned as a FTO, PTO, lTO, CTO, TTO, or CSTO,
he/she shall receive a pay differential of 5o/o for all hours worked while assigned
to train another employee. Employees in the class of Corporal shall not be

eligible for a Training Differential.

Any FTO, PTO reassigned to another shift to perform the duties of a PTO shall

receive the 5% pay differential for the duration of that assignment. Such
reassignments shall be made pursuant to current operating procedure.

When an officer is assigned by the Police Chief as a Master Officer, the officer
shall receive the 5o/o pa! differential for the duration of the assignment.

The parties agree that creation of the class of Police Corporal satisfies the
requirement contained in Section M. The position of Master Officer shall be

ef iminated not later than July 1,2016.

Longevitv Pay:
1. Subject to subsections 2 and 3 below, the City will pay employees

represented by the FPOA for their continued longevity based on the
following formula. The Longevity Pay increments will be paid on a
monthly basis.

M

N

Additional
Additional

2112o/o
2112o/o
2112o/o

After 10 years of full-time City service
After 15 years of full-time City service
After 20 years of full-time City service

2

Longevity pay shall not exceed a total of 7 1l2o/o per month for an
employee with twenty or more years of full-time City service'

Notwithstanding subsection 1 above, for the period beginning July 1,

2010, and ending June 30, 2011, employee advancement from one
Longevity Pay increment to the next increment shall be frozen.
Employees who would normally have advanced to a higher increment

Page 20

Page 330

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

3.

O. Bilinqual Pav:

during this period shall advance to the next higher increment twelve (12)

months from their anniversary date and shall not receive any retroactive
payment nor shall the elapsed time period between July 1 ,2010, and June
30,2011, be counted for any future advancement.

Employees hired after July 1 ,2010, shall not be eligible to receive
Longevity Pay.

The Police Chief may designate not more than ten (10) employees as

eligible to receive a2.5o/o Bilingual Pay differential. Employees eligible for
Bilingual Pay must (1) speak a foreign language as identified by the City;
(2) agree to utilize his/her bilingual ability on the job; and (3) demonstrate
bilingual proficiency satisfactory to the Director of Human Resources.
Such assignments shall be in writing and must be renewed on an annual
basis.

Employees shall maintain the necessary training and certification
standards established by the City to continue to receive bilingual pay. All
employees receiving bilingual pay shall have their bilingual performance

included as part of the employee's City performance evaluation.
Performance that falls below "meets expectations" may subject the
employee to loss of bilingual PaY.

O. Law Enforcement Retention Pav:

1 ln an effort to encourage employee retention, effective January 1,2022,
the City will pay designated Peace Officers and Dispatchers a Law
Enforcement Retention Pay differential based on the following formula.
Law Enforcement Retention Pay increments will be paid on a monthly
basis.

After 10 years of full-time City service
After 15 years of full-time City service
After 20 years of full-time City service

1

2

Additional
Additional

2 lzYo
2 lzo/o

2lzVo

Designated Peace Officers and Dispatchers currently receiving Longevity Pay,

shall have their benefit converted to Law Enforcement Retention Pay consistent
with the Law Enforcement Retention Pay formula above. Law Enforcement
Retention Pay shall not exceed a total of 7 lzo/o per month for an employee with
twenty or more years of full-time City service.

Page21

Page 331

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
1l1l22to 12131124

All special pay in this Section shall be deemed longevity pay and reported to
CaIPERS as special compensation pursuant to C'C.R' Section 571'

ARTICLE VI - RETIREMENT

A. Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) .' Formula:

1 . All safety employees hired prior to June 30, 2010 shall receive the
retirement benefit of 3o/o @50. All safety employees hired on or after July
1 , 2010 but prior to January 1, 2013 shall receive the retirement benefit of
20 @50. All employees hired on or after January 1,2013 shall receive the
retirement benefit of 2.7o/o@57 or as specified in the Califomia Public
Employee's Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA).

2. All miscellaneous employees hired prior to June 30,2010 shall receive the
retirement benefit of 2.7@55. All miscellaneous employees hired on or
after July 1,2010 shall receive the retirement benefit of 2o/o@55. All
employees hired on or after January 1,2013 shall receive the retirement
benefit 2Yo@62 or as specified in the California Public Employee's
Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA).

3 All employees hired prior to June 30, 2010, shall receive the retirement
benefit based on the single highest twelve (12) months of compensation

All employees hired on or after July 1,2010, shall receive the retirement benefit
based on the employee's highest average monthly compensation during thirty-six
(36) consecutive months of employment as provided in state law pertaining to

PERS.

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) -. Retirement Benefit:

1. Safety employees shall pay 9o/o of the employee share of retirement and
miscellaneous employees shall pay 8o/o of the employee share of
retirement.

B

The City agrees to continue Government Code Section 20691, Conversion
of Employer Paid Member Contributions (EPMC), for miscellaneous
employees.

Employees hired on or after January 1,2013 will pay the employee
contribution as required by PERS, if different from ltem 1 above'

2

3

C. Retiree Health lnsurance
Page22

Page 332

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

(2)

(3)

(4)

c.

1 Existing employees who retirel from City service on July 1,2007 or later
may participate in the health insurance plans made available by the City
for active employees. The amount of the City's monthly contribution shall
be determined as set forth below. Any costs that exceed the maximum
paid by the City towards retiree health insurance costs shall be borne by
the retiree.

Employees who retire with less than 5 years of service2 shall not be
eligible to receive any City contribution toward the cost of retiree health
insurance.
Employees who retire with more than 5 years of service shall qualify for a
monthly City retiree health insurance contribution.

(1) Subject to the maximum set forth in ltem 1.c. below, the City retiree
health insurance contribution shall be as follows:

a

b.

Retiree only - an amount equal to the City's contribution towards
active employee health insurance for the category of "employee
only."
Retiree and one dependent - an amount equal to the City's
contribution towards active employee health insurance for the
category of "employee plus one."
Retiree and two or more dependents - an amount equal to the
City's contribution towards active employee health insurance for the
category of "employee plus one" plus $100.

The City's monthly contribution toward the cost of retiree health insurance
shall not exceed the maximum monthly contribution paid by the City to
active employee health insurance for the categories of employee only (for
retiree only), employee plus one (for retiree plus one dependent), and
employee plus one plus $100 (for retiree plus two or more dependents),
as ofJanuary 1,2012.

(1) The January 1,2012 cap for each category shall be adjusted each
January thereafter by an amount not the exceed 3%, depending on

r "Existing employees" are exclusively permanent and/or probationary employees of the City of
Folsom on tne date this Addendum is approved by the Folsom City Council. "Retire" or "retiree"

is defined as any classified City employee who (1) applies for retirement with the Public
Employees' Retirement System (PERS) within ninety (90) days after terminating employment
with the City; and (2) receives a PERS retirement benefit.
2 "Service" is defined as full time (or equivalent) continuous permanent and/or probationary

employment status with the City of Folsom. 
page23

Page 333

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22lo 12131124

the percent increase in the Consumer Price lndex (CPl), U.S.
Department of Labor, for November - November of the previous
year, Index CPI-W, Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers,
Series #CWUR0400SA0, United States. (Example, if the cost of
living for the specified period increases by 2o/o, the cap shall be
increased by 2o/o. lf the cost of living for the specified period
increases by 4o/o, the cap shall be increased by 3o/o (cost of living
increases in the cap shall be rounded to the nearest tenth.)

2 The City shall contribute $25 per pay period into an HRA for each
probationary/permanent employee.

D. Retiree Dental and Vision lnsurance:

Effective the first full pay period after approval of this MOU by the City Council,
employees who retire from City service must have at least 120 months of
continuous service as a City employee to qualify for dental and vision insurance
benefits provided to active employees. The City shall contribute 5% of the
premium per year of City service, up to an 80% City contribution.

E. Social Securitv Retirement Plan:

Employees in the Police Bargaining Unit shall maintain enrollment in the federal
Social Security System (F.l.C.A.).

ARTICLE VII _ INSURANCE

The City's obligation for health, dental, vision, life and disability insurance coverage is
limited to plan contribution. Plan content, including eligibility criteria, is determined by the
respective carriers.

A. Health lnsurance:
1. Beginning January 1,2011, the City's maximum monthly contribution for active

employee health insurance coverage shall be adjusted annually to an amount
equal to 50% of the increase above the 2010 Kaiser monthly premium rate for
employee only category ($507.89), employee plus 1 category ($1,015.78), and
employee plus 2 or more category ($1,SZO.SZ), rounded to the next whole
number.

Example

Employee only category: The 2010 monthly premium for Kaiser employee
only is $507.89 and the City's maximum monthly contribution is $486.00. lf

Page 24

Page 334

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

2

3

this premium increases by 10% for 2011, or to $558.68, the City's
contribution for 2011 for the employee only category would be computed
as follows: $558.68 - $507.89 = $50.79, $50.79 x 50% = $25'40, $486.00
+ $25.40 = $511.40. After rounding to the next whole number, the City's
maximum contribution for health insurance for the employee only category
would be $511 per month.

Employee plus 1 category: The 2010 monthly premium for Kaiser
employee plus 1 is $1,015.78 and the City's maximum monthly
contribution is $972.00. lf this premium increases by 10%for 2011, or to

$1,117.36, the City's contributionfor 2011 for the employee plus 1

category would be computed as follows: $1 ,1 17.36 - $1 ,015.78 = $101 .58,

$101 .59 x S0% = $50.79, $972.00 + $50.79 = $1,022.79. After rounding
to the next whole number, the City's maximum contribution for health
insurance for the employee plus 1 category would be $1,023 per month.

Employee plus 2 or more category: The 2010 monthly premium for Kaiser
employee plus 2 or more is $1,320.52 and the City's maximum monthly
contribution is $1 ,263.00. lf this premium increases by 10o/o for 2011 , or to

$1,452.57, the City's contribution for 201 1 for the employee plus 2 or more
category would be computed as follows: $1,452.57 - $1,320.52 = $132-05,
$132.05 x 50% = $66.03, $1 ,263 + $66.03 = $1 ,329.03. After rounding to
the next whole number, the City's maximum contribution for health
insurance for the employee plus 2 or more category would be $1,329 per

month.

Employees who select a health plan with higher monthly premiums than the
maximum monthly premium paid by the City (Section A, item 1 above) shall pay

the difference through payroll deduction. Should employees select a health plan

with lower monthly premiums than the maximum monthly premium paid the City,
the City's contribution shall be limited to the cost of the monthly premium'

High Deductible Health Plans

a. The City agrees to offer two High Deductible Health Benefit Plans
offered by the health benefit plan carriers.

The City agrees to make available a Health Savings Account (HSA)

to eligible active employees who select either of the High
Deductible Health Benefit Plans.

Tax status of contributions, contribution amounts, and use of HAS

funds shall be in accordance with federal and state law.

b

c

Page 25

Page 335

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
1l'll22to 12131124

4. Health lnsurance - Cash Back

Probationary or permanent employees, who certify to the Human
Resources Department that they have group health insurance
coverage with comparable benefits to health plans offered by City,
may decline to participate in City health insurance coverage.

Employees who decline to participate in City health insurance
coverage shall receive a cash back payment from the City of $300
per month for each month the employee does not participate in City
health insurance coverage.

Employees who have declined to participate in City health plan

coverage pursuant to this section may enroll in City health plan

coverage only during the annual open enrollment period.

This section shall be administered pursuant to procedures
established by the City Human Resources Department.

Employees who decline health insurance coverage shall continue
to be eligible to participate in the City's vision and dental plans.

An employee whose spouse is employed by the City and receives
health insurance is also eligible to receive the cash back payment

B. IRS 125 Reimbursement Account:

The City will provide access to an IRS 125 Reimbursement Account. Employees may
participate in the account pursuant to administrative procedures established by the City

C. HealthBenefitsLabor-ManagementCommittee:

The parties agree to participate in a city-wide Health Benefits Labor-Management
Committee to review existing health benefit programs, plan changes, and cost
containment. The Health Benefits Labor-Management Committee shall be open to all
employee organizations representing City employees. FPOA may select up to two
representatives to participate in Committee meetings. Employees who participate in

Committee meetings shall do so without loss of compensation.

D. Dental lnsurance

Effective the first full pay period

Page 26

a.

b.

c

d

e.

f

Dental insurance will be provided by Delta Dental Plan

Page 336

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 1213'1124

after approval of this MOU by the City Council, the City will contribute 80% of the
monthly premium for an employee, employee and dependent, or employee and family
as set forth in the plan document.

E. Vision Care

Vision coverage will be provided Vision Services Plan. Effective the first full pay period
after approval of this MOU by the City Council, the City will contribute 80% of the
monthly premium for an employee, employee and dependent, or employee and family
as set forth in the plan document.

F. Life lnsurance:

The City agrees to continue to pay premiums to provide $40,000 life insurance
coverage and $40,000 accidental death and dismemberment coverage for
employees in the bargaining unit for the term of this Agreement.

Eligible dependents shall receive $2,000 life insurance coverage.

G. Short Term litv Prooram

The City agrees to provide a Short-Term Disability lnsurance Program as provided in

the plan document, with the City paying 100% of the monthly premium rate for the
weekly indemnity insurance program (short term disability) of 60% of salary for 26
weeks. The waiting period for initiation of benefits under the plan shall be 12 calendar
days. This program is for non-job-related injuries or illness.

H. Lonq Term Disabilitv Proqram

The City agrees to provide a long-term disability program for employees in the
bargaining unit as provided in the plan document. The plan shall provide for a
maximum benefit of 60% of salary, up to age 65. This program is for non-job-related
injuries or illness.

ARTICLE VIII _ HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

A. Work Shifts and Work Schedules

The Police Chief or designee shall establish work shifts and work schedules for
all employees. Employees shall work shifts of eight, nine, ten, eleven or twelve
hours based on the Police Department's needs.

The Police Department may redefine the first and last day of any scheduled
Page 27

Page 337

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

workweek for each shift. The redefined workweek will be implemented for each
work schedule based on the Police Department's scheduling requirements.

Prior to any permanent change in work schedules, the department will give notice
to the FPOA and, if requested by the FPOA, meet over the impact of such
change.

As a result of a scheduled shift rotation, should an employee be required to work
a different shift with less than a 12-hour period off between the old shift and the
new, that employee shall be granted up to one scheduled shift off or paid

administrative leave to ensure adequate rest between shifts. An employee's
regular days off prior to the shift change shall not be changed for the purposes to
avoid this provision.

All FLSA 7K exemptions for Police officers will apply, e.9., hours worked and
overtime provisions, unless modified by this Memorandum of Understanding,

B. Dayliqht Savinqs Time:

Effective upon Council adoption, if the changeover from Daylight Savings Time to
Standard Time in the fall results in an extended workday, employees shall be
compensated for the actual number of hours worked, including overtime
compensation if appropriate. lf the changeover from Standard Time to Daylight
Savings Time in the spring results in a reduced workday, employees will be
compensated for the actual number of hours worked, except those employees shall
be allowed to debit available annual leave, compensatory time or holiday leave
balances to offset any loss of pay that would otherwise occur.

C. Shift Rotation Schedule

The shift rotation schedule for non-probationary police officers and
sergeants shall be by seniority bidding. The Chief of Police or designee
can alter shift assignments when it is in the best interest of the department
under the following circumstances (the Chief will advise the FPOA
President of his actions and reasons therefore):

Deployment of probationary officers.
Deployment of patrol officers/sergeants in special assignment
positions.
It is recognized by the Chief that there exists an issue of officer
safety or the need to deploy a specific officer due to personal
matters.

1

a.
b.

c.

Page28

Page 338

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

2. Shift rotations shall occur during the following time periods

Patrol Personnel: March and September
Dispatch Personnel: March and September

D. Shift Trade:

A shift trade system is authorized wherein an employee scheduled for duty on a
given day and shift can, with prior notice to the Chief of Police or designee;
arrange to have another employee work for him/her. Shift trades may only take
place between employees who are in the same job classification and within the
same pay period. Example, a Police Officer may only make a shift trade with
another Police Officer. A Police Officer may not make a shift trade with a Police
Sergeant.

E. Minimum Staffino Levels

Police Department staffing levels shall be established by the Chief of Police

F. Overtime:

Overtime may be required of any employee when the Chief of Police or designee
determines it to be in the best interest of the City. Employees will be
compensated only for overtime ordered or authorized by designated supervisory
personnel. However, no employee may be required to work overtime during any
scheduled workweek in which the employee is on unpaid status due to
disciplinary action.

Overtime will be paid for any hours worked outside an employee's scheduled
hours of work.

Time worked in excess of eight (8) hours in a day shall not count in determining
whether an employee has worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a week.

The overtime rate of pay shall be either lTztimes the hourly rate of salary with
respect to cash payment; or 1Tz hours for each hour worked with respect to
compensatory time off (CTO). Compensatory time off hours shall be included on
payroll stubs.

G. Overtime Rotation Svstem:

An overtime rotation system shall be approved by the Chief of Police which
provides an equal opportunity for all officers to assume overtime assignments

Page 29

Page 339

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



H

FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

when the overtime is discretionary

Call-ln Pay:

Any employee called in to work with less than 24 hours' notice shall be
compensated at a minimum of four hours at the overtime pay rate, except
as reflected herein.

The City reserves the right to assign an employee to overtime work
concurrent with the beginning or end of a shift, provided that an employee
is given more than 24 hours' notice. In such cases, the employee will be
compensated hour for hour at time and one half.

3 Employees will be compensated with a minimum of two (2) hours of
overtime pay for departmental meetings and training held outside an
employee's scheduled hours of work.

l. Telephone Standby/Court Preparation:

The City will pay a minimum of two (2) hours of overtime for telephone
standby for court, or cancellation of a court appearance within 24 hours
prior to the scheduled court appearance.

Employees scheduled to appear in court shall be compensated a
minimum of four (4) hours at the overtime rate if the employee reports for
the appearance. Employees who report for a court appearance shall not
be eligible to receive the two (2) hours of overtime for court telephone
standby or less than 24-hour Court cancellation as set forth in ltem 1

above.

J. Compensatorv Time Off:

Compensatory time off (CTO) may be accrued in lieu of overtime pay to a
maximum of one hundred sixty (160) hours. Employees may take CTO off at the
convenience of the City and upon approval of the Chief of Police.

Exception: Events or training, which are subject to outside
reimbursement, will be posted in advance if eligible for overtime pay only'
These instances must be pre-approved by the Chief of Police or designee
and the overtime must be specifically posted as "eligible for overtime pay
only."

1

2

1

2

I

Page 30

Page 340

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

2 Effective the first full pay period after approval of this MOU by the City
Council, employees may, within the first 30 days after ratification by the
City Council, convert all accrued CTO to cash on an hour for hour basis.

K. Standbv Dutv - Dispatchers:

The City may assign a Dispatcher to Standby Duty, as it deems
necessary. Standby Duty requires a Dispatcher so assigned:

To be ready to respond immediately to calls from the City
and to be called into work;
To be reachable by telephone/pager;
To remain within a reasonable distance of the work location;
and
To refrain from activities which might impair their ability to
perform any assigned duties.

Standby Duty shall be for a24-hour period

Employees assigned to Standby Duty shall receive compensation of
$35.00 per 24-hour period.

Employees assigned to Standby Duty and who are called in to work shall
be compensated at the overtime rate pursuant to Article Vlll, Section E

(Overtime) of the Agreement. Article Vlll, Section G (Call-ln Pay) of the
Agreement shall also apply.

Standby Duty shall be assigned by the Police Department on an equitable
basis based on the needs of the department.

ARTICLE IX _ LEAVES

A. Annual Leave:

1. Employees shall receive the following Annual Leave credits

Non-shift personnel (40-hour work week):

1

a.

b.
c.

d.

2.

3.

4.

5

Length of Service
0 - 5 years
5 - 10 years
10 - 15 years
15+ years

Annual Leave Allowance
16.34 hours per month
19.34 hours per month
22.34 hours per month
24.34 hours per month

Page 31

Page 341

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

Shift personnel

Length of Service
0 - 5 years
5 - 10 years
10 - 15 years
15+ years

Annual Leave Allowance
17.00 hours per month
20.00 hours per month
23.00 hours per month
25.00 hours per month

2

3

4

Except as specified in Article lX, Section B below, employees shall not
accrue sick leave. However, employees who have accumulated sick leave
hours shall retain such hours and may use such leave credits pursuant to
Article lX, Section B, below.

Annual leave credits may be used for any approved absence, including
vacation and illness or injury. When annual leave is used for vacation, it
will be scheduled pursuant to City Personnel Rules. When annual leave is
used for illness or injury leave (e.9., sick leave) purposes, it will be taken
pursuant to Article lX, Section B of this MOU.

Employees with annual leave balances that exceed the annual leave caps
of 400 as of the date of ratification of this MOU by City Council, may retain
such balances until the annual leave balances are reduced to the new
cap.

a. To avoid exceeding the maximum of 400 hours of accumulated
annual leave, the City may direct an employee to take time off on
annual leave. However, in the event the City does not approve
annual leave for an employee in an amount sufficient to reduce
accumulated annual leave to 400 hours, the number of hours that
exceed 400 hours shall be rolled over into sick leave until the
annual leave balance is reduced to the cap.

5. Cash Out ofAnnual Leave

Employees may cash out up to 40 hours of annual leave per fiscal
year.
Annual leave shall be cashed out pursuant to procedures
established by the City Human Resources Department.
Accrued annual leave shall be cashed out upon separation of
employment with the City on an hour for hour basis.

Annual vacation requests shall be approved based on department policy

Page 32

a,

b.

6

Page 342

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22lo 12131124

as approved by the Chief of Police

B. Sick Leave:

Sick leave may be used by employees for purposes enumerated in City
Personnel Rules.

The City's contract with CaIPERS permits sick leave to be converted to
service credit for purposes of retirement (Government Code section
20965).

Accrued sick leave shall not be cashed out.

There shall be no maximum on the number of hours of sick leave an
employee may accrue (bank).

C. Holidavs

1 Employees who are not assigned by the Police Chief to work shifts shall receive
the following:

a The following holidays shall be observed by the City:

(1) New Year's Day (January 1)
(2) Martin Luther King Day
(3) President's Day (Washington's Birthday)
(4, Memorial Day
(5) lndependence Day
(6) Labor Day
(7) Veterans Day
(8) Thanksgiving Day
(9) Friday following Thanksgiving Day
(10) December 24
(11) Christmas Day
(12) December 31

(13) One (1) personal holiday as set forth in ltem e) below.

lf any holiday falls on a Saturday, the proceeding Friday shall be observed
as the holiday; and if any such holiday falls on a Sunday, the following
Monday shall be observed as the holiday.

lf a holiday occurs on the employee's first normal day off, the employee
shall take the preceding day as the holiday; however, if the holiday occurs

Page 33

1

2

3

4

b

c.

Page 343

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22lo 12131124

e.

d

on the employee's second consecutive normal day off, the employee shall
take the following day as the holiday.

Notwithstanding the above, eligible employees who are not able to take a

designated holiday day off shall be credited with one (1) additional day of
annual leave (8 hours) for each holiday not taken. Examples of this would
include a non-peace officer assigned to work a shift whose regularly
scheduled work day falls on a holiday or a non-shift peace officer whose
duties required him/her to work on a holiday.

As listed under ltem (a) above, employees shall be entitled to one (1)
personal holiday (8 hours) per calendar year. The personal holiday shall
be taken in the same manner and under the same rules as compensating
time off (CTO), except that employees who have not completed their initial
probationary period may not take their personal holiday until they have
completed the probationary period.

No holiday pay shall be accrued when an employee has been off work on
unpaid status for more than 90 days.

t

2. Effective July 1 ,2010

Employees who are assigned by the Police Chief to work shifts shall
cease accruing Holiday Leave time; instead, such employees shall receive
a 60/o Holiday Pay differential. Holiday Pay shall be multiplied by the
employee's salary step. Employees with accrued Holiday Leave credits
on the books may take such time off in the same manner as Annual
Leave. Holiday Pay shall be compensable for retirement (PERS)
purposes.

D. Use of Accrued Emplovee Furlouoh Time

Between March 2009 and June 2010 employees (except employees in the
classes of Dispatcher l, Dispatcher ll, and Communications Supervisor) had their
salary reduced 2 hours per pay period in exchange for accruing 2 hours per pay
period of Furlough Time. For those employees with accrued Furlough Leave on
the books, the use of Furlough Leave shall be treated the same as Annual
Leave, except that accrued Furlough Leave shall have no cash value.

E. Maternity/Paternitv Leave:

The City and FPOA agree that the family-leave policy will be to provide four (4)
months of maternity/paternity leave, without compensation, consistent with law.

Page 34

Page 344

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

F. FPOA Catastrophic Leave Bank:

1 The purpose of the FPOA catastrophic time bank is to enable employees
to receive and donate accrued annual leave, sick leave, and
compensating time off (CTO) credits to assist employees who have no
leave and who will suffer a financial hardship due to a prolonged illness or
injury to themselves or a member of the immediate family as defined in

City Personnel Rules. The following conditions shall apply:

Catastrophic Leave will be available only to employees who have
exhausted all of their own paid leave through a bonafide serious
illness, injury or FPOA defined catastrophic.
The City shall administer the time bank.
An employee may be on disability insurance and use the time bank
credits in the same manner that sick leave is used to supplement
disability insurance benefits.
All donations are to be confidential, between the donating
employee and the City.
Employees donating to the time bank must have forty (40) hours of
annual leave or sick leave available after making a donation.
Donating employees must sign an authorization form (prepared by
the City) and specify the employee who is to be a recipient of the
donation. Employees relinquish all rights and claims to hours
donated. Donor specific time does not require exhaustion of
accrued leave time by recipient.
Donations shall be subject to applicable tax laws.
Availability of catastrophic leave time shall not delay or prevent the
City from taking action to medically separate or disability retire an
employee.
The City may require a physician's statement stating that the
presence of the employee who is requesting catastrophic leave
time to care for an ill or injured immediate family member is

necessary.

ARTICLE X - MISCELLANEOUS

Fitness for Duty:

1. The City may require an employee to submit to a medical examination by
a physician designated by the City to evaluate the capacity of the
employee to perform the work of the employee's position. The decision to
require an employee to submit to such medical examination shall be

Page 35

a

b,

c.

d

e

f.

g
h

A

Page 345

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

2

3

based upon reasonable cause to believe, by the employee's department
head or designee, that the employee is unable to perform the work of the
employee's position. The City shall pay the cost of such examination.

The physician shall make a written report to the City. Information provided
by the City's physician shall be kept confidential. A copy of the physician's
report shall be given to the employee.

After consideration of the report and other pertinent information, the City
will take steps in accordance with State and Federal law regarding
disabilities. lf the City concludes the employee is unable to perform the
work of his/her present position, the City may demote or transfer the
employee to an appropriate position, including one of less than full time. lf
it is concluded that the employee is unable to perform the duties of his/her
position and the employee cannot be demoted or transferred to another
position, the employee's employment with the City may be terminated.
Any such action shall be considered nondisciplinary. An employee who is
terminated because he/she is unable to perform the duties of his/her
position shall be placed on paid administrative leave until the date of
separation.

An employee terminated pursuant to this section may elect, at the
employee's cost, to an examination by a physician of the employee's
choice. lf the employee's physician finds the employee fit to perform
his/her job duties the employee shall have the right to submit the matter to
binding arbitration, pursuant to Article Xl of this MOU.

After weighing the evidence submitted by both parties, the employee may
be reinstated if the arbitrator determines that the employee is fit to perform
the duties of his/her former position. Reinstatement shall not require
current eligibility on any city employment list. The arbitrator may elect to
pay the employee for some or all of the time between the termination date
and the date of the arbitrator's award.

This section shall not supersede any rights and/or remedies the parties
may have pursuant to the California Workers Compensation system and
Labor Code,

The parties agree to meet during the term of this agreement to review
policies and statutes that govern Fitness for Duty and insure compliance
with state law.

B Citv Vehiele [Jse:

Page 36

Page 346

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

City vehicles shall be assigned at the discretion of the Chief of Police.

C. Probationarv Period

The City will require a 12-month probationary period for all classes in the
police bargaining unit. All regular employees shall serve a 12-month
probationary period upon appointment to a classification in the police
bargaining unit; with the exception that employees appointed to the class
of Police Officer shall begin their 12-month probationary period at the
conclusion of academy graduation. Probationary periods may be
extended consistent with City Personnel Rules.

Notwithstanding Section C, subsection 1 above, employees in the class of
Crime and lntelligence Analyst shall not complete the probationary period
until the employee possesses the Crime and Intelligence Certificate as set
forth in Article V, Section J, subsection 6. Failure of any employee in the
class of Crime and lntelligence Analyst to possess the Crime and
lntelligence Certificate prior to conclusion of the probationary period shall
cause the employee to be released from employment in the class.

Notwithstanding Section C, subsection 1 above, employees in the class of
Dispatcher l/ll, if starting in the entry level of Dispatcher l, will serve a
minimum 18-month probationary period. This involves 12 months in the
probationary trainee position of Dispatcher l, followed by another 6 months
of probation upon advancement to Dispatcher ll. Failure of any
Dispatcher I to attain POST certification prior to the conclusion of the 12

months Dispatcher I probationary period shall cause the employee to be
released from employment in the class.

D. Permanent Part-Time Employees:

Permanent part-time employees are employees hired off an eligible list and who
work at least 20 hours per week and not more than 39 hours per week.

The City agrees to pay 100o/o of the health, dental, and vision insurance
premiums for the employee-only category for permanent part-time employees.
Permanent part-time employees shall have the option to purchase dependent
coverage through the City at rates established by the City's health, dental and
vision insurance carriers. When a permanent parttime employee purchases
dependent coverage, the employee shall pay the difference between the amount
paid by the City for employee-only coverage and the cost of the dependent
coverage.

Page 37

,l

2

3.

Page 347

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

Other benefits provided in the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between
the City and the FPOA shall be allocated to permanent part-time employees on a
pro-rata basis.

E. Voluntary Wellness Program

The Police Department will implement a Voluntary Wellness Program for
employees in the classes of Police Officer, Police Corporal, Police Sergeant, and
Community Service Officer. The purpose of the program is to encourage the
proper physical conditioning and health of law enforcement personnel. The
department shall determine specific procedures and policies; however, key
elements shall include:

Regular exercise regimen. Employees shall be granted up to four hours
(not to exceed one hour per shift) of release time per workweek to
exercise, call load permitting. Such time shall be scheduled at the
discretion of appropriate supervisory personnel.

Participation in an annual "baseline" physical evaluation conducted by the
department.

3. The Chief of Police shall be authorized to implement program changes
which benefit additional members of the FPOA. Those additions will be
published consistent with department directives.

Nothing in this section shall be deemed to interfere or infringe upon the right of
the City to set work schedules and/or hours of work as set forth in Article ll,
Section 1 of this Agreement.

F. Personal Leave Time

Any Personal Leave Time (PLT) earned by employees and still remaining
on the books may be used by employees for time off on an hour for hour
basis until the employee has exhausted the bank. Use of PLT time shall
be subject to the following:

PLT may be used by employees for time off on an hour for hour basis until
the employee has exhausted the bank. Use of PLT time shall be subject
to the following:

Use of PLT shall be subject to the operating needs of the Police
department.

1

2

1

Page 38

Page 348

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

Use of PLT shall not cause the Police department to backfill behind
an employee using PLT.
PLT shall have no cash value and may not be cashed out. lf an
employee terminates employment with the City or retires, any PLT
remaining in the bank shall be surrendered with no value to the
employee.

At such time that the Chief of Police changes the work schedule for
Dispatchers from a 12-hour day shift to a 10-hour day shift, Dispatchers
shall accrue a one-time grant of 100 hours of Personal Leave Time.

Nothing in this section shall be deemed to interfere or infringe upon the
right of the City to set work schedules and/or hours of work as set forth in

Article ll, Section I of this Agreement.
Bi-Weekly Pay Schedule:

Should the City decide to implement a bi-weekly pay schedule (26 pay periods
per year) in lieu of the current bi-monthly pay schedule (24 pay periods per year),

the City shall notify FPOA and implement the bi-weekly pay schedule the first
month after July 1 ,2011 or thereafter that contains three pay days. The parties
agree to further language changes of this MOU necessary to conform to a
biweekly pay schedule.

H. MutualAidAssiqnments:

All personnel assigned by the Chief of Police to provide Mutual Aid to another
public agency will be compensated (portal to portal) from time of assignment to
their return to the police headquarters. While on Mutual Aid assignment,
personnel will be compensated at their regular rate of pay during their normally
assigned shifts. Personnel assigned to work on days off shall be compensated
at the overtime rate.

Specific policies and procedures applicable to MutualAid assignments shall be
determined by the department.

l. Lateral Hire - Police Officer/Dispatcher

As a recruitment incentive for the lateral hire of a Police Officer or Dispatcher, the
City may, at its discretion, offer one or more of the following employment
enhancements:

Accrual of Annual Leave pursuant to Article lX, Section A, at the rate
consistent with the vacation accrual rate of the lateral hire's last place of

Page 39

b.

c.

2

G

1

Page 349

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
1l1l22to 12131124

A.

employment as a Police Officer/Dispatcher.

2. Training and education incentives pursuant to Article V, Section H

Salary step placement consistent with the candidate's previous experience
as a Police Officer/Dispatcher.

Crediting of up to forty (40) hours of personal leave time (PLT). PLT shall
have no cash value. PLT shall be taken in a manner consistent with
department vacation policy. Should a lateral hire terminate employment
with the City, any unused PLT shall be forfeit.

ARTICLE XI _ GRIEVAI\CE PROCEDURE

Definition:
The term "Grievance" as used in this Agreement is limited to a complaint or
request of an employee, group of employees, or FPOA which involves the
interpretation, application, or compliance with the provisions of this Agreement or
City Rules.

B. Time Limits:

Grievances not presented within the time limits established for each step of this
procedure shall not be considered. Should the City fail to answer within the
established time limits, the grievance may be processed to the next level and the
failure to answer shall be given the appropriate weight by the arbitrator.

When days are used in this article for the purpose of establishing time limits,
those limits will be presumed to have been met when the appropriate forms are
either personally delivered to the affected party or deposited in the U.S. mail, as
evidenced by the appropriate postmark.

Time limits may be waived by mutual agreement between the parties. As
referred to in this article, all "days" are "calendar days."

C. Presentation:

An employee and/or FPOA representative may present a grievance while on
duty, provided such presentations and discussions do not disrupt City operations
and are kept to a reasonable minimum.

3.

4.

D. Procedure

Page 40

Page 350

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

1

All grievances as defined herein shall be processed in accordance with this
procedure. All grievances, beginning at Step 2 shall be filed on forms provided
by the City for that purpose. FPOA may refuse to represent a grievant and the
City may refuse to consider a grievance in those circumstances where the
aggrieved party has not followed this procedure.

STEP 1 . Within fifteen (15) days of the act(s) and/or omission(s) giving
rise to the grievance or within fifteen (15) days of the time the employee or
FPOA should reasonably have been aware of said act(s) and/or
omission(s), the grievance shall be discussed informally with the person or
persons most directly responsible for the circumstances which gave rise to
the grievance. lf the grievance is not resolved within fifteen (15) days of
the date on which it is first presented at Step 1, the grievant may proceed
to Step 2.

STEP 2. Within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the Step 1 answer, or if no
answer is given, within thirty (30) days of the Step 1 meeting, the grievant,
if still dissatisfied, shall file with the Police Chief, a formal written
grievance. Within fifteen (15) days of the receipt of the formal grievance
the Police Chief or designee shall meet with the grievant to discuss the
matter. The Police Chief or designee shall respond to the grievant, in
writing, within fifteen (15) days of the Step 2 meeting. The Step 2
response shall include the position of the Police Department and the
reasons therefore, as related to the grievance.

STEP 3. Within fifteen (15) days of the Step 2 response or, if no Step 2
response is received, within thirty (30) days of the Step 2 meeting, the
grievance may be presented in writing to the City's Employee Relations
Officer. The Employee Relations Officer shall conduct such investigation
as is deemed appropriate and shall issue a written determination within
thirty (30) days of the date on which the grievance is first presented at
Step 3. lf the Employee Relations Officer fails to issue a written
determination within the prescribed period of time or if the determination is
not satisfactory to the grievant, the grievant may request that the matter
be submitted to binding arbitration.

Matters involving the interpretation or application of this Agreement may
only be submitted to Step 4 by FPOA. Employees may submit matters of
discipline to arbitration pursuant to Article Xll of this Agreement.

STEP 4. A request for binding arbitration shall be made in writing to the
Employee Relations Officer within fifteen (15) days of the date which the
grievant received a copy of the written determination of Step 3, or in the

Page 41

2

3

4

Page 351

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

A. Policy:

event that no Step 3 answer is received, within forty-five (45) days of the
date of the Step 3 meeting. An arbitrator may be selected by mutual
agreement between the parties. However, should the parties fail to
voluntarily agree upon an arbitrator, the parties shall make a joint request
to the American Arbitration Association or the Mediation and Conciliation
Service of the State of California. The parties shall request a list of five (5)
qualified arbitrators. Each party shall alternately strike one name from the
list and the last remaining name shall serve as arbitrator. The first party to
strike a name shall be determined by the toss of a coin.

The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding on the City, FPOA, and
the grievant. The arbitrator shall have no authority to add to or delete from
the terms of this Agreement or City rules. All fees and costs of the
arbitrator and court reporter, if any, shall be borne equally by the parties.
ln matters of discipline, which have not been submitted to arbitration by
FPOA, all costs will be split between the parties to the arbitration and shall
not include FPOA.

ARTICLE XII - DISCPLINE PROCEDURE

It is the policy of the City that discipline of City employees be imposed on an appropriate
and consistent basis. When an employee engages in misconduct or when job
performance is unsatisfactory in the judgment of the City, disciplinary action may be
initiated. This article modifies disciplinary procedures identified in City Personnel Rules.

B. Definition

As used herein, "disciplinary action" means written reprimand, suspension without
pay, reduction in pay, demotion, or dismissal.

C. Persons Authorized to lnitiate Disciplinarv Action:

Discipline may be initiated by those authorized in the City Personnel Rules.

D. Application of Appeal Procedure

Permanent Status: This article shall only apply to employees with permanent
status with the City.

Probationary Status: An employee in probationary status shall have no right to
grieve or arbitrate release from probationary appointment.

Page 42

1

2

Page 352

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

Temporary Employee: An employee in a temporary position shall have no right to
grieve or arbitrate release from temporary appointment.

Temporary Upgrade (Out of Class): An employee in a temporary upgrade status
shall have no right to grieve or arbitrate release from temporary upgrade status.

A written reprimand shall be appealable only to the City Manager or his/her
designee with the right to present the employee's position and supporting
evidence, but no right to confront or cross examine witnesses. The decision of
the City Manager or designee shall be final.

6. Upon the request of an employee, a written reprimand shall be removed from an
employee's personnel file after two (2) years from the original date of issuance;
provided, however, that the employee has not been subject to disciplinary action
during the two (2) year period.

7. A counseling memorandum, letter of instruction or similar action shall not be
considered formal disciplinary action. Such measures shall be considered corrective
action. The Police Chief may issue General Orders defining corrective action
measures and identify those management personnel who can issue such measures.
Corrective action may not be appealed beyond the Police Chief.

E. Cause for Disciplinary Action:

1 Discipline shall be for cause. Examples of conduct or performance
deficiencies that may warrant discipline include, but are not limited to
(more examples can be found in the City Personnel Rules):

Misstatement of facts during the hiring process
Falsification of an entry on a City document (e.9., time card, expense
report)
Disclosure of confidential information
lnsubordination or willful disobedience
lncompetence, inefficiency or unsatisfactory job performance
Discriminatory, discourteous, or unbecoming behavior
Theft, misuse or unauthorized use or possession of City property
Dishonesty
Misconduct, i.e., any behavior that brings harm or discredit to the City
Being under the influence of illegal drugs or alcohol or possessing illegal
drugs while on City property or on official business

3

4

5

a.
b.

c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.
i.
j.

Page 43

Page 353

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111122 to 12131124

Conviction of a felony or misdemeanor that involves moral turpitude, or
any other conviction or pleas of nolo contendere (no contest) or diversion
for such offense, which adversely affects, or brings discredit to, the City
Excessive absence or tardiness
Absence without approved leave
Violation of a City rule, policy, or procedure
Soliciting outside work for personal gain during the conduct of City
business; engaging in outside employment for any business under
contract by the City; participating in any outside employment that
adversely affects the employee's City work performance; and engaging in

unauthorized outside employment
Loss or failure to maintain any license, certification, and/or clearance
which is required as a minimum qualification or condition of employment
for the employee's position

F. Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary Action:

I A copy of the preliminary notice of disciplinary action shall be served upon the
employee either personally, or by first class mail and certified mail, return receipt
requested, to the last known address of the employee. The last known address
shall be deemed to be the address that is within the employee's official personnel
file. lf notice is provided by mail, the employee should be deemed to have
received notice ten (10) work days after the date of mailing.

2. The Preliminary Notice shall include

A statement of the nature of the disciplinary action;
The effective date of the disciplinary action;
A statement of the reasons for the disciplinary action citing the item(s) under
Article Xll, Section E, General Orders, or the Personnel Rules which have
been violated;
Any supporting material or documentation;
A Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary Action shall be valid provided it
contains a statement advising the employee of the right to request
a Skelly Meeting, the manner and time in which the request for a
Skelly Meeting must be made, and the required content of the
request for a Skelly Meeting; and
The name and address of the person to whom all written
communication regarding this Skelly Meeting [alternatively, matter]
shall be sent."

p.

k.

t.

m
n.
o.

a.
b.
c.

d.
e.

t

G. Skellv Meetinq:

Page 44

Page 354

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

An employee who is subject to disciplinary action shall have the right,
within five (5)work days after receiving a Proposed Notice of Disciplinary
Action to request a Skelly Meeting by filing a written request for a meeting
signed by the employee or the employee's representative with the
employee's consent with the City Human Resources Director.

Failure to respond or inaction within the specified time will result in the
waiver of the right to a Skelly meeting and the proposed discipline
becoming final.

Upon a written request for a Skelly meeting, the City shall appoint a
"skelly Officer". The Skelly Officer will meet with the employee, listen to
arguments and receive documents presented by the employee. Within a
reasonable time and in writing, the Skelly Officer shall respond to the City,
with a copy to the employee and the employee's representative, if
applicable. The Skelly Officer may recommend that the City dismiss,
modify, or sustain the proposed discipline.

lf the proposed discipline is sustained or modified by the City after the
Skelly Meeting, the disciplinary action shall be implemented. A Final
Notice of Disciplinary Action shall be served in the same manner as the
Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary Action, except that the Final Notice of
Disciplinary Action shall include a statement advising the employee of the
right to appeal the action, the manner and time in which the appeal must
be made, the required content of the appeal, and the name and address of
the person to whom allwritten communication regarding the appeal shall
be sent.

H. Appeal of Disciplinary Action:

1 Within ten (10) work days after receipt of the Final Notice of Disciplinary
Action, disciplinary actions may be appealed to arbitration. Notice of the
appeal must be filed with the Human Resources Director. lf the employee
fails to file a notice of appeal within this time period, the disciplinary action
shall become final and there shall be no further appeal.

The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties. No
appeal or review of the arbitrator's decision by Writ or other mechanism
before any court, administrative tribunal or any other forum on any legal
theory or basis shall be possible.

Appeals of disciplinary actions to arbitration shall be pursuant to Article Xl

Page 45

1

2

3

4

2

3.

Page 355

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

A. Lavoff

a

b

c.

d.

(Grievance Procedure) of this Agreement, except that on disciplinary
appeals:

An appeal of a disciplinary action is a complaint of a permanent
employee of whether there was cause for the disciplinary action
taken against the employee.
The parties to the discipline hearing and to the selection of the
arbitrator shall be the employee, who may be represented by
FPOA, self-represented, or independent counsel, and the City who
may be represented by the Human Resources Department or
counsel.
The employee shall be entitled to appear personally at the hearing
and produce evidence.
The fees and expenses of the arbitrator, a court reporter and
transcript if required by the arbitrator, shall be shared equally by the
parties.

ARTICLE XIII _ LAYOFF

When it becomes necessary due to lack of work, lack of funds, or in the interest
of economy, to reduce the number of employees in the Police Department
bargaining unit, the order in which employees will be laid off within each class
affected by the layoff shall be based on seniority as provided in Section C.

1. Area of Layoff:

The City shall determine the area(s) and positions in which layoffs may
occur, including the identification of the division, work unit, class, and
specific position. When a list of the affected areas and/or positions has
been prepared, the City will give notice to FPOA prior to implementation of
the layoff, and upon request, shall meet with FPOA in good faith regarding
the impact of the layoff (consistent with Section H). Unless agreed
otherwise, the following layoff procedure shall be followed:

Employees holding temporary, seasonal, part-time, probationary, or
provisional appointments in the class shall be laid off first.
Employees serving in a regular parttime position shall be laid off

second. Employees who have completed probation (i.e. permanent
employees) shall be laid off last. Employees off work on approved
leave (workers compensation, disability leave, etc.)who are

Page 46

a

Page 356

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111122 to 12131124

b.

identified for layoff shall be laid off in the same manner as if the
employee was on active duty.

Should it become necessary to lay off permanent employees, the
employees laid off shall be those with the least service credit within
the identified classifications in the department. lf two (2) or more
employees in this circumstance possess essentially the same
amount of service credit, the Police department shall determine
which person shall be laid off.

2. Seniority Defined

Seniority shall be defined by the date of the most recent appointment to
the classification. Time served as a probationary employee in the class
shall be included in determining seniority.

3. Notification:

Employees to be laid off shall be given final written notification by the City
of such action. Whenever possible, such notification shall be given a
minimum of thirty (30) calendar days prior to the effective date of the
layoff. At its discretion, the City may also issue preliminary written layoff
notices.

4. Right to Demote:

Any employee who is scheduled for layoff shall have a right to demote to a
class in which the employee formerly held permanent status. Any
employee scheduled for layoff in a class outside the bargaining unit shall
bump into a class in the bargaining unit if they formerly held permanent
status in that class. lf there is no authorized position in the class to which
the employee would otherwise have a right to demote, then the employee
shall be laid off from employment.
The right to demote shall be implemented as follows:

lf there is only one other lower salaried class in which the employee
formerly held permanent status, the employee shall be demoted to
that class. lf there is no vacancy in that class and the demoting
employee has less seniority than all other employees in that class,
the demoting employee shall be laid off from that class and from
employment.

a

b. lf there are two or more lower salaried classes in which the

Page 47

Page 357

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111122 to 12131124

c

d

e

employee formerly held permanent status, the employee shall be
demoted to that class in which the employee formerly held
permanent status which has the highest salary. lf there is no
vacancy in that class, and the demoting employee has less
seniority than all other employees in that class, the above process
shall continue until the demoting employee either reaches a class in
which the employee formerly held permanent status in which there
is a vacancy or in which the employee is not the least senior
employee in that class, or the employee is laid off from
employment.

An employee who is least senior in a class in which there is no
vacancy and to which an employee demotes from a higher class
shall be laid off from that class, and shall have the same right to
demote as does any other employee who is laid off.

An employee demoted under this procedure shall be deemed to
have exercised the employee's right to demote and to have
accepted each demotion, subject to the employee's right to resign
from employment.

An employee who is demoted from a class in which the employee
holds permanent status shall be deemed for all purposes to have
been laid off from each class from which the employee
subsequently demotes or is displaced, including classes which the
employee passes through because of the absence of a vacancy
and insufficient seniority to occupy a position.

Reemployment:

The names of employees laid off in accordance with provisions of this
section shall be placed on a reemployment list. Names shall be placed on
a reemployment list by classification in order of seniority. A reemployment
list will be used to fill vacancies in the classification before any other
eligible list that exists for that classification. ln the event that a person on
layoff declines reemployment to a vacant position in the classification from
which the employee was laid off, or cannot be contacted through
telephone and certified mail within fifteen (15)working days, such person's
name shall be removed from the reemployment list.

A reemployment list will remain in effect for two (2) years unless
specifically extended, or sooner if exhausted. Upon reinstatement an
employee will be eligible for all benefits acquired by the employee prior to

5

Page 48

Page 358

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

the layoff, including prior Annual Leave accrual rates, health benefits
provided in the current FPOA Memorandum of Understanding, retirement
tier (as permitted by PERS law) and seniority. An employee shall not
receive credit for time spent on layoff in computing time for any benefit
entitlement. Rehire shall be subject to successful completion of pertinent
psychological, med ical, polygraph, and backg rou nd i nvestigations.

6. Appeals:

lnterpretations of the provisions of this section may be appealed through
the grievance procedure (Article Xl) of this Agreement. Such grievances
must be filed within five (5) work days of final written notification of the
proposed layoff. For the purpose of appealing interpretations of this
section, grievances shall be filed directly with the City Manager (Step 3 of
the grievance procedure). The filing of a grievance shall not prevent the
City from implementing the layoff. The reasons or necessity for the layoff
shall not be subject to the grievance procedure or appeal.

7 Nothing in this section shall delay or limit the City's right to lay off
employees.

ARTICLE XIV - TERM AND SIGNATURE CLAUSE

A. Term of Aqreement

This Memorandum of Understanding incorporates all modifications regarding
wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment. This Memorandum
of Understanding shall be effective as of January 1,2022, and shall expire
December 31,2024. Should either party desire to commence the meet and
confer process for the next subsequent Memorandum of Understanding, that
party shall notify the other in writing no earlier than one hundred twenty ('120)
calendar days prior to the expiration date of the existing Memorandum of
Understanding, and the meet and confer process shall begin no later than ninety
(90) calendar days prior to the expiration date of this Agreement.

Page 49

Page 359

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
1l1l22lo 12131124

B. Signature Clause:

The terms and conditions of this Memorandum of Understanding are executed
this _ day of 2021 by the employer-employee
representatives whose signatures appear below on behalf of their respective
organizations.

CITY OF FOLSOM FOLSOM POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION

Page 50

Page 360

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

Attachment A. Sala Schedules
ATTACHMENTS

75.943

75,983

61,511

65,323

13

94,616

51-511

12

96,27L

7r-422

60.011

74.lN

74r30

50,011

4,76

70.o70

s9.762

73_427

73,A27

II

93,854

'tu

91,575

68,361

58.304

72.O27

72,O27

52,302 63,a60

56.842

70_27fJ

70,270

55.882

@,7a2

101-317

108,3:tt)

123_O4S

101,738

8!r,341

84.468

66,594

t'

108330
105.175

119_451

,771

87,153

45.491

55,67

55,495

68.556

68,556

55,495

59_3{X}

94,355

61,511
v,t4t

75,98:t
66.884

75,983
66.844

61,511

69,O19

s7.a9t

t

95_501

lot688
102.112

95,8!X

94.516

85,037

a3_390

6

92-720

103,791
99.137

t2o..0441 123.045
112.503 115.9a1

93_101

96.211

a2,962

40.961

51.932 ; 53.480

60,011
52,aZO

74,t8
65.253

74,L29
65.253

60,011
s2,820 i s4,t4t

67,336
56.4rli|

91-576
g,%o

74.@3

60,421

57,153
51,532

m,5*,
63.661

70,59
53.651

57.153
51-532

u,t29
5S-056

5

90-o19

98,79t)
96.250

11.7,115

1(x).324

90-190

53.723

4

94,O:to

93,447

111,539

47.163

78,955

54,435
50,275

67,2&

62.104

54,435
9.275

51,075

3

a5-201 A7.737

a2_962

77,O39

51,831
49.O19

54,028
50.594 I 62.108

64.028 I 67.2&
60.5!t4

51,831
49.O49

54,L67
52.412

4739784.852

89,49!t
90.725

106.218
1o3.o4a I to6.ill9

55.107

49,379

47.453

60,985
59.116

60.985
59.116

49,379
47,45?

55,397
s1.ilt4

2

a23ao

85,187
88.O82

101,149
1@.U7

82,719

78.965

75,tffi

'|

80,310

73,327

69.437

53,435

47,O22

45,585

58,090

58,(x,O

57,674

47,O22
116.686

52,759
49.847

z),508

85,517

95,332
97.133

l(Nte

81,G2Il8P

4aP

54P

49D

75.1604SP

45P

51,121

3aD

:t4P

33P

33P

51P

51P i 57,674

51P

51P

33P

33P

40P
40P

4lP

79.98144P

5UH

A
B

NS

A

NB

A

SrknSdrc&hiltrf lofccr*

:OMMUNICATIONS SUPERVISOR

:RIME ANALYST

B

DISPATCHER I

DISPATCHER II

POUCI COMM SRVCS OFFTCER

FOIICE RECORDS CI"ERK A
I

POUCE RECORDS SUPERVISOR A
B

POUCE VOLUNTEER COORD A

B

PROPERTY/EVIDENCE TECH A
I

SR POUC€ RECORDS CT.€RK A
I

ki 
'}@ 

d sdrGddr "A' w hl.d tu b O2ltStOt4. An odp6 @ l.h.Atb "9"'

ULAI'!'IFI(;AI I(JN

OFFIC€R

POUCE OFFIC[R
A/8

CORPORAL

ASERGEANT

I

ilISCELI.ANEOUS:

Page 51

Page 361

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

SalarvSdedule 2O23 (effectiwJanuary 1, 2023) - 3.00t6 COIA
13

l0/,357

104,790

101.575

53,355

7237a 74,t8 76,0/'2, 76,354 7a,263

7237a 74$8 76,0,'2',. 76,354 i 7a,262

63.356

__ qAzr_ 77t

12

126,736

99.O97

91,122

73,9Tt

61,811

58.5a8 60.053 61.554 6r-811

11

111.S80

92.022 94.323 95.580

58,695 70,4t2 72,172

5&588 60,053 i 51,554

10I6

44P E2.36o 84.E52 a7lg7 90,019 g2.72o ss.sor I 98.386 101.317

101,754 106,904 108,858 111,580

108.330

123,045

49D 757

101.575

49,774

85,891 8a,458

-6t38s-1 
6?.oit

33P 44,433 53,386

33P 7g s7,t59

51P 74,262
51P

70.613

57,159

61,079

I

105.175

t26,736
119,451

87,584

_L1,26_2_
68,8q)

53.355

55,755

71,090

59,58!)

6

41P 72,624

88.082 .725 93.47 95.250 99.137 102.112

54P

54P

45P _911?1_ _ esM ._ 8e1t_a,__ !,2_zz _EV
77,414 79,350 81,334 83,368 85.45145P 75,527

83.390

55,039 57,790 59,235 @,716 62,234 63,790

5lP 62,814 -€.I9*
51P

--:9,99
49,28448,O85 50,521 5L7A4

s4,342POLICE RECORDS CtIRK 40P 57,059

I tloP _ s_1!91* _ sL6_q 5&136

TheM edulc Nlotuorc%tu"8.'

5

71.933 74.@1 76.313 78.603 80_961

4

48P 83,515 a7,743 92,tU 95,851

32'lTING

3AD

34P

33P

33P

5(;H

OFFICER

A/B

B

A

B

A/B

A

B

A,/B

A

als

B

A

B

A

B

A
B

ULAlj:'I-l(;AilON

POUCE OFFICER

ffiCddi.d/l'd)

CORPORAL

SERGEANT

COMMUNICATIONS SUPERVISOR

CRIME ANALYST

DISPATCHER I

DISPATCHER II

POUCE COMM SRVCS OFFICER

POUCE RECORDS CITRK

POUCE RECORDS SUPERVISOR

POUCE VOLUNTEER COORD

PROPERTY/EVIOENCE TECH

Page 52

Page 362

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

't3

Lo,,622

80,610

80,610

55,257

70,362

12

97,152 99,s80 102,070

7433a 76.196

76,4t3 , 7a323 7A,&4

75,4t3 7a323 78,U4

61,855 53,401 63,665

10I

94,742

93,856

70,755

5r,855 53,401

74,99

74,519

50,345

&,44

107.448

114.929

a

104,357

114,928

111.580

, 126,719_

lo4,7a6

92,471

91,t22

69,030

58,874

72,73t

72,731

58,874

62,911

I

80,610

6

110,111 tt2,t24
tos.l7s 108.330

t27,355 130,538

_-, ee,77l ]9\]1
t@.,622102,070

_lur46:1 _ _1_?194s

88.015 90.216

85,891 88,458

63,665 65,257

*-6-s.?91, - -qry,

*- s-5r91l;- 
-Z:4-3.8-

74,@4

69,227' 70,957

78,&4 . 80.610

69,227 | 70,957

53.555 65.257

56,037 57,43A

__ _.7]417___11,n3_
59,880 6t,377

4lb

I

92,720 95,501 9&365 tol,317

___ re,z:g___ 
-19180699,137 102,112

118,332 t24,28
* -l!!P3-: -.-!15,991,

** 93,101 _._.95,894

92,47t 97,152
43,774 85.869

80,951 83.390

qli:g-'_ __9!101

s7.750 50.533

s3,337

7L,324 74.899

65,891 67,538

7L,334 74,899

65,891 62s38

57,750 @,633

_ 53,337_,__ s4,671

@,795 68,035

-- "-. 19.e91 . -- - . 19118-

5

67,927

52.036

z

52,346 54.987

64,699 67,927

64,699

62,776 U,2U

52,386 54,987

50.76''

1

74,802

u,452 a7397 90,019

86,020 90.375 94.949

90,725 93,447 96,250

139106,

a7

79.737 83.774 | 8A.O15

77,1e2 | ___7e,U,,.-_31f17

&,u3'

76.313 7A-6{)374,O97

56,690 59,524 6t,O12

49,846

49,529 50,767

61,627

61,186 62,716 U,2U

6t,627
6l-185

49,846

49,529

RNGscH

--,,, l- * -

NA 44P

A , /tsP

B

Ns 49Dt--
A 45P

I 45P

33P

34P

B 33P

A 51P

I srP

AI51P
I 51P

A 33P

B 33P

- 3.00r(cot-A

PROPERTY/EVIDENC€ TECH

]LASSIFIGATION

)ISPATCHER I

DISPATCHER II A 38D

POUCE COMM SRVCS OFFICER

POUCE RECORDS CITRK

POUCT RECORDS SUPERVISOR

POUCE VOTUNTEER COORD

POUC€ R€COROS CTERK A

B

NlotuEileffide'8.

40P

40P

Scfiedule 2024

4tP
OFFICER

POUCE OFFICER

tffihrad/udl

CORPORAT

MISCELI.ANEOUS:

B 54P

COMMUNICATIONS SUPERVISOR

CRIME ANALYST

r

Page 53

Page 363

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

Attachment B. Salary Step Placement

l312

97 891 tl

11

95.501.6!

10

92,794.41

95.495.89

ll'8.Eal.8l

95.495.49

104.556.86

sqtl tu

97.891,11

l0t.317 12

1.009{

108,330.20

J.U]3i

r2f.064.75
J.(lnt

91.155.72

98.197.74

101.7J8.15

I 00s6

roa.li0.20

1 15.944.48

a

RC1?l17

95.019.94

98.155.t3
1.O{Fr

104.556.85

102.111.78

105,174.95

1.m96

119,.t60.91

l.m9r

90.89d.15

9Z.tL4.4E

95,430.99

98,t1.08
l-ff)*

rrJ. r55.12

7

86 16A qq

q1 171 7A

9S.50!.29
J_fir6

102.113.78

100.280.72

lo5,64/. /5
102.111.60

3,009{

il8.883.83

12ftr'76
11S.981_49

3_009(

88.633.81

90,014.04

92.551.45

95.894_25

I O09{

D0.o!-d t5

93,10I.21

a

8d.06-t 19

89 EB/! ?5

92,7L9.78
J.t u,i

r00.280.72
97.81!.S9

101.79.54

99.117 d8

3.009{

115.984.88

110,461.60

112,603.19

3.009{

86.472.01

87.392.?7

89.952.86

3.001

82.017.18

86.975 m
90.019 1l

J.Wh

gq dtg rq

95.,t49.15

98.781).87

96.249.98

Lm9l

u3.155.12
LD7,767.03

117.11S 54

r09.t23.58
3.m16

8d.162_94

84.8{6.86

87_132.88

9()-189.53

3.00r

4

80.016_41

84.!,dl75
87.397 2 r

J-U

go 8q0 )q
91.176-95

94.010.01

93.dd6 58

Lm9(

107.757.03

105.191-9{

lll_sl8-87
106.r19.49

LOO9i

82.305J0

82.375.59

84.789,20

6 t . t5h.Er

1.009r

79.975.31

3

78.066.94

81..982.28

84.851.55
J.WN

86 d72 !l
T.904.75

89.498.9{;

9,724.M
l_m9i

t02,525.?8
102,525.28

105.:18.20
l03.oa8 05

1"009{

80.297 85

82,119.61

85,2m.80
I 009(

lm.i7l.7l

tt.645.9)

7R lS Cl

79.594.45

81.180.26
lm9

82 305 6d

88.5:]4.55

85.187.17

88.082 l5
J.t t 9i

97,728.68

101.149.19

lm.045.55
JWT

78.119.17

79,9?r.95

82,719.22

I m9(

8t oa2 50

95.rto1.99

a.Jas &

1

C.r.€nt

64.l24.05

70.50&40

7d 101 d

11 )fR IE

79.980.83

f -r.e'!1
78 3d0 58

86.t17.1-49

85.516.86

C;r'elrt
9:1.07d 2ir

%l?t g

97.131_67

7d 608-91

77 S9d r.3

80,309_92

RI\K'

4tP

{rP

MO

,laP

54p

490

I

s

B

u--H

A,/8

I

A/B

r,4a.lei Ad_

:LA.sSIFICATION
Placement as of &

POLKE OfFTEN
.VBlPnutftilPE 1.Pk.r

poUcE oFFrctR
1ro9-Cfi,i6n!l<ol

POLKT OFFICTR

IES' Cdi.di L!!.e|.

Efr: 0ll0VX22

coRpoRAt

Erf 0l/oV202l
ra.l€ foa -ew Jgpointmentg

SERGEAIi/T

Eft 0r/0v1022
ra.!€ ior.€[ a!,Fo ntment5

MISCELTANEOUS:

COMMUNICATIONS SUPERV60R

Eff 0I./ot/2022

Page 54

Page 364

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

13

71 769 9.)

75,S1.09

95,7'r{.15

q6lKm

59,719.22

51.510.80

73,769.9

75.981.m

It.Elt.ol

14.129 E4

71.91D.71

12

93.4m51

21fl78

8S,47531

59.730.10

58252.65

60.010.53

77.97077

1t.LZg.M

1

91,1_t0.25

91.f5/t 16

5A 07q U

70,078.8

58.020.92

59,'16!.55

'17.>17-07

7t.t27.3a

7),,677.O7

13,t27.X

10

88,908.29

91.s75.54

85,475.31

8t-357.71

56170t'

58,t61.22

55.605.78

s8.301_96

Aq qtt f,q

77,026.7L

69,928.85

72,076.71

Ef.391.52

I

86.I39.11

mut4q

79.371.11

85.476.31

88,1l57.S
I filt

64.7S1:tl

55.591.87

55.225.14

!i6.881.89

68,2)417

70,269.97

ffi,221)7

m.269.97

tl,J5/.55

55,067.20

54.555-tX

55.559.24

a

84.62'1.41

87 t6l tq

77.4!7.X

82,986.71

85.891.24

im

63.172.(X

53,878.19

55.ilgtl.5l

65.559 )8

68.ss5.06

51,510_80

to.559.62

6J,44U.19

79.9a2.55

54.93S-88

95.744_16

82550_30

98.516.i8
8S.0t7 10

79,373.17

75.548.77

83.38r:1.56

1.0096

61,63125

59.719.22

52,S54.09

54.1i!1.01

71,769.57

64.9t5.84

66,8A1.95

7f .769.97

55.8St.95

93,{08.51

ta.)il.9f

50.olo.5l

6

80,545.85

96,210.76
82.962.21

71,4f7.!O

71.ffi.05

80,960.71

3.009{

6n l)t n(

61.931.89

58.262.65

51.242.01

52,820.d9

71,97!._ll
6t t() m

74.1t9.41
65.252.65

71.970.31

63,152.09

65,252.65

91.575.5tt

75,544.11

54.551 51

5

88,96_29

78_582.18

80.919.611

71,9G.36

75.94!59

78,602.65

l.mx

50,t!21.15

55,i!88,23

so,031:5

s7,152.88

51.5:t2.19

ba54J_15

51 8rE qr

70,59:).i|5

51.551.11

58.541.15

51.8(x_91

53.651.11

87 153 15

/r-qJa-J2

57.239-5/t

50.299.42

52.toa 40

4

84.62d.41

76_55t-87

7t qg r)

70,154J1

73.712.62

76_113:5
i_tx)%

s-7-2]fl-74

5E,947.55

q) atq 16

'18,810.99

54.t34J4
50.275 tl

6S.281-11

50 299 d2

65.281 l1

6''.2!954
52.t08.40

82.961.21

5/.5tD.9]

b4,o27.59

60,59J.57

5A,E2a./l

5l,8lo.98

3

80,545.85

74.795.O2

ft.o]as,

68,/t41.35

68.4!t.15

71,585.G

74,0S.54
l-uj%

55.834.88

50-321 l!
47.620.48

{9.M9 0t}

62,162.70

58.828.71

52.r52.70

50,593.57

t6.w,al

69,5m.(E

49.:179 tll

59,t08.45

72,970.a3

78,964.82

79.199 54

55.145.S0

65.771.99

1L.9t7.
3.m9(

54,471.05

56, r0/.24

47.940.85

45,459.01

47,8t2.78

q7 lql tr

60,984.71

59,115.68

59,208.46

57,391.85

59,115.68

12.970.41

61.11t.J9

4t.gzz-za

55-:|9/-78

1

l:era€ni

7l.19L(B

75.159.5n

71.3!6_82

Crrrent
59.0s:t.75

61 1)O 61

fJr.Pnl
52.tx)6.32

55.1il5 St]

69,817.'lil

ql n7g m

53.!3S 17

: -rrEni
,r5.65270

45.t25_85

116.685 6l

-err€nl

qq q<u nt

58,089.72

57.673.83

55.397.78

3S.994.01

s1.871 8z

RtlG

45P

45P

45p

45P

lal)
t€o

lao

1!p

l!P

ltp
13p

JJP

3:tP

51P
qtp

5tp
5tP

5rp
51p

5tP
5lP

scH

R

A/B

A,iB

B

B

B

B

I

pollc€ REcoRDs crrRr

.RIME A'{ALYsT

Placement ar of 2072 &
CLASS'FICATION

Eff: 01./01-/.

JIs'AICHTR I

Eff: 01./OV2O22

JYAILHTX il

ll€w Sti

Ell: Ol/Ot/2oz)

POI.jCE COMM SRVCS OFFICER

Eff: 0UOVI?]

Eff: 0l/0V2022

SUP€RVISOR

Efi. OllO'Jm22

POtf,E VOLUNIETR COORD

Page 55

Page 365

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



FPOA Memorandum of Understanding
111l22to 12131124

Eir. 01/0v2022

Eff. 0v0v202t

;R por-lct REcoRDs cuil(

JI(JPIRIY/TVIDENCE IEtH

!,t'AsltstcAlKJN

6

a

B

scH

/u)P

iloP

&p
AOP

t1p
JJP

3lp
*lp

RN'G

49.646.95

52.759.01

la,43:1.91
51.222-]lt

furrent

,A 6tq 61

41.Ot2,24

4S,t25 8s

45,652.70

:!rrent

t

t ota : tu od sct dic' A' e?. e tr. d rnq @ a /J6/ o U. Atl otk t t ot c gtudlk B.'

51. tJ4.11
55.197.m

69.6tr,.71
53.781.50

a7,as2-.n
49,379.0!t

/6.d59 m
47,9r0.85

,

51,412.1l5

58,16-/.2s

50,845.89
,47f.6

ilr!),o4I).09

51,Eto.96

47,520.a8

50,t21_34

3

51.722-78

51,075.51l

52.158.oir

59,296.7i

50_275J1

54,r1]l-8/t

{8.810.99

52.84936

4

55,tt95,85

64,129.i10

53,rt61.99

6.4,,461.56

s1_932_r9

57.152_88

50,031,25

55iEa-23

5

52.420 49

56,442.50

67,335.87

s.855
55,J74.51

60,010,53

51.242.03

5E.252.55

o

5 /,45J.54
59,019.25

56.154.49

57.fi)8-99

5d 141 01

bl,5t0.Eo

5156{.t}9
s9.719.22

7

59,rr9.X'

5J,572_71

qq itql ql

s3.878.19

u), tal.at)

59,012.04

55.881.89

55,225 14

I

52.1Ol.95

60,487.1t}

58.301.96

s6,605.78

10

5f,459.51

61.999.92

s9.751.55

58,020.92

5't.70552

51t2090

60_010J3

58.262_65

1?

66,t23.17

b., J9I,AJ

61.510 8n

99.7L9)7

13

Placemem EnforceflEnt &

Page 56

Page 366

12/14/2021 Item No.25.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

MEETING DATE: I2lt4l202r

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

ST]BJECT: Resolution No. 10775 - A Resolution of the City Council Setting
Forth Results of Protests in Connection with Utility Rate

Hearing Conducted Pwsuant to Proposition 218 and Establishing
New Solid Waste Rates and Fees

FROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Deparbnent recommends that the City Council

l. Open the Proposition 218 Hearing,

2. Consider all protests against the proposed utility rate increases,

3. Consider whether or not to.include in the proposed new solid waste rates charges for
household hazardous waste (HHW) collection,

4. Direct the City Clerk to canvas and report the number of written protests received for
the proposed rate increases for solid waste,

5. fud if no majority protest exists, approve the proposed new utility rates and fees in
Resolution No. 10775 - A Resolution of the City Council Setting Forth Results of
Protests in Connection with Utility Rate Hearing Conducted Pursuant to Proposition

218 and EstablishingNew Solid Waste Rates and Fees

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

In 2019 the Solid Waste Division (Division) conducted a comprehensive rate study including
evaluation of operational and capital needs. R3 Consulting Group, Inc. (R3) along with City
staffanalyzed the revenue requirements and rate structures for each line of service.

Page 367

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



The 2019 rate study incorporated costs associated with meeting current needs; however, it did
not account for additional staffing or other operational costs required to meet pending
regulatory requirements relating to California's Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Reduction
Strategy (SB 1383). The regulations necessary for compliance with SB 1383 were still being
developed so the costs were unknown.

At the time of the previous rate study (2019), solid waste rates had not been adjusted since
2003. Despite the impending unknown expenses associated with SB 1383, the financial
position of the Division necessitated proceeding with a rate adjustment in advance of the
regulations. Staffexpressed to City Council that it would be necessary to retum with additional
increases once the costs of SB 1383 could be predicted. The regulations were finalized in
November of 2020, therefore allowing the Division to anticipate the cost of compliance by
conducting the current rate study (2021).

The mandated programs required by SB 1383 will significantly increase costs. These include
weekly collection of organic material from all residents and businesses, community outreach
and educationo enforcement, procurement of products made from recycled organic material
(such as compost or mulch), as well as development of an edible food recovery program. The
Division has been working with R3 over the past few months to incorporate the new program
expenses into the City's existing rate model.

In addition, there are increases in two existing expenses included in the updated rate model.
Since the last rate study Sacramento County has significantly increased the tipping fees (the
cost to dispose of material) at Kiefer Landfill, Currently, the City of Folsom is contracted to
take material to Kiefer at a reduced rate; however, the agreement expires June 30, 2022. Staff
reached out to County staff to inquire what we should anticipate paying in the future. Based
on our tonnage, an initial increase of $600,000 per year is anticipated.

The other large expense not directly related to SB 1383 is the addition of two electric collection
trucks to our fleet. In September of 2020 Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-79-20
requiring all heavy-duty trucks sold in Califomia to be zero emission by 2045. Since this
technology has the potential to save costs in the long run, the Division is requesting funding to
pilot two vehicles to evaluate their effectiveness in the operation. The Division has been
awarded some grant funding; however, due to the high initial cost of converting to clean
energy, there is still a significant investment required from the City. This is currently estimated
at $930,000.

On July 13,2021, the City of Folsom conducted a Public Workshop regarding the cunent and
proposed Solid Waste rates. During the Public Workshop, staffpresented projected revenues
and expenses to meet the new regulations. During the Public Workshop, there was no input or
feedback from the public. City Council asked questions to staff regarding curent and future
programs and discussed the proposed SB 1383 surcharge and charging for bulky waste and
household hazardous waste collection.

Page 368

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



on July 27'2\2l,staff again presented the proposed solid waste rates and answered questionsfrom citv council' During irtir *..tine, city C;;il approved Resolution No. 10673authoring the issuance of a Froposition 21'8 nytiqg ro, p.opor.d five-year rate ad.iustments forsolid waste' As required by Proposition zt s, t1e city 
"Jiin'"i "il 

properry o*"r.-o, cusromersof record at least 45 daysirior to ttre becember ri,;o;liubric Hearing where city councirwill consider increases tosolid waste rates..The city aso conducted a public open Houseworkshop on Novemb er 8,2021to discuss.ttr. proporJ ,ut. in.rr.res and answer customerquestions' Feedback received following fr op." ii""* and proposition 2lg notice isprovided in attachment no. 3 and in the analysis below.

Following the Decemb er 14,2021 Public.Hearing, and in absence of a majority protest, cityCouncil may consider establishing new utility rates.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with chapter 3'20.063 ortfg Folsom. Municipal code, new municipal servicecharges shall be set by risolution 
"pp.u.a by the citv c"""i'.

Prior to approving.any rate adjustments, tlre city must comply with the requirements ofProposition 218 notice, prorests 
"una 

rt."ii,ie by d;i;g,t roiio*,ng,

o Mail information regarding the proposed rate(s) to every property owner receiving solidwaste service from the City.e conduct a Public Hearing regarding the proposed rate(s) at least 45 days after the noticeis mailed to the property-onil"rr.r Identi& in the notice, the time, date, and location of the public Hearing.o Include in the notice a location where property owners can send in written protests.' city council t::i tti::t the proposeo rate adSusrrrii, ir*itten protests arl presentedby a majority of the affectea prJplrty owners.r At the Public Hearing, city iouncif must hold a hearing to consider all objections orprotests to the proposed rate adjustments.

The schedule berow reflects the procedural steps pursuant to Resorution No. r0673.

Item
DateDirection Initiate 218 Noticeto staff to

2 2021
2 N8Proposition otices mailed- m order to meet the

notification45-day urrementsreq under Proposition
I2 8 to Public

2021(Ffiday)October22,

CouncilPublic
202tDecember Iofnew rates

I 2022

Page 369

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



ANALYSN

As described during the Public workshop and July 27, zrJzrcity council meeting, user ratesmust be set at a level where 
" 

utiiityt;putilil*i..pi*r.expenses,rt t the revenuesreceived from customers. To ruurrut irr.;;;;A;fir,1*i*iuing rates, a comprehensive ratestudy is often performed. Thes;-';;di". r,.rp-ar'""r"0^"iilir, rates that uir-iort-uused andproportional to the cost of ..*ir" uttii-iutJi;; ,R'.;i"fiJ'"urto,o.r.rasr. Cuo.ntry, the cityuses the "cash basis" approach ro. 
"rtuuti.t 

i"g trrlit r"enue requirement and setting rates.

ff,ffi"r::Lconro'msio 
t"tip"iii.;,ilt,"il;tui"irquir*ents 

and the carculation is

After the total revenue requirement is determined, it is then proportionally allocated to theusers of the specific utility service. the allocation, ur""]ry *"ryzed througfi a cost of serviceanalvsis' reflects 
llt--to^ti relationships fb;ffi,il::ii, disposing or sona waste. At theconclusion of the cost of servitt ttuai, two-k9l pierei orinro*ution are provided. First, thecost of service provides an una"rrtaniing of the;trr;;;g: to be coilecied from each crass

,l,:Tl,ffi .ff ;ther 
rmnort;t til;r fi fil;i;" p;il* uy the il;il;ice anary si s i s

To adjust for the impacts ofsB 1383, city staffand R3 have completed a rate study to incrudeprogram costs that are mandated by the new regulations. An initial analysis of the fund statuswas completed to establish the n"ed foia rate ualustm"ni. ri"9ur. year of the established ratemodel was then set to Fiscal v"i ioiit"zr *a p.:".t"a'sij'i:gl prograrn fees and other newcosts were incorporated into Division expenses.-Thl rates were then adjusted for each customerclass to determine the rates nr.r.r-*yio meet the new requirements.

Due to the high cost of sB.1383 programs, the rate increases_needed to cover costs were ashigh as 22yo for commercial 
"urto,i.i, and 44%o, o, irrzs p", *onth'6r-ir,. averageresidential customer' In 

191"ttJ" *irig". such a la.g" ini-tiul increase to cover the trigh costof mandated programs, staff updateJ tiie moder t" irii"ae-r"me strategies to increase ratesmoderately each year to spread'th, impa"t to customers.

Mitigation strategies include an internal lgT, u temporary surcharge that sunsets after the fulltmptementation of SB l3g3 programr, *d.h*g* t6,#."ri.zubsidized extraprograms. Theproposed roan is for $5,000,booiana ir;;t"$? qt;#rrdckperiod. rr,. r,ririilge wourd
f,|:,"r10. 

the Division with tu"d;;;;l;ro, initiur'ri.nir;'.*r, and five years of operating

The last mitigation strategy, charging for cunently subsidized-programs, has murtipre parts.The Butkv waste tp*r1" cu,,*try pro.u_,*, ,h;fiil;ilfor no additionar charge. Theproposed rates include a fee startin g' ui s)s f"1;ilpi;t"t a recover a smal percentage ofthe cost from the customers directly?ri"r"g,rt. r."i*".Trr."ru*, strategy was proposed torecover a smail amount from custorners usini th" ;;;;;-;;, Househord Hazarious wasteservice (HHw). The proposed fee rot i'w starts at $r5 per appointment.

Page 370

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



staff is also proposing changes to the charges for additional organics and recycling containers.cunently residents are provld"d with uF to two. recycriffi two green waste containers forno additional charge' There it 
"not-inli monthly d. 

"i$2J;-per container for three or morecontainers' The nroposed rates inodln i".t *. r"r'trriJ"'or.or. 
"on;;tffi on r**ry t,2022' to $8'a0 per :Itra green waste cL ana $s.so peieitiu ,rry.t. can for three or morecontainers' In July of 202i ant* *" toucture would 6e impremented, and the base rate wourdontv include one sreen waste, to be ;Fqilr:;;H;*, and one recycre container.Additionalrv' residents wjil be r.quir"j rl:::o_,o:th an oiganics and recycring container. Theproposed charge fo: :itl additional otguni.s container aier the first is $q.7s ano for eachadditional recycling-container ut"r ilr."nrrt ir fi;s:uJ:; the requirements of sB 1383

3lt"HtT:u}||,,!t 
tottttttd weeklv so-.ttiotntr-*r,o-ruoini., ,r,ri, second can wilr not lose

The impacts of SB 1383 and the associated rate study have been presented and discussed withthe utilitv commission ruc)o"6;;l"urionr. r"lrp..i"iiieeting on July 6,20zt,the ucformallv supported moving f;il;th a rate adjus#ili;"ssing the folowing motion:

*"1*Y:'it3rffff::ffirecommends to the citv councl that ir adopt a sorid waste

a. an internal loan not to exceed $5 million;b' a moderate increase to the monthly sorid waste rate and an sB r 3g3 surcharge;c. a nominar fee charged for cunentry subsidizJ;;;;r'programs such as bulkywaste and household hazardous waste collection; anJd. an educationar program to inform the pubric on the same.

Following the special meeting, city staff completed a rate schedule showing ail proposed ratesover next five-vear period. rtre arat 
"rairli"rrn;;;;il"#1"u.r,u", and expenditures waspresenred to the citv counc'at the rqr;; city co;;ii;;;ing on lury B,2a2r.

The proposed increases for some of the typicar services are shown below.

Five-Year Rate Increases

Jan.2022 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26Resklentiial65 Gallon $ 1.7s $ s.so $ 6.25 $ l.so $ l.s0Residential 95 Gallon $ 2.00 $ 6.2s $ 7.00 $ 1.75 $ 1.75Gallon Low- Incorne $ t.25 $ 4.2s $ s.oo $ 0.so $ l.5oHonpGallon Mobile $ l.7s $ s.so $ 6.2s 1.50 $ r.soInconpCallonMobile Low- $ l.2s $ 4.50 S s.2s $ l.s0 $ t.sosB 1383 residentiel accorults $ 10.00 $ 8.00 8.00 $ 8.s0 $ 9.00omnprchl4 Cy 2x/week $ 16,00 $ 16.00 $ 18.00 $ 28.00 $ 30.00

Page 371

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



The typical residential customer has a 65-gallon trash can, one recycring can and one organicscan' The proposed monthly solid waste lqg.: for the typi*ir"rioential customer are shownbelow and a complete rate scheaur" ir piouided as an attachment.

Throughout the rate pro-q9yl process staff has made an extensive effort to provide outreachto the community' ln adoition'to ttre mana"tga pr"p"Jti"""irg notice that was mailed to allproperty owners, the outteach campaign incruded:^

o A printed notice directry on the october ut'ity bills.r Flyer inserted into all October utility bills.r E-newsletter on July 23 and November 3.

' Llil"*:},jfi'l 
the september/october and November/December newsteners mailed to

o sociar media posts Jury 26 on Facebook, NextDoor, and Twitterr Four advertisements in the Forsom 
J9]egraph. Two prior to the community meetingand two prior to the December r+ pubiici.lliig^ "" ,

r A web page was created and advertised on all oitreach.
' #il"*il::added 

to all service reminders in the waste coltection app the first week
o A community meeting was held on November g.

The outreach effo'ts resulted in significant feedback from the community about the rates anda few recuning themes emerged' T-hese include.wanti;;;;ii", can options for cost and spaceconsiderations' and mote enfor.ement against th"r; ffi;;;;ntly overfill containers, but theprimary concern from the .otntnunilt ti, ur.n r.l"trJ1;;;arging for household hazardouswaste (HHw) collection' comments indicate that residenis 
"r, 

nrry concerned that some willillegallv dispose of HHW t" 
"*iJp"vG the fee t dli;;; lrrr,, amount. with thar feedbackstaff has revaluated the impacts oiiti"i.?o*mendaiion. The-HHw fee is estimated to provideapproximatelv $45,000 thi first y"*. i.-oving this f.; ;;;i; have a nominar impact on rhefund balance resulting in3'5%6;;;;. at tlie end orthe five-year rate adjustment period.

Staff has provided two attachments to the council Resolution, one with and one without theHHw fee included for the city couJl? consider. The newsolid waste rates and fees in theattachment selected by the citv councii *il ur uiiu.r,rJio ii"toun.il Resolution. The otherfeedback can be addrissed *iifi op"ruttia 
"h*grr.

Residerdal Bil
Desoiprbn CuleuRate tlt/2022 7ltn022 7n/2023 7nt2024 7tr/2025Solid \Vaste (65 gallou) $ 34.50 $ 36.2s $ 41.75 $ 48.00 $ 49.50 $ s 1.00sB 1383 NA $ 10.00 $ 8,00 $ 8.00 $ 8.50 $ 9.00Bilt $ 34.50 $ 46.25 $ 49.7s $ 56.00 $ s8.00 $ 60.00

Page 372

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



F'INANCIAL IMPACT

The implementation^ 
9f- !q 1383 is projected to cost $4,2g0,000 with ongoing operational

expenses near $2,000,000. Proposed rate increases and other mitigation stratllieJwill provide
revenue necessary to meet these obligations.

FSifurg to comply with the regulations of SB 1383 could result in fines of up to $10,000 per
violation per day, or potentially $3,650,000 annually for a single violation.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The increase and modification to solid waste rates for purpose of meeting operating expenses,
purchasing equipment, supplies, and materials, and oUtaining funds n-ece*""y 6 maintain
service within the existing City service areas are exempt from Jrvironmental ,"ui.* under the
Califomia Environmental Quality Act, per Section 15273 of the CEeA Guidelines.

ATTACHMENTS

S

l. Resolution No. 10775 - A Resolution of the City Council Setting Forth Results of
Protests in Connection with UJility Rate Hearing Conducted Pursriant to proposition
218 and Establishing New Solid Waste Rates and Fees

a. Attachment N:' 1 
- Proposed Solid Waste Rates as shown on the proposition

218 notice mailed to all households

b. Altemate Attachment No. 1 - Proposed Solid Waste Rates as shown on the
proposition 218 notice mailed to all households but omitting the fee for
household hazardous waste collection

2' Resolution No. 10339 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Establishing Procedures for the Submission and Tabulation of Protests in Connection
with Rate Hearings Conducted Pursuant to the Requirements of proposition 2lg

3. written public comments received following the proposition 2lg notice

Rackovan, Public Works Director

Page 373

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



ATTACHMENT 1

RESOLUTION NO. 10775

Page 374

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



RESOLUTION NO. 10775

A RESOLUTION OF'THE CITY COUNCIL SETTING FORTH RESULTS OF
PROTESTS IN CONNECTION WITH UTILITY RATE HEARING CONDUCTED
PURSUANT TO PROPOSITION 218 AND ESTABLISHING NEW SOLID WASTE

RATES AND FEES

WHEREAS, Article XIIID, Section 6 of the California Constitution requires the City
Council to consider written protests to certain proposed increases to rates (fees or charges) for
utility services; and

WHEREAS, at its regular meeting on September 24, 2019, the City Council adopted
Resolution No. 10339 establishing procedures for the submission and tabulation of protests in
connection with rate hearings conducted pursuant to the requirements set forth in Article XIIID of
the California Constitution to help ensure that the rights of those persons that are authorized to
protest service charges are preserved; and

WHEREAS, rate studies performed for the Crty's solid waste enterprise recommended
increases to the utility rates in order to meet on-going operational needs and program changes
necessary for compliance with new and increased regulatory requirements and new state mandates
including, but are not limited to, Senate Bill 1383, California's Short-Lived Climate Pollutants
(SLCP): Organic Waste Methane Emissions Reductions; and

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed the details of the financial analysis and proposed
utility rates at a Public Workshop on July 13, 202I, and on July 27 ,202I authoized the issuance
of a Proposition 218 notice for proposed 5-year rate adjustments for solid waste utilities; and

WHEREAS, notices of the proposed rate increases for solid waste utilities and the date,
time and place of the December 14, 2021 pvblic hearing to consider the proposed rate increases
were mailed to all parcel owners subject to the proposed increases at least 45 days prior to the
public hearing; and

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a noticed public hearing for the proposed rate
increases for solid waste utilities on December 14,2021, received public comments and considered
the results of protest proceedings in accordance with Proposition 218; and

WHEREAS, the City Clerk has tabulated all valid protests received by the conclusion of
the December 14,2021public hearing against the proposed rate increases for solid waste utilities,
and has determined that the number of valid protests received is insufficient to constitute a majority
protest (50% plus 1).

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom:

SECTION 1: Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated
into this Resolution by reference.

Resolution No. 10775
Page 1 of2

Page 375

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



SECTION 2: Protest Threshold. The number of parcels eligible to file a protest to the
proposed solid waste rate increase for residential and non-residential customers is 25,726. The
number of valid protests required to prevent adoption of a proposed solid waste rate increase is

12,864.

SECTION 3: Protest Votes. The number of valid protests to the proposed inuease in solid
waste rates received by the City at the end of the December I4,202I, public hearing was 

-.
SECTION 4: Results of Protests. The tabulations by the City Clerk of the number of valid

protests received on the proposed solid waste rate increase are accepted and set forth that the
protest results conclude that there is an insufficient number of valid protests received to constitute
a majority protest to the proposed solid waste rate increase, whereby allowing the consideration to

adopt proposed increases to said solid waste rates.

SECTION 5: Adoption of Rate Increases. The new solid waste rates shown in Attachment
1 attached to this Resolution are hereby approved and adopted.

SECTION 6: Effective Date of New Rates. New rates will take effect January 1,2022.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December 2021, by the following roll-call
vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10775

Page2 of2

Page 376

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



ATTACHMENT 1

TO
RESOLUTION NO. 10775

(solrD wAsTE RArES)

Page 377

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



Solid Waste Rates

RATES+

Present

tY 2022

JAN.

2022 FY2023** FY2024*t FY2025 FY2026

Monthlv Fixed Charge (Trash can, One Recvcle Can and One Orranic Can)

65 Gallon Trash

95 Gallon Trash

65 Gallon Low-lncome

95 Gallon Low{ncome
65 Gallon Mobile Home

95 Gallon Mobile Home

65 Gallon Mobile Low-lncome

95 Gallon Mobile Low-lncome

SB 1383 Surcharge (all residential)

Additional services {Monthlv Charse}

Extra Trash Can (65 Gallon)

Extra Trash Can (95 Gallon)

Extra Green Waste (excess of 2 cans)

Extra Recycle (excess of 2 cans)

Extra Organics (excess of 1 can)***
Extra Recycle (excess of 1 can)***

Additional Chars€s (per Occurrence)

Extra Pickup (any Can)

Can Cleaning

Can Replacement (other than normal wear)

Temporary Three Yard Dumpster

Extra Pickup - Three Yard Dumpster

Bulky Waste (up to 3x per year)***
Household Hazardous Waste***
Service Changes***

s40.00
30.00

86.00

83.00
47.OO

ss3.00
42.00

121.00

115.00

65.00

35.00

22.00
22.00

s34.so
39.25

26.50

3L.25

30.00
34.75

22.00

26.75

s29.oo
33.75

2.75

2.75

S36.zs
4L2S
27.75

32.75

37.75

36.75

23.25
28.25

10.00

s4t.7s
47,50

32.00

37.75

37.25

43.00
27.75

33.50

8.00

s48.oo
54.50

37.00
43.50

43.50

50.00

33.00

39.50

8.00

S40.2s

46.75

!7.25
7,25

ss3.00
40.00

114.00

109.00

62.00

33.00

20.00
20.00

S49.so
56.25

37.50
44.25

45.00

51.7s

34.50

4L.25

8.50

S4o.2s
46,75

ss1.oo
58,00

39.00
46.00

46.50

53.50

35.00

43.00
9.00

s40.2s
46,75

f.;;
7.7s

s30.s0
35.50

8.40

5.50

S4o.oo
30.00

85.00

83.00

47.00

2s.00

15.00
15.00

s3s.oo
40.75

9.7s

6.25

S46.oo

35.00

99.00

95.00

54.00

29.00

L7.OO

17.00

11.50

7.50

ss3.0o
41.00

tt7.00
tI2.00
64.00

34.00

21.00

27.00

NONRESIDENTIAI RATES*

Present JAN.

FY 2022 2022 FY 2023** tY 2024** FY 2025 FY 2026

Monthlv Flxed Charge

2 Yard Trash or Green Waste 5125 5132 5139 5146 5157 5159

3 Yard Trash or Green Waste 742 I49 155 164 L76 189

4 Yard Trash or Green Waste 159 167 775 f84 198 2L3

6 Yard Trash or Green Waste IgL 201 2Il 222 239 257

3 Yard Trash Compactor 263 276 290 305 328 353

4 Yard Trash Compactor 32O 335 353 37I 399 429

3 - 5 Yard Commingled Recycling 93 98 103 108 116 L25

3 - 6 Yard Cardboard Recycling 85 89 93 98 105 113

SYard Cardboard Recycling LOz t07 TLZ 118 I27 L37

2 Yard Food Scraps 378 397 4L7 438 477 506

Additional Services {Monthlv Charee}

Recycle 95 Gallon (up to 2 cans, serviced every other week) S47

Green Waste 95 Gallon (up to 2 cans, serviced every other weekl 47 -
Recycle 95 Gallon (1 can, every other week)*** - 549.25 551.75 554.25 558.25 552.50

Green Waste 95 Gallon (1 can, serviced weekly)*** -- 49.25 51,75 54,25 58.25 62.50

Organic 64 Gallon (1 can, serviced weekly)*** -- 75.50 80.25 84.25 90.50 97.25

Organic 65 Gallon (Extra can)*** - 63.75 57.00 70.25 75.50 81.25

Trash 95 Galloni*r -- 49.25 57.75 54.25 58.25 62.50

Recycling Compliance Fee (waived if use City recycling service) 34.00 34.00 35.75 37.50 39.50 42,50

Sunday Service Premium 34.00 34.00 35.75 37.50 39.50 42'50

Addltional Charpes (per Occurrence)

Dumpster Switch out (Any Size) S82 582 586 S90 597 5104

Dumpsterservice Return 23 23 24 25 27 29

Standby Service (per 5 minutes) 28 28 29 30 32 34

Lock Replacement 17 t7 18 19 20 22

Extra pickup 2 yard (any material) 36 38 40 42 45 48

Extra pickup 3 yard (any material) 47 43 45 47 51 55

Extra pickup 4 yard (any material) 46 48 50 53 57 61

Extra pickup 6 yard (any material) 55 58 51 64 69 74

Extra pickup Compactor 3 yard 100 105 110 IL6 725 L34

Extra pickup Compactor 4 yard 100 105 110 116 I25 L34

Universal Waste Pickup**** -' 20 2t 22 24 26

Bulky waste pickup 55 58 61 64 69 74

Page 378

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



Solid Waste Rates

Present JAN'
charges(perHaul) Fy2o22 2022 Fy2023** ty2o24** Fy2o25 Fyzo26
Rates do not include tipping, w

dpplied towdrd the houl cost up to the haul cost only.
All Rolloff container sizes Delivery and Haul 5484 5484 Ss23 5554 Ssaz Sorr

Additional Charges (per Occurrencel
Relocation Fee (any size)

Per Load Contamination Fee (Bins at projects required to recycle, in addition to
disposal fee)

Daily Charge Beyond 14-Day Rental Period
Compactor Rotation

r48

r48
T4

44

7r7

t77
10

35

t4L

T4I
13

42

734

134

72

40

!25

126

lL
38

TL7

r17
10

35

SPECIAL EVENTS

*Can slzes are approxlmate dnd may vdry by mdnufadwet, Cuftent purchases arc fot 65 and 95 gallon.
**FY 2023 ond FY 2024 rutes drc higher thsn prcviously opproved due to ldnudry 2022 inuease.
***New rotes.
****Univeral waste includes elecvonlcs, botteries, and bulbs. Rate includes pickup only. Disposol and/or recycllng cost ol at! kems wil! be charged as a poss-

at the cunent rate the

Delivery and One Pickup for up to 14 Cans, (combination of 55 or gs-gallon recycling
or garbage Cans)

Extra Pickup (lncludes up to 14 Cans ofthe same material type; additional cans 52.00
each)

Special Event 3-5 yard Garbage or Recycling Service - delivery with one pickup

Special Event Each Additional Pickup for 3-5 yard Garbage Service

Special Event Each Additional Recycling Bin Pickup

Special Event Recycling Contamination Fee - all containers

s276 s290 S30s Sszo 5344 S370

50 s3 s5 59 63 68
704 109 Ir4 720 L29 89
69 72 76 80 85 92

55 58 51 64 69 74

55 58 67 64 69 74

Page 379

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



ALTERNATE ATTACHMENT 1

TO
RESOLUTION NO. 10775

(solrD WASTE RATES)
Household Hazardous Waste Fee omitted

Page 380

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



Solid Waste Rates

RESIDENTIAI RATES*

Present

FY 2022
JAN.

2022 FY2023*r FY2024** FY 2025 tY2026
Monthlv Fixed Charge lTrash can, One Recvcle Can and One Orsanic Canl
55 Gallon Trash

95 Gallon Trash

65 Gallon Low-lncome
95 Gallon Low-lncome
55 Gallon Mobile Home
95 Gallon Mobile Home
55 Gallon Mobile Low-lncome
95 Gallon Mobile Low-lncome
SB 1383 Surcharge (all residential)

Additional Services (Monthlv Chanel
Extra Trash Can (55 Gallon)
Extra Trash Can (95 Gallon)
Extra Green Waste (excess of 2 cans)
Extra Recycle (excess of 2 cans)

Extra Organics (excess of 1 can)***
Extra Recycle (excess of 1 can)***

Additional CharE€s {per Occurrencel
Extra Pickup (any Can)

Can Cleaning
Can Replacement (other than normal wear)
Temporary Three Yard Dumpster
Extra Pickup - Three Yard Dumpster
Bulky Waste (up to 3x per year)+{*
Service Changes***

S34.so
39.25

25.50

3r.25
30.00

34.7s

22.00
26.75

s36.2s
4!.25
27.75

32,75

?r.75
36.75

23.25

28.25

10.00

547.7s
47,50

32.00
37.75

37.25

43.00

27.7s

33.50

8.00

S48.oo
54.50

37.00

43.50

43.50
s0.00

33.00

39.50

8.00

S49.so
55.25

37.50
44.25

45.00

51.7s

34.50

4r.25

8.50

Ss1.oo
58.00

39.00
46.00

46.50

53.50

35.00

43.00

9,00

S29.oo

33.75

2.75

2.75

s30.so S3s.oo
40.75

9.75

6.25

S45.oo

35.00

99.00

95,00

54.00

29.00

77.OO

s40.2s
46,75

71.25

7.2s

S40.2s

46,7s

11.5;
7.50

Ss3.oo
41.00

117.00

L72.00

64.00

34.00

21.00

S40.2s

46,75

lt.7s
7.75

35.50

8.40

s.50

S4o.oo

30.00

86.00

83.00
47.O0

s40.00
30.00

85.00

83.00

47.00

25.00

15.00

Ss3.oo
40.00

114.00

109.00

62.00

33.00

20.00

Ss3.oo
42,00

727.00

115.00

66.00

35.00
22.OO

NONRESI DENTIAI-

Present JAN.

2022 FY * FY 2024** FY 2025 FY
Monthly fixed charges
Monthlv Fixed Charre

one pickup per week. The

2 Yard Trash or Green Waste
3 Yard Trash or Green Waste
4 Yard Trash or Green Waste
6 Yard Trash or Green Waste
3 Yard Trash Compactor
4 Yard Trash Compactor
3 - 5 Yard Commingled Recycling

3 - 6 Yard Cardboard Recycling

8 Yard Cardboard Recycling

2 Yard Food Scraps

Additional Services (Monthlv Charrel
Recycle 95 Gallon (up to 2 cans, serviced every other week)
Green Waste 95 Gallon (up to 2 cans, serviced every other week)
Recycle 95 Gallon (1 can, every other week)*{t
Green Waste 95 Gallon (1 can, serviced weekly)***
Organic 64 Gallon (1 can, serviced weekly)***
Organic 65 Gallon (Extra can)***
Trash 95 Gallon**+
Recycling Compliance Fee (waived if use City recycling service)
Sunday Service Premium

Addltional Charges (per Occurrencel
Dumpster Switch Out (Any Size)
Dumpster Service Return
Standby Service (per 5 minutes)
Lock Replacement
Extra pickup 2 yard (any material)
Extra pickup 3 yard (any material)
Extra pickup 4 yard (any material)
Extra pickup 6 yard (any material)
Extra pickup Compactor 3 yard

Extra pickup Compactor 4 yard

Universal Waste Pickup*r+*
Bulky waste pickup

multiple pickups is o factor rate for one pickup,

5132 S13s
t49 155

767 775
20L zLl
276 290
336 353

98 103

89 93

707 n2
397 4L7

s1s7
176

198

239

328

399

I75
105

I27
47L

Sras
164

184

222

305

37t
108

98

118

438

S126
142

159

191

263

320
93

85

r02
378

Sroc
29

34

22

48

55

61

74

134

B4
26

74

Sgt
27

32

20

45

51

57

69

r25
L25

24

69

Sso

25

30

19

42

47

53

64
116

176

22

64

S86

24

29

18

40

45

50

61

110

110

2t
6L

Sez

23

28

L7

38

43

48

58

105

105

20

58

S82

23

28

17

36

41

46

55

100

100

55

Srog
189

273

257

353

429
L25

113

L37

s06

547

i

34.0;
34.00

54e.2s
49,25

76.50

63,75

49.25

34.00

34.00

Ss1.7s
57.7s

80.25

67.00

sL.75

35.75
35.7s

ss4.2s
s4.25

84.25

70.25

54.25

37.50

37.50

Ss8.2s
58.2s

90.50

75.50

58.25

39.50

39.50

SG2.so

52.s0

97.2s

81.25

62.50

42,50
42.50

Page 381

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



Solid Waste Rates

RO[[.OFF INONRESIDENTIAI AND TEMPORARY IOCATIONSI

Present JAN.

Charges(perHaull FY2O22 2022 FY2023** FY2O24** FY2025 tY2O26

dpplied towdrd the haul cost up to the houl cost only.

All Rolloff Container Sizes Delivery and Haul

Additional charses {per Occurrence}

Relocation Fee (any size)

Per Load Contamination Fee (Bins at projects required to recycle, in addition to

disposal fee)

Daily Charge Beyond 14-Day Rental Period

Compactor Rotation

Delivery and one Pickup for up to 14 cans, (combination of 65 or 9s-gallon recycling

or garbage Cans)

Extra Pickup (lncludes up to 14 Cans ofthe same material type; additional cans 52.00

each)

Special Event 3-5 yard Garbage or Recycling Service - delivery with one pickup

Special Event Each Additional Pickup for 3-6 yard Garbage Service

Special Event Each Additional Recycling Bin Pickup

Special Event Recycling Contamination Fee - all containers

5276 S29o S3os S32o 5344 S37o

s484 s+e+ sszs sss4 ss82 s611

r47

r41
13

42

126

726
11

38

L77

717

10

35

!r7

r77
10

35

63

L29

85

59

59

t34

734

72

40

59

r20
80

64

64

56

u4
76

51

61

53

109

72

58

58

50

104

69

55

55

t48

r48
I4
44

SPECIAT EVENTS

68

139

92

74

74

*Can slzes are approxlmote and may vary by monulacturen Cunent purchases arc fot 65 dnd 95 gallon,
**FY 2023 ond FY 2024 rutes arc highet than previously opprcved due to tdnuary 2022 inilease'
***New rates.
****l!nlveml waste includes electtonlcs, botleries, and bulbs, Rate includes pickup only, Disposdl ond/or recycling cost of all items wlll be chorged os a pass-

dt the cufient r(,te the

Page 382

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 383

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



RESOLUTION NO. 10339

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THA CITY OF FOLSOM
ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES T'OR THE SUBMISSION AND TABULATION OF

PROTESTS IN CONNECTION WITH RATE HEARINGS CONDUCTED PURSUANT
TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF PROPOSITION 2lE

WHEREAS, Article XIIID, Section 6 of the California Constitution requires the City

Council to consider written protests to certain proposed increases to rates (fees or charges) for

utility services; and

WHEREAS, Article XIIID, Section 6 of the California Constitution does not offer

specific guidance as to who may submit protests, how written protests are to be submitted, or

how the City is to tabulate protests; and

WHEREAS, the City Council anticipates that there will be potential future impositions

of fees or increases in utility rates. Adopting the policies and procedures set forth in this

Resolution will help implement the requirements set forth in Article XIIID of the California

Constitution and heip ensure that the rights of those persons that are authorized to protest service

charges are preserved; and

WIIEREAS, the City Council wishes to provide the City Clerk the flexibility to begin

counting of the protest earlier than the close of the Public Hearing, if wananted; and

WHEREAS, a fee protest proceeding is not an election, but the City Clerk will maintain

the confidentiality of protests as provided below and will maintain the security and integrity of
protests at all times; and

WHEREAS, adopting this Resolution is in the public interest for the reasons set forth

above and as further stated within Article XIIID, Proposition 218 and State legislation relating to

the implementation of Proposition 218.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom:

SECTION l: Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and are hereby

incorporated by reference.

SECTION 2: Adoption,

A. The City Council adopts the procedures set forth in this Resolution for conducting all
proceedings requirid by California Constitution Article XIIID for utility fee (as defined below)

irrcreases.- Where no specific procedures are imposed by Article XIIID or the Proposition 218

Omnibus Implementation Act (Govemment Code $$ 53750, et seq.), the procedures set forth in

this Resolution apply. This Resolution may be refened to as the Proposition 218 Protest

Proceedings Resolution.

B. Upon adoption of this Resolution, any and all resolutions, or'rules or regulations of
the City of F-olsom in conflict with it, shall have no further force or effect to the extent of the

Resolution No. 10339
Page I of8

Page 384

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



conflict. This Resolution supersedes all prior resolutions of the City to the extent that such

resolutions established guidelines for the submission and tabulation of protests in connection

with rate hearings condicted by the City pursuant to Article XIIID, Section 6 of the California

Constitution.

SECTION 3: Definitions. Unless the contrary is stated or clearly appears from the

context, the following d.ftnitions govem the constuction of the words and phrases used in this

Resoluiion. Words uid ptourcs not defined by this chapter will have the meaning set forth in

California Constitution Atticle XIIID or the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act.

A. "Act" means the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act found at Govemment

Code$$ 53750, et seq.;

B. ',Article l3D" means Califomia Constitution Article XIIID, Section 6.

C. "Managel" means the City Manager or designee.

D, "Parcel" means a Sacramento County (County) Assessor's parcel, the record olvner or

occupant of which is subject to the proposed rate that is the subject of the hearing.

E. "Property owner" or "parcel owner" has the same meaning set forlh in Article l3D

and means the iers-on or persons whose name or names appear on the County Assessor's latest

equalized assessment roll as the owner of a parcel.

F. "Protest" means a written protest filed with the City Clerk in accordance with Article

XIIID, the Act, and this Resolution as described in Article XIIID, Section 6(a)(2).

G. "Rate" means a fee or charge imposed for utility services provided to customers in

accordance with the Folsom Municipal Code ('FMC"), and other applicable law, by the City of
Folsom.

H. "Record customef" and "customer of record" means the person or persons whose

name or names appear on the City records as the person who is obligated to pay for utility
services.

I. "Utility Seryices" means water, wastewater or solid waste services.

SECTION 4: Administation of Proceedinqs. The City Manager, or designee, is

authorized to implement ttris n"rolution in a manner consistent with the California Constitution

and other applicable law.

SECTION 5: Notice. Notice of a proposed rate increase is provided as follows:

A. In general, the City will identif the record property owner(s) of each parcel to which

the rate would-be applied from the latest equalizedtaxroll produced by Sacramento County. The

equalized tax roll is presumptive evidence of ownership of the land for rate protest pu{poses.

Resolution No, 10339
Page 2 of8

Page 385

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



B. If more than one property owner has an interest in a parcel, all property owners (each

property owner) must receive notice at the address for the property owner. All property omers
and parties directly liable for paying the fee will be provided notice.

C. The notice must be sent by U.S. mail at least forty-five (45) days before the date set

for the public hearing on the proposed rate.

D. The form of the notice of hearing will be on file with the City Clerk.

E. The notice provided by these procedures, in accordance with Article l3D, supersedes

and is in lieu of notice required by any other statutes to levy or increase arate.

F. The City Clerk, or designee, may certiff the proper mailing of notices by an affidavit
which constitutes conclusive proof of mailing in the absence of fraud.

G. The City will post the notice of proposed rates and public hearing at its offrcial
posting sites no less than 45 days before the public hearing upon the proposed rate.

H. Failure of any person to receive notice does not invalidate the proceedings.

SECTION 6: Protests aqainst Rate Increases.

A. Each properfy owner or record customer of a parcel served by the Crty may submit a

protest. This includes instances where a parcel is owned by more than one property owner or
more than one name appears on the City's records as the record customer for a parcel.

B. If the owner(s) ofthepropertydesiretodesignateaparticularownerastheperson
authorized to cast the protest for such parcel, they must file with the City Clerk, at any time
before the commencement of the public hearing or the date of the election, as the case may be, a

written authofization of such designation, signed by all the owners of record, and acknowledged

in the m.urner that deeds of real property are required to be acknowledged to entitle such deeds to
be recorded in the Sacramento County Recorder's Office.

C. Executors, administrators, and guardians may cast a protest on behalf of the estate

represented by them. If such representatives are shown on the latest assessment roll as paying
taxes and assessments on behalf of the property owner(s), that fact establishes the right of such

representative(s) to cast a protest. If such representatives are not shown on the latest assessment

roll, the representatives may file with the City Clerk, at any time before the commencement of
the public hearing, or the date of the election, as the case may be, certified copies of the written
documentation establishing the legal representation.

D. The protest of any public or quasi- public corporation, private corporation, or
unincorporated association may be signed by any person so authorized in writing by the board of
directors or trustees or other managing body thereof. Such authorization must be filed with the

City Clerk, at any time before the commencement of the public hearing or the date of the

election.

Resolution No. 10339
Page 3 of8

Page 386

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



E. The Manager is designated as the voting representative with respect to City-owned
property.

F. In any case where the documentation provided to the City Clerk is ambiguous or

unclear, the City Attorney will determine whether the documentation is adequate for the pulpose

provided.

SECTION 7: Protest Submittal.

A. Any eligible properly owner or record customer who is subject to the proposed rate

that is the subject of the hearing who wants to protest the rate must submit a witten protest to the

City Clerk by:

1. Delivery to the City Clerk's Office at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 95630

during published business hours,
2. Mail to the City Clerk at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 95630, or
3. Personally, submitting to the City Clerk at the public hearing for the rate increase.

B. The protest must be in writing and must be submitted before the close of the public

testimony portion of the public hearing for the rate increase.

C. Only protests that are properly submitted and signed by an eligible properly owner or

record customer wilt be counted as a valid protest. Only one protest shall be counted for each

parcel of property regardless of the number of protests fited by property owners and/or record

customers for the parcel.

D. If more than one protest is delivered, mailed or submitted in one envelope or at one

time, then at least one of the protests contained in that envelope or concurrently delivered,

mailed or submitted shall be signed by the person delivering, mailing or submitting those

protests.

E. The City Clerk must stamp each written protest the date and time it is filed with the

City Clerk for purposes of establishing whether the protest was filed before the close of the

public testimony portion of the public hearing. Each protest must be received by the end of the

public hearing, including those mailed to the City. No postmarks will be accepted for proof of
meeting the submission deadline. No protest received after the close of the public testimony
portion of the public hearing will be counted in determining the amount of protest, but the

Council may, in its discretion, consider such protests in making its decision. Written protests

may be withdrawn in writing at any time before the conclusion of the public testimony portion of
the public hearing.

F, Because an original, wet signature is required, emailed, faxed and photocopied

protests shall not be sounted.

Resolution No. 10339
Page 4 of8

Page 387

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



G. Although oral comments at the public hearing will not qualifu as a formal protest

unless accompanied by a written protest, the City Council welcomes input from the community

during the public hearing on the proposed rate.

SECTION 8: Protest Requirenrents.

A. A protest must be submitted in writing and must include:

1. A statement it is a protest against the proposed rate that is the subject of the

hearing.
2, Name of the property owrrer or record customer who is submitting the protest,

3, Identification of assessor's parcel number and/or street address of the parcel with
respect to which the protest is made.

4. Original, wet signature and legibly printed name of the property owner or record

customer who is submitting the protest.

5. Date the protest was signed.

6. A certification, by the named property owner affirming the contents of the protest

are true and conect.

B. To be sure all pertinent information is provided and considered prior to a protest

being filed, no protest shall be signed before the City has issued the formal notice that

commences the 45-day protest period.

C. A protest shall not be counted if any of the required elements of this Section are

omitted.

D. Only one protest will be counted per parcel as provided by Government Code Section

s37ss(b),

SECTION 9: Protest Withdrawal or Change.

A. Withdrawal of Protest. Any person who submits a protest may withdraw it by

submitting to the City Clerk a written request that the ptotest be withdrawn. The withdrawal of a
protest shall contain enough information to identiff the affected parcel and the name of the

property owner or record customer who submitted both the protest and the request it be

withdrawn.

B. Change to Protest. Any person who submits a protest may change it by submitting to

the City Clerk a written request the protest be changed, and then submit a new written protest

that includes all the information required by this Resolution with the changes desired. The

changed protest shall contain sufficient information to identiff the affected parcel and the name

of the property owner or record customer who submitted both the protest and the request it be

changed.

SECTION 10: Public Hearing.

Resolution No. 10339
Page 5 of8

Page 388

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



A. At the time and place fixed for the hearing, or at any time to which the hearing is

adjoumed, the Council must:

l. Hear all persons interested in the matter of the proposed fee increase;

2. Hear all objections, protests or other witten communications from any owner of
property subject to the proposed utility fee; and

3. Take and receive oral and documentary evidence pertaining to the proposed fee

increase.

B. The hearing may be continued from time to time, as the Council determines necessary

to complete its consideration of the proposed fee increase.

C, If the Council determines, after the close of the public testimony portion of the public
hearing, that written protests were received from property owners or record customers

representing a majority of the parcels subject to the proposed rate increase, the Council shall
adopt a resolution setting forth the results of the protest process and the proceedings shall then be

closed, and the rate cannot be approved by the City Council.

D. If the Council determines at the close of the public testimony portion of the public
hearing that written protests were not received from property owners or record customers

representing a majority of the parcels subject to the proposed rate, the Council shall adopt a
resolution setting forth the results of the protest process and then may by resolution change the
rate so long as it is in an amount that does not exceed the amount and methodology set forth in
the public notices sent to the property ownets.

SECTION 11: City Clerk

A. The City Clerk may begin counting written protests before the close of the public
hearing without further Council action, if warranted. The Council may direct that the
protests not be opened in the event that (i) there have not been enough unopened protests

received to constitute a majority protest, (ii) there have been substantially more protests

received than the number that would constitute a majority protest; or (iii) the Council
determines that it does not wish to proceed to implement with the proposed fee increase.

B. The City Clerk shall not accept as valid any protest if she/he determines any of the

following is true:

l. The protest does not conform to any of the requirements of this Resolution such

as:

a. The protest does not state its opposition to the proposed change(s).

b. The protest does not name the property owner or record customer of the
parcel identified in the protest as of the date of the public hearing.

c. The protest does not identiff a parcel served by the City that is subject to
the proposed change.

2. Tlrre protest does not bear an original, wet signature of the named property owner
or record customer with respect to the parcel identified on the protest. Whether a

Resolution No. 10339
Page 6 of8

Page 389

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



signaflre is valid shall be entrusted to the reasonable judgment of the City Clerk,

who may consult signatures on file with County Officials or other appropriate
public agencies.

3. The protest was altered in a way that raises a fair question as to whether the protest

actually expresses the intent of a record owner or a customer of record to protest

the rates.
4. The protest was not received by the City Clerk before the close of the public

hearing on the proposed rates.

5. A request to withdraw or change the protest, pursuant to Section 9 above, was

received prior to the close of the public hearing on the proposed rates.

C. The City Clerk's decision a protest is not valid shall constitute a final action of the

City and shall not be subject to any internal appeal.

SECTION 12: Maioritv Protest.

A. A majority protest exists if written protests that comply with the requirements

herein are timely submitted, and not withdrawn or changed, by the property owners or record

customers of a majority (50% plus one) of the parcels subject to the proposed charge.

B. While the City may inform the public of the number of parcels served by the City
when a notice of proposed rates is mailed, the number of parcels served by the City on the date

of the hearing shall control in determining whether a majority protest exists.

SECTION 13: Tabulation of Protests. At the conclusion of the public hearing, the City
Clerk shall tabulate all valid protests received, including those received prior to the conclusion of
the public hearing, and shall report the result to the City Council. If the number of protests

received is insufficient to constitute a majority protest, then the City Clerk may determine the

absence of a majority protest without validating the protests received, but may instead deem

them all valid without fi.rther examination. Further, if the number of protests received is

obviously substantially fewer than the number required to constitute a majority protest, then the

City Clerk may determine the absence of a majority protest without opening the envelopes which
contain the protests.

SECTION 14: Report of 'I'abulation. If at the sonclusion of the public hearing, the

City Clerk determines she/he will require additional time to validate and tabulate the

protests because she/he has not made the determination described in Section 13, above,

then she/he shall so advise the City Council, which may continue the related portion of the

meeting to allow the validation and tabulation to be completed on another day or days. If
so, then the City Council shall declare the time and place of tabulation, which shall be

conducted in a place where interested members of the public may observe the tabulation,

and the City Council shall declare the time at which the meeting shall be continued to
receive and act on the tabulationreportofthe CityClerk'

SECTION 15: Effect of Invalidation. If any part of this Resolution or its application is
deemed invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the City Council intends that such invalidity

Resolution No. 10339
Page 7 of8

Page 390

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



will not alfect the effectiveness of the remaining provisions or applications and, to this end, the
provisions of this Resolution are severable.

SECTION 16: Adoption. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon
adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 24n day of September 20l9,by the following roll-
call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSf,NT:

ABSTAIN:

Council Members:

Council Members:

Council Members:

Council Members:

Aquino, Gaylord, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Howell

None

None

None

.l

ATTEST:

Resolution No. 10339
Page 8 of8

Page 391

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 392

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



ATTACHMENT 3

TO

RESOLUTION NO. 10775

(Comments Received by Email Following the Proposition 218 Notice Mailed October 220

2021- Department Responses Shown in Italic)

Received: Monday, October 25,20219:15 AM

I want to clearly state my opposition to the proposed rate increase. I understand Govemor
Newsom's Proposition 218 thathe is insisting on further classification and separation of garbage.

Living in the highest tax in the nation, very high gas, food constantly higher with every trip to
the store, and many other inflationary items. Living in CA is becoming a miserable existence. I
am on a fixed income. Having energy, utility waste going up, I can not pay this high increase in
the the rate simply because Governor Newsom is the ultimate "money bags" through being born

into a political family.

AGAIN, I OPPOSE THE WOLD WASTE UTILITY RATE INCREASE!

Yolanda Saladin
Folsom resident

Thank you for the email. I want to make sure you have the opportunity to formalize your
opposition so it is counted. There is aform in the Proposition 2i,8 notice that rnay befilled out
and either delivered in person or mailed to the Folsom City Clerk's Office at 50 Natoma St,

Folsom, CA 95630.

Initial Email Received: Sundayo October 24,2021,08:08:0L AM PDT

Perhaps you can answer a few questions regarding Proposition 218 Notification Rate Increases

for residential garbage service. If you can't answer my questions, please direct them to other staff
for a reply.

1. For Bulk Waste pick up, will every homeowner be charged one annual rate of $25 for up

to 3 pick ups? How will the billing work, once the pick up is scheduled the $25 will be

added to the next billing cycle? Is the $25 per bulk waste pick up? What if a homeowner
never uses bulk waste pick up, will they still be charged $25 one time per year?

The $25 charge would be per appointment. If you don't use the service, you would not be

charged this fee. In regard to the billing, yes, this would be added to your bill after the

picla.tp is scheduled.

2. Same for Haz Waste Pick up, see Question 1; $15 per pick up? Will every residential

homeowner be charged $15 annually regardless if they use it?

Same as number #l. If you do not receive a pickup, you would never be charged this fee,

3. Can you check on the size of my grey solid waste trash garbage can? The Proposition
218 Notification flyer I received in the mail yesterday indicates a new rate increase for a

Resolution 10775, AttachmentNo. 3 Page I of11

Page 393

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



65 gallon trash can. I just checked my bill statement and I have a 60 gal solid waste can,

please confirm. This is confusing, will Folsom send me a65 gal solid waste can? If
Folsom will be charging for a 65 gal can, then I assume I can request a larger can, correct
since I will be paying for it? I have a second recycle can, will I be charged for that in
Jan. 22? If I don't need the extra recycle can, can you pick up?

I agree, the can size is confusing. Our records indicateyou already have a 65 gallon garbage

can. Can sizes vary by manufacturer, but to my lotowledge the smaller cans have always

been 64 or 65 gallons. The billing statements categorize the cans as 60 or 90, but the actual
size of all of our cans is slightly larger than shown on your bill. Under the curcent proposal,
the charges for the second recycle can would start July l, 2022. If you don't need the extra

recycle we can pick it up.

4. What are Service Changes at $15?

Under SB 1383 California residents are required to recycle all organic waste. Folsom will
be accomplishing this by converting your green waste cqn to an organics can that will
include both yard waste andfood waste. Due to the putrescible nature offood waste, we will
have to service the green can every week rather than every other week.

Thanks,
Jim Shattuck

Thanks for the reply. Also, the bulk waste pick up crew today that picked up my stuff were
awesome, professional and swept any debris left.

I have some follow up questions.

1. I have an extra recycle can, am I currently being charged for that? It is not clear on my
statement if I am being charged.

You are not being chargedfor the extra recycle can. Cunently, there is no chargefor the
second one. There is however an elvor on your dccount and it is only showing one so I will
get that corrected, but again, if you have it removed before any potential charges are
implemented, you will not be charged.

2. Service Changes, still not clear what this is. Is the $15 going to be added to my bill every
month, if so clariS.

My apologies, I completely misunderstood your initial question. No, this is not a monthly
charge, service changes refers to changing the number and/or size ofcontainers at your
home and it is for the delivery cost. It will only be charged if you make a change to your
service; however, we will be waiving this fee during the implementation of the new program
so if customers wdnt to avoid payingfor the 2'd recycle and/or organics can by turning it in,

they are not charged afeefor doing so.

3. I suggest that the Billing Department correct all residential statements to indicate that a
customer has a 65 gal can if applicable as my statement indicates a60 gal can. This will
eliminate much confusion come July 22, as was the case in my email to you yesterday.

You indicated that I have a65 gal can.

I certainly will make that suggestion. Thankyou.

Resolution 10775, Attachment No. 3 Page2 of ll

Page 394

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



4. Under SB 1383, will $10 a month be used by Folsom under the bill language? Does this
mean we put Cooked or raw food waste?

The $10 per month would be a separate line item on your bill and would reference SB 1383.

Yes, since the goal of SB 1j83 is to reduce greenhouse gas emissions by removing organic
waste from landfi.lls, all food waste and food soiled paper (i.e. napkins and paper towels) will
have to go in the green can and will need to be placed in compostable bags.

5. What is considered low income as noted in the flyer sent out by Folsom?

Income

6. If passed, will the new charges go into effect January 2022 or July 2022 as indicated in
your email?

Most of the new charges will start in January of 2022, but the charges for the 2nd blue and green

cqns are delayed until July 2022.

7. How much of the rate increase for everyone in Folsom are going to be used for service

South of the 50?

None. The capital costs of adding services South of 50 are paid through impactfees that
developers pay. Residents south of 50 then pay for their monthly senice just the same as

everyone else.

8. Is there an option to drop off hazardous waste at City Hall or other location to avoid the

$15 fee?

Yes, not at City Hall, but we do make appointments to drop off household hazardous waste at our
corporation yard and those will continue to be available at no additional cost.

Lastly, can you let management know that by charging $15 for hazardous waste pick up is
wrong. The current hazardous waste free pick up is an awesome program. By charging a few as

proposed, residents will most likey toss theirhaz waste in the solid waste can or down the guffer.

Landfills will be polluted.

Persons in
Household

Monthly
Income

Annual
Income

82s.760I $2, I 47

2 $2,903 $34,840

3 83,660 $43,920

84.417 $s3,0004

5 $s,17 3 862,080

6 $5,930 $71,160

7 $6,687 $80,240

$89.s20I $7,443

Resolution 10775, AttachmentNo. 3 Page3ofll

Page 395

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



Thanks

Initial Email Received: Monday, October 25,20212:28 PM

My name is Qian Xu. I live in Folsom. I have a question regarding the "Proposed Five-Year Rate

Increases for Solid Waste Services": Is the rate increase for everyone? Does each household have

a choice? My family is already composting all the organic waste by ourselves. We don't have

organic waste. It doesn't seem to make sense for us to pay the significantly increased rate.

Thank you for your time.
Best regards,

Qian Xu
Hi Qian,

Thankyoufor your question. The City is required to provide weekly organics collection to each

and every household. The additional cost of weekly (vs. the current bi-weekly) collection is one

of the primary drivers of the rate increase and the City will incur that cost regardless of whether

or not an individual household sets the can ouL The cost to the City for processing waste will,
and already does, vary by household depending on the overall amount ofwaste generated, but

this makes up just a just a portion of the cost to make the service available to everyone. In
addition, there are numerous other SB I383 related requirements that are not directly related to

the curbside organics service, but will increase cost. The City must comply with all SB 1383

mandates to avoidfinesfrom the state.

Also, most households have some items such as meat, bones, dairy or preparedfoods that you

would not place in a bacleyard compost bin, but will be prohibitedfrom placing in the grey

garbage can. These items will need to be bagged in compostable bags and placed in the green

organics can.

Thank you for the explanation. I appreciate your time.

Received: Wednesday, October 27r20217:52 AM

My name is Lan Truong. My address is [address omitted].

My phone number is fomitted].

I am the property owner. I am hereby submitting a written protest to proposed 2022-2026 solid
waste rate increases.

Thank you,

Lan Truong

Thank you for the email. I want to make sure you have the opportunity to formalize your
opposition so it is counted. There is aform in the Proposition 218 notice that may befilled out
and either delivered in person or mailed to the Folsom City Clerk's Office at 50 Natoma St,

Folsom, CA 95630.

Initial Email Received: Wednesday, October 27, 2021 7 242 PM

I'm not against the rate increase since it brings needed composting services, however it'd be nice

if it could be partially mitigated by offering smaller garbage bins for those that do not need such

Resolution 70775, AttachmentNo. 3 Page4of11

Page 396

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



a large one. The more you use, the more you should pay. We previously lived in Seattle with
much higher rates and found these size options to be a good balance:

https://www.seattle.gov/utilities/your-services/accounts-and-payments/rates/collection-and-
di sposal/sarbaee-rates

Thankyoufor the email and supporting composting services in Folsom! There qre rnany pros

and cons to offering smaller containers. The primary reason we have not moved in that direction

is that the actual cost of providing the service is not significantly less than other sizes. Most of
the cost associated with your garbage service is related to thefixed cost of the labor and

equipment it takes to provide the weekly pickups. The actual per household cost of disposing of
the waste varies by household, but it is just a small part of thefee. Smaller contqiners are

sometimes used to encourage less waste, but what we havefound even by offiring two sizes is

that all to often the smaller cans just get overpacked eliminating any cost savings to program,

contributing to litter, and resulting in return service calls since material, especially when

overpacked, is more likely to jam in a smaller container. Please feel free to contact me with any

additional questions. Thanl<s again!

That's disappointing. I'd encourage pricing that encourages desired outcomes. E.g. extra fee for
over stuffing bin, fines for not properly composting, etc.

Received: Sunday, October 31,202111:34 PM

Hi Marie,

I'm very confused about the proposed changes to hazardous waste collection. When we first

moved here I saw that there was no charge for hazardous waste collection and I thought, "that
makes sense because we want to make the barrier to disposing of hazardous waste as low as

possible to make sure poisons aren't released into our community." I was quite surprised when I
saw that there will now be a significant charge to these pickups. While I want to believe that

people would want to do the right thing, I feel shongly that there will be a non-trivial number of
people who, rather than pay thehazardous waste fee, will opt to dump their hazardous waste in

the yard, in the garbage can, or even in the toilet where it will pollute our drinking water. While

I'm not excited about all of the considerable rate increases, the hazardous waste fee is a public

health issue, not just an annoyance. It will result in pollution of our lake and the land in our

community. Please let me know if this email is insufficient to raise this issue and I need to also

pursue another avenue.

thanks much,

Dwayne Achee

Thank you for the email. This is sfficient to raise the issue. I have received a few concerns about

this and I am relaying the information to executive managemenL I appreciate that you took the

time to write in.

Thank you. Personally I'd rather see us raise the solid waste collection fee by a nickel a month to

makehazardous waste collection free again, if that's what it takes.

Dwayne

Resolution 10'77 5, Attachment No. 3 Page5ofll

Page 397

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



Received: Wednesday, November 3,202111:02 PM

Hi this is Sheryl Lenzie, a resident and homeowner at faddress omitted] in Folsom. Has the rate

increase protest form been mailed yet to the residents? I don't think I received the mailing with
the protest form. I see a link to it via the Prop 218 notification link on the City's website. Maybe

I need to print it
out. https://www.folsom.ca.us/homeishowpublisheddocument/8098/637708608280230000 Ple

ase advise.

Separate from the written protest form request, I would like to share a couple thoughts. Perhaps

these thoughts have already been vetted during the rate study.

As far as the new charge for bulky waste pickup andhazardous waste pickup, I believe it will
discourage folks from disposing of things properly. Likely we will see more bulky waste

dumping along the streets and in open spaces, andhazardous waste going into the

garbage. Rather than charging for these services every time, consider scaling back the number of
times that the services are free. Perhaps the City should consider a once ayear free bulky waste

pickup and perhaps a couple times a year free for hazardous waste pickup. Additional pickups

could have a charge.

Altematively, maybe designate a place once every quarter for a couple of days where folks can

bring their hazardous waste and smaller bulky items to a central place in Folsom for disposal. It
is already getting harder to find places to dispose of household batteries, for example.

I really think charging for these two services (bulky waste andhazardous waste) will have

negative consequences whereby the City will begin to see a rise in illegal dumping and improper
hazardous waste disposal.

No need to respond to my suggestions, but I would like to know about the protest form.

Perhaps in the next couple of years there will be enough backlash because of the rate increase

and required enforcement that the law creating these new mandates will be repealed.

Yes, the notice has already been sent to every household so you should have received it already.

I've attached both the notice and afile with just the protestformfor your convenience. Thank

you alsofor the other comments and suggestions. We have definitely vetted dffirent options

through the rate study, but regardless ofthat I am relaying any concerns I receive to executive

management andwell as City Council.

Initial Email from Staff Prompted by Discussion at Community Meeting. Sent: Tuesday,

November 9,20211 01:1.5:00 PM PST

Thank you again for attending the meeting last night and for your feedback. Below is a link to
the City Council meetingfor July 27, 2021 at which I presented the rate study. To view tlte
presentationfrom the start scroll to item number I I on the agenda and the linkwill take you to
the start. If you would like to go right to the charts, they start at l:45: 19 on the video. Let me

know ifyou have any questions.

http s : 4fo I s o m. gr ani c u s. c o m/ M e di a P I a:v er.p hp ? v i ew i d : 8 & c I ip 
-i 

d: 2 2 5 9

Hello Marie

Resolution 10775, AttachmentNo. 3 Page6of11

Page 398

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



Thank you for sending this information and the pointer to the comparative data. A couple
observations:

- Most of the cities are different in the 2 charts before and after the adjustment for collecting food
waste. 2 cities (other than Folsom) Sacramento County and Roseville which are present in both
charts have increases of about 2l% and 16% respectively compared to 43Yo for Folsom. Why is
the increase so much higher for Folsom?

The cities are dffirent in the charts since we would have no way of lcnowing what the rates
would have been if their programs were dffirent in regard tofoodwaste. With Sacramento
County and Roseville, programs are being implemented at the same time as ours and rate
adjustments were already proposed so we could see before and after.

Sacramento County's most recent proposal, in December of 2020, would have increased rates
57o/o, but only a portion of their proposal was approved by their Board of Supervisors. Their
proposal also included subsequent increases through July of2024 thatwere not approved. Since

Sacramento County was not approved for rates to cover their cost of service, I anticipate they

will need to do another rate adjustment in the nearfuture.

For City of Roseville, they have a very dffirent service model than Folsom due to their mixed
wastefacility. Roseville does not incur as much collection cost since each household has only
one or two bins and recyclables and/or organics are sorted at a mixed wdste processingfacility.
Roseville is currently piloting a three bin system similar to ours to improve the quality of the
material they collect and have not made afinal determinationfor their ongoing progratns,

There are dffirentfactors in the operations and services of each city that impact its costs. These

include the specific services provided as well as factors like proximity to focilities. We have to
workwith the costs speciJicallyfor the range of services Folsom provides. The proposed rates
were projected to be the maximum necessary to cover these costs over tlte nextfive years. At any
point within thefive years, the City Council may determine that a scheduled increase or portion
ofit is not necessary and reduce it.

- Following the increase, Folsom costs are among the highest. Almost half the cities shown have

a costs of about $ 18O/year (30%) less than Folsom. Folsom is in the highest cost quartile.

Let me know if my observations are incorrect. Otherwise what would it take for Folsom to
compare more favorably with respect to the above i.e. more competitive/lower increase and

actual cost following the adjustment?

Your observations are correct that the current proposal will put Folsom qmong the highest in the

region. Since our rates are set at cost, Iowering the rates would likely mean eliminating or
reducing some of the programs that Folsom residents curently receive. For example, the

household hazardous waste collection program provides an unusually high level ofservice, but
is one of the more costly elements of our program. We continually work to find ways to reduce
our costs while maintaining the high level of service. Comparing the rates is just one piece of the
picture. Each jurisdiction provides varying programs and customer service levels, All of these

foctors should be considered when comparing the value of each program. In addition, the solid
waste industry is changing rapidly as a result of SB 1383 and ongoing changes to recycling
markets. The rates we are able to find for regional comparison now may look very different in
the nearfuture. Our proposal is proactively working to ensure we maintainJinancial stability
through these changes.

Resolution 10'77 5, Attachment No. 3 PageTofll

Page 399

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



Thankyoufor your attention to this information and asking these questions. I appreciate the

feedback at the meeting and am working get more information out to clarify what the typical bill
may look like come January I't.

Hello Marie

Thank you for your prompt response and for making the time to discuss my concerns on the

phone yesterday. I appreciate that you hied to understand my opinion on the matter of the rate

increases for solid waste. To summarize my thoughts following our conversation;

. As observed at the start of this email thread, the proposed rate increases over the next five
years, cumulatively -61% i.e. an average of over l2Yolyear are uffeasonably high. These

exceed even what could be considered a higher than normal increase. For the 2 cities that

could be compared, the increase for Folsom is over 2Uo/ohigher.

. Based on the data in the meeting minutes, Folsom's rate will be in the highest cost

quartile. Almost half the cities shown have costs which are about $180/year less than

Folsom (30% less)

. I completely understand the need for some increase in the rates over time and also realize

there would be an additional increase to support the costs associated with SB1383.
However, the projected increases far exceed this allowance. Consequently I think some

actions are needed to contain the cost increases. Ifindeed these increases are a result of
SB 1383 requirements, it should be possible to get enough support from other cities in
California to petition for a more reasonable requirement.

On a side note, part of my concern with this rate increase is due to other costs I've incurred in the

recent past which are related to city utilities/maintenance. I live in Prairie Oaks. A few months

ago the Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 assessment was approved which adds $314 to my property tax

bill for lighting and landscape, every year, over the previously existing $ZI4lyear, nearly a 150%

increase! (Last year we incurred expenses due the pin hole water leaks. I understand this should

be considered one time.)

Many of us purchased homes in Folsom because in addition to all the wonderful aspects of this

city, the costs aligned with our personal preferences related to improvements and amenities.

Recently I completed paying the20 year 1920 bond/lvlello Roos assessment and began to enjoy

some of the long term cost benefit of home ownership. However if these recent additional costs

and increases go unchecked, I wonder about future cost adjustments; what is the maximum
allowed increases, what is considered reasonable?

I appreciate the prompt response from City of Folsom Management and their willingness to
listen to feedback. I'm hopeful that with a combination of further review of costs for Folsom

solid waste and partnering with other cities who are in a similar position, we'll see some

meaningful reductions in the costs being proposed.

Sincerely
Navin Monteiro

Received and Relayed to Staff by Mayor Kozlowski: Thursday, November 1I,20214:24PM

Hello City Councilmembers,

Resolution 10775, AttachmentNo. 3 Page8ofll

Page 400

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



I live in Rivage condominiums and I'm concerned about the addition of a 3'd bin in my

garuge. We have no other place to put our bins. I'd like to request that the city allow and

provide smaller waste, recycling, and food waste bins for condominiums and similar housing that

have no outside storage space. This requirement could push some owners to park their cars

outside in what is limited parking space.

Rivage requires owners to park two cars in our garages, and that doesn't leave a lot of room for

anything else.

Other than that, I'm ok with the proposed increase. It's something I think we need to do to help

reduce climate warming.

Peggy Blair

Respons e from Mayor Kozlowski

Ms. Blair,

Thank you for writing to me. Your concern is one we have anticipated, but have not yet come up

with any pedect solution. Although I have not consulted with our Public worl<s department in

several weel<s about there refinement to our plans.

We do have smaller bins available, which is why I copied our Public works Director Mark
Rackovan on this message. Perhaps you can send a snap shot ofyour cans so we can both see

which you have currently, next time you have afree moment. If you have any other suggestions,

we'd love to hear them.

Again thankyoufor your comments,

Received: Monday, November 15, 2021 2:04 PM

Hello, I'm Lori Gilbert, a Folsom resident, and please consider this message a comment on the

"Proposed solid waste utility rate increases".

I am wondering if you are getting these notices from CalRecycle. Will the City be applying for
this grant? When the City is awarded the moneys, how would they be used? Would it affect the

rates to residential customers?

Please see the CalRecycle message below. Thank you for your time.

Sincerely,
Lori Gilbert

The draft SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant agenda item for public comment is now posted and

will be presented at the Nov 16th CalRecycle public meeting.

Eligibility Criteria and Evaluation Process for SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant Program

(Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund, Fiscal Yeat 2021?22)

Public Notice- https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/PublicNotices/Details/4552

Resolution 10775, AttachmentNo. 3 Page9of11

Page 401

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



Questions and comments may be sent to Grants@calrecycle.ca.gov by Friday, November 19,

2021.

Thankyouforforwarding. Yes, we receive these and plan to apply. Iffunds are awarded, they

would be used to offset SB 1383 activities that we are already required to do and planning on.

Wether or not it would affect residential rates really depends on the amount received. If we only

receive the base amount of $20,000, it would have no direct impact on rates.

Hi Marie, thank you for your fast reply. I'm glad to know you are in the loop as it were. Those

GGRF grants sometimes will be awarded in larger amounts for bigger projects if you show

matching funding from other sources. Do you know if any other funds will be available to apply

for? Just wondering.

Thank you and have a great day.

Lori

We will applyfor the maximum that we can. l{e have a lot of eligible expenses, but so does

everyone else right now. Hopefully we'll get well above the base amount.

Received from Vice Mayor Aquino on Behalf of Resident: Monday, November 22'2021

2:20 PM

Hi Marie -
I know details about organics recycling will be forthcoming but I got the following questions

from a resident who lives in the Diamond Glen 55t community. Thanks for any info you can

provide.

Is there a minimum amount of organic waste a resident must generate before he/she is required to

recycle or does the mandate apply to everyone in the city regardless of how much organic waste

they produce?

The regulations do not allow for de minimis waivers for residents. Every household is required

to participate. Below is the languagefor residential waivers that was included in the ordinance

,"iirion. In regard to the second. one, there are no homes in Folsom I am aware of that could
justifu this. CalRecycle has expressed an expectation that if a jurisdiction were to use this type of
waiver it would only be allowed temporarily.

1. Reasonable Accommodation. The Director mdy waive q property ownel's
obligation to comply with the requirements of Section 8.32.191(B) if the property

owner provides documentation, or the City has evidencefrom stffi or any

medical professional, demonstrating that compliance with this Chapter would act

as a barrier tofair housing opportunities or health-related reasons prevent

individual(s) from complying.

2. Physical Space Waiver. The Director may waive the obligation to comply with

the requirements of Section 8. 3 2. I 9 I (B) if the property owner provides

documentation, or the City has evidencefrom staff,licensed architect, or licensed

engineer, demonstrating that the premises contain severe space constraints which

prevent the placernent of a recycling and/or organic container at the household.

Resolution 10775, AttachmentNo. 3 Page 10 of I I

Page 402

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



I believe residents who don't have a green can will have to get one, correct?

Yes

One green can is included in the solid waste fee, correct?

Yes

Received: Tuesday, November 301202112:08 PM

Hello,

I understand a few dollars increase given the constant inflation however what is proposed

currently is a significant hike and should be reconsidered. We are constantly being hit with hikes

in prices and bills which is making living in folsom beyond means.

Concerned folsom resident !

Thankyoufor the email. The current proposal would cover significant program changes that are
required to comply with Cali.fornia's Senate Bill I383. which increases cost beyond regular
inflation. Information about the rate study can befound at wwwrfolsom.ca.us/utilittrates. If you
would like toformally oppose the increase, aform and instructions can befound in the
Proposition 2I8 notice. Protests must be either delivered in person or mailed to the Folsom City
Clerk's Office at 50 Natoma St, Folsom, CA 95630.

Received: Thursday, December 2, 2021 4zl4 PM

My husband and I live in Natoma Station neighborhood of Folsom. We strongly urge the Council
to pass the proposed solid waste utility rate increases.

this will fund really important improvements for our community and environment.

thank you,

Kristina Bas Hamilton
James Hamilton

Thankyoufor the email and supporting the new environmental programs in our community. I
will make sure your support is relayed to the City Council.

Resolution 10775, AttachmentNo. 3 Page 11 of11

Page 403

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 404

12/14/2021 Item No.26.



!"{3t-,$aLtFt

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council adopt the following resolutions and conduct the first
reading of the ordinances:

ResolutionNo. 10767 - A Resolution of the City Council ofthe City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed Ballot Election Related to Change Proceedings for Improvement Area
No. 3 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Resolution No. 10768 - A Resolution of Change of the City Council of the City of
Folsom Relating to Improvement Area No. 3 within the City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Resolution No. 10769 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom to
Designate Improvement Area No. 7 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and to Levy Special Taxes therein

Resolution No. 10770 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 7
of City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

ResolutionNo. 10771 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.
23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement AreaNo. 7

iii

1V

1

MEETING DATE: r2n4l202t

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) Amended Improvement Area No. 3 and Improvement
Area No. 7

F'ROM: Finance Department

V

Page 405

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



vl. Resolution No. 10772 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Declaring Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 7

vii. Ordinance No. 1321 - An Uncodified Ordinance Levying a Special Tax for the Fiscal
Year 2021-22 and Following Fiscal Years Solely within and Relating to Improvement
Area No. 3 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) (Introduction and First Reading)

vl11 Ordinance No. 1322 - An Uncodified Ordinance Levying Special Taxes for the Fiscal
Year 2021-22 and Following Fiscal Years Solely within and Relating to Improvement
Area No. 7 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) (Introduction and First Reading)

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Public Facilities Financing Plan ("PFFP"), approved by
the City Council on January 28, 2014, via Resolution 9298, is an $877 million plan that
describes the backbone infrastructure and facility requirements, presents a comprehensive
financing strategy, and sets forth the estimated time horizon for the development of the Folsom
Plan Area ("FPA").

Landowners within the FPA previously requested to form the City of Folsom Community
Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD No. 23"), including six separate Improvement
Areas, designated as Improvement Area No. 1 through Improvement Area No. 6. The City
Council previously approved the Resolution of Formation (ResolutionNo. 10435) onMay 26,

2020 to form CFD No. 23, designate Improvement Area No. 3, authorize a special tax to
finance the acquisition and construction of certain public facilities and certain public services,

authorize the issuance of debt to finance the public facilities, and establish the appropriations
limit and maximum bonded indebtedness for Improvement Area No. 3.

The landowners within Improvement Area No. 3 have requested to amend the boundaries of
Improvement Area No. 3 to exclude property expected to be developed into traditional market
rate single family residences, to amend the Rate and Method of Apportionment to adjust the
maximum special tax rates based on the planned development of remaining property within
Improvement Area No. 3, and amend the appropriations limit and maximum bonded
indebtedness for Improvement AreaNo. 3. Further, the landowners have requested to designate
a new Improvement Area No. 7 to include the property expected to be developed into
traditional market rate single family residences that is being excluded from Improvement Area
No.3.

The proposed development plan for the amended Improvement Area No. 3 includes 919 aclive
adult units zoned as single-family/single-family high density. The proposed development plan

2 Page 406

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



for Improvement Area No. 7 includes 2ll traditional market rate units all zoned as single-
family/single-family high density.

On November 9,2021this City Council considered to amend the boundaries, amend the Rate

and Method of Apportionment, and amend the appropriations limit and maximum bonded

indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 3 by passage of Resolution No. 10747. On that
same date, this City Council approved a proposed boundary map, designated Improvement
Area No. 7, and authorized the City to levy special taxes within the Improvement Area No. 7
by passage of Resolution No. 10748 and this City Council declared the necessity for incurring
bonded indebtedness in and for Improvement Area No. 7 by passage of Resolution No. 10749.

A Public Hearing is required as part of the amendment process for Improvement Area No. 3

and designation process for Improvement Area No. 7. Notice of the hearing was mailed to the
landowners within Improvement Area No. 3 and Improvement Area No. 7 on November 30,
2021 and published in the Folsom Telegraph on December 2,2021. A copy of the required
CFD Public Hearing Report has been made available in the City Clerk's office since December
2,2021and is also included with this report as Attachment 9.

POLICY / RULE

Chapter 5 of the Folsom Plan Area Public Facilities Financing Plan authorizes the formation
of CFDs to finance the construction, acquisition, and servicing of FPA backbone infrastructure
and public facilities

Section 2.5.3 of the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement authorizes
the formation of infrastructure CFDs

Resolution No. 9282 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving
Goals and Policies for Community Facilities Districts

Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982

ANALYSIS

CFD No. 23 is structured as an extended-term CFD and will provide the necessary funding to
help fund all or a portion of the project's share of PFFP backbone infrastructure and facilities,
including related environmental mitigation obligations. The PFFP backbone infrastructure and
facilities will be financed using both bond proceeds and PAYGO special tax revenues. The
extended-term CFD structure is proposed to help to meet the challenge of high-cost
infrastructure and facilities while also aligning the timing of future funding availability with
the need for such funding.

The proposed amendment to Improvement Area No. 3 will exclude property expected to be
developed into traditional market rate single family residences, leaving only property that is
expected to be developed into active-adult single-family residences. Further, amendments to

J Page 407

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



the Rate and Method of Apportionment for Improvement AreaNo. 3 will adjust the maximum
special tax rates based on the active-adult planned development within the amended
Improvement Area No. 3. The special tax revenue generated from taxable parcels within the
amended Improvement Area No. 3 will be comprised of a special tax to fund facilities and a
special tax to fund services. The amended 2021122 maximum facilities special tax rates and
maximum services special tax rates, for each developed land use category, are provided in the
table below:

The proposed Improvement Area No. 7 will include the property excluded from the amended
Improvement Area No. 3 and is expected to be developed into traditional market rate single-
family residences. The special tax revenue generated from taxable parcels within Improvement
Area No. 7 will be comprised of a special tax to fund facilities and a special tax to fund services.
The 2021122 maximum facilities special tax rates and maximum services special tax rates, for
each developed land use category, are provided in the table on the next page:

4

Land Use Category

Residential
Floor Area

(square
footase)

202U22
Maximum
Facilities

Special Tax
Rate

202U22
Maximum
Services

Special Tax
Rate Per

Single-Family Detached Property -

SF/SFHD Zoning
2,200 $890 $100 Unit

Single-Family Detached Property -

SF/SFHD Zonins
2,000 -2,199 790 100 Unit

Single-Family Detached Property -

SF/SFHD Zonins
1,800 - 1,999 690 100 Unit

Single-Family Detached Property -
SF/SFHD Zoning

< 1,799 590 100 Unit

Single-Family Detached Property -

MLD Zonins
N/A 490 100 Unit

MMD Multi-Family Attached
Property

N/A 30,000 s00 Acre

MHD Multi-Family Attached
Property

NiA 11,700 1,000 Acre

Non-Residential Property N/A 11,700 1,000 Acre

Page 408

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Land Use Category

Residential
Floor Area

(square
footage)

202U22
Maximum
Facilities

Special Tax
Rate

202U22
Maximum
Services

Special Tax
Rate Per

Zone l: Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning 2,900 $2,450 $177 Unit

Zone l: Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

2,700 -
2,899

2,390 t77 Unit

Zone l: Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

2,699 2,350 177 Unit

Zone 2: Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

> 3,325 3,075 177 Unit

Zone 2: Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

3,000 -
3,324

2,950 t77 Unit

Zone 2: Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning 2 999 2 845 177 Unit

Single-Family Detached Property -
MLD Zonins

N/A 2,350 177 Unit

MMD Multi-Family Attached
Property

N/A 30,000 500 Acre

MHD Multi-Family Attached
Propefi N/A TT,7OO 1,000 Acre

Non-Residential Property N/A 11,700 1,000 Acre

The facilities special tax can be levied and collected through Fiscal Year 2079180 for each
Improvement Area. Each fiscal year, coillmencing with 2022123, the maximum facilities
special tax rate will be increased by 2% annually. The services special tax can be levied and
collected in perpetuity for each Improvement Area. Each fiscal year, cofllmencing with
2022123, the maximum services special tax rate will be increased by the June annualized
percentage change of the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers, for the San

Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to exceed 4%o.

Approving the resolutions attached within CFD No. 23:
o Amends Improvement Area No. 3
o Designates Improvement Area No. 7
o Authorizes the levy of special taxes within Improvement Area No. 7
o Deems it necessary to incur bonded indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 7
o Calls for a special mailed ballot election within Improvement Area No. 3 and

Improvement AreaNo. 7

. Declares the results of the special mailed ballot election within Improvement Area No.
3 and Improvement Area No. 7

5
Page 409

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Two ordinances are also being introduced to levy Special Taxes for Fiscal Year 2021122 and
following fiscal years for each respective Improvement Area. This is the first reading of each
ordinance.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no direct General Fund impact on the City of Folsom. The Improvement Area No. 3
amendment, designation of a new Improvement Area No. 7 and expenses are solely the
responsibility of Improvement Area No. 3 and Improvement Area No. 7. The General Fund is
not impacted by the Improvement Area No. 3 Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment
and Improvement Area No. 7 Rate and Method of Apportionment.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the Folsom Plan Area
Backbone Infrastructure Project were previously prepared for, and adopted by the City Council
on February 24, 2015, in accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental

Quality Act. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15378(c), the term "project" does not mean
each separate govemmental approval for an approved activity which may be subject to several
discretionary approvals by governmental agencies. Additionally, the creation of government
funding mechanisms which do not involve any commitment to any specific project which may
result in a potentially significant physical impact on the environment is not defined as a
"project" under CEQA. CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(bX4) and 15061(b)(3).

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10767 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed Ballot Election Related to Change Proceedings for Improvement Area No.
3 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

2. Resolution No. 10768 - A Resolution of Change of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Relating to Improvement Area No. 3 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

3. Resolution No. 10769 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom to
Designate Improvement Area No. 7 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and to Levy Special Taxes therein

4. Resolution No. 10770 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Deeming
it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 7 of City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

5. Resolution No. 10771 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 7

6
Page 410

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



6. Resolution No. 10772 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring
Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) Improvement AreaNo. 7

7 . Ordinance No. 1321 - An Uncodified Ordinance Levying a Special Tax for the Fiscal Year
2021-22 and Following Fiscal Years Solely within and Relating to Improvement AreaNo.
3 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
(Introduction and First Reading)

8. Ordinance No. 1322 - An Uncodified Ordinance Levying Special Taxes for the Fiscal Year
2021-22 and Following Fiscal Years Solely within and Relating to Improvement AreaNo.
7 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
(Introduction and First Reading)

9. City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended
Improvement Area No. 3 and Improvement Area No. 7 Public Hearing Report

Submitted,

Stacey Tamagni
Finance Director

I

7 Page 411

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 412

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



RESOLUTION NO. 10767

A RESOLUTION OF'THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
CALLING A SPECIAL MAILED.BALLOT ELECTION RELATED TO

CHANGE PROCEEDINGS FOR IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3 WITHIN
CITY OF'FOLSOM COMMUNITY F'ACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(F'OLSOM RANCH)

WHEREAS' the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Folsom (the "City")
conducted proceedings under and pursuant to the terms and provisions of the Mello-Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended (being Chapter 2.5,Part 1, Division 2,Tille 5 ofthe
Government Code of the State of Califomia), and all laws amendatory thereof or supplemental
thereto (the "Act"), among other things, (i) to form a community facilities district within the City of
Folsom, designated and known as "City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch)" (the "Community Facilities District"), (ii) to designate Improvement Area No. 3 therein,
(iii) to avthofize a special tax (the "Special Tax") to finance the acquisition and construction of
certain public facilities (the "Facilities") and certain public services (the "Services"), (iv) to
authorize the issuance of debt to finance the Facilities, and (v) to establish the appropriations limit
for Improvement Area No. 3 of the Community Facilities District, all as set forth in the City
Council's Resolution No. 10435 (the "Resolution of Formation"), adopted on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, onNovember 9, 202l,the City Council adopted its ResolutionNo. 10747 (he
"Resolution of Consideration") in which it determined to consider (i) amending the boundaries of
Improvement AreaNo. 3 of the Community Facilities District, (ii) amending the rate and method of
apportionment for Improvement Area No. 3 (the "Rate and Method") to adjust the maximum special
tax rates based on the planned development within Improvement Area No . 3 , and (iii) amending the
appropriations limit and maximum bonded indebtedness for Improvement Area No. 3 (the "Proposed
Amendments"); and

WHEREAS, the Resolution of Consideration set a public hearing to be held on
December 14, 2021 (the "Public Hearing").

WHEREAS, the Public Hearing has been held as scheduled and all persons interested were
permified to testiff and to submit written protests to the Proposed Amendments; and

WHEREAS' the City Council determined that there was no majority protest under Section
53337 of the Government Code of the State of California, and thus the City Council is permitted to
continue with these proceedings; and

WHEREAS' in order for the Proposed Amendments to be effective, they must be submitted
to an election of the qualified electors of Improvement Area No. 3 of the Community Facilities
District; and

WHEREAS, a Certificate Regarding Landowners (the "Certificate re: Landowners") has

been filed with the City Clerk (the "Clerk") and submitted to the City Council, certifying that during
the 90 days preceding the close ofthe Public Hearing on December 14,2021, there were no persons

Resolution No. 10767
Page I of8 Page 413

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



registered to vote within the tenitory of Improvement Area No. 3 of the Community Facilities
District; and

WHEREAS, a Certificate of Clerk Regarding Receipt of Property Owner Waiver and

Consent, has been submiued by the Clerk, stating that each landowner, or an authorized
representative of each landowner, within Improvement Area No. 3 of the Community Facilities
District the has filed with the Clerk a properly executed Waiver and Consent (as defined below) in
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, and by this reference incorporated herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom, as

follows:

Section 1.

determines.
The above recitals are true and correct, and the City Council so finds and

Section 2. The City Council accepts the Certificate regarding Landowners filed inthese
proceedings and finds, in accordance therewith, that during the 90 days just past, there were no
registered voters residing within the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 3 of the Community
Facilities District. Accordingly, under Section 53326(b) of the Government Code of the State of
California, the qualified electors of Improvement AreaNo. 3 ofthe Community Facilities District for
the proposed special election shall be the owners of land within Improvement Area No. 3 of the
Community Facilities District.

Section 3. The City Council further finds and determines that the owners of land within
Improvement Area No. 3 of the Community Facilities District (the "Landowners") are the
landowners set forth in the attachment to the Certificate regarding Landowners and that the
attachment correctly sets forth the amount of property owned by each Landowner and the number of
votes to which each Landowner is entitled pursuant to Section 53326(b), being the number of acres

owned rounded up to the next whole acre.

Section 4. The City Council hereby approves the form of Waiver and Consent

Shortening Time Periods and Waiving Various Requirements for Conducting a Mailed-Ballot
Election (the "Waiver and Consent") by which the time limits and related requirements respecting
preparation and distribution of election materials are waived, a form of which is attached hereto as

Exhibit B. The City Council hereby finds that the rights, procedures, and time periods therein
waived are solely for the protection of the qualified electors and may be waived by the qualified
electors under Section 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act and under other provisions of law dealing
with waiver generally, and that the Waiver and Consent constitutes a full and knowing waiver, by
any qualified elector who has executed the form, of those rights, procedures and time periods.

Section 5. The City Council further finds and determines, based on a Certificate of Clerk
regarding Receipt of Property Owner Waiver and ConsentForms providedthis date by the Clerkthat
each Landowner, or an authorized representative of each Landowner, has filed with the Clerk a

properly executed Waiver and Consent in substantially the form of Exhibit B hereto. The City
Council therefore is establishing the procedures and time periods for this special mailed-ballot
election without regard to statutory schedules.

Resolution No. 10767
Page 2 of 8 Page 414

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Section 6. Pursuantto Sections 53338(a) and53326 ofthe GovemmentCode ofthe State

of California, the City Council hereby calls an election, to be held and conducted upon adoption of
this Resolution, and sets December 14,2021,as the election date. Pursuantto Section 53326 of the
Government Code, the election shall be conducted by mailed ballot; provided thatpersonal service

of the respective ballots to authorized representatives of each Landowner is permiued under the
terms of the Waiver and Consent forms on file with the Clerk and shall therefore be permitted. The
Clerk is directed to either mail or make personal service of the ballots, in the form of the attached

Exhibit A, to each Landowner or, if one has been appointed pursuant to a Waiver and Consent, to the

Landowner's authorized representative.

Section 7. The propositionto be submittedto the qualified electors of ImprovementArea
No. 3 of the Community Facilities District shall be as set forth in the form of special election ballot
attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Section 8. The Clerk is hereby designated as the official to conduct the special mailed-
ballot election pursuant to the Act and California Elections Code Sections 307 and 320 and the

following provisions:

(a) The special election shall be held and conducted, and the votes

canvassed and the returns made, and the results determined, as provided herein; and in all
particulars not prescribed by this Resolution the special election shall be held and conducted

and the votes received and canvassed in the manner provided by law for the holding of
special elections consistent with the Act.

(b) All Landowners within Improvement Area No. 3 of the Community
Facilities District as of the close of the Public Hearing shall be qualified to vote upon the
proposition to be submitted at the special election.

(c) The special election shall be conducted as a mailed-ballot election, in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and the prior proceedings of the City taken
thereunder, and there shall be no polling places for the special election. All ballots shall be

delivered or mailed by the Clerk to the Landowners, and all voted ballots are required to be

received by the Clerk not later than 6:00 p.m. on the date of the election in order to be

counted. However, if at any time the Clerk determines that all votes have been cast, the

Clerk shall immediately declare the election closed.

(d) The Clerk shall commence the canvass of the returns of the special

election, and report the returns to the City Council no later than the City Council meeting of
December 14,2021.

(e) The City Council may thereupon declare the results of the special

election, and shall cause to be spread upon its minutes a statement of the results of the
special election as ascertained by the canvass.

Resolution No. 10767
Page 3 of8 Page 415

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



vote:

Section 9. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December, 2021, by the following roll-call

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10767
Page 4 of 8 Page 416

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMI.INITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3
(FOLSOM RANCH)

SPECIAL ELECTION BALLOT

(Mailed-Ballot Election)

ThisballotisfortheuseofI!AWBl,alandownerowninglandwithinImprovement
AreaNo. 3 of City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo.23 (Folsom Ranch).

According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 and the
resolutions ofthe City Council ofthe City of Folsom, the above-named landowner is entitled to cast

votes on this ballot.

In order to be counted, this ballot must be certified below and be returned, either by mail or
in person, before 6:00 p.m. on December 14,2021,to:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Mailing by that date will not be sufficient. The ballot must be physically received by the
City Clerk prior to the deadline in order to be counted.

AN "X'' OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT,
OR THE VOTER MAY WRITE NUMBERS IN THE SPACES PROVIDED.

BALLOT MEASURE
Shall the authority previously conferred upon the City Council (the
"City Council") of the City of Folsom by and through its City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) for
Improvement Area No. 3 be changed in accordance with the City
Council's Resolution of Consideration to (1) Amend the Boundaries
of ImprovementAreaNo. 3 withinthe City of Folsom Community
Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch); (2) Amend the Rate and

Method of Apportionment for Improvement AreaNo. 3 Within the
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch), and (III) Amend the Appropriations Limit and the
Maximum Bonded Indebtedness and Related Matters adopted on
November 9,2021?

Number of votes
YES

Number of votes
NO

Resolution No. 10767
Page 5 of8 A-l Page 417

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Certification

The undersigned is or are the authorized representative(s) ofthe above-named landowner and
is the person legally authorized and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named
landowner.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
is true and correct and that this declaration is executed as of December 14,2021.

ILANDOWNERI

By:
Name:
Title:

Resolution No. 10767
Page 6 of8 A-2 Page 418

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



EXHIBIT B

WAIVER AND CONSENT
SHORTENING TIME PERIODS AND WAIVING VARIOUS

REQUIREMENTS FOR PROCEEDINGS AND FOR
CONDUCTING SPECIAL MAILED-BALLOT ELECTION

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMLINITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3

(CHANGE PROCEEDINGS)

The undersigned ILANDOWITIERI, is the owner or authorized representative ofthe owner of
Assessor's Parcel No(s) withinthe above-captioned Improvement Area No.
3 (the oolmprovement Area") of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) (the "District").

The undersigned understands that a special mailed ballot landowner election will be held to
determine whether the authority conferred upon the City Council by and through the District will be

changed, all as set forth in Resolution No. 10747 adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom
on November 9,2021(the "Resolution of Consideration").

The undersigned is (or are) the person (or persons) legally entitled and authorizedto cast the
ballot for the above-referenced owner in the election to be conducted within the District for the
Improvement Area.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all
minimum time periods and requirements pertaining to the conduct of the election pursuant to
Government Code Secti on 53326(a).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the preparation

and distribution of an impartial analysis of the ballot measure, as well as arguments in favor and

against, under the authority of Government Code Section 53327(b).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirement to
publish notice of the election under Government Code Section 53352.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding the time to mail ballots to the qualified electors under Elections Code Section 4101, and

agrees to accept either mailed service or personal service of the ballot.

The undersigned, onbehalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding identification envelopes for the return of mailed ballots contained in Government Code

Section 53327.5.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any right to notice
and hearing and consents to authorized facilities, authorized services, expenses and rate and method

Resolution No. 10767
Page 7 of8 B-l Page 419

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



of apportionment of special tax as described in the related resolutions to be adopted by the City
Council of the City of Folsom on December 14,2021.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all defects
in notice or procedure in the time periods to record the boundary map, conduct of the election,
whether known or unknown (other than the right to have ballots accurately counted), and states that
the election is being expedited, pursuant to this waiver and consent, at the particular instance and

request of the above-referenced owner.

The undersigned, on behalfofthe above-referenced owner, hereby consents to the levy and
collection of the special tax in accordance with the amended rate and method of apportionment
approved by the City Council for the Improvement Area and hereby waives any and all rights to
challenge the inclusion of the above referenced parcels in the Improvement Area and any other
proceedings related thereto.

Further, the undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any
entitlementto initiate orprosecute any form of legal proceedings, including judicial proceedings, to
challenge any aspect of the proceedings for levy of the special tax and for issuance of bonded
indebtedness in the District.

I declare, under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the State of California, that the
foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed on
202t.

ILANDOWNERl

By:

Name:

Title:

NOTE: If this form is signed by an authorized representative other than an oflicer of the
property owner(s) of the parcel(s), or if the name of the signing parf1 is different from the
name of the property owner, please attach evidence of authorization to sign on behalf of the
property owner(s) or evidence of name change.

Resolution No. 10767
Page 8 of8 B-2 Page 420

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 421

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



RESOLUTION NO. 10768

A RESOLUTION OF CHANGE OF'THE CITY COUNCIL OT'THE CITY
OF'F'OLSOM RELATING TO IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3 WITHIN

THE CITY OF'F'OLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

WHEREAS' the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Folsom (the "City")
conducted proceedings under and pursuant to the terms and provisions of the Mello-Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended (being Chapter 2.5,Part l, Division 2, Title 5 of
the Government Code of the State of California), and all laws amendatory thereof or supplemental
thereto (the "Act"), among other things, (i) to form a community facilities district within the City
of Folsom, designated and known as "City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch)" (the "Community Facilities District"), (ii) to designate Improvement AreaNo. 3

therein, (iii) to authorize a special tax (the "Special Tax") to finance the acquisition and

construction of certain public facilities (the "Facilities") and certain public services (the

"services"), (iv) to authorize the issuance of debt to finance the Facilities, and (v) to establish the

appropriations limit for Improvement Area No. 3 of the Community Facilities District, all as set

forth in the City Council's ResolutionNo. 10435 (the "Resolution of Formation"), adopted on May
26,2020; and

WHEREAS, on November 9, 2021, the City Council adopted its Resolution No. 10747
(the "Resolution of Consideration") in which it determined to consider (i) amending the boundaries
of Improvement Area No. 3 of the Community Facilities District, (ii) amending the rate and

method of apportionment for Improvement Area No. 3 (the "Rate and Method") to adjust the
maximum special tax rates based on the planned development within Improvement Area No. 3,

and (iii) amending the appropriations limit and maximum bonded indebtedness for Improvement
Area No. 3 (the ooProposed Amendments"); and

WHEREAS, in order for the Proposed Amendments to be effective, a two-thirds
approving vote by the qualified electors within Improvement Area No. 3 within the Community
Facilities District is required; and

WHEREAS, a special mailed-ballot election has been conducted within Improvement
Area No. 3 within the Community Facilities District pursuant to Resolution No. 10767, adopted

by the City Council on December 14,2021, to which reference is made for further particulars; and

WHEREAS, a Certificate of the City Clerk (the "Clerk") Regarding Election Results (the

"Certificate of Election Results") has been filed with the City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has received, reviewed and hereby accepts the Certificate
of Election Results;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom,
as follows:

Resolution No. 10768
Page I of2 Page 422

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Section 1.

determines.
The above recitals are true and correct, and the City Council so finds and

Section 2. The City Council hereby finds and determines and declares that the ballot
measure submitted to the qualified electors of Improvement Area No. 3 within the Community
Facilities District has been passed and approved by those qualified electors in accordance with
Sections 53338 of the Government Code of the State of California.

Section 3. The City Council hereby finds and determines and declares that the
authority conferred upon it by the Community Facilities District for Improvement Area No. 3 has

been changed in accordance with the Proposed Amendments as set forth in the Resolution of
Consideration.

Section 4. The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the Clerk to cause an

Amended Notice of Special Tax Lien to be prepared and to be recorded with the County Recorder
of the County of Sacramento (the ooCounty Recorder") in accordance withthe provisions of Section
3ll7 .5 of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California and Section 53338(c) of the

Government Code of the State of California. The Amended Notice of Special Tax Lien shall
include, as an attachment, Exhibit A to the Resolution of Consideration and be recorded in the
County Recorder's office within fifteen days of the date of adoption of this Resolution.

Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December, 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10768

Page2 of2 Page 423

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 424

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



RESOLUTION NO. 10769

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
TO DESIGNATE IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 7 WITHIN THE CITY OF'FOLSOM
COMMUNTTY FACTLITIES DISTRTCT NO.23 (FOLSOM RANCH) AND TO LEVY

SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN

WHEREAS, the City has established the City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Community Facilities District") under the terms of the Mello-Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982, Chapter 2.5 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the California
Government Code, commencing with Section 5331 1 (the "Act") pursuant to the City Council's
ResolutionNo. 10435 (the "Resolution of Formation"), adopted on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 53350 of the Act, six improvement areas have been

designated within the Community Facilities District and it is proposed to designate a seventh

improvement area therein ("Improvement Area No. 7"); and

WHEREAS, the boundaries of the portion of the Community Facilities District designated

as Improvement Area No. 7, are described in a boundary map on file in the office of the City Clerk
of the City of Folsom (the "City Clerk"); and

WHEREAS, for the preliminary scope of the project and financing contemplated by these
proceedings, reference is made to Resolutions No. 10748 (the "Resolution of Intention") and No.
10749 adopted by the City Council of the City (the "City Council") on November 9,2021; and

WHEREAS, on December 14, 2021 , at the time and place scheduled for the public hearing
concerning the designation of Improvement Area No. 7, said public hearing of protests was duly
convened by the City Council, and the City Council duly heard all interested parties desiring to be
heard; and

WHEREAS, the City Council determined that a majority protest under Section 53324 of
the Government Code was not made at the public hearing and therefore the proposed designation
of Improvement Area No. 7 and special tax to be levied within Improvement Area No. 7 have not
been eliminated by majority protest pursuant to said Section 53324; and

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom,
as follows:

Section 1.

and correct.
The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true

Section 2. The boundaries of Improvement Area No. 7 are shown on the boundary map

approved by the Resolution of Intention (the "Boundary Map"). A copy of the recorded Boundary
Map is on file with the City Clerk and was recorded on November _, 2021, at Book _, Page _
in the Book of Maps of Assessment and Community Facilities Districts in the official real estate

records of the County of Sacramento.

Resolution No. 10769
Page I of4 Page 425

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Section 3. Pursuant to Section 53350 of the Act, the City Council hereby designates

the portion of the Community Facilities District described as Improvement Area No. 7 in the
Boundary Map as an improvement area.

Section 4. The name of Improvement Area No. 7 designated within the Community
Facilities District is "City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 7".

Section 5. The types of public facilities (the "Facilities") and services (the "Services")
proposed to be financed by the Community Facilities District, and to the financing of which
Improvement Area No. 7 is proposed to contribute, are set forth on Exhibit A and Exhibit B
attached to the Resolution of Formation and are incorporated by reference hereto. The City
Council hereby finds and determines that these Facilities and Services are necessitated to meet
increased demands placed upon the City by new development occurring or anticipated within
Improvement AreaNo. 7.

Section 6. All of the Facilities to be financed will have an estimated useful life of at

least five (5) years. They are public facilities that the City or another govemmental entity is
authorized by law to construct, own or operate or to which they may contribute revenue. The

Facilities to be financed need not be physically located within the Community Facilities District.

Section 7. The types of incidental expenses and bond issuance costs proposed to be

incurred are set forth on Exhibit C attached to the Resolution of Formation and are incorporated
by reference hereto.

Section 8. Except where funds are otherwise available, special taxes sufficient to pay
for all Facilities and Services will be annually levied within Improvement Area No. 7. Upon
recordation of a notice of special tax lien pursuant to Section 3114.5 of the Califomia Streets and

Highways Code, a continuing lien to secure the related levy of the special tax shall attach to all
nonexempt real property within the Community Facilities District, including Improvement Area
No. 7, and the lien shall continue in force and effect until the special tax obligation (or any portion
thereof) is paid or prepaid and permanently satisfied and the special tax lien is cancelled in
accordance with law or until collection of the special tax by the City ceases. The rate and method
of apportionment of the special tax to be levied in Improvement Area No. 7 is set forth in Exhibit
A to the Resolution of Intention and incorporated by reference hereto. The special tax with respect

to the Facilities on any parcel within Improvement Area No. 7 shall not be levied after the earlier
of (i) Fiscal Year 2079-80 or (ii) the Fiscal Year occurring 50 years following (a) the Fiscal Year
in which the first building permit was issued or (b) the first series of bonds or other debt issued for
Improvement Area No. 7. The special tax with respect to the Services shall be levied perpetually
until the collection of the special tax by the City ceases. In the case of any special tax to pay for
the Facilities and to be levied against any parcel used for private residential pu{poses, under no
circumstances will the special tax levied against any parcel be increased as a consequence of
delinquency or default by the owner of any other parcel or parcels within Improvement Area No. 7
by more than l0 percent of the special tax for Facilities that would be levied in that Fiscal Year
but for such delinquencies or defaults.

Resolution No. 10769
Page 2 of 4 Page 426

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Section 9. Advances of funds or contributions of work in kind from any lawful source,

specifically including owners of property within Improvement Area No. 7, may be reimbursed

from bond proceeds or from special tax revenues or both to the extent ofthe lesser ofthe value or
cost of the contribution, but any agreement to do so shall not constitute a debt or liability of the

City.

To the extent the Facilities will not be constructed by the City, in the opinion of the City
Council, the public interest will not be served by allowing the property owners in Improvement
Area No. 7 to intervene in a public bidding process pursuant to Section 53329.5(a) of the Act.

Section 10. The City intends to reserve to itself the right and authority to allow bond

tenders from any interested landowner within Improvement Area No. 7 to be accepted under
Government Code sections 53344.1 and 53356.8 in full or partial payment of any installment of
the special taxes or the interest or penalties thereon.

Sectionll. The Office of Management and Budget, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom,

California, (916) 355-7347 , is designated as the offtce responsible for preparing annually a current
roll of special tax levy obligations by assessor's parcel number, and for responding to inquiries
regarding estimates of future special tax levies. The City Manager, the Finance Director and the

Chief Financial Officer are each authorized, on behalf of the City, to negotiate and execute, from
time to time, one or more contracts with private consultants to provide this service in lieu of the

Office of Management and Budget, provided that the fees and charges for such private consultants
will be provided for out of special tax revenues in Improvement Area No. 7.

Section 12. Any bonds issued in these proceedings shall be callable in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and as more specifically to be set forth in any resolution providing for
the form, execution and issuance of bonds.

Section 13. The special tax will be billed as a separate line item on the secured property

tax bills, and will be subject to the same enforcement mechanism, and the same penalties and

interest for late payment, as regular ad valorem property taxes. However, the City reserves the
right, under Section 53340,1o utilize any method of collecting each special tax which it shall, from
time to time, determine to be in the best interests of the City, including, but not limited to, direct
billing by the City to the property owners and supplemental billing, and when lawfully available,
judicial foreclosure of the special tax lien.

Section 14. This City Council hereby establishes the annual appropriations limit for
Improvement Area No. 7 at $3,800,000 for the 2021-22 fiscal year.

Section 15. Based upon a certificate relative to voters heretofore filed with the City
Clerk, the qualified electors for the election to be held in these proceedings shall be the landowners

owning land within Improvement Area No. 7. The City Clerk or her designee will conduct the
election by mailed ballot and hereby designates the City Clerk as the official to conduct the mailed-

ballot election.

Section 16. This City Council now finds and determines that all proceedings up to and

including the adoption of this resolution were and are valid and in conformity with the

Resolution No. 10769
Page 3 of4 Page 427

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



requirements of the Act. This determination and finding is final and conclusive in accordance with
Govemment Code Section 53325. I (b).

Section 17. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this l4th day of December, 2021by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10769
Page 4 of4 Page 428

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT 4

Page 429

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



RESOLUTION NO. IO77O

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
DEEMING IT NECESSARY TO INCUR BONDED INDEBTEDNESS

WITHIN IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 7 OF'CITY OF FOLSOM
coMMUNrTy FACTLTTTES DTSTRTCT NO.23 (TOLSOM RANCH)

WHEREAS, for the preliminary scope of the project and financing contemplated by these
proceedings, reference is made to Resolutions No. L0748 (the "Resolution of Intention") and
No. 10749 adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom (the "City Council") on November
9,2021; and

WHEREAS, on December 14,202I, at the time and place scheduled for the public hearing
conceming the designation of the proposed City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 7 (the "Improvement Area") within City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District"), said public hearing of
protests was duly convened by the City Council, and the City Council duly heard all interested
parties desiring to be heard; and

WHEREAS, at said hearing, the City Council determined that a majority protest under
Section 53324 of the Government Code was not made at the hearing for the Improvement Area
and therefore the designation of the Improvement Area and special tax to be levied within the
Improvement Area has not been eliminated by majority protest pursuant to said Section 53324;

NOW, THEREF'ORE' BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom as

follows

Section I
and correct.

The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true

Section 2. The City Council now deems it necessary to incur the contemplated bonded
indebtedness for the Improvement Area.

Section 3. The purpose for incurring the bonded indebtedness is to assist in the
financing of the public facilities and services described in the Resolution to Designate
Improvement Area No .7 withinthe City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) and to Levy Special Taxes Therein adopted this date (the "Resolution of Designation").

Section 4. All Taxable Property (as defined in the rate and method of apportionment
of special tax attached as Exhibit A to the Resolution of Intention) within the boundaries of the
Improvement Area shall be subject to a special tax to repay the bonded indebtedness for the
Improvement Area.

Section 5. Subject to the requirements of the Resolution of Designation and this
resolution, the amount of bonded indebtedness to be incurred, and the amount and timing of each
issuance of bonds, shall be subject to the discretion of this City Council; provided that the
maximum principal amount of bonded indebtedness to be paid for by the Improvement Area is
$14,250,000.

Resolution No. 10770
Page I of3 Page 430

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Section 6. The maximum term of any issue of bonds under this authority shall not
extend beyond 40 years from their date of issue.

Section 7. The maximum rate of interest shall be determined by competitive sale or by

negotiation at the time of bond sale, but in any case shall not exceed the legal rate as specified,

from time to time, by Government Code Section 53531 or any similar controlling provision of law.

Section 8. It is the intention of this City Council that any bonds issued may be made

callable on terms to be specified in any resolution or indenture providing for the form, execution

and issuance of bonds, in accordance with the terms of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act
of 1982 (the "Act").

Section 9. The question of the authorization to issue the bonds described herein and

incur the bonded indebtedness to be paid for by the Improvement Area will be submitted to the

voters of the Improvement Area at a special election in accordance with the Act and with the

findings contained in the certificate regarding landowners heretofore filed in these proceedings.

Section 10. The City Clerk ofthe City of Folsom (the "City Clerk") is hereby designated

as the official to conduct a special, mailed-ballot election related to the Improvement Area pursuant

to Elections Code Sections 307 and320.

Section 11. The special community facilities district election for the Improvement Area
(which shall be consolidated with the special community facilities district election to levy a special

tax within the Improvement Area) shall be conducted by mailed ballot. In order to be counted,

ballots must be returned to, and be physically received by the City Clerk before 6:00 p.m. on

December 14,2021. If all authorized ballots are received prior to that time, the City Clerk shall

be so notified and, pursuant to Govemment Code Section 53326(d), immediately close the election

and declare the results.

Section 12. The ballot language shall be as follows:

Shall the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom

Ranch) (the "District") be authorized to incur indebtedness to be paid for by
Improvement Area No. 7 (the "Improvement Area") in a maximum amount
not to exceed $14,250,000 and levy a special tax in the Improvement Area
to finance public facilities and services by and through the District and shall
the appropriations limit for the Improvement Area for fiscal year 2021-22
be established in the amount of $3,800,000, all as specified in the Crty's
'oResolution to Designate Improvement Area No. 7 Within the City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and to Levy
Special Taxes Therein" and "Resolution Deeming it Necessary to Incur
Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 7 of City of Folsom

Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" each adopted by the
City Council of the City on December 14,2021?

Section 13. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

Resolution No. 10770
Page2 of3 Page 431

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December, 2021, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10770
Page 3 of3 Page 432

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT 5

Page 433

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



RESOLUTION NO. IO77I

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
CALLING SPECIAL MAILED.BALLOT ELECTION IN THE CITY OF

F'OLSOM COMMUNITY F'ACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH) TMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 7

WHEREAS, reference is made to the Resolution to Designate Improvement Area No. 7
within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and to Levy
Special Taxes Therein (the "Resolution of Designation") and to the Resolution Deeming it
Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 7 of City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Resolution of Necessity"), each
adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom (the "City Council") on December 14,2021;
and

WHEREAS, the levy of a special tax within the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 7 (the "Improvement Area") proposed in
the Resolution of Designation shall be submitted to the voters pursuant to Government Code
Section 53326; and

WHEREAS, the authorizalion to issue bonded indebtedness proposed in the Resolution of
Necessity shall be submitted to the voters pursuant to Government Code Section 53351; and

WHEREAS, the setting of the appropriations limit shall be submitted to the voters
pursuant to Government Code Section 53325.7; and

WHEREAS, the three ballot questions just described shall be combined into a single ballot
measure pursuant to Government Code Section 53353.5. The ballot language shall be as shown
on the form of ballot attached hereto as Exhibit A, which form of ballot is hereby approved; and

WHEREAS, a certificate relative to voters and a certificate regarding landowners have
been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Folsom (the "City Clerk");

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, as follows:

Section 1. The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true
and correct.

Section 2. This City Council hereby accepts the certificate relative to voters heretofore
filed in these proceedings and finds, in accordance therewith, that there are no registered voters
residing within the boundaries of the Improvement Area. Accordingly, under Government Code
Section 53326(b) the qualified electors in this election shall be the landowners owning land within
the Improvement Area.

Section 3. The City Council hereby accepts the certificate regarding landowners
heretofore filed in these proceedings and further finds, in accordance therewith, that the
landowners of record owning property within the Improvement Area are those set forth in the

Resolution No. 10771
Page I of7 Page 434

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



attachment to the certificate regarding landowners and that the attachment correctly sets forth the

number of acres owned by each landowner and the number of votes to which each is entitled.

Section 4. This City Council hereby approves the form of Waiver and Consent

Shortening Time Periods and Waiving Various Requirements for Proceedings and for Conducting

Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 7, attached hereto as Exhibit B. The City Council finds
that the rights, procedures and time periods therein waived are solely for the protection of the

voters, may be waived under Government Code Section53326(a) and Section 53327(b), and that

the waiver constitutes a full and knowing waiver, by any voter who has executed the form, of those

rights, procedures and time periods.

Section 5. The City Council accepts the Certificate of the City Clerk that 100% of the

voters eligible to vote in this election have delivered to the City Clerk properly executed waivers

in the form of Exhibit B.

Section 6. Accordingly, this City Council hereby calls the special election described

herein and sets December 14, 2021 as the election day. Pursuant to Government Code

Section 53326(d), the election shall be conducted by mailed ballot. By attesting this resolution
below, the City Clerk indicates her concurrence to such date and to the waivers and consents

described in Section 4 hereof.

Section 7. The City Clerk is directed to cause the ballots to be mailed or delivered, in
the form of Exhibit A hereto, to the landowners shown on the attachment to the certificate
regarding landowners. The City Clerk or her designee shall fill in the names of the landowners

and the number of votes to be cast on each ballot, according to the certificate regarding landowners,

before delivery or mailing.

Section 8. The City Clerk shall accept personal or mail delivery of the ballots at any

time up to 6:00 p.m. on December I4,202|,@virded, that if all authorized ballots are received by
the City Clerk prior to that time, the City Clerk shall, pursuant to Govemment Code

Section 53326(d), immediately close the election and declare the results to the City Council.

Section 9. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

Resolution No. 10771
Page2 ofl Page 435

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December, 2021by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10771

Page 3 of7 Page 436

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTzuCT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 7

SPECIAL ELECTION BALLOT

(Mailed-Ballot Election)

This ballot is for the use of ILANDOWNERI, a landowner owning land within City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 7.

According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 and the
resolutions of the City Council of the City of Folsom, the above-named landowner is entitled to
cast l_l votes on this ballot.

In order to be counted, this ballot must be certified below and be returned, either by mail
or in person, before 6:00 p.m. on December 14,2021,to:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Mailing by that date will not be sufficient. The ballot must be physically received by the
City Clerk prior to the deadline in order to be counted.

AN "X'' OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT,
OR THE VOTER MAY WRITE NUMBERS IN THE SPACES PROVIDED.

BALLOT MEASURE
Shall the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) (the "District") be authorized to incur indebtedness to be paid for
by Improvement Area No. 7 (the'olmprovement Area") in a maximum
amount not to exceed $14,250,000 and levy a special tax in the
Improvement Area to finance public facilities and services by and through
the District and shall the appropriations limit for the Improvement Area
for fiscal year 2021-22 be established in the amount of $3,800,000, all as

specified in the City's ooResolution to Designate Improvement Area No. 7
Within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) and to Levy Special Taxes Therein" and ooResolution Deeming it
Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 7
of City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)"
each adopted by the City Council of the City on December 14,2021?

Number of votes
YES

Number of votes
NO

Resolution No, 10771
Page 4 of7 A-1

Page 437

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Certification

The undersigned is or are the authorized representative(s) of the above-named landowner

and is the person legally authorized and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named

landowner.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed as of December 14,2021.

ILANDOWNERI

By:

Name:

Title:

Resolution No. 10771

Page 5 of7 A-2
Page 438

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



EXHIBIT B

FORM OF WAIVER AND CONSENT
SHORTENING TIME PERIODS AND WAIVING VARIOUS

REQUIREMENTS FOR PROCEEDINGS AND FOR
CONDUCTING SPECIAL MAILED-BALLOT ELECTION

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTzuCT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 7

The undersigned is the owner or authorized representative of the
owner of Assessor's Parcel No(s). within the above-captioned Improvement Area
No. 7 (the "Improvement Area") of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) (the "District").

The undersigned is (or are) the person (or persons) legally entitled and authorized to cast
the ballot for the above-referenced owner in the election to be conducted within the District for the
Improvement Area.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all
minimum time periods and requirements pertaining to the conduct of the election pursuant to
Government Code Section 53326(a).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the preparation
and distribution of an impartial analysis of the ballot measure, as well as arguments in favor and
against, under the authority of Government Code Section 53327(b).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirement
to publish notice of the election under Government Code Section 53352.

The undersigned, onbehalf ofthe above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding the time to mail ballots to the qualified electors under Elections Code Section 4101, and
agrees to accept either mailed service or personal service of the ballot.

The undersigned, on behalf ofthe above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding identification envelopes for the retum of mailed ballots contained in Government Code
Section 53327.5.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any right to
notice and hearing and consents to authorized facilities, authorized services, expenses and rate and
method of apportionment of special tax as described in the related resolutions to be adopted by the
City Council of the City of Folsom on December I4,202I.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all
defects in notice or procedure in the designation of the Improvement Area, time periods to record
the boundary map, conduct of the election, whether known or unknown (other than the right to

Resolution No. 10771

Page 6 of7 B-l Page 439

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



have ballots accurately counted), and states that the election is being expedited, pursuant to this
waiver and consent, atthe particular instance and request of the above-referenced owner.

The undersigned, on behalfofthe above-referenced owner, hereby consents to the levy and
collection of the special tax in accordance with the rate and method of apportionment approved by
the City Council for the Improvement Area and hereby waives any and all rights to challenge the
inclusion of the above referenced parcels in the Improvement Area and any other proceedings
related thereto.

Further, the undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any
entitlement to initiate or prosecute any form of legal proceedings, including judicial proceedings,
to challenge any aspect of the proceedings for levy of the special tax and for issuance of bonded
indebtedness in the District.

I declare, under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the State of Califomia, that the
foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed on
202r.

ILANDOWNERI

Name:

Title

NOTE: If this form is signed by an authorized representative other than an officer of the
property owner(s) of the parcel(s), or if the name of the signing party is different from the
name of the property owner, please attach evidence of authorization to sign on behalf of the
property owner(s) or evidence of name change.

By

Resolution No. 10771
PageT of7 B-2 Page 440

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT 6

Page 441

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



RESOLUTION NO. 10772

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF'THE CITY OF FOLSOM
DECLARING ELECTION RESULTS IN THE CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(r'oLSoM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 7

WHEREAS, reference is made to the Resolution Calling Special Mailed-Ballot Election
in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area

No. 7 (the "Resolution Calling Election") adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom (the

"City Council") on December 14,2021; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has received, reviewed and hereby accepts the Certificate
of City Clerk Regarding Election Results related to the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 7, dated December 14,2021;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom,

as follows:

Section 1.

and correct.
The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true

Section 2. The City Council hereby finds and declares that the ballot measure

submitted to the qualified electors of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 7 pursuant to the Resolution Calling Election has been

passed and approved by those qualified electors in accordance with California Government Code

Sections 53328 and 53355.

Section 3. The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City Clerk to record the

notice of special tax lien related to such ballot measure in accordance with the provisions of
California Government Code Section 53328.3 and California Streets and Highways Code

Section 3114.5.

Resolution No. 10772
Page I of2 Page 442

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Section 4. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December, 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10772
Page2 of2 Page 443

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT 7

Page 444

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ORDINANCE NO. 1321

AN UNCODIF'IED ORDINANCE LEVYING A SPECIAL TAX F'OR THE FISCAL
YEAR 202I.2022 AND FOLLOWING F'ISCAL YEARS SOLELY WITHIN AND

RELATING TO IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3 WITHIN THE CITY OF'FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRTCT NO.23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

The City Council of the City of Folsom, State of California ordains as follows:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The City Council of the City of Folsom hereby finds, determines and declares based on

the record before it that:

1. The City is authorized to establish a community facilities district pursuant to the

terms of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, Chapter 2.5 of Division 2 of Title 5

of the California Government Code, commencing with Section 53311 (the "Act"); and

2. Pursuant to Section 53350 of the Act, the City is authorized to designate

improvement areas within the community facilities district; and

3. Pursuant to Government Code section 53340 and Resolution No. 10435, adopted

by the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Folsom (the "City") on May 26,2020
(the "Resolution of Formation"), the City Council formed its Community Facilities District No.
23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Community Facilities District") and a rale and method of
apportionment of the special tax (as amended, the "Special Tax") for Improvement Area No. 3

established therein was approved by an election of the qualified electors within the Community
Facilities District on such date; and

4. Pursuant to Resolution No. 10747, adopted by the City Council on November 9,

202I (the "Resolution of Consideration") and Resolution No. I I adopted by the City Council
on December 14, 202I (the "Resolution of Change and, collectively with the Resolution of
Formation and the Resolution of Consideration, the "Resolutions"), the City Council approved
an Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment for City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 (the "Amended Rate and Method"),
which changes were approved by an by an election of the qualified electors within the
Community Facilities District on such date; and

5. The Resolutions proposed the establishment of an appropriations limit for the

Improvement Area (each an "Appropriations Limit"); and

6. The City Council desires to levy and impose the Special Tax and to take other

related actions.

Ordinance No. 1321
Page I of4 Page 445

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



SECTION 2

NOW' THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
RESOLVES:

The recitals set forth in Section 1 are true and correct.

A special tax is hereby levied on all Taxable Property (as defined in the Amended Rate

and Method) within Improvement Area No.3 for the 202I-22 fiscal year and for all
subsequent fiscal years in the amount of the maximum authorized tax, provided that this
amount may be adjusted annually, subject to the maximum authorized special tax limit,
by resolution of the City Council.

I

2

a
J The Finance Director of the City of Folsom or designee thereof (the "CFD

Administrator") is authorized and directed, to determine each year, without further action
of the City Council, the Special Tax, to prepare the annual Special Tax roll in the amount
of the Special Tax in accordance with the related exhibit and, without further action of
the City Council, to provide all necessary and appropriate information to the Sacramento

County Auditor-Controller's Office (the "County") in proper form, and in proper time,
necessary to effect the correct and timely billing and collection of the Special Tax on the
secured property tax roll of the County; provided, that as provided in the Resolutions and

Section 53340 of the California Government Code, the City has reserved the right to
utilize any method of collecting the Special Tax which it shall, from time to time,
determine to be in the best interests of the City of Folsom (the "City"), including but not
limited to, direct billing by the City to the property owners and supplemental billing.

The appropriate officers and agents of the City are authorized to make adjustments to the

Special Tax roll prior to the final posting of the Special Tax to the County tax roll each

fiscal year, as may be necessary to achieve a correct match of the Special Tax levy with
the assessor's parcel numbers finally utilized by the County in sending out property tax
bills.

The City agrees that, in the event the Special Tax for the Improvement Area is collected
on the secured tax roll of the County, the County may deduct its reasonable and agreed

charges for collecting the Special Tax from the amounts collected, prior to remitting the

Special Tax collections to the City.

Taxpayers who have requested changes or corrections of the Special Tax pursuant to
Section I of the Amended Rate and Method and who are not satisfied with the decision of
the CFD Administrator (whether the CFD Administrator disagrees with the taxpayer or
concludes that the City is not authorizedto consider the change requested), may appeal to
the City Council. The appeal must be in writing, fully explain the grounds of appeal and

must be based solely on the correction of mistakes in the levy based upon the status of the

property, and no other appeals will be allowed. The CFD Administrator shall schedule

the appeal for consideration within a reasonable time at aCity Council meeting.

4.

5

6

Ordinance No. 1321

Page2 of4 Page 446

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY

If for any cause any portion of this ordinance is found to be invalid, or if the Special Tax
is found inapplicable to any particular parcel by a court of competent jurisdiction, the balance of
this ordinance, and the application of the Special Tax to the remaining parcels, shall not be

affected.

SECTION 4 EFFECTM DATE; EFFECT ON ORDINANCE NO. 1305

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force as a tax measure thirty (30) days

following its second reading and adoption at a meeting of the City Council; and before the

expiration of twenty (20) days after its passage the same shall be published, with the names of
the members voting for and against the same, at least once in a newspaper of general circulation
published and circulated in the District.

Ordinance No. 1305 adopted by the City Council on June 9,2020, shall be superseded,

solely with respect to Improvement Area No. 3, to the extent it is inconsistent with this
ordinance, upon the date that this ordinance takes effect, as described in the immediately
preceding paragraph.

rF * rl.

Ordinance No. 1321

Page 3 of4 Page 447

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City
Council on December 14,2021 and the second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the
City Council on _,202-.

On a motion by second by the foregoing ordinance
was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom, State of Califomia, this _
day of _,202_by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmembers(s):

ABSENT: Councilmembers(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1321

Page 4 of 4 Page 448

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT 8

Page 449

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



I

ORDINANCE NO. 1322

AN UNCODIFIED ORDINANCE LEVYING SPECIAL TAXES
F'OR THE FISCAL YEAR 202I.22 AND FOLLOWING FISCAL YEARS

SOLELY WITHIN AND RELATING TO IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 7 WITHIN
THE CITY OF'FOLSOM

COMMUNITY F'ACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(r'oLSoM RANCH)

The City Council of the City of Folsom hereby ordains as follows:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The City Council of the City of Folsom hereby finds, determines and declares based on the
record before it that:

The City is authorized to establish a community facilities district pursuant to the terms of
the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, Chapter 2.5 of Division 2 of Title 5 of
the Califomia Government Code, commencing with Section 53311 (the "Act"); and

Pursuant to Section 53350 of the Act, the City is authorized to designate improvement areas

within the community facilities district; and

On December l4,202l,the City Council adopted its ResolutionNo. _ (the ooResolution

of Designation") designating Improvement Area No. 7 (the "Improvement Area") within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District")
pursuant to the Act; and

In accordance with the Rate and Method of Apportionment for City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 7, the Resolution of
Designation approved the annual levy, subject to voter approval, of a special tax in
connection with the Improvement Area (the "Special Tax"); and

The Resolution of Designation proposed the establishment of an appropriations limit for
the Improvement Area (the "Appropriations Limit"); and

On December 14, 2021, the City Clerk, as elections official, conducted an election of the
landowners of the Improvement Area (the "Election"); and

On December 14,2021, the City Council adopted its Resolution No. certifring
that, at the Election, the landowners of the Improvement Area approved the Special Tax
and the Appropriations Limit relating to the Improvement Area; and

The City Council desires to levy and impose the Special Tax and to take other related
actions.

Ordinance No. 1322
Page I of3

2.

J

4.

5

6

7

Page 450

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



2.

J

4

5

6.

SECTION 2

NOW' THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CrTY OF FOLSOM
RESOLVES:

1. The recitals set forth in Section I are true and correct

A special tax is hereby levied on all Taxable Property (as defined in the rate and method
of apportionment of special tax for the Improvement Area) within Improvement AreaNo. 7
for the 2021-22 fiscal year and for all subsequent fiscal years in the amount of the
maximum authorized tax, provided that this amount may be adjusted annually, subject to
the maximum authorized special tax limit, by resolution of the City Council.

The Finance Director of the City of Folsom or designee thereof (the "CFD Administrator")
is authorized and directed, to determine each year, without further action of the City
Council, the Special Tax, to prepare the annual Special Tax roll in the amount of the Special
Tax in accordance with the related exhibit and, without further action of the City Council,
to provide all necessary and appropriate information to the Sacramento County Auditor-
Controller's Office (the "County") in proper form, and in proper time, necessary to effect
the correct and timely billing and collection of the Special Tax on the secured property tax
roll of the County; provided, that as provided in the Resolution of Designation and Section
53340 of the California Govemment Code, the City has reserved the right to utilize any
method of collecting the Special Tax which it shall, from time to time, determine to be in
the best interests of the City of Folsom (the "City"), including but not limited to, direct
billing by the City to the property owners and supplemental billing.

The appropriate officers and agents of the City are authorized to make adjustments to the
Special Tax roll prior to the final posting of the Special Tax to the County tax roll each
fiscal year, as may be necessary to achieve a correct match of the Special Tax levy with
the assessor's parcel numbers finally utilized by the County in sending out property tax
bills.

The City agrees that, in the event the Special Tax for the Improvement Area is collected
on the secured tax roll of the County, the County may deduct its reasonable and agreed
charges for collecting the Special Tax from the amounts collected, prior to remitting the
Special Tax collections to the City.

Taxpayers who have requested changes or corrections of the Special Tax pursuant to
Section I of the Rate and Method of Apportionment for the Improvement Area and who
are not satisfied with the decision of the CFD Administrator (whether the CFD
Administrator disagrees with the taxpayer or concludes that the City is not authorized to
consider the change requested), may appeal to the City Council. The appeal must be in
writing, fully explain the grounds of appeal and must be based solely on the correction of
mistakes in the levy based upon the status of the property, and no other appeals will be
allowed. The CFD Administrator shall schedule the appeal for consideration within a

reasonable time at aCity Council meeting.

Ordinance No. 1322
Page2 of3 Page 451

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY

If for any cause any portion of this ordinance is found to be invalid, or if the Special Tax
is found inapplicable to any particular parcel by a court of competent jurisdiction, the balance of
this ordinance, and the application of the Special Tax to the remaining parcels, shall not be

affected.

SECTION 4 EF'F'ECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force as a tax measure thirty (30) days following
its second reading and adoption at a meeting of the City Council; and before the expiration of
twenty (20) days after its passage the same shall be published, with the names of the members

voting for and against the same, at least once in a newspaper of general circulation published and

circulated in the District.

This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City
Council on December 14,202I, and the second reading is to occur at the regular meeting of the
City Council on 202 .

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council
Member the foregoing ordinance was passed and adopted by the City
Council of the City of Folsom, State of California, this _ day of
roll-call vote:

202_by the following

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT

ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1322
Page 3 of3 Page 452

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT 9

Page 453

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



clwoF FolsoM
Report for:

Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Amended lmprovement
Area No. 3 and lmprovement Area No. 7

Public Hearing Report

December 2021

Prepared by NBS for and on behalf of the City of Folsom

Prepared by:

ffitNBS
hetdng cgmmunluea
lund tomorrow

Corporate Headquarters
32605 Temecula Parkway, Suite 100

Temecula, CA 92592
Toll free: 800.676.7516

nbsgov.com
Page 454

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Taslr or CoTTENTS

INTRODUCTION

DtsrRrcT I N FORMATTON ...........
Background

Amended lmprovement Area ("1A") No. 3 and lA No. 7.........

lmprovement Area Description

Amended and New Boundaries

DESCRIPTION OF FACITITIES AND SERVICES

Facilities....

I

2

2

2

3

3

4
4

6

7

9

9

Services.....

lncidental Expenses

cosT EST|MATE ...........
Estimated Cost of Public Facilities....

Estimated Cost of Public Services..

Annual Appropriations Limit

Maximum Bonded lndebtedness .......................

Maximum Special Tax Rates

Annual Maximum Special Tax Escalation......

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT.
Term of Facilities and Services SpecialTax............

10

10

10

10

LL

Manner of Collection

APPENDIX A: BOUNDARY MAPS

APPENDIX B: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT - AMENDED lA NO. 3

APPENDIX C: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT - lA NO. 7

L4

L4

t4

.A

B

c

Page 455

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



INTRODUCTION

The City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Folsom (the "City'') did, pursuant to the provisions

of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 (Sections 53311 and following, California Government

Code; hereafter referred to as the "Ac,t"l, on November 9,2O2t, adopt Resolution No. 1O747 entitled the

Resolution of Consideration of the City Council of the City of Folsom to (1) Amend the Boundaries of

lmprovement Area No. 3 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch); (2)

Amend the Rate and Method of Apportionment for lmprovement Area No. 3 within the City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), and (3) Amend the Appropriations Limit and Bonded

lndebtedness for lmprovement Area No. 3 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) and Related Matters (the "Resolution of Consideration") and Resolution No. L0748 entitled

the Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving a Proposed Boundary Map and

Designating lmprovement Area No. 7 within the "City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom

Ranch)" and to Levy Special Taxes therein (the "Resolution of Designation"). ln the Resolution of

Designation, the City Council directed the study and filing of a public hearing report (the "Report") required

by Section 53321.5 of the Act. Section 53321.5 of the Act provides that the Report contain the following:

t. A brief description of the public facilities and services to be provided by the district; and

2. An estimate of the fair and reasonable cost of providing the public facilities and services, including

the incidental expenses in connection therewith, any City administration costs, and all other
related costs.

For particulars, reference is made to the Resolution of Consideration and Resolution of Designation,

as previouslyadopted on November9,2027 bythe City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Manager of the City, the appointed responsible officer directed to

prepare the Report or cause the Report to be prepared pursuant to the provisions ofthe Act, does hereby

submit this Report containing the following information:

o DISTRICT INFORMATION. lnformation related to the district, including background information,

land use plans, and the proposed boundaries that include those properties and parcels on which

special taxes may be levied to pay for the costs and expenses of the facilities and services.

o DESCRIPTION OF FACILITIES AND SERVICES. A description of the facilities and services that the

City Council has determined to be eligible to be funded by the district.

o COST ESTIMATE. The cost estimate for the district facilities and services.

o RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT. The Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special

Tax approved by this City Council on November9,2O2l.

City of Folsom

CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No. 3 and lA No. 7 Public Hearing Report 1CINBS
Page 456

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



DISTRICT INFORMATION

Background

On January 28,2014, the City Councilapproved the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Public Facilities

Financing Plan ("PFFP"). The PFFP is an 5877 million plan that describes the backbone infrastructure and

facility requirements, presents a comprehensive financing strategy, and sets forth the estimated time

horizon for the development of the Folsom Plan Area. The backbone infrastructure improvements

identified in the PFFP include roadways, on-site water, off-site potable water, recycled water, wastewater

(sewer), storm drainage, and habitat mitigation for infrastructure. The public facilities identified in the PFFP

include public schools, parks, transit services, housingtrust, trails, fire facilities and equipment, police

facilities and equipment, a municipal service center, corporation yard, solid waste, branch library, a

community and aquatic center, other general capital facilities, and transportation.

Previously, the City Council established the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom

Ranch) ("District"), including six separate lmprovement Areas, designated as lmprovement Area No. 1

through lmprovement Area No. 6 on May 26,2020, via Resolution No. 10435. The District is located within

the Folsom Plan Area, south of Highway 50. The Folsom Plan Area is located on approximately 3,500 acres

and is bounded by Prairie City Road on the west, Highway 50 on the north, White Rock Road on the south,

and the Sacramento County/El Dorado County boundary on the east. The Folsom Plan Area is a master-

planned community and, through June 30, 2016, the City has received and approved several Specific Plan

Amendments that have changed the entitlements to include approximately 11,300 residential units of

various size and densities and approximately 2.8 million building square feet of non-residential land uses.

The District was formed to provide funding for all or a portion of each lmprovement Area's share of the

backbone infrastructure, on-site and off-site costs, the estimated Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program

obligation, and other internal site improvements necessary for development. The District will provide

funding for authorized facilities through a combination of bonded indebtedness and pay as you go funding

("PAYGO"), both of which are secured by the levy of special taxes upon property within the boundaries of

each lmprovement Area of the District. ln addition, a special tax will be levied upon District property to

provide funding for development specific services that include open space, landscape corridors, street light

maintenance, median, entries and entry monumentation maintenance, neighborhood park maintenance,

community amenities, and storm water management.

Amended lmprovement Area ("lA') No. 3 and lA No. 7

The landowners within lA No. 3 have requested to amend the boundaries lA No. 3 to exclude property

expected to be developed into traditional market rate single family residences, to amend the lA No. 3 Rate

and Method of Apportionment and amend the appropriations limit and maximum bonded indebtedness

for lA No. 3. Further, the landowners requested to designate a new lA No. 7 to include the property that is

being excluded from lA No. 3.

The proposed amendment to lA No. 3 will exclude property expected to be developed into traditional

market rate single family residences, leaving only property that is expected to be developed into active-

adult single-fami[ residences. Further, amendments to the Rate and Method of Apportionment for lA No.

City of Folsom

CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No. 3 and lA No. 7 Public Hearing Report 2\)NBS
Page 457

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



3 will adjust the maximum special tax rates based on the active-adult planned development within the

amended lA No. 3. The special tax revenue generated from taxable parcels within the amended lA No. 3

will be comprised of a special tax to fund facilities and a special tax to fund services.

The new lA No. 7 will include the property excluded from the amended lA No. 3 and is expected to be

developed into traditional market rate single-family residences. The special tax revenue generated from

taxable parcels within the new lA No. 7 will be comprised of a special tax to fund facilities and a special tax

to fund services.

lmprovement Area Description

The boundaries of the amended lA No. 3 boundary and new lA No. 7 boundary include the original

boundaries of lA No. 3 and encompass all of the property designated below:

Amended lA No.3:

072-OO5O-079-OOOO,072-0050-101-0000, and Parcel 2B (portion of072-099-0000 and 072-0060-103-0000

established via a lot line adjustment recorded with Sacramento County on November 24,202t1

New lA No.7:

Parcel 5B (portion of 072-099-0000 and 072-0060-103-0000 established via a lot line adjustment recorded

with Sacramento County on November 24,2O2L1

The current development plans for each lmprovement Area are presented in the table below.

Proposed Development within the lmprovement Areas

Planned Residential Units or Acres

Development Plan

Amended
lA No.3

New
lA No.7

Single-Fa mily Detached Property-SF/SFH D Zoning(1) 757 2tt
Single-Fa mily Detached Property-M LD Zoningtt) 168 0

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property(2) 0.00 0.00

M H D Multi-Family Attached Property(2) 0.00 0.00

Non-Residential Property(2) 0.00 0.00

(1) Residential units
(2) Acres.

Amended and New Boundaries

The boundaries of the amended lA No. 3 are identified on the boundary map recorded on November 24,

2O2!, in Book 135 at Page 40 of Maps of Assessment and Community Facilities Districts in the office of the

County Recorder for the County of Sacramento. The boundaries of the new lA No. 7 are identified on the

boundary map recorded on November 24,202I,in Book 135 at Page 39 of Maps of Assessment and

Community Facilities Districts in the office of the County Recorder for the County of Sacramento. The maps

are on file with the City Clerk, to which reference is hereby made and a reduced copy of such maps are set

forth in Appendix A of this Report.

City of Folsom

CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No' 3 and lA No' 7 Public Hearing Report 3C'NBS
Page 458

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



DESCRIPTION OF FACILITIES AND SERVICES

A description of the facilities and services to be financed by the District, and included in the original District

Public Hearing Report dated May 2020,is provided below.

Facilities

The facilities to be financed by the District include facilities designed to meet the needs of development

within the District, whether such facilities are located within or outside the boundaries of the District, and

include but are not limited to the following:

TRANSPORTATION I M PROVEM ENTS

Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to: acquisition of land and easements; roadway

design; project managemenU bridge crossings and culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading,

soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or

pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and

appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and

access ramps; street lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping;

erosion control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry

walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for

the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary

sewer, and storm drainage system improvements.

Authorized facilities include the following transportation improvements:

o All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the District,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet the needs of development of

property within the District. These facilities include, but may not be limited to: water storage, treatment

and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves, pressure reducing stations,

flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as site clearing, grading and

paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by generators; site lighting, drainage,

sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and fencing; and striping and

signage.

RECYCLED WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system facilities designed to meet the needs of

development of property within the District. These facilities include, but may not be limited to: treatment

and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances, gate valves, flow meters, booster pump

pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto - such as site clearing, grading and paving;

City of Folsom

CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No. 3 and lA No. 7 Public Hearing Report 4SNBS
Page 459

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and

water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

DRAINAG E SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain improvements designed to meet the

needs of development of property within the District. These facilities include, but may not be limited to

excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and water quality measures,

detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage ways/channels, pump stations,

landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping and signage and other

improvements related thereto.

WASTEWATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities designed to meet the needs of development

of property within the District. These facilities include, but may not be limited to, pipelines and all

appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force mains; lift stations; upgrades to

existing lift stations; odor-controlfacilities; and permitting related thereto; and related sewer system

improvements.

PARK, PARKWAY AND OPEN SPACE IMPROVEMENTS

Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to parks, parkways and open space required for

development of property within the District. These facilities include, but may not be limited to: grading,

turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer and water service,

pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm

drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for authorized facilities herein, access gates and

fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized facilities include acquisition of any and all

parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access easements required for development of property

within the District.

SPEC|FtC PLAN TNFRASTRUCTURE FEE ('SPlF',l INFRASTRUCTURE

Authorized facilities include any and all improvements that are included in the SPIF Program adopted by

the City Council on September 8,2O15, including any future amendments thereto.

SPIF OBTIGATION

Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities include payment of the following SPIF obligations

for all development that would be subject to SPIF obligations within the entire District:

o SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (lncluding the SPIF Set-Aside Component)

o SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component

r SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component

r SPIF Administrative Fee.

City of Folsom

CFD No, 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No. 3 and lA No, 7 Public Hearing Report 5\.)NBs
Page 460

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



OTHER INCIDENTAL EXPENSES AND BOND ISSUANCE COSTS

ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community

Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including

the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction

staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of
project/construction management; costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation

of the Mello-Roos CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes;

payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments;

or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the District; and any other

expenses incidental to the formation and implementation of the District and to the construction,

completion, inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services

The authorized services to be funded from the levy and collection of annual special taxes include those set

forth below in addition to the costs associated with collecting and administering the special taxes and

annual administration of the District. The District will be eligible to fund all or a portion of the costs of

reconstruction and/or rehabilitation, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement, and servicing of the

following items not otherwise subject to funding from the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.

18 (Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide lmprovements and Services):

o Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and bike

trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions] within open

space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood Conveyance

(Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale maintenance, Erosion

control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post emergent, maintenance

activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management Plan-Conservation and

Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9,20t7, and repair and replacement of facilities within

open space areas in the Project Area.

o The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within the

District, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

o The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.

o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.

o Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.

o Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.

o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales constructed

between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.

o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.

City of Folsom

CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No. 3 and lA No. 7 Public Hearing Report 6rDNBs
Page 461

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



. The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or replacement

costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry monumentation,

lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities maintained by the

District as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and servicing

of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls, sidewalks,

monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the enhanced

open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other buffer areas

between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry signage, street

pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and equipment, as

applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs include an allowance

for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The District may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to be

maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the

future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its own

employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The District may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the District.

lncidental Expenses

It is anticipated that the following incidental expenses may be incurred for the District:

r Engineering services

o Special tax consultant services

. City review and administration

o Bond counsel services

o Bond counsel expenses

o Disclosure counsel services

o Disclosure counsel expenses

o lndependent municipal advisor services and expenses

. APPraiser services

r Market absorption study and real estate economist services

o lnitial bond transfer agent, fiscal agent, registrar and paying agent fees

o Rebate calculation service set up charge

o Bond printing

City of Folsom

CFD No, 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No. 3 and lA No. 7 Public Hearing Report 7CINBS
Page 462

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



. Offering memorandum printing and mailing costs

o Publishing, mailing and posting of notices

o Underwriter'sdiscount

r Bond reserve fund

o Capitalized interest

o Bond syndication costs

o Governmental notification and filing costs

o Credit enhancement costs

o Real estate acquisition costs

o Rating agency fees

o Charges and fees of City other than those waived

Certain annual costs may be included in each annual special tax levy. These include

o Annual bond transfer agent, fiscal agent, registrar and paying agent fees

r Annual rebate calculation costs

r Special tax consultant costs and administrative expenses

o Other necessary consultant costs

o Costs of posting and collecting the special taxes

o Personnel and Administrative costs of the City

o Arbitrage rebate

o Continuing disclosure reporting and compliance

City of Folsom

CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No. 3 and lA No, 7 Public Hearing Report 8CINBS
Page 463

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



COST ESTIMATE

Estimated Cost of Public Facilities

The lmprovement Areas are eligible to finance the authorized public facilities described in the Description

of Facilities and Services section of this Report. The authorized public facilities and the estimated costs

herein are subject to review and confirmation and the actual costs may differ from the estimated costs

presented below.

Through the utilization of the extended-term CFD, and levying developed parcels at the annual maximum

facilities special tax authorized, the facilities special tax for each lmprovement Area is anticipated to
provide a revenue stream that will fund a portion of the following facilities costs:

District Facilities Cost Estimate for the lmprovement Areas

Description
Amended
lA No.3

New
lA No.7

SPIF lmprovements 532,790,000 S32,79o,ooo

Non-SPIF lmprovements 5,ooo,ooo 5,ooo,ooo

Subdivision lmprovements 15,000,000 15,000,000

Total Facilities Cost Estimate: $52,z9o,ooo S52,790,ooo

As previously discussed, the lmprovement Areas include an extended-term in order to provide the

financing to fund the authorized public facilities and estimated SPIF obligation through bond issuance and

the generation of PAYGO special tax revenue from the levy and collection of the facilities special tax within

each lmprovement Area. The primary pledge of facilities special tax revenues will be to service outstanding

debt. Facilities special tax revenues in excess of the annual debt service and administrative expenses will

be used on a PAYGO basis. The developers will retain 100 percent of the annual PAYGO revenues to fund

authorized facilities for the first 20 years, beginning the fiscal year following the issuance of the first

building permit or the issuance of the first series of bonds or other debt for the respective lmprovement

Area, whichever occurs first for each lmprovement Area. Beginning the 21st year and thereafter, the City

will be able to utilize 100 percent of the annual PAYGO revenues to fund or acquire eligible facilities.

Once all of the debt service has been satisfied for an lmprovement Area, the City may, in its sole discretion,

elect to do one or more of the following actions:

7. Continue to collect the maximum facilities special tax or an amount less than the maximum

facilities special tax to fund authorized facilities with annual PAYGO revenues.

2. Discontinue the collection of the facilities special tax altogether.

As stated, there is no obligation on the part of the City Council to extend the facilities special tax if all of the

debt service has been paid for an lmprovement Area. The City Council may choose to extend the facilities

special tax collection after all bond debt service has been retired and can choose for what purpose the

extension would be, subject to those infrastructure and facilities improvements being authorized by the

District. The discretion to continue or extend the facilities special tax is designed specifically not to be an

automatic extension but rather an informed decision at the time based on the community needs and

City of Folsom

CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No. 3 and lA No. 7 Public Hearing Report 9QNBS
Page 464

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



requirements. However, any extension of the facilities special tax levy shall not exceed the final year to

levy and collect the facilities special tax as set forth in the lmprovement Area's Rate and Method of

Apportionment. The facilities special tax for each lmprovement Area shall be levied for a period no longer

than the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079180 or the fiscal year occurring 50 years following the issuance of the

first building permit or the first series of bonds or other debt.

Estimated Cost of Public Services

The District's lmprovement Areas are eligible to finance the authorized public services described in the

Description of Facilities and Services section of this Report. The authorized public services and the

estimated costs herein are subject to review and confirmation and the actual costs may differ from the

estimated costs presented below.

District Services Cost Estimate for the lmprovement Areas

Description
Amended
lA No.3

New
lA No.7

Landscaping So So

Sound Walls 5,600 2,900

Street Lights 0 13,900

Storm Drain 86,000 20,500

Total Services Cost Estimate: s91,600 537,3oo

Annual Appropriations Limit

The Fiscal Year 2021122 annual appropriations limit for each lmprovement Area is:

r Amended lA No.3:54,700,000
o New lA No.7:53,800,000

Maximum Bonded lndebtedness

The maximum authorized bonded indebtedness for each lmprovement Area is

o Amended lA No.3:S15,750,000

o New lA No.7:514,250,000

Maximum Special Tax Rates

The determination and application of the maximum special tax rates for the lmprovement Areas are more

fully set forth in the Rate and Method of Apportionment for each lmprovement Area, which are included

under Appendices B and C of this Report. The Rate and Method of Apportionment for the amended lA No,

3 was included as part of the Resolution of Consideration and the Rate and Method of Apportionment for

the new lA No. 7 was included as part of the Resolution of Designation, approved by the City Council on

November 9,202L, and established Fiscal Year 2027/22 maximum special tax rates. The Fiscal Year

City of Folsom

CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No. 3 and lA No. 7 Public Hearing ReportCINBS 10

Page 465

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



202U22 maximum special tax rates for each lmprovement Area are presented in the tables on the

following pages.

Annual Maximum Special Tax Escalation

On each July 1, commencing on July 1,2022, the maximum facilities special tax shall be increased by 2% of

the maximum facilities special tax in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

On each July 1, commencing on July 1,2022, the maximum services special tax shall be increased by the

June annualized percentage change of the Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San

Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to exceed 4Yo.ln the event that the percentage change is negative,

the annualized percentage change shall be equal to zero.

City of Folsom

CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No. 3 and lA No. 7 Public Hearing ReportGINBS \L

Page 466

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Amended lmprovement Area No. 3
Maximum Special Tax Rates

FiscalYear 202U22

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

Maximum
Seruices Special

Tax Rate

sloo
100

100

100

100

500

1,000

1,000

s1o0
100

s1,ooo

S1,ooo

s1,ooo

Maximum
Facilities Special

Tax Rate

Ssso
790
590

590

490

30,000

Lt,700
L7,700

Sseo
490

S11,7oo

S18,ooo

S18,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

>2,200
2,OOO-2,199

1,800 - 1,999
< 1,799

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property- MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Propefi
Non-Residential Property

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property- MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing ReportC)NBS L2

Page 467

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



lmprovement Area No. 7
Maximum Special Tax Rates

FiscalYear 2O2U22

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

Maximum
Services Special

Tax Rate

St77
177

177

t77
177

777

177

500

L,000

L,000

s777
777

777

s1,000

s1,ooo

S1,ooo

Maximum
Facilities Special

Tax Rate

s2,450
2,39O

2,350

3,O75

2,95O

2,845

2,35O

30,000

tr,700
'J,L,7OO

S2,350
2,845

2,35O

Sil.,7oo

s18,0oo

s18,000

Residential
Floor Area

> 2,900

2,700-2,899
<2,699
> 3,325

3,000 - 3,324

<2,ggg
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category
Developed Property:

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Propefi - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Tone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone 2: Si ngl e-Fa m i ly Detached P roperty - SF/SF H D Zoning

Zone 2: Si ngl e-Fa mi ly Detached Property - SF/SFH D Zo ni ng

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom
CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No. 3 and lA No. 7 Public Hearing ReportQNBS 13

Page 468

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

All of the property located within each lmprovement Area, unless exempted by law or by the Rate and

Method of Apportionment, shall be taxed for the purpose of providing the necessary facilities and services

forthe District. Pursuant to Section 53325.3 of the Act, the tax imposed "is a specialtax and not a special

assessment, and there is no requirement that the tax be apportioned on the basis of benefit to any

property." The special tax "may be based on benefit received by parcels of real property, the cost of

making facilities available to each parcel, or other reasonable basis as determined by the legislative body,"

although the special tax may not be apportioned on an ad valorem basis pursuant to Article XlllA of the

California Constitution.

As shown in Appendix B and C, the Rate and Method of Apportionment for the lmprovement Areas provide

information sufficient to allow each property owner to estimate the maximum special tax that he or she

will be required to pay.

Term of Facilities and Services SpecialTax

The facilities special tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2027/22 and shall be levied to the extent

necessary to fully satisfy the annual facilities special tax requirement. The facilities special tax shall be

levied for a period no longer than the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079/80 or the fiscal year occurring 50 years

following the fiscal year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of bonds or other

debt was issued within the lmprovement Area.

The services special tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2tl22 and shall be levied in perpetuity,

unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer needed to pay the services

special tax requirement.

Manner of Collection

The annual special tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad valorem

property taxes; provided, however, that the City, may directly bill the special tax, and may collect special

taxes at a different time or in a different manner as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may

covenant to foreclose and may actually foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of taxable property that are

delinquent in the payment of special taxes.

City of Folsom

CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No. 3 and lA No, 7 Public Hearing ReportGINBS 74

Page 469

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



APPENDIX A: BOUNDARY MAPS

The boundary maps for the amended lA No. 3 and the new lA No. 7 are shown on the following pages. The

lines and dimensions of each lot or parcel within the lmprovement Areas are those lines and dimensions

shown on the maps of the County Assessor, at the time this Report was prepared, and are incorporated by

reference herein and made part of this Report.

City of Folsom

CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No. 3 and lA No. 7 Public Hearing Report AGINBS
Page 470

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



MAP OF AMENDED BOUNDARJES

OF IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3

OF CTTY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FAqUNES
DISTRICT tto. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

CITY OF FOLSOM . @UNTY OF SACRAMENTO ' STATE OF CAUFORNIA

SHEET 1 OF 1

+
o 200 {q) loo

-F:l sc r-E 1'-{@'

atF nrHE oFcE* nEe:F(OF lr€C.rYS ruSil.ilslqLOAYA-@-.
8,j.

C\'|f.ro"dnr&-)
ffijp(
clfY oF Fdror
s^cRstExTo cdtTY, c lJFm{a

NEERElrcE B m HI ctRrm
dlY or m iD.a
c oa

AI
REMffi #EC[A.

C)*....*m-:
stfdttr
fltrffi
grcR l,CrJToootlTY.ruffi

LEGEND

Itri**'Sffi"
leoiFanr corrr REconDERc tlc co'p€F iiffisr^not clrmt

M"t
_- loTu€g

t-------\

t

I
I
I

I
I
I
I

qnw)&(
(072-0060-0s9)

WITE

V77/2 mffi/EGrnrnGAro!

llltilff&s0[n8
#L*ffi-.ffi! e.rcrJ.

Page 471

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



MAP OF EOUNOARIES OF CTrY OF FOLSOM
COI'IMUNIW FACILffiES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RAt{Ct-t)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 7

CffY OF FOLSOII . COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO . STATE OF CAI IFORNIA

SHEET 1 OF 1

+
-1 .

O2Olqtm
scllt l'rJ6'

qED rxlHEffiEof, lHEcL€Mcffi qfi oF Fo|Jot, rH6 tcl^ D^yor not&t.

cfr s Fo€a,
gtcRAt ctrc ffi, c4lFoilL

0724ffi0-XXX

(072-0060- 1 0J)

r ff:llfi SiAE Br nE ffir re gtl.tlo R@ nffis G m cftr oF Fols(n
cdt $rny FrcurEa o|snlct ro. a tRf(In ffit rfn(rGDfr r|G rp, r. crn orrcilIdxw oF StcRlrrExro, EIAE 0F q;maa$4g rppRq/Eo ty nG qw @uER ofHcFyoFFd.ss^r^ErrBr€Etr.rucrE:LoArc ru. _a. BimtnfSoumqlilo. ttr{E
NE EEffi 18 Hd6' XAE TO ]ITAT ffiXN MIP MTX.E r'AF S PRfiBED NrDffstr/ oF Fq.sqr cc[tffi FefiEs 0B]Eqt t6. a f{lot Rttct$ qil r Fu.so, cqJilrt
cF lt6'RFfo, gr E s rurcod^., f,rD tl€ 2gri oay tr p[- t@, r so( ro oF r$Fgc rssFSrIlr aro coaattrw racutEt uaTEcE 

^r 
F^c z n re crce c rl{: canmilcmRFORnt6JXWOf 3r€A r€Xn), gT EcCilGCilAW{CHtHEWlfm_

C'{^!{s^ru
ctr6lff
cfrGm
Sg,CilTO @ATY. qUFOUB

WHITE ROCKRAAD
ruom 19fi*t* Niknb€/rso(-!@-HPsoF##f,affimof rlfcouNrREcfficEffi*ffil 

"Tfr{*uffi-
Cffib*N"fficoxfr oF sm^raE{To. wFoffA

mmrff&$0mPr
Effib*ffi.o#ffi *.ro*

LEGEND

PnmgcD cF BouorBt

ffLTB

W77V rnroy!f, a.r rlraro. I

Page 472

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



APPENDIX B: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT -
AMENDED IA NO. 3

The following pages provide a copy of the Rate and Method of Apportionment for the amended lA No. 3

City of Folsom
CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No. 3 and lA No. 7 Public Hearing Report BS)NBS

Page 473

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Special Taxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23 lA3, or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or

SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

23 lA3, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the

costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA3, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or

application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA3 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

"Facilities Special Tax Escalation Facto/' means two percent (2%) annually.

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23 lA3 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the

City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit

enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring

50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Fiscal Yea/' means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other
instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from
time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential

Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended

November 2,2021
Page 3

Page 474

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



AMENDED RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

ctw oF ForsoM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOISOM RANCH)

lmprovement Area No. 3

A Special Tax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 3 (CFD No.

23 lA3) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator
through the application of the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of
the real property within CFD No. 23 lA3, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be

taxed for the purposes, to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning:

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,

condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal

to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,560.

'?ct" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of !982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Assessot's Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessol's Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots
or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light
maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September 1't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

byCFD No.23 lA3 undertheAct.

"CFD No. 23 lA3" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,2O2L

Page 1Page 475

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



"CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible

for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and
providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

"CFD No. 23 lA3 Amended Boundaries" means the amended boundaries for CFD No. 23 lA3 as set
forth in Attachment E.

"CiV' means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 23 lA3

"County" means the County of Sacramento

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential

Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in

Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA3 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set
forth in Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Propefi" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall

also be designated as Exempt Property.

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,2O2L

Page 2
Page 476

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family

Residential Units.

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Facilities Special Tax, determined

in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities Special Tax rate for each

land use categoryof Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined

in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Services Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum SpecialTax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" means L8O%, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,

that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 lA3 Maximum

Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this

Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"MHD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could

be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20LI and as amended by the City Council.

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parceldesignated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcelthat is designated for residential

land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-

residential land use, only that portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the
Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended

November 2,202L
Page 4

Page 477

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property'' means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcel with a permitted density range of L2-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OLI and as amended by the City Council.

"Non-Residential Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property'' means property within the CFD No. 23 lA3 Amended Boundaries which (a)

has been designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as

open space, or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has

been irrevocably offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of
California, the County, the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is

encumbered by an easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property
to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Proper$' means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements
have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 231A3, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended

by the future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot Final Subdivision Maps within CFD No.

23 tA3.

"Price Point Study'' means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated
average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location
and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property'' means any property within the CFD No. 23 lA3 Amended
Boundaries, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific

boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property.

As used in this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,202t

Page 5Page 478

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



"Proportionatelf' means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) and

the Services Special Tax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.)within CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Public Property'' means any property within the CFD No. 23 lA3 Amended Boundaries, which (a) is

owned by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property,

which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the
federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or
similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 lA3

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Propert/' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Toning, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA3, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts
estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA3 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services SpecialTax" means the annual SpecialTax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Facto/' means the June annualized percentage change of the
Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,202L

Page 6Page 479

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



exceed four percent (a%1. ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"Services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23 lA3 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated
by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or
replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to
the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the
Facilities SpecialTax Requirement in that FiscalYear. Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the
CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator.

"Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property
for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or
attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 Residential Units per Acre and more
fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OLI and as amended by
the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable
Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more
Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-
family property with a permitted density range of 1-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family hieh
density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,201L and as amended by the City
Council.

"Special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement
and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot
Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small lot Final Map Remainder Property'' means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the
subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does
not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each FiscalYear, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot
Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final
subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision
Map Act (California Government Code Section 664L0 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,202L

PageTPage 480

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California.

"Taxable Property'' means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the CFD No. 23 lA3 Amended
Boundaries that are not exempt from the CFD No. 23 lA3 Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F

below.

"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

'Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, allTaxable Property not classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENTTO LAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the CFD No. 23 lA3 Amended Boundaries shall be designated as

either Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,
Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property
and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACITITIES SPECIAL TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA3

according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be equal to or greater than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,202I

Page 8Page 481

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year 2O2t-2022 is set forth in Attachment B of this
Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July L,2022, the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum
Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.1. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Farcel(s) created

from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the
revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there
will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property
subdivision, untilthe sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased untilthe sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
B of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases

to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

M ulti-Fa mily/Non-Residentia I Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,202t

Page 9
Page 482

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the
Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the
expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial

prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately

increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property

subdivision, untilthe sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Amended Rate and Method

of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23 lA3,

whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment will be updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTax Rate for allTaxable Propefi in CFD No. 23 lA3.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated

average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equalto the

Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Amended

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended

November 2,202L
Page 10

Page 483

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property
land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total
Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to
the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.

Attachrnent C of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth
the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for
each Residential Property land use category.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set
forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment will
be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more
Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,2021

Page 11
Page 484

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments
to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the
Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sunr of tlre total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property
subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated
to reflect any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map
Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already

classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Fa mily/Non-Residential Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the
Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the
Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,2021

Page 72Page 485

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluatiorr Maxinrunr Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the
Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTax is equalto the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases

to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot

Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the
amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding
only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,2021

Page L3Page 486

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on
all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to IOO% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on
Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities

Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied
Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property
for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 1.00% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the
entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPECIAL TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA3 according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,202I

Page L4Page 487

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



D.1. lncrease in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July 1, commencing on July 1,2022, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be

increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable

Property within CFD No. 23 lA3 and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient

to pay the facilities Special Tax Requirement such shortfall shall bc dccmed a componcnt of thc
Services Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

Special Tax shall first be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement

before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA3.

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the
amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 1"00% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order
to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DETINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA3 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any

FiscalYear, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 lA3 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than
ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,202I

Page L5
Page 488

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall classify the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,

Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the
Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility
easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in
the easement.

F.2. Thc Maximum Facilities Spccial Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or
dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until
the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities Special Tax. An exception to this
may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property
becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to
be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.1 above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to
the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23 lA3, the City may permit the transfer
of Maximum Facilities Special Tax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from
one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is

transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessot's Parcel to another
Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1) all adjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction
in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment
to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the
transfer in the CFD No. 23 lA3 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or,

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,2O2L

Page 16
Page 489

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition,

the interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.
lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

I. REVIEWAPPEALS

The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake

the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall interpret this Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual

administration of the Special Tax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the SpecialTax with the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator

claiming that the amount or application of the SpecialTax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not
later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant
must be current in all payments of Special Taxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.

The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

lA3 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator's decision relative to the
appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action, if any, by the City

Manager, the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice

with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 lA3

Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior
years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COTTECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 lA3, may, at the sole discretion of the
City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner

as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,202t

Page 1.7
Page 490

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and
permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23 lA3 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of
redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full
As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C. lf
an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax forthe Assessor's Parcel based on the assignment

of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C. lf the
Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) shall be assigned as though
the Assessol's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the
calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) revenue stream determined
in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest
that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would
produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the
Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment
Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equal the Redemption Amount.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,202I

Page 18
Page 491

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows:

Step 1: Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum
Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA3, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the
current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount
of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiplythe Bond Redemption Amount bytheapplicable redemption premium, if any,

on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Steo 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from
the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest
redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet

been paid.

Step 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the
reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the
redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived
by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the
balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund
below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at

the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant

to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3, 4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 and 7 (the "Redemption
Amount").

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment
Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,2O2t

Page 19Page 492

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation
of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the

"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or all of the current property tax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the
Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the
Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the
amount of Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed
prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

K.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full
Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above
Section K.1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following
formula:

PP=((Pr-AlxF)+A

These terms have the following meaning:

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.1 above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.1 above

F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the
Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assesso/s Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially
prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii) the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 50 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date
is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the
lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator
shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 lA3 that there has been a partial prepayment of the
Facilities SpecialTax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities SpecialTax obligation equalto
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,202I

Page 20
Page 493

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial
prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

t. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2L-2O22lo the extent necessary to fully satisfy the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2027-2022 and shall be

levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer
needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,202I

Page 2L
Page 494

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch!

lmprovement Area No. 3
Maximum Special Tax Rates

(Fiscal Y ear 2O2L-20221

2021-2022
Maximum

Services Special
Tax RateP) Taxed Per

5100 Residential Unit

100 Residential Unit

100 Residential Unit

100 Residential Unit

100 Residential Unit

500 Acre

1,000 Acre

1,000 Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

sloo

100

202t-2022
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Ratelll

Ssso

790

590

590

490

30,000

L7,700

L\,700

Ssgo

490

Residential
Floor Area

>2,2OO

2,OOO-2,L99

1,800 - 1,999

<L,799

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Catecory

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Propefi

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

SmallLot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,2021

Page22
Page 495

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Maximum Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2021-20221

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July L, 2022, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
(2) On each July 1, commencing on July 7, 2022, the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates shall be increased by an amount equal to the

Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,202t

Page 23

Taxed Per

Acre

Acre

Acre

202L-2022
Maximum

Services Special
Tax RateP)

s1,ooo

S1,ooo

Si,,ooo

202L-2022
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(11

S11,7oo

s18,ooo

s18,000

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 496

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



(1)

ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch!

lmprovement Area No. 3
Minimum Facilities Revenue

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2t-2O221

On each July 1, commencing on July 1,2022, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities

Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.
The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations
being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning with
Residential Floor Area of less than 1,799 square feet.

(2)

(3)

(4)

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,2O2]-

Page24

202t-2022
Minimum Facilities

ftsygnug {rX3)

s443,090

82,320

0

0

0

S525,410

202t-2022
Developed Property
Maximum Facilities
SPeciallsl P21g(rxrl

sss0

490

30,000

Ll,700

77,7OO

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

751

168

0.0

0.0

0.0

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:

Single-Family Detached Propefi - SF/SFHD Zoningt+t

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Propefi

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 497

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2OZL-2O221

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

202t-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
Speciall6a P31s(rxz)

sseo

790

690

590

490

30,000

lL,700

lt,700

Ssgo

490

Residential
Floor Area

>2,200

2,OOO-2,199

1,800 - 1,999

<7,799

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Propefi

MHD Multi-Family Attached Propefi

Non-Residential Property

Small Lot FinalMap Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,2021

Page 25Page 498

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENTC
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch|
lmprovement Area No. 3

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates
( Fisca I Y ear 2O2t-2O221

(1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effec-tive Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,2O2L

Page 26

Taxed Per

Acre

Acre

Acre

202L-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
Special fsa ft316(rxz)

s11,7oo

S18,ooo

s18,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Propefi

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 499

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community facilities District No.23 {Folsom Ranch}

lmprovement Area No. 3
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2L-2O221

(1) PlannedNumberofResidentialUnits/Acres,DevelopedPropertyEffectiveTaxRateEvaluationMaximumFacilitiesspecialTaxRateandEffective
Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.

(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Propety Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Propefi Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates
set forth in this table.

(4) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property -
SF/SFHD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 1,799 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended
November 2,202L

Page27

202L-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

pgygnqg (rxzxl)

5443,090

82,320

o

0

0

$5z5,cto

202t-2022
Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax

P2lglrXrXr)

Ssso

490

30,000

tt,7oo

tL,7OO

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres(ll

75I

168

0.0

0.0

0.0

land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(st

Single-Family Detached Property- MLD Zoning

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 500

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT E

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Amended Boundaries

TAP trAIC}DED BOUT€AREI
OF ITPROVEIEITITAFE tlo. 3

0F clw oF Fouil cotuHtTY FAclu'rcs
DNrrRCt NO. 2t (FOLSOI| RATCH)

STC€T I (F I

ElTYSFqSOl. Cq'{TVOFE Cn E lrcrttlrCoFc^ltr(n{A

+
'=44r#tErd

&

ffiffi.ffi

ffiffi,q4

ffi-#9nrrr#3#erl$-*.
Edftftd"wcilffimffrcarffi

LEEG![) ffitmffi

KTIT
-.--

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
t-

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

d:&ffi(
(0r2-ffi0-09e)

W77n ffist.r

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended

November 2,2O2L
Page 28

Page 501

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



APPENDIX C: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT -
lA NO. 7

The following pages provide a copy of the Rate and Method of Apportionment for the new lA No. 7

City of Folsom

CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended lA No. 3 and lA No. 7 Public Hearing Report cC'NBS
Page 502

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

crwoF FotsoM
COMMUNIW FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

{FOTSOM RANCHI

lmprovement Area No. 7

A Special Tax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 7 (CFD No.

23 lATl and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator
through the application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of the real
property within CFD No. 231A7, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for
the purposes, to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning:

'?cre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,
condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and G15. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal
to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,550.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of t982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Assessot's Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessoy's Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots
or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light
maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA7.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September 1't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No. 23 lA7 under the Act.

"CFD No. 23 lA7" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2021
Page 1Page 503

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



"CFD No. 2? lA7 Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible

for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and
providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

"CFD No. 23 lA7' means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7.

"CFD No. 231A7 Boundaries" means the boundaries for CFD No. 231A7, including the area designated

as Zone 1 and Zone 2, as set forth in Attachment E.

"City" means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 23 lA7

"County" means the County of Sacramento

"Developed Propefi" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential
Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate" means the maximum annual
Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in

Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA7 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities SpecialTax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set
forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Properg/' means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall
also be designated as Exempt Property.

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2O2t
Page 2Page 504

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

Special Taxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23 lA7, or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or
SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

23 lA7, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA7, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 231A7 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

"Facilities SpecialTax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%) annually

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 231A7 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the
City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit
enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 23|,A7 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2O79-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring
50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23l,A7.

"Fiscal Yea/' means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

"tndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other
instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from
time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,202L
Page 3

Page 505

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family
Residential Units.

"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax" means the total maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax, determined
in accordancc with thc provisions of Scction C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Services Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum SpecialTax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" means t.8O%, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,
that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 lA7 Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

"MHD Multi-Family Attached Property'' means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could
be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28, 2OtL and as amended by the City Council.

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parceldesignated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcelthat is designated for residential
land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-
residential land use, only that portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2O2I
Page 4

Page 506

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the
Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-family Attached Property'' means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor/s

Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2}tt and as amended by the City Council.

"Non-Residential Property'' mcans, for cach Fiscal Year, all Toxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the CFD No. 23 lA7 Boundaries, which (a) has been

designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as open space,

or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably
offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,

the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition andlor construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA7.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Propertl/' means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements
have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 231A7, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended by the
future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot Final Subdivision Maps within CFD No. 231A7.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated
average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location
and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property'' means any property within the CFD No. 23 lA7 Boundaries,

which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries and

Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property. As used in this
definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2O2!
Page 5

Page 507

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



"Proportionately'' means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) and

the Services Special Tax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.) within CFD No. 231A7.

"Public Property'' means any property within the CFD No. 23 lA7 Boundaries, which (a) is owned by a

public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is designated

with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot l-inal Subdivision Map as property, which will be

owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the federal
government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or
similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 lA7

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"Services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA7, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts
estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 231A7 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services SpecialTax" means the annual SpecialTax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the
Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2027
Page 5

Page 508

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



exceed four percent @%).ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"Services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23l.A7 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated
by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or
replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to
the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the
Facilities SpecialTax Requirement in that FiscalYear. Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls shall
not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the
CFD No. 231A7 Administrator.

"Single-Family Detached Property - MtD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property
for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or
attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-t2 Residential Units per Acre and more
fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OII and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoningi' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more
Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-
family property with a permitted density range of 1-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family hieh

density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2Ot1and as amended by the City
Council.

"Special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each
Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement
and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Propertl/' means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the
subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of propefi for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does
not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final
subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision
Map Act (California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2021
Page 7Page 509

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California.

"Taxable Propefi" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the CFD No. 23 lA7 Boundaries that are

not exempt from the CFD No. 231A7 Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F below.

"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

'Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

"Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, allTaxable Property not classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

"Zone 1" means that area within the CFD No. 23 lA7 Boundaries as set forth in Attachment E

"Zone 2" means that area within the CFD No. 23 lA7 Boundaries as set forth in Attachment E.

B. ASSIGNMENTTO IAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the CFD No. 23 lA7 Boundaries shall be designated as either Taxable

Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,
Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property
and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACITITIES SPECIAL TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA7

according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,202L
Page 8Page 510

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be equal to or greater than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described

below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 is set forth in Attachment B of this
Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July L,2022, the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum
Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.1. Future Assessol's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created

from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the
revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there
will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property
subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equalto the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

M u lti-Family/Non-Residential Property.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2021
Page 9

Page 511

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the
Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the
expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property. The expccted Dcvclopcd Propcrty Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential

Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial
prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately
increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property

subdivision, untilthe sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 231A7,

whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be

updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for all

Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 lA7.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated
average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2021
Page L0

Page 512

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equalto the
Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total

Maximum tffective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilitics Spccial Tax Ratc sct

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to
the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.

Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the
Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each

Residential Property land use category.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum

Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set

forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated

to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax

Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment
will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessol's Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more

Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum

Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2021
Page 1L

Page 513

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments
to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the
Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property
subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect
any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the
Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the
Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,202I
Page 12

Page 514

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the
Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum
of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot Property
subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed Property,
Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created
prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax
Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the
amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all
Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The
Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on
all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding
only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7
November 2,2021

Page L3
Page 515

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to LlO% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to L00% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities

Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property
for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Propefi for the
entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPECIAT TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 231A7 according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,202L
Page 14

Page 516

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



D.1. Increase in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July 1, commencing on July t,2022, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be
increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax
lf, in any Fiscal Year, the Facilities Special Tax is levied against each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable
Property within CFD No. 231A7 and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient
to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

SpecialTax shallfirst be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement
before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA7.

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator shall
determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the
amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all
Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order
to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on
all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Services Special Tax in order to satisfo the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
three steps have been completed, the Services SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy
the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DETINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA7 Facilities Special Tax
levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any
FiscalYear, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 lA7 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7
November 2,2O2I

Page 15Page 517

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 231A7 Administrator shall classifo the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,
Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the
Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility
easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in
the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or
dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until
the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities Special Tax. An exception to this
may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property
becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to
be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.1 above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to
the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23l,A7 , the City may permit the transfer

of Maximum Facilities SpecialTax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from
one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is
transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessot/s Parcelto another
Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1) all adjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction
in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2021
Page 1"6

Page 518

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment
to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method

of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the transfer in the CFD

No. 23 lA7 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or, following an Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition, the
interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.

lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

I. REVIEWAPPEATS

The CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake
the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator shall interpret this Rate and Method

of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual administration of
the Special Tax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator
claiming that the amount or application of the SpecialTax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not
later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant

must be current in all payments of Special Taxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.

The CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

lA7 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator's decision relative to the
appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action, if any, by the City

Manager, the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice

with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 lA7

Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior
years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COTTECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 lA7, may, at the sole discretion of the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,202L
Page L7

Page 519

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner
as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually
foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF FACITITIES SPECIALTAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessot's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and
permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23 lA7 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of
redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full
As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows:

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax described in Section C. lf
an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax forthe Assessor's Parcel based on the assignment

of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C. lf the
Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) shall be assigned as though
the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the
calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) revenue stream determined
in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest
that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would
produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the
Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2O2t
Page 18

Page 520

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be
increased to equal the Redemption Amount.

The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows:

Step 1: Divide the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum
Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special
Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA7, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the
current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding
any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective
Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount
of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiplythe Bond Redemption Amount bythe applicable redemption premium, if any,
on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from
the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest
redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in
the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet
been paid.

Step 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the
reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the
redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived
by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the
balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund
below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at
the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant
to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3, 4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 and 7 (the "Redemption
Amount").

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7
November 2,2021

Page L9Page 521

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment
Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation
of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the
"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust tha Prepaymcnt Amount calculated abovc if a

portion or all of the current property tax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the
Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the
Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the
amount of Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed
prepayment, is at least L.L times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

K.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full
Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above
Section K.1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following
formula:

PP=((PE-AlxF)+n

These terms have the following meaning:

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.1 above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.1 above
F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the
Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially
prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii) the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date
is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the
lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator
shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 lA7 that there has been a partial prepayment of the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,202L
Page 20

Page 522

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



Facilities SpecialTax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities SpecialTax obligation equalto
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial
prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

t. TERM OF SPECIATTAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2L-2022 to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2!-2O22 and shall be

levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer
needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,202L
Page 21.

Page 523

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENTA
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 7

Maximum Special Tax Rates
( Fisca I Y ear 2O2t-2O221

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

2021-2022
Maximum

Seruices Special
Tax RatePl

5r77

L77

L77

L77

177

177

177

500

1,000

1,000

5L77

L77

L77

202L-2022
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(ll

S2,450

2,39O

2,350

3,075

2,95O

2,845

2,350

30,000

L7,700

LL,700

s2,350

2,845

2,35O

Residential
Floor Area

> 2,900

2,700-2,899

<2,699

> 3,325

3,000 - 3,324

<2,ggg

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Propefi - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Tone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone 2: Single-Fam ily Detached Property - SF/SFH D Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Propefi

Non-Residentia I Property

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Tone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2021
Page22

Page 524

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENTA
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 7

Maximum Special Tax Rates
(Fisca I Y ear 2O2t-2O221

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July L,2022, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation
Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(2) On each July 1, commencing on July t,2022, the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates shall be increased by an amount equal to the Services

Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7
November 2,2O2I

Page 23

Taxed Per

Acre

Acre

Acre

2021-2022
Maximum

Services Special
Tax RateP)

s1,000

S1,ooo

s1,000

202t-2022
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l}

S11,7oo

S18,ooo

S18,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 525

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranchl

lmprovement Area No. 7
Minimum Facilities Revenue

( Fiscal Y ear 2O2L-2O221

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July L,2122,the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities
Revenue shall be increased bythe Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special
Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(2) As a result of future Assessot/s Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.

(3) The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations
being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(4) Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD
Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,699 square feet and Zone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,999 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2O2L
Page24

2021-2022
Minimum
Facilities

Revenue llx3l

S237,350

312,950

0

0

0

0

Ssso,roo

202t-2022
Developed Property
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 13x Pslglrxzl

52,350

2,845

2,35O

30,000

IL,7OO

Tt,700

Planned
Number of
Residential

Units / Acres

101

110

0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(a)

Zone 2: Si ngle-Fa m i ly Detached Property - SF/SFH D Zon i ngt+t

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 526

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch|

lmprovement Area No. 7
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2t-20221

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

2021-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPeciallsx Pslg(rxzl

5z,4so

2,390

2,350

3,075

2,950

2,845

2,350

30,000

7I,7OO

lL,700

s2,350

2,845

2,350

Residential
Floor Area

> 2,900

2,700-2,ggg

s2,699

> 3,325

3,OOO-3,324

<2,ggg

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Tone L: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Tone t: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Tone 2: Single-Family Detached Propefi - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone2: Single-Family Detached Property- SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Propefi
M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

SmallLot Final Map Property:

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Tone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2021
Page 25Page 527

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2L-2O221

(1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities SpecialTax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2021
Page 26

Taxed Per

Acre

Acre

Acre

202L-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
Speciallsa P61s(4(zl

S11,7oo

s18,ooo

S18,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 528

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT D
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch!
lmprovement Area No. 7

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue
( Fisca I Y ear 2O2L-2O221

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and Effective Tax
Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.

(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax
Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.

( ) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Zone 1: Single-Family Detached property -
SF/SFHD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,699 square feet and Tone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning with
Residential Floor Area of less than 2,999 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2021
Page27

202L-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue

(1x2x4l

s237,350

312,950

0

0

0

0

s55o,3oo

202L-2022
Developed Property

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special

1sx pslg(rXzll)

S2,350

2,845

2,350

30,000

!1,700

TT,7OO

Planned
Number of
Residential

Units /
Acres(l)

L01

110

0

0.0

0.0

0.0

land Use Category

Developed Property:

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning{sl

Zone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(s)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 529

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



ATTACHMENT E

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprwementArea No.7
Boundaries and Zones

ttl P OF FqTiDABES OF Ow OF ro.9oil
€nfrJilrTf F^ourEg 9tSrRcr t€. 29

Fots4tRAflCl0
rFRCn Ellgnmet xo. t

CITYC F(I.fl . Odtllvc alC8^EXlO.Sf lE(rCAlFtFalA

A'CET I G I

+
€ q&ld

ffiffi-ffi

0lztxw)&(
(072-0060-r03)

ffiffi.K

wr{fE ffi-'.ftetqrvHloxffi4m!ffrffi

L€GEND

ffi6
scm.G

ETIT
- 

c-

W7?VA mrn'

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 7

November 2,2A2L
Page 28Page 530

12/14/2021 Item No.27.



I''{-h l-. $f '{-! I4:{.
!.trrrclrrG lr trf! {I

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: t2lt4l202l

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Broadstone Estates Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map Extension - Southeast corner of Placerville Road and U.S
Highway 50 (PN 2l-234)

i. Resolution No. 10759 - A Resolution extending the Small-
Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the Broadstone
Estates Subdivision proiect (PN 21-234)

F'ROM: Community Development Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Move to Adopt Resolution No. 10759 - A Resolution extending the Small-Lot Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision project (PN 21-234)

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On June 28, 2016, the City Council approved a General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan
Amendment, and First Amended and Restated Development Agreement for development of
the Broadstone Estates Subdivision project. The approved General Plan Amendment and

Specific Plan Amendment resulted in an increase in the amount of land designated for single-
family development, and increase in the amount of open space, and elimination of land

designated for industrial, office, and commercial uses within the37.2-acre Broadstone Estates

Subdivision project area.

On April ll,20l7,the City Council approved a Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map,
Project Design Guidelines, and an Inclusionary Housing Plan for the development of an 81-

unit single family residential subdivision (Broadstone Estates Subdivision) on a 37.2-acre site
located in the Folsom Plan Area at the southeast corner of Placerville Road and U.S. Highway
50. On January 25,2019, Elliott Homes, Inc. submitted a timely letter to the City requesting

a three-year extension in time for the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map associated

with the Broadstone Estates Subdivision project.

I
Page 531

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



On August 27,202I, Elliott Homes submitted an application to the City for approval of a code

amendment to modifr Section 16.16.120(D) of the Folsom Municipal Code to make it
consistent with State law relative to map extensions. State law allows local jurisdictions to
extend subdivision maps up to six years from the date of approval, while the Folsom Municipal
Code limits the extension to three years. On September 28, 2021, the City Council approved

Ordinance No. 1317, an Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 16.16.120(D) of
the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Extension of Tentative Subdivision Maps.

The applicant, Elliott Homes, Inc., is requesting approval of a three-year extension in time for
the previously approved Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map associated with the

Broadstone Estates Subdivision project. As referenced previously within this report, the

Broadstone Estates Subdivision project features development of an 8l-unit single-family
residential subdivision ona37 .2-acre site located within the Folsom Plan Area at the southeast

corner of the intersection of U.S. Highway 50 and Placerville Road.

The applicant's map extension request was considered by the Planning Commission at its
November 3,202I meeting. No members of the public spoke regarding the project. The

Planning Commission expressed their fuIl support for the project and adopted a motion (6-0-

0-1) to recommend approval of the proposed project to the City Council, subject to the findings
included with this report.

POLICY / RULE

The Folsom Municipal Code GMC) requires that applications for Tentative Subdivision Map
Extensions be forwarded to the City Council for final action. City Council actions regarding
extension of Tentative Subdivision Maps are covered under Section 16.16.120 of the Folsom
Municipal Code.

ANALYSIS

As described in the background section of this report, the City Council approved a Small-Lot
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, Project Design Guidelines, and Inclusionary Housing Plan
for development of the 8l-unit Broadstone Estates Subdivision project on April 11,2017. The
City Council granted a three-year extension in time for Broadstone Estates Small-Lot Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map on August 27,2019. The Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map for the project is valid until April 11,2021. The life of the Project Design Guidelines
track with the validity of the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map. The Inclusionary
Housing Plan is a requirement of the project and does not require an extension in time.

On August 27,2021, Elliott Homes submitted an application to the City for approval of a code
amendment to modifr Section 16.16.120(D) of the Folsom Municipal Code to make it
consistent with State law relative to map extensions. State law allows local jurisdictions to
extend subdivision maps up to six years from the date of approval, while the Folsom Municipal
Code limits the extension to three years. On September 28, 2021, the City Council approved

2 Page 532

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Ordinance No. 1317, an Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 16.16.120(D) of
the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Extension of Tentative Subdivision Maps to allow
for tentative maps to be extended for a period not exceeding a total of six years.

On August 3I,202l,the project applicant (Elliott Homes, Inc.) submitted a timely letter to the

City requesting a three-year extension in time for the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map associated with the Broadstone Estates Subdivision project. The applicant indicates in
their extension letter that they are actively designing the civil site improvements with the goal

of beginning grading activities in the sunmer of 2022. The applicant also states that the

extension in time will allow them to complete other required site improvements and to file the

Final Map in a timely manner. The applicant is not proposing any changes to the previously

approved project.

The Folsom Municipal Code (FMC, Section 16.16.120 D. Time Limit Extensions) states that
the time at which a Tentative Subdivision Map expires may be extended by the Planning

Commission for a period not exceeding a total of six years. As noted previously in the

background section of this staff report, the City Council previously approved a three-year

extension for the Broadstone Estates Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, thus the

applicant is limited to one more three-year extension. As stated in the submitted extension

request letter, the applicant has been actively engaged in designing the civil site improvements

associated with the subdivision with the goal of conducting grading activities in the summer

of 2022. In addition, the applicant states that the extension in time will allow them to complete

other required site improvements and to file the Final Map in a timely manner. As a result,

staff recommends approval of a three-year extension in time for the Small-Lot Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map associated with the Broadstone Estates Subdivision project.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

No financial impact is anticipated with approval of the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative

Subdivision Map Extension associated with the Broadstone Estates Subdivision Project as the

project will not result in any change in the residential unit count within the Folsom Plan Area.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Environmental Impact Report was previously
approved for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision project (PN 15-308) on Jwrc 28,2016 in
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The proposed Small-Lot
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map is consistent with the Broadstone Estates Subdivision
Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS, and all mitigation measures have

been applied as conditions of approval for this project. In addition, none of the conditions

described in Section 21166 of the Public Resources Code or Section 15162 of the CEQA
Guidelines calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred. Therefore, no

additional environmental review is required under CEQA.

5 Page 533

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10759 - A Resolution extending the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative

Subdivision Map for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision project (PN 21-234)

2. Vicinity Map
3. Conditions of Approval
4. Broadstone Estates Subdivision Master Plan Exhibit, dated March 9,2017
5. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, dated March 9,2017
6. Letter from Applicant, dated August 31,2021
7. Planning Commission Staff Report, dated November 3,2021
8. Minutes from November 3, 2021Planrting Commission Meeting

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

4 Page 534

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Attachment 1

Resolution No. I0759 - A Resolution Extending the

Small-Lot Vesting Subdivision Map for the Broadstone
Estates Subdivision Project (PN 2I-234)

Page 535

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



RESOLUTION NO. 10759

A RESOLUTION EXTENDING THE SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE
SUBDIVISION MAP F'OR THE BROADSTONE ESTATES SUBDIVISION PROJECT

(PN 21-234)

WHEREAS, the City Council on April 11,2017, held a noticed public hearing on the

Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for development of the 8l-unit Broadstone Estates

Subdivision residential project ("Project"), considered public comment and approved the

proposed Project by adopting Resolution No. 9900; and

WHEREAS, the City Council on August27,2019, held a public hearing at the

developer's request to extend the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for a period of
three years, and upon considering public comment and the proposed configuration of the 8l
single family lots, determined that the proposed extension of the subdivision map complies with
all City requirements, as well as with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on November 3,2021, held a public hearing at

the developer's request to extend the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for a period

of three years, and upon considering public comment and the proposed configuration of the 81

single family lots, determined that the proposed extension of the subdivision map complies with
all City requirements, as well as with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act; and

WHEREAS, an Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Environmental Impact Report was

previously approved for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision project (PN 15-308) on June 28,

2016 inaccordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and the Planning

Commission determined that the proposed Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map is

consistent with the Broadstone Estates Subdivision Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific

Plan EIR/EIS, and all mitigation measures have been applied as conditions of approval for this

project. In addition, the Commission determined that none of the conditions described in Section

21166 of the Public Resources Code or Section 15162 of the CEQA Guidelines calling for the

preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred, therefore, no additional reviewed is required

under CEQA; and

WHEREAS, notice has been given at the time and in the manner required by State Law

and City Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom

that athree-year extension for the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the

Broadstone Estates Subdivision Project is hereby approved (until April 11,2025), subject to all

Conditions of Approval (lrtros. 1-189) included as Attachment 3 to the December 14,2021 City
Council Staff Report with the following findings:

Resolution No. 10759
Page I of3

Page 536

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



A.

B.

GENERAL FINDINGS

NOTICE OF HEARING HAS BEEN GIVEN AT THE TIME AND IN THE MANNER
REQUIRED BY STATE LAW AND CITY CODE.

THE PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL PLAN AND THE FOLSOM
PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN.

CEOA FINDINGS

THE CITY, AS LEAD AGENCY, PREVIOUSLY CERTIFIED AN
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT/ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT
FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AND ALSO APPROVED AN
ADDENDUM FOR THE BROADSTONE ESTATES SUBDIVISION PROJECT.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE FOLSOM PLAN
AREA SPECIFIC PLAN.

THE FEASIBLE MITIGATION MEASURES SPECIFIED IN THE FOLSOM PLAN
AREA SPECIFIC PLAN ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT AND
BROADSTONE ESTATES CERTIFIED ADDENDUM WILL BE IMPLEMENTED
FOR THE PROPOSED SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP,
CONSISTENT WITH CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15183(e).

NONE OF THE EVENTS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 21166 OF THE PUBLIC
RESOURCES CODE OR SECTION 15162 OF THE CEQA GUIDELINES
REQUIRING SUBSEQUENT ENVIORNMENTAL REVIEW HAVE OCCURRED

VE,STING ATIVE SIIBDIVISION AP ANI) MAP EXTENSI T'INDIN(lS

THE PROPOSED SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP IS
CONSISTENT WITH THE CITY'S SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE AND THE
SUBDIVISION MAP ACT IN THAT THE PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS
OF APPROVAL THAT WILL ENSURE THAT THE PROJECT IS DEVELOPED IN
COMPLIANCE WITH CITY STANDARDS.

H THE PROPOSED SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP ,

TOGETHER WITH THE PROVISIONS FOR ITS DESIGN AND IMPROVEMENT, IS

CONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL PLAN, THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA
SPECIFIC PLAN, AND ALL APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE FOLSOM
MUNICIPAL CODE.

THE PROJECT SITE IS PHYSICALLY SUITABLE FOR THE TYPE OF
DEVELOPMENT PROPOSED.

Resolution No. 10759
Page2 of3

C.

D.

E.

F

G

I

Page 537

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



J

K.

THE PROJECT SITE IS PHYSICALLY SUITABLE FOR THE PROPOSED DENSITY
OF DEVELOPMENT.

AS CONDITIONED, THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE
SUBDIVISION MAP AND THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ARE NOT LIKELY
TO CAUSE ENVIRONMENTAL DAMAGE OR SUBSTANTIALLY AND
AVOIDABLY INruRE FISH OR WILDLIFE OR THEIR HABITAT.

THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
AND THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ARE NOT LIKELY TO CAUSE SERIOUS
PUBLIC HEALTH OR SAFETY PROBLEMS.

THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
AND THE TYPE OF IMPROVEMENTS WILL NOT CONFLICT WITH EASEMENTS
FOR ACCESS THROUGH OR USE OF PROPERTY WITHIN THE PROPOSED
SUBDIVISION.

N SUBJECT TO SECTION 66474.4 OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, THE LAND IS
NOT SUBJECT TO A CONTRACT ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO THE
CALIFORNTA LAND CONSERVATION ACT OF 1965 (COMMENCING WITH
SECTION 51200 OF THE GOVERNMENT CODE).

o. APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT FEES HAVE INCREASED SINCE INITIAL
APPROVAL OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP ON
APRIL IT,2OI7. THE PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT
FEES IN PLACE AT TIME OF ISSUANCE OF PERMITS.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this l4th day of December 2021, by the following roll-
call vote:

AYES:

L

M.

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10759
Page 3 of3

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 538

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Attachment2

Vicinity Map

Page 539

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Vicinity Map
FOtsOsn

Page 540

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Attachment 3

Conditions of Approval

Page 541

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(PXEXB)

cD (P)

Responsible
Department

cD (PXE)

TYhen
Required

G,IM,B

G, I, M,

OG

Condition/lVlitigation Measure

Final Developnunt Plans
The owner/applicant shall submit final site development plans to the Community
Development Departnentthat shall substantially conform to the exhibits referenced
below:

l. Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map dated 3-9-17
2- Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan dated 3-9-17
3. Preliminary Utility Plan dated 3-9-17

4. Preliminary Offsite Improvements Plan datod 3-9-17

5. Russell Ranch and Broadstone Estates at Russell Ranch DesigR

Guidelines

6. Inclusionary Housing Plan

The Vesting Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map, Russell Ranch and Broadstone
Estates at Russell Ranch Design Guidelines and Inclusionary Housing Plan are

approved forthe development of a 81 lot single f"-tty residential subdivision

@roadstone Estates SuMivision). Implementation ofthe project shall be consistent

with the above referenced items and these conditions of approval-

PIur Sabrrrifral
All civil engineering improvement and landscape and inigation plans, shall be
submitted to the Community Development Departrrent for review and approval to
Grulure conformance with this approval and with relevant codes, policies, standards and
other requirements ofthe Citv of Folsom.
Yolitfriy
This approval ofthe Vesting Small Lot Tentative SuMivision Map shall be valid for a
p€riod of tbree years or thirty-six months (April lt,2ff25). Pursuant to Section 2.2 of
Amendment No. 1 to ARDAr the term of the Project Design Guidelines shall track the

map.term ofthe

Mitigation
Meesure

SMALI-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SI'BOIVffTON MAP EXTENSION
EIGHWAY

ESTATESIAPPROVAL 2l-?J,4)
ROAI)PLI\CERVILIJAITTD50u.s.OF

BROADSTONBIHE
INTERTIECIION

noR
TEEorCORNER,

OF
SOTIIHDAST

I

2.

3.

Page 542

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



coNDrTroNs oF APPROVAL nOR IHE BROADSTONE ESTATDS SIrBrrrVrSlON PROJECT (pN 21-234)
SOUTEEAST CORIIER, OT TEE INTERSECflON OF U"S. EIGEWAY 5II AND PII\CNRYILT,E RON)

SMALI-II)T VESIING TENTAITVE STIBDIVISION MAP EXTEN$ION

Responsible
Demrtuent
PFFP. M,B

CDD(EXPXB), PW,
FD, EWR, PR

When
Required

M

Condition/lVlitigetion Measune

Improvemen8 in the PFFP
The owner/applicant shall be subject to all thresholds, timelines and deadlines for the
construction and final completion of various improveinents forthe entire Folsom Plan
Area. The vmious improvements are outlined and detailed in the Folsom Plan Area
Specific Plan Public Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP) dated January 28,2A14 nd
adopted by Crty of Folsom Resolution No. 9298- ft656 improvements in the PEFP
include, but are not limitedto, the backbone infrastnrctre water (water reservoirs,
water transmission mains, booster pump stations, pressure reducing valve stations, els.),
sanitary sewer (lift stations and forced mains) qystems, recycled water mains and
associated infrastructure, roadway and transportation (future interchanges, major
art€rial roadways, etc.) improvements, aquatic center (community pool), parks, fire
stations, municipal services center, communit5r library, etc. The thresholds and
timelines included in the PFFP require facilities to be constructed and completed based

on number of building permits issued and in some cases, number of residential units
that are occupied. The ourner/applicant shall be rcquired to address these thresholds and
timelines as the project moves forward through tlre various developments stages md
shall be subjectto the various fair share requirements, subjectto the provisions oftre
PFFP, the ARDA and any amendmentthereto.

Mitigetion
Measnre

4.

Page 543

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



coNDrrroNs oF APPRoVAL f,lOR TEE BROATTSTONE ESTATES SUBDTVTSTON PR(I|ECT (pN 2r-84)
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF IEE INTER.SECTION OF U.S. HIGEWAY sI}AND PI,ACNRVILLE ROAI)

SMALI-LO'T VESTING TENTATTVE ST]BDIYISION IWAP EXTENSION

Responsible
I)epartment
cD (PXEXB)
PW, P& FD,

PD

CD

cD (E)

When
Required

OG

OG

G, I,M,B

ConditionlilIitigation Measure

Indcmnityfu CAy
The ownerlapplicant shall protect, defend indemniff, and hold harmless the City and its
agents, officers and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City or
its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void, or annul any approval by the
Crty or any of its agencies, departnents, commissions, agents, offrcers, employees, or
legislative body concerning the project, which claim, action or proceeding is brrought
within the time period provided therefore in Government Code Section 66499.37 or
other applicable statutes of limitation. The City will promptly notiff the
owner/applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and will cooperate fully in the
defense. Ifthe City should fail to cooperate fully in the defense, the owner
owner/applicant shall notthereafter be responsible to defend, indernnif and hold
harmless the City or its agents, officers, and ernployees, pursuant to this condition. The
City may, u,itrin its unlimited discretion, participate in the defense of any such claim,
action or proceoding if both of the following occur:

. The City bears its own attorney's fees and costs; and
r The City defends the claim, action or proceeding in good faith

The owner/applicant shall not be required to pay or perform any settlernent of such
claim, action or proceeding unless the settlement is approved by the owner/applicant.
The owner/applicant's obligations underthis condition shall apply regardless of
whether a Final lvlap is ultimately recorded with respect to this proiect.
Vesting Tentaive S ubdivision Mry
The vesting te,ntative subdivision map is expressly conditioned upon compliance with
all environmental mitigation measures in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan
(FEIR/EI$ and the Broadstone Estates Addendum-
ARDA andAnun&nena
The owner/applicant shall comply with all provisions of Amendme,nt No. I to the
ARDA and any approved emendments by and between the City and the
landowner/developer of the project.

Mitigation
Measure

5.

6.

7

Page 544

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Responrible

cD(P)

cD(PXE)

cD (E)

PD

When

OG

G, I,B

OG

The owner/applicant shall be required to panicipate in a mitigation monitoring and
reporting program pursuant to City Council Resolution No . 2634 and Public Resources
Code 21081.6. The mitigation monitoring and reporting measures identified in the
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan FEIRIEIS have been incorporated into these conditions
of approval in order to mitigate or avoid significant effects on the e,lrvironment. These
mitigation monitoring and reporting measures are identified in the mitigation mezrsure

Materials monitoringmitigationallbasisandTimeaonfundshall
consultantand

Applicant
statr

column.

Miligaion Monitoring

shall consult with the Police Departnent in ordor to incorporate all
reasonable crime prevention mea$nes. The following security/safety measures shall be
considered:

A security guard on-duty at all times at the site or a six-foot security fence shall be
constructed around the perimeter of construction areas.

Secuity measures for the safety of all construction equipment and unit appliances.

Iandscaping shall not cover exterior doors or windows, block linaof-sight at
intersections or scr@n overhead lighting.

The owner/applicant

The owner/applicant shall pay all applicable ta:res, fees and charges for the project at
the rate and amount required by the Public Facilities Financing Plan and the Amended

Tues andFees

and Restated
Assessnrlnts
If applicablg tlre owner/applicant shall pay offany existing assessments againstthe

fees.andor file

Mitigation

SMALI-LOT VESTING TENTATT\IE SIIBDIVISION MAP EXITNSION
EIGHS'AY

APPROVAL
ROAI'

(PN
PI,ACERVILLNAI{I)s0

ST'BI'IVNIONATESEST
u.s.OF

BROADSTOIiIEIEE
I!{IDRfIECTIONTH3OFCORNER

OF
SOIITHEAST

CONDIITONS

8.

POLICE/SECT'RITY
9.

cosrs rTE
10.

11.

Page 545

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Responsible
Department

cD (P)PW, PK

cD (PXE)

'When

Required

B

OG

Measure

FPASP Developnunt htpa Fees
The owner/applicant shall be subject to all Folsom Plan Area specific Plan Area
development impact fees in place at the time of approval or subsequenfly adopted
consistent with the Public Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP), Development Agreement
and amslclmgnts thereto, unless exempt by previous agreement. The owner/applicant
shall be subject to all applicable Folsom Plan Area plan-wide development impact fees
in effect at such time that a building permit is issued- These fees may include, but are
not limited to, the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Fee, Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee
(SPIF), Solid Waste Fee, Corporation Yard Fee, Transportation Management Fee,
Transit Fee, Highway 50 Interc.hange Feo, General Park Equipment Fee, Housing Trust
Fee, eto.

Any protest to such for all fees, dedications, reservations or other exactions irnposed on
this project will begin on the date of frnal approval
governed by the terms of Amendment No. I to the ARDA- The fees shalt be calculated
at the fee rate set fortr in the PFFP and the ARDA.

or otherwise shall be

Legal Counsel
The City, at its sole discretion, may utilize the services of odside legal counsel to assist
in the implementation of this project including, but not limited to, drafting reviewing
and/or revising agreeme,nts and/or other documentation for the project. If the City
utilizes the services of such outside legal counsel, the City shall provide notice to the
owner/applicant ofthe outside counsel selecte4 the scope ofwork and hourly rates, and
the owner/applicant shall reimhrse the City for all outside legal fees and costs incuned
and documented by the City for such services. The owner/applicant may be required at
the sole discretion of the City Attorney, to submit a deposit to the City for these services
prior to initiation of the sen ices. The owner/applicant shall be responsible for
reimbursement to the City for the services regardless of whether a deposit is required.

Mitigation
Measune

coRNER oF Tm INTERSIECTION oF U"s. HIGHWAY 5ll AI{D PII\CTRVILLE
SIUAIJ-I,OT VESTING TENTAITVE SI'BDIWSION MAP EXTENSION

APPROVAL 2t
ROAI)

(PNBROAI)STOI\TEIHEFORor
SOTITHEAST

COITIDITIONS

2I

l3

Page 546

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Responsible
Demrfuent

cD (PXE)

When
Required

G,I,M,B

Condition/Dlitigation Meesure

If the City utilizes the services of consultants to prepare special studies or provide
specialized design review or inspection services for the projecL the City shall provide
notice to the owner/applicant of the outside consultant selected, the scope of work and
hourly rates, and the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for actual costs incurred
and documented in utilizing these services, including administative costs for City
personnel. A deposit for these services shall be provided prior to initiating review of
the Grading Plan, Final IVIap, improvement plans, or beginning inspection, whichever is
aprrlicable.

Consultant Sentices

Mitigation
Measure

SMAII-IOT VESTING TEI{TATI\ZE SI]BDI\NSION MAP EXTENSION
INTDRSECTION OI. U.S. EIGHWAY 50 AI\TD PL\CDRYILLE ROAI)SOUTMAST COR}TEROFIHE

14.

Page 547

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



CDD(E), EW& PW,
FD

G,I,M,

G, I,M

The owner/applicant shall prepare a complete and comprehensive phasing plan and shall
submit the phasing plan to the city for each proposed phase of development. The
phasing plan shall include all required infrastructure for each proposed phase of
development. The infrastructure shall include all required on-site and off-site
improvements, including but not limited to, water sysGm improvements ( distribution
and tansmission mains, booster pump stations, wat€r reservoirs, pRV stations, ete-),
Reoycled water mains md associaled infiastructure, sanitary sewer improvements
(sewer mains, lift stdions, forced mains, etc.) roadway and transportation
improvements, storm drainage improveme,nts (detention/water qualrty basins, outfalls,
etc.) and all other necessary improvements required for each phase of development The
phasing plan shall include itemized cost estimates for all required improvernents and the
phasing plan shall be reviewed and approved by the city prior to approval of grading
and/or improvements plans.

Phasing Pbn

The city Engineer may condition the phasing to ensure thd each phase functions
independently and is consistent with the minimum utility and access standards of the
City. All maps filed in phases will be required to have two points of access for vehicle
access and/or general traffic purposes for each phase and all off-site utilities deemed
neoessary as determined by the City Engineer.

knprovement plans for all phases that include half sections of steets shall include a
minimum of 15 feet of pavement over the centerling to allow two-way traffic and shall
be subjectto approval of the Community DevelopmentDepartnentand Fire
Departnent.

The City will not dicta,te the order of the phasing provided &at ttre first phase meets the
following require,ments;

All offsite rtilities (i.e. water, sanitary sewer, recycled water, storm drainage,
roadway etc.) necessar5r to s€rve lhe project shall be completed
and acceptedbythe City Engineer.

a

GRADINGPNRIIIT
l5

15. cont.

Page 548

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD(P)
cD(E)(B)

G,I

G

G

G

Off-site inpruverwna / REhB of Entry
For any implovements constructed on private property that are not underthe ownership
or control of the owner/applicant (and ar€ not subjectto the provisions ofthe Amended
and Restated Development Agreement between the city of Folsom and the property
owner), all rigbts-of-enty, and if necessar5r, and any perrnanent easeme,nts shall be
obtained and provided to the City.

All rights of entry, construction easements, either permanent or temporary and other
easements shall be obtained and shall be fully executed by all affected parties and shall
be recorded with the Sacramento county Recorder, where applicable, prior to approval
of grading and/or improvement plans.

Geotechnicol Rryrt
Prior to the issuance of any grading permiL the owner/applicant shall have a
geotechnical report prepared by an appropriately licensed engineer that includes an
analysis ofsite preparation, soil bearing capacrty, appropriate sources and types offill,
potential need for soil amendments, rod pavement and parking areas, stuctural
foundationq including retaining wall designs, grading practices, soil corrosion of
concr€te and sbel, erosion /winterization, seismic ground shaking, liquefaction and
expansivey'unstable soils.

Geotechnical Rqonamendations
The owner/applicant shall submit to the Engineering Division" for review and approval,
a grading plan for the project site which e,nsures that all geotechnical recomme,lrdations
soecified inthe eeo@hnical reoort are orooedv incorporated and utilized in the desicn.
Geotechniul Moninring Progrant
The owner/applicant shall contract with a geotechnical engineer who shall develop a
prograrn to monitorthe site during constuction to ensure compliance with the
recommendations presented in the geotechnical repor(s) and conditions for performing
such monitoring. The geotechnical monitoring progrun shall include a description of
the improvernents areas where geotechnical monitoring shall be required. The
completed program shall be submitted to the City priorto approval of any gnding
and/or improveme,nt plan.

347-la

347-la

3A 7-1b

16.

17

18.

19.

Page 549

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)GPrqarc a Seismic Refraaion Smtey otd ObtainAppropiae
andOff-sits Elsnene Eutof OldPlacaville Road.

Perminfor dl On-\ite

Before the start of all construc,tion astivities east of old Placerville Road,
owner/applicant shall raain a licensed geotechnical engineerto perform a seismic
refraction survey. Project-relded excavation activities shall be carried out as
recommend by the geotechnical e,ngineer. Excavation may include the use of heavy-
duty equipment such as large bulldozers or large excavators, and may include blasting.
Appropriate permits for blasing operations shall be obtained from the relevant Crty or
county jurisdiction, if ap'plicable, prior to the start of any blasting activities.

Mitigation forthe off-site ele,ments outside of the city of Folsom'sjrnisdictional
boundaries shall be coordinated by owner/ applicant with the affected oversight
agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties).

3I^.7-420.

Page 550

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (EXEWR)

Ew& cD (E)

cD @)

G, I

I

G

Prepue Geotechnbal Report(s) lor the Off-site Wuer Facilities utd Iatplenent
Required Measures.

The owner/applicant shall provide acornprehensive facility design for all proposed Off-
site Water Facility improvements md shall comply with the site-specific design
recommendations as provided by a licensed geotechnical or civil engineer. The final
geotechnical and/or civil engineering report shall address and make recommendations
on the following:

In addition to the recommendations for the conditions listed abovg the geotechnical
investigation shall include subsurface testing of soil and groundwater conditions, and
shall detennine appropriate foundation designs that are consisGnt with the version of
the Califomia Building Code that is applicable at the time building and grading permits
are applied for. All recommendations contained in the final geotechnical engineering
report shall be implemented by fte owner/applicant.
fncorporde Pipeline Failue Conthgenclt Meosrres fnb Final Pipeline DesSn
Isolation valves or similar devices shall be incorporated into dl pipeline facilities to
prevent substantial losses of surface wder in the event of pipeline rupture, as
recomme,nded by a licensed geotechnical or civil engineer. The specifications of the
isolation valves shall conform to the California Building Code and American Water
Works Associdion (AWWA) standards.

Mine Shfi Remediaion
The owner/applicant shall locate and remediate all antiquated mine shafts, drifts, open
cuts, trnnels, and water conveyance or impoundment structures existing on the project
site, witr specific recommendations for the sealing, filling or removal of each that meet
all applicable health, safety and engineering standards. Recommendations shall be
prepared by an approprialely licensed engineer or geologist All remedial plans shall be
reviewed and approved by the City prior to approval 6f s2dlng plans.

3B.7-la

38.7-lb

2l

)7

23

Page 551

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(P)cD(E)(B)

cD (P)(E)

G

G

Muerial StorugeAreos
The owner/applicant shall locate staging and material storage areas as far away from
sensitive biological nesources and sensitive land uses (e.g., resideirtial areas, schools,
parks) as feasible. Staging and material storage areas shall be screened from adjacent
occupied land uses in earlier development phases to the ma:rimum extent practicable.
Screens may include, but are not limited to, the use of visual barriers such as berms or
fences. Staging and material storage areas shall be shown on all grading and/or
improvement plans priorto plan approval bv the Citv.
RdainingWaIIs
All retaining walls construct€d on the open space lots or in any area visible to the
public shall be constmcted of rockery or split face masonry block. If the adjoining
portion of the Russell Ranch suMivision (located to the sotdh and east of the subject
properly) has been constructed or is approved to be constnrct€d prior to construction of
the Broadstone Estates Subdivision, the materials to be used for the retaining walls for
the Broadstone Rstates project shall be the same as those used onthe Russell Ranch
proiect.

3At424-

25.

Page 552

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E), PWGTr{frc and Parkiag Managenent Plan
Priorto the approval ofthe grading plan and or construction, the owner/applicant shall
pr€pare a construction traffic and pa*ing management plan to the sdisfaction of the
city Traffic Engrneer and subject to review by any affected age,ncies, if necessary. The
plan shall ensure that acceptable operating conditions on local roadways and freeway
facilities are maintained. Measures tpically used in traffic control plans include
advertising of planned lane closures, waming signage, a flagperson to direct traffic
flows when needed, and methods to ensure continued access by emergenry vehicles.
During project constuction" access to existing land uses shall be maintained at all
times, with detours used as necessary during road closures. ft a pinimum, the plan
shall include the following:

o Description oftrucks including number and size oftrucks per day (i.e., 85
trucks per day), expected arrivaUdeparture times, and truck circulation pafterns.. Description of staging area including location, maximum number oftrucks
simultaneously permitted in staging ar€q use of frafrc confiol personnel, and
specific signage.

' Description of street closures and/or bicycle and pedes{rian facility closures
including duration, advance warning and posted signage, safe and effrcient
access routes for existing businesses and emergency vehicleg and use of
manual traffic control.

' Description of driveway acc€ss plan including provisions for safe vehicular,
pedestrian, and bicycle travel, minimum distance frorn any open trencl; special
signage, and private vehicle access.

3A r4-l26.

Page 553

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)

cD (E)

G

G

Prqme ftaffrc Control PIan

Priorto construction, a Traffc Control Plan for roadways and int€rsections affected by
construction shall be prepared. The Traffrc Control Plan shall designxe haul routes and
comply with requirements in the encoachment permits issued by the City of Rancho
Cordova, Sacramento County, and Caltrans and any other local agencies, including but
not limited to the city, if applicable. The Traffic control Plan to be prepared by the
project constuction contractor(s) shall, at minimurn, include the following measures:

construction periods, possiblg and advanced notice to drivers tbrough the provision of
construction sigrrage.

acoess when feasible.

commute hours (7 arn. to 8 a.m- and 5 p.m. to 6 p.m. on weekdays).

businesses, and local emergency response agencies. This shall include the identification
of alternative routes and detours to enable for the avoidance of the immediate
constuction zone.

construction throughout the constnrction period. This informdion will be posted in a
local newspaper, via the CiE's web site, or at City llall and will be updated on a
monthly basis.

Assess Pre-Offsite Water Faeilitis Roa&oay
Prior to consbuction, the owner/applicant shall be responsible for assessing current road
conditions foroff-site haul routes includingthe localaocess roads and
develop post construction road restoration requirements. As part of the encroachment
permitting process, an agr€em€,nt shall be entered into with applicablejurisdictions
prior to construction that details post constuction road restoration requirements. Staff
with Sacramento Count5l or Folsom shall review the post construction restoration
standards for each ofthe affected roadways. The owner/applicant shall perform
roadway repairs or rehabilitation as n€cessary such that post construction requirements
are met.

27

28.

Page 554

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)

SMAQMD

cD (EXP)

G

G

Develop utd Inplement a PInn to Re&rce Erytoswe of Sensitive Reeqrtors ro
Construction-Generded Toxic Air Contninant Emhsions.

The owner/applicant(s) shall develop a plan to reduce the exposue of sensitive
receptors to TACs generated by project construction activity- Each plan shall be
developed by the owner/applicant(9 in consultation with SMAQMD. The plan shall be
submitted to the City for review and approval before the approval of any grading plans.

The plan may include such measures as scheduling activities when the residences are
the least likely to be occupied requiring equipment to be shut offwhen not in use, and
prohibiting heavy trucks from idling for more than 3 minutes. Applicable measures
shall be included in all project plans and specifications for all project phases.

Signs shall be posted at all truck loading areas which indicat€ that diesel-powered
trucks must be shut offwhen not in use for longer than 3 minutes on the premises in
orderto reduce idling emissions.

The implementation and enforcement of all meiasures identified in each plan shall be
fimded by the owner/applicant forthe respective phase of development.
hnduct hojecr-Level Diesel Puliculde Motter (DPM) Screertng andlmplcnunt
Measues to Reduce Annual DPM to Acceptabk Coneentration*

ScreeiringJevel DPM assessments shall be conducted for diesel-powered pump
operations proposed within 200 feet of residences or other sensitive receptors. These
analyses should include exact distances between the receptors and operations, and
include the actual DPM emissions for the engines proposed. If the analysis shows an
annual average DPM concentration from project operations at residences within 200
feet of the DPM source to be greaterthan 0.024 pgrn3, the e,ngine location shall be
movedto a location where the annual av€rage DPM concentration from project
emissions at the residences is less then 0-024 pdm3. The acceptable concelrtration of
0.02a pglm3 was determined using the current OEHHA canc€r pot€,ncy factor and
methodolory for diesel exhaust (OEHHA 2003). If diesel exhaust conce,ntrations at the
atr€ct€d receptor would be below 0.A4 pglm3, then the cancer health risk would be
less than 9-9 cancers in a million population.

34.2-1a
34.21b

38.2-3b

29.

30.

Page 555

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



CDD(E), (P)GIrrrplerre rl Gteenhouse Gos RedactionMeostaq dryW Construction

Prior to approval of a grading permit, the owner/applican(s) shall stipulate rhat these
measures be implemented within the projectnotes.

l) Construction vehicles and equiprment will be properly maintained d all times in
accordance witl manufacturer's specifications, including proper tuning and timing of
engines. Equipment maintenance records and equipment design specification data
sheets shall be kep,t on-site during constuction and demolition activities and subject to
inspection by the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Qualrty Manage,ment District
(SMAQMD).
2) Operators will turn offall construction vehicles and equipment and all delivery
vehicles when not in use, and not allow idling for more than 3 minutes or for such other
more restrictive time as may be required in law or regulation.
3) On-site construction vehicles and equipment will use Air Resources Board
(ARBlc€rtified biodiesel fuel if available (a minimum of B20, or 20 percent of
biodiesel) except for those with warranties that would be voided if B20 biodiesel firel
were used. Prior to issuance of grading or demolition permits, the contractor shall
provide documentation to the City that verifies whether any equipment is exempt; that a
biodiesel supply has been secured; and that the construction contractor is aware that the
use of biodiesel is required.
4) A Solid Waste Diversion and Recycling Plan (or such other documentation to
the satisfaction of the City) shall be in place that demonstrates the diversion from
landfills and recycling of all nonhazardous, salvageable and re-useable wood, metal,
plastic and paper products during construction and demolition activities. The Plan or
other documentation shall include the name ofthe waste hauler, their assumed
destination for all waste and recycled materials, and the procedures thd will be
followed to ensur€ implementation of rhis measur€.
For those aras that would be disturbed as part of the U.S. 50 interchange
improvementg it is anticip*ed that Caltrans would coordinate with the development
and implernelrtation of the overall project SWPPP, or develop and implement its own
SWPPP specific to the interchange improvements, to ensure that water quallty
degradation would be avoided or minimized to the morimr.rm extelrt practicable.

Mitigation forthe off-site elements outside ofthe City of Folsom's jrnisdictional
boundaries shall be coordinated by the owner/applicant ofeach applicable project phase
with El Dorado County and Caltrans.

38 4-la31.

31. cont.

Page 556

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (EXP)

SMAQMD

CARB

GInrylenent Additional Meos wes to Cotftol Contuttdion-Gensaed Greertorce Gas
Enissions

Prior to approval of a grading permi! the owner/applican(s) shall obtain the most
curr€nt list of greenhouse gas reduction measrres trat are recommended by Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Quality Management District (SIvrAeMD) and stipulaie how those
measur€s be implemented within the project notes. The owner/ applican(s) may
submit to the City and SMAQMD a report that zubstantiates why specific measures are
considered infeasible for conshuction of that particular development phase andlor L
that point in time. The reporf including the subsantiation for not implementing
particular greenhouse gas reduction measunss, shall be approved by the city, in
consultation with SIvIAQMD prior to approval of a grading permit. In addition to
SMAQMD-recommended measunes, consilruction activity shall comply wift all
applicable rules and regulations established by SMAQMD and california Air
Resources Board.

3A4-l32.

Page 557

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (EXP)
SMAQMD

G

Pay W-site bfutgaion Fee to SIIMQMD
Constnnion of Affsite EIemenB.

to Oflf-Sd NOX Emissions GenerrEd by

The off-site elements could result in consfuirction-ge,lrerated NOX emissions that exceed
the SMAQMD threstrold of significanoe, ev€Nr after implementation of the SMAQMD
Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices Qisted in Mitigation Measure 3A.2-1a). Therefore,
the oumer/applicant shall pay SMAQMD an off-site mitigation fee for implementation
of each o$site element in for the purpose of reducing NOX emissions to a less-than-
significant level (i.e., less than 85 lb/day).

The specific fee amounts shall be calculated whe,n the daily consfiuction e,missions can
be more accurately determined. Calculation of fees associated with each off-site
element shall be conducted by the owner/applicant in consultation with SMAQMD statr
before the approval of respective gading plans. The calculation of daily NOX
emissions shall be based on the cost rate established by SMAeMD at the time the
calculation and payment are made. Because tre fee is based on the mass quantity of
e'missions rhat qrceed SMAQMD's daity threshold of significance of 85 lb/day, total
fees for constuction of the oFsite improvements would vary according to fte timing
and potential overlap of construction schedules for off-site elements.

Mitigation forthe off-site improvements ortrside ofthe City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries shall be developed by the owner/applicant ofeach applicable prcject phase
in consultation with lhe affected oversight agenry(ies) (i.e-, Sacramento cormty or
Caltrans).

3.42-Ig33

Page 558

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



SMAQMD

cD (EXP)
SMAQMD

Sacramento
MetropolitanAir

auaftyManagement
District

CDG)(P)

G,I

G,I

G, I,B

Develop and Inplunen a Construction NOX Reduction Plan.

Consistent with SMAQMD requirements, the owner/applicant shall provide a plan for
demonsfating thatthe heavy-duty (> 50 horsepower) oflroad vehicles to be used in the
construction projecq including owned, leased and subcontractor vehicles, will achieve a
project wide fleet-average 20% NOX reduction.

Prior to consfruction, the owner/applicant's contractor shall submit to the SMAQMD a
comprehensive inventory of all off-road constnrction equipment equal to or greater
than 50 horsepower, that will be used an 4ggregafe of 40 or more hours during any
portion of the construction. The inventory shall include tlrc horsepower rating, engine
production year, and projected hours ofuse or fuel throughput for each piece of
equipment. The inventory shall be updated and submited quarterly throughoutthe
duration ofthe projec! except that an inventory shall not be required for any 30day
period in which no construction activity occurs. At least 48 hours priorto the use of
subject heavyduty o$road equipment the owner/applicant shall provide SMAQMD
with the anticipated construction timeline including start date, and name and phone
number of the project manager and on-site foreman.

Conduct Yisiblc Emissions Testing andif Non-Cotttpliance, Repoir Eqaipnunt
Iwnediaety.

The owner/applicant shall ensure that emissions from all off-road diesel powered
equipment used on the project site do not exceed 4V/o opacity for more than three
minutes in any one hour. Any equipment found to exwd4W/o opacrty (or Ringelmann
2.0) shall be repaired immediately, and the City and SMAQMD shall be notified within
48 hours of identificdion of non-compliant equip'ment. A visual survey of all in-
operation equipment shall be made at least monthly, and a quarterly summary of the
visual survey results shall be submitted throughout the duration ofthe project except
that the monthly summary shall not be required for any 30-day period in which no
construction activity oocurs. The monthly $mrmary shall include the quantity and tSpe
ofvehicles surveyed as well as the dates ofeach survey-

Folsom Plott Area Specifu PIan Ab Qualig Mitigorion PIan

The owner/applicant shall implement all applicable measures in the Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Qudity ManagementDistrict approvedFolsom Plan Area Specific
Plan Air Quality Mitigation Plan.

38.2-1a

38.2-1h

3A2-2

34.

35.

36

Page 559

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



SacrCme,nto

M€fropolitan Air
Quality Management
Disaict

cD(E)(P)

GNd w al Iy Occ wxfu q As besto s
Prior to the commencement of any site-distubing activities, the owner/applicant shall
demonsfrate to the satisfaction ofthe Sacramento Metnopolitan Air Quality
Management District that Naturally occuning Asbestos does not exist on sie. To
demonstrate the owner/applicant shall obtain the services of a California Certified
Geologist to conduct a thomugh site investigation of the developme,nt area per the
protocol outlined in the California Geological Survey Special Report 124 to determine
whether and where Naturally Occuning Asbestos is prese'nt in the soil and rock on the
project site and/or areas that would be disturbed by the project. The site investigation
shall include the collection of three soil and rock samples per acre to be analyzed via
the Califomia Air Resources Board 435 Metho4 or other acceptable method agned
upon by Sacramento Metopolitan Air Quality lVlanagement District and the City.If the
investigation detemrines that Naturally Occuning Asbestos is not present on the project
site, ften the owner/applicant shall submit a Geologic Exemption to Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Quality Management Disfict as allowed under Title 17, Section
93105, Asbestos Airborne Toxic Control Measure for Construction, Grading
Quarrying and Surface Mining (Asbestos ATCM)- The ovmer/applicant shall submit
proof of compliance with the above to the Commrmity Dwelopment Departnent for
review and approval prior to the commencement of any site-disturbing activities.

If the site investigation determines thatNcurally Occurring Asbestos is present on the
project site, or alternatively if the owner/applicant elects to assume prescnc€ oftrace
Naturally Occuning Asbestos, ttrer4 prior to commencement of any ground disturbance
activity, the owner/applicant shall submit to the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District for review and approval anAsbestos Dust Mitigation Plan,
including, but not limited to, control mq$unes required by the Asbestos ATCM, such
as vehicle speedlimitations, application of waterpriorto and durine sround

3A2-537

Page 560

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Sacrasrento
Metropolitan Air
Quality Ivlanagement
District

Caltrans

Sacrame,rto County

cD (E) e)

G

disturbancg keeping storage piles wet or covered, andtrack-outprevention and
removal.

The owner/applicant shall submit proof of compliance with the above to the
Community Development Departnent for review and approval priorto the
commencement of any site'disturbing activities. Upon ap'proval ofthe Asbestos Dust
Control Plan by the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality lttlanagement District , the
owner/applicant shall ensur€ that construction contractors imple,ment the tenns of the
plan throughout the constnrtion perid. If Naturally Occuning Asbestos is determined
to be located on the surface ofthe project site, all surface soil containing Naturally
Occurring Asbestos shall be replaced with clean soil or capped with another material
(e.g., cinder or rubber), subject to review and approval by the City Engineer.

Ana$ze and Disclose Pmjectcd PM10 Emhsbn Concentdions a Nearby Sensitive
Receptors Res ulting trom Constr uciion of Off-site Elenents.

Prior to construction of any improvements that would involve site grading or earth
disturbance activity that would exceed 15 acres in one day, the responsible agency or
its selected consultant shall conduct detailed dispersion modeling of consEuction-
generated PM10 e,missions pursuant to Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Managernent District guidance ftat is in place at the time the analysis is performed.

3A2-th

37.
cont

38.

Page 561

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



sacramento Metropolitan Air Qualrty Management District emphasizes that pM10
emission concentrations atnearby sensitive receptors be disclosed in project-level
CEQA analysis. Each project-level analysis shall incorporafie detailed parameters ofthe
construction equipment and activities, including the year drning which consfruction
would be performd as well as the proximity of potentially atrect€d receptors,
including receptors proposod by the project that exist t tre time the construction
activity would occur. If the modeling analysis determines that conshuction activity
would result in an exceedance or substantial conftibutiontothe CalifomiaAmbient Air
auarry standards and National Ambient Air Quality Standads at a nearby receptor,
then the ovmer/applicant shall require their respective contractors to implement
additional measunes for controlling construction-gen€mted PM10 exhaust emission and
fugitive PM10 dust emissions in accordance with Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District guidance, requirements, and/or rules trat apply at the time the
project-level rt'alysis is performed. It is likely thatthese m@sures would be the same
or similar to those listed as Enhanced Fugitive PM Drst Control Practices for Soil
Disturbance Areas and Unpaved Roads and Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices.
Dispersion modeling is not required for the two El Dorado Cormty roadway
connections because the total amount ofdisturbed acreage is expecied to be less than
the EDCAQMD screening level of 12 acres.

Mitigation for the any construction outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries shall be developed by the owner/applican(s)ofeach applicable project
phase in consultation with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i-e., Sacramento County
or Caltrans).

38 cont

Page 562

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Sacrmento
M€tropolitanAir
auafty
Distict

cD (E) (P)

G,LBBasic Constructbn Emissbn Cofirol Practicq

The owner/applicant shall implement Sacrrynento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management Dishict 's list of Basie C;onsfiuction Emission Control Practices,
Enhanced Fugitive Particulate Matter Dust Control Practices (listd below), and
Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices or whatever mitigation measures are
recomme,ndedbySacramentoMetropolitanAirQualityManagementDistrict atthe
time individual portions ofthe site undergo construction. In addition to Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Quality Management District --recommended measures, constuction
operations shall comply with all applicable Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District nrles and regulations.

The following shall be noted on Grading Plans and building construction plans:

Basic Construction Emission Control Practices

. Water all exposed surfaces two times daily. Exposed surfaces include, but are
not limited to soil piles, graded areas, unpaved parking areas, staging areas, and ascqss
roads. The owaer/applicant shall not be p€rmitt€d to use potable water from the City of
Folsom water qystem for grading and/or constnrction while the City is in a stage 3
(water warning), stage 4 (water crisis), or stage 5 (water emergency) conservation stage
as determined by the City and in confomrance with Chapter l3.26Watsr Conservation
of the Folsom Municipal Code @MC). The City may prohibit the use of potable water
for grading and/or construction purposes on fie project in its sole discretion regardless
ofthe Water Conservation Stage.

' Cover or maintain at least two feet of free board space on haul trucks
transporting soil, san4 or other loose material on the site. Any haul trucks that would
be traveling along freeways or major roadways sball be covered.

3A 2-Ia
3A 2-1d
3A 2-rr

39

Page 563

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Sacramento
MetopolifanAir
Qualrty l\fanagemetr
Distuict

cD(E)(P)

G,LBUse wet power vacurm street sweepers to r€,move any visible tackout mud or
dirt onto adjacent public roads at least once a day. Use of dry pow€r sweeping is
prohibited.
. Limit vehicle speeds on rmpaved roads to 15 miles per horn (mph).
. All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking lots to be paved should be
completed as soon as possible. In addition, building formdations shall be laid as soon as
possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders are used.
. Minimize idling time either by shutting equipm.e,nt offwhen not in use or
reducing the time of idling to 5 minutes (as required by the stde airborne toxics control
measure [Title 13, Section 2485 ofthe Califomia Code ofRegultions]). Provide clear
signage that posts this requirement for workers at the entrmces to the site.
. Maintain all constuction equipment in proper working condition according to
manufacturer's specifications. The equipment shall be checked by a certified mechanic
and determine to be running in proper condition before it is operated.

Enhanced Fugitive Particulate ll{atter Dust Contnol Prac{ices - Soil l}isturbance
Arees

. Water exposed soil with adequate frequency for continued moist soil. However,
do not overwater to the extent that sediment flows offthe site.
. Suspend excavation, grading, and/or demolition activity when wind speeds
exceed 20 mph.
. Install wind brcaks (e.g., plant trees, solid fencing) on windward side(s) of
consfruction areas.
. Plant vegetative grormd cover (fast-germinating ndive grass seed) in distwbed
aneas as soon as possible. Waier appropriately until vegetation is established.

342-1a
3A2-td
3A2-lf

39 cont

Page 564

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Sacrame,nto

MeropolitanAir
Quahty Managernent
District

cD (E) (P)

G,f,BEnhanced Fugitive Particulate ll{atter Dust Control Practices - Unpayed Roads

. Install wheel washers for all exiting trucks, or wash offall tucks and
equipme,nt leaving the site.
. Treat site accesses to a disbnce of 100 feet from the paved road with a6ta 12-
inch layer of wood chips, mulch, or gravel to reduce generation of road dust and road
dust carryout onto public roads.
. Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at
the constnrction site regarding dust complaints. This person shdl respond and take
corrective action within 48 hours. The phone number of Sacramento Metropolitan Air
auanty Management District and the City contact person shall also be post€d to ensure

compliance.

Enhanced Erhaust Control Practices

The owner/applicant shall provide a plan, for approval by the City of Folsom
Commrmity Development Deparhent and Sacramento Metuopolitan Air Quality
Management Dishict , demonsFating that the heavy-duty (50 horsepower ftp] or more)
oftoad vehicles to be used in the constnrction projecL including oumed, leased and

subcontractor vehicles, will achieve a project wide fleet-average 2flo NOX reduction
arrd 45Yo particulate reduction compared to the most current Califomia Air Resources

Board (ARB) fleet average that exiss at the time of constnrction. Accepable options
for redrring emissions may include use of late-model engines, low-emission diesel
products, altenrative fuels, engine r€trofit technology, after-treatmeirt product, and/or
other options as they become available.

342-la
3A2-1d
3Az-tf

39 cont.

Page 565

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Sacramento
MetropolitanAir
Qualrty Manage,med
District
cD(E) (P)

G, I.B
The owner/applicant shall submit to the City of Folsom Community Development
Department and Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality ManagementDis;tict a
comprrehensive inventory of all off-road constuction equip'men! equal to or greater
than 50 hp, that would be used an aggregate of 40 or more hours during my portion of
the consfruction projecr The inventory shall include tho horsepower rating engine
production year, and projected hours ofuse for each piece ofequipment. The inventory
shall be updated and submitted monthly throughoutthe duration ofthe projecg except
thd an inventory shall not be required for any 30-day period in which no construction
activity occurs. At least 48 hours prior to the use of heavy-duty oflroad equipmen! the
project representative shall provide Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Manage,rrent
Distict with the anticipated construction timeline including start date, and name and
phone number of the project manager and on-site forerran.

Sacrame,nto Metropolitan Air Quality Managernent District's Construction Mitigation
Calculator can be used to identify an equipment fleet that achieves this reduction
(Sacrarnento Mefropolitan Air Quality Management Dishict 2007a). The project shall
ensure that emissions from all o$road diesel powered equipme,nt used within the
project area do not exceed 40Yo opcity for more than three minutes in aoy one hour.
Any equipment found to exceed 40 percent opacity (or Ringelmmn 2.0) shall be
repaired immediately, and the City and Sacrarnento Metropolitan Air Quality
Uanagement Diskict shall be notified within 48 hours of identification of non-
compliant equipment. A visual survey of all in-operation equipme,nt shall be made at
leas weekly, and a monthly summary of the visual survey results shall be submitted
throughout the duration of the project, except that the monthly summary shall not be
required for any 3Gday perid in which no constuction activity occurs- The monthly
summary shall include the quantity and type of vehicles surveyed as well as ttre dates of
each survey. Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District staffand/or
other officials may conduct periodic site inspections to determine compliance. Nothing
in this mitigation measure shall supersede other Sacramento I\ilehopolitan Air Quality
Management District or state rules or regulations.

342-ta
3A2-td
3Az-tf

39 cont.

Page 566

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Sacramento
Metropolitan Air
Quality Management
District

cD (E)(P)

cD(EXP)

cD (E) (P)

cD (E)

G, I,B

G'I

G,I

I

If atthe time of grading and/or construction, Sacramento Metropolitan Air Qualrty
Management Dishict has adopted a regulation or nerv guidance applicable to
construction emissions, compliance with the regulation or new guidance may
completely or partially replace this mitigation if it is equal to or more effective than the
mitigation contained herein" and if Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management
Distict so permits. Such a determination shall be support€d by a project-level analysis
and be approved by Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Managernent District.

Inplcnunt Fugitive Dus Control Measwes and a Pmticulde Mdter Monilorkg
Progan during Co nstr uction

The owner/applicant shall implement fugitive dust control mea$res and a particulate
matter monitoring program during construction. The owner/applicant shall ensur€
implernentation of dust control measures and a particulate mafiermonitoring program
during each phase of construction- Dust control measures may include, but are not
limited to, the following:

vegetation consistent with the parameters established in Condition 39;

haul trucks leaving the site; and

haul roads as needed to Drevent fueitive dust.
Minimrmt Pad Elevationsfor Noise Attenualion
The elevation of all building pads shall be no less than those shown on the preliminary
grading and drainage plan dated March 9,2017.

Locole Prmp Staions Awayfrom Sensilive Recelrtors
New pumping stations including back-up diesel ge,nerators shall be located more than
200 feet away from sensitive receptors. Electrically-powered pumps shall be usedto

F)rver new pumps, to the extent practicable.

3A2-Ia
3Az-td
3AZ-lf.

38.2-lc

38.2-3a

39 cont.

40.

4I

42.

Page 567

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E), PW

cD(E), PW

cD(EXP)

cD (EXP)

cD (EXP)

I

G,I

G,I

G,I,B

G,I

L imit Co ns tr uAio n H o arx.
consfruction activities shall be limited to daylight hours between 7 a.m. and 7 p.m.
Monday through Friday, and 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. on Saturrday. No constnrction shall be
allowed on Sundays or holidays.

Minimize Noise from Co nstr udion E q aiipnent and SWng-
construction equipment noise shall be minimized during project construction by
muffling and shielding intakes and exhaust on construction equipment (perthe
manufacturer's specifications) and by shrouding or shielding impacttools, where used.
The City's construction specifications shall also require thd the contractor select
stasine areas as far as feasiblv nossible from sensitive receptors.
Muimize the Use of Noise Barrierc.
Construction contractors shall locate fixed constuction equipment (such as
compressors and generators) and construction staging areias as far as possible from
nearby residences. Iffeasible, noise barriers shall be used atthe constuction site and
staging area. Te,mporary walls, stockpiles of excavated materials, or moveable sound
banier curtains would be appropriate in instances where construction noise would
exceed 90 dBA and occur within less than 50 feet fiom a sensitive receptor. The final
selection of noise barriers will be subject to the City's approval and shall provide a
minimrrm 10 dBA reduction in construction noise levels-
Prohibit Non-Essentiol Noise Sowces During Construaion
No amplified souroes (e.g., stereo "boom boxes') shall be used in the vicinity of
residences during project construction.

Monitor Construction Noice andProvide aMechanismfor Filing Noise Conqloin*
The owaer/applicant shall provide an on-site complaint and enforcement manager ttrat
shall track and respond to noise complaints during gmding and construction. The City
shall also provide a mechanism for residents, businesses, and 4gencies to register
complaints with the City if construction noise levels are overly intrusive or construction
occurs outside the required hours.

3B.11 I TT

3,..11-Ib

38.11-1c

38.1r-td

38.II-Ie

43

44.

45

46,

47

Page 568

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (P)
cD (E) (B)

G,LBImplement Noise-Reducing Constructbn Pradices, Prqare and Implenunt a Noise
Control Plan, andMonitor and Record ConsnuaionNoise near Sensttive Receptors

The owner/applicant shall prepare and impleme,nt a construction noise management
plan. This plan shall identify specific measures to ensiure compliance with the noise
control measurles specified below. The noise contol plan shall be submiued to the City
ofFolsom before any noise-generating constnrc{ion astivrty begins and shall be noted
on Grading Plans and building construction plans. Grading and consfuction shall not
commense until the construction noise manage,ment plan is approved by the City of
Folsom.

. Noise-generating construction operations shall be limited to the hours behreen
7 a.m. and 7 p.m. Monday through Friday, md benveen E a-m- and 5 p.-- on Saturdays.
No conshuction is allowed on Sundays. These hours may be expanded to include
Safirday and Sunday between 8 a.m. and 6 p.m. provided there are no se'nsitive
receptors within 1500 feet, subject to the sole discretion of the city.
. All construction equipment and equipment staging areas (including rcck
crushing operations) shall be located as far as possible from nearby noise-sensitive land
uses.
. All construction equipment shall be properly maintained and equipped witt
noise-reduction intake and exhaust mufflers and engine shrouds, in accordance with
manufachrrers' recommendations. Equiprnent engine shrouds shall be closed dning
equipment operation.
. All motorized construction equipment shall be shut dov*n when not in use to
prevent idling.
. Individual operations andtechniques shallbe replacedwith quieterprocedures
(e.g, using welding instead of riveting mixing concrete off- site instead of on-site).

3A 1I-I

38.1-3a

4E.

Page 569

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(EXP)
Underground
Services Alert

G

. Noise-reducing enclosures shall be used around stationary noise-generating
equiprrent (e-g., compressors and generators) as planned phases are built ow and frrture
noise sensitive receptors are located within close proximity to future constrrction
activities.
. Wrifien notification of construction activities shall be provided to all noise-
sensitive receptors located within 850 feet of construction activities. Notification shall
include anticipated dates and hours during which construction activities are anticipated
to occur and contact information, including a daytime telephone number, for the project
representative to be contacted in the event thd noise levels are deemed excessive.
Recommendations to assist noise-sensitive land uses in reducing interior noise levels
(e.g., closing windows and doors) shall also be included in the notification.

. To the extent feasible, acoustic barriers (e.g., lead curtains, sound barriers) shall
be constructed to reduce construction-generated noise levels at affected noise-sensitive
land uses. The barriers shall be designed to obstruct the line of sight betrreen the noise-

sensitive land use and on-site construction equipment. When installed properly,

acoustic barriers can reduce construction noise levels by approximately 8-10 dB (EPA
t97r).

. When future noise sensitive uses ar€ within close proximity to prolonged

construction noise, noise-attenuating buffers such as sFuctures, truck trailers, or soil
piles shall be located between noise sources and future residences to shield sensitive

from construction noise.

Minimize UW Cotflicts by Inplenunting u Unbgmand Semices Alcrt
Underground rrilities and service connections shall be identifred priorto conme,lrcitg
any excavation work through the imple,nentation of an Undergrorurd Services Alert
(USA). The exact utility locations will be determined by hand-excavafed test pits dug at
locations d€t€rmined and approved bythe construction manager (also referred to as
*pot-holing'). Te,mporary disruption of service may be required to allow for
construction. No service on such lines would be disruped until prior approval is
received from the construction manager andthe service provider.

Grading in Utility Easenail
The ownerlapplicant shall obtain a cons€Nrt agrccment, letter of waiver md/or an

encroachment permit from Pacific Gas and Electric, SMUD, WAPA etc. for any
proposed grading and/or construction in any existing tower line and/or undeqgrormd

facility easemelrt. The owner/applicant shall provide the approved consent agreeme'nt

lefier of waiver and/or encroachme,nt permit to the City prior to approval of any grading

and/or improvement plans.

38.IG3a

48- cont.

49.

50

Page 570

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

G

G

G

hepue ud Inplenent the Appropriae Grading and Erosbn Control PInn
Prior to issuance of a grading permit the ovmer/applicant shall retain a Califomia
Registered Civil Engineer to prepare a gading and erosion and sedimentation control
plan. The grading and erosion and sedimentation contol plan shall be submitted to the
Community Development Deparbnent prior to issuance of a grading permit. The plan
shall be consistent with the City's Grading Ordinance, where applicable, the state's
NPDES permiq the FPASP preliminary gading plans and shall include the site-specific
gading associated with develop'ment for all prqiect phases.

The plans referenced above shall include the location, implementation schedule, and
maintenance schedule of all erosion and sediment control measures, a description of
measilres designedto confiol dust and stabilize &e construction-site road and entance,
and a description of the location and methods of storage and disposal of construction
materials. Erosion and sediment control measures could include the use of temporary
detention basing berms, swales, wattles, and silt fencing, and covering or watering of
stockpiled soils to reduce wind erosion. Sabilization on ste€,p slopes could include
construction of retaining walls and reseeding with vegetation after construction.
Stabilization of construction entances to minimize trackout (control dust) is commonly
achieved by installing filter fabric and crushed rock to a depth of approximately 1 foot.

The owner/applicant(s) sball ensure that the constnrction contractor is responsible for
securing a souroe for tansportation and deposition of excavated mmerials.

Erosion Control Plan
Prior to the approval of the final facilities design, commencernent of grading and/or
construction activities, the owner/applicant shall submit an erosion confol plan to the
City for review and approval. The plan shall identi$ protective ma$res to be taken
during excavation, temporary stockpiling, any reuse or disposal, and revegetation.
Specific techniques may be based upon geotechnical reports, fte Erosion and Sediment
Contol llandbook of the Sate of California Departnent of Consen ation, and shall
comply with all updated City standards.

Erosbn ud sedhnentation confiol nuastrq
Erosion and sedimentation contol me:tsrrnes shall be incorponated into all grading
and/or construction plans- These measures shall confonn to the City of Folsom
requirerne,nts and the County of Sacrame,nto Erosion and Sedimentution Control
Staduds od Sry.cifrcatkins=qrrent edition and as direct€d by th. Community
Develome,nt Deoarhent.

3A-7.3

3N-3

3A7-3

51

52.

53

Page 571

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(E)GAcqabe AppropriAe Regulaory Permit and Prqtue and hplanent Stormwarer
Polhttion heeention Plan (SWPPP) and BestMuogenunthMicw (BMPs).
The owner/applicant of the project disturbing one or more acres (including phased
construction of smaller areas which arc part of a largerproject) shall obtain coverage
underthe State Water Resources Control Board's National Pollrfion Discharge
Elimination Systern stormwater permit for general construction activity (Order 2009-
0009-DWQ), including preparation and submittal of a project-specific Stonn Water
Pollution Prevention Plan at the time the Notice of Inteirt is filed- The Storm Water
Pollution Prevention Plan and other appropriate plans shall idmti8'and specif:
o the use of an effective combination of robust erosion and sediment control BMPs

and construction techniques accepted by the localjurisdictions for use in the
project area at the time ofconstruction, that shall reduce the potential for runoff
and the release, mobilization, and exposure of pollutants, including legacy sources
of mercury from project-related constuction sites. These may include but would
not be limited to temporary erosion control and soil stabilization mea$ues,
sedimentation ponds, inlet protection, perforated riser pipes, check dams, and silt
fences

. the implernentation of approved local plans, non-stomxrder management contolq
permanent post-construction BMPs, and inspection and maintenance
responsibilities;

o the pollutants that are likely to be used during constnrction that could be present in
stormwater drainage and nonstormwater discharges, including fuels, lubricants,
and other types of materials used for equipment operation;

. spill prevention and contingency measures, including measures to prevent or clean
up spills of hazardous waste and of hazardous mderials used for equipment
operation, and emergency procedures for responding to spills;

3A9-l54.

Page 572

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)Ga

a

perconnel training requirunents and procedures that shall be used to ensure that
workers are aware of permit requirements and proper installation methods for
BMPs specified in the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan; md
the appropriate personnel responsible for supervisory duties related to
imple,rrentation of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan.

Where applicable, BestManagement Practices identified inthe Storm WderPollution
Prevention Plan shall be in place tbroughout dl site work and constnrction/demolition
activities and shall be used in all subsequent site development activities. Best
lvlanagement Practices may include, but are not limited to, such measures as those
listedbelow:
. Imple,menting temporary erosion and sediment control measures in distrnbed

areas to 6inimize discharge of sediment into nearby drainage conveyances, in
compliance with state and local standards in effect at the time of construction.
These measures may include silt fe,lrces, staked sfraw bales or wdtles,
sedimenVsilt basins and traps, geofabric, sandbag dikes, and temporary
vegetation.

. Establishing permanent vegetative coverto reduce erosion in areas disturbed by
consilruction by slowing runoffvelocities, trapping sediment and enhancing
fi ltration and transpiration.

- Using drainage swales, ditches, and earth dikes to control erosion and runoffby
conveying surface runoffdown sloping land, intercepting and diverting runoff
to awatercourse orchannel, sheetflow over slo@ surfaces,

preventing runoffaccumulation atthe base of a grade, and avoiding flood
damage along roadways and facility infrastructure.

A copy of the approved Storm Wder Pollution Prevention Plan shall be maintained and
available at all times on the construction site.

54.
cont

Page 573

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)G,Ihrye andsubnit FinalDrainqe Pluts and hrylenunt Reqabanw$ Contained
in Those Plans.
The oumer/applicant shall submit a final drainage plan to the City demonstrating that
off-site upstream runoffwill be appropriately conveyed throughthe Folsom Plan Area"
and that project-related on-site runoffwill be appropriately conveyed and coutained in
deteNrtion basins or managed through other improvements (e.g., source contols,
biotechnical stream stabilization) to reduce flooding and hydromodification impacts
and provide water quality teatnent

The plans shall include, but not be limited to, the following items:
o a drainage swale, located at the base ofthe noise berm, shall gs included to

prev€Nrt sheet flow from dre berm flowing onto the Class I bike trail. Inlets and
under drains shall be included as necessary.

o !n accurate calculation of pre-projeot and post-projectnmoffscenarios,
obtained using appropriate engineering methods, that accurately evaluates
potential changes to runofl including increased surhce nmoft

' nmoffcalculations for the lO-year and 100-year (0.01 AEP) storm events (and
other, smaller storm events as required) shall be performed and the trunk
drainage pipeline sizes confirmed basd on alignmen8 and detexrtion facility
locations finalized in the design phase;

. L description of the proposed maintenance program forthe on-site drainage
syste,m;

. project-specific standards for installing drainage syst€,ms;

. City flood control design requirements and measures designed to comply with
them; Tmplementation of stormwater menagement BMPs rhat avoid increases in
the erosive force of flows beyond a specific range of conditions needed to limit
hydromodification and maintain current stream geomorpholory- These Best
Management Practices wiU be designed and constucted in accordance withthe
forthcoming Stormwater Quality Partnership Hydromodificdion Management
Plan (to be adoptedby the Regional WaterQuality CrffiolBoard) andmay
include, but are not limitedto, the following:

3A-9.255

Page 574

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E), PWGl. Use of Low Impact Developnent (IJD) techniques to limit
increases in stonnwater runoff* the point of origination (these
may includg but are not limitedto: surface swales;
replacement of conventional impervious surfaces with pervious
surhces [e.g., porous pavernent]; impervious surfaces
disconnection; and trees planted to intercept stormwater);
Enlarged detention basins to minimizeflow changes and
changes to flow duration characl€ristics;
Bioengineered steam stabilization to minimize bank erosion,
utilizing vegetative and rock stabilization, and inset floodplain
restoration features that provide for enhmcement of riparian
habitat and maintenance of natrral hydrologic and channel to
floodplain interactions;
Minimize slope differences betw€€Nr any stormwater or
dete,ntion facility
outfall channel with the existing receiving channel gradient to
reduce flow velocity; and
Minimize to the extent possible detention basin, bridge
e,mbanknent and other encroachments imo the channel and
floo@lain corridor, and utilize ope,n bdom box culverts to
allow sediment passage on smaller drainage courses.

ll.

lu.

lv

v,

The final drainage plan shall demonstate to the satisfaction ofthe City of Folsom
Community Development and Public Works Deparheirts that 100-yer (0.01 AEP)
flood flows would be appropriately channeled and containe4 such that the risk to
people or damage to structr.rnes within or down gradient of the Folsom Plan Area would
notoccur, andthathydromodificstion would notbe increased from pre-developrnent
levels such that existing stream geomorpholory would be chmged (the range of
conditions should be calculated for eaoh receiving water if feasible, or a conservative
estimate should be use4 o.9., 8o Ep of I +l0%o or other as ryproved by the Sacramento
Stormwater Quality Parhership and/or City of Folsom).

3A-9.255 cont.

Page 575

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)GDuelop andlmplencnt aBMP andWoter Qualig Mahtsunce Plan.
A detailed BMP and water quatity maintenanc€ plan shall be prepared by a qualified
engineer retained by the owner/applican(s) for the projest The plan shall finalize tre
water quality improvernents and further dstail the stuctural and nonsbuctural BMPs
proposed forthe project The plan shall include the elements dessribed below.

a A quantitative hydrologic and water quality analysis of proposed conditions
incorporating the proposed drainage design fecures.
Predevelopment and post development calculations de'lnonstrating that the
proposed water quality BMPs meet or exceed require'lnents established by the

City of Folsom and including details regarding the size, geomes, and

functional timing of storage and release pursuant to the latest edition of the

"stormwater Quality Design Manual for Sacramelfio and South Placer
Regions" (the City's MS4NPDES permit, pge 46) and El Dorado Count5r's

NPDES SWMP (Cormty ofEl Dorado 2004).
Source control pnograms to control water quality pollutants within the ptojecq
whieh may include but are not limited to rerycling stueet sweeping storm drain
cleaning, household hazardous waste collectioq waste minimizanoU
prevention of spills and illegal dumping and effective management of public
trash collection areas.

A pond management component forthe proposed basins that shall include
panagement and maintenance requirements for the desrgn features and BMPs,
and responsible parties for maintenance and funding.
LID control measunes shall be integrated into the BMP and water quality
maintenance plan. These may include, but are not limited to:
o surface swales;
o replacernent of conventional impervious surfaces with pervious

surfaces (e-g., porous pavement)
r impervious surfaces disconnection; and
. trees plantedto intercept stormwat€r.

O

a

a

56.

Page 576

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



a New stormwater facilities shall be placed along the natural drainage
courses within the project to tre extent practicable so as to mimic the
natural drainage patterns. The reduction in runoffas a result of the LID
configurations shall be qumtified based on the runoffreduction credit
sysbm methodolory described in "Stormwater Quality DesignManual
for the Sacramento and Sorlt Placer Regions, Chapter 5 and Appendix
Dt" (SSQP 2N7b) md proposed detention basins and other water
qualrty BMPs shall be sized to handle tlrcse runoffvolumes.

For those areas that would be distubed as part of the U.S. 50 interchange
improveme,nts, it is anticipated that Caltans would coordinate with the dwelopment
and implementation of the overall project SWPPP, or develop and implement its oum
SWPPP specific to the interchange improve'ments, to ensure that waer qualily
degradation would be avoided or minimized to the maximum extent practicable.

Mitigation forthe oflsite improve,ments outside ofthe City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries shall be coordinated by the oumer/applicant ofeach applicable project phase

with El Dorado Coun8 and Caltrans.

56.cont

Page 577

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(E)
Sacto. County

GPrepue and Inplctrttt a Yector Contml PIon in Consultotion with the Saeatento-
Yolo Mosqaito and Yeaor Control Districl
To ensure that the operation and design ofthe stomrwaier system, including muhiple
planned detention basins, is consistentwith the recommendations ofthe Sacrame,nto'
Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District regmding mosquito control, the
owner/applicant shall prepare and implement a Vector Confrol Plan. This plan shall be
prepared in coordination with the Sacranento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Contol
Disfrict and shall be submitted to the City for approval prior to issuance of the grading
permit for the proposed detention basins underthe City's jurisdiction.

The plan shall incorporate specific measures d€eNned zufficient by the City to minimize
public health risks from mosquitoes, and as contained within the Sacramento-Yolo
Mosquito and Vector Control Dishict BMP lvlanual (Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and
Vector Conhol Dishict 2008). The plan shall include, but is not limited to, the
following components:

. Description of the project

. Description of detention basins and all water features and facilities that
would confrol on-site water levels.

. Goals ofthe plan.

. Description of the water managernent elements and features that would
gs implemented, including:

i. BMPs thatwouldbe imple,menGd on-site;
ii. public education and awareness;

iii. sanitary msthods used (e.g., disposal of gaftage);
iv. mosquito control methods used (e.g., fluctuating water

levels, biological agents, pesticides, larvacides, circulating
water); and

v. stormwatermanagement

348.757.

Page 578

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(E)GLong-term maintenance of the det€ntion hsins and all related facilities
(e.g., specific ongoing enforceable conditions ormaintenance by a
homeowner' s association).

To reduce the potential for mosquitoes to reproduce in the detention basins, the
owner/applicant shall coordinate with tlre Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector
Control Districtto identif and implement BMPs based ontheir potential effectiveness
for the site conditions. Potential BMPs could includg but are not limited to, the
following:

o build shoreline perimeten as steep and uniform as practicable to
discourage de,nse plant growth;

o perform routine maintenance to reduce em€rgent plant densities to
facilitate tlre ability of mosquito preddors (i.e-, fish) to move
throughout vegetated areq

r destgn distribution piping and containment basins with adequate slopes
to drain fully md prevent standing water. The design slope should take
into consideration buildup of sediment between maintenance periods-
Compaction during grading may also be needed to avoid slumping and
settling;

o coordinate cleaning of catch basins, drop inlets, or storm drains with
mosquito treahent operations;

r enforc.e the prmp removal of silt screens installed during construction
when no longer needed to protect water quality;

. ifthe sump, vault, or basin is sealed againstmosquitoes, with the
exception of the inlet and ouflet sub'merge the inlet and outlet
completely to reduce the available surface area of water for mosquito
egg- Iaying (female mosquitoes can fly through pipes); and

. desigp stuctrnes with the appropriate piping, valves, or
ofter necessaqr equipment to allow for easy dewdering of the unit if
nesessarj/ (Sacramento Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District
20oE).

a57 cont.

Page 579

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)

cD (E)

cvRwQcB

cD (P) cD (E)

G

G,I

i. Surface swales;
ii. Replacemeart of conve,lrtional impervious surfaces with

pervious surfaces (e.g., porous pavement);
iii. Impelvious surfaces disconnection; and
iv. Trees planted to intercept stormwater.

Propeily Dispose of Eydrostatic Test Woter ond Constrttction Dewatuing in
Accor dance with the Central Vailel Regionol Vds Qnalily C ontrol Boad

All hydrostatic test water and constnrction shall be discharged to an
approved land disposal area or drain€e facilrty in accordance with Central Valley
RWCQB requirements. The City or its consfiustion contractor shall provide the
Central Valley RWQCB with the locatioq type of discharge, and methods of treatrrent
and monitoring for all hydrostatic test water discharges. Emphasis shall be placed on
those disoharges thnt would occur directly to surface water bodies.

State and Federal
The owner/applicant shall obtain all required State and Federal permits and p'rovide
evide'nce that said permits have bee,n obtaine4 or that the permit is not required, subject
to staffreview priorto approval of any pradine or improveme,ntplan.

38.9-1b

57 cont.

58.

59.

Page 580

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(P)CD(E)
United StatesArmy
Corps. Of Engineers

Central Valley
Regional Water
auAity Confrol

Board

cD (E)

G,I

G

Cleon WuqAa Seaions 101 andlM Perrnits
Prior to the approval of gnding and improvement plans and before any groundbreaking
activity associated with each distinct project phase, the owner/applicant shall secure all
necessary permits obtained under Sections 401 and 4M of the Clean Water Act or the
state's Porter-cologne Act and implement all perrrit conditions forthe pnoposed
project. All permits, regulatory approvalq and permit conditions for effects on wetland
habitats shall be secured and conditions imple,mented before implementation of any
grading activities within 25A feet of Waters of the U.S, or wetland habiats, including
Waters of the State, that potentially support federally-listed species, or within 100 feet
of any other Waters of the U.S. or wetland habitats, including Waters of the State. The
owner/applicant shall adhere to all conditions outlined in the permits. The
owner/applicant shall commit to rqllace, restore, or enhance on a'ho net loss" basis (in
accordance with United States Army Corps Of Engineers and the Central Vdl€y
Regional Water Quallty Control Board) the acr€age of all wetlands and other Waters of
the u.S. that would be removed, losg and/or degraded with implementation of the
project. Wetland habitat shall be restore4 enhanced and/or replaced at an acreage and
location and by methods agreeable to United States Anny Corps Of Engineers, tre
Central Valley Regional Water auality Control Boar4 and the Crty, as appropriate,
depending on agency jurisdiction, and as determined during tle Section 401 and
Section 4M penniting processes. The boundaries of the 404 permi! including required
buffers shall be shown on the graaing plans.

All mitigation requirements to satisf the requirements of the City and the Central
Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board, for impacts on the non-jurisdictional
wetlands beyond the jurisdiction of United States Army Corps Of Engineers, shall be
determined and implemented before grading plans are approved.

All wetland mitigation compliance reports submitted to the Army Corps of Engineers
shall also be copied concurrentlyto the City.

Wder Quolity Cbrtca{ni
A water quallty certification pursuantto Section 401 of the Clean WaterAct is required
before issuance ofthe record of decision and before issuance of the Section 404 permit.
Before construction in any areas containing wetland features, the oumer/applicant shall
obtain wafer quality certification for the project. Any measures required as part of the
issuance of water quallty certification shall be implemented pursrant to the permit
conditions.

3A 3-1a

34'3-lb

60.

61.

Page 581

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(P) cD(E)

California
Deparfrnent of Fish

and Wildlife

GMdcr Strcambed Alleratbn Agreenunt
The owner/applicant shall amend if necessarSr, and implement the original Section
16(D Master Streambed Alteration Agreement received from California Departuent of
Fish and Wildlife for all constuction activities that would occur in the bed and bank of
Califomia Departrnent of Fish and Wildlife jrridictional features within the project
site. As outlined in the Master Streambed Aleration Agreemen! the oumer/applicant
shall submit a Sub-notification Form (SNF) to California Departuent of Fish and
\Mildlife 60 days prior to grading and/orthe coillmenceme,nt ofconstnrctionto notify
Califomia Departnent of Fish and Wildlife of the project.

Any conditions of issuance of the Master Steambed Alteration Agreement shall be
imple'melrted as part ofthose project consfiuction activities that would adversely affect
the bed and bank within on-site drainage channels subject to Califomia Departn€Nrt of
Fish and Wildlife jurisdiction. The agreement shall be executed by the oumer/applicant
and California Departrrent of Fish and Wildlife before the approval of auy grading or

plans or any construction aotivitie in any project phasc trat could
potentially affectlhe bed and bank of on-site drainage channels under California
Deparhent of Fish and Wildlife jurisdiction.

3A3-4a.62.

Page 582

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)GRestore AII lUdqs lrrpacted fu Trenchittg utd Tenporuy Con*uction Staging
For all crossings of waters of the U.S. or State in which the use of tre'nchless
technologies are not feasible, the City shall ensure that all waters impacted by tenching
activities are restored to pre-project conditions. In addition, within 30 days following
project construction, the ownerlapplicant shall ensur€ that all temporary construction
staging areas within waters of the U.S. or State are restored to preproject conditions.
Atminimum, the City shall ensure thatthe following measiures are imple,ne,ntedduring
construction:
) Conducttnenching and consfruction activities across drainages during low-flow
(e.g., <l to 2 cfs) or dry periods as feasible;
) Ifworking in active charmels, install cofferdam upsfearn and downstream of
stream crossing to sepaf,ate construction area from flowing u/aterway;
) Place sediment curtains upshean and downsneam of the construction zone to
prevent sediment disfirbed during trenching activities from being transported and
deposited outside ofthe consfuction zone;
> Locate spoil sites such that they do not drain directly into the drainages or seasonal

wetlands;
) Store equipment and materials away from the drainages and wetland areas. No
debris will be deposited within 250 feet of the drainages and wetland areas;

> Prepfie 21d implement a revegetation plan to restore vegetation in all temporarily
distrrbed wetlmds and other waters using native species seed mixes and container plant
maierial that are ap'propriate for existing hydrological conditions.

3B 3-lc63

Page 583

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Prior to the approval of grading and improvement plans and before any groundbreaking
activity associated with grading and constnrction requiring fill of wetlands or other
waters ofthe U.S. or waters of the statg the owner/applicant shall submit a wetland
mitigation and monitoring plan (MMP) for the restoration of these walers wi&in the
selected water alignment to the US Army Cups of Engineers (USACE) and Central
Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) for rwiew and approval of
those portions of the plan over which they have jurisdiction. The Mitigation and
Monitoring Plan (MMP) would have to be approved prior to issuance of a Section 404
permit. Once the final MMP is approved and implemented, mitigdion monitoring shall
continue for aminimum of 5 years from completion of restoration activities, or human
interve'ntion (including recontouring and grading)o or until the performance standards
identified in the approved MMP have been met whichever is longer.

[16inimnm, the MMP shall provide the following information:

existing vegetation of the waters of the U.S. and State that would be impacted through
trenching activities. This inforrnation shall include site photographs taken at each
impactedwater.

not adversely alter existing hy&olory, including the draining ofthe wafiers (e.g., use of
cut-offwalls).

well as a plan for the revegetdion ofthe site following installation ofthe
improvements.

63 cont

Page 584

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(P) cD (E)
California

Departnent of Fish
and Wildlife

GSwainson's Emth Ne#W Eobitd
A qualified biologist shall be retained by the owner/applicant to conduct
preconsfruction surv€ys and to identifr active Swainson's Hawk nests on and within
0.5-mile of the project area- The surveys shall be conducted before the ap'proval of
grading and/or improve,me,nt plans (as applicablQ and no less than 14 days and no more
than 30 days before fte beginning of grading and construction. To the extent feasible,
guidelines provided tn Recoranended Timing and Methdologtfor Swainson's Hawk
Nesttng &rveys in tle Central Yalley (Swainson's Hm,kTeclmical Advisory
Conmittee 2000) shallbe followed for surveys for Swainson's hawk. If no nests are
found, no firther mitigation is required.

If active nests are form4 impacts on nesting Swainson's Hawks shall be avoided by
establishing appropriate bufrers around the nests. No project activity shall commence
within the buffer area rmtil lte young have fledged, the nest is no longer active, or until
a qualified biologist has debrmined in coordination wift California DeparEnent of Fish
and Wildlife that reducing the buffer would not resuft in nest abandonment. California
Deparhent of Fish and Wildlife guidelines recommend implementation of 0.25- or 0-5-
mile-wide buffers, but the size of the buffer may be adjusted if a qualified biologist and
the City, in consultation with California Departnent of Fish and Wildlife, determine
that such an adjustnent would not be likely to adverse$ affect the nest. Monitoring of
the nest by a qualified biologist during and after consfruction activfies will be required
ifthe activity has potentialto adversely affectthe nest.

343-2a&.

Page 585

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(P)
Califomia

Departrrent of Fish
and Wildlife

GSwainson's EowhHabitd
Prior to the approval of gading and improvement plans, or before any ground-
disturbing activities, whichever occurs first, the owner/applicant shall secure suitable
Swainson's llawk foraging habitat to ensure appropriate mitigation of habitat value for
Swainson's tlawk foraging habitat ttnt is permanently lost as a result of the project, as
determined by the City after consultation with California Deparbnent of Fish and
Wildlife and a qualified biologist.

The habitat value or shall be based on Swainson's llawk nesting distribution and an
assessnnent of habitd quality, availability, and use within the project area. The
mitigation ratio shall be consistent with the 1994 DFG Swainson's Hawk Guidelines
included in the StaffReport Regarding Mitigation for rmpacts to Swainson's llawks
(Buteo swainsoni) in the Central Valley of Califomia If such mitigation shall be
accomplished trrough purchase of credits at an approved mitigation bank, the hansfer
of fee tifle, or peryefinl conservation ease,nen! the ratio for habitat value shall be 0-5:l-
If non-bank mitigation is proposed, the mitigation land shall be located within the
known foraging area and within Sacramento County and the habitat value shall gs 1.1.
The city, after consultation with catifornia Deparhent of Fish and wildlife, will
dete,lrrine the appropriateness of the mitigation land-

The owner/applicant shall transfer said swainson's rlawk mitigation land through
either conservation easement or fee title, to athird-paty, nonprofit conservation
organization (ConservdionOperator), with the City and California Deparbnent ofFish
and Wildlife named as thind-party beneficiaries. The Conservation Operator shall be a
qualified cons€rvation eas€ment land managerthat manages land as its primary
function. Additionally, the Conservation Operator shall tre a tax-ex€Nnpt nonprofit
conservation that meets the criteria of Civil Code Section 815.3(a) and
shall be selected or 4proved by the City, afterconsultation with California Oepunnent
of Fish and Wildlife. After consultation with California Deparhent of Fish and
Wildlife andthe C-onservation Ooerator. the Citv shall the content and form

3A3Ab65.

Page 586

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(P) cD (E)
Califomia

Deparhnent of Fish
and Wildlife

Gof the conservation easement. The City, California Departnent of Fish and Wildlife,
and the C;onservation Operator shall each have the power to enforce the terms oftre
conservation easement. The Conservation Operator shall monitor the easement in
perpetuity to assure compliance with the terms of the easement.

After consultdion with the City, The owner/applicant California Deparhent of Fish
and Wildlife, and the Conservation Operator, shall establish an endov*rrnent or some
other financial mechanism that is sufficient to fimd in perpetuity the operation,
maintenance, management and enforcement ofthe conservation easemem. If an
endowment is use4 either the endowment firnds shall be submitted to fte City for
impacts on lands within the City's jurisdiction to an appropriate third-party nonprofit
conservation ag€ncy, or they shall be submited directty to the third-party nonprofit
conservation ag€ncy in exchange for an agreement to manage and maintainthe lands in
perpetuity. The Conservation Operator shall not sell, lease, or transfer any interest of
any conservation easement or mitigation land it acquires without prior writte,n approval
of the City and California Departnent of Fish and Wildlife.

If the Conservation Operator ceasies to exist the duty to hold administer, manage,
maintain, and enforce the interest shall be transferred to anottrer entity acceptable to the
City and CalifomiaDeparhent ofFish and Wildlife. The City Planning Oeparment
shall ensur€ that mitigation habitat established for impacts on habitat within the City's
planning area is properly established and is functioning as habitat by conducting regular
monitoring of the mitigation site(s) for the firs ten years after establishment of the
easement

65 cont.

Page 587

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(P)cD (E)
California

Departuent of Fish
andWildlife

cD(P) cD (E)
Califomia

Deparhentof Fish
and Wildlife

G

G.

Bunowing (M
A qualified biologrst shall be retainedbythe owner/applicantto conducta
preconstruction survey to identifi active Burowing Owl burrows within the prcject
area. The surveys shall be conducted no less than 14 days and no more than 30 days
before the beginning ofgrading and construction activities for each phase of
development- The preconstruction survey shall follow the protocols outlined in the
StaffReport on Burrowing Owl Mitigation (CDFG 2012).

If active burrows are found, a mitigation plan shall be submifted to the City for review
and approval before any grormd-disturbing activities. The City shall consult with
California Deparment of Fish and Wildlife. The mitigation plan may consist of
installation of one-way doors on all burrows to allow owls to exit, but not reenter, and
construction of artificial burrows within the project vicinity, as neede{ however,
burrowing owl exclusions may only be used if a qualified biologist verifies that the
burrow does not conhin eggs or dependent young. If active burrows contain eggs
and/or young no construction shall occur within 50 feet of the burow until young have
fledged. Once it is confirmed that th€re are no owls inside burows, these burrows may
be collapsed.

Nesting Rrytors
To mitigate impacts on nesting ralttors, a qualified biologist shall be retained by the
owner/applicant to conduct a preconstruction survey to identifr active nests on and
within 0.5 mile,s of the project area- The surveys shall be conducted no less than 14
days md no more than 30 days before the beginning of construction activities for
each phase of development

If active nests are foun4 impacts on nesting raptors shall be avoided by establishing
buffers around the nests. No project activity shall comm€nce within the

buffer area rmtil the young have fiedge4 the nest is no longer active, or until a
qualified biologist has determined in coordination with Califomia Deparhent of
Fish md Wildlife that reducing the buffer would not result in nest abandonment.
The buffer may be adjusted if a qualifred biologist and tle City, in consultation with
California Departnent of Fish and Wildlife, determine rhat such an adjustnent
would not be likely to adversely affectthe nest. Monitoring ofthe nest by a
qualified biologist during and after construction activities will be required if the
activity has potential to adversely affect the nest.

343-2a6.

67

Page 588

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(P) cD (E)
California

Departrrent of Fish
and Wildlife

cD(P)cD (E)
Califomia

Departrrent of Fish
and Wildlife

G

G

Awid and Mininle Inryact to Tricolored Blachbird Nesting Coloniq.

To avoid and minimize impacts to tricolored blackbird, the owner/applicant of all
project phases shall condust a preconstruction survey for any project activity that
would occur duing the tricolored blackbird's nesting season (I\,Iarch l-August 31).
The preconstruction survey shall be conducted by a qualified biologist before any
activity occurring within 500 feetof suitable nesting habitat, including freshwatpr
marsh and areas of riparian scrub vegetation. The survey shall be conducted within
14 days before project activrty begins.

If no ticolored blackbird colony is presen! no further mitigation is required. If a
colony is found, the qualified biologist shall establish a buffer around the nesting
colony. No project activity shall commence within the buffer area rmtil a qualified
biologist confirms that the colony is no longer active. The size of the buffer shall be
determined in consultation wift DFG. Buffer size is anticipated to range from 100
to 500 feet, depending on the ndrrc of the project activity, the extent of existing
disturbance in the are4 and other relevant circumstances.
Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jnrisdictional
boundaries (i.e-, U.S. 50 interchange improvements) must be developed by the
owner/applicant of each applicable project phase in consultation wift the affected
oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Caltrans) and must be sufficient to achieve the
performance criteria described above.

{hher Nating Special-Staus and t{rydory Birds
The owner/applicant shall retain a qualified biologist to conduct a preconsbnrction
survey for any project activity that would occur in suitable nesting habiht during the
avian nesting season (approximdely March l-August 3l).The preconstruction survey
shall be conducted within 14 days before any aotivity occuning within 100 feet of
suitable nesting habitat. Suitable habitat includes annual grassland valley needlegrass
grassland, freshwater seep, vernal pool, seasonal wetlan4 and intermittent drainage
habitat wiftin the project site.

If no active special-status or othermigratory bird nests are present, no firther
mitigation is required. If an active nest is fom4 the qualified biologist shall establish a
buffer around the nest. No project activity shall commence within the buffer area until a
qualified biologist confirms tht the nest is no longer active. The size of the buffer shall
be determined in consultation with California Departuent of Fish and Wildlife. Buffer
size is anticipated to range from 50 to 100 fee! depe,nding on the nahre of the project
activity, the extent of existing distrnbance in the area, and other relevant circumstances.

3A.3-2e68.

69

Page 589

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E) (P)

cD cD (E)
USACE

G

G

Animal Borrier
To discourage the migration of undesirable small animals (including snakes) into
adjacent developed properties duingthe development ofthe projec! the
owner/applicant shall install a barier along all areas adjacent to developed residential
properties and parks to the satisfaction of the Community Development Departne,lrt
and consistent with a qualified biologist's recommendations. In general, the barrier
may consist of wire-mesh fabric with openings not exceeding t/-inahwidth. The
height ofthe barrier shall be d least lt inches (above the ground surface), and may be
buried into the ground at leasttwelve inches. The barrier shall be supported with
metal stakes at no more than lGfoot spacing. The barrier shall be installed by the
owner/applicanL as approved by the Community Development Departnent and a
qualified biologis! priorto any construction distwbance on the site, including clearing
and sradine operations.

Conduct Constuction WorkerAwuenqs Training, Conduct On-Site Monitoring if
Reqabed" Stop Wmh if CultrnflI R*orrces ue Discovered, Assas the Signifrcmce
of the Find, md PerformTrednat orAvoidance as Required.
The owner/applicant shall retain a qualified archaeologistto prepare and disseminate a
contactor awareness training program for all construction superrrisors. The sensitivity
training progam will provide information about notification procedures when potential
archaeological material is discovere4 procedures for coordination between constnrction
personnel and information about other treatment or issues that may arise if cultural
resources (including human re,mains) are discovercd during project construction. The
training shall be carried orf each time a new contractor will begin work in the project
are4 and a minimum of once dthe start of each conshrction season by that contractor,
the qualified archeologist shall submit the completed training attendance roster and a
copy of the training materials to the City and the USACE within 48 hours of delivery of
the training program.

3 A 5-1a
345-2
3A 5-3

70-

71.

Page 590

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Saoramento County
Coroner

Native American
Heritage

Commission

cD (P)cD(E)

OG
Srcpend Gromd-Dirtwbing Activities if Hntttot Renoins are Encowtered ond
Contply with Calfornb Heahh and Safdy Code Preedws.
In the eve,lrt thd human remains are discovered, constrtrction activities within 150 feet
oftlre discovery shall be hafted or diverted and the requirements for managing
manticipated discoveries in Mitigation Measure a.42(a) shall be implemented. In
addition, the provisions of Section 7050.5 of the California Health and Safety Code,
Section 5097 -9t of fte California Public Resources Code and Assembly 8111126/.I
shall be implemented. When human 1s11qins are discovered" state law requires that the
discovery be reported to the County Coroner (Section 7050.5 of the Health and Safety
Code) and that reasonable protection measures be Uken during construction to protect
the discovery from disfirbance (AB 2641).

Ifthe Coroner deterrrines the remains are Native American, the Coroner shall notify
the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), which then designates a Native
American Most Likely Descendant for the project (Section 5097.98 of the Public
Resources Code). The designated Native American Most Likely Descendant then has
48 hours from the time access to the property is granted to make recommendations
concerning treahnent of the remains (AB 2641).

If the owner/applicant does not agree with the recommendations ofthe Native
American Most Likely Descendant, the NAIIC can mediate (Section 5097.94 of the
Public Resources Cod€} Ifno agreement is reached, the owner/applicant shall rebury
the remains whe,re they will not be further disffibed (Section 5097.98 of the Public
Resources Code). This will also include either recording the site with the NAHC or the
appropriate Infonnation Centeq using an open space or conservation zoning
designation or eas€m€,lrq or recording a deed res;triction with the county in which the
property is locared (AB26/.l)-

3A 5-372.

Page 591

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E) (P),

cD (E) (P)

G

G

Conduct Construdion WorleerAwueness Trainbtg, Sup Work if Paleontological
Resources ue Discovercd,Assess the Significnce ofthe Find, and hepare and
Inplement a Recovery Plmtas Required
Before the start of any ear6moving activities, the owner/applicant shall retain a
qualified professional to train all consFuction personnel involved with earthmoving
activities, including the site superintenden! regarding the possibility of encormtering
fossils, the appearance and types offossils likely to be seen during construction, and
proper notification procedures should fossils be e,ncormtered. The training shalt be
included in the archaeological contractor awareness training program.

If paleontological resources are discovered during earthmoving activities, the
construction crew shall immediately cease work in the vicinity of the find and notiff
the City of Folsom's Community Development Deparbnent. The owner/applicant shall
retain a qualified paleontologist to evaluate the resource and prepare a recovery plan in
accordance with society ofvertebrate Paleontolory guidelines (1996). The recovery
plan may include, but is not limited to, a field suw€y, construction monitoring,
sampling and datarecovery procedures, museum storage coordination for any specimen
recovered, and a report of findings. Recommendations in the rccovery plan that are
deterrrined by the lead agency to be necessary and feasible shall be implemented
before constnrction activities can resume at the site where the paleontological resources
were discovered.
Geo archeo logicol Monitoring
In the eventthat any grading will occur within areas determined to require
geoarcheological monitoring the owner/applicant shall reain a qualified professional
geoarcheologist wlro has a graduate degree in the specialized discipline, possesses a
demonstrated abilityto carry research to completion, and has at least 24 months of
professional experience dlor specialized taining in geoarcheolory. The
geoaroheologist shall monitorthe ground disturbing activities inthe affected areas
down to 1.5 meters belowlhe surface. The monitoring geoarcheologist shall submit
proof of monitoring in the form of daily field monitoring logs to the City and the US
Army Corps of Engineers wifiin 48 hours of completion of monitorine activities.

345-2

3A 5-la

73.

74.

Page 592

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E), FD

cD(E) PW

G,LB

G

Transport, store, end Handle construction-Related Hazardous llfiatedab ir
Compliance with Relcvant Regulations and Guidelines.

The City shall ensurq through the enforcpment of contactual obligationso that all
contactors transpo4 store, and handle consEuction-related hazardous mderials in a
manner consistent with relwant regulations and guidelines, including those
recommended and enforced by Caltrans, Central Valley RWQCB, local fire
departments, and the County environrnental health deparhnent-

Recommendations shall include as appropriate transporting and storing materials in
and approved containers, maintaining required clearances, 4d handling

materials using applicable Federal, state and/or local regulatory agency protocols. In
addition, all precautions required by the Central Valley RWQCB-issued NPDES
consfruction activity stormwater permits shall be taken to ensure that no hazrrdous
materials e,nter any nearby waterways.

In the event of a spill, the City shall ensure, through the enforcement of contractual
obligations, that all contractors immediately control the source of any leak and
immediatety contain any spill utilizing appropriate spill containment and
countermeasures. Ifrequired by the local fire deparments, the local e'nvirorrmental
heahh deprhent or any other regulatory agency, contarninated media shall gs
collect€d and disposed of at an off-site facility approved to accept such media.
The storage, handling and use ofthe construction-nelated hazardous materials shall be
in accordance with applicable Federal, state, and local laws. Constustion-related
hazardous mderials and hazardous wastes (e.g., fuels and waste oils) *hall be storcd
away from stream channels and steep banks to prevent these materials from entering
surface waters in the eve,nt of an accidental release. These materials shall be kept at
sufficient distance (at least 500 feet) from nearby residences or other s€Nrsffiys land
uses. This includes materials stored for expected use, materials in equipment and

and was'te materials.
Landslide /Slope Failure
The owner/applicant shall retain an appropriately licensed engineer during the gnding
activities to id€Nrtiry existing landslides and potential slope failure hazards. The said
engineer shell be notified a minimum of two days prior to any site clearing or grading
to facilitale with the grading contractor in the field.

3B.t-1a75_

76-

Page 593

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E) Pw

cD (E), EWR

cD(E)

cD@xP)

MB

I

M

I,M

submit Proof of Adequate on- and off-Site Wastewater Conveyance Facilities
and Implement On- and Off-Site Infrastructure Service Systems or Ensure That
Adequate Finencing Is Secured.

Before the approval of the final map and issuance of building permits for all project
phases, the owner/applicant shall submit proofto the City of Folso'm that an adequate
wastewater conveyance system either has been consfiuoted or is ensured througb
payment of fte Cr$'s facilities augmentation fee as described under the Folsom
Municipal Code Title 3, Chapter 3.40, "Facilities Augmentation Fee - Folsom South
Area Facilities Pl'n," or other sureties to the City's satisfaction. Both on-site
wastewater oonveyance infrastructure and off-site force main sufficient to provide
adequate service to the project shall be in place for the amount of development
identified in the tentative map before approval of the final map and issuanee of building
oermits- or their financins shall be ensured to the satisfaction of the Citv.
Coordinate with Utility Providers and Inplenent Appropriate Installation
Methods to Minimize Potential Utility Sewice Disruptions.

Prior to installation, the City shall consult with SCWA, SRCSD, CSD-I, and PG&E to
determine proper installation methods and final design criteria to minimize the potential
for disruptions to existine and planned rfilities.

ImprovementPhns
The improvement plans for the required public and private subdivision improverne,nts
necessary to serve any and all phases ofdevelopment shall be reviewed and approved
by the Communit5r Development Deparhelrt priorto approval of a Final l\[ap.
Inspect and Evdnate Existing Dams Within and Upstream of the Project Site and
Make Impmvements if Necessary.

Prior to submittal to the City of tentative maps or improvement plans the
shall conduct studies to determine the extent of inunddion in the case

of dam failrre. If the studies deterrrine potential exposure of people or strustures to a
5ignificantrisk offlooding as aresult ofthe failure of a dam, the owner/applicants shall
implement of any feasible recommendations pr,ovided in that shrdy, potentially through
drainase improve,ments, subiect to the ap'proval of the CiW.

3A.16r

3B.IG3b

3A.94:

77

78.

79.

80.

Page 594

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (P)cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

I

I

Standard Constuction Specifications and D€tails

Public and private improvements, including roadways, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bicycle
lanes andtrails, steetlights, underground intastructurg landscaping and irrigation and
all other improvements shall be provided in accordance with the laest edition of the
City of Folsom Sardard Constnrction Specifications and D*ails and the Dpcip and
Procedures l\fanual and knprove qe!(Sitaodadr.

Water and Server Infrasfuncfure

All publicly owned water and sewer infrastructure shall be placed within the str,eet right
of way- In the event that a public water or sewer main needs to be placed in an area

otherrtran the publio right ofway such as through an open space corridor, landscaped
area, etc. an access road shall be designed and constucted to allow for the operations,

maintenance and replacement ofthe public water or sewer line alongthe entire water
and/or sewer line alignrnent. The public water and sewer mains shall be publicly owned
and maintained within any street and public sewer and water main easements shall be

pnxided and in no event shall a public water or public sewer line be placed on private

residential property. For example, installing a public water main on the property line
between two single family homes. The domestic water and irrigation syst€m shall be

separafely metered per Ctty of Folsom Standard Construction Specifications and

Details-

All publicly owned water and sewer lines and services shall be accessible for
operations, maintenance, and repair. Non-accessible situations would include placing
mains and seryices behind retaining walls, placing public mains on privde property, etc.

SPTC-JPA Appnoval
The owner/applicant shall cooperate with the City to obtain wrifreNl approval from both
the Sacramento Placerville Transportation Corridor-Joint Powers Auftority (SPTC-

JPA) and the Public Utilities Commission (PUC) for any proposed cros5ing(s) of work
within the existing JPA corridor which prallels Old Placerville Road. The

owner/applicant shall provide written approval from both the SPTC-JPA and as required
by the PUC to the City prior to approval of grading and/or improve'me'nt plans. The

orvner aprplicant shall provide all encroachment permits from the SPTGJPA and PUC
as

El.

82.

83.

Page 595

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (P)

cD (P)(E)
EWR

cD(P)CD(E)

I

G,I

I

LightingPlan

The owner/applicant shall submit a lighting plan for the project to the Community
Developm.ent neparment. The lighting plan shall be consistent wift the D€sign
Guidelines:

o

a

a

a

a

shield or screen lighting fixures to direct the light dorvnward and prevent light
spill on adjacent properties;
place and shield or scrEen flood and area lighting needed fm constnrction
activities, nighttime sporting activities, and/or security so as notto disturb
adjacent residential areas and passing motorists;
for public lighting in residential neigbborhoods, prohibitthe use of light fixtures
that are of unusually high intensity or that blink or flash;
use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare glass,low-glre building
glaze or finish, neufal, earthtoned colored paint and roofing materials), shielded
or screened lighting, and appropriate signage inthe office/commercial areasto
prevent ligbt and glare from adversely affecting motorists on nearby roadways;
and
desrgn exterior on-site lighting as an integral part ofthe building and
landscaping desigrr in the Specific Plan Area Lighting ftdues shall be

architecturally consistent with the overall site design. Ligbts used on signage
should be directed to lieht only the sun face with no offsite glare.

Above Gnound Utilig Site Design Review Application
The owner/applicant shall submit a Site Design Review Application for all above
ground utility installations (watertanks, booster pumps stations, etc-) to the Community
Developm.ent Departnent to ensure these facilities are adequdely screened. These
above groundutility installations shall be designed to be adequately screened and/or
blended into the hillsides through use of berming landscaping or through the use of
walls or fences to the satisfaction of the Comnunity Development Department-

Utility Coordination
The owner/applicant shall coordinate the planning developme'nt and completion of this
projectwift the various utility agencies (i.e., SMUD, PG&E, etc.). The ov.,ner/applicant
shall provide the City with written confimration of public utility serrrice prior to
anoroval of all final maps.

3A1-s

38'l-2u

84.

85.

86

Page 596

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



CDD(E), EWR

CD

I

I,OG

Implement Corrosion Protcction Measur$.
The owner/applicant shall be required to provide ftat dl underground metallic fittings,
appurtenances and piping in the City's water systems include a cathodic protection
qystem to protect these facilities fiom corrosion. The cathodic protection system shall be
prepared by a licensed geotechnical or civil engineer and the syste,m shall be reviewed
and approved by the City prior to approval of improvement plans.

Replecing Hnznrdous Facifties
The oumer/applicant shall be responsible for replacing any and all damaged or
hazardous public sidewalg curb and gutter, and/or bicycle trail facilities along the site
frontage and/or boundaries, including pre-existing conditions and construction damagc,
to the satisfaction of the Community Development Deparbnent.

Water Meter Network
The oumer/applicant shall pay for, firnish, and install all infrastructure associatsd with
the water meter fixed network syst€m.
FlnalDesign
The final design ofall sound wallq fences, and gates shall be subject to review and
approval by the Commmitv Development Departuent.

38.7-4E7

EE.

t9.

90

Page 597

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)ITemporary Detention Basin
a. Design. If it is necessry d lhe time of recordation of the first final map, the
owner/applicant shall be responsible for tlre desrgn and construction of the temporary
detention basin which will t€mporarily impact the development oftentative subdivision
map lots 23 through 29 ofthe Broadstone Estates suMivision. The detention basin
design shall include City approved vehicular access to the entire basin, including but
not limited to, the inlets and outfalls for the basin. The improve,ment plans for the
proposed interim basin shall be reviewed and approved by the City prior to approval of
the Final SuMivision ldap.
b. Easements. Prior to approval of the first final map, a maintenance and access
easement and a public &ainage easement shall be granted to the City of Folsom over
the entire basin.
c. Operation and lVlaintenance lVtanual. The owner/applicant shall prepare an
Operations and Maintenance manual forthe incrim deGntion basin for maintenance by
the City. The manual shall be subject to review and approval by fte City prior to
approval ofthe firstfinal map.
d. Operation Funding. The owner/applicant shall provide a funding mechanism,
separate from the funding mechanism for the permanent detention basin, for the
operation and maintenance by the City of Folsom ofthe interim detention basin-

a. Notice of Temporary Detention Basin

The ov*ner/applicant shdl record a separat€ instnnnent against the property
comprised oftent*ive map lots 23 through Z9,frat said lots shall be
encumbered by the constmction of a temporary detention basin needed to serve
the development ofthe Broadstone Estates. The docume,nt shall include a
description ofthe proposed improvemenb, describe the required off site
permanent detention basin needed to be constructed in order to abandon the
temporary dete,ntion basiq and shall include a staternentthat the development
of lots 23 through 29 as shown on the approved tentative subdivision map
cannot proceed rmtil such time as the int€rim basin is removed and all
easements are abandoned to the satisfaction of the city.

b. Removal of the Temporary Detention Basin
The owner/applicant shall be solely responsible for the removal and cost of the
temDoran/ detention basin at such time as the temooranr detention basin is no

9l

Page 598

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



longer required. Lots 23 tbrough 29 of the Broadstone Estates suMivision map
shall not be createdwith afinal map until it has been determinedthatthe
downsteam p€rmarcnt det€ntion basin has been constucted by others in
accordance with the Folsom Plan Area Storm Drainage Master Plan and is
operational and the teinporary deteirtion basin is abandone4 removed and
regraded to allow for home construction to the satisfaction of the CiW.

c- RemovdAgreenent
The owner/applicant shell e:rccute an agreementwith the City of Folsom to
guarantee the funding for the re,moval of the temporary detention basin prior to
approval of the first final map.

Page 599

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)I

The funding for the oper*ion and maintenance of the basin shall remain in place until
such time as the required permment detention basin(s) are constructed downsfream by
others and are operational in accordance with the Folsom Plan Area Storm Drainage
Master Plan. The ftnding mechanism shall be in place and funding available to the city
prior to approval of the first final map.
e- Notice of Temporary Detention Basin. The owner/applicant shall record a separate
instrument against the Foperly comprised of tentative map lots 23 through 29,thatsaid
lob shall be encumb€red by the oonstruction of a temporaqr detention basin needed to
serve the development of the Broadstone Estates. The document shall include a
description of the proposed improvernents, describe the rcquired offsite permanent
detention basin needed to be constnrcted in orderto abandon the temporary detention
basin, and shall include a statement that the developme,nt of lots 23 throlgh 29 as
shown on the approved tentative suMivision map cannot goceed until such time as the
interim basin is removed md all easements are abandoned to the satisfaction of the city.
f. Removal ofthe Temporary hention Basin. The owner/applicant shall be solely
responsible for the removal and cost of the temporary detention basin at such time as

the temporary detention basin is no longer required. I.ots 23 through 29 of the
Broadstone Estates suHivision map shall not be created with a final map until it has
been determined that the dovmstrem permanent detention basin has been constructed
by others in accordance with fte Folsom Plan Area Storrr Drainage Master Plan and is
operational and the t€mporary detention basin is abandond removed and regraded to
allow for home construction to the satisfaction ofthe City.
h. Removal Agreement. The owner/applicant shall execute an agreement with the City
of Folsom to guarantee fte funding for the rernoval of the temporary detention basin
prior to approval of the firstfinal map.

OU Plocerville Road
The City may consider the closure and re-alignment of Old Placen ille Road between
US Highway 50 and fuhre Alder Creek Padsray as part of future development in the
Folsom Plan Are4 consistent with the project Folsom Plan Area EIR. The removal of
the existing asphalt concrete pa.vement on any future abandoned segment of Old
Placerville Road will not be permitted without the prior approval of the Citv.

9l cont

92

Page 600

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(E), PW

cD(E), EWR

I,B

I

Placemille Rood/Aldu Creh Parhwoy fnturcedion

Prior to the issumce of the first building permlt, the owner/applicant shall have
completed all offsite road and intersection improvements from the on-site terrrinus of
Dewy Oak Drive, Dehone Drive to Purple Sage Drive and to Alder Creek Parkrnray,
ultimately to the Placerville Road/Alder Creek Parkway intersection and it shall be
operational, to the satisfaction of the City. These improvements are to be applied to the
existing Placerville Road alignment and geometry;

Two lanes (one in each direction) of Alder Creek Parlavay shall be constructed from
Placerville Road to the proposed intersection of Purple Sage Drive and Alder Creek
Parlavay andthe segment ofPurple Sage Drive connecting to the local streets within
the project to provide tte required secondary access.

Southbound on Placerville Road, the lane configuration shall include the addition of a
southbound left turn lme consising of 200 feet tansitional length plus 140 feet storage
length, excluding appropriate tapers, to accommodate anticipated vehicle queuing and
deceleration forthe southbound lefttum lane onto eastbound Alder Creek Parkrray.
The resulting southbormd lane configuration will be two lanes, one left turn lane, one
through lane.

Northbound on Placerville Road the lane configuration shall include the addition of a
northbound righttum lane consisting of 180 feettransition length. The resulting
northbound lane configuration will be one lane, a shared dghtturn and through lane.

Ffiure Utility Lincs
All future utility lines lower than 69 KV that are to be buih within the projecg shall be
placed underground wiftin and along the of the project at the developer's
cost. The owner/applicant shell dedicate to SMUD all necessary
easements for the electrical facilities that will be necessary to service developme,rt of
the proiect.

93

94.

Page 601

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(E), Pw' EWR

cD(P)(B)

cD(E)(P)

cD (E)

I

I

I

I

TrunhSewqMain
The owner/applicant shall desrgn and construct the off-site trunk sewer main as shown
in Preliminary Offsite Infrastructure Plan attached to the vesting tentative subdivision
map. Owner/applicant may propose an altemative alignment for routing the sewer
backbone infrastructure in conformance with the Wastewater lvlaster Plan Update
subjectto the sole discretion of fte City. The off-site sewertnrnk mains, the sewer

maintenance roads, sanitary sewer lift station(s), and sewer forced mains exlended

across US Highway 50 to the existing Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District
(SRCSD) lift station shall be completed and accepted by the City for operation and

maintenance prior to issuance ofthe first building permit in the project-

The owner/applicant srrall be responsible for constructing any and all odor control
facilities, providing high-velocity hydraulic cleaning and vacuum cleaning of select

sewer mains and providingtemporary supplemental flows into select sewermains as

detennined by the City until such time the peak average flows are met in the Folsom
Plan Area backbone sewer qystem in accordance with the Wastewater Master Plan

Update.

Verticol Curb
All curbs located adjacentto landscaping whether natural or manicured, and where

parking is allowed shall be vertical.

Clzas II Bike Lana
All Class tr bike lanes shall be shiped and painted green. No pa*ing shall be

oermitted within the Class rI bike lanes.

Sewq MaintenanceRood
The owner/applioant shall provide an asphalt conorete (AC) maintenance road (a

minimum of 12 feetwide) which extends from East Bidwell Street (formerly Scott

Road) to the future sanitary sewer lift station on the proposed firure extension of Alder
Creek Parkway. The ovmer/applicant shall also construct an asphalt concrete (AC)
maintenance road (a minimum of 12 feet wide) which extends from Placerville Road to
Alder Creek Parkway, as shown on the Preliminary OtrSite hfrastructure Plan. The

AC maintenance road shall be designed to meet City Standtrds for utility vehicle loads

including but not limited to, vactortnrcks, fne vehicles, and fire apparatus and other
maintenance vehicles-

95

96-

97

98.

Page 602

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



CD, PR

cD (E)(P)

I

I

Pa*s andRecreation
The following measures shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the Parks and
Recreation Departnent:

1 . The Owner/Applicant will pay Parkland Dedication In-Lieu fees based on 0 .0 I 46
AC. per single-family unit resulting in a total parkland dedication requirement of
1.04 acres. The inJieu fee shall be calculated based on a Complete Summary
Appraisal prepared to establish a Fair lvlarket Value as defined by the Folsom
Municipal Code (FMC l$2.A4q.

2. The Owner/Applicant will provide the proposed Class I bike trail alignments and
connections consistent with the Bikeways Mast€r Plm and Illustrative Master
Plan for Broadstone Estates Exhibit dated October 8, 2015. The
OwneriApplicant may enter into a constuction reimbursement agreeme,lrt with
the City in the future to facilitate efficient delivery of the tail facilities to the
public

3. The Class I Bike Trail and associated drainage swales shall be placed in a
separate lot and granted to the City of Folsom. The trail shall be designed to
accommodate regular vehicular acc€ss by maintenance vehicles using the trail to
access the Future 7-one 4 water tank.

Noise Buricn
In coqiunction with the submittal of improvement plans for each proposed development
phase where noise barrier locations are required, the owner/applicant shall show on tre
lnprovement Plans that sound walls and/or landscaped berms shall be constructed as

shown on the Preliminary Grading and Drainage plan dated March 9,2017.

The solid noise barriers shall be no less than the height shown on the Preliminary
Grading and Drainage Plan dated March 9,2017, relative to building pad elevation and
shall be confirrred based upon tlre final approved site and gnding plans. Noise barrier
walls shall be constnrcted of decorative split face concrete masonry units and shall b€
treated with an anti-graffiti treatuent. Abrupt transitions exceeding two feet in height
shall be avoided. The Grading and/or ImprovementPlans shall be subjectto review and
approval bythe City Engineer.

3A ll-4

99.

100.

Page 603

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



CDD(E), EWR, PWG,IMaster Plan Updaes
The City has approved the Folsom Plan Area Storm Drainage lvlaster Plan, the Folsom
Plan AreaWater System lUaster Plan and the Folsom Plan AreaWastewaterMaster
Plan Update. The owner/applicant shall submit complete updates to each of these
approved master plans for the poposed changes to each master plan as a result of the
proposed project.The updates to each master plan forthe proposed project shall be
reviewed and approved by the City prior to approval of grading and/or improvement
plans.

The plans shall be accompanied by engineering studies supporting the sizing,location,
and timing ofthe proposed facilities. Improve,ments shall be constructed in phases as

the project develops in accordance with the approved master plans, including any
necessary off-site improvernents to support development of a particular phase or phases,

subject to prior approval by the City. Off-site improvements may include roadways to
provide secondary access, water tran$nission lines or disbibution facilities to provide a
looped wat€r system, sewer trunk mains and lift stations, water quality facilities, non-
potable water pipelines and infrastruoture, and drainage facilities including on or off-site
detention. No changes in infrastructure from that shorvn on the approved master plan
shall be permitted unless and until the applicable master plan has been revised and

approved by the City. Final lot configurations may need to be modified to
accommodate the improvements identified in these studies to the satisfaction of the

City

The owner/applicant shall provide sanitary sewer, wder and storrr drainage
improvements with corresponding easements, as n@essary, in accordance with these

studies and the latest edition of the City of Folsom Stodmd Constnrction Swcifications
od Denils. andthe Design od Proce&res IVIonnI and Inprwement Stmdmds.

The storrr drainage design shall provide for no net increase in run-offunder post-

development conditions.

l0l.

Page 604

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E), PW
PW (Sacto. Co. or

El Dorado Co.)

CALTRA}.IS

USACE

cvRwQcB

G,IDesW Stornwder Drainoge Plans ud Erosion and Sedirrent Corfrol Plans to
Avoid and Minimize Erusion and fumofto All Wetlands urd Other Wctcrs Thst Are
to Remdn on the project and Use Low hpaa Developmen Fedrnes.
To minimize indirect efus on water qualrty and wetland hydrolory, the
oumer/applicant shall include stormwater drainage plans and erosion and sediment
control plans in their grading and/or improvement plans and shall submit these plans to
the City for review and approval. Prior to approval of grading and/or improvement
plans, the owner/applicant for any particular discretionary development application shall
obtain a NPDES Construction General Permit and Grading Permit, comply with the
Crty's Grading Ordinance and City drainage and stormwater quallty standards, and
commit to implementing all measures in their drainage plans and erosion and sediment
contol plans to avoid 411pinimize erosion and runoffinto Alder Creek and all
wetlands and other waters that would remain on-site.
The oumer/applicant shall implement stormwater quality treament controls consistent
with the Stonnwater Quahf Design Manual for Sacramento and South Placer Regions
in effect atthe time the application is zubmited. Appropriate runoffcontrols such as

berms, storm gates, off-stearn detention basins, overflow collection areas, filtration
systems, and sediment traps shall be implemented to control siltation andthe potential
discharge of poll*ants- Development plans shall incorporate I-ow Impact Development
(LID) features, such as pervious stripq permeable pavements, bioret€,ntion ponds,
vegetated swales, disconnected rain gutter downspouts, and rain gardens, where
appropriate. Use of LID features is recommended by the EPA to minimize impacts on
water quality, hydrolory, and stream geomorphology and is specified as a method for
protecting water quality in the proposed specific plan. In addition, free sparming bridge
systems shall be used for all roadway sr'essings over weflands and other waters that are
retained in the on-site open space. These bridge systerns would maintain the natural and
restored channels of creeks, including the associated wetlands, and would be designed
with sufficient span width and depftto provide forwildlife movem€Nrt alongthe creek
corridors even during high-flow or flood events, as specified in fte 404 permit.
The owner/applicant shall be responsible for all necessary off-site improvements
neededto supportthe Broadstone Estates drainage syst€m.

3A 3-1ar02.

Page 605

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)

cD (E)

XIRE DEPARTMENT REOIIIREMENTS

G,I

OG

Bat Mmogenuil Pructices
The storm drain improvement plans shall provide for'Best Management Practices" that
meet the requirements of the water quality sbndards of the City's Ndional Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System Perrrit issued by the State Regional War€r Quatity
Control Board.

Each proposed project development shall result in no net change to peak flows into
Alder Creek and associated tributarieg or to Buffalo Creelq Carson Creeb and Coyote
Creek. The owner/applicant shall establish a baseline of conditions for drainage on-site.
The baseline-flow conditions shall be established for 2-,5-, and 100-year storm events.
These baseline conditions shall be used to develop monitoring standards forthe
stormwafier syste,m on the Specific Plan Arca. The baseline conditions, monitoring
standards, and a monitoring program shall be submited to USACE and the City for
their approval. Water quallty and detention basins shall be designed and constructed to
ensure that the performance standards, which are described in Chapter 3A.9,
'Tlydrolory and Water Qualtty," are met and strall be designed as off-sfream detention
basins.

Discharge sites into Alder Creek and associated tributaries, as well as tributaries to
Carson Creeh Coyote Creek, and Buffalo Creek, shall be monitored to enzure that pre-

project conditions are being met. Corrective msasures shall be imple'mented as

necessary. The mitigation measnr€s will be satisfied when the monitoring standards are

met for 5 consecutive years without undertaking corrective measurres to meet the
performance standaxd.

Lifler Contol
During Construction" the owner/applicant shall be responsible for litter control and

sweeping ofall paved surfaces in accordance with City standards. All on-site storm
dmins shall be cleaned immedidely before the oommencement of fte rainy season
(October l5)-

103

104.

Page 606

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)
Fire

cD (P) FD

I,B

G,I,M,B

Incorpordc Firc Flow Requirenent into hojea Designs.
The owner/applicant shall incorporate into their projeot designs fire flow requirements
based on the Califomia Fire Code, Folsom Fire Code and shall verify to the City of
Folsom Fire Deparftnent that adequate water flow is available, prior to approval of
improvement plans and issuance of occupancy permits or final inspections for all
project phases.

Prqarcfircl modifuution plm (FMP).
The orvner/applicant shall submit a Fuel Modification Plan to the City forreview and
p'reliminary approval from the Fire Code Official prior to any Final md/or Parcel Map.
Final approval of the plan by the Fire Code Official shall occur prior to the issuance of
a permit for any new construction. A Fuel Modification Plan shall c.<nsist of a set of
scaled plans showing fuel modificaion zones indicated with applicable assessment
noteg a detailed landscape plan and an inigation plan. A fuel modification plan
submitted for approval shall be prepared by one ofthe following: a California state
licensed landscape architect or state licensed landscape contractor, or a landscape
designd u an individual with expertise acceptable to the Fire Code Official.

The owner/applicant agree to be responsible forthe long-tenn maintenance ofthe Fuel
Modification Plan. Notification of fuel modification require,ments re to be made upon
sale to new property orvners. Proposed changes to the approved Fuel Modification Plan
shall be subrmitted to the Fire Code Official for approval prior to implementation.

3At4-310s.

r06.

Page 607

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)
Fire

I
All-WeutherAccqs and Fbe Ey&artts
The owner/applicant shall provide all-weather access and fire hydrants before
combustible materials are allowed on any project site or otrer approved alternative
method as approved by the Fire Code OfficiaUFire Chief. All-weather emergency
access roads and fire hydrmts (tested and flushed) shall be provided before combustible
material or vertical construction is allowed on any project site or other approved
alternative method as approved by the Fire Code OfticiaUFire Chief. (All-weather
access is defined as six inches of compacted aggregatebase from May I to September
30 and two inch asphalt concrete over six inch aggregate base from October I to April
30).
The building shall [ravs illuminated addresses visible from the street or drive fronting
the property. Size and location of address identification shall be reviewed and
approved by the Fire h[arshal-

r The minimum fire flow for residential dwellings is 1,000 gpm at 20 psi for
houses 3,600 sq. ft. and less, 1,750 glrn for daryllings greater than 3,600 sq. ft
in area, and 2,000 grm for dwellings greder than 4,800 sq- ft. up to 62ffi sq. ft.
in area. Please determine the maximum size homes that will be buift in this
suMivision. A water model analysis that proves the minimum fire flow will be
required before any permits are issued.

o All public streets shall meet City ofFolsom Street Standards unless an alte,mative
is specifically included nithin this approval.

o The maximrm length of any dead end str,eet shall not exceed 500 feet in
accordance wilh the Folsom Fire Code. S€veral stneets indicated on the plans are
dead ends gred€r *han 500 feet. In such cases, a second emergency access will
be required.

r All-weather emerg€ncy access roads and fire hydrants (tested and flushed) shall
be provided before combustible material storage or vertical construction is
allowed. All-wether access is defined as 6" of compacted AB from May I to
September 30 and ?'AC over 6'AB fiom October I to April 30

e The first Fire Station planned for the Folsom Ranch Plan Area shall be
completed and operdional at the time that the threshold of 1,500 occupied
homes within lhe Folsom Ranch Plan Area is met.

107

Page 608

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



FD
PW

(E)CD

cD (B)
Fire

I,B,O

I,B

Incorporuc California Fire Code; Cig of Folsom Fire Code Requhenena; ud
EDHFD Reqaircnunts, if Necessmlt, into Project DesW and Submit hojea Ire$W
to the Cty of Folsom Fire Deputrncnfor nelftew and Apprwal

To reduce impacts related to the provision of new fire services, the owner/applicant
shall do the following, as described below:
Incorporate into project designs fire flow requirements based on the Califomia Fire Code,
Folsom Fire Code (City of Folsom Municipal Code Title 8, Chapter 8.3Q, and other
applicable requirements based on the City of Folsom Fire Deparhent fire prevention
standards. Impr,ovement plans showing the incorporation of automatic sprinkler systems,
the availability of adequate fire flow, and the locations of hydrants shall be submitted to
the City of Folsom Fire Departnent for review and approval. In addition, approved plans
showing aocess desrgn shall be provided to the City of Folsom Fire Departrrent as

described by Zoning Code Seotion 17.57.0t0 (Yehicular Access
Requireme,nts"). These plans shall describe access-road length, dimensions, and
finished surfaces for firefighting equipm.ent The installation of security gates across a
fre apparahrs ztsoess road shall be approved by the City of Folsom Fire Department.
The design and operation of gates and baricades shall be in accordance withthe
Sacramento County Emergency Access Gates and Barriers Standard, as required by the
City of Folsom Fire Code.

Submit a Fbe Slsturc Nant Baildings,Additions, andAheraions Docutent
Submifral LiS to the Cily of Folsom Comnrmity Developnunt DqarM Building
Division

The Fire ry. shall review and approve any imp'rove, ent plans or building permits for
accessibility of e,mergency fire equipm.eng fire hydrant flow locatio4 and other
constuction feaures. The City shall not auftorize the occupancy of any structurcs
until the orvner/applicant have obtained a Certificate of Occupancy from the City of
Folsom Cmmunity Development Departmentverifying that all fireprevention items
have been addressed on-sitp to the satisfaction ofthe City of Folsom Fire Deparment.

3At+2108-

109.

Page 609

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(E) (P)
EWR" PK

IReclainudWder Pipe

The owner/applicant shall install a reclaimed water *purple" pipe conveyance and
inigation syst€m for all proposed landscaping for the project including but not limited
to, landscape corridors along roadways, median islands within roadways, firtrne park
sites, school sites, open space parcels either publicly maintained or privately maintained
by the owner/applicant etc. in accordance the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan
Environme,ntal rmpact Report. The reclaimed water pipe conveyance and irrigation
systems shall be designed and maintained by the owner/applicant to accommodate the

futwe conversion of these inigation syst€ms from potable water to non-potable water at
such time the non-potable water systems is constmct€d and installed in accordance with
the 2014 FPA Recycled Water Analysis 2.0. The ownerlapplicant shall include the
reclaimed water pipe conveyanoe and inigdion systerns on all future landscape plans

within the project to the satisfaction oftre City.

110.

Page 610

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(P), PW

cD(P), PW

MAPREQTJIRENIENTS
cD(E)

I, OG

I, OG

M

I^ondscqing Plans
Final landscape plans and specifications shall be prepared by a registered landscape
architect and approved by the City prior to the approval of improvement plans. Said
plans shall include all on-site landscape specifications and details, and shall comply
witr all State and local rules, regulations, Governor's declarations and resfiictions
pertaining to water conservation and outdoor landscaping.

Landscaping shall meet shade requirements as outlined inthe Folsom Municipal C.ode
Ch+ter 17.57 where applicable- The landscape plans shall comply and implement
water efficient requirements as adopted by the State of California (Assembly Bill l88l)
(State Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance) until such time the City of Folsom
adopts its own Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance at which time the owner/applicant
shall comply with any new ordinance. Shade and ornamental trees shall be maintained
according to the most curent American National Standards for Tree Care Operations
(ANSI A-300) by qualified t€e care professionals. Tree topping for height reduction,
view protection, light clearance or any other purpose shall not be allowed. Specialty-
style pruning, such as pollarding shall be specified within the approved landscape
plans and shall be imple'mented during a S-year establishment and taining period.

Landscaping installed in open spaces located between tien oflots shall be chosen for
resistance to fne and limited fuel production.

Furthermore, the owner/applicant shall comply with city-wide landscape rules or
regulations on water usage. Owner/applicant shall comply with any state or local rules
and regulations relating to landscape water usage and landscaping requirernents
necessitated to mitigate for drought conditions on all landscaping in the Broadstone
Estates Project.

Right of Wcy Landscqing
I-andscaping along all road rights of way and in public open space lots shdl be
installed when the adjoining road or lots are constructed.

Snbdivbion htprovenenl Agreenunt
Prior to the approval of any Final Map, the owner/applicant shall enter into a
subdivision improvement agreement with the City, identifing all required
improvements, if any, to be constructed with each proposed phase of development. The
orvner/applicant shall provide security acceptable to the City, gumnteeing constnrction
ofthe improve,ments.

lll

lt2.

I 13.

Page 611

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (PXE)

cD (PXE)

M

M

HiIIsdaIc Drive Lots 30 thrcugh 35 Inclusive
Lots 30 tlrough 35, inclusive, shall not be created with a final map until such time as
one ofthe following acceis options has been provided:

1. An Emergency Vehicle Access Easement (EVA) (as shown on the Preliminary
OffSite Infrastructure Plan) from the tenninus ofHinsdale Drive, across the
adjoining Russell Ranch properfy and joining the EVA locafied along the
easterly side of lot 29

2. Hinsdale Drive through the adjoining Russell Ranch Subdivision has been
constructed,

3- A temporary tumarormd has been constructed at the end of Hinsdale Drive.
Any such tunr-around will be subject to review and approval of the Fire
Department.

The Final Inclusionary Housing Plan
The Final Inclusionary Housing Plan and Final Inclusionary Housing Agreement as

approved by the City Council shall be executed prior to recorddion of the first Final
ldap forthe Broadstone Estates Subdivision.
Hotttcowner's As s o ciation

The owner/applicant shall form a Homeowners Association for the ownership and
maintenance of all landscaped open spaces and common areas on hillsides, slopes etc.
(Lots A through G, I, and L), and all sound walls located along the northerly side of the
subdivision.

In addition, CC&R's shall be prepared by the owner/applicant and shall be subject to
review and approval bythe Community DevelopmentDepartmentforcompliance with
this approval and with the Folsom Municipal Code and adopted policies, prior to the
recordation ofthe Final Map-

114.

5.l1

6.tl

Page 612

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (P) PKMConditions, Cwenanls, ond Restrictions (CC&ns)
The owner/applicant shall disclose to the homebuyers in the C,ovenants, Conditions, and
Resfrictions (CC&RS) and in the Departuient of Real Esfat€ Public Report

1) The soil in the subdivision may contain ndurally occuning asbestos.

2) The collecting digging; or removal of any stone, artifact, or other prehistoric or
historic object located in public or opsn space araas, and the disturbance ofany
arohaeological site or historic properly, is prohibited-

3) The project site is located within close proximity to the Mather Airport flight
path and that overflight noise may be present at various times.

4) That all properties located within one mile of an on- or off-site area zoned or
used for agricultural use (including livestock gnzmld $all be accompanied by
written disclosrne from the transferor, in a form approved by the City of
Folsom, advising any tansferee of the potelilial adverse odor impacts from
surrounding agricultmal operations whioh disclosrne shall direct the transfer€e
to contact the County of Sacramento any zuch prope(y within the
County zoned for agricultural uses within one mile of the subject properly being
transferred-

5) All sound walls are located on Open Space property owned and maintained by
the Homeowners Association. These walls cannot be altered by the adjoining
homeowners.

342-6tt7.

Page 613

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (P) cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

M

M

M

M

Financing Disnicts
The owner/applicant shall form a Landscape and Lighting Assessmeirt District, a
Community services District, and/ or a Home Owners Association, which shall be
responsible for maintenance of all common areas, maintenance of all on-site
landscaping, maintenance of storm drainage facilities, maintenance of stomr water
dete'lrtion/detention basins and associated channels, maintenance ofwater quality ponds,
and maintenance of any orther site facilities in the suMivision throughout the life of the
project to the satisfaction of the Community Development Departrnent. Vegetation or
plant spacing shall not be less than that depicted on the final landscape plan, unless tree
removal is approved by the Community Development Deparhent because the spacing
betwe€ntrees will be too close on center as they mafiue.
Public Utility Easements
The owner/applicant shall dedicate public utility easements for underground facilities
on properties adjacent to the sheets. A minimum of twelve and one-half-foot (12.5')
wide Public Utility Easeme,nts for underground facilities (i.e., SMUD, Pacific Gas and
Electric, cable televisio4 telephone) shall be dedicated adjacentto all private and public
stneet rights-of-way. The owner/applicant shall dedicate additional width to
acoommodate extraordinary facilities as determined by the City. The width ofthe
public utility easements adjacentto public and private right ofway may be reduced with
prior approval from public utility companies.
B acftb one I nfras t uct rne
As provided for in the ARDA and the Amendment No. I thereto, the ovmer/applicant
shall provide fully executed grant deeds, legal descriptions, and plats for all necessary
Backbone Infrastructure to serve the projecL including but not limited to lands, public
rights of way, public utility ease,ments, public water main easements, public sewer
easements, irrevocable offers of dedication and temporary construction easements. All
required easements as listed necessary forthe Backbone Infrashucture shall be
reviewed and approved by the City and recorded with the Sacramelrto Cormty Recorder
pursuant to the timing requircurents set forth in Section 3.E ofthe ARDA.
New Pennanent Benchmshs
The owner/applicant shall provide and establish new permanent benchmarks on the
(NAVD 88) datum in various locafions within the subdivision or at any other locations
in the vicinity of the off-site Backbone Infrastructure as directed by the City Engineer-
The type and specifications for the permanent benchmarks shall be provided by the
City. The new benchmarks shall be placed by the omer/applicant within 6 months
from the date of approval of the vesting tentative subdivision mao.

1 18.

119.

120.

t2t

Page 614

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(E)

cD (E)

cD (E)
utilities

M

M

M

Maintenance PIan Final Approval
No final map will be accepted by the city for processing and review until suoh time that
the Open Space Management and Financing Plan, the Drainage Facilities Maintenance
and Financing Plan and the Parks, Trails, Landscape Coridors, Medians and Open
Space Maintenance Community Facilities Dishict is forrred and approved by the City
Council.
Conntanity Facililb Districts ond Financing Plans
Prior to approval of the first srnall lot fmal map and in accordance with Amendment
No. 1 of the ARDA and any further amendments thereto, the owner/applicant is
required to complete the following:

o Forrnation and approval by the City Council of the Sewer and Water CFD,
o Formation and approval by the City Council ofthe Aquatic Center CFD,
o Forrnation and approval by the City Cormoil ofthe Parks, Trails, Landscape

Corridors, Medians and Open Space ldainte'nance CFD,
o Forrnation and approval by the City Council of the Storrr Drainage

Maintenance CFD (unless zuch drainage maintenance is included in the

Services CFD),
. Formation and approval by the City Council ofthe Street Maintenance

Distidrlighting Maintenance District CFD (rmless such steet maintenance is
included in the Services CFD)

o Fonnation and approval bythe City Council of the Open Space Management

and Financing Plan-
r Formation and approval by the City Council ofthe Drainage Facilities

Maintenance and Financing Plan

Water S upply Availabilfu
The owner/applicant shall submit proof of compliance with Government Code Section

6U73-7 (SB 221) by demonstating the availability of a reliable and suffrcient waier
supply from a public water qystem for the arnount of development that would be

authorized by the final subdivision map. Such a demonsbation shall consist of
information showing that both existing sources are available or needed supplies and

improvemenb will be in place prior to occupancy. The unitten proof of compliance

shall be providedto the City and approved by the City priorto approval of any final
map.

4.7-l
3A l8-1

r22.

123

r24.

Page 615

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E) (B),
PW

cD(E) (B),
PW

cD (E) (B)
PW

cD (E)

M,B,O

MB

M,B

M

Sabmit Proof of Adequate Ofi-Site Wder Convqnnce Facilities and hryIcnent Off-
Site Inftastruawe Semice System or Enstue Thot Adeqwle Flnancing k Secwed
The owner/applicant shall submit proof to the City of Folsom that an adequate off-site
water conveyance syst€m either has been constructed or is ensured to the City's
satisfaction. The off-site water eonveyance infrastructure sufficient to provide adequate
service to the project shall be in place forthe amount of development identified in the
tentative map before approval of a final suMivision map and issuance ofbuilding
permits for all project phases, or their financing shall be ensured to the satisfaction of
the City. A building permit shall not be issued for any building within the project until
the water conveyance infrastructure sufficient to serve such building has been
constructed and is in place to the satisfaction of the City.

Denmnsfide Adequate SRWTP Woslewater Tiedment Cqacig.
The owner/applicant shall demonshate adequate capacity at the Sacramento Regional
Water Treatuient Plant for new wast€water flows generated by the project. This shall
involve pr€paring a tentative maplevel study and paying connection and capacity fees
as identified by Sacrarnento Regional County Sanitation Distict. Approval ofthe final
map and issuance of building permits for all project phases shall not be grarted until the
City verifies adequate Sacrameuto Regional Water Treatnent Plmt capacity is available
for the amount of development identified in the tentative map. The uritten approval
from the Sacramento Regional Coun8 Sanitation District shall be provided to dre City.
Submit Ptoof of Adequote On- and Of$ite Wastewds Convqnnce Facilities and
hnplenent On- and Off-Site Infrasfructwe Semice Syslenr or Ensure Thd Adcquate
Finoncing Is Secured.
The owner/applicant shall submit proofto the City of Folsom that an adequate
wastewater conveyance system either has been constructed or is ensured through
palment or other sureties to the City's satisfaction. Both on-site wastewder conveyance
infrastructure and off-site force main sufficientto provide adequate service to the
project shall be in place for the amormt of dwelopment identified in the tentative map
before approval of the final map and issuance of building permits for all project phases,

or their financine shall be ensured to the satisfaction of the Citv.
C-entalized Mail Delivery Units
All Final Maps shall show easements or other mapped provisions forthe placement of
centalized mail delivery units. The owner/applicant shall provide a concrete base for
the placement of any centralized mail delivery unit. Specifications and location of such
base shall be determined pursuant to the applicable requirements of the U. S. Postal
Service andthe City of Folsom Community Development Oeptmen! with due
consideration for steet light location, traffic safety, security, and consumer
convenie,nce.

3AI8-2a

3A 16-3

3A 16-1

t25.

t26_

127.

128-

Page 616

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E)

cD(E)

M

M

StreaNmus
The street names identified below shall be used for the small lot final map:

DewyOakDrive
Hinsdale Drive
Dehone Drive
Purple Sage Drive
Rocky Hills Drive
Spotted Dog Court

Credit Reimb rnserrrcnt Agrcerrwnt
Prior to the recordation of the first final map, the owner/applicant and City shall enter
into a credit and reimbursement agree,ment for constructed that are
included in the Folsom Plan Area's Public Facilities Financine Plan-

129.

130.

Page 617

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (PXB)BInplenunt Additional Meuut* to Reduce Operaionol GEG Emissions.

DnergrEfEciency

(e.g., photovoltaic cells, solarthemal elecfricity systems, small wind turbines).

requireme,nts ofthe Tifle 24 [as of 20071W 35%).

landscaping and sun screens to reduce enerry use.

lighting control systems, where practical. Use daylight as an integral part of lighting
systems in all buildings.

along all bicycle and pedestrian routes.

Water Conservation and Efficiency

with nativg drought-resistant species in all publio area and commercial landscaping.
Use water-efficient turf in parks and other turf-dependent spaces.

washing cars.

based irrigation controls.

fi:rtures and appliances.

34.4-2t13l.

Page 618

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(E)

B

B

nonvegetat€d surfaces) and contol runoff. Prohibit businesses from using pr€ssure
washers for cleaning driveways, parking lots, sidewalks, and street surfaces. These
restrictions should be included in the Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions ofthe
community.

incentives.

systems and increases their energy consumption, constntct driveways to single-family
detached residences and parking lots and driveways of multifamily residential uses with
pervious surfaces. Possible designs include Holtywood drives (two concrete strips with
vegetation or aggregate in between) and/or the use ofporous concrete, porous asphalg
turfblocks, or pervious pavers.
Solid Waste Measures

limited to, soil, vegetation, concrete, lumber, metal, and cardboard)-

buildings.

grormds, golf courses, and pedeshian zones in areas ofmixed-use developmenl

services.

Transportation and Motor Vehicles

certain percentage ofparking spaces for ride-sharing vehicles, designating adequate

passenger loading and unloading zones and waiting areas for ride-share vehicles, and
providing a Web site or message board for coordinating ride-sharing).

encourage the use of low- or zero-emission vehicles (e.g., electric vehicle charging
facilities and conveniently located alternative fueling stations).

Recorded FinaIMry
Prior to the issuance of building permits, the owner/applicant shall provide a digital
copy of the recorded Final Map (in AutoCAD fonnat) to the Community Developm.ent
Deparhe,nt.

3A.4-2a131.
Cont.

t32.

Page 619

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (P)
FCUSD

cD (E)

cD (PXB)

cD(P)

B

B

B

Recorded FinaIMq
Prior to issuance of building permits, the owner/applicant shall provide the Folsom-
Cordova Unifid School Dstrict with a copy ofthe recorded Final Map.
Infrasfi udwe Inprwemmls Timing
All on and oftsite subdivision and Backbone Infrasuucture improvements required to
serve this project and any zubsequent phase of the projecq including but not limit€d to,
roadway andtranspo*ation improvements, sanitary sewer, water, slorm drainage, water
quality/detention basins, etc- shall be completed to the satisfaction of the City prior to
issuance ofthe first buildine pennit within the oroiect.
Inrylenent Meatu* to Reduce Noisefrom Prcject-Generated Stationry Sowc*

The owner/applicant shall implement the following measures to reduce the effect of
noise levels ge,nerafed by on-site stationary noise sources that would be located within
600 feet ofany noise-seirsitive receptor:

shall be conducted drning the less sensitive daytime hours (i.e., 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.).
All electrical g€n€rators shall be equipped with noise control (e.g., muffler) devices in
accordance with manufacturers' specifications.

features designed to reduce noise emissions below the stationary noise source criteria
These feafines may includq but are not limited tq locating generators within equip'ment
rooms or enclosures that incorporate noise-reduction features, such as acoustical
louvers, and exhaust and intake silencers. F4uipnent enclosures shall be oriented so
that major ope,nings (i.e., intake louven, exhaust) are directed away frorn nearby noise-
sensitive receptors.

Design Revienr.4ppwal
Prior to issuance of a building pennit for any residential units within the suMivision,
the owner/applicant shall obtain Design Reviewapproval from the Plaming
Commission for all residences to be built within the zuMivision. If the architectur€ is
not consistent with the Broadstone Estates Desrgn Guidelines, the owner applicat may
modi$ the plms or apply for a modification to the Design Guidelines to be approved
bv the Plannins Commission.

3A.II.5

133

134.

13s.

136.

Page 620

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(BXP)

cD (B)

B

B

Diver, Sewonal Wder Flaws Away from Buileg Founddions.

The oumer/applicant shall either install subdrains (which typically consist of perforated
pipe and gravel surrounded b5r nonwoven geotextile fabric), or take such o,ther actions
as recommended by the geotechnical or civil engineer for the project thaf would serve
to divert seasonal flows caused by surface infiltation, water seepage, and perched
water drrrino the srinfer months 9Ww fron L"il,li-- f^,,-l ^{.: ^--
FCUSD Fes
The owner/applicant agrees to pay to the Folsom Corrdova Unified School Disfiict the
marcimrm fee arlhorized by law forthe conshuction and/or reconstruction of school
facilities. The applicable fee shall be the fee established by the School Distict that is in
effect at the time of the issuance of a building pemrif Specifically, the owner/applicant
agees to payany md all fees and charges andcomply with any and all dedications or
other requirements authorized under Section 17620 of the Education Code; Ctnpter 4.7
(commencing with Section 65970 of the Governnent Code; and sections 65995,
65995-5. and 65995.7 ofthe Government Code.

3A-7-5137.

138.

Page 621

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



TRAtr:FIC, ACCESS, CIRCULATION, AIII) pARrilNC REQUTREMENTS
It should be noted that many of the Transportation, Traffic, and Circulation mitigation measur€s id€Nrtifid below will be satisfied through the payment of fees.
Below is a brief summary of the fee types and their pupose. The acronyms for each fee type noted below are further noted in the fmpbmentatioo Schedule
solrrmn of each applicable mfigation measure to clarifr how each mitigation measure is anticipaed to be sdisfied.

hrblic Facilities Financing Plan @FFP):
In January of 2014, the City of Folsom adopted the PFFP for the Folsom Plan Area which detailed all fte infrastructure components to address full build out oftre
Plan Area. The PFFP includes various techniques including development fees to fund the nsc€ssary infizstructure. The City is currently in the process of pre,paring
and adopting implementing ordinances and a nexus study required by State law to impose the associated development fees.

Included in the PFFP are a number roadway projects including the Highway Interchanges that the White Rock Springs Ranch project will have cumulative
impaots on within the Folsom Plan Arca. The PFFP was designed to satis$ the "fair share" financing of all the Plan Area's backbone roadway systerr.
Participating in this fee program will satis$ numerous roadway mitigation measures as shown indre MMRP table.

Sacramento County Transportation Developme,nt Fee (SCTDF) contribution:
The City is establishing a'Tair shar€" fee to mitigate roadway impacts outside the project boundaries and within unincorporated Sacramento County. This fee will
be included in the City Facilities portion of the Public Facilities Financing Plan program and will be collected at the time of building permit issuance. The basis
forthe calculation of the fee is a report entitled, *Fair Share Cost Allocation Sacramento County & Crty of Folsom" dated January 2,2014.

Cd TranJ City Memorandum of Understanding (Cal Trans MOLD:
The City of Folsom and Cal Trans entered into an MOU on December 17 , 2Ol4 to establish a fee mechanism to address the 'Tair shar€" impacts to Highway 50.
The MOU identifies all the highway improvements for which there are mitigation measures and potential construction projects to address them. The City will
establish a fee in the City Facilities portion of the Public Facilities Financing Plan and it will be collected at the time of building permit issuance.

cD (E), PWBEast BihtelUlron Point
Prior to issuance of a building permit, the owner/applicant shall pay a fair share fee to
lhe City of Folsom towards the modification to the westbound approach to the East
Bidwell Stneetlhon Point Road intersection to include three left-trrn lanes, two tfuough
lanes, and one right-turn lane.

3A l5-4bdt39

Page 622

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(E),PW

cD (E), PW

cD(E),PW

B
(pay PFFP fee)

B
(Cattrans
MOID

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

Enryire Raneh Road/Iron Point Road Interceaion
To ensure that tlrc Empire Ranch Road / Iron Point Road intersection operates at a LOS
D or better, all of the following improve.ments are required:
. The eastbound approach strall be reconfigured to consist ofone left-tum lane,

two through lanes, and a right-turn lane.
. The westbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes,

one through lane, and athrough-right lane.
. The northbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-turn lanes,

three through lanes, and a right-tum lane.
. The southbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes,

three through lanes, and a right-turn lane.

The ov,'ner/aoolicant shall oav its oroportionate share of fimdine of imnrovements.
US 50 ftom Sanrise Boulqud to Eost BidweU Street&cofr Rood
Participafe in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound
U.S. 50 between Sumise Boulevard to East Bidwell StreeUsoott Road (Freeway
Segment 4). To ensure that Eastbormd U.S- 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between
Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road an auxiliary lane shall be constructed. This
improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S.
50 Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is included inthe proposed 50 Corridor
Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding
of improvements, as may be deternined by a nexus study or other appropriate and
reliable mechanism paid forby the owner/applican! to reduce the impacts to Eastbound
U.S. 50 between Sunrise Boulevard to East Bidwell Street/Scott Road (Freeway
Sement4).
Westbound U.S. 50 baween Plairic City Road and Folsom Boulqud
To ensure that Westbound U-S. 50 operates atata@able I,oS between Prairie City
Road and Folsom Boulevand, an auxiliary lane shall be constructed. This improvetnent
ryasi reconme,nded in the Traffic Operations Analysis R€port for the U.S. 50 Atxiliary
Lane Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee

Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its propontionde share of funding of
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus strrdy or other appropriate and reliable
mechanism paid for by the owner/applican! to reduce the impacts to Westbound U.S.
50 between Prairie Citv Raad and Folsom Boulevard.

3A 15-4f

3A 15-1s

3A l5-lu

140.

14 I

t42.

Page 623

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(Caltrms
MOU)

B
(Caltans
MOtr)

B
(PFFP)

B
(Caltrans
MOrD

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

U.S. 50 Eastbowtilhairie City Road Diverge
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City
Road off-ramp divergg an auxiliary lane from the Folsom Boulevard merge shall be
constructed. This improvement was recommended in the TraffFrc Operations Analysis
Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project This aruriliary lane improvement is
included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant shall
pay its proportionale share of fimding of improveinents to reduce the impacts to the
U.S. 50 Eastbound/?rairie Citv Road divetge-
U.S. 50 Eastbomd/Pruirie Cily Road Direa Metge
To ensure that Eastbor:nd U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City
Road on-ramp direct merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road
diverge shall be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement included in the proposed
50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate
share of funding of improvements to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50
Eastbound/hairie City Road direct merge.
a.S. 50 Eastbound/hairie CiA Rood nyovu On-Rutp to OahAvenuc Pa*way Olf-
Ranp Wewe
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City
Road flyover on-ramp to Oak Avenue Parkrray off-ramp weave, an improvement
acceptable to Caltrans shall be implementedto eliminaie the unacceptable weaving
conditions. Such an improvement may involve a'braided ramp"- The owner/applicant
shall pay its proportionate share of frrnding of improvements to reduce the impacts to
the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway
oflramp weave.
a.S. 50 Eastfuund/Ook Avenae Pmkwry Loop Merye
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Oak Avenue
Parkway loop mergg an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road diverge
shall be constructed. This arxiliary lane improve,ment is included in the proposed 50
Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of firnding of improvements to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/ Oak
Avenue Parkway loo.D merge (FreewayMerse 9).
U.S. 50 Watbonttd/Entpire Ranch noad Lnp nanry Merge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates d an acceptable LOS, the northbormd
Empire Ranch Road loop on-ramp should startthe westbound auxiliary lane that ends at
the East Bidwell Str,eet- Scott Road offramp. The slip on-ramp from sourthbormd
Empire Ranch Road would merge into this CIrtended auiliary lane. Improve,lnents to
this freeway scgm€nt shall be implementedbyCaltras- The owner/applicant shall pay
its proportionate share of funding of improve,nre,nts to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50
Westbound/Empire Ranch Road loop ramp merge-

3A l5-1x

3A 15-ly

3Al1-Lz

3Al5-laa

3A l5-1dd

t43.

TM.

145.

r46

147.

Page 624

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(Catuans
MOID

B
(Caltrans
MOLD

B
(Caltrans
MOID

B
(payPFFPi
Interchange

fee)

US 50 Westbowd/Oah Avenue Prhway Loop RanE Mqge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Oak
Avenue Parkway loop on-ramp should startthe westbound auxiliary lane that ends at
the Prairie City Road off-ramp. The slip on-nunp from southbound Oak Avenue
Parkway would merge i66 this e:rtended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway
segment shall be impleme,nted by Caltrans. The owner/applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50
Westbound/Oak Avenue Parlovay loop rarnp merge.
IJS. 50 WestboundlPrahie City Rmd Loop Ranry Merye
To ensure that WestboundU.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City
Road loop r:rmp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Folsom Boulevard offramp diverge
shall be constucted. This arxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50
Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of frmding of improvements to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Prairie
Citv Road Loop Ramp Meree.
I/S. 50 Wstbound/Prabie City Road Dbect Ranp Merye
To ensure that Westbormd U.S. 50 op€rates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City
Road direct ramp merge, an auriliary lane to the Folsom Boulevard offramp diverge
shall be constructed. This auxiliary lane improverrent is included in the proposed 50
Conidor Mobility Fee Program- The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improve,ments, to reduce the impacts to the U.S- 50 WestboundlPrairie
City Road direct ramp merge-

Eastbotnd US 50 baween Prohie Crty Road and Oa*Avenue Pa*way
To ensure that Eastbormd US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Prairie City
Road and Oak Avenue Par*nay, the northbound Prairie City Road slip on-ramp should
merge with the eastbound auxiliary lane that extends to and drops atthe Oak Avenue
Parkway offramp and the souftbound Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp should be
braided over the Oak Avenue Parlcway offramp and start an ortended full auxiliary
lane to the East Bidwell Stneet - Scot Road offramp- Improvements to this freeway
segment shall be imple,mented by Caltrans. The owner/arpplicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus
shrdy or other appropriate and reliable mechanisrn paid for by ovmer/applicant, to
reduce the impacts to Eastbound U-S. 50 between Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue
Parkway.

3.4' 15-lee

3A 15-1ff

3A-15-1gg

3Ar5-4t

148.

149.

150.

151.

Page 625

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD(E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(pay PFFP fee)

B
(pay PFFP fee)

B
(payPFFP fee)

U.S. 50 Eostbmd / Pmirie City Road Slip Rarry Mtge
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the norttrbound hairie
City Road slip on-ramp should start the eastbound auxiliary lane that extends to and
drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway offramp (see mitigation measure 3A.15-4u, w and
x), and the southbound Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp should be braided overthe
Oak Avenue Parlaray offramp and start an e:Sended full auxiliary lane to the East
Bidwell Stre€t - Scofi Road offranp. Improvements to this freeway segment shall be
implemented by Caltrans. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be detennined by a nexus study or other appropriate
and reliable mechanism paid for by owner/applicant to reduce the impacts to the U.S-
50 Eastbound / Prairie CiA Road slip ramp merse.
U.S. S0 Eastboand/Ptoirie City Road Flywer On-rotp to OahAvenue Pulcway Of
Ranp Weave
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie
City Road slip on-ramp should start the eastbound auxiliary lane that extends to and
drops at the Oak Ave,nue Parlaray offramp (see mitigation measure 3A.154u, v and x),
and the southbound Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp should be braided overthe Oak
Avenue Parkway offramp and start an efiended full auxiliary lane to the East Bidrnrell
Street - Scott Road offramp. Improvements to this fr,eeway segment shall be
implernented by Caltrans. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nonrs study or other appropriafe
and reliable mechanism paid for by the owner/applicant to reduce the impacts to the
U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road Flyover On-ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway Off
Ramn Weave.
U.S. 50 Eastbomd / Oah Avenue Pukwry Loop Rup Merye
To ensure that Easbound US 50 op€rates at an acceptable LOS, the southbound Oak
Avenue Parkway loop on-ramp should merge with the eas$oun<t auxiliary lmethat
starts at the sordhbound Prairie City Road braided flyover on-ftrmp and ends atthe East
Bidwell Street - Scot Road offramp (see mitigation measure 3A.15-4q v and w).
knprovements to this freeway segment shall be implemented by Calhans. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of ftnding of improvecrents, as may
be determined b5r a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by
the owner/applicad, to reduce the impacts to U.S. 50 Eastbound / Oak Avenue Parkway
Loop RampMerge.

3.4. l54u

34' 15-4v

3A 154w

152.

153.

154.

Page 626

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD(E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(payPFFP fee)

B
(pay PFFP fee)

B
(pay PFFP fee

and Transit fee)

B
(pay PFFP fee)

IJS. 50 Vntboand/ Enryire Rmtch Road Loop Runp Merge
To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates d an acceptable LOS, the norfibormd
Empire Ranch Road loop on-ramp should startthe westbound auxiliary lane thd ends at
the East Bidwell Street - Scot Road offramp. The slip on-ramp from sordftbound
Empire Ranch Road slip ramp would merge into this extended arnriliary lane.
Improvements to this fieeway segmeNrt shall be implemented by Caltrans. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improveme,lrts, as may
be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanisn paid for by
owner/applican! to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound / Empire Ranch Road
loop ramp merge-
A.S. 50 Wwtboand/ Prutuic Cig Road Loop Roryt Merge.
To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie
City Road loop on-ramp should startthe westbormd auxiliary lane that continues
beyond the Folsom Boulevard offramp. The slip on-ramp from soulhbound Prairie City
Road slip ramp would merge into this odended auxiliary lane. Imprwements to this
freeway segme,nt shall be implemented by Caltrms. The owner/applicant shall pay its
proportionte share of funding of improvements, as may be detennined by anexus
shrdy or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by owner/ap'plicm! to
reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound / Prairie Citv Road Looo Ramp Meree.
Provifu Options for Ahernativ e Tranqtoflaion Modes.
The owner/applicant for any particular discretionary development applicafion shall
participale in capital and operating funds for transit service to increase
the percent oftravel by transit. The project's fair-share participation and the associated
timing ofthe improvements and service shall be identified in the project conditions of
approval and/or the project's developme,nt agreenent. Improvements and service shall
be coordinded, as neoessary, with Folsom Sase Lines and Sasrarnento RT.
Folsom Boulevmd/Blue Rwine Rood Irtenedbn
To ensure thatthe Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine Road
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound approach shall
be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes, one through liane, and
one right-tum lane. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionale share of
funding of improve,ments, as may be detemined by a nexus shrdy or other
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by owner/applicant to reduce the
imDacts to the Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine Road intersection

3A 15-4x

3A l5-4y

3A15-22

3A l5-la

15s.

155.

157.

Page 627

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E),PW

cD (E), PW

B
(pay PFFP fee)

B
(pay SCTDF)

Sibley Street/ Bhe Ravfuc Road Interceaion
To ensure that the Sibley Steet/Blue Ravine Road
intersection op€rates *an*neptable LOS, the northbound approach
shall be reconfigrrredto consist oftwo left-turn laneg two through lanes,
and one right-tum lane- The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of imprwe,nents, as may be det€rmined by a nexus study or
other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by the owner/applican! to
reduce the impacts to the Sibley Stneet/Blue Ravine Road intersection
Grant Line Road/WhiE Rrch Road Intercection and to White
Rock Roadwifuning bdngeenthe Rancho CordovaCity limit to Prairie
Ctty Road
Improvernents shall be made to ensure that the Grant Line RoadAilhite Rock Road
intersection operates d an acceptable LOS. The currently County proposed White
Rock Road widening projectwill widen and realign White Rock Road
from the Rancho Cordova City limit to the El Dorado Cormty line (this
analysis assumes that the Proposed Project and build alternatives will
widen White Rock Road to five lanes from Prairie City Road to ttre El
Dorado County Line). This widening includes improvements to the Grant
Line Road intersection and realigning White Rock Road to be the through
movement. The imp,rove,ments include two eastbound through lanes, one
eastbound righttum lane, two northbound left turn lanes, two northbound
right turn laneg two westbormd left tum lanes and two westbound
through lanes. This improvement also includes the signalization of the
White Rock Road and Grantline Road intersection. With
implementation ofthis improvemen! the intersection would operate at an
acceptable I-oS A. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improve,ments to the agency responsible for improvements,
based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to
the Grant Line Road/IVhite Rock Road intersection

3A 15-1b

3A.15-1i

159.

160.

Page 628

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(Caltrans

MOUO SCTDF

B
(Cattans
MOU)

Eastbomd US. 50 as an alternative to htprovenunE at rhe Folsom
Boulqod/U.S. 50 Eostboand Ranps Intenedbn
The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionaie share of funding of improve,ments to the
agenoy responsible for improvements, based on a progam established
by that age,ncy to reduce the impacts to the Folsom Boulevard[I.S. 50
Eastbourd Ramps intersection (Caltrans Intersection 4).
To ensurethdthe Folsom BoulevardAJ.S. 50 eastbound ramps
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, auxiliary lanes should be
addedto eastbomd U.S. 50 from Hazel Avenueto east of Folsom
Boulevard- This was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis
Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliarv Lane Proiect.
Grutl Lhe Road/ Stde Roue 16Intersection
To ensure that the Grant Line Road/State Route 16
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound and
southbound ap'proaches shall be reconfigured to consist of one left-Orn lane and one
shared ftrougb/right-turn lane. Protected left-turn signal
phasing shall be provided on the northbound and southbound approaches.
Improvernents to the Grant Line Road/State Route 16 intenection are
eontained wiftin the County Development Fee Program, and are
scheduled for Measure A funding. Improvements to this intersection shall be
imple,mented by Caltans, Sacramento Cormty, andthe City of Rancho Cordova.
The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improveme,nts to the agency responsible for improve,ments, based on a
program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Grant
Line Road/State Route 16 intersection.
Eastbomd U.S 50 baween Zinfondcl Drive urd Sunrise Bouleyud
To ensrre rhaf Eastbormd U-S. 50 operates at an

acceetable LOS betrveen Zinfandel Drive and Srmrise Boulevar4 a buVcarpool
(HOV) lane shall be constructed- This improvement is currently
planned as part of fte Sacramento 50 Bus-Carpool Lane and

Commrmity Enhancements hoject The omer/applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of firnding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a program established by thd
age,ncy to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Zintandel
Drive and Sunrise Boulevard

3A.15-1o

3A.15-lp

3A.15-lq

l6l

162.

163.

Page 629

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(Caltrans
Mo(D

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

Eastbowrd A.S. 50 baween Eazel Avenue utd Folsom Boulsard
To e,lrsure tfiat Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an
acccgtalte LOS between Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard, an
auxiliary lane shall be constucted. This improvementwas recomme,nded
in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U-S. 50 Auxiliary I-ane
Projecr This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee
Program- The owner/applicant shall pay its share of funding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program
established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 betrreen Hazel
Ave,nue and Folsom Boulevard
Vebud U.S. 50 between HazelAvenue utdSunrise Boulevad
To ensrre that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an
acce$able LOS between tlazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard, an
auxiliary lane shall be constructed. This improvementwas recomme,nded
in the Trafrc Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane
Projot, and included in the proposed Rancho Cordova Parkway interchange project.
Improve,ments to this freeway segment shall be implernented by Caltrms.
The onmer/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements to the agency reqponsible for improvements, based on a
prognam established by that agency to reducethe impacts to Westbormd
U.S. 50 between flazel Avenue and Sumise Boulevard
I/S. 50 Ewthwtd/Folsom Boalevud Rutp Merye
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable
LOS af the Folsom Boulevard merge, an auxiliary lane from the Folsom
Boulevard m€rge to the Prairie City Road diverge shall be oonstructed.
This improvementwas recornmended inthe Traffic Operations Analysis
Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is
included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee hogram. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improv€meNrts to
the age,ncy rcsponsible for improvements, basedon a program
established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50
EastboundlFolsom Boulevard Rarnp Merse

3A.15-lr

3A.15-1v

3A.15-lw

164.

l6s.

166.

Page 630

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(Caltrans
MOrD

B

B
(Calrans

MOU, PFFP
fee, SCTDF)

|JS. 50 EastbuadlFolsom Boulqud
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at
the Folsom Boulevard Diverge, an auxiliary lane from the Prairie City
Road loop ramp merge shall be constnrcted. Improve,ments to this
freeway segmqrt shall be impleme,nted by Cattans. This auxiliary lane
improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee

Program. The owher/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements, as may be determined by anexus shrdy or other
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by the owner/applican! to reduce the
imDacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Folsom Boulevard diverge
[/S. 50 Wstbound/HazelAvmuc Dired Rottp M*ge
To ensure trat Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable
LOS at the flazel Avenue direct ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the

Sunrise Boulevard offramp diverge shall be constructed. This auxiliary
lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee

Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of frmding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a
program established by that agenry to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50

Westboundlllazel Avenue direct ramp m€rqe.

Participatc in the Cily's Trunsportution System Management Fee Program
The owner/applicant for any particular discretionary

developrnent application shall pay an appropriate amount into the Crty's
existing Transportation System lvlanagement Fee Program to reduce the

number of singleoccupant automobile tavel on area roadways and
intersections.

Pay FuII C-ost of Identifrcd InprovenrcnE that Arc Not Funded by the Cillt's Fee
kogem
In accordance with Measure W the owner/applicant for any particular discretionary
development application shall provide fair-share contributions to the City's
transportation impact fee program to fully fund improvements only required because of
the Specific Plan.

3A.15-lhh

3A.15-lii

3A.ts-2b

34.15-3

t67.

168

169.

na.

Page 631

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E), PW

cD(E),PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

PW

B
Pay PFFP fee

B
Pay PFFP fee

B
Pay SCTDF

B
PayPFFP fee

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay SCTDF

Siblq Street/Blae Raine Road Intcrseaion
To ensure that the Sibley Stneet/Blue Ravine Road intersection operates at a LOS D
with less than the CumulativeNo hoject delay, the northbound approach shall be
reconfigured to consist oftwo left-turn lanes, two through lanes, and one dedicated
right-tum lane. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvernents, s ilay be determined by anexus study or other appropriate and reliable
mechanism paid for by owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Sibley Street/Blue
Ravine Road intersection
East B i6$ell Siea/College Sfied
To ensure that the East Bidwell StreeUCollege Street intersection operates at acceptable
LOS C or better, the westbound ap'proach shall be reconfigured to consist of one left-
turn lane, one left / through lane, and fwo dedicated right-turn lanes. The
onmer/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may
be detemrined by u nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanisrr paid for by
owner/applicant to reduce tre impacts to the East Bidwell SheeUCollege Street
intersection
Oah Avenue Parkwuy/Aldu Creeh Pa*way
To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/Alder Creek Parkrray intersection operates af
an acceptable LOS the southbound approach shall be reconfigrredto consist oftrro
left-turn lanes, two through lanes, and trro right-turn lanes.

Ook Avenue Pmhway/IlQi&e Rood Intersection
To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/Ivliddle Road intersection (as shown in the
FPA) ooerates at an asceotable LOS. contol all movements with a stoo sien.
Harcl Avenue between Mdison Avenue and Cwragh Dowtts Ihive

To ensure thatHaznl Ave,nue operates at an acceptable LOS between Curragh Downs
Drive and Gold Country Boulevar4 flazel Avenue must be widened to six lanes. This
improvement is part ofthe Cornrty adopted Hazel Ave,nue widenine proiect.
White Roc k Rood/WinSreld Woy Intercection

To ensure that the White RockRoad/Windfield Way intersection operates at an
acceptable LOS, the intemection must be signalized and separate northbound left and
rightturn lanes must be striped- The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvementsto the agenry responsible for improvements, based on a
progam established by ltat age,ncy to reduce the impacts to the White Rock
Road/Windfield Way itrersection.

3A.l54a

3A.15-4c

3A,.15-4g

3A.15-1f

3A.15-lj

3A.15-ll:

t7t.

172.

t73.

174.

175.

176.

Page 632

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



PW

Sacramento County
City of Rancho

Cordova

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay SCTDF

Grant Line Road/Vhite Roc* Road Inteneaion

To ensure that the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road intersection operates at an
acceptabl€ LOS E orbefierthis intersection should be replaced by some type of grade
separated intersection or interchange.

hnproveme,nt5 1e +his intersection are identified in the Sacranento Count5l's Proposed
General plsn. Imfl€Nn€Nfation of these would assist in reducing traffic
impacts onthis intersectionbyproviding acceptable operation. Intersection
improvements mustbe implerrented by Sacramento Cormty. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of fimding of improverrents to the agency responsible for
improverrents, based on a program established by that ag€ncy to reduce the impacts to
the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road intersection.
Grunt Line Road MveenVhite Rock Road ud KI$er Boulnail

To improve operationon Grantline Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer
Boulevard, this roadway segment must be widened to six lanes. This improvemelrt is
proposed in the Sacramedo County and the City of Rancho Cordova General Plms;
however, it is not in the 2035 MTP. Improvemenb to ttis roadway segment must be
implemented by Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of fimding of improvements to the
agency responsible for improverrents, based on a prognrm established by that ag€Nrcy to
reduce the impacts to Grantline Road betrreen WhiteRockRoad and Kiefer
Boulevard.

The identified improvement would more than offset the impacts specifically related to
the Folsom South of U.S. 50 proiect onthis roadway segmeNrt.

3A.15-4i

3A.15-4j

177.

lt8.

Page 633

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Sacrarne,rto County
City of Rancho

Cordova

Sacranento County
City of Rancho

Cordova

Sacramento County

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay SCTDF

Gtutt Line Road between Ki{a Boulevudand lackon Highway

To improve operation on Grant Line Road bennreen Kiefer Boulevrd Jackson
Highway, this roadway segment could be widened to six lanes. This improvement is
proposed in the Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova General Plans;
however, it is not in the 2035 MTP. Improvements to this roadway segment must be
implemented by Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the
agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to
reduce tre impacts to Grant Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard and Jackson
Highway.

The identified improvementwould morethanoffsetthe impacts specifically related to
the Folsom South of U.S. 50 proiect onthis roadway sepnnent.

EazplAvenue between Curragh Downs Drive and U.S. 50 Westbound Ranps

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of frrnding of improvements to the
ag€Nrcy responsible for improvements on flazel Avenue, based on a program established
by that agency to reduce the impacts to llazel Avenue between Curragh Downs Drive
and U.S. 50 Westbound Ramps.
White Roc* Road bdween Gront Line Road and Prairie City Rood

To improve operation on White Rock Road between Grantline Road and Prairie City
Roa{ this roadway segment shall be widened to six lanes. This improve,ment is
included in the 2035 MTP but is not included in the Sacramento County General Plan.
Improvements to this roadway segme,nt must be implemented by Sacrame,nto County.

The identified improvement would more than offset the impacts specifically related to
the Folsom South of U.S. 50 project onthis roadway segment. However, because of
other development in the region rhar would substantially increase traffic levels, this
roadway segment would continue to operde at an unacceptable LOS F even with the
capacity improvements identified to mitigate Folsom Plan Area impacts-

The applicant shall pay its proportionde share of firnding of improveme,nts to the
ageNrcy responsible for improvem€ntC based on a program established by that agency to
reduc.e the impacts to White Rock Road between Grantline Road and Prairie City
Road.

3A.15-4k

3A.15-41

3A.15-4m

r79

180.

l8l

Page 634

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Sacramento County

cD(E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay SCIDF

White Rock Road bdween Enrybe nonch Road utd Carson CYossing Road

To improve operation on White RockRoad between Empire Ranch Road and Carson
Crossing Road, this roadway segment shall be widened to six lanes. Improvements to
this roadway segment shall be implemented by Sacramento County.

The applicant shall pay its proportionde share of funding of improvements to the
agency responsible for improve,ments, bas€d on a progftlm established by that agency to
reduce the impacts to White Rock Road betrreen Empire Ranch Road and Carson

Crossine Road.
White Roch Road/Cos on Cwssiag noad Inten ection

To ensure that the White Rock Road/Camon Crossing Road intersection operates at an

acccptable LOS, the eastbound righttnn lane shall be converted into a separate free

right turn lane, or double right Improve, ents to this intersection must be implemented

by El Dorado County. The applicaot shall pay its proportionate share of fimding of
improvements tothe agency responsible for improvements, based on aPrognrm
established by that agencyto reduce the impacts to the White Rock Road/Carson

Croasins Road Intersection
Hazel AvenudlL S. 5 0 Westbo rotd Rnps Intersection

To ensure that the Hazel Avenuey'U.S- 50 westbound ramps intersection operates at an

acceptable LOS, the westbound approach shall be reconfiguredto consist of one

dedicated left tum lane, one shared left- through lane and three dedicated right-tum
lanes. Improvements to this intersection shall be implemented by Caltrans and

Sacrame, rto County. The applicant shall pary its proportionane strare of funding of
improve,nents to the agenry responsible for improvements, based on a program

established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Hazel Avenue/U.S. 50

Weslbormd Ramps Intersection

3,A'.15-4n

3A.15-4o

3A.15-4p

182-

It3.

rE4.

Page 635

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay SCTDF

Eastbound US 50 bdween Zinfnful Drive and Srmdse Boulqod

To ensure that Eastbomd US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Zinfandel
Drive and Sumise Boulward, an additional eastbound lane could be constructed. This
improvement is not oonsistentwiththe Concept Facility in Cdtans State Route 50
Corridor System Manage,me,ntPlan; therefore, it is not likelyto be implernented by
Caltrans by 2030.

Constmction of the Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock
Road and Grant Line Roadto six lanes with limited acc€ss, could divert some taffic
from U.S. 50 and partially mrtigare the project's impact. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on aprogram established by that agency toreduce the impacts to
Eastbound U.S. 50 bertween Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard.
Eastbotod VS 50 baween Rmcho Cordova Parkway and HuelAeenue

To ensure that Ea*bound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Rancho
CordovaParkway and Hazel Avenug an additional eastbormd lane couldbe
constructed. This improvement is not consistent with the Concept Facility in Calfrans
State Route 50 Conidor System Manage,ment Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be
imple,mented by Caltans W2O3O-

Construction of the Capitol Sortr East C,onnector, including widening White Rock
Road and Grant Line Road to six lanes with limited access, could divert some traffic off
of U.S. 50 and partially nitigde the project's impact. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improve,rnents to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a pnogntm established by that agency to reduce the impacts to
Eastbormd U.S. 50 between Rancho Cordova Parkwav and llazel Avenue.

3A.154q

3A.l54r

lt5.

186.

Page 636

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



cD (E), PW

cD(B)(P)

cD (P)(E)

B
Pay SCTDF

B

B

Eastbound AS 50 between Folsom Boulsvard and Prsirie Ci y Road

To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable I,OS bstween Folsom
Boulevard and Prairie City Roa4 the eastbound auxiliary lane should be convertedto a
mixed flou'lane that extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway offramp (see
mitigation measure 3A.154t). Improvements to this freoray segme,lrt must be
implemented by Caltans. This improvement is not consistent with the Concept Facility
in Caltrans State Rout€ 50 Conidor System Management Plq therefore, it is not likely
1s be implemented by Caltrans by 2030.

Constuction of the Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock
Road and Grant Line Road to six lanes with limited access, could divert some taffrc off
of U.S- 50 and partially mitigde the project's impact-

The applicant shall pay ie proportionate share of funding of improvernents, as may be
determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by
applicant, to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 befween Folsom Boulevard and
Prairie CityRoad
Mechanical Ventildion
Prior to the issuance of Building Permits, the owner/applicant shall show on the plans
that mechanical ventilation shall be installed in all residential uses to allow residents to
keep doors and windows close4 as desird for acoustical isoltion. The building plans
shall be subject to review and approval by the City Community Development
Deparhent.

Lottdscaping PIan
Owner/applicant shall submit a landscape plan for all areas (by phase or suMivision) of
the project where owner/apptcant proposes to install landscaping on residential lots.
The landscape plan shall take into account the then existing state or local rules and
regulations related to landscape water usage and walerwise landscape principles. The
landscape plans shall be submited and approved bythe C,ommunity Development
Director prior to the issuance of a building pennit in the phase or subdivision.

Owner/apptcant shall comply with any state or local rules md regulations relating to
landscape wat€r usage md landscaping requirements necessitated to mitigate for
drought conditions

3A'.15-4s187.

IEE.

189.

Page 637

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



CONDITIONS
See attachedtables of conditions forwhich the

Prior to approval of Improvement Plans
Priorto approval of Final Map
Prior to issuance of first Buildins Permit
Prior to aooroval of Occuoancv P€rmit
Priorto issuance of Gradine Permit
Durins construction
On-soins reouirement

WEENRDQTTIREI'

I
M
B
o
G
DC
OG

Police Departrnent

Community Development Deparhent
Planning Division
Engineering Division
Building Division
Fire Division
Public Works Deorhent
Park and Recredion Deoartnent

RESPONSIBI,D DDPARTIIIENT

CD
(P)
(E)
(B)
(F)

PW
PR
PD

Page 638

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Attachmexfi 4

Broadstone Estates Subdivision Master Plan Exhibit,
Dated March 9,2017

Page 639

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



t
,

f

2

os

os

Lol F

6
Lot E

'|
os

Lot L

$rGltwAY 50 H

Lot K
ostullrd,A6Rdd

Lot B
Cdrljq

.5
3
t

c

i
t

Loi A
Ccniclot

tot D totl606 $' oo*
Lot c

CoritaLondscope

+
ffi

ILLUSTRATTVE N{ASTER PLA}I DGIIBIT

BROADSTONE ESTATES+
Scale: I': lfiI Folsn+ Califomia Mg:fi.g,ml1

mtfliu&s0ms
Stdlofl

TAND USEST'iil'ARY

leu.*

ffi

Page 640

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Attachment 5

Smarl-L* ufff;f; 
ffiff;: ffllivision 

Map

Page 641

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



rs lnclslY I
ViLec I

t
Tt

07:-l!anlo
oqffiimtB u

(
I

\
llsa*t^q

@m€'tafrrtrg

,
i

dt-tls€i
ffitrE a3e u

f*-*r* TENTATIVE MAP INFORMATION

,A -re-*t .iLA!---ggg!$g-- /6LgEggslcn-
\_/ rE.F5 \:/ 5*-E-v

BENCHI{ARK

NOTES

#_R
L&41_l
;f,|-rffi-Aso''w ..,\--rc!gggi!g-t7 d*

eedst*hs) +
.4. tlrlr!ffirv t7 d*rb,ia

!.-"'.l...U

SMALL LOT
VESTING TENTATTVE SI'BDTVISION MAP

E=: BROADSTONE ESTATES
FM,M

/o

-l

a

t

\

+

VICINITY MAP

Sald 1"= 16

milff&smPt
&ero, Drs

Page 642

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Affachment 6

Letter from Applicarrt, dated August 3I,2021

Page 643

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



340 Palladlo Parkway, Suite 521
Folsom, Oalilomia 956{,0-8775
prq 984-1300 FAX (el6) e84-1S22

ttta Celetrrating lO0 years 2or4

August 31,2021

Ms. Pam Johns
Community Development Director
ctw oF FoLsoM
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, Califomla 95630
Bislug@!gl.$0ltcas Via USPS and Email

Three-Year Extansion Request for Broadstone Estates
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

Dear Ms. Johns:

Elliott HomeE, lnc., hereby formally requests a three-year extension of tlme for the Broadstone
Estates Vestlng Tentatlve Map. The cunent map is dxpec,ted to expire on Aprll 11, 2022. We
are actively deslgning the lmprovements, wlth the plan to begln gradlng the'overalleite in in the
Summer o12022, An extansion will allow Elliott Homes to cornpEte the lmprovemonts, ile into
existlng servl@s, and flle the Flnal Map ln a timely mann6r,

Thank you for your consideration of this request. Elliott Homes looks forward to your response
and to scheduling the matter before the appropriate hearing bodies.

Yours truly,

oTT HOMES, tNC.

VICE PRESIDENT, PROJECT DEVELOPMENT

PW:tmg

ElliottHomes

Mr. Steven Wang, City Attorney, gwanrr@.&lsonr,ca,us.
Mr, Steven Krahn, City Engineer, stgehn@folgca.Ug
Mr. Chad Roberts, Attorney, Hefnef, Stark & Maroii, t_[p, crobeflq(0)hgnrl?w.com

Re:

cc:

Page 644

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



AttachmentT

Planning Commission Staff Report
Dated November 3 ,202I

Page 645

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



AGENDA ITEilI NO. 3
Typc: Publlc Hcrrlng

Dric: Novcmbor 912021
c ttt

]F0)JLS()NN

Prclect:

Flle #:

Requelt:

Locaton:

Plannlng Commisslon Staff Report
50 Natoma Strest, CouncilChambers

Folsom, CA 95630

B roadstone Esbtes Subdlvision Sm al l-Lot Vestin g Tentative
Subdivision Map Extension

PN-21-234

Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map Extension

Southeast Corner of the intersection of U.S. Highway 50 and
Placerville Road within Folsom Plan Area

StafrGonhct: Steve Banks, Principal Planner, 916461-6207
sbanks@folsom.ca.us

Prcperly OrnerlAppl lcr nt
Name: Elliott Homes, lnc.
Addresg: 340 Palladio Parkway, Suite 521
Folsom, CA 95630

Recommendrtion: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion recommend approval
of a three-year extEnsion in time furthe Broadstone EstateE Subdivision Small-LotVesting
Tentative Subdivision Map as illustrated on Aftachment 6 for the Broadstone Estates
Subdivision project (PN 21-2U) subject to the findings (Findings A-O) and conditions of
approval (Conditione 1-189) attached to this report.

PrcJect Summrry: The proposed prdect lnvolves a rcqueet br approvalof a three-year
extenslon ln tlme forthe prevlously approved Small-LotVesting Tentative Subdiviaion Map
associat€d wlth the Broadgtone Estates Subdivision project. The Broadstone Eetrates
Subdivision projest includee development of an 81-unit single-family residentlal
subdivision on a37.2-acre site located within the Folsom Plan Area at the southeaet 6!mer
of the intersection of U.S. Highway 50 and Placervllle Road. The Planning Commission
will be making a recommendation to the City Councilregarding the project.

Table of Gonbntr:
I - Background and Setting
2 - Project Description/Analysis
3 - Gondltlons of Approval
4 - Mcinity Map

Clty of Folsom Page 1

Page 646

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



AOENDA ITEiI NO.3
fYpr: Publlc Heerlng

Deb: Novcmbu t,202l
cltt oa

F'(}m-s@Nfl

5 - Broadetone Estrabs Subdivision Masfter Phn Exhibit, dabd March 9,2017
0 - Small-LotVesting Tentative Subdivision Map, dabd March 9,2017
7 - Letterfiom Applicant, dated August g'1,2021

Submitted

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Dircctor

Page 647

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Phnnlng Commlulon
Bmrdctonc Eghter Subdlvlglon Smrll-,Lot Vcrilng Tenhtlw Subdlvlclon Map Extendon (PN 21{34)
Novcmbcr 3, 2ml

ATTAGHilIENT I
BACKGROUND AND SETTING

BACKGROUlID
On June 28,2016,the Gity Councilapprcved a @nenal Plan Amendment, Specific Plan
Amendment, and FiretAmended and Reetated DevelopmentAgreementfordevelopment
of the Broadstone EstateE Subdivigion projec't, The approved General Plan Amendment
and Speciffc Plan Amendment resulted in an increase in the amount of land designated
fursingle-hmily development, and increase in the amount of open space, and elimlnation
of land designated br industrial, ofii€, and commercial uses within the 37.2-acre
Broadsftone Eetates Subdivigion project area.

On April 11,2017, tre City Council approved a Small-Lot Vesting Tentative $ubdivision
Map, Proiect Design Guldelines, and an lnclusionary Housing Plan br the development
of an 81-unit single family rasidential subdlvision (Broadstone Estabs Subdivision) on a
37.2-acp site located in the Folsom Plan Aroa at the southeast comer of Placerville Road
and U.S. Hightmy 50. On August 27,2019, the City Council approved a three-year
extension in time for the previously approved Small-Lot Veetlng Tenbtive Subdivieion
Map aesociated wit{r the Broadotone Estetes Subdivigion project. On August 91,2021,
Elliott Homes submitted a timely letter to the City requestlng a thrae-year e$ension in

time furthe Small-LotVesting Tentative Subdivieion Map associatsd with the Broadstone
Estretes Subd ivis ion proiect.

On August 27,202'1, Elliott Honps submitted an application to the Gity forapproval of a
code amendment b modiil Se4lon 16.18.12001 of the Folsom Municipal-Code to make
it consistent with State law relative to map extensions. State law allows localjurisdlctions
to exbnd guMivision maps up to six years from fie date of approval, while the Folsom
Municipal Code limitrg the exteneion to three years. On September 28, 2021, the City
Council approved Ordlnane No. 1317, an Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending
Sectlon 16.16.120(P) of the Folgom MunidoelCode Pertaining to Extenslon of Tentatlve
Subdlvlsion Maps.

GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATIONS SF (Single Family)
OS (Open Space)

SPECIFIC PLAI{ DESIGI{ATIONS SP-SF PD (Specilic Plan-Single Family,
Planned Development District)

SP-OS2 (Open Space)

AD,ACENT I..AND USES'ZONING North: U.S. Hlghway 50 wlth a Comrnerclal
Development (SP 9&1) Beyond

South: Undeveloped Slngle-Family
ResidentialPropefi (SP-SF PD and
SP-SFHD-PD) and Open Spae

Gfi of Folsom Page 3

Page 648

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Plrnnlng Commlrdm
Brcrdtbm Hbbt SubdMrlon Smll{otVcctng Tanbthro Subdlvlrlon ltiep Exbnrlon (PN 21-234)
Nonmbcr9,2021

SITE CI{ARACTERI8TIC9

APPLIGABLE CODES

(SP-OS2) with AHer Groek Pa*way
Beyond

East Undeveloped Single-Family
Resldential Propetty (SP€F PD and
SP€FHD-PD) and Open Space
(sP-os2)

Wect Placerville Road wlth Undeveloped
Commercial Propeily (SP-GC PD)
Beyond

The proiect gite ie situated nearthe base of
the Siena Nevada boUrills, lmmediably
adjacent to the Sacramento Valley Railroad.
The topography is hilloide covercd in non-
natve and naturalized graselands.
Hisbdcally, the slb has been uced br
grazlng, farmlng, and mlnlng and b curently
vacant.

FPASP (Folsom Plan Arua Speclfrc Plan)
FMC, Sedion 16.16, Tenhtive SuMlvlalon
Maps

City of Folaom Page 4

Page 649

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Plannlng Commlrslon
Bmadstonc Eahts Subdlvlsion Small-LotVcc0ng Tcnhtlvc Subdlvlalon Map Extcnrlon (PN 214${)
November 3, 2021

ATTACHTENT 2
DESCRIPTION'ANALYSIS

APPLICANT'S PROPOSAL
The applicant, Elliott HomeE, lnc,, is requ$ting approvalof a three-year extenslon in time
brthe previously approved Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdlvislon Map assoclated with
the Broadstone Estates Subdivision project. Ae reftrened previously withln this rcport,
the Broadstone Estiatss Subdlvision projest baturee development of an 81-unit single-
famlly regidentialsubdivision on a 37.2-acre site located within the Folsom Plan Area at
the southeagt corner of the lntereection of U.S. Highway 50 and Placerville Road.

POLICY'RULE
The Foleom Municioal Code (FMC) requires that applications br Tentative Subdivision
Maps be forwarded to the Clty Council for final action. City Councll actions regarding
extenslon of Tentatlve Subdivision Maps are cover€d under Sgdlon 16.16.12Q of the
Folsom MunicloalCode.

ANALYSIS
Smell{ot Vc0no Tentrtlve Subdlvlrlon Mro Erlcnrlon
As described in the background sss{on of this r€port, the Clty Councilapproved a Small-
Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, ProJect Design Guidallnes, and lnclusbnary
Housing Plan for development of the 8l-unit Broadstone Estabs Subdivision project on
April 1 1,2017. The City Council granted a three-year extension in time br Broadstone
Estrates Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map on August 27,2019. The Small-
Lot Vegting Tentrative Subdivision Map tur the proJect ig valid until April 11,2021. The lib
of the Projec{ Deaign Guldelines track with the validity of the Small-Lot Vesting Tentatlve
Subdlvislon Map, The lnclusionary Housing Plan ig a requirementof the proJect and does
not require an extension in time,

On Auguet 27,2021, Elliott Homes submitted an application to the City for approval of a
code amendment to modify Sestlon 16.18.12001 of the Folgom Munlcipal Code to make
it consistent with State law relative to map extensions. State law allows localJurisdictione
to extend subdivision maps up to six years fiom the date of approval, while the Folsom
Municipal Code limits the extension to three yeara. On September 28, 2021, the City
Council approved Ordinance No. 1317, an Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending
Sestionj6.10.1200) of the Fobsn MunlcloalCode Pertaining to Extenslon of Tentative
Subdivision Maps to allow for lenbtlve maps to be extended for a perlod not excccding
a toblof six yeara.

On August 31,2021, the proJect appllcant (Elllott Homes, lnc,) submlttcd a tlmely letterto
the Clty requesting a three-year extenslon ln time for the Small-Lot Vestlng Tentative
Subdivision Map aseoclated with the Brcadstone Estates Subdivislon project. The
applicant indicabs in their extension letter that they are actively designing the civil site

Cl$ of Foleom Page 5

Page 650

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Phnnlng Commleslon
Brcadrbne Eobbg Subdivbion Smsll-LotVeeffng Tenbtive Subdlvleion Map Exbnelon (PN 21-2Sa)
November 3, 2021

lmprovementrs with the goal of beginning grading activities in the summel of 2022. The
applicant also staies thatthe erd€nsion in tlme willallowthem to complete other requircd
site improvements and to file the Final Map in a timely manner. The applicant ig not
propoclng any changee to he previously apprwed project.

The Folgom MunlcioalCode (FMC. Sedlon '16.18.120 D. Tims Llmlt Extonelons) states
that he time at which a Tenbtive Subdivision Map expiree may be e)Gnded by the
Planning Commission for a period not exceeding a total of six years. As notod previously
in the baclground section of this staff repod, the City Council previously approved a
three-yearexbnsion forthe Boadstone Estrates Small-LotVesting Tentative Subdivision
Map, thus the applicant is limited to one more three-year extension. As stated in the
submitted extension request letter, the applicant has been actively engaged ln designing
the civil slb improvemenh aesodabd wlth the suMivislon with thE goal of conduding
grading activltles in the summer ol 2022. ln addltion, the appllcant etatee that the
extengion ln tlme will allow them to compleb other required slte lmprovements and to flle
the Flnal Map In a tlmely manner. Ae a rasult, stafi reoommendr approval of a three-ycar
e)dengion in time for the Small-Lot Veeting Tenhtive Subdlvlsion Map aeeoclated wlth the
Broadstone Estat€s Subdivlsion prcject.

E]{VIRONiIENTAL REVIEW
An Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Environmental lmpac{ Report was previously
approved fur the Broadstone Estates Subdivision project (PN 1$308) on June 28,2016
in accodance wilh the Callfomia Environmentral Quality Act (CEOA), The proposed
Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdlvision Map is consistent with the Broadstone Estabg
Subdlvlsion AddEndum to the Folsom Plan Area Speclfic Plan EIR/EIS, and all mitigatlon
meaEurcs have been applied ar condltlons of approval for this proJect, ln addition, none
of the conditions describod in Sectlon 21rcA of the Public Resouroeg Code or Section
'15162 of the CEQA Guldelines calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR have
occurred. Therebre, no additlonal environmental review is required under CEQA.

RECOilIiIENDATION'PLANNING COTTISSION AGTION
Move to recommend to the City Gouncil approval of a three-year extEnsion in time for the
Broadsbne Estates Subdivision Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivislon Map as
illustratod on Attachment 6 br the Broadstone Eetabs Subdivision profect (PN 21-234)
subject to the findlngs (Findings A-O) and conditions of approval (Condltlons 1-189)
attached to this r€port,

GENERAL FINDINCE

NOTICE OF HEARING HAS BEEN GIVEN AT THE TIME AND IN THE
MANNER REQUIRED BY STATE LAWAND CITY CODE.

A.

Clty of Folrom Pagc 6

Page 651

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



D.

E.

B.

c,

F

G.

Plennlng Commlrelon
Bmedrfionc Eltetls Subdlvlsion Small-LotVestng Tenbtlw SubdMslon Map Ertbngion (PN 2l-234)
Norcmbor3,2021

THE PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WTH THE GENERAL PLAN AND THE
FOLSOM PI.AN AREA SPECIFIC PI.AN.

cEoA Ftt{DrilGs

THE CITY, AS LEAD AGENCY, PRE:VIOUSLY CERTIFIED AN
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT/ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
STATEMENT FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AND ALSO
APPROVED AN ADDENDUM FOR THE BROADSTONE ESTATES
SUBDIVISION PROJECT.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WTH THE FOLSOM PI.AN
AREA SPECIFIC PI.AN.

THE FEASIBLE MITIGATION MEASURES SPECIFIED IN THE FOLSOM PLAN
AREA SPECIFIC PI.AN ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT AND
BROADSTONE ESTATES CERTIFIED ADDENDUM WLL BE IMPLEMENTED
FOR THE PROPOSED SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION
MAP, CONSISTENTWTH CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15183(e).

NONE OF THE EVENTS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 21166 OF THE PUBLIC
RESOURCES CODE OR SECTION 15162 OF THE CEQA GUIDELINES
REQU I RING SUBSEQU E NT ENVIORNMENTAL REVI EW HAVE OCCURRED.

VEsNilO TENTATIVE SUBDIVISIOil TAP AND TAP EXTENSION FINDINGS

THE PROPOSED SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP IS
CONSISTENT WTH THE CITY'S SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE AND THE
SUBDIVISION MAP ACT IN THAT THE PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL THAT WILL ENSURE THAT THE PROJECT IS
DEVELOPED IN COMPLIANCE WTH CITY STANDARDS.

H. THE PROPOSED SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP ,

TOGETHER WTH THE PROVISIONS FOR ITS DESIGN AND IMPROVEMENT,
IS CONSISTENT WTH THE GENERAL PLAN, THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA
SPECIFIC PLAN, AND ALL APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE FOLSOM
MUNICIPAL CODE.

THE PROJECT SITE IS PHYSICALLY SUITABLE FOR THE WPE OF
DEVELOPMENT PROPOSED.

THE PROJECT SITE IS PHYSICALLY SUITABLE FOR THE PROPOSED
DENSITY OF DEVELOPMENT.

J.

CIS of Folrom Pagc 7

Page 652

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



L.

M.

Phnning Gommlssion
Broadsbne Estabs Subdlvlslon SmalFlotVestlng Tcnbtlve Subdivlelon Map Exbneion (PN 21-234)
Norsmbor 3,2V21

K. AS CONDITIONED, THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE
SUBDIVISION MAP AND THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTSARE NOT
LIKELY TO CAUSE ENVIRONMENTAL DAMAGE OR SUBSTANTIALLY AND
AVOIDABLY INJURE FISH OR WLDLIFE OR THEIR HABITAT.

THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION IvIAP
AND THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ARE NOT LIKELY TO CAUSE
SERIOUS PUBLIC HEALTH OR SAFEW PROBLEMS.

THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
AND THE TYPE OF IMPROVEMENTS WLL NOT CONFLICT WTH
EASEMENTS FOR ACCESS THROUGH OR USE OF PROPERW WTHIN THE
PROPOSED SUBDIVISION.

N. SUBJECT TO SECTION 66474.4 OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, THE LAND
IS NOT SUBJECT TO A CONTRACT ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO THE
GALTFORN|A |-AND CONSERVATION ACT OF 1965 (COMMENCTNG WTH
sEcTtoN 51200 oF THE GOVERNMENT CODE).

o. APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT FEES HAVE INCREASED SINCE INITIAL
APPROVAL OF THE SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
ON APRIL 11,2017. THE PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO APPLICABLE
DH/ELOPMENT FEES IN PLACE AT TIME OF ISSUANCE OF PERMITS.

Clty of Folgom Page 8

Page 653

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



Attachment 8

Minutes from November 3, 2021
Planning Commission Meeting

Page 654

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



W
ctt t ot

lF(D'lI-, g(Dlvlt
..alr{a'trr r. rrt,/t.

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
November 3' 2021

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
6:30 P.M.

50 Natoma street
Folsom, CA 95630

CALL TO ORDER PLANNING COMMISSION:
Mlklos, Ralph Pefia, Barbara Leary, Ghalr Justln

Vlce Chalr Eileen Reynolds, Daniel West, Kevin Duewel, Bill

Raithel

$!!!S!, Perla

W:None
MINUTES: The minutes of October 6,2021 were approved as submitted.

PUBLIG HEARING

t. pN Zt-t4?. 7635 Baldwln Dam Road T€ntattuo Parsel Mep-end Dotermlnatlon thet the Prolcct 13

Exemptfium CEQA

A Publlc Hearing to consider a request fom Cralg \Mtelan for approval of ? Tentatlve Parcel Map to subdlvide

two exlsting paioels totallng 4.4&acres into four indlvldual parcela for future sale End development' The

zontng clasiilication for the iite ls R-1-L A, while the General Plan land-use deslgnalion is Sf. Jt q project is

exemlt from environmental review under sectlon 15315 (Minor Land Dlvislonq) of the.Callfo-rnia Envlronmental

euatiiy Act (CEOA) Guidellnes. fProlect Planner: Steve Banke/Aoollcrnft Cralo Whelenl

1. Eric Fonest addressed the Planning Commission wllh concerns regarding sewer connection and
EVA access on parcel 4,

2, Ryan Rawles addressed the Planning Commlsslon with questions regardlng the sewer connection,
LLA's, and bridge weight.

3. Brian Martell eddressed the Planning Commisslon ln support of the project.
4, Jerome Mcrchant addressed the Plannlng Commission with questions regarding the permanency of

the bulldlng envelopes.

iorrlutsstor.tER DUE\A,EL MovED To AppRovE THE 763s BALDWN DAM RoAD TENTAT|vE PARcEL
MAP PROJECT, SUBJECT TO THE FINDINGS (FINDINCS A-K) AND CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
(coNDtTtoNs 1.2E) WTH ADDITION OF CONDITION NO. 29 TO STATE:

"29. lf the owner/appllcant decides to construct the lmprovements associeted with the Tentative Parcel Map
prior to the City completing lhe Capltal lmprovement Project (approxlmately Spring/Summer 2022) in the
Baldwin Dam area, the owner/applicant shall be requlred to install a cut-in tee with a valve on each leg of the
existing 14-inch watermain (3 Valves in total) located ln Baldwin Dam Road and install approximately 23 feet of
8-inch Ductile lron Pipe across Baldwin Dam in order to provide water services to the future parcels. lf the City

Plrnnirrg C'ornnrissicrr Minutcs
Novcnrbcr 1.2021
llrgc I ol'.1

Page 655

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



compl€tes the impmvemsnte to Baldrvln Dam Road prlor to improvements assoc{ated wllh thls Tentaffve
Parcel Map, the orvner/appllcant shell connsct to the newly lnstallcd &lnch bilnd flange that shall bg cxlended
to private road.'

COMMISSTONER MIKLOS SECONDED THE MOTION.

COMMISSIONER LEARY MADE A FRIENDLY AMENDMENT TO THE MOTION TO ADD A BULLET POINT
TO CONDITION NO.25TO STATE:

"25,
r Fuhrre homebuilders shall congult with the Clty Arboriet on the locatlon of building footPrlntg

prior to the subml[al of Deelgn Revlerv applicatlon.'

COMMISSTONER DUEVIEL DENIED THE FRIENDLY AMENDMENT.

COMMISSIONER LEARY THEN MOVED TO AMEND THE PENDING MOTION. SHE MOVED TO APPROVE
Tl{E 7S35 BATDWN DAM ROAO TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP PROJECT, SUBJECT TO THE FINDINGS
(FIND|NOS A.K) AND CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL (CONDITIONS 1-2E) WITH ADDITION OF CONDITION
NO.29TO STATE:

29. lf the ovun€r/rppllcent dccldcc to conrUuct thc lmprovcmenh .arodrtcd wlth tha Te'ntatlve Prrccl Map
prlor to lhc Clty complatlng ttrc Capltal lmprovament Projd (apprcxlmrtaly SpdnCSummcr 2022) ln-thr
brldwln Drm ma, thc orvncr/appllcrnt lhat bc rcqulrcd to lnchll r crtt-ln tcc wlth a valvc on cach hg of the
exlstlng l4-lnch watemdn (3 Valvar ln toial) looatcd ln Baldwln Dam Road and lnrbll approxlmately 23 fbctof
8{ndt Duc-tlle lron Plpc across Baldwln Dam ln order to providc watsr scruboa to lhc future parcelr. lf tht Clty
ompletcs the impmvements to Baldwln Dam Road pfior to lmprwements assodeted wtlth thls Tcntatlvc
Parccl Map, the ovner/appllcant shall connect to the nenuly lnstalled &lnch blind f,ange that shell be exlsnded
to private road."

AND THE ADDITION OF A BULLET POINT TO CONDITION NO. 25 TO STATE:

26,
r FuturE homebulldcru rhall consult wlth thc Cfi Arborlrt on the locallon of bulldlng Mprlntr

prlor to the rubmlttal of Dcalgn Rcvleur appllcallon"

COMMISSIONER REYNOLDS SECONDED THE MOTION TO AMEND.

THE COMMISSION VOTED TO AMEND COMMISSIONER DUEWEL'S MOTION WTH COMMISSIONER
LEARY'S MOTION VI'I.IICH CARRIEDTHE FOLLOWNG VOTE:

AYES: REYNOLDS, li\lEST, LEARY, RAITHEL
NOES: DUET'IEL, MIKLOS
ABSIAINED: NONE
ABSENT: PENA

THE COMMISSION VOTED ON COMMISSIONER LEARY'S MOTION WHICH CARRIED THE FOLLOWNG

VOTE:

AYES: REYNOLDS, WEST, DUEWEL, LEARY. RAITHEL
NOES: MIKLOS
ABSf,AINED: NONE
ABSENT: PEl.lA

aFN 2{-233. Folsom Heloht3 vcstlnq T.nhttve subdlvblon ilm Eximslon

A publlc Hearing to conslder a rsquest trom Efllott Homei, In9. l9r apprwal of a three'year extenelon ln dmc

i;; t; dvtougil appr*"6 smait-iotvsstng Tenratlve subdivislon Map aesoclated wlth the Folsom Helghts

Plonning Commision Minutcs
Novcmbr 3' 2021

Pogc 2 of4

Page 656

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



i .J.

1. Ellen post addregscd the Plannlng Commlesion rcgardlng the EVA acoe$ on thc lrall behind her

home.

COMMISSIONER REYNOLDS MOVED TO RECOMMEND THE CITY CO.UNCIL APPROVAL OF A THREE-

'EAR 
ExrENstoN n-ii'ue-'Ftin rne FoLSoM ielorms slJBDMstoN sMALL'Lor vEsrlNG

TENTATTvE suBDrvrsrori'irnnp'ns-lriitisrnerEo on nrrncxMENT B FoR THE FoLsoM HElcllrs
suBtDrvtsoN pRoJEcf (pli'ir-z''ns) suBJEcr io ine rrnotnes (FtNDtNGs A-o) AND coNDlrloNs
oFriFiRbVAl (Conomous t'tazinrrncHED ro rHls REPoRT'

COMMISSIONER LEARY SECONDED THE MOTION U'HICH CARRIED THE FOLLOWNG VOTE:

AYES: REVTIOLDS, WEST, DUE\IGL. MIKLOS, LEARY, RAITHEI

NOES: NONE
ABSTAINED: NONE
ABSENT: PENA

Plonning Cmmirsion Minutcs
NovonbcrS,2021
Fagc t of4

A Pr.6llc Hcadng to conrldcr a Egu!!! loq Elllott.Homer, lna lor ap-provd of e threc'ycrr rxtcnrlon ln llmc
'td;0r"'p,*6"aty 

rpptwJ'sinartlor Vlaing icntattvc sirbdlvlrlonMap eroclrtcd wllh thc Broadstonc

E;dfljbtiiat-driiO.ilr-ir'i6;6 pfi clirrlf,crtlons for trc slti arc sP.sF PD and SP'OS2' whlle thc

General plan hn6use d;itn;ild; ar€ 
-sF 

"no 
os. en AdoEndum to lhc Folrom Plan Arsa Envlronmenlal

tm-eil-H"&i,rr".t;"fi;t;;ffi; turtha.aroadstons Estetcs Subdlvlslon r'rolgct(lI l&3{lQ-on June

il:tgiCfi accorOince wfffrihe bailfornia Envponment4 Quallty Act (CEaA. (P'lect Plrnnen Steve

BankslAppllcan* Elllott Homes, lnc.)

COMMISSIONER LEARY MOVED TO RECOMMEND THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF ATHREE'YEAR

DCrENstoN tN TIME FoC-ixe snono$rbfE EsrATEs suBDMsloN sMAtL-tor vEsrlNG

TENTAIvE suBDMstoN-'mni'ns-ir.r-usrmieb oN ATTAcHMENT 0 FoR THE BRoADSTONE

ESTATEg suBtDtvtsoi['iiiitecr fptt zt-zsa) sue;ecr To THE F1qplrygq (FNDINGS Ao) AND

coNDlTtoNs oF AppRdvAilcolrofr 19Ns I -1 E'e) ATTASHED To THls REP9RT.

COMMISSIONER RFYNOLDS SECONDED THE MOTION WHICH CARRIED THE FOLLOWNG VOTE:

AYES: REYNOLDS, VVEST, DUEII/EL, MIKLOS. LEARY, RAITHEL

NOES: NONE
ABSTAINED: NONE
ABSENT: PE!,IA

NEWBUSINESS

4 pN 2.1.10lt ilrnolnl Rrnch Phttc 2 \flllrcr I Subdlvlrlon Rrddrnurl D[lon Rovlrw

A publlc Mccung to concldcr a ]lgucst fom Trl.Polntc Homcg br appro_val of a Derlglt Revlllre aplllcetlon for

bC rfngf*tamfrf rssfCcnlei 6tti-for thc Manglnl_Ranch_Phrsc 2 Vlllagc l..subdlvlrlon'Thc zonlng

daarffidslon bi the c6! il 6p.SFio tPD), wlrllc tic Gcncral Plan latd.ure dcllgnrtlol ls SFHD. Ins pr4?$

ffi-etw6g3tt oitcmlncd to uc axdmpi qq thc cellbmla Envlronmental QuallU-.Act in.esoordancc wlth

Ooujmmcnt CoOe secUon 6SIOZ anO'ecctlon 15182 of tha CEQA Guldcllnes. (Prolmt Plrnncn Jorh
KlnladrlAppllclnt TrhPolnte Homes)

Page 657

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



r\ I

COMMISSIONER WEST MOVED TO APPROVE A RESIDENTIAL DESIGN REVIEWAPPLICATION FOR 88
SINOLE.FAMILY RESIDENTIAL HOMES AS ILLUSTRATED ON ATTACHMENTS 6 THROUOH tO FOR THE
htANGtNt RANCH PHASE 2 V|LLAGE 1 PROJECT (PN 21-204) SUBJECT TO THE FINDINGS (FINDTNGS

AJ) AND CONDTflONS OF APPROVAL (COND|T|ONS r-15) WITH MODIFICATTON TO CONDIT|ON NO. 13
TO STATE:

'13. The bullding shall have illuminated Eddress€s vislble fnom the street or drive ftontlng the propc$. Slze
and location of addregs identificailon shall be rsviarEd and lmpetnd lDrugItg by the Firc Marshal.

COMMTSSIONER RFTNOLDS SECONDED THE MOTION WHICH CARRIED THE FOLLOWNG VOTE:

AYES: REYNOLDS,Ift/EST, DUEVVEL, MIKLOS, LEARY, RAITHEL
NOES: NONE
ABSTAINED: NONE
ABSENT: PENA

6. PN 21.203. Menolnl Rench Phsre 2 Vlllaoe 2 Subdlr&lon Resldgntlsl Doslon Rrrleu,

A PuHlc Mealng to consldcr a request from Tri-Polnte Homeg br approval of a Deslgn Ravicw apdlcatlon for
74 slngle-frmlly rerldantlal units for the Mangini Ranch Phaee 2 Village 2 Subdlvlslon. Thc zonlng
daeslficatlon for the eite ls SP-SFHD (PD), whlle the General Plan land-uee dcelgnatlon le SFHD. Tha prdect
was prwloue[ determlrcd to be exampt from ths Callfornla Envlronmsntal Quall$ Ac,t ln eccordanco wllh
Oovsrnmcnt Codc rcctlon 65457 rnd sec,0on 15182 of thc CEQA Guldcllner. (Profcct Plrnnrn Jorh
KlnkadolAppllcrnt Trl-Polnte Homel)

COMMISSIONER WEST MOVED TO APPROVE A RESIDENTIAL DESIGN REVIEWAPPLICATION FOR 74
SINGLE.FAMILY RESIDENTIAL HOMES AS ILLUSTRATED ON ATTACHMENTS C THROUGH 10 FOR THE
MANGTNI RANCH PHASE 2 VILI.AGE 2 PROJECT (PN 21.205) SUBJECT TO THE FINDINGS (FINDINGS
A"J)AND CONDIT|ONS OFAPPROVAL (CONDTT|ONS 1.r5) WITH MODIFICATION TO CONDITION NO. 13
TO STATE:

"13, The bulldlng shdl have lllumlnated addreesee vlslble ftom the strcet or drlve fionthg the properly. Slze
and locaton of address identlllcadon shall be rwlevred and hprenCCu!ryEl by he Flre Marshal.

COMMISSIONER TEARY SECONDED THE MOTION V\'}IICH CARRIED THE FOLLOWNG VOTE:

AYES: REYNOLDS, VtEST, DUEWEL, MIKLOS, LEARY, RAITHEL
NOES: NONE
ABSTAINED: NONE
ABSENT: PENA

PLANNING COiITTJISSION' PLAi{NING ilANAGER REPORT

The next regutarly scheduled Plannlng Commlesion meeting ls tentatively schedulEd foi November 17,2021.

SUBMITTED,

Kclly

APPROVED:

4^^r /lr
Jugh-RaithcliCHAlH

Plonning Commision Minutcs
Novembcr J, 2021
P4c 4 of4

Page 658

12/14/2021 Item No.28.



I"{-9 I t1"(_b:1{

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Move to Adopt Resolution No. 10760 - A Resolution extending the Small-Lot Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map for the Folsom Heights Subdivision project (PN 21-233)

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On June 28,2016, the City Council approved a General Plan Amendment and Specific Plan
Amendment for development of the Folsom Heights Subdivision project. The approved
General Plan Amendment and Specific Plan Amendment resulted in an increase in the amount
of land designated for single-family development, a decrease in the amount of land designated
for multi-family development, a reduction in the amount of land designated for commercial
development, and an increase in the amount of open space within the 189.7-acre Folsom
Heights Subdivision project area.

On July I1,2017, the City Council approved a Large-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map,
Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, Project Design Guidelines, and an Inclusionary
Housing Plan for the development of a 530-unit residential and commercial development
(Folsom Heights Subdivision) on a 189.7-aqe site located inthe northeast corner ofthe Folsom
Plan Area. On August 27,2019, the City Council approved a three-year extension in time for
the previously approved Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map associated with the
Folsom Heights Subdivision project. On August 11,2021, Elliott Homes submitted a timely

I

MEETING DATE: t2l14/2021

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Folsom Heights Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
Extension -Northeast corner of the Folsom Plan Area (PN 21-
234)

i. Resolution No. 10760 - A Resolution extending the Small-
Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the Folsom
Heights Subdivision proiect (PN 21-233)

X'ROM: Community Development Department

Page 659

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



letter to the City requesting a three-year extension in time for the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative

Subdivision Map associated with the Folsom Heights Subdivision project.

On August 27,202I,Elliott Homes submitted an application to the City for approval of a code

amendment to modiff Section 16.16.120(D) of the Folsom Municipal Code to make it
consistent with State law relative to map extensions. State law allows local jurisdictions to

extend subdivision maps up to six years from the date of approval, while the Folsom Municipal

Code limits the extension to three years. On September 28,2021, the City Council approved

Ordinance No. 1317, an Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 16.16.120(D) of
the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Extension of Tentative Subdivision Maps.

The applicant, Elliott Homes, Inc., is requesting approval of a three-year extension in time for

the previously approved Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map associated with the

Folsom Heights Subdivision project. As referenced previously within this report, the Folsom

Heights Subdivision project features development of a 530-unit residential and commercial

development on a I89.7-aqe site located within northeast corner of the Folsom Plan Area.

The applicant's map extension request was considered by the Planning Commission at its

November 3,2021meeting. At this meeting, the Planning Commission discussed a number of
issues associated with the previously approved project including lack of a private park amenity,

distance from public parks, and the design of the emergency vehicle access route (Prima Drive

EVA). City staff provided an extensive overview of the previously approved Folsom Heights

Subdivision project and addressed each of the topics raised by the Commission. In particular,

City staff discussed the initial Council decision not to require the Folsom Heights Subdivision

project to provide additional private or public parks above and beyond the parks already

allocated within the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP). One member of the public

spoke regarding the project and expressed concern over Prima Drive EVA and its potential

impacts to nearby residences. The Planning Commission expressed their full support for the

project and adopted a motion (6-0-0-1) to recommend approval of the proposed project to the

City Council, subject to the findings included with this report.

POLICY / RULE

The Folsom Municipal Code GMC) requires that applications for Tentative Subdivision Map

Extensions be forwarded to the City Council for final action. City Council actions regarding

extension of Tentative Subdivision Maps are covered under Section 16.16.120 of the Folsom

Municipal Code.

ANALYSIS

As described in the background section of this report, the City Council approved aLarge-Lot
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Mup, Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Mup,

Development Agreement Amendment, Project Design Guidelines, and Inclusionary Housing

2 Page 660

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Plan for development of the 530-unit Folsom Heights Subdivision project on July 1I,2017.
The City Council granted athree-year extension in time for Folsom Heights Small-Lot Vesting
Tentative SubdivisionMap onAugust 27,2019. The Small-LotVesting Tentative Subdivision
Map for the project is valid until July 22,2022. The life of the Project Design Guidelines track
with the validity of the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map. The Inclusionary
Housing Plan is a requirement of the project and does not require an extension in time.

On August 27,202l,Elliott Homes submitted an application to the City for approval of a code

amendment to modiff Section 16.16.120(D) of the Folsom Municipal Code to make it
consistent with State law relative to map extensions. State law allows local jurisdictions to
extend subdivision maps up to six years from the date of approval, while the Folsom Municipal
Code limits the extension to three years. On September 28,2021, the City Council approved

Ordinance No. 1317, an Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 16.16.120(D) of
the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Extension of Tentative Subdivision Maps to allow
for tentative maps to be extended for a period not exceeding a total of six years.

On August ll,202l,the project applicant (Elliott Homes, Inc.) submitted a timely letter to the

City requesting a three-year extension in time for the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map associated with the Folsom Heights Subdivision project. The applicant indicates in their

extension letter that they recently purchased the subject property from Folsom Heights, LLC.
on April 5,202L The applicant also states that they are actively designing the civil site

improvements with the goal of beginning grading activities in the summer of 2022. In addition,

the applicant comments that the extension in time will allow them to complete other required

site improvements and to file the Final Map in a timely manner. The applicant has not proposed

any changes to the previously approved project.

The Folsom Municioal Code GMC" Section 16.16.120 D. Time Limit Extensions) states that
the time at which a Tentative Subdivision Map expires may be extended by the Planning

Commission for a period not exceeding a total of six years. As noted previously in the

background section of this staff report, the City Council previously approved a three-year

extension for the Folsom Heights Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, thus the

applicant is limited to one more three-year extension. As stated in the submitted extension

request letter, the applicant has been actively engaged in designing the civil site improvements

associated with the subdivision with the goal of conducting grading activities in the summer

of 2022. In addition, the applicant states that the extension in time will allow them to complete

other required site improvements and to file the Final Map in a timely manner. As a result,

staff recommends approval of a three-year extension in time for the Small-Lot Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map associated with the Folsom Heights Subdivision project.

FINANCIA I,IMPACT

No financial impact is anticipated with approval of the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative

Subdivision Map Extension associated with the Folsom Heights Subdivision Project as the

project will not result in any change in the commercial square footage or residential unit count

within the Folsom Plan Area.

J Page 661

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



AL REVIEW

An Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Environmental Impact Report was previously

approved for the Folsom Heights Subdivision project (PN 15-303) on July 11,2017 in
accordance with the Califomia Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The proposed Small-Lot

Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map extension is consistent with the Folsom Heights

Subdivision Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS, and all mitigation
measures have been applied as conditions of approval for this project. In addition, none of the

conditions described in Section 21166 of the Public Resources Code or Section 15162 of the

CEQA Guidelines calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred. Therefore,

no additional environmental review is required under CEQA.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10760 - A Resolution extending the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative

Subdivision Map for the Folsom Heights Subdivision project (PN 21-233)

2. Vicinity Map
3. Conditions of Approval
4. Folsom Heights Subdivision Master Plan Exhibit, dated February 27,2017

5. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, dated October 14,2016
6. Letter from Applicant, dated August ll,202l
7. Planning Commission Staff Report, dated November 3,202I
8. Minutes from November 3, 2021Planrring Commission Meeting

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS

Community Development Director

4 Page 662

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Affachment 1

Resolution No . 10760 - A Resolution Extending the
Small-Lot Vesting Subdivision Map for the Folsom

Heights Subdivision Project (PN 2I-233)

Page 663

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



RESOLUTION NO. 1076O

A RESOLUTION EXTENDING THE SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE
SUBDIVISION MAP F'OR THE F'OLSOM HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION PROJECT

(PN 21-233)

WHEREAS, the City Council on July lI,2017,held a noticed public hearing on the

Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for development of the 530-unit Folsom Heights

Subdivision residential and commercial project ("Project"), considered public comment and

approved the proposed Project by adopting Resolution No. 9965; and

WHEREAS, the City Council on August27,2019, held a public hearing at the

developer's request to extend the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for a period of
three years, and upon considering public comment and the proposed configuration of the 530

single family lots, determined that the proposed extension of the subdivision map complies with
all City requirements, as well as with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on November 3,2021, held a public hearing at

the developer's request to extend the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for a period

of three years, and upon considering public comment and the proposed configuration of the 530

single family lots, determined that the proposed extension of the subdivision map complies with
all City requirements, as well as with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act; and

WHEREAS, An Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Environmental Impact Report was

previously approved for the Folsom Heights Subdivision project (PN 15-303) on July Il,2017 in
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The proposed Small-Lot

Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map extension is consistent with the Folsom Heights Subdivision

Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS, and all mitigation measures have

been applied as conditions of approval for this project. In addition, none of the conditions

described in Section 21166 of the Public Resources Code or Section 15162 of the CEQA

Guidelines calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred. Therefore, no

additional environmental review is required under CEQA; and

WHEREAS, notice has been given at the time and in the manner required by State Law
and City Code.

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom

that athree-year extension for the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the Folsom

Heights Subdivision Project is hereby approved (until July 11,2025), subject to all Conditions of
Approval (Nos. 1-182) included as Attachment 3 to the December 14,2021 City Council Staff
Report, with the following findings:

GENERAL F'INDINGS

NOTICE OF HEARING HAS BEEN GIVEN AT THE TIME AND IN THE MANNER
REQUIRED BY STATE LAW AND CITY CODE.

Resolution No. 10760
Page I of3

A.

Page 664

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



B

C

THE PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL PLAN AND THE FOLSOM
HEIGHTS SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT.

CEOA FINDINGS

THE CITY, AS LEAD AGENCY, PREVIOUSLY CERTIFIED AN
ENVIORNMENTAL IMPACT REPORT/ENVIORNMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT
FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AND ALSO APPROVED AN
ADDENDUM FOR THE FOLSOM HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION PROJECT.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE FOLSOM PLAN
AREA SPECIFIC PLAN.

THE FEASIBLE MITIGATION MEASURES SPECIFIED IN THE FOLSOM PLAN
AREA SPECIFIC PLAN ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT AND FOLSOM
HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION CERTIFIED ADDENDUM WILL BE IMPLEMENTED
FOR THE PROPOSED SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP,
CONSISTENT WITH CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15183(e).

NONE OF THE EVENTS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 21166 OF THE PUBLIC
RESOURCES CODE OR SECTION 1s162 OF THE CEQA GUIDELINES
REQUIRING SUBSEQUENT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW HAVE OCCURRED

VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION AP AND MAP EXTNNSION F'INDINGS

G THE PROPOSED SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP IS
CONSISTENT WITH THE CITY'S SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE AND THE
SUBDIVISION MAP ACT IN THAT THE PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS
OF APPROVAL THAT WILL ENSURE THAT THE PROJECT IS DEVELOPED IN
COMPLIANCE WITH CITY STANDARDS.

H THE PROPOSED SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP ,

TOGETHER WITH THE PROVISIONS FOR ITS DESIGN AND IMPROVEMENT, IS

CONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL PLAN, THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA
SPECIFIC PLAN, AND ALL APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE FOLSOM
MUNICIPAL CODE.

THE PROJECT SITE IS PHYSICALLY SUITABLE FOR THE TYPE OF
DEVELOPMENT PROPOSED.

THE PROJECT SITE IS PHYSICALLY SUITABLE FOR THE PROPOSED DENSITY
OF DEVELOPMENT.

Resolution No. 10760
Page2 of3

D.

E.

F

I.

J

Page 665

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



L

M.

K. AS CONDITIONED, THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE
SUBDIVISION MAP AND THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ARE NOT LIKELY
TO CAUSE ENVIRONMENTAL DAMAGE OR SUBSTANTIALLY AND
AVOIDABLY INruRE FISH OR MLDLIFE OR THEIR HABITAT.

THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
AND THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ARE NOT LIKELY TO CAUSE SERIOUS
PUBLIC HEALTH OR SAFETY PROBLEMS.

THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
AND THE TYPE OF IMPROVEMENTS WILL NOT CONFLICT WITH EASEMENTS
FOR ACCESS THROUGH OR USE OF PROPERTY WITHIN THE PROPOSED
SUBDIVISION.

N SUBJECT TO SECTION 66474.4 OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, THE LAND IS
NOT SUBJECT TO A CONTRACT ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO THE
CALIFORNIA LAND CONSERVATION ACT OF 1965 (COMMENCING WITH
SECTTON s1200 oF THE GOVERNMENT CODE).

o APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT FEES HAVE INCREASED SINCE INITIAL
APPROVAL OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP ON
JUNE IT,2OI7, THE PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT
FEES IN PLACE AT TIME OF ISSUANCE OF PERMITS.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this l4th day of December 2021, by the following roll-
call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10760
Page 3 of3

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 666

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Attachment 2

Vicinity Map

Page 667

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Vicinity Map
f'0L S Oi\:l

Page 668

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Attachment 3

Conditions of Approval

Page 669

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



coNDrTroNs oF APPROVAL FOR rHE FOLSOM mIGHTS SITBDTWSTON PROJECT (pN 2r-83)
wEsT oF EL DORADO COUNTy IJI\E, EAST OF nMPIRE RANCH ROAD, NORTH OF RUSSELL RANCH' AI\D SOUTE OF U.S. HIGEWAY 5{t

SMALLLOT \MSTING TENTATT\M SIIBDTVISION MAP EXTENSION
Responsible
Denartment

cD(PXE)

cD (PXEXB)

cD (P)

When
Reouired

G, I,M,B

G, I, M,

OG

Condition/lVlitigation Measure

F in aI D eve lop ment P lans
The owner/applicant shall submit final site development plans to the Community
Development Department that shall substantially conform to the exhibits referenced
below:

1. Preliminary Site Plan and Phasing Exhibit, dated September 19,2Al7
2. Vesting Large-Lot Tentative Subdivision Map, dated Jurrc2E,20l7
3. Vesting Small-Lot Tentative Subdivision Map, dated October 14,2016
4. Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan, dated lune28,20l7
5. Preliminary Utility Plan, dated June28,2017
6. Preliminary OflSite lmprovements, dated June 28,2017
7. Proposed Trail System Modifications, dated December 14,2016
8. Proposed Minor Administrative Modification Exhibit, dated February 17,2017
9. Inclusionary Housing Plan, dated September 18, 2015
10. Folsom Heights Subdivision Design Guidelines

The Large-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map and Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map are approved for the development of a 530-unit residential and

commercial project (Folsom Heights SuMivision). Implementation of the project shall
be consistent with the above referenced iterns and these conditions of approval.
PIan Submiual
All civil engineering, improvement and landscape and irrigation plans, shall be

submitted to the Community Development Deparfrnent for review and approval to
ensure conformance with this approval and with relevant codes, policies, standards and
other requirements of the CiW of Folsom.
Validity
This approval of the Vesting Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map shall be valid for a
period of three years or thirty-six months (July I 1,2025)- Pursuant to Section 2.2 of
Amendment No. I to ARDA the term of the Project Desrp.Guidelines shall track the
term of the map.

Mitigation
Measure

1

2

3

Page 670

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Responsible
I)epartment
cD (PXE)

CD(EXPXB), PW,
FD, EWR, PR

cD (EXP)

When
Required

M

M

M

Condition/Mitigation Measure

Vesting Tentative Subdivision Mry Approval
The Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the Folsom Heights Subdivision project
shall be subiect to ryyie-w and approval by the City Council.
Improvemcnts in the PFFP
The owner/applicant shall be subject to all thresholds, timelines and deadlines for the
construction and final completion of various improvements for the entire Folsom Plan
Area. The various improvements are outlined and detailed in the Folsom Plan Area
Specific Plan Public Facilities Financing Plan @FFP) dated January 28,2014 arfi
adopted by Crty of Folsom Resolution No. 9298. These improvements in the PFFP
include, but are not limited to, the backbone infrastructure water (water reservoirs, water
transmission mains, booster pump stations [unless otherwise owned and maintained by
the El Dorado Irrigation District (EID)], pressure reducing valve stations, etc.), sanitary
sewer (lift stations and forced mains) systems, recycled water mains and associated
infrasfucture, roadway and transportation (future interchanges, major arterial roadways,
etc.) improvements, aquatic center (community pool), parks, fire stations, municipal
services center, community library, etc The thresholds and timelines included in the
PFFP require facilities to be constructed and completed based on number of building
permits issued and in some cases, number of residential units that are occupied. The
owner/applicant shall be required to address these tlresholds and timelines as the project
moves forward through the various developments stages and shall be subject to the
various fair share requirements, subject to the provisions of the PFFP, the ARDA and
any amendment thereto.
Sfieet Namcs
The street rutmes identified below shall be used for the Final Small-Lot Map:
Empire Ranch Road, Alder Creek Parkway, Prima Drive, Summit Stree! Bold place,
Highland Street Folsom Heights Drive, Hillside Street Hilltop Street, Paris Place,
Deerfield Drive, Desmond Drive, Hillcrest Street, Cozy Cour! Diego CouG Dakota
court, Skyview Drive, Rustic Ridge Drive, hon Horse, Terrace Circlg Lone Leaf Drive,
Hornet Street. and Mustane Street.

Mitigation
Measure

COI\{DMONS OX'APPROVAL FOR TEE r'OLSOM EEIGHTS
wEsT oF EL DORADO COUNTY rrlvE, EAST OF EMPIRE RANCH ROAD, NORTH

stiBDIvIsIoN PRoIECT (PN 21-233)
ox'RUSSELL RANCE, AND SOUTH OF U.S. HIGETyAY 50

SMALLLOT TENTATTVf, SI]BDTVISION EXTENSION

4.

5

6.

Page 671

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



coNDrTroNs oF APPROVAL FOR Tm FOLSOM mrGErS STIBDwTSTON PROJECT (pN 2r-233)
WEST OF EL DORADO COI]NTY LIIIE, EAST OX'EMPIRE RANCH ROAD, NORTE OT RUSSELL RANCH, A}ID SOUTII OF U.S. HIGHWAY 50

SMALI-LOT VESTING TENTATTYE SUBIITVISION MAP EXTENSION
Responsible
Deparfuent

cD (PXEXB)
PW, PR, FD,

PD

CD

cD (E)

When
Required

OG

OG

G, I,M,B

Condition/tlitigation Measure

Indemnfufor City
The owner/applicant shall protect, defend, indemnifu, and hold harmless the City and its
agents, officers and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City or
its agents, offrcers or employees to attack" set aside, void, or annul any approval by the
City or any of its agencies, departnents, commissions, agents, officers, employees, or
legislative body concerning the projecl which claim, action or proceeding is brought
within the time period provided therefore in Government Code Section 66499.37 or
other applicable statutes of limitation. The City will promptly notifu the
owner/applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and will cooperate fully in the
defense. If the City should fail to cooperate fully in the defense, the owner
owner/applicant shall not thereafter be responsible to defend, indemnifo and hold
harrnless the City or its agents, officers, and employees, pursuant to this condition. The
Crty may, within its unlimited discretion, participate in the defense of any such claim,
action or proceeding if both of the following occur:

r The City bears its own attorney's fees and costs; and
o The City defends the claim, action or proceeding in good faith

The owner/applicant shall not be required to pay or perform any settlement of such
claim, action or proceeding unless the settlement is approved by the owner/applicant.
The owner/applicant's obligations under this condition shall apply regardless of whefher
a Final Map is ultimately recorded with respect to this proiect.

Small-Lot Vesting Tentdtve Subdivision Map
The Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision map is expressly conditioned upon
compliance with all environmental mitigation measures in the Folsom Plan Area
Specific Plan (FEIR/EIS) and the Folsom Heights Subdivision Addendum No. 1 and
Addendum No.2 to the FPASP FEIR/EIS.
ARDA andAmenfunenls
The owner/applicant shall comply with all provisions of Amendment No. 1 to the Tier 1

Amended and Restated Development Agreernent and any approved amendments by and
between the City and the owner/applicant of the project.

Mitigation
Measnre

7

8.

9

Page 672

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



COIIDITIONS OX'APPROVAL FOR TITF' FOLSOM MIGIITS SUBDTWSION PROJECT (PN 21.233)
WEST OF EL DORADO COUNTY I..II[8, EAST OT'EMPIRD RANCH ROAD, NORTH OF RUSSELL RANCH, AND SOUTH

SMALI-LOT VESTING TENTATIVN srTRnrvrsrrrN FYTtr'NCTr|f,TMAP
oFU.S.mGEWAY50

Responsible
I)enartment

cD (P)

POLICEISECURTTY REQUTREMENT

PD

When
Required

OG

G.I, B

Cond ition/lVlitigation Measure

Mitigatbn Monitoring
The owner/applicant shall be required to participate in a mitigation monitoring and
reporting program pursuant to City Council Resolution No. 2634 and Public Resources
Code 21081.6. The mitigation monitoring and reporting measures identified in the
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan FEIR/EIS have been incorporated into these conditions
of approval in order to mitigate or avoid significant effects on the environment. These
mitigation monitoring and reporting measures are identified in the mitigation measure
column. Applicant shall frrnd on a Time and Materials basis all mitigation monitoring
(e.g., staffand consultant time).

The owner/applicant shall consult with the Police Departnent in order to incorporate all
reasonable crime prevention measures. The following security/safety measures shall be
considered:

A security guard on-duty at all times at the site or a six-foot security fence shall be
constructed around the perimeter of construction arsrs.

a

a

a

Security measures for the safety of all construction equipment and unit appliances.

Landscaping shall not cover exterior doors or windows, block line-of-sight at
intersections or screen overhead liehtine.

Mitigation
Measure

10.

1t

Page 673

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (PXE)

cD (E)

cD (P), PW, PK

cD(PXE)

OG

OG

B

OG

Assessments
If applicable, the owner/applicant shall pay off any existing assessments against the
property, or file necessary segregation request and pay applicable fees.
FPASP Development Impact Fees
The owner/applicant shall be subject to all Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Area
development impact fees in place at the time of approval or subsequently adopted
consistent with the Public Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP), Development Agreement
and amendments thereto, unless exempt by previous agreement. The owner/applicant
shall be subject to all applicable Folsom Plan Area plan-wide development impact fees
in effect at such time that a building permit is issued. These fees may include, but are
not limited to, the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Fee, Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee
(SPIF), Solid Waste Fee, Corporation Yard Fee, Transporfation Management Fee,
Transit Fee, Highway 50 Interchange Fee, General Park Equipment Fee, Housing Trust
Fee, etc.

Any protest to such for all fees, dedications, reservations or other exactions imposed on
this project will begin on the date of final approval ${ay 23,zDn), or otherwise shall be
governed by the terms of Amendment No. I to ARDA. The fees shall be calculated at
the fee rate set forth in the PFFP and the ARDA.
Legal Counsel
The City, at its sole discretion, may utilize the services of outside legal counsel to assist
in the implementation of this project, including, but not limited to, drafting reviewing
and/or revising agreements and/or other documentation for the project. If the City
utilizes the services of such outside legal counsel, the City shall provide notice to the
owner/applicant of the outside counsel selected, the scope of work and hourly rates, and
the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for all outside legal fees and costs incurred
and documented by the City for such services. The owner/applicant may be required at
the sole discretion of the City Attonrey, to submit a deposit to the City for these services
prior to initiation of the services. The owner/applicant shall be responsible for
reimbursement to the Citv for the services regardless of whether a deposit is required.

Taxes and Fees
The owner/applicant shall pay all applicable taxes, fees and charges for the project at the
rate and amount required by the Public Facilities Financing Plan and Amendment No. 1

to the Tier 1 Amended and Restated Development Agreement.

t5

DEYELOPMENT COSTS AI\D FEE
12.

13

14.

Page 674

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (PXE)

cD (E), EW& PW,
FD

G, I,M,B

G, I, M,

Consultant Semices
If the City utilizes the services of consultants to prepare special studies or provide
specialized design review or inspection services for the projecq the City shall provide
notice to the owner/applicant of the outside consultant selected, the scope of work and
hourly rates, and the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for actual costs incurred
and documented in utilizing these services, including administrative costs for City
personnel. A deposit for these services shall be provided prior to initiating review of the
Grading Plan, Final Map, improvement plans, or beginning inspection" whichever is

Phasing Plan
The owner/applicant shall prepare a complete and comprehensive phasing plan and shall
submit the phasing plan to the city for each proposed phase of development. The
phasing plan shall include all required infrastructure for each proposed phase of
development. The infrastructuie shall include all requked on-site and oFsite
improvements, but not limited to, water system improvements (distribution and
transmission mains, booster pump stations, water reservoirs, PRV stations, etc.),
recycled water mains and associated infrastructure, sanitary sewer improvements (sewer
mains, lift stations, forced mains, etc.) roadway and transportation improvements, storn
drainage improvements (detention/water qualrty basins, outfalls, etc.) and all other
necessary improvements required for each phase of development. The phasing plan shall
include itemized cost estimates for all required improvements and the phasing plan shall
be reviewed and approved by the City prior to approval of grading and/or improvements
plans.

The city Engineer may condition the phasing to ensure that each phase functions
independently and is consistent with the minimum utility and access standards of the
City. All maps filed in phases will be required to have two points of access for vehicle
access (except as approved by the Fire Departnent) and/or general taffic purposes for
each phase and all oFsite utilities deemed necessary as determined by the City Engineer

ifDistrictAndthe El Dorado

16.

GRADING PERMIT
7I

Page 675

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (PXEXB)

G

G

G

G

Off-site improvements / Rights of Entry
For any improvements constructed on private propefty that are not under the ownership
or control of the owner/applicant all rights-of-en$, and if necessary, a permanent
easem€nt shall be obtained and provided to the City. All rights of entqr, constnrction
easements, either permanent or temporary and other easements shall be obtained as set
forth in AmendrnentNo. I to ARDA, which shall be fully executed by all affected
parties and shall be recorded with the Sacramento County Recorder, where applicable,
prior to approval of grading and/or improvement plans.

Geotechnical Report
Prior to the issuance of any grading permit, the ov,'ner/applicant shall have a
geotechnical report prepared by an appropriately licensed engineerthat includes an
analysis of site preparation, soil bearing capacity, appropriate sourc€s and types of fill,
potential need for soil amendments, road" pavement and parking areas, stuctural
foundations, including retaining all designs, grading practices, soil corrosion ofconcrete
and steel, erosion /winterizations, seismic ground shaking, liquefaction and
expansive/unstable soils.
G eotec hnical Rrcommendations
The owner/applicant shall submit to the Engineering Division, for review and approval,
a grading plan for the project site which ensures that all geotechnical recommendations
specified in the eeotechnical reDort are properlv incomorated and utilized in the desisn.
Geolechnical Moniloring Program
The owner/applicant shall contract with a geotechnical engineer who shall develop a
program to monitor the sites during construction to ensure compliance with the
recommendations presented in the geotechnical report(s) and conditions for performing
such monitoring. The geotechnical monitoring progmrn shall include a description of the
improvements areas where geotechnical monitoring shall be required. The completed
program shall be submitted to the City prior to approval of any gading and/or
imorovement olan.

347-la

347-7a

3A 7-lb

18.

19.

20.

2t

Page 676

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (PXEXB)

Ew& cD (E)

G

I

Prepme Geotechnical Report($for the Off-site Wder Facilities and Implement
Required Measares.
The owner/applicant shall provide a comprehensive facility design for all proposed ofF
site Water Facility improvernents shall comply with the site-specific design
recommendations as provided by a licensed geotechnical or civil engineer. The final
geotechnical and/or civil engineering report shall address and make recommendations on
the following:

o site preparation;
o soil bearing capacity;
o appropriate sources andtypes offill;
r potential need for soil amendments;
r road, pavement, and parking areas;
r structural foundations, includingretaining-wall design;
r grading practices;
o soil corrosion ofconcrete and steel;
r erosion/winterization;
r seismic ground shaking;
. liquefaction; and
r expansivelunstablesoils.

In addition to the recommendations for the conditions listed above, the geotechnical
investigation shall include subsurface testing of soil and groundwater conditions, and
shall detennine appropriate foundation designs that are consistent with the version of the
California Building Code that is applicable at the time building and grading permits are
applied for. All recommendations contained in the final geotechnical engineering report
shall be implemented by the owner/applicant.
Incorporale Pipeline Failute Contingenqt Measures Into Final Pipeline Design
Isolation valves or similar devices shall be incorporated into all pipeline facilities to
prevent substantid losses of surface water in the event of pipeline rupture, as

recommended by a licensed geotechnical or civil engineer. The specifications of the
isolation valves shall conforrn to the Califomia Building Code and American Water
Works Association (AWWA) standards and shall be subject to review and approval by
the El Dorado lrrisation District GID) and the Citv.

3B.7-la

38.7-lb

22.

23

Page 677

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)

cD (PXEXB)

G

G

Mine Shafi Remediation
The owner/applicant shall locate and remediate all anfiquated mine shafu, drifts, open
cuts, funnels, and water conveyance or impoundment structures existing on the project
site, with specific recommendations forthe sealing, filling, or removal of each that meet
all applicable health, safety and engineering standards. Recommendations shall be
prepared by an appropriately licensed engineer or geologist. All remedial plans shall be
reviewed and approved bv the Citv prior to approval of sradins plans.

Matefial Storage Areas
The owner/applicant shall locate staging and material storage areas as far away from
sensitive biological resources and sensitive land uses (e.g., residential areas, schools,
parks) as feasible. Staging and material storage areas shall be screened from adjacent
occupied land uses in earlier development phases to the maximum extent practicable.
Screens may include, but are not limited to, the use of visual ba:riers such as berms or
fences. Staging and material storage areas shall be shown on all grading and/or
improvement plans nrior to plan aporoval bv the Ciw.

34'1-4

24.

25

Page 678

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), PWG

TrafJie and Pa*ing Management PIan
Prior to the approval of the grading plan and or construction, the owner/applicant shall
prepare construction traffic and parking management plan to the satisfaction of the City
Traffic Engineer and subject to review by atty affected agencies, if necessary. The plan
shall ensure that acceptable operating conditions on local roadways and freeway
facilities are maintained. Measures typically used in traffic contol plans include
advertising of planned lane closures, waming signage, a flag person to direct traffrc
flows when ne,eded, and methods to ensure continued access by emergency vehicles.
During pmject construction, access to existing land uses shall be maintained at all times,
with detours used as necessary during road closures. At a minimum, the plan shall
include the following:
o Description of trucks including number and size of trucks per day (i.e., 85 trucks per

day), expected arrivaVdeparture times, and truck circulation patt€rns.
o Description of staging area including loeation, maximum number of trucks

simultaneously permitted in staging axeq use of traffic conhol personnel, and
specific signage.

r Description of street closures and/or bicycle and pedesrian facility closures
including duration, advance warning and posted signage, safe and efficient access
routes for existing businesses and emergency vehicles, and use of manual traffrc
confuo1.

e Description of driveway access plan including provisions for safe vehicular,
pedesfrian, and bicycle travel, minimum distance from any open trenc[ special
sitrraqe. and private vehicle accesses.

3A l4-126.

Page 679

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)G

Prepare Tialfic Control Plfln-
Prior to construction, a Trafftc Control Plan for roadways and intersections affected by
construction shall be prepared. The Traffrc Control Plan shall designate haul routes and
comply with requirements in the encroachment permits issued by the City of Rancho
cordova, sacramento County, and calfrans and any other local agencies, including but
not limited to the city, if applicable. The Traffic control Plan to be prepared by the
project construction contractor(s) shall, at minimum, include the following measures:
. Maintaining the morimum amount of travel lane capacity during non-construction

periods, possible, and advanced notice to drivers through the provision of
construction signage.

o Maintaining altemate one-way traffic flow past the lay down area and site access
when feasible.

. HeaYy trucks and other construction transport vehicles shall avoid the busiest
commute hours (7 a.m. to 8 a.m. and 5 p.m.to 6 p.m. on weekdays).

o A minimum 72-hour advance notice of access restrictions for residents, businesses,
and local emergency response agencies. This shall include the identification of
alternative routes and detours to enable for the avoidance of the immediate
construction zone.

c A phone number and community contact for inquiries about the schedule of the
construction throughout the construction period. This information will be posted in a
local newspaper, via the City's web site, or at Crty Hall and will be updated on a
monthly basis.

27

Page 680

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)

cD (E)

G

G

Develop and Inplement a Plan to Reduce Eryosure of Sensitive Recelfiors to
Construction-Generated Tortc Air Conlaminant Emhsion*
The owner/applican(s) shall develop a plan to reduce the exposure of sensitive receptors
to TACs generated by project construction activity. Each plan shall be developed by the
owner/applican(s) in consultation with SMAQMD. The plan shall be submitted to the
City for review and approval before the approval ofany grading plans.

The plan may include such measures as scheduling activities when the residences are the
least likely to be occupied, requiring equipment to be shut offwhen not in use, and
prohibiting heavy trucks from idling for more than 3 minutes. Applicable measures shall
be included in all projeet plans and specifications for all project phases.

Signs shall be posted at all truck loading areas which indicate that diesel-powered trucks
must be shut offwhen not in use for longer than 3 minutes on the premises in order to
reduce idling emissions.

The implementation and enforcement of all measures identified in each plan shall be
funded by the owner/applicant for the respective phase of development.
Condact Prujea-Level Diesel Particulate Matter (DPM) Screening and Implement
Measures to Reduce Annual DPM to Acceptable Concentrotions.
Screening-level DPM assessments shall be conducted for diesel-powered pump
operations proposed witttin 200 feet of residences or other sensitive receptors. These
analyses should include exact distances between the receptors and operations, and
include the actual DPM emissions for the engines proposed. If the analysis shows an
annual average DPM concentration from project operations at residences within 200 feet
of the DPM source to be greater than 0.024 pg/m3, the engine location shall be moved
to a location where the annual average DPM concentration from project emissions atthe
residences is less than A.024 pg/m3. The acceptable concentration of 0.024 pglm3 was
determined using the eurrent OEHI{A cancer potency factor and methodology for diesel
exhaust (OEHHA 2003). If diesel exhaust concenfiations at the affected receptor would
be below A.024 yglm3, then the cancer health risk would be less than 9.9 cancers in a
million population.

34.2-4a
3A.2-4b

3B.2-3b

28.

29

Page 681

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (EXP)G

Implement Greenhouse Gas Reduction Measures during Constuction.
Prior to approval of a grading permit, the owner/applicant(s) shall stipulate that these

measures be implemented within the project notes.

Construction vehicles and equipment will be properly maintained at all times in
accordance wittr manufacturer's specifications, including proper tuning and timing
of engines. Equipment maintenance records and equipment design specification data
sheets shall be kept on-site during construction and demolition activities and subject
to inspection by the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District
(SMAQMD).

a

a

a

Operators will tum offall constuction vehicles and equipment and all delivery
vehicles when not in use, and not allow idling for more than 3 minutes or for such

other more restrictive time as may be required in law or regulation.

On-site conskuction vehicles and equipment will use Air Resources Board (ARB)-
certified biodiesel fuel if available (a minimum of 820, or 20 percent of biodiesel)
except for those with warranties that would be voided if 820 biodiesel fuel were

used. Prior to issuance of grading or demolition pennits, the contactor shall provide
documentation to the City that verifies whether any equipment is exempt; that a

biodiesel supply has been secured; and that the construction conhactor is aware that
the use of biodiesel is required.

A Solid Waste Diversion and Recycling Plan (or such other documentation to the

satisfaction of the City) shall be in place that demonstates the diversion from
landfills and recycling of all nonhazardous, salvageable and re-useable wood metal,
plastic and paper products during construction and demolition activities. The Plan or
other documentation shall include the name of the waste hauler, their assumed

destination for all waste and recycled materials, and the procedures that will be
followed to ensure implernentation of this measure.

a

38 4-1a30.

Page 682

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (EXP)

cD (EXP)

G

G

For those areas that would be disturbed as part of the U.S. 50 interchange
improvements, it is anticipated that Caltrans would coordinate with the development
and implementation of the overall project SWPPP, or develop and implement its
own SWPPP specific to the interchange improvements, to ensure that water qualrty
degradation would be avoided or minimized to the maximum extent practicable.

Mitigation forthe off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries shall be coordinated by the owner/applicant ofeach applicable project phase

with El Dorado Coun8 and Caltrans.
Implement Additional Meosures to Control Construction-Generded Greenhouse Gas

Emissions
Prior to approval of a grading pennit, the owner/applicant(s) shall obtain the most
current list of greenhouse gas reduction measures that are recommended by Sacramento

Metropolitan Air Quality Management District (SMAQMD) and stipulate how those

measures be implemented within the project notes. The owner/ applicant(s) may submit
to the City and SMAQMD a report that substantiates why specific measures are

considered infeasible for construction of that particular development phase and/or at that
point in time. The repor! including the substantiation for not implementing padicular
greenhouse gas reduction measures, shall be approved by the City, in consultation with
SMAQMD prior to approval of a grading permit. In addition to SMAQMD-
recommended measures, construction activity shall comply with all applicable rules and

rezulations established bv SMAQMD and CalifomiaAir Resources Board.

38 4-la

3A4-l

30.

Cont.

31.

Page 683

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



SMAQMDG,I

Pay Off-site Mifigation Fee to SMAQMD to Off-Set NOX Emissions Generded by
C o nstr uctio n of Off- sit e E leme nts.
The off-site elements could result in construction-generated NOX emissions that exceed
the SMAQMD threshold of significance, even after implementation ofthe SMAQMD
Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices Qisted in Mitigation Measure 34.2-1a). Therefore,
the owner/applicant shall pay SMAQMD an o$site mitigation fee for implementation
of each off-site element in for the purpose of reducing NOX emissions to a less-than-
significant level (i.e., less than 85 lb/day).

The specific fee amounts shall be calculated when the daily construction emissions can
be more accurately determined. Calculation of fees associated with each off-site element
shall be conducted by the owner/applicant in consultation with SMAQMD staffbefore
the approval of respective grading plans. The calculation of daily NOX emissions shall
be based on tle cost rate established by SMAQMD at the time the calculation and
payment are made. Because the fee is based on the mass quantity of emissions that
exceed SMAQMD's daily threshold of significance of 85 lb/day, total fees for
construction of the off-site improvements would vary according to the timing and
potential overlap of construction schedules for off-site elements.

Mitigation forthe oflsite improvements outside ofthe City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries shall be developed by the owner/applicant ofeach applicable project phase in
consultation with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento County or

3A-2-rg32.

Page 684

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



SMAQMD

SMAQMD

SMAQMD
cD (EXP)

G,I

G, I

G, I,B

Develop and Implement a Construetion NOX Reduaion Plan
Consistent w'th SMAQMD requirements, the owner/applicant shall provide a plan for
demonstating that the healy-duty (> 50 horsepower) off-road vehicles to be used in the
construction projecL including owned, leased and subcontactor vehicles, will achieve a
project wide fleet-average2A%o NOX reduction.

Prior to construction, the owner/applicant's contactor shall submit to the SMAQMD a
comprehensive inventory of all off-road construction equipment, equal to or greater than
50 horsepower, that will be used an aggregate of 40 or more hours during any portion of
the construction. The inventory shall include the horsepower rating, engine production
year, and projected hours of use or fuel throughput for each piece of equipment. The
inventory shall be updated and submitted quarterly throughout the duration of the
projecq except that an inventory shall not be required for any 30-day period in which no
conshuction activity occurs. At least 48 hours prior to the use of subject heavy-duty off-
road equipment, the owner/applicant shall provide SMAQMD with the anticipated
construction timeline including start date, and name and phone number of the project
manager and on-site foreman.

Conduct Visible Emissions Testing and if Non-Compliance, Rqair Eqaipment
Immediately.
The owner/applicant shall ensure that emissions from all off-road diesel powered
equipment used on the project site do not exceed 40% opacity for more than three
minutes itt aoy one hour. Any equipment found to exceed 40Yo opacity (or Ringelmann
2.0) shall be repaired immediately, and the City and SMAQMD shall be notified within
4E hours of identification of non-compliant equipment. A visual survey of all in-
operation equipment shall be made at least monthly, and a quarterly summary of the
visual survey results shall be submitted throughout the duration of the projecq except
that the monthly summary shall not be required for any 30-day period in which no
construction activrty occurs. The monthly summary shall include the quantity and type
of vehicles surveyed as well as the dates ofeach survey
The owner/applicant shall implement all applicable measures in the Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Quality Management Dishict approved Folsom Plan Area Specific
Plan Air Qualrty Mitigation Plan.

3B.2-la

38.2-lb

342-2

33

34-

35.

Page 685

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



SMAQMD
cD (EXP)

G

Na urally Occarring Asbestos
Prior to the commencement of any site-disturbing activities, the owner/applicant shall
demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Sacramento Metopolitan Air Quality Management
District that Naturally Occurring Asbestos does not exist on site. To demonstrate the
owner/applicant shall obtain the services of a California Certified Geologist to conduct a
thorough site investigation of the development area per the protocol outlined in the
California Geological Survey Special Report 124 to determine whether and where
Naturally Occurring Asbestos is present in the soil and rock on the project site and/or
areas that would be disturbed by the project. The site investigation shall include the
collection of three soil and rock samples per acre to be analyzed via the Califomia Air
Resources Board 435 Method, or other acceptable method agreed upon by Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Quality Management District and the City. If the investigation
determines that Naturally Occurring Asbestos is not present on the project site, then the
owner/applicant shall submit a Geologic Exemption to Sacramento Metropolitan Air
Quality Management District as allowed under Title 17, Section 93105, Asbestos
Airbome Toxic Confiol Measure for Construction, Grading, Quarrying, and Surface
Mining (Asbestos ATCM). The owner/applicant shall submit proof of compliance with
the above to the Community Development Deparftnent for review and approval prior to
the commencement of any site-disturbing activities.

If the site investigation determines that Naturally Occurring Asbestos is present on the
project site, or alternatively ifthe owner/applicant elects to assume presence of trace
Naturally Occurring Asbestos, then, prior to commencement of any ground disturbance
activity, tle owner/applicant shall submit to the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District for review and approval an Asbestos Dust Mitigation Plan,
including, but not limited to, control measures required by the Asbestos ATCM, such as
vehicle speed limitations, application of water prior to and during ground disturbance,
keeping storage piles wet or covered, and track-out prevention and removal.

The owner/applicant shall submit proof of compliance with the above to the Community
Development Deparhnent for review and approval prior to the commencement of any
site-disturbing activities. Upon approval of the Asbestos Dust Contol Plan by the
Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management Dishict, the owner/applicant shall
ensure that constnrction contractors implement the terms of the plan throughout the
construction period. If Naturally Occuring Asbestos is determined to be located on the
surface of the proiect site, all surface soil containing Naturallv Occuring Asbestos shall

342-536.

Page 686

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



SMAQMD
cD (EXP)

G, I,B

be replaeed with clean soil or capped
subiect to review and annrnrrql lrrr fha

another material (e.g., cinder or rubber),
Engineer.

with
City

Bosic Constr uetion Emission Control Practices
The owner/applicant shall implement Sacramento Metropolitan Air euality
Management District 's list of Basic Construction Emission Control Practices, Enhanced
Fugitive Particulate Matter Dust Contol Practices (listed below), and Enhanced Exhaust
Control Practices or whatever mitigation measur€s are recommended by Sacramento
Mefiopolitan Air Quality Management District at the time individual portions of the site
undergo construction. In addition to Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management
District -recommended measures, construction operations shall comply with all
applicable Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management Distict rules and
regulations.

The following shall be noted on Grading Plans and building construction plans:

Basic Consfuction Emission Contol Practices
o Water all exposed surfaces two times daily. Exposed surfaces include, but are not

limited to soil piles, graded areas, unpaved parking arcas, staging areas, and access
roads. The owner/applicant shall not be permitted to use potable water fiom the
City of Folsom water system for grading and/or construction while the City is in a
stage 3 (water warning), stage 4 (water crisis), or stage 5 (water emergency)
conservation stage as detemrined by the City and in conformance with Chapter
13.26 Water Conservation of the Folsom Municipal Code (FMC).

o The Crty may prohibit the use of its own potable water for grading and/or
construction purposes on the project in its sole discretion regardless of the Water
Conservation Stage.

o Cover or maintain at least two feet of free board space on haul trucks tansporting
soil, sand, or other loose material on the site. Any haul trucks that would be
traveling along freeways or maiof roadrvays shall be covered.

342-la
3A 2-1d
3Az-tf

)t-

Page 687

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



SMAQMD
cD (EXP)

G, I,B

o IJse wet power vacuum street sweepers to remove any visible trackout mud or dirt
onto adjacent public roads at least once a day. Use of dry power sweeping is
prohibited.

. Limit vehicle speeds on unpaved roads to i5 miles per hour (mph).
o All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking lots to be paved should be completed

as soon as possible. In addition, building foundations shall be laid as soon as
possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders are used.

r Minimize idling time either by shutting equipment offwhen not in use or reducing
the time of idling to 5 minutes (as required by the state airborne toxics control
measure [Title 13, Section 2485 of the Califomia Code of Regulations]). Provide
clear signage that posts this requirement for workers at the entrances to the site.

o Maintain all constuction equipment in proper working condition according to
manufacturer's specifications. The equipment shall be checked by a certified
mechanic and detennine to be running in proper condition before it is operated.

Enhanced Fugitive Particulate Matter Dust Control Practices - Soil Disturbance Areas
r Water exposed soil with adequate frequency for continued moist soil. However, do

not overwater to the extent that sediment flows offthe site.
. Suspend excavation, grading and/or demolition activity when wind speeds exceed

20 mph.
o Install wind breaks (e.g., plant trees, solid fencing) on windward side(s) of

construction areas.
o Plant vegetative ground cover (fast-gerrninating native grass seed) in disturbed areas

as soon as possible. Water appropriately until vegetation is established-

3n^Z-Ia
3A 2-ld
3A2-1f

37.
Cont.

Page 688

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



SMAQMD
cD (EXP)

G, I,B

The owner/applicant shall submit to the City of Folsom Community Develo'pment
Deparfinent and Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District a
comprehensive inventory of all oFroad construction equipmen! equal to or greater than
50 hp, that would be used an aggregate of 40 or more hours during any portion of the
construction project. The inventory shall include the horsepower rating, engine
production year, and projected hours ofuse for each piece ofequipment. The inventory
shall be updated and submitted monthly throughout the duration ofthe project, except
that an inventory shall not be required for any 30-day period in which no construction
activlty occurs. At least 48 hours prior to the use of heavy-duty off-road equipment, the
project representative shall provide Sacramento Meftopolitan Air Quality Management
District with the anticipated construction timeline including start date, and name and
phone number of the project manager and on-site foreman.

Sacramento Mehopolitan Air Quality Management Dishict's Construction Mitigation
Calculator can be used to identiff an equipment fleet that achieves this reduction
(Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District 2007a). The project shall
ensure that emissions from all off-road diesel powered equipment used on the SPA do
not exceed 40Yo opacity for more than three minutes in any one hour. Any equipment
found to exceed 40 percent opacrty (or Ringelmann 2.0) shall be repaired immediately,
and the City and Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District shall be
notified within 48 hours of identification of non-compliant equipment. A visual survey
of all in-operation equipment shall be made at least weekly, and a monthly summary of
the visual survey results shall be submitted throughout the duration of the projec!
except that the monthly summary shall not be required for any 30-day period in which
no construction activrty occurs. The monthly summary shall include the quantity and
type of vehicles surveyed as well as the dates of each survey. Sacramento Metopolitan
Air Quality Management District staffandlor other officials may conduct periodic site
inspections to determine compliance. Nothing in this mitigation measure shall supersede
other Sacramento Metropolitan Air Qualrty Management Dishict or state rules or
regulations.

342-la
3A 2-ld
3A^z-tt

37

Cont.

Page 689

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



SMAQMD
cD (EXP)

G, I,B

Enhanced Fugitive Particulate Matter Dust Control Practices - Unpaved Roads
o Install wheel washers for all exiting trucks, or wash offall tucks and equipment

leaving the site.
o Treat site accesses to a distance of 100 feet from the paved road with a 6 to l2-inch

layer of wood chips, mulclr" or gravel to reduce generation of road dust and road
dust carryout onto public roads.

o Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the
constuction site regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take
corective action within 4E hours. The phone number of Sacramento Metropolitan
Air Quality Management Disfrict and the City contact person shall also be posted to
ensure compliance.

Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices
The owner/applicant shall provide a plaru for approval by the City of Folsom
Community Development Deparfrnent and Sacramento Metropolitan Air Qualif
Management District, demonstrating that the heavy-duty (50 horsepower [hp] or more)
oftoad vehicles to be used in t}te construction project, including owned, leased, and

subconfactor vehicles, will achieve a project wide fleet-avenge10%o NOX reduction
and 45o/o particulate reduction compared to the most current Califomia Air Resources
Board (ARB) fleet average that exists at the time of construcfion. Acceptable options for
reducing emissions may include use of late-model engines, low-emission diesel
products, alternative fuels, engine retrofit technolory, after-teatnent products, and/or
other options as thev become available.

342-1a
3Az-td
34' 2-1f

37

Cont.

Page 690

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



SMAQMD
cD (EXP)

SMAQMD
cD (EXP)

cD (EXP)

G, I,B

G, I,B

G,I, B

If at the time of grading and/or construction, Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District has adopted a regulation or new guidance applicable to
construction emissions, compliance with the regulation or new guidance may completely
or partially replace this mitigation if it is equal to or more effective than the mitigation
contained herein, and if Sacramento Metopolitan Air Quality Management District so
permits. Such a determination shall be supported by a project-level analysis and be
approved by Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District.

Implement Fagitive Dust Contol Measures and a Particulate Mdter Monitoring
Progrant d ur ing C o n s fi uctia n
The owner/applicant shall implement fugitive dust control measures and a particulate
matter monitoring program during construction. The owner/applicant shall ensure
irnplementation of dust control measures and a particulate matter monitoring program
during each phase of construction. Dust control measures may include, but are not
limited to, the following:
o minimize on-site construction vehicle speeds on unpaved surfaces;
r post speed limits;
r suspend grading operations when wind is suffrcient to generate visible dust clouds;
. pave, water, use gravel, cover, or spray a dust-control agent on all haul roads;
o prohibit no open burning ofvegetation during project construction;
. chip or deliver vegetative material to waste-to-energy facilities;
r reestablish vegetation:N soon as possible after conskuction and maintain vegetation

consistent with the parameters established in Mitigation Measure 3B.2.la;
o clean eartbmoving construction equipment with water once daily and clean all haul

trucks leaving the site; and
. water and keep moist exposed earth surfaces, graded areas, storage piles, and haul

roads as needed to prevent fueitive dust.
Limit ConstruAion Ho urs.
Construction activities shall be limited to daylight hours between 7 a.m. and 7 p.m.
Monday through Friday, and 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. on Saturday. No construction shall be
allowed on Sundays or holidays.

342-la
3A 2-1d
3A2-tf

38.2-lc

38.11-la

37.
Cont.

38

39

Page 691

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (EXP)

cD (EXP)

cD (EXP)

cD (EXP)

G, I,B

G, I,B

G, I,B

G,I, B

Minimke Noisefrom Constuaion Equipment and Staging.
construction equipment noise shall be minimized during project construction by
muffling and shielding intakes and exhaust on construction equipment (per the
manufacturer's specifications) and by shrouding or shielding impacttools, where used.
The City's construction specifications shall also require that the contractor select staging
areas zrs far as feasibly possible from sensitive receDtors.
Mmimize the Use of Noise Barriers.
Construction contractors shall locate fixed construction equipment (such as compressors
and generators) and constuction staging areas as far as possible from nearby residences.
If feasible, noise barriers shall be used at the construction site and staging area
Temporary walls, stockpiles of excavated materials, or moveable sound banier curtains
would be appropriate in instances where construction noise would exceed 90 dBA and
occur within less than 50 feet from a sensitive receptor- The final selection of noise
barriers will be subject to the city's approval and shall provide a minimum 10 dBA
reduction in construction noise levels.
Prohibit Non-Essenfial Noise Sources During Constraction
No amplified sources (e.g., stereo "boom boxes") shall be used in the vicinity of
residences during project construction.

Monitor Constraction Noise and Provide a Mechanismfor Filittg Noise Comptain&.
The ovmer/applicant shall provide an on-site complaint and enforcement managertlrat
shall track and respond to noise complaints during grading and constuction. The City
shall also provide a mechanism for residents, businesses, and agencies to register
complaints with the City if construction noise levels are overly intusive or construction
occurs outside the reouired hours.

38.11-tb

38.11-lc

3B.l l-1d

38.11-le

40

4I

42.

43.

Page 692

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (PXEXB)G, I,B

Inplement Noise-Red ucing Constrtrction Practices, Prepare and Implemeu aNoise
Control Plnn, and Monitor and Record Construction Noise near Sensitive Receptors.
The owner/applicant shall prepire and implement a construction noise management
plan. This plan shall identify specific measures to ensure compliance with the noise
control measwes specified below. The noise control plan shall be submitted to the City
ofFolsom before any noise-generating construction activrty begins and shall be noted on
Grading Plans and building construction plans. Grading and construction shall not
commence until the construction noise management plan is approved by the City of
Folsom.

a Noise-generating construction operations shall be limited to the hours between 7
a.m. and 7 p.m.Monday through Friday, and between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. on
Saturdays. No construction is allowed on sundays. These hours may be expanded
to include Saturday and Sunday between 8 a.m. and 6 p.m. provided there are no
sensitive receptors within 1500 feet, subject to the sole discretion of the city.
AII construction equipment and equipment staging areas (including rock crushing
operations) shall be located as far as possible from nearby noise-sensitive land uses.
All constuction equipment shall be properly maintained and equipped with noise-
reduction intake and exhaust mufflers and engine shrouds, in accordance with
manufacturers' recommendations. Equipment engine shrouds shall be closed during
equipment operation.
All motorized consfuction equipment shall be shut down when not in use to prevent
idling.
Individual operations and techniques shall be replaced with quieter procedures (e.g.,

a

a

a

a

using welding instead of rivetine, mixing concret€ off- site instead of on-site).

3A 11-l
381-3a

44.

Page 693

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (PXEXB)

cD (E)

G, I,B

G

o Noise-reducing enclosures shall be used around stationary noise-generating
equipment (e.g., compressors and generators) as planned phases are built out and
future noise sensitive receptors are located within close proximity to firture
constuction activities.

Wrinen notification of construcfion activities shall be provided to all noise-sensitive
receptors located within 850 feet of construction activities. Notification shall include
anticipated dates and hours during which consfruction activities are anticipated to
occur and contact information, including a daytime telephone number, for the
project representative to be contacted in the event that noise levels are deemed
excessive.Recommendations to assist noise-sensitive land uses in reducing interior
noise levels (e.g., closing windows and doors) shall also be included in the
notification.

To the extent feasible, acoustic barriers (e.g., lead curtains, sound barriers) shall be
constructed to reduce construction-geneftfed noise levels at affected noise-sensitive
land uses. The barriers shall be designed to obstruct the line of sight between the
noise-sensitive land use and on-site constuction equipment. When installed
properly, acoustic barriers can reduce construction noise levels by approximately 8-
r0 dB (EPA t97t).

When future noise sensitive uses are within close proximity to prolonged
constuction noise, noise-attenuating buffers such as structures, truck trailers, or soil
piles shall be located between noise sources and future residences to shield sensitive
receDtors from construction noise.

o

a

a

Minimize Afihy Conflias by Inplementing an Underground Sewices AIerL
Underground utilities and service connections shall be identified prior to commencing
any excavation work through the implementation of an Underground Services Alert
(USA). The exact utility locations will be determined by hand-excavated test pits dug at
locations determined and approved by the construction manager (also referred to as
"pot-holing"). Temporary disruption of service may be required to allow for
construction. No service on such lines would be disrupted until prior approval is
received from the construction manager and the service provider.

3A 1l-1

38l-3a

38.16-3a

44.
Cont.

45.

Page 694

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)

cD (E)

G

G

Prepare and Implement the Appropfiue Grading and Erosion Control Plan
Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the owner/applicant shall retain a California
Registered Civil Engineer to prepare a grading and erosion and sedimentation control
plan. The grading and erosion and sedimentation control plan shall be submitted to ttre
Community Development Departnent prior to issuance of a grading permit. The plan
shall be consistent with the Folsom Plan Area Grading Specifications, the City's
Grading Ordinance, the state's NPDES permit the FPASP preliminary grading plans
and shall include the site-specific grading associated with development for all project
phases.

The plans referenced above shall include the location, implementation schedule, and
maintenance schedule of all erosion and sediment control measures, a description of
measwes designed to control dust and stabilize the construction-site road and entance,
and a description of the location and metlods of storage and disposal of construction
materials. Erosion and sediment control measures could include the use of temporary
detention basins, berrns, swales, wattles, and silt fencing, and covering or watering of
stockpiled soils to reduce wind erosion- Stabilization on steep slopes could include
construction of retaining walls and reseeding with vegetation after constuction.
Stabilization of construction entrances to minimize trackout (control dust) is commonly
achieved by installing filter fabric and crushed rock to a depth of approximately I foot.

The owner/applicant(s) shall ensure that the construction contractor is responsible for
securing a source for transportation and deposition ofexcavated materials.
Erosion Control Plan
Prior to the approval of the final facilities design, conunencement of grading andlor
construction activities, the owner/applicant shall submit an erosion control plan to the
City for review and approval. The plan shall identifu protective measures to be taken
during excavatiorl temporary stockpiling, any reuse or disposal, and revegetation.
Specific techniques may be based upon geotechnical reports, the Erosion and Sediment
Contol Handbook of the State of California Departrrent of Conservation, and shall
comply with all updated City standards.

3A-7.3

3A',l-3

46.

47.

Page 695

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)

cD (E)

G

G

Erosion and sedimentation canfiol mcasures
Erosion and sedimentation confiol measures shall be incorporated into all grading and/or
construction plans. These measures shall conform to the City of Folsom requirements
and the County of Sacramento Erosion and Sedimentation Control Standmds and
Specifications-cunent edition and as directed by the Community Development
Deparffnent.
Acquire Appropriate Regalatory Permits and Preporc and Implemenl Stomwatet
Pollntion Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and Best Management Practices (BMpg.
The owner/applicant(s) of all projects disturbing one or more acres (including phased
construction of smaller areas which are part of a larger project) shall obtain coverage
under the state water Resources control Board's National Pollution Discharge
Elimination System stormwater permit for general construction activity (Order 2009-
0009-DWQ, including preparation and submittal of a project-specific Storm Water
Pollution Prevention Permit at the time the Notice of Intent is filed. The Storm Water
Pollution Prevention Permit and other appropriate plans shall identifr and specift:
. the use of an effective combination of robust erosion and sediment control BMPs

and construction techniques accepted by the localjurisdictions for use in the project
area at the time of construction, that shall reduce the potential for runoffand the
release, mobilization, and exposure of pollutants, including legacy sources of
mercury from project-related construction sites. These may include but would not
be limited to temporary erosion control and soil stabilization measures,
sedimentation ponds, inlet protection, perforated riser pipes, check dams, and silt
fences

r the implementation of approved local plans, non-stormwater management con&ols,
permanent post-construction BMPs, and inspection and maintenance
responsibilities;

o the pollutants that are likely to be used during construction that could be present in
stormwater drainage and nonstormwater discharges, including fuels, lubricants, and
other types of materials used for equipment operation;

. spill prevention and contingency measures, including measunes to prevent or clean
up spills of hazardous waste and of hazardous materials used for equipment
ooeration. and procedures for responding to spills:

3A7-3

3A 9-l

48.

49

Page 696

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)G

a

a

a

a

personnel taining requirements and procedures that shall be used to ensure that
workers are aware of pennit requirements and proper installation methods for BMPs
specified in the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Permit; and
the appropriate personnel responsible for supewisory duties related to
implernentation of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Permit.

Where applicable, Best Management Practices identifred in the Storm Water Pollution
Prevention Permit shall be in place throughout all site work and construction/demolition
activities and shall be used in all subsequent site development activities. Best
Management Practices may include, but are not limited to, such measures as those listed
below:

Implementing temporary erosion and sediment control measunes in disturbed areas
to minimize discharge of sediment into nearby drainage conveyances, in compliance
with state and local standards in effect at the time of construction. These m€asures
may include silt fences, staked straw bales or wattles, sediment/silt basins and traps,
geofabric, sandbag dikes, and temporary vegetation.

Establishing pennanent vegetative cover to reduce erosion in areas disturbed by
construction by slowing runoffvelocities, trapping sediment, and enhancing
fi ltration and transpiration.
Using drainage swales, ditches, and earth dikes to control erosion and runoffby
conveying surface runoffdown sloping land intercepting and diverting runoffto a
watercowse or channel, preventing sheet flow over sloped surfaces, preventing
runoffaccumulation at the base of a grade, and avoiding flood damage along
roadways and facility infrastructure.

a

A copy of the approved Storm Water Pollution Prevention Pemrit shall be maintained
and available at all times on the construction site.

34. 9-l49
Cont.

Page 697

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)G,B

Prepare and Submit Final Drainage Plans and Implement Requirements Contained
in Those PIan*
The owner/applicant(s) shall submit final drainage plans to the City dernonstrating that
off-site upstream runoffwill be appropriately conveyed through the Folsom Plan Are4
and that project-related on-site runoffwill be appropriately conveyed and contained in
detention basins or managed through other improvements (e.g., source controls,
biotechnical stream stabilization) to reduce flooding and hydromodification impacts and
provide water quality treatnent.

The plans shall include, but not be limited to, the following items:
. an accurate calculation of pre-project and post-project runoffscenarios, obtained

using appropriate engineering methods, that accurately evaluates potential changes
to runoff, including increased surface runoff;

o runoffcalculations for the l0-year and 100-year (0.01 AEP) storrn events (and other,
smaller storm events as required) shall be performed and the tmnk drainage pipeline
sizes confirmed based on alignments and detention facility locations finalized in the
design phase;

o a description of the proposed maintenance program for the on-site drainage system;
o project-specific standards for installing drainage systems;
. Crty flood control design requirements and measures designed to comply with them;

Implementation of stormwater managernent BMPs that avoid increases in the
erosive force of flows beyond a specific range of conditions needed to limit
hydromodification and maintain current stream geomorpholory. These Best
Management Practices will be designed and constructed in accordance with the
forthcoming Stormwater Quahty Parfrership Hydromodification lVlanagement Plan
(to be adopted by the Regional Water Quality Control Board) and may include, but
are not limited to, the following:

3A-9.250.

Page 698

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), PWG

a Use of Low Impact Development (LID) techniques to limit increases in stormwater
runoffat ttre point of origination (these may include, but are not limited to: surface
swales; replacement of conventional impervious surfaces with pervious surfaces
[e.g., porous pavement]; impervious surfaces disconnection; and trees planted to
intercept stormwater);
Enlarged detention basins to minimize flow changes and changes to flow duration
characteristics;
Bioengineered stream stabilization to minimize bank erosion, utilizing vegetative
and rock stabilization, and inset floodplain restoration features that provide for
enhancement of riparian habitat and maintenance of natural hydrologic and channel
to fl oodplain interactions;
Minimize slope differences between any stormwater or detention facility
outfall channel with the existing receiving channel gradient to reduce flow velocity;
and
Minimize to the extent possible detention basin, bridge embankmen! and other
encroachments into the channel and floodplain corridor, and utilize open bottom box
culverts to allow sediment passage on smaller drainage courses.

a

a

a

The final drainage plan shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the City of Folsom
Community Developmerrt and Public Works Deparfrnents that 100-year (0.01 AEP)
flood flows would be appropriately channeled and contained, such that the risk to people
or damage to structures within or down gradient of the Folsom Plan Area would not
occur, and that hydromodification would not be increased from pre-development levels
such that existing sfteam geomorpholory would be changed (the range of conditions
should be calculated for each receiving water if feasiblg or a conseryative estimate
should be used, €.9., 8n Ep of I +10olo or other as approved by the Sacramento
Stormwater Quality Partrrership and/or City of Folsom).

3A-9.250.
Cont.

Page 699

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)G

Develop and Implement a BMP and Water Quality Mointenance PIan-
A detailed BMP and water quality maintenance plan shall be prepared by a qualified
engineer retained by the owner/applicant(s) for the project. The plan shall finalize the
water quality improvements and further detail the structural and nonstructural BMPs
proposed for the project. The plan shall include the elements described below.

a A quantiative hydrologic and water qualrty analysis of proposed conditions
incorporating the proposed drainage design features.
Predevelopment and post development calculations demonstrating that the proposed
water quality BMPs meet or exceed requirements established by the City of Folsom
and including details regarding the size, geometry, and functional timing of storage
and release pursuant to the latest edition of the "Stormwater Quality Design Manual
for Sacramento and South Placer Regions" (the City's MS4NPDES permit, page 46)
and El Dorado Count5r's NPDES SWMP (County of El Dorado 2004).
Source control programs to control water quality pollutants on the SPd which may
include but are not limited to recycling, street sweeping, stonn drain cleaning,
household hazardous waste collection, waste minimizatioq prevention of spills and
illegal dumping, and effective management of public trash collection areas.

A pond management component for the proposed basins that shall include
management and maintenance requirements for the desigrr features and BMPs, and
responsible parties for maintenance and funding.
LID control measures shall be integrated into the BMP and water quality
maintenance plan. These may include, but are not limited to:

o surface swales;
. replacement of conventional impervious surfaces with pervious surfaces

(e.g., porous pavement);
. impervious surf;aces disconnection; and
. trees planted to intercept storrrwater.

a

a

a

o

51.

Page 700

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)G

a New stormwater facilities shall be placed along the natural drainage courses within
the sPA to the extent practicable so as to mimic the natural drainage pattems. The
reduction in runoffas a result of the LID configurations shall be quantified based on
the runoffreduction credit system methodology described in "stormwater eualrty
Design Manual for the Sacramento and South Placer Regions, Chapter 5 and
Appendix D4" (SSQP 2007b) and proposed detention basins and other water quality
BMPs shall be sized to handle these runoffvolumes.

For those areas that would be disturbed as part ofthe U.S. 50 interchange improvements,
it is anticipated that Caltrans would coordinate with the development and
implementation of the overall project SWPPP, or develop and implement its own
SWPPP specific to the interchange improvements, to ensure that water qualify
degradation would be avoided or minimized to the maximum extent practicable.
Mitigation for the oFsite improvements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries shall be coordinated by the owner/applicant ofeach applicable project phase
with El Dorado County and Caltrans.

51.
Cont.

Page 701

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)M

Interim Stormwater Detention Basin

a. Design.
The ownerlapplicant shall be responsible for the desigrr and constuction of the interim
stormwater detention basin (Basin No. 1l). The detention basin design shall include
City approved vehicular access to the entire basin, including but not limited to, the inlets
and oufalls for the basin. The improvement plans for the proposed interim basin shall
be reviewed and approved by the city prior to approval of any Final Map where the
basin is required to be constructed to mitigate impacts to stonnwater detention, water
quality, and/or hyrdomodification.

b. Operation and Maintenance Manual
The owner/applicant shall prepire an Operations and Maintenance manual for the
interim stormwater detention basin for maintenance by the City. The manual shall be
subject to review and approval by the Crty prior to any Final Map where the basin is
required to be constructed to mitigate impacts to stormwater detention, water qualitlr,
and./or hyrdomodifi cation.

c. Access
The owner/applicant shall grant public easements for access to the interim stormwater
detention basin prior to approval of the Final Map which requires construction of the
interim stormwater detention basin.

d. Operation Funding
The owner/applioant shall provide a funding mechanism, s€parate from the funding
mechanism for the perman€nt detention basin, for the operation and maintenance by the
City of Folsom ofthe interim stormwater detention basin. The funding for the operation
and maintenance of the basin shall remain in place until such time as the required
permanent detention basin(s) are constructed downstream by others and are operational
in accordance with the Folsom Plan Area storm Drainage Master plan. The futtding
mechanism shall be in place and funding available to the City prior to approval of any
Final Map where the basin is required to be constucted to mitigate impacts to
stormwater detention, water qualitv. and/or hwdomodification.

52.

Page 702

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)
Sacramento County

G

to ensure that the operation and design ofthe stonnwater system, including multiple
planned detention basins, is consistent with the recomrrendations of the Sacramento-
Yolo Mosquito and vector confrol District regarding mosquito control, the
owner/applicant shall prepare and implement a Vector Control Plan. This plan shall be
prepared in coordination with the sacramento-yolo Mosquito and vector conftol
District and shall be submitted to the City for approval prior to issuance of the grading
permit for the proposed detention basins under the city,s jurisdiction.

The plan shall incorporate specific measures deerned sufficient by the City to minimize
public health risks from mosquitoes, and as contained within the sacramento-yolo
Mosquito and Vector Control District BMP Manual (Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and
Vector Conhol District 2008). The plan shall include, but is not limited to, t]r" following
components:
o Description of the project.
r Description of detention basins and all water features and facilities that would

control on-site water levels.
r Goals of the plan.
o Description of the water management elements and features that would be

implemented including:
i. BMPs that would be implemented on-site;

ii. public education and awareness;
iii. sanitary methods used (e.g., disposal of garbage);
iv. mosquito coatrol methods used (e.g., fluctuating water levels, biological

agents, pesticides, larvacides, circulating water); and
v. stormwatermanagement.

Yector
Sacramcnto-thewithConsultationlnPIan

District
Contrcl

Control
Vectora

and
Inplementand

MosquitoYolo
Preparc3A 8.753

Page 703

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)
Sacramento County

G

a Long-term maintenance of the detention basins and all related facilities (e.g.,
specific ongoing enforceable conditions or maintenance by a homeowner's
association).

To reduce the potential for mosquitoes to reproduce in the detention basins, the
owner/applican(s) shall coordinate with the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector
Control District to identiff and implement BMPs based on their potential effectiveness
for the site conditions. Potential BMPs could include, but are not limited to, the
following:

build shoreline perimeten as steep and uniform as practicable to discourage dense
plant growth;
perform routine maintenance to reduce emergent plant densities to faoilitate the
ability of mosquito predators (i.e., fish) to move throughout vegetated area;

design distibution piping and containment basins with adequate slopes to drain fully
and prevent standing water. The design slope should take into consideration buildup
of sediment between maintenance periods. Compaction during grading may also be
needed to avoid slumping and settling;
coordinate cleaning of catch basins, drop inlets, or storm drains witl mosquito
treatnent operations;
enforce the prompt removal of silt screens installed during constuction when no
longer needed to protect water quality;
if the sump, vault, or basin is sealed against mosquitoes, with the exception of the
inlet and outlet submerge the inlet and outlet completely to reduce the available
surface area of water for mosquito egg- laying (female mosquitoes can fly through
pipes); and
design structures with the appropriate pumping, piping, valves, or other necessary
equipment to allow for easy dewatering of the unit if necessary (Sacramento Yolo
Mosquito and Vector Control District 2008).

o

a

a

a

I

a

a

3A 8.753

Cont.

Page 704

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)

cD (PXE)

G

G,I

Properly Dispose of Hydrostatic Test Water and Construction Dantotaing in
Accordonce with the Central Vahey Regional Water Qualrty Control Board
All hydrostatic test water and construction dewatering shall be discharged to an
approved land disposal area or drainage facility in accordance with Central Valley
RWCQB requirements. The Crty or its construction contractor shall provide the Central
valley RwQcB with the location, type of discharge, and methods oitreatnent and
monitoring for all hydrostatic test water discharges. Emphasis shall be placed on those
discharges that would occur directly to surface water bodies.

Statc and Federal Perrnia
The ownerlapplicant shall obtain all required State and Federal permits and provide
evidence that said permits have been obtained, or that the permit is not required, subject
to staffreview prior to approval of any grading or improvement plan.

38.9-1b54.

55.

Page 705

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD(PXE)
United States Army
Corps. Of Engineers

Central Valley
Regional Water

Quahry Control Board

cD (E)

G, I

G

Clean Water Act Sedions 401 ond 404 Permits
Prior to the approval of grading and improvement plans and before any groundbreaking
activity associated with each distinct project phase, the owner/applicant shall secure all
necessary permits obtained under Sections 401 and 404 of the Clean Water Act or the
State's Porter-Cologne Act and implement all permit conditions for the proposed
proJect.All perrrits, regulatory approvals, and permit conditions for effects on wetland
habitats shall be secured and conditions implemented before implementation of any
grading activities within 250 feet of Waters of the U.S, or wetland habitats, including
Waters of the State, that potentially support federally-listed species, or within 100 feet
of any other Waters of the U.S. or wetland habitats, including Waters of the State. The
owner/applicant shall adhere to all conditions outlined in the permits. The
owner/applicant shall commit to replace, restore, or enhance on a "no net loss" basis (in
accordance with United States Army Corps Of Engineers and the Central Valley
Regional Water Qualtty Control Board) the acreage of all wetlands and other Waters of
the U.S. that would be removed, lost, and/or degraded with implementation of the
project. Wetland habitat shall be restored, enhanced, and/or replaced at an acreage and
location and by methods agreeable to United States Army Corps Of Engineers, fhe
Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board, and the Ctty, us appropriate,
depending on agency jurisdiction, and as determined during the Section 401 and Section
404 permitting processes. The boundaries of the 404 pennig including required buffers
shall be shown on the grading plans.

All mitigation requirements to satisfr the requirements of the City and the Central
Valley Regional Water Qualtty Control Board, for impacts on the non-jurisdictional
wetlands beyond the jurisdiction of United States Army Corps Of Engineers, shall be
determined and implemented before grading plans are approved.

All wetland mitigation compliance reports submitted to the Army Corps of Engineers
shall also be copied concurrentlv to the CiW.
Water Qaality Cerlifrcalion
A water quality certification pursuant to Section 401 of the Clean Water Act is required
before issuance of the record of decision and before issuance of the Section 404 permit.
Before construction in any areas containing wetland features, the owner/applicant shall
obtain water quality certification for the project. Any measures required as part of the
issuance of water qualrty certification shall be implemented pursuant to the permit
conditions.

3A 3-la
3A 3-lb

56.

57

Page 706

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD(PXE)
Califomia Deparftnent
of Fish and Wildlife

G

Master Streambed Alteratbn Agreement
The owner/applicant shall amend, if necessary, and implement the original Section 1602

Master Steambed Alteration Agreement received from Califomia Departnent of Fish
and Wildlife for all construction activities that would occur in the bed and bank of
California Department of Fish and Wildlife jurisdictional features within the project site.
As outlined in the Master Steambed Alteration Agreement the owner/applicant shall
submit a Sub-notification Form (Sm) to California Departnent of Fish and Wildlife 60
days prior to grading and/or the commencement of construction to notiff Califomia
Deparfinent of Fish and Wildlife ofthe project.

Any conditions of issuance ofthe Master Steambed Alteration Agreonent shall be
implemented as part ofthose project construction activities that would adversely affect
the bed and bank within on-site drainage channels subject to California Deparftnent of
Fish and Wildlife jurisdiction. The agreement shall be executed by the owner/applicant
and California Departnent of Fish and Wildlife before the approval of any grading or
improvement plans or any construction activities in any project phase that could
potentially affect the bed and bank of on-site drainage channels under Califomia
Departrnent of Fish and Wildlife jurisdiction.

343-4a.58.

Page 707

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)G

Restore AII Waten Inpacted by Trenching and Temporary Constaction Stasing
For all crossings of waters of the U.S. or State in which the use of trenchless
technologies are not feasible, the City shall ensure that all waters impacted by trenching
activities are restored to pre-project conditions. In addition, within 30 days following
project construction, the owner/applicant shall ensure that all temporary construction
staging areas within waters of the U.S. or State are restored to preproject conditions.
At minimum, the City shall ensure that the following measures are implemented during
construction:
o Conduct trenching and construction activities across drainages during low-flow

(".g., .l to 2 cfs) or dry periods as feasible;
o If working in active channels, install cofferdam upsteam and downstream of stream

crossing to separate construction area from flowing waterway;
o Place sediment curtains upsteam and downstream of the consftuction zone to

prevent sediment disturbed during ftenching activities from being transported and
deposited outside ofthe construction zone;

r Locate spoil sites such that they do not drain directly into the drainages or seasonal
wetlands;

r Store equipment and materials away from the drainages and wetland areas. No
debris will be deposited within 250 feet of the drainages and wetland areas;

o Prepare and implement a revegetation plan to restore vegetation in all temporarily
disturb€d wetlands and other waters using native species seed mixes and container
plant material that are appropriate for existing hydrological conditions.

38 3-1c59

Page 708

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)G

Prior to the approval of grading and improvement plans and before any groundbreaking
activity associated with grading and construction requiring fill of wetlands or other
waters of the U-S. or waters of the state, the owner/applicant shall submit a wetland
mitigation and monitoring plan (llII\trP) for the restoration of these waters within the
selected water alignment to the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) and Cental
Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) for review and approval of
those portions of the plan over which they have jurisdiction. The Mitigation and
Monitoring Plan (MMP) would have to be approved prior to issuance of a Section 404
permit. Once the final MMP is approved and implemented, mitigation moniloring shall
continue for a minimum of 5 years from completion of restoration activities, or human
intervention (including recontouring and grading), or until the performance standards
identified in the approved MMP have been met, whichever is longer.

At minimum, the MMP shall provide the following infonnation:
o A description and drawings showing the existing contours (elevation) and existing

vegetation of the waters of the U.S. and State that would be impacted through
trenching activities. This inforrnation shall include site photographs taken at each
impacted water.

r Methods used to ensure that tenching within waters of the U.S. and State do not
adversely alter existing hydrology, including the draining of the waters (e.g., use of
cut-offwalls).

. The methods used to r€store the site to the original contour and condition, as well as
a plan for the revegetation of the site following installation of the improvements.

o Proposed schedule for restoration activities

38 3-lc59.
Cont.

Page 709

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD(PXE)
California Departnent
of Fish and Wildlife

G

Swainson's Hmsh Nesting Habitot
A qualified biologist shall be retained by the owner/applicant to conduct preconstruction
surveys and to identiff active Swainso-n's Hawk nests on and within 0.5-mile of the
project area. The surveys shall be conducted before the approval ofgrading and/or
improvement plans (as applicable) and no less than 14 days and no more than 30 days
before the beginning of grading and construction. To the extent feasible, guidelines
provided in Recommended riming md Methodologtfor swainson's Hawk Nesting
Surveys in tlu Cenhal YaIIey (Swainson's Hmtk Teclmical Advisory Committee i000)
shall be followed for surveys for Swainson's hawk. If no nests are found, no fi.uther
mitigation is required.

If active nests are found, impacts on nesting Swainson's llawks shall be avoided by
establishing appropriate buffers around the nests. No project activrty shall commence
within the buffer area until the young have fledged, the nest is no longer active, or until
a qualified biologist has determined in coordination with California Departrnent of Fish
and Wildlife that reducing the buffer would not result in nest abandonment. California
Departnent of Fish and Wildlife guidelines recommend implementation of 0.25- or 0.5-
mile-wide buffers, but the size of ttre buffer may be adjusted if a qualified biologist and
the City, in consultation with California Departrnent of Fish and Wildlife, determine that
such an adjustnent would not be likely to adversely affect the nest. Monitoring ofthe
nest by a qualified biologist during and after construction activities will be required if
the activity has potential to adversely affect the nest.

343-2a60.

Page 710

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (P)
Califomia Departrnent
of Fish and Wildlife

G

Sw ains o n's Haw k Habit at
Prior to the approval of grading and improvement plans, or before any ground-disturbing
activities, whichever occurs frst, the owner/applicant shall secure suitable Swainson's
tlawk foraging habitat to ensure appropriate mitigation of habitat value for Swainson's
Hawk foraging habitat that is permanently lost as a result of the projecg as determined
by the City after consultation with California Departnent of Fish and Wildlife and a
qualified biologist.

The habitat value or shall be based on Swainson's Hawk nesting distribution and an
assessment of habitat quality, availability, and use within the project area. The
mitigation ratio shall be consistent with the 1994 DFG Swainson's Hawk Guidelines
included in the StaffReport Regarding Mitigation for knpacts to Swainson's Hawks
(Buteo swainsoni) in the Central Valley of California. If such mitigation shall be
accomplished through purchase of credits at an approved mitigation bank, the transfer of
fee title, or perpetual conservation easement, the ratio for habitat value shall be 0.5: l. If
1e1-!ank mitigation is proposed, the mitigation land shall be located within the known
foraging area and within Sacramento County and the habitat value shall be 1:1. The
City, after consultation with California Departrnent of Fish and Wildlife, will determine
the appropriateness of the mitigation land.

The owner/applicant shall tansfer said Swainson's Hawk mitigation land, through either
conservation easement or fee title, to a third-party, nonprofit conseryation organization
(Conservation Operator), with the City and California Departnent of Fish and Wildlife
named as third-party beneficiaries. The Conservation Operator shall be a qualified
conservation easement land manager that manages land as its primary function.
Additionally, the Conservation Operator shall be a tax-exempt nonprofit conservation
organization that meets the criteria of Civil Code Section 815.3(a) and shall be selected
or approved by the City, after consultation with California Departnent of Fish and
Wildlife. After consultation with California Departnent of Fish and Wildlife and &e
Conservation Operator, the City shall approve the content and forrr

3A 3-2bI6

Page 711

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD(PXE)
California Departnent
of Fish and Wildlife

G

of the conservation easement. The City, Califomia Departnent of Fish and Wildlife, and
the Conservation Operator shall each have the power to enforce the terms of the
conservation easement. The Conservation Operator shall monitor the easement in
perpetuity to zrssure compliance wittr the terms of the easernent.

After consultation with the City, The owner/applicant, California Deparhnent of Fish
and wildlife, and the Conservation operator, shall establish an endowment or some
other financial mechanism that is sufficient to fund in perpeturty the operation,
maintenance, managemen! and enforcement of the conservation easement. If an
endowment is used, either the endowment funds shall be submitted to the city for
impacts on lands within the city's jurisdiction to an appropriate third-party nonprofit
conservation agency, or they shall be submitted directly to the third-party nonprofit
conservation agency in exchange for an agreement to manage and maintain the lands in
perpetuity. The Conservation Operator shall not sell, lease, or tansfer any interest of
any conservation easement or mitigation land it acquires without prior written approval
of the City and California Deparfinent of Fish and Wildlife.

If the Conservation Operator ceases to exist, the duty to hold, administer, manag€,
maintain, and enforce the interest shall be transferred to another entity acceptable to the
city and California Departnent of Fish and Wildlife. The City Planning Departnent
shall ensure that mitigation habitat established for impacts on habitat within the City's
planning area is properly established and is frrnctioning as habitat by conducting regular
monitoring of the mitigation site(s) for the first ten years after establishment of the
easement.

3A3-2b61.
Cont.

Page 712

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD(PXE)
California Departnent
of Fish and Wildlife

cD(PXE)
California Departnent
of Fish and Wildlife

G

G

Burrowing Owl
A qualified biologist shall be retained by the ownerlapplicant to conduct a
preconstruction stwey to identiff active Bunowing Owl burrows within the project
area. The surveys shall be conducted no less than 14 days and no more than 30 days
before the beginning of grading and eonstruction activities for each phase of
development. The preconskuction survey shall follow the protocols outlined in the Staff
Report on Burrowing Owl Mitigation (CDFG 2Ol2>.

If active burrows are found, a mitigation plan shall be submitted to the City for review
and approval before any ground-dishnbing activities. The City shall consult with
Califomia Departrnent of Fish and Wildlife. The mitigation plan may consist of
installation of one-way doors on all burrows to allow owls to exit, but not reenter, and
construction of artifrcial burows within the project vicinity, as needed; however,
bunowing owl exclusions may only be used if a qualified biologist verifies that the
bunow does not contain eggs or dependent young. Ifactive burrows contain eggs and/or
young, no construction shall occur within 50 feet of the burrow until young have
fledged. Once it is confirmed that there are no owls inside burrows, these burrows may
be collapsed.
Nesting Raptorc
To mitigate impacts on nesting raptors, a qualified biologist shall be retained by the
owner/applicant to conduct a preconstruction survey to identifr active nests on and
within 0.5 miles of the project area. The surveys shall be conducted no less than 14 days
and no more than 30 days before the beginning of consffuction activities for each phase

of development

If active nests are found, impacts on nesting raptors shall be avoided by establishing
appropriate buffers around the nests. No project activity shall commence within the
buffer area until the young have fledged, the nest is no longer active, or until a qualified
biologist has determined in coordination with California Departrnent of Fish and
Wildlife that reducing the buffer would not result in nest abandonment. The buffer may
be adjusted if a qualifred biologist and the City, in consultation with Califomia
Department of Fish and Wildlife, determine that such an adjustnent would not be likely
to adversely affect the nest. Monitoring ofthe nest by a qualified biologist during and
after construction activities will be required if the activity has potential to adversely
affect the nest.

343-2a62.

63.

Page 713

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD(PXE)
Califomia Departnent
of Fish and Wildlife

cD(PXE)
California Deparfrnent
of Fish and Wildlife

G

G

Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Tricolored Blachbird Nesting Colonies.
To avoid and minimize impacts to tricolored blackbird, the owner/applicant of all
project phases shall conduct a preconstruction survey for any project activrty that would
occur during the tricolored blackbird's nesting season (March l-August 31). The
preconstruction survey shall be conducted by a qualified biologist before any activity
occurring within 500 feet of suitable nesting habitat, including freshwater marsh and
areas of riparian scrub vegetation. The survey shall be conducted within 14 days before
project activity begins.

If no tricolored blackbird colony is present, no furttrer mitigation is required. If a colony
is found, the qualified biologist shall establish a buffer around the nesting colony. No
project activity shall commence within the buffer area until a qualified biologist
confirms that the colony is no longer active. The size of the buffer shall be determined in
consultation with DFG. Buffer size is anticipated to range &om 100 to 500 feet,
depending on the nature of the project activity, the extent of existing disturbance in the
area, and other relevant circumstances.
Other Nesting Special-Staas and fuIigratory Birds
The ovrner/applicant shall retain a qualified biologist to conduct a preconstruction
survey for any project activity that would occur in suitable nesting habitat during the
avian nesting season (approximately March l-August 3l).The preconstruction survey
shall be conducted within 14 days before any activrty occuning within 100 feet of
suitable nesting habitat. Suitable habitat includes annual grassland, valley needlegrass
grassland, freshwater seep, vemal pool, seasonal wetland, and interrnittent drainage
habitat within the project site.

If no active special-status or other migratory bird nests are present, no frrther mitigation
is required. If an active nest is found, the qualified biologist shall establish a buffer
around the nest. No project activity shall commence within the buffer area until a
qualified biologist confinns that the nest is no longer active. The size of the buffer shall
be detennined in consultation with Califomia Departnent of Fish and Wildlife. Buffer
size is anticipated to range from 50 to 100 feet, depending on the nature ofthe project
activi6r, the exfent of existing disturbance in the area, and other relevant circumscances.

34.3-2c64.

65

Page 714

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD(PXE)
California Deparbnent
of Fish and Wildlife

cD (EXP)

G

G

Valley Needlegtass
The project shall preserve a total of 1.503 acres of Valley needlegrass grassland within
the on-site Open Space areas. This includes 1.164 acres of Valley needlegrass grassland
permanenfly protected in tle Conservation Area and 0.339 acre protected in the Passive
Recreation Open Space. Both of these types of Open Space will ultimately be managed
by the City of Folsom under an approved Operations and Management Plan for the
FPASP.

Prior to ground-breaking activities including grading or construction, the
owner/applican{ shall protect the existing Valley needlegrass grassland populations by
a highly visible construction fence for avoidance during grading. Once construction is
complete, graded areas within the Passive Recreation Open Space shall be restored to
nafiral grassland conditions. These areas shall be seeded with a native seed mix which
includes a majority of needlegrass species to ensure the establishment of additional areas
of Vallev needlegrass grasslands on site.
Animal Banicr
To discourage the migration of undesirable small animals (including snakes) into
adjacent developed properties during the development of the project, the
owner/applicant shall install a barier along all areas adjacent to developed residential
properties and parks to the satisfaction of the Community Development Deparfinent
and consistent with a qualified biologist's recommendations. ln general, the banier
may consist of wire-mesh fabric with openings not exceeding%-nch width. The height
ofthe barrier shall be at least 18 inches (above the ground surface), and may be buried
into the ground at least twelve inches. The barrier shall be supported with metal stakes
at no more than l0-foot spacing. The barrier shall be installed by the owner/applicant,
as approved by the Community Development Deparfrnent and a qualified biologist
prior to any construction disturbance on the site, including clearing and grading
operations.

3A3-4b66.

67

Page 715

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)
USACE

G

Conduct Construction Wor*er Awareness Training, Conduct On-Site Moniloring f
Required, Stop Work if Caltaral Resources are Discovered, Assess the Signifrcance of
the Find and Perform Treatment or Avoidance as Required
The owner/applicant(s) shall retain a qualified archaeologist to prepare and disseminate
a conhactor awareness taining program for all construction supervisors. The sensitivity
training program will provide information about notification procedures when potential
archaeological material is discovered, procedures for coordination between construction
personnel and information abotrt othertreatuent or issues that may arise if cultural
resources (including human rernains) are discovered during project construction. The
training shall be canied out each time a ne\il contractor will begin work in the project
area, and a minimum of once at the start of each conskuction season by that contactor,
the qualified archeologist shall submit the completed taining attendance roster and a
copy of the training materials to the City and the USACE within 48 hours of delivery of
the trainine Drosram.

3 A 5-1a
3A5-2
3A 5-3

68

Page 716

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (PXE)
Sacramento County

Coroner
Native American

Heritage Commission

OG

Saspend Gro und-Distwbing Activities if Hrutan Remains are Encountered and
Contply with California Health ond S$ety Code procedures.
In the event that human remains are discovered, construction activities within 150 feet
of the discovery shall be halted or diverted and the requirements for managing
unanticipated discoveries in Mitigation Measure 4.4-z(a) shall be implemented. In
addition, the provisions of Section 7050.5 of the California Health and Safety Code,
Section 5097.98 of the California Public Resources Code, and Assembly Bill264l shall
be implemented. When human remains are discovered, state law requires that the
discovery be reported to the County Coroner (Secfion 7050.5 of the Health and Safety
Code) and that reasonable protection m€asures be taken during construction to protect
tlre discovery from disturbance (AB 2641).

If the Coroner determines the remains are Native American, the Coroner shall noti$ the
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), which then designates a Native
American Most Likely Descendant for the project (section 5092.98 of the public
Resources Code). The designated Native American Most Likely Descendant then has 48
hours from the time access to the property is granted to make recommendations
concerning treatnent of the remains (AB 2641).

If the owner/applicant does not agree with the recommendations of the Native American
Most Likely Descendant, the NAHC can mediate (section s097.94 of the public
Resources Code). If no agreement is reache4 the owner/applicant shall rebury the
remains where they will not be firther disturbed (section 5097.98 ofthe public
Resources Code). This will also include either recording the site with the NAHC or the
appropriate Information Cente4 using an open space or conservation zoning designation
or easement; or recording a deed restriction with the county in which the property is
locafed (AB 2641).

3A 5-369

Page 717

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (EXP)

cD (EXP)

G

G

C o n d uct C o n slr ucli o n Wo r kerAworeness Training, Stop Work if Paleontological
Resources arc Discovered,. ssess the significance olthe Find, and prepare and
Implement a Recovery Plan as Required
Before the start of any earthmoving activities, tlte owner/applicant shall retain a
qualified professional to train all construction personnel involved with eartimoving
activities, including the site superintendent regarding the possibility of encountering
fossils, the appearance and types offossils likely to be seen during construction, and
proper notification procedures should fossils be encountered. The training shall be
included in the archaeological contractor awareness training program.

If paleontological resources are discovered during earthmoving activities, the
construction crew shall immediately cease work in the vicinity of the find and notifr the
City of Folsom's Communit5r Development Departnent. The owner/applicant shall
retain a qualified paleontologist to evaluate tlte resource and prepare a recovery plan in
accordance with Society of Vertebrate Paleontology guidelines (1996). The recovery
plan may include, but is not limited to, a field survey, construction monitoring, sarnpling
and data recovery procedures, museum storage coordination for any specimen
recovered, and a report of findings. Recommendafions in the recovery plan that are
determined by the lead agency to be necessary and feasible shall be implemented before
constuction activities can resume at ttre site where the paleontological resources were
discovered.
Ge o arc h eo I o gic al M o n ito r ing
In the eventthat any grading will occur within areas determined to require
geoarcheological monitoring, the ownerlapplicant shall retain a qualified professional
geoarcheologist who has a graduate degree in the specialized discipline, possesses a
demonstrated ability to carry research to completion, and has at least 24 months of
professional experience and/or specialized training in geoarcheology. The
geoarcheologist shall monitor the ground disturbing activities in the affected areas down
to 1.5 meters below the surface. The monitoring geoarcheologist shall submit proof of
monitoring in the form of daily field monitoring logs to the City and the US Anny
Corps of Engineers within 4E hows of completion of monitorins activities.

3A5-2

3,A. 5-1a

70.

7t

Page 718

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (EXP)

cD (E)Pw

G

G

Transport, Store, and Handle Construetion-Related fraztdous Mderiak in
Compliance with Relevant Regaluions and Guidelines.
The City shall ensure, through the enforc,ement of contractual obligations, that all
contractors tansport, store, and handle constnrction-related hazardous materials in a
manner consistent with relevant regulations and guidelines, including those
recommended and enforced by Caltrans, Central Valley RWQCB, local fne
departnents, and the County environmental health deparhnent.

Recommendations shall include as appropriate transporting and storing materials in
appropriate and approved containers, maintaining required clearances, and handling
materials using applicable Federal, state and/or local regulatory agency protocols. In
addition, all precautions required by the Central Valley RWQCB-issued NPDES
construction activity stormwater permits shall be taken to ensure that no hazardous
materials enter any nearby waterways.

ln the event of a spill, the City shall ensure, through the enforcement of contractual
obligations, that all contactors immediately contol the source of any leak and
immediately contain any spill utilizing appropriate spill containment and
countermeasures. If required by the local fue departrnents, the local environmental
health departneng or any other regulatory agency, contaminated media shall be
collected and disposed of at an off-site facility approved to accept such media.
The storage, handling, and use of the construction-related hazardous materials shall be
in accordance with applicable Federal, state, and local laws. Construction-related
hazardous materials and hazardous rvastes (e.g., fuels and waste oils) shall be stored
away from stream channels and steep banks to prevent these materials from entering
surface waters in the event of an accidental release. These materials shall be kept at
sufficient distance (at least 500 feet) from nearby residences or other sensitive land uses.
This includes materials stored for expected use, materials in equipment and vehicles,
and waste materials.
Landslide /Slope Foilure
The owner/applicant shall retain an appropriately licensed engineer dwing the grading
activities to identiff existing landslides and potential slope failure hazards. The said
engineer shall be notified a minimum of rwo days prior to any site clearing or grading to
facilitate meetings with the pradins contractor in the field.

38.8-la72.

73

Page 719

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E) Pw

cD (E) PW

IMPROVEMENT PLAIY REQIIIREMENTS

cD (E)

cD (PXE)

M

I

G

G

Minimize Utili$ Conflicls by hnplenenting an Underground Services Alert.
Underground utilities and service connections shall be identified prior to commencing
any excavation work through the implementation of an Underground Services Alert
(USA). The exact utility locations will be determined by hand-excavated test pits dug at
locations determined and approved by the construction manager (also referred to as

"pot-holing"). Temporary disruption of service may be required to allow for
constuction. No service on such lines would be disrupted until prior approval is
received from the construction manager and the servic,e provider.

Coordinde with Utility Providers and Inplenrcnt Appropride Installaion Mahods to
Mirtmize Potentiol Utilfil Service Disruptions.
Prior to installation, the City shall consult with EID, PG&E, etc., to determine proper
installation methods and final design criteria to minimize the potential for disruptions to
existine and nlanned utilities.

Improvement Plans
The improvement plans forthe required public and private subdivision improvements
nec€ssary to serve any and all phases of development shall be reviewed and approved by
the Community Development Departnent El Dorado County if applicable, and the El
Dorado lrisation District (EID) if applicable priorto approval of a Final Map.
fnspect and Evoluate Existing Dans Within and Upstream of the Project Site and Make
Incprovements if Nec essary.
Prior to submittal to the City of tentative maps or improvement plans the
owner/applicants shall conduct studies to determine the extent of inundation in the case

of dam failure. If the studies determine potential exposure of people or sfructures to a
significant risk of flooding as a result of the failure of a dam, the owner/applicants shall
implement of any feasible recommendations provided in that study, potentially through
drainage improvements, subiect to the approval of the City.

38.16-3a

38.16-3b

34.94:

74.

75.

76

77

Page 720

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (PXE)

cD (E)

I

I

Standard Const uaion Specitications and Details
Public and private improvements, including roadways, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bicycle
lanes and hails, steetlights, underground infrastructure and all other improvements shall
be provided in accordance with the latest edition of the City of Folsom Stotdod
Constrzction Specfrcations od Details and the Design od ProcedwesJulanual od
Improvenpnt Stotduds with the exception of sewer and water, which will be provided
by the El Dorado lrrigation District (ED). Sewer and water improvements shall be

provided in accordance with the EID Design and Constructions Standards (July-1999).
The sewer and water improvements shall also be designed and consbnrcted in accordance
with the approved Facilities Plan Report (FPR), and are subject to review and approval
bv EID.
Water and Sewer Infrastructure
All City-owned water and sewer infrastructure shall be placed within the street right of
way. In the event that a City-maintained public water or sewer main needs to be placed

in an area otherthan the public right ofway, such as tbrough an open space corridor,
landscaped area" etc., the following criteria must be met;

e The owner/applicant shall provide public sewer and water main easements

o An access road shall be designed and constructed to allow for the operations,

maintenance and replacement of the public water or sewer line by the City along
the entire water and/or sewer line alignment.

o In no case shall a City-maintained public water or public sewer line be placed on
private residential property.

o The domestic water and inigation system owned and maintained by the City
shall be separately metered per Ctty of Folsom Stodtd Constntction
S o e c ifi cat ions and Det ails -

o It is possible that sewer service for all or portions of Phase 3A and 3B of the

Folsom Heights Subdivision may be provided by the City of Folsom instead of
the El Dorado lrrigation District (EID). In such event the City of Folsom
service will be provided, pursuant to a prior written agreement between the City
and the EID on tenns acceptable to both entities.

78

79

Page 721

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (P)

cD (PXE)
EWR

cD (PXE)

I

G,I

I

Lighting Plan
The owner/applicant of all project phases shall submit a lighting plan for the project to
the Community Development Deparftnent. The ligbting plan shall be consistent with the
Folsom Heights Subdivision Design Guidelines:

a

a

a

a

a

shield or screen lighting fixtures to direct the light downward and prevent light spill
on adjacent properties;
place and shield or screen flood and area lighting needed for construction activities,
nighuime sponing activities, and./or security so as not to disturb adjacent residential
areas and passing motorists;
for public lighting in residential neighborhoods, prohibit the use of light fixtures that
are of unusually high intensity or that blink or flash;
use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare glass, low-glare building glaze
or finish, neutral, earthtoned colored paint and roofing materials), shielded or
screened lighting, and appropriate signage in the offrce/commercial areas to prevent
light and glare from adversely affecting motorists on nearby roadways; and
design exterior on-site lighting as an integral part of the building and landscaping
design in the Specific Plan Area. Lighting fixtures shall be architecturally consistent
with the overall site design. Lights used on signage should be directed to light only
the sign face with no offsite glare.

Above Ground Utilrty Site Design Review Applicotion
The owner/applicant shall submit a Site Design Review Application for all above ground
utility installations (water tanks, booster pumps stations, life stations, etc.) to the
Community Development Department to ensure these facilities are adequately screened.
These above ground utility installations shall be designed to be adequately screened
and/or blended into the hillsides through use of berming, landscaping or through the use
ofwalls or fences to the satisfaction of the Community Development Deparfinent. ln
addition, the final design, materials, and colors of any structures, walls, fences, and
enclosures shall be consistent with the Folsom Plan Area Public Facilities Design
Standards Master Building Materials and Colors List and to ttre satisfaction ofthe
Community Developme,nt Deparfrnent.
Utihty Coordination
The owner/applicant shall coordinate the planning, development and completion of this
project with the various utility agencies (i.e., SMUD, PG&E, etc.). The owner/applicant
shall provide the City with written confirmation of public utility service prior to approval
of all final maps.

3Al-5

38.l-Za.

E0.

81.

82.

Page 722

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD(E), EWR

cD (E), EWR

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E), EWR

cD (PXB)

cD (EXP)

I

I

I, OG

B

I

I

I

Implement Conosion Protection Measutes.
The owner/applicant shall be required to provide that all underground metallic fittings,
appurtenances and piping in the City's water systems include a cathodic protection
system to protect these facilities from corrosion. The cathodic protection system shall be
prepared by a licensed geotechnical or civil engineer and the system shall be reviewed
and approved by the City and the El Dorado lrrigation District (EID) prior to approval of
improvement olans.
Incorporote Pipeline Failure Contingency Measures fntu Final Pipeline Design
The owner/applicant shall be required to provide isolation valves or similar devices to be
incorporated into all pipeline facilities to prevent substantial losses of swface water in
the event of a pipeline failure. The pipeline failure contingency measures shall be
incorporated into the final pipeline design and this design shall be prepared by a licensed
geotechnical or civil engineer. The specifications for the isolation valves shall conform
to the California Building Code (CBC) and American Water Works Association
Standards. The final pipeline design shall be reviewed and approved by the City and the
El Dorado Irrigation District (EID) prior to approval of improvement plans.

Rep I acing llazailo us Facilities
The owner/applicant shall be responsible for replacing any and all damaged or hazardous
public sidewalk, curb and gutter, and/or bicycle trail facilities along the site frontage
and/or boundaries, including pre-existing conditions and construction damage, to the
satisfaction of the Community Development Deparfinent.
Futare UtiIfu Lines
All future utility lines lower than 69 KV ttrat are to be built within the projec! shall be
placed underground within and along the perimeter of the project at the developer's cost.
The owner/applicant shall dedicate to SMUD all necessary underground easements for
the electrical facilities that will be necessary to service development of the oroiect.
Water Meter Fixed Network System
The owner owner/applicant shall pay for, firmish and install all infrasructure associated
with the water meter fixed network system for any City-owned and maintained water
meter within the proiect.
Vertieal Curb
All curbs located adjacent to landscaping, whether natural or manicwed, and where

is allowed shall be vertical.
Class II Bike Lanes
All Class tr bike lanes shall be striped and painted green. No parking shall be pennitted
within the Class II bike lanes.

3B.74

38.7-1b

83

84

85

86.

87

88.

89

Page 723

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD(EXP)I

Noise Banierc
Based on the Supplemental Environmental Noise Assessment prepared by Bollard
Acoustical Consultants on March L0,20l7,the following mea$res shall be
implemented to the satisfaction of the Community Development Departrrent:

a Traffic noise barriers shall be conshucted along selected lots adjacent to White Rock
Road (Lots 1-6) and future Empire Ranch Road (Lots 18-23) at the locations indicated
on Figures 2and3 withinthe EnvironmentNoise Assessment. The noise barriers shall
be six-feet-tall relative to backyard elevation. The final location, design, materials,
and colors of the noise barriers shall be to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Departnent.

a All second-floor bedroom windows of selected lots adjacent to White Rock Road (Lots
1-3) and future Empire Ranch Road (Lots 20-21) from which the roadway is visible
shall be upgraded to a minimum STC rating of 32 (Shown on Figures 2 and3 within
the Environmental Noise Assessment).

a Mechanical ventilation (air conditioning) shall be provided for all single-family
residences within the Folsom Heigbts Subdivision to allow the occupants to close
doors and windows as desired to achieve compliance with dre applicable interior noise
level criteria-

3A 1l-490.

Page 724

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD(E), EWR, PWG, I

Master Plan Updaes
The City has approved the Folsom Plan Area Storm Drainage Master Plan, Wastewater
Master Plan, and Sewer Master Plan. The owner/applicant shall submit complete updates
to the approved master plans, if applicable, forthe proposed changes to the master plans
as a result of the proposed project. The updates to the master plans for the proposed
project shall be reviewed and approved by the City prior to approval of grading and/or
improvement plans.

The plans shall be accompanied by engineering studies supporting the sizing, location,
and timing of the proposed facilities. lmprovements shall be constructed in phases as the
project develops in accordance with the approved master plans, including any necessary

off-site improvements to support development of a particular phase or phases, subject to
prior approval by the City. Oflsite improvements may include roadways to provide
secondary access, water transmission lines or distribution facilities to provide a looped
water system, sewer trunk mains and lift stations, water quality facilities, non-potable
water pipelines and infrastructure, and drainage facilities including on or off-site
detention. No changes in infrastucture from that shown on the approved master plan
shall be pennitted unless and until the applicable master plan has been revised and

approved by the City. Final lot configurations may need to be modified to accommodate
the improvements identified in these studies to the satisfaction of the City.

The owner/applicant shall provide sanitary sewer, water and storm drainage
improvements with corresponding easements, as necessary, in accordance with these

studies and the latest edition of the City of Folsom Stodard Construction Specifrcatians
md Details. andthe Design od Procedwes IuImuaI arzd Improvement Standards and
in accordance with the El Dorado krigation District @ID) Design and Constructions
Standards (July-1999) where applicable. The sewer and water improvements shall also
be included in the Facilities Plan Report (FPR), which is subject to review and approval
by EID.

The storm drainage design shall provide for no net increase in run-offunder post-
develooment conditions.

9l

Page 725

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), PW
PW (Sacto. Co. or El

Dorado Co.)
CALTRANS

USACE
CVRWQCB

G, I

Design Stormwder Drainage Plans and Erosion and Sediment Control Plans to Avoid
and Minimke Erosion and Ranoff to AII Wetlands and Other Wmerc That Are to
Remain on the SPA and Use Low Impact Development Featwes.
To minimize indirect effects on water qualrty and wetland hydrology, the
owner/applicant shall include stormwater drainage plans and erosion and sediment
control plans in their grading and/or improvement plans and shall submit these plans to
the City for review and approval. Prior to approval of grading and/or improvement plans,
the owner/applicant for any particular discretionary development application shall obtain
a NPDES Constuction General Permit and Grading Permit, comply with the City's
Grading Ordinance and City drainage and stormwater quality standards, and commit to
implementing all measwes in their drainage plans and erosion and sediment contol
plans to avoid and minimize erosion and runoffinto Alder Creek and all wetlands and
otler waters that would remain on-site.

The owner/applicant shall implement stormwater qualrty treafrnent controls consistent
with the Stormwater Qualif Design Manual for Sacramento and South Placer Regions
in effect at the time the application is submitted. Appropriate runoffcontrols such as
berms, storm gates, off-stream detention basins, overflow collection areas, filtration
systems, and sediment traps shall be implemented to control siltation and the potential
discharge of pollutants. Development plans shall incorporate Low Impact Development
(LID) features, such as pervious strips, permeable pavements, bioretention ponds,
vegetated swales, disconnected rain gutter downspouts, and rain gardens, where
appropriate. Use of LID features is recommended by the EPA to minimize impacts on
water quality, hydrology, and stream geomorphology and is specified as a method for
protecting water quality in the proposed specific plan. In addition, free spanning bridge
systems shall be used for all roadway crossings over wetlands and other waters that are
retained in the on-site open space. These bridge systems would maintain the natural and
restored channels of creeks, including the associated wetlands, and would be designed
with sufficient span width and depth to provide for wildlife movement along the creek
corridors even during high-flow or flood events, as specified in the 404 permit. The
owner/applicant shall be responsible for all necessary off-site improvements needed to
support the Folsom Heiehts Subdivision drainage system.

3A 3-1a92.

Page 726

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)

cD (E)

G, I

OG

Best Managemcnt Practiees
The storm drain improvernent plans shall provide for "Best Management Practices" that
meet the requirements ofthe water quality stanwhitedards of the Crty's National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit issued by the State Regional Water
Qualtty Control Board.

In addition to compliance with city ordinances, the owner/applicant shall prepare a
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), and implement Best Management
Practices (BI\PO that comply with the General Construction Stormwater Perrnit from
the central valley RwQcB, to reduce water quality effects during construction.
Detailed infonnation aboutthe swPPP and BMPs are provided in chapter 3A.9,
"Hydrolory and Water Quality."

Each proposed project development shall result in no net change to peak flows into
Alder creek and associated tributaries, or to Buffalo creek, Carson creek, and Coyote
Creek. The owner/applicant shall establish a baseline of conditions for drainage on-site.
The baseline-flow conditions shall be established,for2-,5-, and 100-year storm events.
These baseline conditions shall be used to develop monitoring standards for the
stormwater system on the Specific Plan Area. The baseline conditions, monitoring
standards, and a monitoring program shall be submitted to USACE and the City for their
approval. Water quallty and detention basins shall be designed and constructed to ensure
that the performance standards, which are described in chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and
Water Quality,'are met and shall be designed as off-stream detention basins.

Discharge sites into Alder Creek and associated tributaries, as well as tributaries to
Carson Creek, Coyote Creek, and Buffalo Creek, shall be monitored to ensure that pre-
project conditions are being met. Corrective measures shall be implemented as
necessary. The mitigation measures will be satisfied when the monitoring standards are
met for 5 consecutive years without undertaking corrective measures to meet the
performance standaxd.
Lifier Control
During Construction, the owner/applicant shall be responsible for litter control and
sweeping of all paved surfaces in accordance with City standards. All on-site storm
drains shall be cleaned immediately before the commencement of the rainy season
(October l5).

93

94.

Page 727

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), FD

cD (P), FD

I,B

G,I, M, B

Ineorporate Fire Flow Requiremcnts into Project Designs.
The owner/applicant shall incorporate into their project designs fire flow requirements
based on the Califomia Fire Code, Folsom Fire Code and shall verify to the City of
Folsom Fire Deparftnent and EI Dorado Hills Fire Department that adequate water flow
is available, prior to approval of improvement plans and issuance of occupancy permits
or final inspections for all nroiect ohases-
Prepme fuel modiJication plan ( FMP).
If applicable, the owner/applicant shall submit a Fuel Modification Plan to the City for
review and preliminary approval from the Fire Code Official prior to any Final and/or
Parcel Map. Final approval of the plan by the Fire Code Official shall occur prior to the
issuance of a permit for any ne\il consffuction. A Fuel Modification Plan shall consist of
a set of scaled plans showing fuel modification zones indicated with applicable
assessment notes, a detailed landscape plan and an inigation plan. A fuel modification
plan submitted for approval shall be prepared by one of the following: a California state
licensed landscape architect, or state licensed landscape contactor, or a landscape
designed, or an individual with expertise acceptable to the Fire Code Official. The
owner/applicant shall obtain off-site easements for the required for the fuel modification
buffer.

The owner/applicant agree to be responsible forthe long-term maintenance of the Fuel
Modification Plan. Notification of fuel modification requirements are to be made upon
sale to new properiy owners. Proposed changes to the approved Fuel Modification Plan
shall be submitted to the Fire Code Official for approval pnior to imolementation.

3At4-3
I"IRE DEPT

95.

96.

Page 728

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (P), FDG, I,M,B

AII-Weaher Access and Fbe Hydrants
The owner/applicant shall provide all-weather access and fire hydrants before
combustible materials are allowed on any project site or other approved alternative
method as approved by the Fire Code OffrciaVFire Chief. All-weather emergency access
roads and fire hydrants (tested and flushed) shall be provided before combustible
material or vertical constuction is allowed on any project site or other approved
alternative method as approved by the Fire Code Official/Fire Chief. (All-weather access
is defined as six inches of compacted aggregate base from May 1 to September 30 and
two inch asphalt concrete over six inch aggregate base from October to April 30). The
building shall have illuminated addresses visible from the street or drive fronting the
property. Size and location of address identification shall be reviewed and approved by
the Fire Marshal.
o Commercial Fire-Flow with Automatic Fire Sprinkler System: The required fire-flow

for the general commercial portion of the project is determined to be 750 GPM for
three hours. The reduced fue-flow shall not be less than 1,000 GPM for commercial
buildings with automatic sprinkler systems per Section 903.1.1 of the CFC, and shall
not be less than 1,500 GPM for commercial buildings with automatic sprinkler systems
per Section 903.3.I.2 of the CFC.

r Residential Fire-Flow with Automatic Fire Sprinkler System: The required fire-flow
for the proposed residential portion of the project is determined to be 875 GPM for
one hour.

r All public sfieets shall meet City of Folsom Street Standards unless an alternative is
specifically included within this approval.

r The maximum length of any dead end street shall not exceed 500 feet in accordance
with the Folsom Fire Code (unless approved by the Fire Deparftnent). Several streets
indicated on the plans are dead ends greater than 500 feet. In such cases, a second
emergency access will be required.

. All-weather em€rgency access roads and fire hydrants (tested and flushed) shall be
provided before combustible material storage or vertical construction is allowed. AII-
weather access is defined as 6" of compacted AB from May I to September 30 and
2'?C over 6'AB from October I to April 30

o The first Fire Station planned for the Folsom Plan Area shall be completed and
operational at the time that the threshold of 1,500 occupied homes within the Folsom
Plan Area is met.

97

Page 729

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), FD, PWI,B,O

Incorporde California Fire Code; City of Folsom Fire Code Requiremcn&; and
EDHFD Reqairernen&, if Necessary, inta l+oject Design and Submit Projed Design to
the Cily of Folsom Fire Departmentfor Review andApproval.
To reduce impacts related to the provision of new fire services, the owner/applicant shall
do the following, as described below:
Incorporate into project designs fire flow requirements based on the California Fire Code,
Folsom Fire Code (City of Folsom Municipal Code Title 8, Chapter 8.36), and other
applicable requirements based on the City of Folsom Fire Departnent fire prevention
standards. lmprovement plans showing the incorporation of automatic sprinkler systems,
the availability of adequate fire flow, and the locations of hydrants shall be submitted to
the City of Folsom Fire Deparftnent for review and approval. In addition, approved plans
showing access design shall be provided to the City of Folsom Fire Deparfinent as
described by Zoning Code Section 17.57.080 ('Vehicular Access Requirements"). These
plans shall describe access-road length, dimensions, and finished surfaces for firefighting
equipment. The installation of security gat€s across a fire apparatus access road shall be
approved by the City of Folsom Fire Deparfrrent. The design and operation of gates and
barricades shall be in accordance with the Sacrarnento County Emergency Access Gates
and Bariers Standard, as required by the City of Folsom Fire Code.

3Al4-298.

Page 730

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD(P), PW

cD (P), PW

cD (E), FD

I, OG

I, OG

M

Landscaping Plnns
Final landscape plans and specifications shall be prepared by a registered landscape
architect and approved by the City Arborist and City staffpriorto the approval of
improvement plans. Said plans shall include all on-site landscape specifications and
details, and shall comply with all State and local rules, regulations, Governor's
declarations and restrictions pertaining to water conservation and outdoor landscaping.

Landscaping shall meet shade requirements as outlined in the Folsom Plan Area Specific
Plan where applicable. The landscape plans shall comply and implement water effrcient
requirements as adopted by the State of California (Assembly Bill 1881) (State Model
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance) until such time the City of Folsom adopts its own
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance at which time the ownerlapplicant shall comply with
any new ordinance. Shade and ornamental trees shall be maintained according to the most
current American National Standards for Tree Care Operations (ANSI A-300) by qualified
tree care professionals. Tree topping for height reduction, view protection, light clearance
or any other purpose shall not be allowed. Specialty-style pruning, such as pollarding, shall
be specified within the approved landscape plans and shall be implemented dwing a 5-
year establishment and training period. Landscaping installed in open spaces located
between tiers of lots shall be chosen for resistance to fne and limited fuel production.
Furthermore, the owner/applicant shall comply with city-wide landscape rules or
regulations on water usage. Owner/applicant shall comply with any state or local rules
and regulations relating to landscape water usage and landscaping requirements
necessitated to mitigate for drought conditions on all landscaping in the Folsom Heights
Subdivision proiect.
Right of Way Landscaping
Landscaping along all road rights of way and in public open space lots shall be installed
when the adioinine road or lots are constucted.
Roundabout Design
Prior to approval of the Final Map, the design all roundabouts shall be reviewed and
approved by the Community Development Departnent the Folsom Cordova Unified
School District (FCUSD) and the Fire Deparfrnent. The design shall include proposed
lane configurations, proposed driveways, and any proposed landscape/hardscape
features.

99.

100.

101

Page 731

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (PXE)

cD (E)

M

M

S ubdivision Improvement Agreement
Prior to the approval of any Final Map, the owner/applicant shall enter into a

subdivision improvement agreement with the City, identiling all required
improvements, if any, to be constructed with each proposed phase of development. The

owner/applicant shall provide security acceptable to the City, guaranteeing construction
of the improvements.
The Final Inclusionary Housing PIun
The Final Inclusionary Housing Plan shall be approved by the City Council, and the
Inclusionary Housing Agreement approved by the City Attorney shall be executed prior
to recordation of the first Final Map for the Folsom Heights Subdivision.

103.

MAP
102.

Page 732

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (P) PKM

Conditions, Covenants, ond Restrictians (CC&Rs)
The owner/applicant shall disclose to the homebuyers in the Covenants, Conditions, and
Restrictions (CC&Rs) and in the Deparrnent of Real Estate Fublic Report

1) Future public parks and public schools are located in relatively close proximity
to the proposed subdivision, and that the public parks may include facilities
(basketball courts, a baseball field, softball fields, socoer fields, and playground
equipment) that may generate noise impacts during various times, including but
not limited to evening and nighttime hours. The owner/applicant shall also
disclose that the existing public parks include nighffime sports lighting that may
generate lighting impacts during evening and nighttime hours.

2) The soil in the subdivision may contain naturally occurring asbestos.

3) The collecting, digging, or removal of any stone, artifac! or other prehistoric or
historic object located in public or open space aneas, and the disturbance ofany
archaeological site or historic property, is prohibited.

4) The project site is located within close proximity to the Mather Airpot flight
path and that overflight noise may be present at various times.

5) That all properties located within one mile of an on- or oflsite area zoned or
used for agricultural use (including livestock gazing) Sall be accompanied by
written disclosure from the transferor, in a form approved by the City of
Folsom, advising any transferee of the potential adverse odor impacts from
surrounding agricultural operations which disclosure shall direct the transferee
to contact the County of Sacramento concerning any such property within the
County zoned for agricultural uses witlin one mile of the subject property being
hansferred.

342-6104.

Page 733

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (PXE)

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

M

M

M

M

Financing Districls
The owner/applicant shall form a Landscape and Lighting Assessment District, a
Community Services District, and/ or a Home Owners Association, which shall be
responsible for maintenance of all common areas, maintenance of all on-site
landscaping, maintenance of storm drainage facilities, maintenance of storm water
detention/detention basins and associated channels, maintenance of water quality ponds,
and maintenance of any other site facilities in the subdivision throughout the life of the
proiectto the satisfaction ofthe Community Development Department.
Public AfiW Easements
The owner/applicant shall dedicate public easements for water, sewer, and sidewalks
within the private streets, as well as public utility easements for underground public
facilities on properties adjacent to the streets. Twelve and one-half-foot (12-5') wide
Public Utility Easements for underground public facilities shall be dedicated adjacent to
all private and public streets for other public utilities (i.e., SMUD, Pacific Gas and
Electric, cable television, telephone). The width of the public utility easements
adjacent to public and private streets may be reduced with prior approval from public
utility companies. The owner/applicant shall dedicate additional width to accommodate
extraordinary facilities as determined by the City- The width of the public utility
easements adjacentto public and private right of way may be reduced with prior
aooroval from public utility companies.
FinalMap Phasing
Should multiple Final Maps be filed by the owner/applicant the phasing of maps shall
be to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department.
B ac k b o n e Infr as tr ucl ut e
As provided for in the ARDA and the Amendment No. I thereto, the owner/applicant
shall provide fully executed grant deeds, legal descriptions, and plats for all necessary
Backbone Infrastructure to serve the project, including but not limited to lands, public
rights of way, public utility ease,ments, public water main easements, public sewer
easements, irrevocable offers of dedication and temporary construction easements. All
required easements as listed necessary for the Backbone lnfrastructure shall be reviewed
and approved by the City and recorded with the Sacramento County Recorder pursuant
to the timing requirements set forth in Section 3.8 of the ARDAe and any amendments
fhereto.

105

106_

t07

108

Page 734

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD(E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

M

M

M

New P e rmane nt B e n c hmar k s
The owner/applicant shall provide and establish new permanent benchmarks on the
(NAVD 88) datum in various locations within the subdivision or at any other locations
in the vicinity of the oFsite Backbone Infrastructure as directed by the City Engineer.
The type and specifications for the permanent benchmarks shall be provided by the
City. The new benchmarks shall be placed by the owner/applicant within 6 months
from the date ofalrproval ofthe vestine tentative subdivision map.
Maintenance PIan Final Approval
No Final Map will be accepted by the city for processing and review until such time that
the Open Space Management and Financing Plan, the Drainage Facilities Maintenance
and Financing Plan and the Parks, Trails, Landscape Corridon, Medians and Open
Space Maintenance Community Facilities District is formed and approved by the City
Council.
Community Facilities Districts and Financing Plans
Prior to approval of the first small lot final map and in accordance with Amendment No.
I of the ARDA and any further amendments thereto, the owner/applicant is required to
complete the following where applicable:

r Formation and approval by the City Council of the Aquatic Center CFD,
r Formation and approval by the City Council of the Parks, Trails, Landscape

Corridors, Medians and Open Space Maintenance CFD,
r Formation and approval by the City Council of the Stomr Drainage

Maintenance CFD (unless such drainage maintenance is included in the
Services CFD) ,

o Formation and approval by the City Council of the Street Maintenance
Disriet/Lighting Maintenance Distict CFD (unless such street maintenance is
included in the Services CFD)

o Formation and approval by the city council of the open space Management
and Financing Plan.

r Formation and approval by the City Council of the Drainage Facilities
Maintenance and Financing Plan

109

110

111

Page 735

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), EWR

cD (EXB),
PW

cD (E)

M

M,B,O

M

Water S upply Availability
The owner/applicant shall submit proof of compliance with Government Code Section
66473.7 (SB 221) by demonstrating the availability of a reliable and sufficient water
supply from the City of Folsom if applicable for the amount of development that would
be authorized by the final subdivision map. Such a demonstration shall consist of
information showing that both existing sources are available or needed supplies and
improvements will be in place prior to occupancy. The written proof of compliance
shall be nrovided to the City prior to approval of any final map.
submit Proof of Adequue ofrf-site wder convqtance Facilities and rnplement off-
site Infrastructure Semice System or Ensure That Adequae Financing Is Secured
The owner/applicant shall submit proof to the City of Folsom that an adequate off-site
water conveyance system either has been constructed or is ensured to the City's
satisfaction. The off-site lvater conveyanc€ infrastructure sufficient to provide adequate
service to the project shall be in place for the amount of development identified in the
tentative map before approval of a final subdivision map and issuance of building
permits for all project phases, or their financing shall be ensured to the satisfaction of
the City. A building permit shall not be issued for any building within the project until
the water conveyance infrastmcture sufficient to senre such building has been
constructed and is in place to the satisfaction of the City and the El Dorado Irigation
District(ED).
Centralized Mail Delivery Units
All Final Maps shall show easements or other mapped provisions forthe placement of
centalized mail delivery unis. The owner/applicant shall provide a concrete base for
the placement of any centralized mail delivery unit. Specifications and location of such
base shall be determined pursuant to the applicable requirernents of the U. S. Postal
Service and the City of Folsom Community Development Departnent, with due
consideration for steet light location, traffic safety, securiqr, and consumer
convenience.

4.7-1
3A 18-l

3A 18-2a

112.

113

1 14.

Page 736

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)B

Inplement Additional Meuures to Reduce Operational GHG Emissions.
Energy Efriciency
r Include clean alternative energy features to promote energy self-sufficiency (e.g.,

photovoltaic cells, solar thennal electricity systems, small wind turbines).
. Design buildings to meet CEC Tier II requirements (e.g., exceeding the

requirements of the Title24 [as of 2007] by 35%).
. Site buildings to take advantage of shade and prevailing winds and design

landscaping and swr screens to reduce energy use.
r Install efficient lighting in all buildings (including residential). Also install lighting

control systems, where practical. Use daylight as an integral part of lighting systems
in all buildings.

r Install light-colored "sool" pavements, and strategically located shade trees along
all bicycle and pedestrian routes.

Water Conser:yation and Elficiency
e With the exception of ornarnental shade trees, use water-efficient landscapes with

native or drought-resistant species in all public area and commercial landscaping.
IJse water-effrcient turf in parks and other turf-dependent spaces.

o Install the infrastructure to use reclaimed water for landscape irrigation and/or
yssfoing cars.

r Install water-efficient irrigation systems and devices, such as soil moisture-based
irrigation contols.

. Desigl buildings and lots to be water-efficient. Only install water-efFrcient fixtures
and appliances.

34.4-2a11 5.

Page 737

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)

cD (E)

B

B

o Restrict watering methods (e.g., prohibit systems that apply water to nonvegetated
surfaces) and conhol runoff. Prohibit businesses from using pressure washers for
cleaning driveways, parking lots, sidewalks, and street surfaces. These restrictions
should be included in the Covenants, Conditions, and Restictions of the
community.

o Provide education about water conservation and available progftuns and incentives.
o To reduce stormwater runoff, which typically bogs down wastewater treatnent

systems and increases their energy consumption, construct driveways to single-
family detached residences and parking lots and driveways of multifamily
residential uses with pervious surfaces. Possible designs include Hollywood drives
(two concrete strips with vegetation or aggregate in between) and/or the use of
porous concrete, porous asphalt, turfblocks, or pervious pavers.

Solid Waste Measures
o Reuse and recycle construction and demolition waste (including, but not limited to,

soil, vegetation, concrete, lumber, metal, and cardboard).
. Provide interior and exterior storage areas for recyclables and green waste at all

buildings.
e Provide adequate recycling containers in public areas, including parks, school

grounds, golf courses, and pedestrian zones in areas of mixed-use development.
. Provide education and publicity about reducing waste and available recycling

services.

Transportation and Motor Vehicles
r Promote ride-sharing programs and employment centers (e.9., by designating a

certain percentage ofparking spilces for ride-sharing vehicles, designating adequate
passenger loading and unloading zones and waiting areas for ride-share vehicles,
and providing a Web site or message board for coordinating ride-sharing).

r Provide the necessary facilities and infrastructure in all land use types to encourage
the use of low- or zero-emission vehicles (e.g., electric vehicle charging facilities
and conveniently located alternative fueline stations).

Recorded FinalMap
Prior to the issuance of building permits, the owner/applicant shall provide a digital
copy of the recorded Final Map (in AutoCAD format) to the Community Development
Departnent.

34.4-2aI 15.

Cont.

116.

Page 738

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (P), FCUSD

cD (E)

B

B

Recorded FinolMap
Prior to issuance of building permits, the owner/applicant shall provide the Folsom-
Cordova Unified School District with a copy of the recorded Final Map.
Implement Measutes to Reduce Noisefrom Project-Generded Stationuy Sources.
The owner/applicant shall implement the following measures to reduce the effect of
noise levels generated by on-site stationary noise sources that would be located within
600 feet ofany noise-sensitive receptor:
r Routine testing and preventive maintenance of emergency electrical generators shall

be conducted during the less sensitive daytime hours (i.e., 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.).
All electrical generators shall be equipped with noise control (e.g., muffler) devices
in accordance with manufacturers' specifications.

r External mechanical equipment associated with buildings shall incorporate features
designed to reduce noise emissions below the stationary noise source critsria. These
features may include, but are not limited to, locating generators within equipment
rooms or enclosures that incorporate noise-reduction features, such as acoustical
louvers, and exhaust and intake silencers. Equipment enclosures shall be oriented so
that major openings (i.e., intake louvers, exhaust) are directed away from nearby
noise-sensitive receptors.

o Parking lots shall be located and designed so that noise ernissions do not exceed the
stationary noise source criteria established in this analysis (i.e., 50 dB for 30
minutes in every hour during the daytime 17 a.m. to 10 p.m.l and less than 45 dB for
30 minutes of every hour during the night time [10 p.m. to 7 a.m.]). Reduction of
parking lot noise can be achieved by locating parking lots as far away as feasible
from noise sensitive land uses, or using buildings and topographic features to
provide acoustic shielding for noise-sensitive land uses.

o Loading docks shall be located and designed so that noise emissions do not exceed
the sta:tionary noise source criteria established in this analysis (i.e-, 50 dB for 30
minutes in every hour during the daytime l7 a.m. to l0 p.m.] and less than 45 dB for
30 minutes of every hour during the night time [10 p.m. to 7 a.m.J). Reduction of
loading dock noise can be achieved by locating loading docks as far away as

possible from noise sensitive land uses, consfucting noise bariers between loading
docks and noise-sensitive land uses, or using buildings and topographic features to
orovide acoustic shieldine for noise-sensitive land uses.

3A.11-5

tl7.

1 18.

Page 739

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (P)

cD (BXP)

B

B

Design Review Approval
Prior to issuance of a building permit for any residential units within the subdivision,
the owner/applicant shall obtain Design Review and/or Planned Development approval
from the Planning Commission for all residences to be built within the subdivision. If
the architecture is not consistent with the Folsom Heights SuMivision Design
Guidelines, the owner applicant may modiff the plans or apply for a modification to the
Desim Guidelines to be approved by the Plannine Commission.
Divert Seasonal Waer Flows Awuyfrom Building Foundalions.
The owner/applicant of each project phase shall either install subdrains (which typically
consist of perforated pipe and gravel, surounded by nonwoven geotextile fabric), or
take such other actions as recommended by the geotechnical or civil engineer for the
project that would serve to divert seasonal flows caused by surface infiltration, water
seepage, and perched water during the winter months away from buildine foundations.

3A.7-5

I19.

120.

Page 740

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



TRAFFIC, ACCESS, CTRCULATION, AND PARISNG REQIiTREMnNTS
It should be noted that many of the Transportation, Traffrc, and Circulation mitigation measures identified below will be satisfied through the payment of fees.
Below is a brief summary of the fee types and their purpose. The acronyms for each fee type noted below are further noted in the Implementation Schedule column
of each applicable mitigation measure to clari$ how each mitigation measure is anficipaled to be satisfied.

Public Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP):
In January of 2014, the City of Folsom adopted the PFFP for the Folsom Plan Area which detailed all the infrastructure components to address full build out of the
Plan Area. The PFFP includes various techniques including development fees to fund the necessaq/ infrastructure. The City is currently in the process of preparing
and adopting implementing ordinances and a nexus study required by State law to impose the associated development fees.

Included in the PFFP are a number roadway projects including the Highway Interchanges that the Folsom Heights Subdivision project will have curnulative impacts
on within the Folsom PIan Area. The PFFP was designed to satisfy the "fair sha.rs" financing of all the Plan Area's backbone roadway system. Participating in this
fee program will satisfu numerous roadway mitigation measures as shown in the MMRP table.

Sacramento County Transportation Development Fee (SCTDF) conftibution:
The City is establishing a "fair share" fee to mitigate roadway impacts outside the project boundaries and within unincorporated Sacramento County. This fee will
be included in the City Facilities portion of the Public Facilities Financing Plan program and will be collected at the time of building permit issuance. The basis for
the calculation of the fee is a report entitled, "Fair Share Cost Allocation Sacramento County & Clty of Folsom" dated January 2,2014-

Cal TranV City Memorandum of Understanding (Cal Trans MOU):
The City of Folsom and Cal Trans entered into an MOU on December 17,2014 to establish a fee mechanism to address the 'fair share" impacts to Highway 50.
The MOU identifies all the highway improvements for which there are mitigation measures and potential construction projects to address them. The City will
establish a fee in the City Facilities portion ofthe Public Facilities Financing Plan and it will be collected at the time of building permit issuance.

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

B
(pay SCTDF)

East BidwelUlron Point
Prior to issuance of a building permig the owner/applicant shall pay a fair share fee to
the City of Folsom towards the modification to the westbound approach to the East
Bidwell Street/Iron Point Road intersection to include three left-turn lanes, two through
lanes, and one right-turn lane.

Scatt Road (West)/White Rock Road
To ensure that the Scott Road (West/White Rock Road intersection operates at an
acceptable LOS, a traffic sigrral shall be installed.

3A 15-4b,d

3A15-lc

t2t

122.

Page 741

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(pay PFFP fee)

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(Caltrans
MOrD

Enpire Ranch Road/Iron Point Road Intersection
To ensure that the Empire Ranch Road / Iron Point Road intersection operates at a LOS
D or better, all of the following improvements are required:
. The eastbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist ofone left-turn lane,

two through lanes, and a right-turn lane.
. The westbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes,

one through lane, and a through-right lane.
. The northbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist of two left-tum lanes,

three through lanes, and a right-turn lane.
. The southbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-turn lanes,

three tfuough lanes, and a right-turn lane.

The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of fundinq of improvements.
US 1Ofrom Sunrise Boulevard to East BidweU Street/Scott Road
Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound
U.S. 50 between Sunrise Boulevard to East Bidwell Street/Scott Road (Freeway Segment
4). To ensune that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Folsom
Boulevard and Prairie City Road an auxiliary lane shall be constructed. This
improvement was rccommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S.
50 Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor
Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding
of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and
reliable mechanism paid for by the owner/applicant to reduce the impacts to EagSound
U.S. 50 between Sunrise Boulevard to East Bidwell StreeVScott Road (Freeway Segment
4).
Westbound I/S. 50 befiveen Prairie Cig Road and Folsom Boulevard
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Prairie City
Road and Folsom Boulevard, an arxiliary lane shall be constructed. This improvement
was recommended in the Trafhc Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary
Lane Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee
Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable
mechanism paid for by the owner/applican! to reduce the impacts to Westbound U.S. 50
between Prairie City Road and Folsom Boulevard.

3A 154f

3A l5-1s

3A l5-1u

t23.

t24.

t25.

Page 742

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(Caltrans
MOrD

B
(Caltans
MOU)

B
(PFrP)

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

I/S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road Diverge
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road
off-ramp diverge, an auxiliary lane from the Folsom Boulevard merge shall be
consfucted. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis
Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project. This auxiliary lane improvement is
included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant shall
pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to reduce the impacts to the U.S.
50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road diverge.
U.S. 50 Eastboand/Prairie City Rood Direet Merge
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS atthe hairie City Road
on-riunp direct merge, an arxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road diverge
shall be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement included in the proposed 50
Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 EastboundlPrairie City
Road direct merge.
I/S. 50 EastboundlPrabie City Road Flyover On-Rmnp to Oak Avenae Parkwry Off-
Ramp Wesve
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road
flyover on-ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway off-ramp weave, an improvement acceptable to
Caltrans shall be implemented to eliminate the unacceptable weaving conditions. Such
an improvement may involve a "braided rarnp". The owner/applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to reduce ttre impacts to the U.S. 50
Eastbound / Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway oFramp weave.
U.S. 50 Eastbound/OakAvenue Parkway Loop Merge
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Oak Avenue
Parkway loop merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road diverge
shall be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50
Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/ Oak Avenue
Parkway loop merge (Freeway Merge 9).

3.4. 15-1x

3A l5-1y

3A 15-12

3.4' l5-laa

126.

tz1

128

129

Page 743

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(Caltrans
MOrD

B
(Caltrans
MOLD

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

U.S. 50 Westbound/Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound
Empire Ranch Road loop on-ramp should start the westbound auxiliary lane that ends at
the East Bidwell Street- Scott Road offramp. The slip on-ramp from southbound
Empire Ranch Road would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this
freeway segment shall be implemented by Caltrans. The owner/applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50
Westbound/Empire Ranch Road loop ramp merse.
I/.S. S0 Westbound/Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Ranp Merge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Oak
Avenue Parkway loop on-ramp should start the westbound auxiliary lane that ends at the
Prairie City Road o$ramp. The slip on-ramp from southbound Oak Avenue Parkway
would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway segment
shall be implemented by Caltans. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of fimding of improvements to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Oak
Avenue Parkway loop ramp merge.
I/S. 50 WestboundlPruirie City Road Loop Ramp lllerge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City
Road loop ramp m€rge, an auxiliary lane to the Folsom Boulevard offramp diverge shall
be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor
Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding
of improvements to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 WestboundlPrairie City Road
Inop Ramp Merge.
U.S. 50 Westbound/Prairie Cfu Road Direa Ranqt Merge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City
Road direct ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Folsom Boulevard offramp diverge
shall be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50
Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/?rairie City
Road direct ramp merge.

34' 15-ldd

34' l5-lee

3A l5-1ff

3,A'-15-lgg

130

l3l

132.

133.

Page 744

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(pay PFFP/
lnterchange

fee)

B
(pay PFFP fee)

B
(pay PFFP fee)

Eastbound US 50 between Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue Parhwry
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Prairie City
Road and Oak Avenue Parkway, the northbound Prairie City Road slip on-ramp should
merge with the eastbound auxiliary lane that extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue
Parkway offramp and the southbound Prairie city Road flyover on-ftrmp should be
braided over the Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp and start an extended full auxiliary lane
to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road offramp. Improvements to this freeway segment
shall be implemented by Caltrans. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate
and reliable mechanism paid for by owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to Eastbound
U.S. 50 between Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway.
A.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road SIip Ramp Merge.
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie
City Road slip on-ramp should start the eastbound auxiliary lane that extends to and
drops at the Oak Avenue Pmkway offramp (see mitigation measure 3A.15-4u, w and x),
and the southbound Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp should be braided overthe Oak
Avenue Parkway offramp and start an extended full auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell
Street - Scou Road offramp. knprovements to this freeway segment shall be
implemented by Caltrans. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be detennined by a nexus study or other appropriate
and reliable mechanism paid for by owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50
Eastbound / Prairie City Road slip ramp merge.
I/S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road Flyover On-ramp to Oak Avenue Parhway Off
Ramp Weave
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the nordrbound Prairie
City Road slip on-ramp should start the eastbound auxiliary lane that extends to and
drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway offramp (see mitigation measure 3A.15-4u, v and x),
and the southbound Prairie City Road flyover on-ftrmp should be braided over the Oak
Avenue Parkway offramp and start an extended full auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell
Street - Scott Road offramp. lmprovements to this freeway segment shall be
implemented by Caltrans. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate
and reliable mechanism paid for by the owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to the
U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road Flyover On-ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway Off
Ramo Weave-

34. 154t

3A 15-4u

3.A' l5-4v

134_

135.

136.

Page 745

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(pay PFFP fee)

B
(pay PFFP fee)

B
(pay PFFP fee)

B
(pay PFFP fee

and Transit
fee)

a.S. 50 Eastbound / Oah Avenue Parkwoy Loop Ramp Merge
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the southbound Oak
Avenue Parkway loop on-ramp should merge with the eastbound auxiliary lane that
starts at the southbound Prairie City Road braided flyover on-ramp and ends at the East
Bidwell Street - Scott Road offramp (see mitigation measure 3A.15-4u, v and w).
Improvements to this freeway segment shall be implemented by Caltrans. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be
determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by the
owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to U.S. 50 Eastbound / Oak Avenue Parkway
Loop Ramp Merge.
U.S. 50 Westbound / Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge
To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Empire
Ranch Road loop on-ramp should start the westbound auxiliary lane that ends at the East
Bidwell Street - Scott Road offramp. The slip on-nrmp from southbound Empire Ranch
Road slip ramp would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this
freeway segment shall be implemented by Caltrans. The owner/applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study
or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by owner/applican! to reduce the
impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound / Empire Ranch Road loop r:rmp merge.
a.S. 50 Westbound / Prairie CiE Road Loop Ramp Merge.
To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the nor*rbound Prairie
City Road loop on-ramp should start the westbound auiliary lane that continues beyond
the Folsom Boulevard off ramp. The slip on-ramp from southbound Prairie City Road
slip ramp would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway
segment shall be implemented by Caltrans. The ownerlapplicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study
or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by owner/applicant, to reduce the
impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound / Prairie Citv Road Loop Ramp Merge.
Provide Options for Alternative Transportafion Modes.
The owner/applicant for any particular discretionary development application shall
participate in capital improvements and operating firnds for transit service to increase the
percent oftravel by transit. The project's fair-share participation and the associated
ti*ing of the improvements and service shall be identified in the project conditions of
approval and/orthe project's development agreement. Improvements and service shall be
coordinated, as necessary, with Folsom Staee Lines and Sacramento RT.

3'4' 15-4w

3A l5-4x

3A l5-4y

3A 15-22

137.

138.

139

140.

Page 746

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD cE), PW

B
(pay PFFP fee)

B
(pay PFFP fee)

B
(pay SCTDF)

Folsom Boalevard/Blue Ravine Road Intersectian
To ensure that the Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine Road
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound approach shall
be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-turn lanes, one through lane, and
one right-turn lane. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by owner/applicant, to reduce the
impacts to the Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine Road intersection
Sibley Sfieet/ Blae Rottine Rood fntursection
To ensure that the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road intersection operates at an acceptable
LOS, the northbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist of trvo left-tum lanes,
two through lanes, and one right-turn lane. The owner/applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study
or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by the owner/applicant, to reduce
the impacls to the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road intersection
Grant Line Road/White Rock Road Intersection and to Wite
Roek Roadwidening between the Rancho Cordova City limit to prairie
City Road
Improvements shall be made to ensure that the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS. The currently County proposed White Rock
Road widening project will widen and realign white Rock Road from the Rancho
Cordova City limit to the El Dorado County line (this analysis assumes that the Proposed
Project and build alternatives will widen White Rock Road to five lanes from Prairie
City Road to the El Dorado County Line). This widening includes improvements to the
Grant Line Road intersection and realigning white Rock Road to be the through
movement. The improvements include two eastbound through lanes, one eastbound right
turn lane, two northbound left tum lanes, two northbound right turn lanes, two
westbound left tum lanes and two westbound through lanes. This improvement also
includes the signalization of the
White Rock Road and Grant Line Road intersection. With implementation of this
improvement, the intersection would operatc at an acceptable LOS A. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the
agency responsible for improvements, based on a progftrm established by that agency to
reduce the impacts to
the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road intersection

3A l5-la

3A 15-lb

3A.15-1i

141.

142.

t43

Page 747

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(Caltrans

MOUI SCTDF)

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

Eastboand U.S. S0 as on alternative lo improvements at the Folsom
Bo ulevard/U. S. 5 0 Eastbound Ramps Intersection
The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the
agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to
reduce the impacts to the Folsom BoulevardAJ.S. 50 Eastbound Ramps intersection
(Caltrans Intersection 4). To ensure that the Folsom Boulevard/U.S. 50 eastbound ramps
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, auxiliary lanes should be added to eastbound
U.S. 50 from Hazel Avenue to east of Folsom Boulevard. This was recommended in the

Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Proiect.
Grant Line Road/ Snte Route 16 Intersection
To ensure that the Grant Line Road/State Route 16 intersection operates at an acceptable
LOS, the northbound and southbound approaches shall be reconfigured to consist ofone
left-turn lane and one shared througlr/right-turn lane. Protected left-tum signal phasing
shall be provided on the northbound and southbound approaches. Improvements to the
Grant Line Road/State Route 16 intersection are contained within the County
Development Fee Program, and are scheduled for Measure A funding. Improvements to
this intersection shall be implemented by Caltrans, Sacramento County, and the City of
Rancho Cordova. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program
established by that €ency to reduce the impacts to the Grant Line Road/State Route 16
intersection.
Eastboand U.S. 50 between Zinfandel Dfive and Sunrise Boulevard
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Znfandel
Drive and Sunrise Boulevard a bus/carpool (HOV) lane shall be constructed. This
improvement is cunently planned as part offhe Sacramento 50 Bus-Carpool Lane and
Community Enhancements Project. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a
program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between
Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard

3A..15-lo

3A..15-tp

3A.15-lq

144

145

146.

Page 748

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

Eastbound [JS. 50 between HazelAvenue and Folsom Boulevard
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptabte LOS between Hazel Avenue
and Folsom Boulevard, an auxiliary lane shall be constructed. This improvement was
recommended in the TraJfic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane
Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee
Program. The ownerlapplicant shall pay its proportionare share of funding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program
established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Hazel
Avenue and Folsom Boulevard
Westbound U.S. 50 befiueen Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Hazel Avenue
and Sunrise Boulevard, an auxiliary lane shall be constructed. This improvement was
recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane
Project, and included in the proposed Rancho Cordova Parkway interchange project.
Improvements to this freeway segment shall be implemented by Caltrans. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the
agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to
reduce the impacts to Westbound U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard
U.S. 50 Eastbound/Folsom Bouloard Ramp Merge
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Folsom
Boulevard merge, an auxiliary lane from the Folsom Boulevard merge to the Prairie City
Road diverge shall be consfucted. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic
Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is
included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant shall
pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to
the U.S. 50 EastboundlF olsom Boulevard Ramp Merge
U.S. 5 0 Eastbo und/Folsom Bo ulevard
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Folsom
Boulevard Diverge, an auxiliary lane from the Prairie City Road loop ramp merge shall
be constructed. knprovements to this freeway segment shall be implemented by Caltrans.
This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee
Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable
mechanism paid for by the owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50
Eastbound / Folsom Boulevard diverge

3,4'.15-lr

3A.15-1v

3,A..15-lw

3A.15-lhh

147

148

149

150

Page 749

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD(E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
(Caltrans
MOU)

B

B
(Caltrans

MOU, PFFP
fee, SCTDF)

B
Pay PFFP fee

B
Pay PFFP fee

A.S. 50 Westbound/Hazel Avenue Dbect Ranp Merge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Hazel Avenue
direct ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Sunrise Boulevard offramp diverge shall be
constucted. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor
Mobility Fee Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding
of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a progrirm
established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 WestboundlRazel
Avenue direct ramp merge.
Partieipate in the City's Transportation System Management Fee hogram
The owner/applicant for any particular discretionary development application shall pay

an appropriate amount into the Crty's existing Transportation Systern Management Fee

Program to reduce the number of single-occupant automobile travel on area roadways
and intersections.
Pay FuA Cost of ldentified Improvenants that Are No, Funded by the City's Fee
Progratn
In accordance with Measure W, the owner/applicant for any particular discretionary
development application shall provide fair-share contributions to the Ctty's
tansportation impact fee program to fully fund improvements only required because of
the Speciflc Plan.
Sibley StreetlBlue Rm,ine Road Intersection
To ensure that the Sibley Steet/Blue Ravine Road intersection operates at a LOS D with
less than the Cumulative No Project delay, the northbound approach shall be
reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes, two through lanes, and one dedicated right-
turn lane. The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements, as may be detennined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable
mechanism paid for by owner/applicant to reduce the impacts to the Sibley Street/Blue
Ravine Road intersection
East BidweII Strea/College Street
To ensure that the East Bidwell StreeUCollege Street intersection operates at acceptable
LOS C or better, the westbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist of one left-tum
lane, one left / through lane, and two dedicaled right-tum lanes. The owner/applicant
shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a
nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by owner/applicant, to
reduce the impacts to the East Bidwell StreeVColleee Street intersection

3A..15-1ii

3A.15-2b

3A..15-3

3A.l54a

3A.15-4c

l5l.

152

153

154.

1s5

Page 750

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

PW

PW

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay PFFP fee

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay SCTDF

Oak Avenue Parkwry/Easton Yalley Parkway
To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/Easton Valley Parkway intersection operates at
an acceptable LOS the southbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist of rwo left-
turn lanes. two throueh lanes. and two ripht-turn lanes.
Oak Aven ue Parhway/l|Iiddle Road Intersection
To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/lVliddle Road intersection (as shown in the
FPA) operates at an acceotable control all movements with a stop sigr.
Hazel Avenue between Madison Avenae and Cunagh Downs Drive
To ensure that Hazel Avenue operates at an acceptable LoS between Cunagh Downs
Drive and Gold Country Boulevard, Hazel Avenue must be widened to six lanes. This
improvement is part of the County adopted Hazel Avenue widening proiect.
White Roek Road/Windfuld Woy Intercection
To ensure that the white Rock Road/Windfield way intersection operates at an
acceptable LOS, the intersection must be signalized and separate northbound left and
right turn lanes must be striped. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a
program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the White Rock
Road/Windfield Way intersection.
Grant Line Road/White Rock Road Intercection
To ensure that the Grant Line RoadAVhite Rock Road intersection operates at an
acceptable LOS E or better this intersection should be replaced by some type of grade
separated intersection or interchange.

lmprovements to this intersection are identified in the Sacramento County's Proposed
General Plan. Implementation of these improvements would assist in reducing taffic
impacts on this intersection by providing acceptable operation. Intersection
improvernents must be implemented by Sacramento County. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to
the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road rnfFrcFaftdn

3.A'.15-4g

3A'.15-1f

3A.rs-lj

3,4..15-ll:

3A..15-4i

156.

t57.

158.

159.

160.

Page 751

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Sacramento County
City of Rancho

Cordova

Sacramento County
City of Rancho

Cordova

Sacramento County
City of Rancho

Cordova

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay SCTDF

Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard
To improve operation on Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer
Boulevard, this roadway segment must be widened to six lanes. This improvement is
proposed in the Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova General Plans;
however, it is not in the 2035 MTP. Improvements to this roadway segment must be
implemented by Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce
the impacts to Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard.

The identified improvement would more than offset the impacts specifically related to
the Folsom South of U.S. 50 proiect on this roadway seggnent.

Grant Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard and fackson Highway
To improve operation on Grant Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard Jackson Highway,

this roadway segment could be widened to six lanes. This improvement is proposed in
the Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova General Plans; however, it is
not in the 2035 MTP. Improvements to this roadway segment must be implemented by
Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce
the impacts to Grant Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard and Jackson Highway.

The identified improvement would more than offset the impacts specifically related to
the Folsom South of U.S. 50 proiect on this roadway sesment.
HazelAvenue hetween Curragh Downs Drive and U.S. 50 Watboand Ramps
The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements on Hazel Avenue, based on a program established by that
agency to reduce the impacts to Hazel Avenue between Curragh Downs Drive and U.S.
50 Westbound Ramps.

3A.ls-4j

3A.15-4k

3A..15-41

l6t.

t62.

t63.

Page 752

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Sacramento County

Sacramento County

cD (E), PW

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay SCTDF

White Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prabie City Road
To improve operation on White Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City

Road, this roadway segment shall be widened to six lanes. This improvement is included
in the 2035 MTP but is not included in the Sacramento County General plan.
Improvements to this roadway segment must be implemented by Sacramento County.

The identified improvement would more than offset the impacts specifically related to
the Folsom South of u.S. 50 project on this roadway segment. However, because of
other development in the region that would substantially increase taffrc levels, this
roadway segment would continue to operate at an unacceptable LOS F even with the
capacity improvements identified to mitigate Folsom Plan Area impacts.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce
the inpactsto White Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road.
White Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and Corson Crossing Road
To improve operation on White Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and Carson

Crossing Road, this roadway segment shall be widened to six lanes. hnprovements to
this roadway segment shall be implemented by Sacramento County.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a progfirm established by that agency to reduce
the impacts to white Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and carson crossing
Road.
White Rock Road/Carson Closskg Road Intersecfion
To ensure that the White Rock Road/Carson Crossing Road intersection operates at an
acceptable LOS, the eastbound right turn lane shall be converted into a separate free
right turn lane, or double right. Lnprovements to this intersection must be implemented
by El Dorado County. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program
established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the White Rock Road/Carson

Road Intersection

3A.15-4m

3A.154n

3.4'.15-4o

t64.

165.

166.

Page 753

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay SCTDF

B
Pay SCTDF

Harel AvenueJA.S. 50 Westboand Ruttps Intersection
To ensure that the Hazel Avenue/IJ.S. 50 westbound ramps intersection operates at an

acceptable LOS, the westbound approach shall be reconfigured to consist of one
dedicated left turn lane, one shared left- through lane and three dedicated right-turn
lanes. Improvements to this intersection shall be implemented by Caltrans and
Sacramento County. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a progmm
established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Hazel Avenue/[J.S. 50

Westbound Ramps Intersection.
Eastbound US 50 belween Zinfondel Drive and Suwise Boulevard
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Zinfandel Drive
and Sunrise Boulevard, an additional eastbound lane could be constructed. This
improvement is not consistent with the Concept Facility in Calhans State Route 50
Corridor System Management Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be implemented by
Caltrans by 2030.

Construction of the Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road
and Grant Line Road to six lanes wittr limited access, could divert some taffic from U.S.
50 and partially mitigate the project's impact. The applicant shall pay its proportionate
share of firnding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on
a progmm established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50
between Znfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard.
Eastbound US 50 between Rancho Cordwa Parkwalt and Hazel Avenue
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Rancho
Cordova Parkway and [Iazel Avenue, an additional eastbound lane could be constructed.
This improvement is not consistent with the Concept Facility in Caltrans State Route 50
Corridor System Management Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be implemented by
Caltrans by 2030.

Construction of the Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road
and Grant Line Road to six lanes with limited access, could divert some taffic offof
U.S. 50 and partially mitigate the project's impact. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to tlte agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to
Eastbound U.S. 50 between Rancho Cordova Parkwav and Hazel Avenue.

3A'.154p

3A.15-4q

3A.15-4r

167.

168.

t69.

Page 754

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E), PW

cD (E)

cD (PXE)

B
Pay SCTDF

M

M

Easthound US 50 between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS between Folsom
Boulevard and Prairie City Road, the eastbound auxiliary lane should be converted to a
mixed flow lane that extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway offramp (see
mitigation measure 3A. 15-4t). Improvements to this freeway segment must be
implemented by Caltrans. This improvement is not consistent with the Concept Facility
in Caltrans State Route 50 Corridor System Management Plan; therefore, it is not likely
to be implemented by Caltrans by 2030.

Construction of the Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road
and Grant Line Road to six lanes with limited access, could divert some traffic offof
U.S. 50 and partially mitigate the project's impact.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be
detennined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by
applicant to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Folsom Boulevard and
Prairie CiE Road
C redit Reimh urcement Ag reement
Prior to the recordation ofthe first Final Map, the owner/applicant and City shall enter
into a credit and reimbursement agreement for consfructed improvements that are
included in the Folsom Plan Area's Public Facilities Financine Plan.
The owner/applicant shall construct the portion of Empire Ranch Road from the southern
project boundary to the intersection of Empire Ranch Road and Alder Creek Parkway to
its ultimate horizontal and vertical alignment with the Phase 3A portion of the Folsom
Heights Subdivision project. The owner/applicant shall construct the portion of Empire
Ranch Road from Alder Creek Parkway to the border of Large Lot l lllarge Lot 25 to its
ultimate horizontal and vertical alignment with the Phase I portion of the Folsom
Heights Subdivision project. In addition, the owner/applicant shall construct Prima
Drive and t}re "D' Drive Temporary Emergency Turnaround to their ultimate horizontal
and vertical alignment with the Phase I portion of the Folsom Heights Subdivision
project. The aforementioned roadway improvements shall be constructed as shown on
the Vesting Small-Lot Tentative Subdivision Map and in accordance with the phasing
plan. In addition, all required utility and roadway improvements shall be constructed in
coordination with the phasing of the construction of the Empire Ranch Road street
segments as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map to the
satisfaction of the City.

3A..15-4s170.

t'71

172.

Page 755

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (PXE)

r74. Prima Drive fmprovements
The ovaner/applicant shall construct Prima Drive to its ultimate horizontal and vertical
alignment from the project site to the intersection of Stonebriar Drive and Prima Drive as
shown on the approved Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map. The
aforementioned improvements shall be constructed with the Phase I portion of the
Folsom Heights Subdivision project to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Departnent and through coordination with El Dorado County. The owner/applicant
shall screen Prima Drive to minimize potential lighting impacts to nearby residences to
the satisfaction of the Community Development Department. Prima Drive Roadway
shall be limited to 27 fe,et in width. In addition, no construction-related traffic shall be

M cD (PXE)

to utilize Prima to access the site.
DESIGN

t75. Landseaping PIan
Owner/applicant shall submit a landscape plan for all areas (by phase or subdivision) of
the project where owner/applicant proposes to install landscaping on residential lots. The
landscape plan shall take into account the then existing state or local rules and
regulations related to landscape water usage and water wise landscape principles. The
landscape plans shall be submitted and approved by the Community Development
Director prior to the issuance of a building permit in the phase or subdivision. The
owner/applicant shall comply with any state or local rules and regulations relating to
landscape water usage and landscaping requirements necessitated to mitigate for drought
conditions.

B cD (P) (E)

cD (P) (E)

M

B

Alder Creek Parkwry Improven&n6
The owner/applicant shall construct Alder Creek Parkway from the intenection of
Empire Ranch Road to the intersection of Alder Creek Parkway and "N" Drive as shown
on the updated Phasing Exhibit (dated September 19,2016),the approved Small-Lot
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, and the approved Off-Site Improvements Exhibit.
The aforementioned improvements shall be constructed with the Phase I portion of the
Folsom Heights Subdivision project to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Deoartrnent-

WaIIs/Fences/Gdes
The frnal location, design, height, materials, and colors of the walls, fences, and gates
shall be subject to review and approval by the Community Development Deparfinent to
ensure consistency with the Folsom Heiehts Subdivision Desien Guidelines.

173

176.

Page 756

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (P) (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

B

I

I

M

Mechanicol Eqaipment Screening
All mechanical equipment shall be concealed from view of public streets, neighboring
properties and nearby higher buildings where practicable to the satisfaction of the
Community Development Departrnent.
EI Dorado InigUion District Facilities Plan Report
The Facilities Plan Report (FPR) shall be approved by the El Dorado brigation District
(EID) prior to approval of any Improvement Plan for the Folsom Heights Subdivision
project. In addition, the FPR shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the El Dorado
Irrigation District (EID) for the Folsom Heights Subdivision project. The
owner/applicant shall obtain approval from the El Dorado Irrigation District (EID) and
El Dorado county where applicable, prior to approval of any improvement plan for the
project which includes water and sanitary sewer mains prior to approval of the plans by
the Citv.
B icy cI e Tr ail S! s tem M o difi c aia ns
The owner/applicant shall incorporate the design and grading for the proposed Class I
bike trails and Class II on-sheet bike lanes into the improvement plans consistent with
the Folsom Heights Proposed Trail System Modification Exhibit dated December 14,
2016.
White Roch Road Frontage Improvements
The owner/applicant shall construct shoulder improvements along the project's entire
frontage of westbound White Rock Road to the satisfaction of the Crty prior to approval
of the Phase I Final Map or upon the construction of the future Empire Ranch Road
connection to White Rock Road, whichever occurs fint. In lieu of constructing the
aforementioned interim shoulder improvements, the owner/applicant may enter into a
Subdivision Improvement Agreement with the City and post adequate security to the
City's satisfaction to ensure construction of said improvements; the security shall be for
a minimum period of 10 years. If construction of the Capital Southeast Connector Project
between Scott Road and the El Dorado County line has commenced during the term of
the SuMivision Improvement Agreement, then the shoulder improvement condition will
be deemed satisfied and the secr:rity shall be released to the ownerlapplicant.

177.

178.

179.

180.

Page 757

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



cD (E)

cD (E)

M

I

Em,pbe Ranch Road Inigation
The owner/applicant shall coordinate with the El Dorado Inigation District (EID) to
provide potable water for irrigation to the proposed landscape corridors on Empire
Ranch Road. If EID is acceptable to allowing the City to provide the potable water for
irrigation to the landscape conidors on Empire Ranch Road, the owner/applicant will
prepare an inter-local agreement and coordinate with both the Cig and EID to execute
and finalize the agreement. The agreement shall include the approval to allow the City
the ability to provide water services and potable water for the inigation within the
boundaries ofthe EID and shall establish the boundary to separate each agencies area of
responsibility along Empire Ranch Road. The City is acceptable to maintaining the
landscape corridors on either the east or west side of Empire Ranch Road within the
boundaries ofthe project provided the landscape corridors are along the street frontage
of futrue residential uses or open space lots. The City will not provide maintenance of
landscape corridors that will have steet frontage for future commercial development on
Empire Ranch Road. The interJocal agreement shall be executed and finalized between
the City and EID prior to approval of the first Small Lot Final Map for the Folsom
Heishts SuMivision.
Per direction provided by the City Council at its October 24,2017 meeting, the
owner/applicant shall construct the Prima Drive Extension as a paved and
gated/bollard-contolled Emergency Vehicle Access (EVA) Route only,
consistent with the requirements stated in Condition of Approval No. 174. The
ownerlapplicant shall also work with the City of Folsom Fire Chief and the El
Dorado Hills Fire Chief to establish the appropriate location(s) for the
gates/bollards associated with the EVA. The final design, installation, and
operation of the gates/bollards shall be in accordance with the Sacramento
County Emergency Access Gates and Barriers Standard, as required by the City
of Folsom Fire Code. The final design and location of the gates/bollards shall be
subject to review and approval by the City of Folsom. [n addition, the EVA shall
accommodate pedestrian and bicycle access to the satisfaction of the City of
Folsom.

18 l.

r82.

Page 758

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



COI[I}ITIONS
attached tables of conditions for which the

Prior to approval of Improvement Plans
Prior to approval of Final Map
Prior to issuance of first Buildine Permit
Prior to approval of Occupancv Permit
Priorto issuance of Gradine Permit
During construction
On-eoine requirement

wmNREQI'IREI)

I
M
B
o
G
DC
OG

Community Development Departnent
Planning Division
Engineering Division
Building Division
Fire Division
Public Works Departnent
Park and Recreation Departnent
Police Departrnent

PW
PR
PD

RDSFONSIBI,E DDPARTMENT

CD
(P)
(E)
(B)
(F)

Page 759

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Attachment 4

Folsom Heights Subdivision Master Plan Exhibit,
Dated February 27 ,2017

Page 760

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



\
i

u.s. $lclr$J
A.{ 50

{rddod-rsen,

os

I

_\

TRAIL HEAD

NEIGHBORHOOD SHOPPING CENTER

INTS

#

!
i
:
I

Page 761

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Attachment 5

Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
Dated October 1,4,2016

Page 762

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



u.s. $rcllN
A.Y 50 i

tI

.l

i

, tir"

- 
Villqc I

-_ __ vitbE{ 6

i0 I oh-t' ! rd Itfr

vilbf. I

,,t -*
ip',il i't ' 

;r;'

. t.i .4.._ -
:.,1-..,-." : - ...,*,[,-:- :- /il*:1.*1g!-

.$/,;f iT ii,

! - V'IlFt

1r t4r-$ ! ret.l\tt

,.'.:.
'ii.g :

,;'
Irt(lf&rr3

\]
rzt

ft

.-ir,;..r1-

4t ii
'" l'
..L.,-,*L't :'l

_::_._

tr

/i. .M

'$ili t' t'i
#+
.p- 1['- . . :;: , . ..1.'., -'.-
.'tg I-s '

.i"

*.'[,-.^-"' ''[':y:rl'

d.;::r;'.: 6> ..:!-' .t 
=SMALL LOT

VTJSTINC TENTATIVE SUIIDIVISION MAP

Fo lsom Hel ts *
+:?t=-4

1

!ill.lc J

i
.i

Aw

+

,tIl.-
I

I

!
t
I

I

'B*t-,

.t

.-. -"., :6 .'

IL

V,f.F t

: l+;' j

ffi
Page 763

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Affachment 6

Letter from Applicarrt, dated August ll,202l

Page 764

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



ElliottHonGl

340 Palladio Parkway, Suite 521
Folsom, California 95630-8775
{916) 984-1300 FAX (e16) 984-1322

19f4 Celebrating 100 years ZoL4

August 11,2021

Ms. Pam Johns
Comm unity Development Director
CITY OF FOLSOM
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, California 95630
pighnsrOfolsom.ca.us Y,a USPS and Email

Re: Three-Year Extension Request for Folsom Heights
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

Dear Ms. Johns:

Elliott Homes, lnc., hereby formally requests a three-year extension of time for the Folsom
Heights Vesting Tentative Map. The current map is expected to expire on July 11, 2A22. Ellion
Hornes purchased this properly on April 5,2021, We are actively designing the improvements,
with the plan to begin grading the overall site in the summer of ziazz. An eitension will allow
Elliott Homes to complete the improvements and file Final Maps in an orderly and timely
manner.

Thank you for your consideration of this request. Elliott Homes looks fonvard to your response
and to scheduling the matter before the appropriate hearing bodies,

Yours truly,

HOMES, INC.

Price
VICE PRESIDENT, PROJECT DEVELOPMENT

PW:tmg

cc: Mr. Steven Wang, City Attorney, S1yElg(OlgFetrf,AA-Ug
Mr. Steven Krahn, City Engineer, gfrahn@toLsom..iarts
Mr' chad Roberrs, Attorney, Hefner, stark & Marois, ttp, er_ole$q@xsmraw.sonl

Page 765

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Attachment 7

Planning Commission Staff Report
Dated November 3, 2021

Page 766

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



IW
AGENDA ITEM NO.2

Type: Public Hearlng
Dete: November 3,2021

I!-OLFJON4I

Proiect:

Planning Commission Staff Report
50 Natoma Street, CouncilChambers

Folsom, CA 95630

Folsom Heights Subdivision Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map Extension

PN 21-233

Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map Extension

Northeastern Comer of the Folsom Plan Area

File #:

Requeot:

Locaffon:

StafrGontact: Steve Banks, Principal Planner, 91 6461 -6207
sbanks@folsom.ca.us

Property Owner/Applicant
Name: Elliott Homes, lnc.
Address: 340 Palladio Parkway, Suite 521
Folsom, CA 95030

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion recommend approval
of a three-year extension in time for the Folsom Heights Subdivision SmalLLot Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map as illustrated on Attachment 6 for the Folsom Heights
Subdivision project (PN 21-233) subject to the findings (Findings A-O) and conditions of
approval(Condltions 1-182') attached to this report.

Proiect Summary: The proposed project involves a request for approval of a thre+year
extension in time for the previously apprwed Small-Lot Vesting Tentrative Subdivision Map
associated with the Folsom Heights Subdivision proj€ct. The Folsom Heights Subdivision
project includes development qf a 53&unit resldential and commercial communig on a
189.7-acre site located within the northeastern comer of the Foleom Plan Area. The
Planning Commission will be making a recommendation to the City Council regardlng the
project.

Table of Contentr:
1 - Background and Setting
2 - ProJect Description/Analysis
3 - Conditions of Approval
4 - Vicinity Map

City of Foleom Page't

Page 767

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



AGEI{DA ITEiI NO.2
Type: Publlc Heerlng

Dato: November 3, 2021
otrY o

F"@LgOMt

5 - Folsom Heighb Subdlvlsion Masbr Plan Exhibit, daH February 27,2017
6 - Small-Lot Vestlng Tenffiive Subdivision Map, dabd Oc'tober 14,2A18
7 - Letbr from Applicant, dabd August 11,2021

Submittd,

PAM JOHNS
Commu nity Development Direstor

Page 768

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Planning Commiesion
Foleom Helghts Subdivbion Small-Lot Vestlng Tontativo Subdivigion Map Extenelon (PN 2l-233)
November 3,2021

ATTACHilENT 2
BACKGROUND AND SETTING

BACKGROUI{D
On June 28,2018, the City Council approved a General Plan Amendment and Specific
Plan Amendment for development of the Folsom Heights SuMivision proJect, The
approved General Plan Amendment and Specific Plan Amendment resulted in an
increase in the amount of land designated for single-family development, a decrease in

the amount of land designated for multi-family development, a redustion in the amount of
land designated for commercial development, and an increase in the amount of open
spaoe within the 189.7-acre Folsom Heights Subdivision project area.

On July 11,2017, the City Council approved a Large-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map, Small-Lot Vesting Tentrative Subdivision Map, Project Design Guidelines, and an
lnclusionary Housing Plan for the development of a 530-unit residential and commercial
development (Folsom Heights Subdivision) on a 189.7-acre site located in the northeaet
cornerof the Folsom Plan Area. On August 27,2019, the City Councilapproved a thrae-
year extension in time for the previously approved Small-Lot Vesting Tentrative
Subdivision Map associated with the Folsom Heights Subdivision project. On August 11,
202'1, Elliott Homes submitted a timely letter to the City requesting a three-year extension
in time for the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map associated with the Folsom
Heights Subdivision projec't.

On August 27 ,2021, Elliott Homes submitted an application to the City for approval of a
code amendment to modify Sec{lon 10.18.12001 of the Folsom Municipal Code to make
it consistent wlth State law relatlve to map extensions. State law allorfls localjurisdictlone
to extend subdivision maps up to six yearc from the date of apprcval, while the Folsom
Munlcioal Code limits the extension to three yeare. On September 28, 2021, the City
Council approved Ordinance No. 1317, an Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending
Section 16.16.120(Dl of the Folsom Municioal Code Pertaining to Extension of Tentative
Subdivision Maps.

GENERAL PI.AN DESIGNATIONS SF (Single Family)
SFHD (Single Family High Density)
MLD (Multifamily Low Density)
GC (General Commercial)
P-QP (Public /Quasi Public)
OS (Open Space)

SPECIFIC PLAN DESIGNATIONS SP-SF (Single Family)
SP-SFHD (Single Family High Density)
SP-MLD (Multifamily Low Density)
SP-GC (General Commercial)
SP-P/QP (Public /Quasi Public)
SP-OSI (Preserve Open Space)

Gi$ of Folsom Page 3

Page 769

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Planning Commisglon
Folsom Helghts SuMivislon Small-Lot Vesting Tentatlve Subdlvielon Map Extenslon (PN 21-233)
Novamber g,2021

ADJACENT LAND USES'ZONING

SITE CHARACTERISTICS

APPLICABLE CODES

SP-OS2 (Passive Open Space)

North: U.S. Highway 50 wifr undoveloped
Commercial Property (SP 92-3)
Beyond

South: Undeveloped Single-Family
Residential Property (SP-SF PD)
with Wtrite Rock Road Beyond

East:

West:

El Dorado County Line with Singl+
Family Residential Development
Beyond

Empira Ranch Road with
Undeveloped $ingle-Family
Residential (SP-SF PD) and
Commercial Propefi (SP-GC PD)
Beyond

The project site is situded nearths base of
the Siena Nevda bohills. The topography
is charaderizdby genily rolling hllls covered
in non-native and natunlized grasslands

FPASP (Foleom Plan Arca Specific Plan)
FMC 16.16, Tentiative SuMivision Maps

Clty of Folgom Page 4

Page 770

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Planning Commlsslon
Folsom Haighb Subdivision Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map Extension (PN 21-233)
November g,2021

ATTACHMENT 1

PORJECT DESCRIPTION'ANALYSIS

APPLICANT'S PROPOSAL
The applicant, Elliott Homes, lnc., is requesting approval of a three-year extension in time
forthe previously approved Small-LotVesting Tentative Subdivision Map associated with
the Folsom Heights Subdivision project. As referenced previously within this report, the
Folsom Heights Subdivision project features development of a S3Gunit residential and
commercial development on a 189.7-acre site located within northeast corner of the
Folsom Plan Area.

POLICY'RULE
The Foleom Municipal Code (FMC) requires that applications for Tentative Subdivision
Maps be brwarded to the City Council for final action. City Council actions regarding
extension of Tentative Subdivision Maps are covered under Sestion 16.16.120 of the
Folsom MunicioalCode.

ANALYSIS
Smrll-Lot Vertno Tentr0ve Subdlvlrlon lllrp Effenrlon
As described in the background section of this report, the City Councilapproved a
Larye-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdlvision
Map, DevelopmentAgreementAmendment, Project Design Guidelines, and lnclusionary
Housing Plan for development of the 530-unit Folsom Heights Subdivision project on July
f , 2417. The City Council granted a three-year extension in time for Folsom Heights
Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map on August 27,2A19. The Small-Lot Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map forthe project is valid untilJuly 22,2022. The litu of the Project
Design Guidelines track with the validity of the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map. The lnclusionary Housing Plan is a requirement of the proiect and does not require
an extension in time.

On August 27,2021, Elliott Homes submitted an application to the City for approval of a
code amendment to modiff Sestlon 16.16.120(Dl of the Folsom Munioioal Code to make
it consistent with State law relative to map extensions. State law allous localjurisdictions
to extend subdivision maps up to six yearc from the date of approval, while the Folsom
Munlcioal Code limits the extenslon to three yearc. On Septernber 28, 2021, the Cig
Council approved Ordinance No. 1317, an Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending
Secton 16.18.1200) of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Extension of Tentrative
Subdivision Maps to allow for tentative maps to be extended for a period not exceeding
a total of six years.

City of Folsom Page 5

Page 771

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Planning Commisdon
Folsom. Heights_,Subdivision Small-Lot Vestng Tentratlve Subdivision Map Extension (PN 21-238)
November 3,2021

On August 11,2021, the project applicant (Elliott Homes, lnc.) submitted a timely letterto
t!9 CitV requesting a three-year extension in time for the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map associated with the Folsom HeBhts Subdivision project. The applicant
indicates in their extension letter that they recently purchased the subject property from
Folsom Heights, LLC. on April 5, 2021. The applicant also stat€s that they are actively
designing the civil site improvements with the goal of beginning grading activities in the
summer o12022. ln addition, the applicant comments that the extensionin tlme willallow
them to qmplete other required site improvements and to file the Final Map in a timely
manner. The applicant has not proposed any changes to the previously approved project.

The Folsom Municioal Code (FMC. Sec'tion 16.16.120 D.Time Limit Extensions) states
that the time at which a Tentative Subdivision Map expires may be extended by the
Planning Gommission for a period not exceeding a total of six years. As noted previously
ln the background section of this staff report, the City Council previously approved i
three-year extension for the Folsom Heights Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map, thus the applicant is limited to one more three-year extension. As stated in the
submitted extension request letter, the applicant has been actively engaged in designing
the civil site improvemenb associated with the subdivision wlth the goal of conducting
grading activities in the summer of 2022. ln addition, the applicant states that the
extension in time will allow them to complete other required site improvements and to file
the Final Map in a timely manner. As a rcsult, staffrecornmends approvatof a three-year
extension in time forthe Small-LotVesting Tentative Subdivision Map associated with the
Folsom Heights Subdivision project.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
An Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Environmental lmpact Report wae previously
approved for the Folsom Heights Subdivlslon project (PN 15-303) on July 11,2017 in
accordance with the Califomia Environmental Quality Act (CEOA), The proposed SmalF
Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map extension is consistent with the Folsom Heights
Subdivision Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS, and allmitigation
rneasures have been applied as conditions of approval for this project. ln addition, none
of the conditions described in Section 21166 of the Public Resources Code or Section
15162 of the CEQA Guidelines calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR have
occurred. Therefore, no additionalenvironmental review is required under CEQA.

RECOMiIIENDATION'PLANNING COMTIISSION ACTION
Move to rccommend to the City Council approval of a three-year extension in time for the
Folsom Heights Subdivision Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map as illustrated
on Attachment 6 for the Folsom Heights SuMivision prciect (PN 21-233) subject to fre
findings (Findings A-O) and conditions of approval (Conditions 1-182) attached to this
report.

Clty of Folsom Page I

Page 772

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Planning Commission
Folsom Heights Subdivision Small-LotVesting Tenbtive Subdivision Map Exteneion (PN 21-233)
November 3, 2021

A.

B.

GENERAL FINDINGS

NOTICE OF HEARING HAS BEEN GIVEN AT THE TIME AND IN THE
MANNER REQUIRED BY STATE IAWAND CITY CODE.

THE PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WTH THE GENEML PLAN AND THE
FOLSOM HEIGHTS SPECIFIC PI.AN AMENDMENT.

CEOA FINDINGS

THE CITY, AS LEAD AGENCY, PREVIOUSLY CERTIFIED AN
ENVIORNMENTAL IMPACT REPORT/ENVIORNM ENTAL IMPACT
STATEMENT FOR THE FOLSOM PI.AN AREA SPECIFIC PI.AN AND ALSO
APPROVED AN ADDENDUM FOR THE FOLSOM HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION
PROJECT.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WTH THE FOLSOM PI.AN
AREA SPECIFIC PI.AN.

THE FEASIBLE MITIGATION MEASURES SPECIFIED IN THE FOLSOM PLAN
AREA SPECIFIC PLAN ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT AND FOLSOM
HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION CERTIFIED ADDENDUM WLL BE IMPLEMENTED
FOR THE PROPOSED SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION
MAP, CONSISTENT WTH CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15183(e).

NONE OF THE EVENTS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 21166 OF THE PUBLIC
RESOURCES CODE OR SECTION 15162 OF THE CEQA GUIDELINES
REOUIRING SUBSEQUENT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW HAVE OCCURRED.

VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION f,IAP AND IUIAP EXTENSION FIT{DINGS

THE PROPOSED SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP IS
CONSISTENT WTH THE CIT\^S SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE AND THE
SUBDIVISION MAP ACT IN THAT THE PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL THAT WILL ENSURE THAT THE PROJECT IS
DEVELOPED IN COMPLIANCE WTH CITY STANDARDS.

THE PROPOSED SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP ,

TOGETHER WITH THE PROVISIONS FOR ITS DESIGN AND TMPROVEMENT
IS CONSISTENT WTH THE GENERAL PI.AN, THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA
SPECIFIC PIIN, AND ALL APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE FOLSOM
MUNICIPAL CODE.

THE PROJECT SITE IS PHYSICALLY SUITABLE FOR THE TYPE OF
DEVELOPMENT PROPOSED.

c.

D.

E.

F

G.

H.

City of Folsom Page 7

Page 773

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Planning Commission
Folsom Heights Subdlvision Small-LotVesting Tentatlve Subdlvlslon Map Extension (PN 21-233)
November 3,2021

J.

K.

THE PROJECT SITE IS PHYSICALLY SUITABLE FOR THE PROPOSED
DENSITY OF DEVELOPMENT.

AS CONDITIONED, THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE
SUBDIVISION MAP AND THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTSARE NOT
LIKELY TO CAUSE ENVIRONMENTAL DAMAGE OR SUBSTANTIALLY AND
AVOIDABLY INJURE FISH OR WLDLIFE OR THEIR HABITAT.

THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
AND THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ARE NOT LIKELY TO CAUSE
SERIOUS PUBLIC HEALTH OR SAFEW PROBLEMS.

THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
AND THE TYPE OF IMPROVEMENTS WLL NOT CONFLICT WTH
EASEMENTS FOR ACCESS THROUGH OR USE OF PROPERW WTHIN THE
PROPOSED SUBDIVISION.

SUBJECT TO SECTION 66474.4 OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, THE I-AND
IS NOT SUBJECT TO A CONTRACT ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO THE
cALtFORNtA |-AND CONSERVATTON ACT OF 1965 (COMMENC|NG W|TH
sEcTroN 51200 OF THE GOVERNMENT CODE).

APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT FEES HAVE INCREASED SINCE INITIAL
APPROVAL OF THE SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
ON JUNE 11,2017. THE PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO APPLICABLE
DEVELOPMENT FEES IN PI.ACE AT TIME OF ISSUANCE OF PERMITS.

L.

M

N

o

Gity of Foleom Page 8

Page 774

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Attachment 8

Minutes from November 3, 202I
Planning Commission Meeting

Page 775

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



I

t:

'j

It'([Dll-,8(DM[
il'rrrltirvt

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
November 3,2021

CITY COUNCIL GHAMBERS
5:30 P.M.

50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

CALL TO ORDER PLANNING COMMISSION:
Miklos, Ralph Pefla, Barbara Leary, Chair Justin

{!$NT:, Pena

W:None

Vice Chair Eileen Reynolds, Daniel West, Kevin Duewel, Bill
Raithel

MINUTES: The minutes of October 6,202'l were approved as submitted.

PUBLIC HEARING

1. PN 21-142. 7636 Baldwin Oam Road Tentatlvs Parcsl Map 8nd Datormlnatlon that ths Proisct i5
Exemptfrom CEQA

A Public Hearing to consider a requesl from Craig Wrelan for approval of e Tentalive Parcel Map to subdivide
two existing parcels totaling 4.48-acres into four indivldual parcels for futura sale and development. The
zoning classification for the site is R-1-L A, while the General Plan land-use designation is SF. The project is
exempt from environmental review under section 1531 5 (Minor Land Divisions) of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. (Prolect Planner: Steve Banks/Aoollcant: Cralq Whelan)

1. Eric Forrest addressed the Planning Commission with concerns regarding sewer connection and
EVA access on parcel 4.

2. Ryan Rawles addressed the Planning Commission with questions regarding the sewer connection,
LLA's, and bridge weight.

3. Brian Marlell addressed the Planning Commission in support of the project.
4, Jerome Merchant addressed the Planning Commission with questions regarding the permanency of

the building envelopes.

COMM]SSIONER DUEWEL MOVED TO APPROVE THE 7635 BALDWIN DAM ROAD TENTATIVE PARCEL
MAP PROJECT, SUBJECT TO THE FINDINGS (FINDINGS A-K) AND CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL
(coNDrTtoNS 1-28)W|TH ADD|T|ON OF CONDIT|ON NO. 2e TO STATE:

"29. lf the owner/applicant decides to construct the improvements associated with the Tentative Parcel Map
prior to the City completing lhe Capital lmprovement Project (approximately Spring/Summer 2022) in the
Baldwin Dam area, the owner/appllcant shall be required to install a cut-in tee with a valve on each leg of the
existing 14-inch watermain (3 Valves in total) located in Baldwin Dam Road and install approximately 23 feet of
8-inch Ductile lron Pipe across Baldwin Dam in order to provide water services to the future parcels. lf the City

l'llnning ('onrnrisskrrr lVlinutss
Ntrvcnther 3. 2{}21
l'ngc I ol"l

Page 776

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



gomple!9s the improvements to Baldwin Dam Road prlor to improvements associated wilh thls Tentative
Parcel Map, the otrvner/applicant shall connect to the newly lnstalled f-inch bllnd flange that shall be extended
to prlvate road.'

COMMISSIONER MIKLOS SECONDED THE MOTION.

COMMISSIONER LEARY MADE A FRIENDLY AMENDMENT TO THE MOTION TO ADD A BULLET POINT
TO CONDITION NO.25TO STATE:

"25.
r Future homebuilders shall conlult with the City Arborlst on the location of building footprints

prior to the submittal of Design Review application."

COMMISSIONER DUEWEL DENIED THE FRIENDLY AMENDMENT.

COMMISSIONER LEARY THEN MOVED TO AMEND THE PENDING MOTION. SHE MOVED TO APPROVE
THE 7635 BALDWN DAM ROAD TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP PROJECT, SUBJECT TO THE FINDINGS
(flN?q,LGs4-K) AND CONDIIONS OF APPROVAL (COND|flONS 1.28) WTH ADDIT|ON OF CONDITION
NO.29TO STATE:

'29. lf lhe owner/applicant decldes to construct the lmprovements aesoclated wilh the Tsrtative parcel Map
Prlgl t9 ihe Clty completing the Capltal lmprorrement ProJecl (approxlmately SprlnglSummer 2022) in thf
Baldwln Dam arca, lhe owner/applicant shsll be requlred to lnetah'a cut-in tee wttir a iatve on each tei of ne
existing-l4.inch waletmsin (3 Vglv.eg l.n Ftal) looated in Baldwin Dam Road and lnstallapproxtmately Zg feet off inch Ductile lron Plpe across Baldwin Dam in older to provide rruater services to the tririre parceis. tf ine CitV
qomplates the improvements to Baldwln Dam Road prlor to lmprovemente associeted wittr ttrls Tentafivi
Parcel Map, he owner/applicant shall connect to the newly instalted &lnch bllnd flange that shall be extcnded
to private road."

AND THE ADDITION OF A BULLET POINT TO CONDITION NO.25 TO STATE:

'25,
. Fulure homebullder8 dtall consult ym mq City Arborlst on the location of bulldlng fo@rlnts

pdor to the aubmlttral of Design Revierrr application.'

COMMISSIONER REYNOLDS SECONDED THE MOTION TO AMEND,

THE COMMISSION VOTED TO AMEND COMMISSIONER DUETIUEL'S MOTION WTH COMMISSIONER
LEARY'S MOTION VI'FIICH CARRIED THE FOLLOWNG VOTE:

AYES: REYNOLDS. I,I/EST, LEARY, RAITHEL
NOES: DUEI EL MIKLOS
ABSTAINED:NONE
ABSENT: PENA

THE COMMISSION VOTED ON COMMISSIONER LEARY'S MOTION V\II-IICH CARRIED THE FOLLOWNG
VOTE:

AYES: REYNOLDS, WEST, DUEVVEL, LEARY, RAITHEL
NOES: MIKLOS
ABSTAINED:NONE
ABSENT: PENA

&PN 21.233. Folsom Helohts Veetlno Tentatlve Subdlvlalon Mao Extenslon

A Public Hearing to conslder a requeel from Elllott Homes, lnc. for approval of e thr€e'year extenslon ln time
for the prevlously approvad Small-Lot Vesting Tenlative Subdivision Map assoclated wlth the Folsom Helghts

Plonning Commission Minules
Novcmbcr 3,2021
Prge 2 of4

Page 777

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



Subdivision proJect. The speclllc plan classificatlons for the slte are SP-SF, SP-SFHD, SP-MLD, SP-GC, Sp-
P/QP, SP-OSI, and SP-OS2, whlle the General Plan land-uee deelgnallone are SF, SFHD, MLD, GC, P-ep,
and OS. An Addendum to the Folsom Plan AreE Environmental lmpact Report was prevlously appmved foi
the Folsom Heights Subdivlslon project (PN 1&303) on July 11,2017 ln accordahce with-th;'Cailfornia
Environmental Quallty Act (CEaA). lProleot Elannsr: Stsve BankalAooltcanft Elllott Homea. lnc"l

I' Ellen Post Eddressed the Planning Commlsslon regardlng the EVA acc{ess on the trail behind her
home.

COMMISSIONER REYNOLDS MOVED TO RECOMMEND THE C]TY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF A THREE.
YEAR EXTENS]ON IN TIME FOR THE FOLSOM HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION SMALL-LOT VESTING
TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP AS ILLUSTMTED ON ATTACHMENT 6 FOR THE FOLSOM HEIGHTS
suBlDlvlsoN PRoJEcr (PN 21-233) SUBJECT TO THE F|ND|NGS (F|ND|NGS A-O) AND CONDTTTONS
oF APPROVAL (CONDIT|ONS 1-132) ATTACHED TO TH|S REPORT.

COMMISSIONER LEARY SECONOED THE MOTION TA'TIICH CARRIED THE FOLLOWNG VOTE:

AYES: REYNOLDS, \A,EST, DUEWEL, MIKLOS, LEARY, RAITHEL
NOES: NONE
ABSTAINED:NONE
ABSENT: PENA

Plmning Commission Minutcs
November 3,2021
Pagc 3 ol'4

3. PN 2l-234. Bmadstone Eetates Vesdnq Tent tlve SuMfulslon l$ao Enenelon

I Publlc Hearing to conslder a request from Elllott Homes, lnc. for approval of a three-year exlension ln llme
for lhe prevlously approved Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdlvislon Map assodaled uittn me Bruadstone
Eetates Stbdivlsion proJect. The speclfic plan classilications for the site are SP-SF pD and SP.OS2, wh[e the
General Plan land-use deslgnallons are SF and OS. An Addendum to lhe Folsorn Plan Area Envlronmental
lmpact Report was previously apprwed for the Broadstone Estates Subdivlsion project (PN ig-g0E) on June
28.2a1a ln accordance with lhe Callfomia Envlronmenbl Quality Act (CEOA). (Frdtect'Planner: iteve
BankatApplicantl Elliott Homes, lnc.)

COMMISSIONER LEARY MOVED TO RECOMMEND THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF A THREE.YEAR
EXTENSION IN TIME FOR THE BROADSTONE ESTATES SUBDIVISION SMALL.LOT VESNNG
TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION lt/|AP AS ILLUSTMTED ON ATTACHMENT 6 FOR THE BROADSTONE
ESTATES SUBIDIVISON IROJECT (PN 21-234) SUBJECT TO THE F|ND|NGS (FtNDtNcS A-O) AND
CONDITIONS OFAPPROVAL (CONDMONS 1.1S9) ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT. 

'

COMMISSIONER REYNOLDS SECONDED THE MOTION WHICH CARRIED THE FOLTOWNG VOTE:

AYES: REYNOLDS, \illEST, DUEWEL, M|KLOS, LEARY, RATTHEL
NOES: NONE
ABSTAINED: NONE
ABSENT: PENA

NEW BUSINESS

4. PN 2l'204. Manolnl Ranch Phase 2 Vlltaoe I Subdlvlslon Reeldenual Deslon R€ulew

A-Public.Meetlng to consider a request from Trl-Polnte Homes for approval of a Design Revlew application br8p silelefamily residentlal unils for lhe Mangini- Ranch Phaid 2 Wbge t -Cubdtvision.-fre 
zontng

classlficgtlon lor the site ls SP-$FHD (PD), wrrib tFe General Plan land-use Oiiignatton it SiHO. itre prolec-t
was prevlously determined to be exempt from the California Environmental aJailty Act in accordance with
Government Code sectlon 65457 and section 15182 of rhe CEQA auUelinei. ip;i"d-Fi;;;er: Josh
KlnkadelApplicant Trl-Pointe Homes)

Page 778

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



COMMISSIONER \A'EST MOVED TO APPROVE A RESIDENTIAL DESIGN REVIEWAPPLICATION FOR 8SSINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL HOMES AS ]LLUSTRATEO oN ArrnCirraer.rrs e rxiouori-id ron rneMANGINI RANCH Pl{AsE 2 VILLAGE 1 pRoJE!:T{l_N 2.1:294) suaJicr ro rie ir,rolr.rds innrolrvcs
4-.J) 4ND CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL (CONDtTlOttS r-t s) wrrx mootHcATtoN To coNDtTloN NO. 1 3TO STATE:

'l3.Thebuilding shallhave illumlnated addresses visible from the street or drfue fronting the propgrly. slzeand location of address idenlilication shall be reviewed and lmpo;gdinnroveO lV tf,i Ffe-ff4"i"fti.

COMMISSIONER REYNOLDS SECONDED THE MOTION W{ICH CARRIED THE FOLLOWNG VOTE:

lYEq: REJNOLDS, WEST, DUEWEL, M|KLOS, LEARY, RATTHEL
NOES: NONE
ABSTAINED: NONE
ABSENT: PENA

6. PN 2l-20i Manolnl R.nch Phaes 2 Vlllaqe 2 Subdlvlelon Resldenual Dston Revlew

APubllc.Meetlng to consider a request from Trl-Polnte Homes flr approval of a Deslgn Review application for
? slgl-o;faqtily 

. 
resldenlial units for the Mangini^ Ranch pha# 2 Vinage z -Cuuovielon.ine 

ioning
classificallon for the site is SP-SFHD (PD), 

-while 
tFe General Ptan tand.uge qifgn;fion is gFHD: The pro1egi

was prevlously determlned t9_qg_exerynt ftom the Callbmla Envlronmental oiantv-ecl tn accoruEnce wtttrGovemmsnt Code section 65457 and sscton 15182 of thE cEaA cuioerines.ip-iect-Fianner: .lostKlnkade/Appllcant Trl-Polnte Homes)

COMMISSIONER WEST MOVED TO APPROVE A RESIDENTIAL DESIGN REVIEWAPPLICATION FOR 74
SINGLE.FAMILY RESTDENTIAL HOMES AS ILLUSTRATED oN nrrACrrn,rer,rTs 6 THRoLicii-id ron rHEMANGINI RANoH PHASE 2 vlLLAGE 2 PR0JECT{Px.2l:"2g-s)_sVi$cr io rie iribrruds jnr.roigo!
lll)4Nq coNDlrloNs oF APPROVAL (coNDlTloNs t-ts) WTH MoDtFtcATloN Td co-r.iorrrbn No. i3TO STATE:

"13-.The-fullding shall harre illumineted addressee visible from the street or drlve ftonilng lhe property. sizaand locstlon of address identilication ehall be revlewed antl inppved aoorcved lV tre fire'nfirsfiai.

COMMISSIONER LEARY SECONDED THE MOTION IA'}IICH CARRIED THE FOLLOWNG VOTE:

IYE-S'REYNOLDS, WEST, DUEIA/EL, MIKLos, LEARY, RAITHEL
NOES: NONE
ABSTAINED:NONE
ABSENT: PENA

PLANNING COMiIXSSIOIII, PLANNING MAITIAGER REPoRT

The nen regularty scheduled Plannlng Commission meeting is tentatively scheduled for November 17,2021,

Y SUBMITTED,

Kelly

APPROVED:

Phnning Commision Minures
Noveober 3, 2021
Pngc 4 of4

Page 779

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 780

12/14/2021 Item No.29.



t "{_,.,i . !d, 4-} t\1{

Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council approve Resolution No. 10777 - A Resolution of the
City Council Approving the Sale of Surplus Land Located at 300 Persifer Street to Habitat for
Humanity of Greater Sacramento, Inc. for Purpose of Developing Affordable Housing.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City of Folsom purchased the property located at 300 Persifer Street (Property) in 1961
The 0.91-acre site is located on the northeast corner of Persifer Street and Coloma Street as
shown on the exhibit below.

MEETING DATE: t2lt4l202r

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10777 - A Resolution of the City Council Approving
the Sale of Surplus Land Located at 300 Persifer Street to Habitat for
Humanity of Greater Sacramento, Inc. for Purpose of Developing
Affordable Housing

F'ROM: Community Development Department

I

Page 781

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Since 1961, the property was developed and used as a Fire Station, City Hall Annex, City
Library, then offices for the Army Corps of Engineers during construction of Folsom Lake
Crossing. The building on the property was vacant between 2009 and20l7.

In January 2017 , City Council approved the demolition of the building, along with land use

changes (General Plan Amendment and Rezone) from Commercial to Single Family High
Density for the 300 Persifer Street site. That action also modified the Historic District Subarea
boundaries so that the entire site is now located in the Persifer-Dean Subarea. City Council
action on the land use changes for the property in20l7 also included direction to subdivide the
property into five single-family residential parcels in keeping with the previous Theodore
Judah historic lotting pattern.

On January I,2020, the Surplus Land Act was amended to address California's shortage of
affordable housing by requiring local agency prioritization of affordable housing development
when selling or leasing public lands no longer necessary for agency use. The Surplus Land Act
requires agencies to take formal action in a regular public meeting to declare land surplus.
Furthermore, local agencies are now required to noti$ housing sponsors registered with the
State Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) of the surplus land
availability once the surplus declaration is made. Local agencies are also required to follow
specific guidelines that ensure good faith negotiations occur with interested parties and that
proposals with the greatest affordability targets are given priority for land disposition.
Following the 90-day negotiation period, the agency must provide HCD with materials and
process to ensure compliance with written findings and noticing requirements before the
agency can sell or otherwise dispose of the property.

On September22,2020, City Council adopted ResolutionNo. 10531 declaring 300 Persifer
Street (APN 070-0172-048-000) as surplus land with the specific purpose of creating at least
five for sale affordable housing units. Specific findings and reference to Surplus Land Act
requirements are listed below:

1. The land will be subdivided into five individual residential lots in keeping with the
historic Theodore Judah lotting pattem each with 7,000 square foot lot size, 50-foot
lot width, and 140-foot lot depth; and

2. The land will be transferred for the purpose of creating at least one for sale

affordable housing unit on each of the five lots with consideration for a smaller
secondary or accessory dwelling unit along the adjoining alley consistent with local
zoningand State housing laws; and

3. Consistent with the Surplus Land Act, the City will notifu housing sponsors
registered with the State Department of Housing and Community Development of
the surplus land availability; and

4. The City will submit relevant materials and process to the State Department of
Housing and Community Development to determine compliance with the
requirements of the Surplus Land Act.

2 Page 782

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



On September 24, 2020, a Notice of Availabiliry OfOA) was sent to all required entities.
During the mandatory 60-day noticing period, two housing providers (Habitat for Humanity
of Greater Sacramento and Retraining the Village) expressed interest in purchasing the
property for the pulposes of subdividing the property into five individual lots and developing
affordable, for-sale housing. City staff met with each of the interested housing providers during
the 90-day negotiation period, and proposals from Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento
(Habitat) and Retraining the Village were provided to the City.

On April 7,2021the City provided HCD with a summary of the City's Surplus Land process
for disposition of surplus property at 300 Persifer Street. The City also provided HCD with the
two proposals from Habitat and Retraining the Village. The State's Surplus Land Team
reviewed the documentation and confirmed compliance with required process. Furthermore,
HCD informed the City that priority preference should be given to the Habitat proposal given
lhatit included the deepest average level of affordability. City staff thereafter moved forward
with negotiations with Habitat with respect to its project proposal and purchase offer. Through
the good faith negotiation process, the following terms were settled upon:

1. The vacant surplus property will be subdivided by the City into five individual
residential lots in keeping with the historic Theodore Judah lotting pattem each with
7,000 square foot lot size, 50-foot lot width, and 140-foot lot depth.

2. The vacant surplus property will be sold to Habitat for a total sum of $10,000 for
the purpose of creating at least one for-sale affordable housing unit on each of the
five lots, with an additional smaller secondary or accessory dwelling unit on each
lot along the adjoining alley consistent with local zoning and State housing law.

3. Transfer of ownership of the Properly to Habitat is subject to Habitat entering into
a Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants to ensure

affordability of the units for 55 years as required by law.
4. The City will support Habitat's efforts to secure future grant funding and/or fee

reductions for off-site infrastructure improvements, design and permitting.

POLICY / RULE

The City Council has the authority to approve the sale of surplus City-owned property GMg
Section 2.36.270). Surplus City-owned land is subject to the requirements set forth in the
Surplus Land Act (Government Code sections 54220-5423a)) and in the event that more than
one entity proposes the same number of housing units that meet the requirements of
Government Code Section 54222.5, priority shall be given to the entity that proposes the
deepest average level of affordability for the affordable units. Government Code section
54227(a).

J
Page 783

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



ANALYSIS

Surplus Land Act

Assembly Bill 1486, which took effect on January 1,202I, made several changes to the Surplus

Land Act. Generally, the purpose of the amendments is to promote affordable housing
development on unused or underutilized public land throughout the state to respond to the
affordable housing crisis in California. As a result, once a local agency has declared a property
surplus land, the local agencies must now notiff public entities, as well as housing sponsors
registered with HCD of the surplus land availability. An entity or housing sponsor interested

in developing the land for affordable housing must notifu the agency of its desire to lease or
purchase the land within 60 days after the agency's notice of availability is sent. Once the

agency receives a notice of interest, a 90-day good faith negotiation period begin with all
qualifuing responsive parties. Prior to finalizing any agreements or disposing of surplus land,
the resulting proposal(s) must be documented and sent to HCD for 30-day review and

determination of compliance prior to land disposition. An overview of the Surplus Land Act
Disposition Process is provided in Attachment 3.

As previously indicated in the background section of this report, two housing providers,
Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento and Retraining the Village, expressed interest in
purchasing and developing the property at 300 Persifer Street. City staff met with each of the
interested housing providers during the 90-day negotiation period, and formal proposals from
Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento (Habitat) and Retraining the Village were
submitted to the City. Each proposal included developing affordable, for-sale housing on five
individual lots.

As required by the Surplus Land Act, the City provided the State all documentation regarding
300 Persifer Street surplus land disposition process, including notice, letters of interest,
negotiation process, and the final proposals submitted by Habitat and Retraining the Village.
The State's Surplus Land Team reviewed the documentation, confirmed compliance with
required process, and provided the following Surplus Land Act requirements regarding
required action in the event that there is more than one proposal with affordable housing:

The Surplus Land Act provides that if the City receives a Notice of Interest to purchase or lease

the landfrom more than one housing sponsor, the City must give /irst priority to the entity or
entities that agree to use the site to provide for the most affordable housing units that meets

the requirements of Government Code Section 54222.5 described as follows:

I. Not less than 25 percent of the total number of units developed (which number includes
density bonus units) shall be affordable housing.

2. If more than one entity proposes the same number of units that meet the requirements
of Government Code Section 54222.5, priority shall be given to the entity that proposes
the deepest average level of affordabilityfor the affordable units. In the event that more
than one entity proposes the same number ofunits that meet the requirements of Section

4
Page 784

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



54222.5, priority shall be given io the entity that proposes the deepest average level of
affordability for the affordable units.

Given that the Habitat proposal included the greatest number of for-sale affordable units (10
total) and the deepest level of affordability, the Habitat proposal was given priority for land
disposition consistent with the Surplus Land Act.

Habitat's Proposal

Habitat is proposing to partner with the City of Folsom for the purpose of developing
affordable homeownership housing units upon the parcel of identified surplus land located at
300 Persifer Street in the City of Folsom. Habitat has a long history and exceptional track
record of partnering with local cities and the Counties of Sacramento and Yolo to produce
housing that meets the community's vision and becomes an integral part of the neighborhood
fabric. Since 1985, in Sacramento and Yolo counties, Habitat has provided new homeowner
opportunities for over 150 families, and since the inception of their Home Preservation
program in20I7, completed over 100 home repairs for low-income seniors, veterans and
families.

The City-owned property at 300 Persifer Street provides a unique opportunity to partner with
Habitat to create five for sale single-family units affordable to low- and lower-income
households, with an additional five affordable for sale accessory dwelling unit or second
dwelling on each lot. Proposed development is consistent with all relevant zoning and land use
laws, including second dwelling unit law.

Habitat's proposal assumes that the property will be subdivided by the City into five individual
residential lots consistent with the historic Theodore Judah lotting pattern. Once the lots are
subdivided, Habitat will purchase all subdivided properties from the City for a total sum of
$10,000. Habitat's land acquisition model relies on obtaining land for its projects at little to no
cost in order to produce affordable homeownership opportunities for low-income families.
Furthermore, the Surplus Land Act (Government Code Section 54226) clarifies that a local
agency may sell or lease surplus land at or less than fair market value as a way of providing
additional subsidy to build more deeply income-targeted projects. Refer to proposal in
Attachment 4.

Habitat for Humanity Keli Project Details

o Development of ten for-sale single-family homes; five primary dwellings and five
accessory dwelling units on each lot, which can be sold separately as tenants in
common consistent with State law.

o Each unit will have its own metered gas, water, sewer, and electric utilities.
o Design of the homes will complement what already exists in the surrounding

neighborhood, adhere to Historic District Design Guidelines, and be subject to Design
Review approval by the Historic District Commission.

5
Page 785

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



All units will be affordable for-sale units for low and lower-income families within the
30Yo to 80% of Sacramento County Area Median Income (AMD. The current AMI in
Sacramento County for a family of four is $91,100.
It is projected that six homes will be purchased by families under the 600/o of Area
Median Income level, while the remaining four will be purchased by families from600/o
to 80%o of AMI.
Private capital in the form of corporate and other home sponsorship donations will
provide the majority of funding for the construction of these proposed homes.

Habitat will engage the community residents, neighborhood, and business associations
by recruiting volunteers for construction as well as the neighborhood revitalization
efforts.

While the homes will be "affordable" they will be constructed with attention to detail and
quality and will complement the existing feel of the surrounding neighborhood. The homes
will be constructed as "sweat equity" projects with each purchasing partner family required to
contribute 500 hours of sweat equity building their home and the homes of other partner
families. Upon completion, each of the homes will be purchased by the partner family qualified
by Habitat with a zero-interest equivalent 30-year mortgage with a monthly payment that is
structured at no more than 30o/o of their monthly income. Under Habitat's model, the sales
price of each home is based on the appraised value of the home at the time of sale, and "the
gap" between the sales price of the home and the homeowner's ooaffordable" first mortgage is
made up from a combination of grant funding and a forgivable affordability subsidy. Under
this model,Habitat provides an equity share provision that allows the homeowners to build
and capture equity over time. Sample plans for the 300 Persifer Street project are provided
below.

Housing Element Implementation

The City's recently adopted (August 24,2021) Housing Element, which implements the City's
"fair share" of the regional affordable housing needs allocated to the City by SACOG, calls for
2,226 very low-income units and 1,341 low-income units over the eight-year period from202l
to 2029. This Project proposes to provide 10 units toward meeting that goal. Furthermore,

a

a

a

6
Page 786

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



partnership in the development of affordable housing on this site is consistent with Housing
Element Goal H-3: Facilitating Affordable Housing and Housing Element Policies H-2.4
Accessory Dwelling Units and Multi-Generational Housing and H-3.4 Surplus Public Lund
and will implement the following Housing Element Implementation Program:

H.16 Facilitate Affordable Housing Development on City-Owned Land
The City shall facilitate the construction of afordable housing, including possible accessory
dwelling units, on the City-owned sites located at 300 Persifer Street (APN 070-0172-048) and
on Riley Street near Comstock Drive (APN 071-0190-076). The City shqll collaborate with an
interested affordable housing developer to construct deed-restricted affordable housing.

X'INANCIAL IMPACT

Proceeds from the sale of the City property will be deposited into the General Fund (Fund 010).
Costs associated with preparing and recording the parcel map will paid from the City's
Housing Fund (Fund 238).

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The sale of surplus city-owned property is categorically exempt from environmental review
under Section 15312 (Surplus Government Property Sales) of the CEQA Guidelines.

ATTACHMENTS

1 . Resolution No. 1 0777 - A Resolution of the City Council Approving the Sale of Surplus
Land Located at 300 Persifer Street to Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento,
Inc. for Purpose of Developing Affordable Housing

2. Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants

3. Surplus Land Act Summary Sheet

4. Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento Proposal

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

7
Page 787

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Attachment 1

Resolution No.10777 - A Resolution of the City Council Approving the Sale of
Surplus Land Located at 300 Persifer Street to Habitat for Humanity of Greater

Sacramento, lnc. for Purpose of Developing Affordable Housing

Page 788

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



RESOLUTION NO. 10777

A RESOLUTION OF'THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING THE SALE OF SURPLUS
LAND LOCATED AT 3OO PERSIFER STREET TO HABITAT T'OR HUMANITY OF

GREATER SACRAMENTO,INC. F'OR PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING AFFORDABLE
HOUSING

WHEREAS, City owns that certain real property in the City of Folsom, County of
Sacramento, State of California commonly known as 300 Persifer Street in Folsom (Property);
and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Folsom found that the Property is in excess
of the foreseeable needs of the City pursuant to Section 50570 of the Government Code; and

WHEREAS, on September 22,2020, pursuant to the requirements of the Surplus Land
Act, City Council adopted ResolutionNo. 10531 declaring the Property as surplus land and a
Notice of Availability Q.IOA) was sent to all required entities on September 24,2020; and

WHEREAS, the Property creates a unique opportunity to partner with an affordable
housing builder or non-profit to provide for-sale housing affordable to low- and lower-income
households: and

WHEREAS, Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento, Inc. (Habitat) desires to
purchase the Property from City in an amount of $10,000 for development of housing available
to persons and families of low and lower income at affordable housing cost, as defined by
Section 50052.5 of the Health and Safety Code and as amended from time to time; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Surplus Land Act Guidelines, cities may sell property at
less than fair market value if the city determines that the property can be used to provide housing
to low- and moderate- income households and,

WHEREAS, the sale of the Property for an affordable housing project is consistent with
the City's Housing Element Goal H-3: Facilitating Affordable Housing and Housing Element
Implementation Program H-16: Facilitating Affordable Housing Development on City-owned
Land; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to sell the surplus Property to Habitat for the development
of affordable housing.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby finds that the sale of vacant City property located at 300 Persifer Street to Habitat for
Humanity of Greater Sacramento, Inc. for purpose of developing affordable housing is
categorically exempt from environmental review under Section 15312 (Surplus Government
Property Sales) of the CEQA Guidelines.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the sale of vacant City property located at 300
Persifer Street to Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento, Inc. for purpose of developing

Resolution No. 10777
Page I of2 Page 789

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



1

2.

J

affordable housing is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions:

The Property will be subdivided by the City into five individual residential lots in
keeping with the historic Theodore Judah lotting pattern each with 7,000 square foot lot
size, 50-foot lot width, and 140-foot lot depth.

The Property is being sold to Habitat for a total sum of $10,000 for the purpose of
creating at least one for-sale affordable housing unit on each of the five lots, with an

additional smaller secondary or accessory dwelling unit on each lot along the adjoining
alley consistent with local zoning and State housing law.

The City Manager or designee is hereby directed to take all steps necessary to transfer
ownership of the Property to Habitat for purpose of developing affordable housing,
subject to Habitat entering into a Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive
Covenants in a form acceptable to the City Attorney.

4 The City will submit relevant documents to the State Department of Housing and

Community Development in compliance with the requirements of the Surplus Land Act
once disposition of the Property is complete.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December 2021, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10777
Page2 of2

Page 790

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Attach ment 2

Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants

Page 791

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



No fee for recording pursuant to Govemment Code
Section 27383

Rrcononc Rneunsrnr By AND WHnN REcoRDED
MAIL TO:

The City of Folsom
50 Natoma Sheet
Folsom, California 95 630
Attention: Community Development Director

Space above this line for recorder's use

REGULATORY AGREEMENT AND
DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

300 Persifer Street Affordable Housing Development

This Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants (the "Agreement")
is made and entered into as of this day of 2021 (*Effective Date"), by and

between the City of tr'olsom, a Califomia Charter Municipal Corporation ("City"), and Habitat
for Humanity of Greater Sacramento, Inc. ("Developer").

RECITALS

A. WHEREAS, City owns that certain real property in the City of Folsom, County of
Sacramento, State of California commonly known as 300 Persifer Street in Folsom, described in
more detail in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the "Property");
and

B. WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Folsom found that the Property is in
excess of the foreseeable needs of the City pursuant to Section 50570 of the Government Code;
and

C. WHEREAS, Developer desires to purchase the Property from City for development
of housing available to persons and families of low or moderate income at affordable housing
cost, as defined by Section 50052.5 of the Health and Safety Code and as amended from time to
time, subject to the specific requirements of this Agreement; and

D. WHEREAS, the City requires that the Property be developed with affordable housing
in conformance with the terms of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, City and Developer hereby agree as follows:

1

Page 792

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



1. Definitions. The following terms have the respective meanings assigned to them in this

Agreement.

1.1 "Af,brdable_Eil" shall mean affordable to persons earning less than 80% Area

Median Family Income (AMFD as defined by U.S. Department of Housing and Urban

Development (HUD).

I.2 "Agle.enqd" shall mean this Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of
Restrictive Covenants.

1.3

r.4

'.Cis'" shall mean the City of Folsom.

((Code" shall mean the municipal code of the City of Folsom.

1.5 "Developer" shall mean, Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento, Inc., a
qualified nonprofit housing corporation under Government Code Section 65915(c)(2XB).

1.6 "Extremely Low-Inco " means a tenant whose income does not exceed

thirty (30) percent of the Median Income applicable to Sacramento County, adjusted for family
size as published and annually updated by the United States Department of Housing and Urban

Development.

1.7 "Lower Income Tenant" means a tenant whose income does not exceed eighty
(80) percent of the Median Income applicable to Sacramento County, adjusted for family size as

published and annually updated by the United States Department of Housing and Urban

Development.

1.8 "Media4_@nqe" shall mean the median income adjusted for household size

applicable to Sacramento County as determined annually by the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development.

1.09 ((Owner" shall mean an individual or entity who purchases and acquires one or
more Units in the Project in fee simple.

1.10 "Propery" shall mean the real property described in Exhibit A attached hereto.

1 . 1 1 'oProject" shall mean the l0-unit affordable residential housing development
located at 300 Persifer Street in the City of Folsom, Sacramento County, California available to
persons and families of low or moderate income at affordable housing cost, as defined by Section
50052.5 of the Health and Safety Code, as amended from time to time, subject to the more

specific terms in this Agreement.

l.l2 ('Rent" shall mean the monthly total of payments by the tenants of a Unit for the

following: use and occupancy of the Unit and associated facilities, including parking; the

separately charged fees or service charges assessed by Owner which are required of all tenants,

other than security deposits; the cost of an adequate level of service for utilities paid by the

tenant, including garbage collection, sewer, water, electricity, gas and other heating, cooking and

refrigeration fuel, but not telephone service; any other interest, taxes, fees or charges for use of

2

Page 793

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



the land or associated facilities and assessed by a public or private entity other than Owner, and
paid by the Tenant.

1.13 ({Tenallt" 
shall mean an occupant or occupants of the Units.

l.l4 ((Term" shall mean the period of time beginning on the date of the issuance of the

first certificate of occupancy for the Units and ending 55 years thereafter.

1 . 1 5 "rUnit" shall mean each of the 10 residential units to be constructed on the
Property as a part of the Project, all shall be Affordable Units and deed-restricted under this
Agreement.

1'16..@,,shallmeanatenantwhoseincomedoesnotexceed
frfty (50) percent of the Median Income applicable to Sacramento County, adjusted for family
size, as published and annually updated by the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development.

2. Affordabilitv Covenants.

2.1 Applicability: The affordability covenant under this Agreement shall apply
throughout the Term of this Agreement, subject to the specific requirements in this Section.

2.2 Tenant Occupancy Requirement: All Units developed on the Property shall be

made available for sale or rent to Extremely Low-Income Tenants, Very-Low-lncome Tenants,

or Lower Income Tenants at affordable housing prices. If rented to Tenants, monthly Rent for
the Units shall be affordable and occupied by individuals and families based on their income in
Section 2.3 below throughout the Term of this Agreement.

2.3 Allowable Rent.

2.3.1 The monthly Rent charged for the Extremely Low Income Tenants shall
not exceed one-twelfth of 30% of 30% of the Median Income applicable to Sacramento County,
adjusted for assumed household size. As used herein, "assumed household size" shall have the

meaning set forth in the Low Income Housing Tax Credit Program.

2.3.2 The monthly Rent charged for the Very Low Income Tenants shall not
exceed one-twelfth of 30% of 50% of the Median Income applicable to Sacramento County,
adjusted for assumed household size. As used herein, "assumed household size" shall have the

meaning set forth in the Low Income Housing Tax Credit Program.

2.3.3 The monthly Rent charged for the Lower Income Tenants shall not exceed

one-twelfth of 30Yo of 80% of the Median Income applicable to Sacramento County, adjusted for
assumed household size. As used in herein, "assumed household size" shall have the meaning
set forth in the Low Income Housing Tax Credit Program.

2.3.4 Lease Provisions. The lease for all Lower Income Tenants, Very Low
Income Tenants and Extremely Low Income Tenants shall include provisions which authorize
the owner of the Unit to immediately terminate the tenancy if any applicant misrepresented any

-t

Page 794

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



fact material to their qualification as Lower Income, Very Low Income, or Extremely Low
Income. Each lease or rental agreement of a Lower Income, Very Low Income or Extremely
Low Income Unit shall also provide that the Tenant household is subject to annual certification
in accordance with Section 4, below.

2.4 Equity Sharing Requirement for Ownership Units. The Developer acknowledges

and agrees that Govemment Code Section 54222.5 requires the initial occupants of all ownership
Units shall be lower income households, and that the Units shall be subject to an equity sharing

requirement consistent with Government Code Section 65915(c)(2)(C)(i) and (v):

(a) Upon resale, the seller of the Unit shall retain the value of any improvements, the

down payment, and the seller's proportionate share of appreciation.

(b) Pursuant to Government Code Section 65915(c)(2)(CXv), since the Unit is developed
by a qualified nonprofit housing corporation pursuant to Govemment Code Section
65915(c)(2)(AXiD and 65915(c)(2)(B), the Developer is permitted to recapture any initial
subqidy and its proportionate share of appreciation if the Developer is required to use 100% of
the proceeds to promote home ownership for lower income households as defined by Health and

Safety Code Section 50079.5 within the City's jurisdiction.

3. Operation and Maintenance of The Project.

3.1 Residential Use. The Project shall be operated for residential use, either for-sale
or rental under at least a month-to-month tenancy. No part of the Project shall be operated as

transient housing or short-term rental for less than 30 days.

3.2 Taxes and Assessments. Owner of the Unit shall pay all real and personal
property taxes, assessments and charges, and all franchise, income, employment, old age benefit,
withholding, sales, and other taxes assessed against it, or payable by it, at such times and in such

manner as to prevent any penalty from accruing, or any lien or charge from attaching to the
Property; provided, however, Owner shall have the right to contest, in good faith, any such taxes,

assessments, or charges. In the event that the owner exercises his or her right to contest any tax,
assessment or charge, Owner, upon final determination of the preceding, shall immediately pay

or discharge any judgment rendered against it, together with all costs, charges and interest.

Nothing herein shall preclude Owner from applying for any property tax exemptions for which it
may qualifr.

3.3 Management and Maintenance. Owner shall maintain the Unit in good repair and

condition, and in afleat, clean and orderly condition, including exterior walkways, driveways,
alley ways and landscaping, and, from time to time, make all necessary and proper repairs,
renewals, and replacements to all improvements associated with the Unit.

3.4 Nondiscrimination. Owner shall not give preference to any particular class or
group of persons and renting the Units, except to the extent that the Lower Income Units, Very
Low Income Units and Extremely Low Income Units are required to be leased to Lower Income
Households, Very Low Income Households and Extremely Low Income Households,
respectively. There shall be no discrimination against or segregation of any person or group of

4

Page 795

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



persons on account ofrace, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation or preference, gender

identity, maritalstatus, familial status, national origin, source of income (e.g., AFDC or SSI)

ancestry, or handicap, in the leasing, subleasing, transferring, use, occupancy, tenure, ot
enjoyment of any Unit, nor shall Owner or any person claiming under or through Owner,

establish or permit any such practice or practices of discrimination or segregation with reference

to the selection, location, number, use, or occupancy, oftenants, lessees, sub lessees, subtenants,

or vendees of any Unit or in connection with the employment of persons for the construction,

operation and management of any Unit. All deeds, leases or contracts made or entered into by
Owner as to the Units over the Property, or portion thereof, shall contain the following covenants

concerning discrimination:

In Deeds:

"The grantee herein covenants by and for itself or himself, his heirs, executors,

administrators and assigns, and all persons claiming under or through him, that

there shall be no discrimination against or segregation of any person or group of
persons on account oftace, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation or
preference, gender identity, marital status, familial status, national origin or
ancestry, or source of income in the sale, lease, sublease, transfer, use, occupancy,

tenure or enjoyment of the land herein conveyed, nor shall the grantee himself or
any person claiming under or through it or him establish or permit any such

practice or practices of discrimination or segregation with reference to the

selection, location, number, use or occupancy oftenants, lessees, sub lessees,

subtenants or vendees in the land herein conveyed. The foregoing covenants shall

run with the land."

In Leases:

"The lessee herein covenants by and for itself or himself, his heirs, executors,

administrators and assigns, and all persons claiming under or through him, and

this lease is made and accepted upon and subject to the following conditions:

That there shall be no discrimination against or segregation of any person or
group ofpersons on account ofrace, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation

or preference, gender identity, marital stafus, familial status, national origin or
ancestry, or source of income in the leasing, subleasing, transferring, use,

occupancy, tenure or enjoyment of the land herein leased, nor shall the lessee

himself or any person claiming under or through him establish or permit any such

practice or practices of discrimination or segregation with reference to the

selection, location, number, use or occupancy oftenants, lessees, sub lessees,

subtenants or vendees in the land herein leased. The foregoing covenants shall
run with the land."

In Contracts:

o'There shall be no discrimination against or segregation of any pefson or group of
persons on account ofrace, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation or

5

Page 796

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



preference, gender identity, marital status, familial status, national origin or
ancestry in the sale, lease, sublease, transfer, use, occupancy, tenure or enjoyment

of the land herein leased, nor shall the transferee itself or himself or any person

claiming under or through him establish or permit any such practice or practices

of discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, number,

use or occupancy oftenants, lessees, sub lessees, subtenants or vendees in the

land. The foregoing covenants shall run with the land'"

3.5 Section 8 Certificate Holders. Owner will accept as tenants, on the same basis as

all other prospective tenants, persons who are recipients of federal certificates for rent subsidies,

pursuant to the existing housing program under Section 8 of the United States Housing Act, as

amended. Owner shall not apply selection criteria to Section 8 certificate or voucher holders that

are more burdensome than criteria applied to all other prospective tenants, nor shall Owner apply

or permit the application of management policies or lease provisions with respect to the Project

that have the effect of precluding occupancy of the Units by such prospective tenants.

3.6 Preference to Displaced Households in Citv. To the extent permitted by law,
including Tax Credit rules and regulations, Developer shall give a preference in the sale of any

Units to eligible households already living and residing in the City. Similarly, Owner shall give

a preference in the rental of any Units to eligible households already living and residing in the

City.

4. Reporting.

4.1 Income Certification and Reporting for Rental Housing.

4.ll If renting to Tenants, Owner will obtain, complete and maintain on file,
immediately prior to initial occupancy, and annually thereafter, complete certifications from each

Extremely Low Income Household renting any of the Extremely Low Income Units, each Very
Low Income Household renting any of the Very Low Income Units and each Lower Income

Household renting any of the Lower Income Units. Owner shall make a good-faith effort to
veri$' that the income certification provided by an applicant or occupying household member(s)

is accurate by taking one or more of the following steps as part of the verification process: (1)

obtain a pay stub for the most recent pay period, (2) obtain an income tax retum for the most

recent taxyear (3) conduct an income inquiry through a credit reporting agency, (4) obtain an

income verification form from the applicant's and occupying household members' current

employer, (5) obtain an income verification form from the Social Security Administration or the

California Department of Social Services, if the applicant or occupying household member

receives assistance from either ofsuch agencies, (6) ifthe applicant or occupying household

member is unemployed and has no such tax return, obtain another form of independent

verification. Copies pf Tenant income certifications shall be made available to City upon
request. If, and for so long as, the Project is subject to the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit
Program Regulatory Agreement with the Califomia Tax Credit Allocation Committee

"CTCAC"), income certifications which comply with CTCAC requirements shall be deemed to

comply with the requirements of this Section 4.1.1.

6

Page 797

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



If the income of the Tenant, upon recertification, exceeds the upper limit for
Lower Income Households, and there are no other requirements statutorily or contractually
imposed by another federal or state funding source, such Tenant shall be allowed to remain in
occupancy provided, however that that if the income of such household exceeds 80% of the
Median Income, Owner may terminate such occupancy.

4.2 Annual Report to City for Rental Housing. If renting to Tenants, Owner shall
submit to City (i) not later than 45 days after the close of each calendar year, a report to City
setting forth the status of Owner's compliance with the requirements of this Agreement, and (ii)
within 15 days after receipt of a written request, any other information or completed forms
requested by City in order to comply with reporting requirements of the State of California.

4.3 Additional lnformation. Owner shall provide any additional informatton
reasonably requested by the City. Upon reasonable prior notice, City shall have the right to
examine all books, records or other documents of owner, which pertain to any Unit.

4.4 Records. Owner shall maintain complete, accvrate and current records pertaining
to the Units, and shall permit any duly authorized representative of City, during normal business

hours and with reasonable prior written notice, to inspect records, including records pertaining to
income and household size of tenant households. All tenant lists, applications and waiting lists
relating to the Project shall, at all times, be kept separate and identifiable from any other business

records of Owner and shall be maintained as required by City, and in reasonable condition for
proper audit and subject to examination during normal business hours by representatives of City.

5. Miscellaneous

5.1 Covenants. The provisions contained in this Agreement are covenants which
subject and burden the Property, as covenants running with the land. It is intended and agreed

that the agreements and covenants provided in the Agreement shall be covenants running with
the land and equitable servitudes on the land and that they shall, in any event, and without regard

to technical classifications or designation, be binding to the fullest extent permitted by law and

equity, for the benefit and in favor of, and enforceable by, the City, the City's successors and

assigns, any other governmental entity acting within its authority and any successor in interest to
all or any part of the Property against Owner, its successors and assigns and every successor in
interest to all or any part of the Property. References in this Agreement to Owner shall include
all such successors, assigns, occupants, transferees and any other party over which Owner can

enforce its rights concerning such covenants.

5.2 Existing Covenants. Conditions & Restrictions. This Agreement shall supersede

any covenants, conditions and restrictions that have been previously recorded by, or on behalfof,
the City for the parcels comprising the Property. If there are other covenants, conditions or
restrictions that are superseded, they are hereby terminated when this Regulatory Agreement is

recorded.

5.3 Riehts of Mortgagee. The provisions of this Agreement do not limit the right of
any obligee to exercise any of its remedies for the enforcement of any pledge or lien upon the

Property.

7

Page 798

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



5.4 Covenants Run with Land. The covenants contained herein shall run with the

land in favor of the City and its successors and assigns without regard to whether the City has

been, remains, or is an owner of any land or interest therein, and shall bind the Owner, its

successors and assigns. Such beneficiaries shall have the right to exercise all rights and remedies

and to maintain any actions or suits at law or in equity or other property proceedings to enforce

the curing of any breach, to which it or any other beneficiaries of such covenants are entitled.

In the event the City shall be abolished or its designation changed by or pursuant to law,

its powers, rights and functions under this Agreement may be transferred to any other designated

governmental office or agency.

5.5 Citv Codes. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as

permitting the violation of any requirement of the ordinances or other laws or rules of the City of
Folsom, it being the intent of this Agreement to impose additional restrictions over and above the

requirements of any such ordinances.

5.6 Modifications. City and its successors and assigns, and Owner and its successors

and assigns, shall have the right to consent and agree to changes in, or to eliminate in whole or in
part any of the covenants or restrictions contained in this Agreement without the consent of any

tenant, lessee, easement holder, licensee, trustee, or any other person or entity having any interest

less than a fee in the Property.

5.7 Attornevs'Fees. If either Owner or City files any lawsuit against the other
predicated on this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action shall be entitled to recover,

from the non-prevailingpafi, its attomeys' fees, and all fees, costs, and expenses incurred in
any post-judgment proceedings to collect or enforce any judgment and in any appeal. This
provision forthe recovery offees, costs, and expenses is separate and several and shall survive

the merger of this Agreement into any judgment on this Agteement. This section shall be

interpreted in accordance with California Civil Code section 1717 and iudicial decisions

interpreting that statute.

5.8 Enforcement by the City. If the Owner fails to perform its obligations under this

Agreement the City shall have the right to enforce this Agreement by any or all of the following
actions, or any other remedy provided by law:

5.8.1 Action to Compel Performance or for Damages. The City may bring an

action at law or in equity to compel the Owner's performance of their obligations under this

Agreement, andlor for damages.

5.8.2 City agrees to accept a cure made by Owner's limited partners on the same

basis as if such cure was tendered by Owner.

5.8.3 City Authoritv. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to prevent the City
from enforcing this Agreement or City Codes in law or at equity, ot from pursuing any other

remedy available to the City. Prior to initiating any of the actions described above the City shall
provide to Owner notice of the City's determination that a violation of this Agreement has or is

occurring and provide Owner thirty (30) days to cure any such violation. City agrees that if the

default cannot be cured within thirty (30) days and Owner conlmences the cure within thirty (30)

8

Page 799

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



days and thereafter diligently pursues such cure and completes such cure within ninety (90) days,
or such longer period as the City may approve, that the City shall not initiate any of the actions

described above until the City-approved cure period has expired without the violation and/or
default being cured.

5.8.4 Others May Enforce. The enforcement provision in this Agreement runs
with the land and shall be enforceable against any Owner who violates a covenant or restriction
and each successor in interest who continues the violation, by any of the following:

(a) The local agency that disposed of the Property

(b) A resident of a Unit.

(c) A residents' association with members who reside in Units subject to this
Agreement.

(d) A former resident of a Unit subject to this Agreement who last resided in that
Unit.

(e) An applicant seeking to enforce the covenants or restrictions for a particular
Unit that is subject to this Agreement, if the applicant conforms to all of the
following:

(1) Is of low or moderate income, as defined in Section 50093 of the Health
and Safety Code.

(2) Is able and willing to occupy that particular unit.

(3) Was denied occupancy of that particular unit due to an alleged breach of a
covenant or restriction implementing this section.

(f) A person on an affordable housing waiting list who is of low or moderate
income, as defined in Section 50093 of the Health and Safety Code, and who
is able and willing to occupy a Unit subject to this Agreement.

5.9 Recording and Filing. Owner shall cause this Agreement, and all amendments
and supplements to it, to be recorded against the Property in the Official Records of the County
of Sacramento.

5.10 Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the
State of California, and any action brought relating to this Agteement shall be held exclusively in
a state court in the County of Sacramento.

5.11 Waiver of Requirements. Any of the requirements of this Agteement may be
expressly waived by the City in writing, but no waiver by the City of any requirement of this
Agreement shall, or shall be deemed to, extend to or affect any other provision of this
Agreement.

9

Page 800

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



5.12 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument

executed by the City and the Developer or their successors in title, and duly recorded in the real

property records of the County of Sacramento. After sale of a Unit by the Developer, this

Agreement may be amended to affect that particular Unit only by a written instrument executed

by the City and the Owner or their successors in title, and duly recorded in the real property
records of the County of Sacramento.

5.13 Notices. All notices, requests, demands, payments, or other communication

hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be duly given upon receipt and refusal, if
delivered; (i) by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, retum receipt requested, (ii)
deposited with any nationally-recognized overnight carrier that routinely issues receipts, or (iii)
delivered personally, to the following addresses:

City: The City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
Attn: City Manager

Developer:

Such written notices, demands and communications may be sent in the same manner to

such other addresses as the affected party may from time to time designate by mail as provided
in this section. Notices shall be deemed delivered upon receipt or refusal thereof. Such

addresses may be changed by notice to the other party given in the same manner as provided
above.

5 .14 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or
unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining portions of this
Agreement shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

5.15 Multiple Originals: Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple
originals, each of which is deemed to be an original, and may be signed in counterparts.

6. Prevailing Wage. Since public funds will be used for the Project, Developer
acknowledges and agrees that the Project is subject to the prevailing wage requirement.

7. Reversion Provision. Title to the Property shall revert to the City if the Developer of the

Project is a housing corporation, limited dividend corporation, or nonprofit corporation,
whenever the ownership of the Property is no longer composed of a majority of the nonprofit or
limited dividend sponsors. This provision shall terminate after sale of each Unit with respect to

that Unit.

10

Page 801

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



[Signatures appear on the following pages]

l1

Page 802

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City and Developer have executed this Agreement on the

dates set forth below to be effective on the Effective Date.

CITY: DEVELOPER:

The City of Folsom,
a California municipal corporation

By
President

Elaine Andersen, City Manager

Date:

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Pam Johns, Director
Community Development Department

Date:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Steven Wang, City Attorney

Date:

ATTEST: FUNDING AVAILABLE

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk Stacey Tamagni, Finance Director/CFO

Date:Date:

By

NOTICE: SIGNATURE($ MUST BE NOTARIZED.

T2

Page 803

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



EXHIBIT A

(Legal Description of Property)

[Attached]

13

Page 804

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Attachment 3

Surplus Land Act Summary Sheet

Page 805

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



CITY PROCESS TO DISPOSE OF SURPLUS PROPERTY
PURSUAIYT TO STATE SURPLUS LAND ACT

1 Surplus Property ldentified
The City Councildeems land surplus in a public hearing

2. Notice of Availability to Public Entities
The City sends notices to priority entities:
o Public agencies and affordable housing developers
o Localschooldistricts
o Parks and recreational districts and State Resources

Agency
o Public entities in infill opportunity zones

3. Notice of Availability for Affordable Housing
A Notice of Availability is also sent to affordable housing entities:
o Public entities within the City
o Housing sponsors/developers listed with
o California Dept of Housing and Community

Development (HCD)

_>

-----f

-->

4. Notice of lnterest
lnterested qualified entities must notify the City of the desire to purchase or lease the land within 60 days
of the release of the Notice of Availability.

5. Good Faith Negotiation
Once the City receives a notice of interest, a 90-day good faith negotiation period begins. The City can
negotiate with multiple entities simultaneously and uses the following criteria to prioritize the offers:
o Greatest number of affordable units
o Deepest level of affordability (average affordability)

6. Sale Price/Lease Terms
When negotiating the sale of lease, the City may sell or lease the property at full market value. The City
may also sell or lease at less than full market value.

No Offers or Agreement on Terms
lf there are no agreement on terms or no offers on the surplus property, the City may sell the property without
further obligations, except:

It the site is later developed as residential with 10 or more units, at least 1 5% of the units must be affordable to
lower income and must have recorded the following affordability restrictions.

Rental Restrictions:

o Rent not to exceed 30o/o of 60% of "area median income" (AMl)
o S5-year rental restrictions

Ownership Restrictions:

o Housing cost (mortgage, taxes, insurance, utilities, HOA fees) not to exceed 30o/o of 7Qo/o of AMI
o Requires an equity sharing agreement

1. Surplus
Property
ldentified

2. Notice of
Availability to

Priority Entities

3. Notice of
Availability for

Affordable
Housing 60 clays

4. Notice of
lnterest

5. Good Faitlr
Negotiations

90 days

6. Sales Price /
Lease Terms

Page 806

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Habitat rb, 
"*"#:rcllu|Jt "*rr"-.rro 

proposal

Page 807

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Habitat
for Humanity'
of Greater Sacramento

Proposed Development of 300 Persifer Street, Folsom, California
APN#070-O172-O48

March 22,2021

Page 808

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento
Proposed Development of 300 Persifer Street, Folsom, CA

APN#070-0172-048

TABLE OF CONTENTS

L, COVER LETTER

2. STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

A. DEVELOPER INFORMATION

B. LEGAL ENTITY

C. RELEVANT DEVELOPER EXPERIENCE

RELEVANT PROJECTS CURRENTLY IN PROGRESS

RELEVANT UPCOM ING PROJECTS

D. PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT TEAM

E. MANAGEMENT & ORGANIZATIONAL APPROACH

3. DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL

A. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

B. PROJECT DESIGN

C. PROJECT DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

4. FINANCING PLAN

A. BUDGET

B. CONSTRUCTION FINANCING

C, POTENTIAL OFFSITE INFASTRUCTURE SOURCES OF FUNDING

D. PLANNED OFFSITE INFASTRUCTURE FUNDING SOURCES

5. COMMUNITY OUTREACH

ATTACH M ENT A _2020 STANDARD FEATURES

ATTACHMENT B - SAMPLE PLANS - SINGLE FAMILY, SAMPLE ADU/SECOND DWELLING UNITS

ATTACH MENT C - DEVELOPMENT FINANCI NG

ATTACHMENT D - PERMIT COST COMPARISON

I

t-\-
riTi Habitat

for Hxnluity

Page 809

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Habitat for Humanitv of Greater Sacramento
Statement of Qualifications

Background

A. Developer lnformation

Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento's (Habitat) administration and construction office is located

at 819 North 10th Street, CA, 95811. Our office number is 916-440-1215 and fax number is 916-440-

1213. All staff members work from this office/warehouse facility located off of Richards Blvd. close to
downtown Sacramento. Website address is HabitatGreaterSac.org and social media handles include:

Facebook@bi!g!Grealel$ Twitter: @SacHabitat lnstagram:@sacHabitat and Linkedln/company/
sachabitat

Habitat Greater Sacramento has a California General Contractor's License in good standing. The license

number is#922515.

B. LegalEntity

Habitat is an independent affiliate of Habitat for Humanity lnternational serving Sacramento and Yolo

Counties. Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento, lnc. is the affiliate's legal name. The affiliate is a

California non-profit public benefit corporation with the Federal EIN 68-0085804, which is the group EIN

number issued to Habitat for Humanity lnternational and its subordinate affiliates. Habitat has

subordinate status under this group EIN number with the 501(cX3) Designation Number 8545. This is the
group exemption number issued to Habitat for Humanity lnternational and its subordinate affiliates.

Habitat's mission is to bring people together to build homes, community and hope. Habitat works to
create successful homeownership opportunities for families with limited incomes by building
sustainable housing and revitalizing neighborhoods. The nonprofit organization is a developer,

contractor, mortgage lender, mortgage servicer, retail outlet, volunteer manager and fundraiser,

Habitat is presenting this overview and proposal in response to the notification of surplus land with
interest to pursue a partnership with the City of Folsom in developing the .91 acre parcel located at 300

Persifer Street in Folsom, CA APN#070-0L72-048.

t\-
riTi Habitat

l0r lhnrdnily
, I,,i.,, \, :.,!,,r,1,,

2
Page 810

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



C. Relevant Developer Experience

Habitat has a long history and exceptional track record of partnering with local cities and the Counties of
Sacramento and Yolo to produce housing that meets the community's vision and becomes an integral
part of the neighborhood fabric. Since 1985, in Sacramento and Yolo counties Habitat has provided new

homeownership opportunities for over 150 families, and since the inception of our Home Preservation
program in 20L7, completed over 100 home repairs for low-income seniors, veterans and families.

Specifically in working with the
Sacramento Housing &
Redevelopment Agency (SHRA),

Habitat Greater Sacramento has

built 11 new homes on

underutilized lots provided by
SHRA to revitalize Oak Park and
Del Paso Heights areas and has

rehabbed t homes as a Mission-
Driven Development Partner of
SHRA's Neighborhood Property
(NSP) Recycling Program. Most
recently we were the selected

developer of property provided

by SHRA in South Sacramento
known as 'The Avenues." This 5-

home, single family development
was completed in fall 2019. See

pictures to the right of homes ot
"The Avenues." "The Avenues" Habitat Homes at 43rd & MLK

Our experience with planning, entitlements and the City of Sacramento's Design Review process, the
financing and construction of single family homes, and the sale of these homes in the communities of
Oak Park, South Oak Park, Del Paso Heights, and South Sacramento is clearly demonstrated by the
homes we have completed.

Our lndian Lane 14-unit development in South Sacramento is a prime example which brings all of these

aspects into focus. The site for this 14-home development was acquired through the County of
Sacramento's Tax Defaulted Land Sale Program, Once acquired Habitat Greater Sacramento had 3 years

to go through the entitlement process to split the property into 14 parcels, get the site plan approved by

the City of Sacramento's Planning Division and Council, get the home plans approved by the City of
Sacramento's Design Review and Permitting process, develop the bids, and choose and supervise the
subcontractor for the project's infrastructure work. ln addition to this project-specific planning, a

financing plan to pay for the almost 51 million in infrastructure costs was developed and

executed. Financing for this infrastructure included grant funding from Housing and Community
Development's CalHome Project Development Program, a structured New Market Tax Credit transaction
and HUD's Self-Help Homeownership Opportunity Program. The infrastructure for this development
was completed by subcontractor Doug VeerKamp Engineering in June 2013.

3

,-\.
riTir Habitat

lor Hrmanily
ol Crr.!l€r 5io.rne.t'

Page 811

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



ln addition to these financing mechanisms, we also entered into a Zero lnterest Equivalent Mortgage
(ZEM) Agreement with two (2) local banks. Because the infrastructure expenses for the lndian Lane

development were primarily funded by a CalHome Project Development Program grant, this precluded

our ability to receive CalHome First Time Homebuyer's Assistance grant funding for the lndian Lane

units. As a result, the up to 560,000 per unit that we typically receive after closing from this
homebuyer's assistance funding was not available, causing a significant funding gap that we were able
to fill with the ZEM transaction financing.

The construction of the 14 lndian Lane homes was divided into three (3) phases

PHASE I - four (4) homes (two 3-
bedroom/2-bath homes and two
4-bed room/2-bath homes) sta rted
in August 2013 and completed in

February 2014. Private financing
from a capital campaign during the
2006- 2011 period served as

home sponsorship funding for
these homes.
PHASE ll - five (5) homes (three 3-
bedroom/2-bath and two 4-
bedroom/2-bath homes) started in

December 2013 and completed in

May 20L4. Home sponsorships of
575,000 for each unit were raised
from a number of foundations,
corporations, and legacy gifts.

PHASE llll- five (5) homes started in

April 2014 and completed in

September 2015. Home
sponsorships of 575,000 for each

unit were raised from a number of
foundations, corporations, and

legacy gifts.

a

a

14-home lndian Lane Development

The families recruited and approved to become the homeowners of these 14 homes were all families
whose incomes fall within the 30o/o - 60% of local AMl, Each of these families completed the required
500 hours of sweat equity before purchasing their Habitat home with a zero interest, 3O-year mortgage
with a monthly payment that is structured at no more than 30% of their monthly income,

4

lor llununity
Habitat

t5.
riTi

Page 812

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



o Relevant Projects Currently in Progress:

Mandolin Estates - this 13-single family home development comprised of 4,5 and 5 bedroom
homes is located near Power lnn Rd and 52nd Ave in the 95828 zip code. See Mondolin Estdtes Site

Map Below:

'?s- towm Dtl totD

i

i
J

1

Habitat for Humanity lrrosEu

Site Plan for Habitat's Mandolin Estates Development

In-fill proiects - We currently have two in-fill new homeownership projects underway.
. 790L 34th Avenue - located in South Sacramento this property was acquired by Habitat

via a program facilitated by the City of Sacramento which has enabled Habitat to receive
the donation of a former illegal cannabis grow property that our organization has

completely remediated and remodeled to turn in to a homeownership opportunity.
. 3250 34th Ave - located in Oak Park this property was acquired through the County of

Sacramento Default Tax Lien sales and is a new build.

Home Repairs - Additionally underway we have several dozen home repair projects in various stages

throughout Sacramento and Yolo counties.

5

rat
TO I

H
ffi

,tflEP*-,.*,**C[ rugramrruffi
6r lgtlamrffiffi
i0: tutrlmrmffi

.Ea g{

.G

* @n[i
ffi

Page 813

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



o Relevant Upcoming Projects:
46th Street - Currently in the entitlement phase, this project is a collaborative affordable housing

development involving Habitat Greater Sacramento, Mutual Housing of California and SHRA to
develop 7.5 acres in South Sacramento. This community will house over 500 individuals with 108

multi-family units developed by Mutual Housing and 18-single family homes developed by Habitat

for Humanity. This development, projected to start in mid to late 2022 will be Habitat for Humanity

of Greater Sacramento's largest development to date. See site ptan for the 46th Ave development
below.

N
waTffiwaf6swf

M
U0reffitr{6drSrct

*iEr'!{Cr&
E !d,i

-
I

J
6

xw&rufrlt*
ffil
ffiATM
IUffiA'qffi

TWIrcUS
sffi&
O^ MUIUAL
d'xoulrxo

qBE
wMo

ftr*ils-

'.,#d ,!rnS={6S&*EE

"!m

t4tma
Dffi
!ffi

A10'l

ffiI

:;s*q a -A--t- L

46th Street Site Plan - Community Partnership

Between Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento & Mutual Housing

@

6

I ii'i
',''.1

.* Habitat
for Humanlty
ol 0R.{er sauJrcat,

46th Street Site Plan - Streetscape of Habitat Homes

Page 814

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



D. P roposed Devel o pme nt Te a m

Our affiliate currently has a full-time staff of 21 people. Of that, 12 of which are professional roles,

including: CEO, COO, Director of Construction, Director of Development, Controller, Manager of
Homeowner Services, Development Officers, Procurement Manager, 4 Site Superintendents,
Construction Administrator and Construction Procurement Coordinator and Development Lead. Each

one of these employees plays an integral role in the building or rehabilitation, and ultimate selling of our
homes to our qualified first-time homebuyers. Our senior management team is comprised of:

e leah Miller, CEO 916-440-12L5, ext. 113]. or LMiller@HabitatGreaterSac.ors
o Shannin Stein, COO 9L6-440-I215, ext. 114 or SStein@HabitatGreaterSac.ore
o Laine Himmelmann, Director of Development 916-440-L2L5, ext. 1108 or

LHimmelmann@ HabitatGreaterSac.org
o Farrah Shields, Controller 9L6-440-1215, ext, 1LL3 or FShields@HabitatGreaterSac.ors
o Michael Gordon, Director of Construction 916-440-1215, ext. Ltt9 or

Msordon @ Ha bitatG reaterSac.org
o Corey Stevenson, Homeowner Services Manager 976-440-L2L5, ext, 1101 or

CStevenson @ Ha bitatGreaterSac.ors
r Anne Gambino, Forward Planning 9L6-440-L215 or AGambino@HabitatGreaterSac.ore

This team plus our 4 Site Superintendents, our Construction Administrator and Construction
Procurement Coordinator and Department Lead in partnership with our team of fundraising
professionals bring well over 300 years of combined experience in their relevant professional fields.

The proposed development team that would be responsible for the development:

Leah Miller- President & CEO

Leah brings over 20 years of combined non-profit fund raising, real estate, and

leadership experience to her role as CEO. She attended California State

University, Chico, where she graduated with a degree in Journalism and Public

Relations. She is responsible for the overall strategic vision of the affiliate and is

the staff member primarily responsible for developing the affiliate's relationship
with collaborative entities and other developers, non-profit and for-profit, in the
greater Sacramento area.

Shannin Stein - COO

Shannin has over 25 years' experience in non-profit and for-profit business

operations and human resources management. Shannin is a certified Qualified
Loan Originator and oversees the affiliate ReStore, Construction, and

Homeowner Services Departments as well as our affiliate health and safety
programs. While mostly focused on internal affiliate operations, Shannin is also

instrumental in developing and maintaining our community partnerships and

neighborhood N PO relationships.

7

,f
-/, {Fr_

q-ls
.*i

E#

ft[,*Pil"l,t

Page 815

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Laine Himmelmann- Director of Development
Laine Himmelmann is a graduate from Gonzaga University with a degree in English

and Public Relations. With over 10 years of non-profit fundraising, community
organizing, volunteer recruitment and management, and public relations
experience, she oversees the development and implementation of a strategic
fundraising plan and directs the affiliate's fundraising efforts, as well as the
affiliate's volunteer program and public relations efforts.

Farrah Shields- Controller
Farrah is a graduate from the University of the Pacific with a Bachelor's of Science

in Accounting, She has over L0 years of accounting and finance experience, and

serves as a certified Qualified Loan Originator. ln addition to managing the
affiliate's financial integrity, she oversees grant compliance and manages the
affi I iate's mortgage portfol io.

Michael Gordon- Director of Construction
Michael is a California-licensed general contractor with over 42 years of experience

in the construction field. He has worked on and managed new construction houses,

rehabs, condo conversions, and commercial remodel projects. He currently
manages a team of six on the construction side of the habitat operation. He also

manages forward planning, new land acquisitions and land inventory,

Cory Stevenson, Homeowner Services Manager
Cory is a graduate from the University of California, Riverside with a Maste/s in

Anthropology and Case Western Reserve University School of Law. With over L0

years of combined work for non-profits, educational institutions, and public defense

offices, he brings his experience working with diverse populations to his role as

Homeowner Services Manager. ln addition to coordinating outreach and

recruitment of new homeowners, he will also serve as a Qualified Loan Originator.

Anne Gambino - Forward Planning Manager
Anne is a graduate of Columbia University with an MBA in Finance. From 2005 until
2016 she was the Chief Financial Officer for HFHGS, overseeing Finance and

Accounting, Human Resources, Family Services and Fund Development. After a brief
break, Anne returned to HFHGS in 2017 to work on a part-time basis, consulting on

various projects including mortgage portfolio issues, the annual audit, property

acquisitions, permits and forward planning for the affiliate's 43rd Avenue
project. Now a part-time employee, Anne continues to work on mortgage portfolio

issues and forward planning.

8

:

I {.*, t ,s,

ftL',qpil"l,t

Page 816

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



E. Manogement and Organizational Approoch

Unlike many homebuilders and developers, we are responsible for all phases of the development
process. We are the developer, the builder and the bank:

From land acquisition through entitlements and construction, to resource development and fundraising
as well as family selection, volunteer management, closing the home purchase, initiating the mortgage,

servicing the mortgage and reporting - our team works together to manage the entire process.

The staff members pictured above as our Development team will play a direct role in implementing
Habitat Greater Sacramento's responsibilities as it related to this project,

Michael Gordon would assess the project and oversee the construction team who manage the day-to-
day construction. Farrah Shields and Laine Himmelmann will work with Leah Miller to develop a viable

financial model for the overall project and the fund development team would raise the funds needed to
coverthe expenses, ltwould be Farrah's responsibilitytotrackthe actualexpenditures as compared to
budgeted expenditures and work with Michael to bring the project to completion on time and within
budget. Laine and her team would be responsible for recruiting, screening, and scheduling the
volunteers contributing labor to the project. Shannin Stein and Cory Stevenson would be responsible for
working with the affiliate's Homeowner Services Department and Homeowner Selection Committee to
identify and qualify homeowner partners for the project, Upon completion of the home, our Finance

Manager Farrah Shields would then be responsible for the closing process and repayment for each

homeowner partner.

We have a select few 3rd party professionals that we consider part of our team who assist in the
development process, primarily our engineers, architects and specialists. During the construction
process, there are also a handful of subcontractors that we engage to provide plumbing, mechanical and

drywall.

9

f\lr'rr;rl

(,:( )r r rl )l('rlr I y

lr)1.'rrrill

.* Habitat
for Humanily

l"l;rIrrtll f(ir I]rrrl),'ilrty of ()tt';rtct Sitt;t,urr/ rr1{,.

Operatiorrs Chartof Cradtcr Sd( rnrrtr'rlt0

f:;rrtrly l ;,'1., :lr0rl

Irrll 3(,.ilr:lr.:;
/\ (llll::lll0rl I){ \,r'l()()rrr{:rrI

Page 817

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



3. DevelopmentProposal

Habitat Greater Sacramento is proposing to partner with the City of Folsom for the purpose of
developing affordable homeownership housing units upon the parcel of identified surplus land located

at 300 Persifer Street in Folsom, CA APN#070-0172-048,

A. ProjectDescription:
o 5 for-sale,2-story, single-family, 3 bedroom 2bath/4 bedroom 2 bath, units with the

potential to develop 5 additional accessory dwelling units or second dwelling units on each

lot to be consistent with land use and zoning requirements of the site.

o All units would be affordable for-sale homeownership opportunities for low-income families.

Upon completion, the homes would be purchased by partner families qualified by Habitat

for Humanity with a zero-interest equivalent 30-year mortgage.

o Habitat has always adhered to specific area design review requirements and strives to
complement the existing feel of the surrounding neighborhood, While our homes are

"affordable" they are constructed with attention to these details and with quality. Please

refer to Attachment A which detail Habitat's standard Features.
. Design of the homes will complement what already exists in the surrounding

neighborhood and adhere to Historic District and County Design Guidelines.

o The homes we will build will be affordable to families within the 30% - 80% of Sacramento

County AMl, lt is projected that 6 homes will be purchased by families under the 6O% of
AMI level, while the remaining 4 will be purchased by families from 60% - 80% of AMl.

. ln total there is the potential to build 10 affordable units on this underutilized
parcel including 5 single family homes and 5 ADU or second dwelling units
(depending upon lot size and fire department access requirements).

. Land will be held as Tennant in Common. Each unit will need to have its own
metered gas, water, sewer and electric utilities.

o These homes will increase the supply of affordable home ownership in the community,
o Private capital in the form of corporate and other home sponsorship donations will provide

the majority of funding for the construction of these proposed homes.

o Habitat will engage the community residents, neighborhood and business associations by

recruiting volunteers for construction as well as the Neighborhood Revitalization which
always happens in conjunction with home construction in the areas where we build as

described more fully above.

B. Project Design - Habitat plans for the single-family homes will be similar to the 2-story homes

already built our 43rd Avenue project and projected for our 46th Street development. The 2-

story plans have been reviewed and approved both by SHRA and the Sacramento County

Building Department. Sample plans are presented in Attachment B, floor plans and elevations.

C. Proposed Development Schedule - Presented below is a preliminary schedule for the
development of Parcel at 300 Persifer. Once Habitat is delivered the parcel in its fully entitled
condition (split and infrastructure work complete), Habitat construction will be done in phases.

o Phase I - 2 single-family homes, 2 ADU's, One site supervisor, one apprentice
o Phase ll - 3 single-family homes, 3 ADU's, One site supervisor, one apprentice

ln total, it is estimated to take two years to complete the development. With additional
resources such as a Blitz Build utilizing area residential developers, the time line could

be shortened exponentially.

ftrn*l*r
10

Page 818

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



4. Financins Plan - please refer to Attachment C, Persifer Street Development Line ltem Budget and

Sources and Uses

A. Budget
There are three distinct phases to the Persifer Street project, Offsite lnfrastructure, Design and

Permitting and Construction. The total project is estimated to cost 52,825 million, of which

S751K will be needed for Offsite lnfrastructqre, S425K for Design and Permitting and 51.649
million for Construction.

B. Construction Financing

Habitat is confident it will be able to raise the 51.549 million needed for the construction of the 5

single family homes and 5 ADUs via traditional sources, including a combination of Home

Sponsorships and 3'd Party Loans. We typically start the funding raising process for home

construction at least one year prior to the planned start of construction.

C. Potential Offsite lnfrastructure Sources of Funding

For Habitat's larger development projects (lndian Lane which was L4 single family homes,

Mandolin Estates which is 13 single family homes, and 45th Street which is being done in
partnership with Mutual Housing who is building 108 multi-family units and Habitat is building 18

single family homes) we have utilized a combination of the following funding sources for offsite
inf rastructu re expenses:

1,. State of California Housing and Community Development department's CalHome Project
Development grant, which if approved could provide up to S100K per unit to reimburse
the affiliate for eligible infrastructure expenses as incurred

2. Department of Housing and Urban Development SHOP grant, which if approved provides

an average StSt< per single family home to reimburse the affiliate for eligible expenses as

incurred

3. New Market Tax Credit (NMTC) structured financing. These programs are continually in

development by various "sponsors" and HFHI, and leverage the developed land value to
raise funds prior to actual construction

4. Mortgage Sale structured financing. This type of financing leverages loans from the
affiliates existing mortgage portfolio to provide lump sum funds prior to actual
construction.

The key to offsite infrastructure funding is making sure that the monies are available prior to the
start of infrastructure work - either in lump sum amounts as provided by NMTC and Mortgage
Sale transactions, or provided as incurred by reimbursement as with the CalHome or SHOP

programs.

D. Plonned Offsite lnfrastucture Funding Sources

As of the writing of this presentation, the only source of funding currently available to Habitat
for the Persifer Development is SHOP grant funding, which we are projecting would only provide
would only provide SlSK per single family home as we are assuming SHOP funding would not be

available for the ADU units.

1l
Page 819

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



The CalHome Project Development program is a competitive program which awards points for
projects located in designated Opportunity or Promise Zones. Unfortunately the Persifer parcels

are not currently located in either designation, and as a result Habitat's application would not

receive the number of points for it to be competitive.

Also at this time there are currently no NMTC programs related to credits for affordable home

builders, so this source of funding is not included in our budget. Finally, Mortgage Sale

structured financing is not available as Habitat's mortgage portfolio is already leveraged to the
maximum levelallowable by HFHI,

As a result, Habitat will need support from the City of Folsom for the St.t76 million needed for
Offsite lnfrastructure and Design and Permitting expenses. The other funding sources that
Habitat would need the City of Folsom to assist in the application process include SACOG, CDBG

grants, HOME grants, various Housing Trust Funds and Sacramento County's Affordable Housing

Program.

ln addition, to the extent possible, Habitat asks that the City of Folsom consider waiving or

subsidizing Building Permit and lmpact Fees. The combination of these two fee categories are

considerably more costly than similar costs incurred in the City of Sacramento, which either

waives completely or subsidizes, See Attachment D -comparative table which helps illustrates
this point.

With help from the City of Folsom and the prospective funding sources listed above which

Habitat intends to apply, Habitat is confident in its ability to bring the development of the 10

units on the subject parcel of land to fruition.

5. Community Outreach

Once the project commences the marketing strategy and community outreach would include postcards,

mailers, flyers and homeownership information on our website available to the surrounding area.

Efforts would be open to the general public; however, additionally we will focus on the immediate areas

surrounding the build site location, Partnerships with various organizations including neighborhood and

community associations, churches, the surrounding rental communities and apartments would also be

targeted to further outreach efforts in the community. Outreach information would outline specific

criteria and requirements for homeownership opportunities including attendance at an orientation, how

to apply for homeownership and the open application period timeline,

Outreach for neighborhood revitalization efforts would include postcards, mailers, distribution of flyers

by mail and walking door to door, through partnerships with organizations including neighborhood and

community associations, churches, schools, parks districts, etc. Marketing information would include

application information, necessary steps for program participation and the application period timeline.

t\-
riTir Habitat

[or Hunrrnity

t2
Page 820

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento
Proposed Development of 300 Persifer Street, Folsom, CA

APN#070-0172-048

Attachment A

2020 Standard Features

Concrete
Footings with slab-on-grade per structural plan & code requirement, with concrete mixes as determined
by Habitat Greater Sac & NSSE to meet Concrete lnstitute design standards.

Frame
Structure to be wood frame (per plans). Lumber used and all engineered joist and with no headers to
provide upgrade framing packages with limited waste, Pre-cut lumber package from local manufacturer.
Walls to be stood on site.

Trusses
Designed with energy heel to maximize energy efficiency that allows for increases in insulation and

ventilation,

Siding
Hardi-plank horizontal cement-based siding or equal, No wood or vinyl siding

Plumbing
All materials and installation to be per code CPC. All supply lines to be copper, or pex (pending
jurisdictional approval), with 2 hose bibs per unit (1 front /t rearl.1" copper "T" at front hose bib for
sprinkler system. lcemaker line is standard, All plumbing to go overhead, with PVC or PEX product (or

equal), and steel gas pipe for quality control reasons, Separate valves for house and irrigation.

Water heater

Water closets
Lavatories

Lav. Faucets

Tub / Shower

Tub/Shower Fixtures

Kitchen Sink

Kitchen Faucet

Gas Stub
Garbage Disposal

Rinnai V65lN 5.3 GPM indoor low NOx tankless natural gas water heater,
perTitle-24 or equivalent
GERBER DF 21-918 or equivalent
Bath I - l-Bootz 0LL-2445 Top Mount or equivalent
Bath 2 -1 Bootz 02J"-2445 Top Mount or equivalent
Bath I - Moen 66410EP Ch Chrome finish or equivalent
Bath 2 - Moen 66410EP Ch Chrome finish or equivalent
Bath 1- Sterling 72230100 Shower Kit or equivalent
Bath 2 - Sterling 71220710 Tub with wall set or equivalent
Bath tubs Moen #62320 w/T1183 Posi temp pressure balanced valve and trim
single lever tub/shower - brushed nickel or equal. Low-flow shower heads (1.75

gpm) or equivalent
Top mount, stainless. 32" x21",4 holes, 1 bowl or equivalent
Moen pullout faucet #7385 C, 57315C - b or equivalent
Water heater, 30" range, gas dryer and furnace or equivalent
lnclude at 1/3 hp or equivalent

Bath L - Moen 62320+TLt82 Ch or equivalent
Bath 2 - Moen 62320+ TL 183 CH or equivalent

/.:-
riTt Habitat

lor llxmrnily

Tub Faucet

13Page 821

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Electrical

Wiring to be done minimum per code requirements, per plans. Panel size to be 200 amps, per electrical

load calculations, or per plan. G.F.C.l. breakers per code. Arc Fault per code. Hood (30") outlet standard

above range. Pre-wire for one-car garage is standard. LED light cans. D6cor switches and plates (White).

Telephone pre-wire: two outlets including trim per house standard, one in kitchen, and one in master

bedroom, or as determined by HFHGS. Pre-wire for future fans, ceiling mount light fixtures in all

bedrooms and living room (to have a fanlight combo). T.V./Cable: pre-wire two outlets including trim
per house, one in living room and one in master bedroom, or as determined by HFHGS. Energy Star-

rated exhaust fans CFM minimum per Title 24 standard in all bathrooms. Energy Star-rated LED lighting
standard throughout the house. Smoke & carbon monoxide detector standard installed per room for
indoor environment and health controls,

Securitv Pre-Wire
Security alarm is standard with alarm panel, SimpliSafe system or equivalent

lnterior Doors & Trim
Front door to be 6-panel, paint grade, fiberglass, or as selected by HFHGS, lnterior doors to be 5-panel

Colonial doors, hollow core, Shaker style 3 % base/casing 2 % Shaker style. Bypass doors to be Colonial

with fascia and bump jambs - no trims. Any wall cap to be MDF. Window stool and apron are included.

Solid core fire door per plan with self-closing hinges. Closet shelving to be one particleboard shelf with
pole per plan.

Windows
Meet HGC and U-Factor per Title-24 - Energy Star 3 Rated. All single hung, fixed, and sliders to have

white finished frames with mullions on all front elevations and in areas exposed to front windows. All

movable windows to include bug screens. Sliding glass doors to be white finish, size per plans. Safety
glass per code requirements. Egress per code requirements. Dual-pane, low-E (or equal) windows are

standard, See Title 24 for confirmed U-values. Milgard, Style Line or PlyGem, or equal. Windows are

NFRC-certified and Energy Star-rated for all regions in California. Frosted glass on the bathroom
windows.

Paint
lnterior paint to be (two-tone) Valspar or equal. All walls and ceilings to be satin (or as approved by

HFHGS). All doors, jambs, base, and casings to be primed first and then painted with latex semi-gloss

SW-Pure White or equal. Cabinets are pre-finished. Garage interior paint is standard. Paint to be

low/no volatile organic compound (VOC), and formaldehyde-free interior paint. Exterior paint to be

Valspar or approved equal, exterior paint to be all satin. Exterior trim and eaves to have prime coat.

Paint to be back rolled.

Pest Control
No wood-to-dirt, no untreated wood-to-concrete, Borate treated plate material with barrier to concrete
(Dow foam sealer), metal flashing as applicable. Concrete or plate 8" minimum to finish grade. Spread

diatomaceous earth (DE), a natural pesticide, around the perimeter,

Air Conditioning

Per Title - 24 for energy requirements. Per Title-24 and Energy Star 3. Two thermostats and two air
returns for two-story house. HERS testing required. lnclude fresh air fan.

fttlnPj*,t
t4Page 822

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Sheet metal
Full fascia gutter. Bathroom fans are standard per plan (See Electric specifications). Eave vents, gable

end vents, wall to roof flashing, foundation vents, Z Bar flashing, connecting all fans. Final connection to
condensate lines,

lnsulation
Ceiling insulation (attic portions R-38), wall insulation R-21, wall insulation w/cement siding, wall
insulation at garage wall. All exterior penetrations sealed, that includes house wrap, Air-sealing at all
penetrations and plate levels required, lnsulation inspection required.

Roofins
30-year dimensional comp, or equal. Color TBD by HFHGS. Ridge vents, additional eave vents, interior
radiant barrier. Cool roof colors perTitle-24,

Drvwall
Ceiling 5f8" and walls to be/r" drywall, taped and textured, contemporary knock-down, and nailed per

code, Garage to be dry walled. Complete per plans and code requirements. Texture to be knocked

down, or equal. Bullnose corners per plan. Garage texture is denshield. Sheet rock used in bathrooms
(wet areas). Prep coat if needed,

Garage Doors (single familv homes onlvl
Overhead doors will be non-insulated unit, single car should be 8'x7'. Verify all measurements prior to
order and installation (embossed,4-sectional/8 long panel) with windows.

Cabinets
Cabinets to be pre-finished natural beech, or maple back panel doors, or equal, Color TBD by HFHGS.

Drawers and throughout are standard. All cabinets scribed to wall, with minimum of 3%" toe kick, and

with all upper cabinets receiving crown molding minimum of 2%" . Shaker style. Uppers to be 42" . 32"

high bath vanities.

Countertops
All countertops Formica

Mirrors and Shower Doors
Shower rod and all accessories in both bathrooms to be brushed nickel. Towel bars, paper holders, and

shower curtain rods per plan. Mirrors to be 36" high and the length of vanity.

light fixtures
Per code, meet Title 24 requirements and all LED lighting.

Hardware

Door lock set to be Copper Creek or equal, in brushed nickel with privacy locks at Master bedroom and

all bathrooms. Exterior entry doors to be brushed nickel with dead bolt. All bathroom hardware to be

brushed nickel or equal.

15
Page 823

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Appliances
30" gas range
30" microwave
rated.
Dishwasher
Refrigerator

Whirlpool slide in, white top, 4 burners (30")

30" white on white mounted and vented above range, Energy Star-

Not provided, prewired and pre-plumbed only
Whirlpool free-standing slide-in, or TBD by HFHGS, Energy Star-rated.

Fire Suppression - Per plan

Floor coverings
Bedrooms, stairs and stair landing to be carpet. Vinyl throughout remainder of home

Fencing
Full rear yard fencing. Fences to be L"x4"x6' or !"x6"x6' D.E. redwood or cedar (2 rail system) with steel
posts set in wet concrete. No wood post or dimensional wood columns,

Landscape
Front yard landscape package to include irrigation; drip for planter areas, bark, no lawn, xeriscape,

drought tolerant Native plants as applicable. Properly designed drainage per landscape plan.

Photovoltaics-Solar svstem :

Per plans. Orient and plot all roofs to mostly or directly southern exposure.

EV Plue
Wired per current building code requirements.

t6
Page 824

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento

Proposed Development of 300 Persifer Street, Folsom, CA

APN#070-0172-048

Attachm ent B

o Draft Offsite lmprovement Plan

o Sample plans for 2-story, 3 /4-bedroorn 2-batlr lronres

o Preliminary schematic building plans

o Preliminary elevation drawings

a Sample Accessory Dwelling Units or Second Dwelling Units

o Samples from sister Habitat for Humanity affiliates that have been constructed with a

Single-family home in front and an ADU behind - both homeownership
r ADU Floorplan samples

' Site Plan - Butte County Affiliate

l7Page 825

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Offsite improvement plan
300 Persifer

Remove alley and
replaoe with new 20'
wide PCC alley

Fire Hydrant (Ex)
Sewer seryi@

typ. each lot.

Remove and
replace "old" portion
ot curb, gutter &
sidewalk (Coloma).

lnstall new 20'
wide PCC alley

A

I
II

I
Pant

t

J
Fire Hydrant (N)

Str€€t light
(tvp.)

Water seryl@ and
manifolded mete(s)
typ. each lot.

Remove and replace
"old' portion of C&G
and install now
c,G&S (Pe6ifer).

Nolea:
r. aort t lrt, rJ
to *aE ,ild- an lotl^/'ct''a@

A

Baelo of Baarlno
PARCEL MAP

BETNG LOTS 9 THRU 13,
AND A PORTION OF LOT 14, BLOCK 82

MAP OF THE TOWN OF FOLSOM
1BM7

Clty of Folsom, County ol Soeamqrto .Collfonla' D.ccmb$ 2All fule l"-30'
AA, Young Consultlng

, iFptgfio Jrt d .t.4 a',t a I aE Lg
l mmD!fHrrdl0aIlf tilf
wlratt tu:ut mao'dt n&f &Ft& rfitmtEtratfrotm ''r''an 

Ne rN LegE,d

r.gffiffi&ffinffi#I* trffiffiffig- IE@UaA( tfiNrrar.l$tt{ Epttffitrrur--l

r(AianA tjnEE7
ltr- .t t .frt' {.n,

Bl.oth: B:!
t

P

t
BN

u*rtl J h
a

rtt

qt:

E!

/ nr,rq

rlssra
tTnEer

1n

T
I

cit tli'i. ta E

I$

d
,t

,Ip tt SrllENntnaaffiefi, h

18
Page 826

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Conceptual Drawings of Proposed Single Family Floor Plans

#thbtrarttll blHunrrfif
d0rrtrSxrau0o

t9
Page 827

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



0z

f$EF+t

N*
s*s*

s6
s.0s
ffi{m {tax)

{s16)
(016)

46th STREET SINGLE FAMILY HOMES

SACRAMENTO HABITAT FOR HUMANITY

SACRAMENTO, CA
LOT2 thru 18

8I9NORTII IOTII STREET

E.*_
g

SACRAMENTO, CA 958I I
91640-1215

iFFF
a
t

4
q5t

ffiffiff rr
c$

a:

E

g

i
!
F

i
i
?

9

i
3
g

1 ZEe E?4

= 
tiiE EtE? 
'!lE 

Fi5

!E# I iEtrtis.:3,

drg iiEItt lEE
t,? li:

!sElqltill:

iliEiEiEF:i

iE;ii;EilEi

iiiiiEii:i
!:giit! E;AZ zz i

iliiii!ii!lfli

I
fr

i

iii3!E*;li
l:5 ie: ;li! EiE iF3

t3
]E,'

!:

12

!
t

g.

q

I

EE

EE

1i;!0t
R*i
9P1

t'

c
4

f
7

I
7?

a

fi

F
E

4

gtd

e
E

I
E

E
F

t;
li?

li'

j:
lq?

t:
E

3.

F

g

;E

l':
E

It
l!t

l;

8

iiiiiiiiil

iiiiiiiiil

:iliitiii
iiiililf!

iiliiiii
I!;ii t'i

iiiiji

,ai
ICi
q$
5i;

ezt

;21

fid
OE

i-
6-
5F

,=
Esi:!r
! r!

rE!

a
?EE

!E

?l
:a
l8

t:
G8
6Zt:

9E
t5
,i

l!
ig
I
E

a

a

z
I
9

:

i i r ; ia 5a;a
E ! - ; rE iarl

:::r;il:l;ti I!

';:ii;f;;H' 
t i:;!i!;:i::! i ::

iiEEdEEE!E i iEAFSE {iazr! l

i:;. E iltit =iiZEE :I.:

ii 6"-l itig

HlEi; t#'ti!
frili'

E

e
F

a
a
*
I
E

c

i

a

I

Page 828

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



tz

i$iH$

46ThSTREETSINGLEFAMILYHOMES ry-s-,?B!-o:-- lI*
sAcMMENro, cA [1-rff*r"ri'** :LoT2lhrul8 ,",u,**,-, dl*

HUMANITY
STREET

FORHABITAT gE:
958

IOTHNORTH

SACRAMENTO

a
N)

iiiffiE

iffii:F
lt

t:

i;EiiiiEsEEii;iiiii;

'iEiigiiliii!i:;!g
F:'6t ',El Bd ;

*t
!i
:E

'rt

!
:
!
g
I
:
;

:
?333rE

:dt*!F
ii! i Et
9i5i!'5

!;i i it
3!EttE:!!:Fi
!:r;5i

E ;as

!9
.E
!:
it
il.
EE
i9
le;r,t
eE,

2,iJ
1!

::
ia
E:

:;

a

FiEEiEi;iEii

liiff!ilii:i

iii;:iiiiil
':t!!:!igi

t9 iE

r?tEii!r
!{ r?

:Err

!4:

Ei$:i;:5Ei
:t5:; l;iFf:qEri:!i:F
t2i 'i:lEi

;;;!ii;!i
,"4.J:tcFl
irr-|.e#a

iEEiiili

!8!EB:

ii:iE:
1: R:dF
'tiiEE

iE E!;
ir,,2P
EirgF
i! t!;
r;5 !NI F

:tii
J 5!:
rg:!

E3;!

"!Ei

i:;
EC:

i4i
i

F:iEiit
;iiq!!!
i !?ttEi
l:;r5lt
t:!tt!;
'EiE:;i

!s

?EgiEIgF:IiEF!

;;E!E!EIEEFE:i

.iEliiEgElilil

r'r:iErF;f:r:a ags i"'z
" Ft (F

5:;ii
;EtFi
t:xi!
tiii;:al!3
EiEH!

i:Eiiq"14.

iiEiliiiiE iiiEiiE ;iliiiiiE

;iiiEiErE;iiiiliiEliiE!

\l
1,

ilE

$z

il= et=
ilE

iQr
;trd:

T7

='GD{

I

M-
.t

4;

q

8

E

qr li
lE .t

61
r;

3Zi!e
ci:tu:trFl

;! Jt
iTTE
Ei:!
:tiE
6Xt::il

a4

te
id

I

e

a
E

trtrtsEEEEEfros"

!i ; :i ii 
iiiii 

:i ;i 
+ 

ii 
iiEEi ' ": ci it ,_11

i;teiF
$Bgi:?
hEits
t3;;g
62t z
7d< A

tr8trtrtr
lp tq

t:;
F;'

:=
iti

E

g

tt
ig

:3

t3

i

i
I

I
F

trtrEl tr E
i:i'Eil:
E d2 7l ..7

i:: i2i4FE! 2i?i!: d! e3

: !;iq
22

e
c

d

F
76

5
I

ad

i7,
Eg

2E

E

a b o 6 s eu
3i!#E :i d; I : ;
ie€l ii * ! i"
sE $! ii ri I i;!llis!li-'
- ri:; ri

ln
z
4r

o
:?6
5::
:TR
99!

iF;

8tc

JEP

-l

I

iFd:ti

i9l::E
:ttlii

Al9t:t

:iiiit
Ei?;i

c: E'

Etr tr
i ;lBt d!5

I iEEE !';
i:i!Eii

'ilF !

:
!
E

t
3

6

t
E

o

i!;iEiliii
ltSE ii;;i

iliiiiiii

g
q

EEI!!i
iEAEES

EiIEgi
!iiqE!
E;irii
;i5i;!
;Ei;33
=!teit

I
P
H

p
q

ltE#i:

!iiiiii
Fi!EiE!

!!liii

I
I
fi

E
F

4

*

8
il

s
a

d
I
4

-l

5

z

I

6
a

f,ti

I

I

8
H

a
F

E

6

8.
I
6'

E.

q

8

B

Page 829

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



zz

s$iF+t

N-s-s*
E*

(016)S-S
(e16)s@(6r)

ffi

46th STREET SINGLE FAMILY HOMES
SACRAMENTO, CA

LOT 2 thru l8

SACRAMENTO HABITAT FOR HUMANITY
8I9 NORTII IOT}I STREET

958t I

Fr
cs

a
q

4
g

l>
EUJ
5

z

i

\q
,rlE
!l lir

lli

*'l i-d'
rlE

: i1l8
'ls

I

{

I

1:ii

\
I

F

tr_/ a@,

tr

,-t

:l

r

F,
a
a

iiiiliffE

iii:iEi:F

rig:i;iiF'

iE 

:Ei 

iEiiEiitiE !iiiiiiEii

::;Ei!;:!iilii;;rilii

siEiili

ii;Ei!:
ir::iiE::r:l;i
?tE53ii

';ir;'i

3

,1
3g

:!
Ei
i2
E:

az

!lEEiEli;iri

!!rE:!iiii!g

i!lEiii!:ii

iiiitE=iii:iiiEiiiiE

iii:Eigiii!gi'iig

!;E "E!EC

iiE :$!Eqt: :ii:
ier i:t:
Ei; II 

iEE
i ?h Pllrrl r:i3,) z?et;, I;:i Fri

:

!!i
E6i

i!:
afd
!!:

iiiiiEi:iEiiiilil

iiii!ii!Eiiiiiii

:ii i n ! a

:ii 

sgE ffliis:s;:liiiiii EiiiEi

t:;il
t*Bt:ItFsl iil:tt666t eiBr?t:x=t !iiii

I FSPt ;3:6i

l€591 :!;iil6Egl .i.zl;Fl 53:iI 4t SCgl
I el :al

i

ra
z,

I
F
-
2,

I

I
9

,,
T
i
I

5

a

=j
q

ts

v

a

I
r

Page 830

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



EZ

8t
c5A

a It3E
*B
qE

tElog(
d!q;
ta

[lSACMMENTO HABITAT FOR HUMANITY

46th STREET SINGLE FAMILY HOMES

Effi
s*s*

SI9NORTH IOTH STREET
cA 9581 I

SACR MENTO, CA
LOT 2 lhru l8

(916)S&
(016)SS0(tu)

= 
EttE Eliq ii31 frlP

EFl ;r;A";lr ItiE!' E!8
t96 iEs
l;5 ilE
8:

!t4t5i$B!
IEgqEEEg:
iisit;;fttFlsir9;l
;sq:Eiftt
it:n:r: Ei

3;i!!bEi!
iITE!;'ER

iig!Ei3;:
;EfitF i
ae z?l

3a

7Z

i!

.A

I

i
H

i
I

iEfiE*iiliEli

Elitrii
fiil

a'a

:
i

E

'E

iii6

r":llEl

liiEEEl

Filq

Et8
=tzil-lqlr
IEl<
t>

5'

!.

a

2

I rJq'rnt
6dt
!49€ii

ifl:
E4

ir
3

3
5

:
6
7

E
77

ai
6i

':tr
i;

r

a:

!i
I
!
!

EF

E
q
x
3
E

:

I
E

5

3
T

E

;;
:i
ti
I

g
lil

li'

i1

F"

::

l!:
t;

6

8

ti
I,
:fii
gl

ilrl
if
ir
I
t
I
i

iiiil;Fi{

iiiiiiii
[iFisil!

iiiitiiF
iiiiilir
itpiitil
iti tg! I r

liiii;l;
iiiiiEii
liEitg-i
irit: I
1.1!I i

,8i
5!i
iPi

l!:iil
slc'
3t?

19:
:i!
r!:

E

i:]
E?

i1;

::1-
59t

Esi
:g!

a
?

BI

Hg

g;

g€

r!

t!
EI

5;
,!

rE
2C
9!
7t

?8
6i
z2
FE
9t
i3

a9

t2
I
:
2

I R!i9t 3:rti t il
I {;i iiti

E

5:

r5
EI
;s
I;

3

t

d!

t:l:;iin

ii!5c5t5
3r63ir:t
r!E:E:Y;1te5e:i!
lss'

F

t

a

g

E

Page 831

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



tz

:

a$i$$

N-s-s*
E*

(010)ss
(916)M@{t r)

gffiSACMMENTO HABITAT FOR HUMANITY

46th STREET SINGLE FAMILY HOMES
SACRAMENTO, CA

8I9 NORTH IOT}I STREDT
SACRAMENTO, CA 958I I

91640-t21s

c6
qEN)

9r
F$

qr
re

I

-Ft-

)\
iaGl

i_

J n-t
FE

---f

tr

IAJ
IE

rlH
si
6u

A

I

il?
Et>

rl=

ilH

aili

?q6

I
t;d

,*g T

ii:EiiF
!fiE:rE

:!;gi;F
;:#:rH

!:iiiEh'

tq
!1

6q:,
I6

!t
!e

!;
.-l

a

g!

EEiiiiEiEEiiliiiEi;

!EilEisii'ilEriEii
EE:iitEi;?i;:ii'iF;;6! .EU 

BE 3

lli eziits:3fi
iEE;!g
iEi tE:
.;, F:

ilciE
i:l li
i;1EE

5t3::

iiEli
!li:i
!iF;l
tri::

::!I:
19'a32
r5E!!-:tl,

'h E

3

It
ix
r{

ii
tr,
F:

;i

?21#ez3;ixh

Eg:14
lit'i'idr d

iiiE;iiiii:i

riiiiilii

:UiC

EZli

ii:E

!F i:
:B:€
IE5
:!i

td

:
: rEi;;5 sF !
: qEi:;; 

cE i
!tl:il:i6€
'i!i;i:iE!

iE;;?;EEi

;E€iiisr

t
598r

ii!i
1a2eIlin

'ri1g
6!:E
E-eii
e::
,F

,

I:

aaia

a?ii
"b5!

rri
i

I
e

t
i
E

E-
8F
g:
35

EZ
F

iEiEEiElEiirfi!!iiE

i:iiEiEiEiiEi:iiiEi

sEgiiErlsi!n;EiEi
" EY 5E r

--
2

xE
2oar

iiiiiiiiiEiE Eillii;!i i!iiE

i' 
iE gi;!Eli;:!::E:! ifiii

!iiit
ii;8:
EIFPg

E;?ii
c:dl;
girti
PrFiI

i$E:ttgt9

:5i?i
iFii,
:E5:l
ip!i:

1 !!6 "r

o

lliEEii':iEii

;i:iEiiciliE

i:iEEiE:ii;E

ii!:

li:
a2

:s

a

t
I
I
E

E

a,
?
;
t

i
E

i!l!il1
iEli,?ia

i!!i:!il
Ei!Ei!!i:!it:!!t

liiiEii
ii Iti 1

l"r r

'|!ZE'

E':l9!
tiE
:'F
et!
E!!-ei

I
a

3

tz

,

E

;
i
3
a

!

6
E

4

e

8.

q'

a

r

Page 832

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



9Z

i$iH+t

N*
s*s*
E.*_

(016)S-ffi
(910)S{m{tu)

9SACRAMENTO HABITAT FOR HUMANiTY

46th STREET SINGLE FAMILY HOMES
SACRAMENTO, CA

LOT 2 lhru 18

8IS NORTH 1OT{ STREET ffiSACRAMBNTO, CA 958I I
ot 6Jdn-1, I 5

iFFF
9r
cs
B

a

t
0

!>
Eu)
a

?
q

F

F,

EiilEiEii 

Eii;iiiii 

iiii!Ei:F

:6
111 tEi
E!F:IT
EIE P:i
!E5 6!:
:i9 Fi;'i, ? 3

ii;Eg
3:! !E
i:! 3ir:3 Hl
?;3 E!

i:Etiq
9iEidr
6tf;ff,

liet2t

iiiili
-':rH9!

iEi;tE
tiF39i";H'i

!i
!!
il
!:
i:
:g
:t

iili;iiii;ii
iiir:iii;ii
,Ei;l;i;E;

! B:;
.EiE

ii-i'|
E:iFri rt
rfr:r
i t:i
9t!rr:

.E

:qE:;]EEi3

? 1d i: l:5.8 iit!:;ti;fu
=l!:r;iiE!
'll:iirirt

'Ei;:::Eg
itiz iqi?
Hiii:iit
iEi gl'

,rr"ai
i:3rtP
rE9!Eq{5rt;r
Ii!:EE

!I!ii
i!iE!
:: i;rioE

!tr5!Ei
!IE;EI:i!::iti
i!i ii'€
tEr I
atl ",lt3\e EEZ

: E' i;i
g Fic

z

!;3
E5t

!t:
!F

iil
-EE

a:

o

iiffiitEiEiiEii

6

iisiEi;:

EiEilEii
!:ia i:l q

E!!!!iFi

riiiiiil

i!l!i:'41,

a

iii:FieiiEE:!EiE EiilEi

EEiEiEi;iEiiEsiliiiil

E!i;i:F;EE!ii
l:::XrEil;Iir

!!g;iEFi;i;iE

ffl;giiE!::!i

EeiiE;;;EEii

rE

IE

t8

;E

5g

EE

i€Efii
5t:!.8
^: r!;itE:

tdt
;38
9?l:i!tit
7F,

E

r'

R

E

,
EI
P2

Pi
2J

t6

*i

i;

i

i
Ji
t

!

F-F
Fz

-3
2.

3

iz

a
E

i
4

tA.\

I

:i
El

ti

b
,l

)
.t"i #ii

.q ilE

I
!
t,9I

!
F

F

,

e

.i

I

Page 833

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



grael qq

I

IEI

g-&

-k

m
D

.bllrbrF

o

GFADhIG A}D T.hDERGNOUTD FLAT{

TAX-8EfiFT ST - I{A TAT FIOIES
t itara-ntw

mm
Fdg

@&

I
ll u_

\rrf

I

I.IAfffAT FOB I.TIIANTY
ru-emYslEEr
ctrco,calfonrA

reD

ro
rusE

I

I

d{dsld6dt
GE.o!&rE!-6

ry60&sFrru@

0cnuEtaq-
EF*

$Nrcnq5tre

@
ffi
F-49

q

I

r
ffi
F-&ro

ffi

rli& lO

J:

4

w

@

Ftg rO

ffire
f-s$

ffoa@!r-rCs

_@

TEGEND GFltDilGA,r{
rSGEl.rD .r\-

lN{
{

eaqsret.

-4'_
E mtr*usggsm

ffiIA /VY\{Gr@l
o64-Gx

N)
o\

Sample site plan from Habitat Butte County

Page 834

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



dE
s;rE
FEH;l-r 3
Itoz
@

t

F
2
E
fr
troE
F
F
Ei

I

H h- -
gHE 

E

gg$H

r

@

' 19{73

A200

tu.a4GE.
. hln.vk.@@ffia.
! 

'rhffi*€dned

G)

o

6rusffiru

8ffi.Gffi^E

EmFruWt-aaFa-dc6.ffidffid_
ryEaamlnEd*ffiEEuEtuEnm5&brd
FpgE{ffiCffib

!19 SQIMFEET

trilB&

r
Erlc'Ch6f,ttum

ffi*

t

i
!

'

)

"g*

@ @
&

-.*-

-,**

@

@
*".

@

@

-s*,

I

&

@

"*,
-.4L-

I

&

@@

JA-,

t-

.JS",

1r@slffiffi

N)
\

,llt

Sample ADU floor plan from Habitat Butte County
Page 835

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



dE
#z(t)E+zFZl<:

8'z
@

ldr

lslfl

lilil

ffiry |Bews

I

c
a
T
3

I

F
2

==T
g
oI
F
F
6
T

!

aHs

gEs

$.83

A301

r ffi.ffi.ffi*e

6 no.hrereNr

F ffiffii.cE

El frHruru,@r
El Eeh(ddrm

El **

a.B4ruffisr!4

6 ffi*tglds6l

6.frsuFqDe

E**

@

r rruffi.ffi

E|6-
El Ftua,ruod

5IAEffi&lE

ri "- &\v ru

f;\_B!AHI ELE!qr!S!\ tZ BEDRoofrr ADU)
\:-/rl

ta

N)
@

Sample ADU floor plan from Habitat Butte County
Page 836

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento

Proposed Development of 300 Persifer Street Folsom,

cA APN#070-0172-048

Attachment C

Persifer Street Development Financing

o Budget Line ltems and Assumptions
o Baseline "Wishlist" Sources & Uses

Habitat.* tor Hnmatrily
I I rir!.tiLr \r.:., I \f l.

29Page 837

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Proiect Expenses

Entitlement Expenses
Parcel Acquisition
300 Persifer Street parcel split

Subtotal Entitlement Expenses

Infrastructure Expenses
Engineering and Management
SWPPP
Clearing
Grading
Wet Utility Subcontractor
Dry Utility Subcontractor
Streets, Curbs, Gufters
Street Lighting
Contingency
Miscellaneous

Subtotal lnfrastructure

Design and Permit Expenses
Architectural
Civil
Structural
litle 24
Truss
Landscape
City of Folsom Building Permits
lmpact Fees
Folsom Cordova USD Fees

Subtotal Permitting Expenses

110,000.00
10,000.00
25,000.00
70,000.00
68,000.00

159,750.00
221,250.00

20,000.00
62,000.00

5.000.00
751,000.00

25,000.00
25,000.00
25,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
13,963.12

152,830.00
75,495.00

347,288.12

Humanity for Humanity of Greater Sacramento
Persifer Street Development

Line ltem Budget
5 Single Family Homes and 5 ADUs

Assumptions

assumes the City of Folsom will donate the 5 parcels
assumes the City of Folsom will split the 300 Percifer parcel into 5 fully enlitled parcels

water, sewer and storm drainage
gas, electric, cable, etc.
includes all of the items discussed and shown on the diagram provided last time
2 new lights

toilet rental, temp fencing, miscellaneous materials and supplies

cost to revise plans for 5 homes and design 5 ADUs
cost to create plans for drainage and retention

assumes $2,461.75 per single family homes, $1 ,649.37 per AUD (670/o of 1,200si single family cost)
assumes $30,566 for 5 single family homes only, ADUs do not generate impact fees
assumes $7.19/sf cost, $9,347 per single family home and $5,752 per ADU

30
Page 838

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Proiect Expenses

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENSE

Construction Expenses
SWPPP
Foundation and Flatwork
Framing
Siding
Finish Carpentry
Cabinets and Counters
lnsulation
Roofing and Gutters
Doors
Garage Doors
Windows
Drywall
Flooring
Paint
Appliances
Blinds
Solar
Plumbing
HVAC
Electrical
Fencing
Landscaping
Miscellaneous
Contingency (5%)
Overhead

Subtotal Gonstruction Expenses

13,500.00
150,000.00
220,000.00

50,000.00
29,500.00
52,500.00
35,000.00
87,000.00
32,000.00

3,975.00
42,500.00
79,000.00
27,500.00
10,000.00
24,200.00

5,000.00
122,500.00
95,000.00

100,000.00
32,500.00
37,000.00
30,000.00
20,000.00
75,000.00

275,000.00

Humanity for Humanity of Greater Sacramento
Persifer Street Development

Line ltem Budget
5 Single Family Homes and 5 ADUs

Assumptions

includes trusses

interior and exterior

includes laminate/vinyl and carpet
interior and exterior
assumes homes will be gas and electric

rough and finish

rough, finish and lighting

toilet rental, temp fencing, bin rental, trash out, etc.

assumes 1 site supervisor and 1 asst site supervisor for 24 month construction period
1,648,675.00

2.746,963.12

31
Page 839

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Uses of Funds

Pre-Construction Expenses
Parcel Acquisition
Parcel Lot Split Fees

Infrastructure (Site) Expenses
Engineering and Management
SWPPP
Clearing
Grading & Excavation
Wet Utility Subcontractors
Dry Utility Subcontractors
Streets, Curbs, Gutters
Street Lighting
Contingency
Miscellaneous

Subtotal lnfrastructure Expenses

Design and Permit Expenses
Architectural
Civil
Structural
Tille24
Truss
Landscape
City of Folsom Building Permits
lmpact Fees
Folsom Cordova USD Fees

Subtotal Design & Permit Expenses

Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento
Persifer Street Development

Sources & Uses
5 Single Family Homes and 5 ADUs

347,288.12 51,077.25 40,177.87 13,963.12

Sources of Funds

Total Amount for
Single Family

Homes & 5 ADIJs

110,000.00
10,000.00
25,000.00
70,000.00
68,000.00

159,750.00
221,250.00

20,000.00
62,000.00

.00
751,000.00

Total

1 10,000.00
10,000.00
25,000.00
70,000.00
68,000.00

159,750.00
221,250.00

20,000.00
62,000.00

751,000.00

25,000.00
25,000.00
25,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
13,963.12

152,830.00
00

333,325.00 347,288.12

25,000.00
25,000.00
25,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
13,963.12

152,830.00
00

676,000.00

25,000.00
25,000.00
25,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00

152,830.00
75,495.00

GAP Funds
Needed

1 '10,000.00

10,000.00
12,500.00
35,000.00
40,500.00

159,750.00
221,250.00

20,000.00
62,000.00

5.000.00

Home Sponsors
$100K/single family &

$8sK/AOU

75,000.00

SHOP*
approx $1 5K
per Persifer

house

12,500.00
35,000.00
27,500.00

13,963.12

Folsom Waiver,
Grant or

Deliverable

X
X

75,100.00

2,500.00
2,500.00
2,500.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
1,649.37

20,479.00
7.549.50

11,000.00
1,000.00
2,500.00
7,000.00
6,800.00

15,975.00
22,125.00

2,000.00
6,200.00

500.00

ADU

75,100.00

2,500.00
2,500.00
2,500.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
2,461.75

30,566.00
7,549.50

Single Family
Home*

11,000.00
1,000.00
2,500.00
7,000.00
6,800.00

15,975.00
22,125.O0

2,000.00
6,200.00

500.00

32
Page 840

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento
Persifer Street Development

Sources & Uses
5 Single Family Homes and 5 ADUs

Uses of Funds Sources of
Total Amount for 5

Single Family
Homes & 5 ADus

Single Family
Home

Conslruction Expenses Total

SWPPP
Foundation and Flatwork
Framing
Siding
Finish Carpentry
Cabinets and Counters
lnsulation
Roofing and Gutters
Doors
Garage Doors
Windows
Drywall
Flooring
Paint
Appliances**"
Blinds
Solar
Plumbing
HVAC
Electrical
Fencing
Landscaping
Miscellaneous
Contingency (5%)
Overhead

Subtotal Construction Expenses

13,500.00
150,000.00
220,000.00

50,000.00
29,500.00
52,500.00
35,000.00
87,000.00
32,000.00

3,975.00
42,500.00
79,000.00
27,500.00
10,000.00
24,200.00

5,000.00
122,500.00
95,000.00

100,000.00
32,500.00
37,000.00
30,000.00
20,000.00
75,000.00

1,350.00
16,000.00
25,000.00

5,500.00
3,300.00
6,500.00
3,700.00

10,005.00
3,500.00

795.00
5,000.00
8,800.00
3,000.00
1,100.00
2,420.00

550.00
13,500.00
10,500.00
11,000.00
3,500.00
4,255.00
3,300.00
2,300.00
8,000.00

13,500.00
150,000.00
220,000.00

50,000.00
29,500.00
52,500.00
35,000.00
87,000.00
32,000.00

3,975.00
42,500.00
79,000.00
27,500.00
10,000.00
24,200.00

5,000.00
122,500.00
95,000.00

100,000.00
32,500.00
37,000.00
30,000.00
20,000.00
75,000.00

000.00 275 .00
1,648,675.00

12

1,648,675.00

Total Uses and Sources 12

NOTES:
* for the purpose of this presentation, ADU cost of construction is assumed to be approximately 85% of the cost of single family homes

*" for the purpose of this presentation, we assume that SHOP funds will only be available for single family home eligible expenses
"** if the house is all electric, the appliance cost will increase to $3,975 per unit

723,675.00

1,733,000.00

HFHGS Funds

13,500.00

45,675.00
95,000.00

100,000.00
32,500.00
37,000.00
30,000.00
20,000.00
75,000.00

275.000.00
925,000.00

925,000.00

Home
Sponsors

150,000.00
220,000.00

50,000.00
29,500.00
52,500.00
35,000.00
87,000.00
32,000.00

3,975.00
42,500.00
79,000.00
27,500.00
10,000.00
24,200.00

5,000.00
76,825.00

75.000.00

SHOP
$15K/single
family unit

13,963.12

Folsom Waiver,
Grant or

Deliverable

147,860.00

263,137.87

1,350.00
14,000.00
19,000.00
4,500.00
2,600.00
4,000.00
3,300.00
7,395.00
2,900.00

3,500.00
7,000.00
2,500.00

900.00
2,420.00

450.00
11,000.00
8,500.00
9,000.00
3,000.00
3,145.00
2,700.00
1,700.00
7,000.00

ADU

000.00
181,875.00

308,052.25

33
Page 841

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento

Proposed Development of 300 Persifer Street, Folsom, CA

APN#070-0172-048

Attachment D

Pcrmit Cost Comparison

/.:-
riTir Habitat

[or Htrnranity

34
Page 842

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



City of Folsom Fee ltems Comparable City of Sacramento Fees

Plan Check Fee

Permit Fee

State Revolving Fee

S.M.l. Fee

General Plan Update

Sewer Connection Fees

County Portion

City Portion

Major Road Fee

CountyTranp. Mit. Fee

Water District Fees:

Water Use

Buy-ln-Equity

Connection Fee

Meter Fee

Water lmpact Fee

Drainage Fee S

General Capital S

Fire Capital S

Fire Plan Check S

Police Capital S

Solid Waste Capital S

Quimby Park S

Transportation Management $

City Wide Park Fee S

Park Equipment S

$ 1,049.60

s 1,312.00

$ 7.00

s 22.30

s 70.8s

s 3,602.00

s 1,073.00

s 8,168.00

s 1,329.00

335.00

1,8s0.00

301.00

985.00

1,037.00

1,s95.00

1,086.00

601.00

363.00

35.00

7,O37.00

94.00

Plan Check Fee

Permit Fee

Citywide Transp. Dev.

Sac. Trans. Auth. Mit.

Park Dev Citywide Fee

Park Dev lmpact Fee

C&D Recycling Fee S

Construction Excise Tax 5

Green Building Fee S

Public Works Deposit S

Public Works Fee S

Residential constr Tax S

SAFCA Fee

Strong Motion Fee

Technology Fee

Utilities Fee

General Plan Fee S 504,00

Sewer Dev Fee - County 5 4,200.23 pd to County

Sewer Dev Fee - City exempt

$ t,04s.27

s L,824.s7

exempt

exempt

exempt
exempt

84.00

987.60

9.00

152.00

304.00
385.00

s s67.oo

s 27.30

5 207.27

s 228.00

$ r,424.0O

s 1,3ss.s8

s 79s.oo

5 L,322.10

reduced

from54,347

s
s

s
s

s

Residential Water Meter S s6z.oo

Water Dev Fee

Water Svc Killtap

Fire Dept Plan Review S 303.25

exempt S 3,134.23

s 490.00

Light Rail $

Business License Fee S

School Mitigation Fee S

Humbug/Willow Creek Mit. S

lnclusionary Housing S

Housing ln-Lieu S

724.00

29.00

45,00

276.00

City Business Oper Tax S 84.00

Other Sacramento Fees

Total $ 23,o27.7s Total $ 17,964.49

35Page 843

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 844

12/14/2021 Item No.30.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

R"ECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10744 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Fiber Network
Installation Agreement with SiFi Networks Folsom LLC for the Installation of a Fiber Optic
Network in the City of Folsom.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

This item was originally discussed at the November 9,2021 City Council meeting but was
continued to the December 14,2021meeting in order for staffto contact cities that are under
contract with SiFi Networks and are currently at some phase of construction.

SiFi Networks Folsom LLC (SiFi) is a private developer who specializes in Open Access fiber
optic networks. SiFi approached City staff earlier this year to propose the installation of a
citywide Open Access fiber optic network that they will privately finance and construct. SiFi
will wholesale network access to Internet Service Providers (ISPs) who will compete to
provide gigabit speed internet services to residents, businesses, institutions, and municipal
facilities. The Open Access network is intended to encourage market competition, enable
Smart City technological advancements, support healthcare, education, tansportation
agencies, government drganizations, local businesses and residential neighborhoods, including
disadvantaged communities. This will enhance Folsom's competitive advantage when trying
to retain or attract new businesses.

MEETING DATE: t2lr4l202t

AGENDA SECTION: Old Business

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10744 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Fiber Network Installation Agreement
with SiFi Networks Folsom LLC for the Installation of a Fiber
Optic Network in the City of Folsom

FROM: Public Works Department

Page 845

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



The SiFi network will not replace existing ISPs that cunently provide service in Folsom (most
notably Xfinity and AT&T); however, those existing ISPs may not currently provide all homes
and businesses with access to a fiber optic network that allows for symmetrical high-speed
intemet access. Upon the Fiber Network Installation Agreement being approved by Council,
SiFi will be allowed access to the public right-of-way for the purpose of installing a fiber optic
network past every premise in the City. The fiber optic network would be constructed using
micro-trenching construction and blown micro-duct techniques and would include 35 above-
ground cabinets which would be sited in such away as to minimize the visual impacts to the
community.

If approved, SiFi and the City will enter into a Fiber Networks Installation Agreement, in a
form acceptable to the City Attomey. Per the terms of the agreement, SiFi is expected to initiate
fiber network installation with the next 24 months and complete the project within 48 months.

POLICY / RULE

The City Council is the sole authority for entering into agreements between the City and any
other party.

ANALYSIS

The Public Works Department reached out to the three cities that are currently in the
construction phase of their agreement with SiFi Networks:

1. City of FullErton. CA. Fullerton was the first City to execute an agreement with SiFi
(2014) and is roughly one-third of the way to completion. As the first partner in such a
new construction technique and technology, they have had numerous issues and have
had to make several adjustments along the way. Most of the issues identified by staff
were tied to the perfonnance ofthe contractor, not SiFi, including the behavior of some
ofthe contractor's personnel and the subsequent, negative public reaction. The current
contract is being terminated and a new contractor will come in early next year to finish
the project. The poor performance of the first contractor required that SiFi improve
their Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) methods, and Fullerton requires
monthly coordination meetings.

2. City of Salem. MA. Salem initiated their agreement with SiFi in 2018 and were held
up to some degree by the Covid-related shutdowns. They are currently wrapping up a
small pilot program wherein they are having SiFi's contractor perform the
microtrencl/conduit install in a short (2,000 lineal foot) section to see what issues they
will encounter. Given that Salem is a 500-year old community, with some roads that
were constructed and re-constructed over that span of time using a variety of materials,
they are encourtering unexpected conditions. It has been a leaming experience for both
Salem staff and SiFi; in some cases, the contactor was making field deviations without

2

Page 846

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



notifuing the City, as with the Fullerton experience, SiFi was required to improve their
QA/QC methods.

3. City of Placentia. CA. Placentia learned some lessons from Fullerton's experience;
nevertheless they are only 20 percent complete after starting construction in July 2021,
and have had to amend their agreement with SiFi to reflect lessons learned. They have
required that SiFi provide a full+ime customer service representative who can be
contasted by the community regarding any complaints. Placentia has also required that
SiFi reimburse the City for the cost of an independent construction inspector.

All three staff contacts acknowledge that it has been a difficult process and that there have
been challenges and frustrations, but in'all three cases they felt that the potential benefit to the
community is worth it. Covid-ielated shutdowns and the cunent supply chain disruptions have
also impacted their schedules, but these are issues outside of the control of SiFi, their
contractors, or City staff.

Staff also reached out to major employers/technical partners in Folsom to gauge the value to
their companies of a citywide broadband fiber network and their thoughts on the project in
general. The firms contacted by staffwere:

o Intel Corporation
r Powerschool
o Safe Credit Union
o Micron (pending)
r AT&T (pending)

The general consensus of these stakeholders is that the addition of a citywide fiber network
may not create new, technological opportunities that they are currently aware of. Safe Credit
Union did however note that it could serve as a redundancy/diverse path in case their cunent
fiber services are disrupted.

Most of the stakeholders concurred that access to broadband internet would be a valuable asset
for their employees working remotely from home, and a good investment by the City for the
general public's benefit. Powerschool also noted that for smaller employers using shared
internet connectivity, the addition of fiber-based broadband could improve latency.

Scott Bradshaw, President of SiFi, will participate by phone and will be available to respond
to any questions regarding this item. John Marchuk, SiFi's local Project Manager, will be in
attendance as well.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Per the agreement, SiFi will install the fiber optic network at no cost to the City. SiFi also
agrees to pay all City plan check fees, permit fees, inspection fees and any other applicable
fees.

3

Page 847

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This program is exempt from the requirements of the Califomia Environmental Quality Act
per Section 15303, New Construction of Small Stuctures, and Section 15304, Minor
Alterations to Land.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No,10744 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Exeoute a Fiber
Network Installation Agreement with SiFi Networks Folsom LLC for the Installation
of a Fiber Optic Network in the City of Folsom

2. FiberNetworks Installation Agreement between SiFi Networks Folsom LLC and City
of Folsom

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

4

Page 848

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



Attachment 1

Page 849

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



RESOLUTION NO. 10744

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A F'IBER
NETWORK INSTALLATION AGREEMENT WITH SIFI NETWORKS FOLSOM LLC

F'OR THE INSTALLATION OF'A FIBER OPTIC NETWORK IN THE CITY OF
F'OLSOM

WHEREAS, SiFi Networks Folsom LLC desires to install a fully privately funded fiber
optic network in the City of Folsom; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom seeks, without City or public funds, to enable the
deployment of fiber optic infrastructure for broadband for the City's residents and businesses; and

WHEREAS, the provision of broadband to the City's residents and businesses will
stimulate economic development, encourage market competition, enable Smart City technological
advancements, and support healthcare, education, transportation, and government; and

WHEREAS, the fiber optic network will also provide opportunities for additional Smart
City services, including connected buildings, traffic signals and other City facilities; and

WHEREAS, if approved, the City would grant SiFi Networks Folsom LLC a license and

encroachment permit to access the public right-of-way for the pu{pose of installing the fiber optic
network; and

WHEREAS, the fiber network installation agreement will be in a form acceptable to the
City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute a Fiber Network Installation Agreement with SiFi
Networks Folsom LLC for the installation of a fiber optic network in the City of Folsom.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of December, 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No, 10744
Page I ofl

Page 850

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



Attachment 2

Page 851

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



F'IBER NETWORKS INSTALLATION AGREEMEM

This Fiber Networks Installation Agreement is made this _ day of November,2}2l
("Effective Date") as it may be extended or amended, the o'Agreement"), between the City of
Folsom, California, a municipal corporation (the "City") and SiFi Networks Folsom LLC, a

Delaware limited liability company ("SiFi Networks" or "SiX'io') (each sometimes referred to as

aooParrtyn and collectively referred to as the "Parties").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, SiFi Networks owns the rights to the FOCUS (as defined below)
proprietary fiber optic cable system technology; and

WHEREAS, SiFi Networks desires to install a fully privately funded fiber optic network
utilizing FOCUS in the City; and

WHEREAS, SiFi Networks has requested that the City grant a license and an

encroachment permit to access and use the City's Public Right-of-Way ("Public Way", as

defined below) for purposes of installing the FON (as defined below) in the City; and

WHEREAS, City seeks, without City or public funds, to enable the deployment of fiber
optic infrastructure for broadband for the City's residents and businesses, in order to stimulate

economic development, to encourage market competition, to enable Smart City technological

advancements, and to support healthcare, education, transportation agencies, government

or ganizations, local business, and residential nei ghborhoods ;

WHEREAS, the City is agreeable, without City or public funding, to grant to SiFi
Networks a license and an encroachment permit to access and use the Public Way for SiFi
Networks in order to install and operate the FON including a point of presence and/or a series of
distributive cabinets and other equipment and materials in connection with the installation of the

FON, pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein;

WHEREAS, the FON will provide opportunities for Smart City additional services,

including but not limited to connecting buildings, traffic lights, and other City owned locations, to

the City subject to a separate written mutual agreement between the Parties; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual obligations of the Parties, and

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged,

the Parties covenant and agree as follows:

SECTION 1

1. Definition of Terms.

1.1 Terms. For the pu{pose of this Agreement, the following terms, phrases,

words, and abbreviations shall have the meanings ascribed to them below.

Page 852

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



"Access" means facilitation of City permitted encroachments for
specified areas within the Public Way.

"Boundary" means the legal boundaries of the City as of the Effective
Date, and any additions or subtractions to the City legal boundaries, by
annexation or other legal means.

"Cabinets" means above ground enclosures placed within the Public Way
for the protection of active and passive equipment for the provision of Service
throughout the System and as further described in Exhibit A.

"Chambers" means underground enclosures placed within the Public
Way facilitating access to the active and passive equipment for the provision of
Service throughout the System.

"Commencement Date" means the date that Substantial Completion, as

that term is defined herein, of the System has been achieved.

"Construction" means breaking ground for the installation of the System.

ooConstruction Contractor" or ooContractor" means the construction
company(ies) performing the physical work for or on behalf of SiFi Networks.

"I)rop" means the fiber optic cable run from the edge of the Public Way
to the Premises Wall.

ooX'acility" means the secure space/s that the City agrees to make available
to SiFi Networks during the Term for the installation of Shelters and Cabinets.

..FOCUS" means SiFi Networks'trademarked FOCUSTM system
including the patented Wastewater Fiber Technology, know-how and other
proprietary rights, comprising, among other things a combination of blown fiber
aerial, wastewater and other conventional techniques to enable multi gigabit
technologies.

"X'ON" means SiFi Networks' fiber optic network built by utilizing a

combination of blown fiber, aerial, wastewater and/or other conventional
techniques and may also include using the FOCUSTM design, as well as

electronics to enable multi gigabit technologies.

"Hazardous Materials" means (i) any hazardous or toxic wastes,
substances, or materials, and any other pollutants or contaminants, which are

regulated by any applicable local, state or federal laws, including, but not limited
to 33 U.S.C. Section 1251 et seq.,42 U.S.C. Section 6901 et seq., 42 U.S.C.
Section 9601 et seq., 42 U.S.C. Section 7401 et seq.,42 U.S.C. 960 et seq., and

the California Health and Safety Code Section 25100 et seq., and 25300 et seq.,

the California Water Code, Section 13020 et seq., or any successor(s) thereto: (ii)

Page2 of32

Page 853

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



petroleum; (iii) asbestos; (iv) flammable explosives; (v) polychlorinated
biphenyls; and (radioactive materials.

'oHome" means a residential single-family dwelling, or a residential single
dwelling unit located within a Multiple Dwelling Unit, located within the
Boundary.

"Multiple Dwelling Unit" means an apartment building or other building
containing more than one dwelling unit located within the Boundary.

ooMicrotrenchingon means the process of cutting a trench with a dry cut
machine and reinstated with cementitious slurry fill as specified in Exhibit A.

ooPass" or "Passes" means the duct or Chamber as parts of the System
has reached to the curbside of a residential Premises, or the engineered point at or
near a commercial Premises from which a Drop can be connected.

"Person" means any natural person or any association, firm, partnership,
joint venture, corporation, limited liability company, or other legally recognized
entity, whether for profit or not for profit, but shall not mean the City or SiFi
Networks.

"Premises" means a Home, Multiple Dwelling Unit, offrce or other
building located within the Boundary.

ooPremises Wall" means the exterior of an outside wall of a Premises to
which the fiber optic cable can be terminated.

"Primary Premises" means the Premises within the Boundary as of the
Effective Date but excluding any Premises which SiFi cannot connect (i) because

of a lack of a right to access and use the Public Way due to the City not
possessing the right, title, interest or authority to permit SiFi to use and occupy
the Public Way in order for SiFi to access such Premises, or (ii) because SiFi lack
of a right to access any non-City owned property within the Boundary in order to
access such Premises, or (iii) if there would be an incremental material cost to
connect such Premises would be at least ten percent (10%) higher than the
average cost to connect accessible by SiFi Primary Premises within the Boundary;
provided that, (1) at least ninety-five percent (95%) of Premises within the
Boundary are Passed, and(2) no Premises are excluded for any other reasons

other than technical or cost reasons as described herein, or (iv) where such
Premises already have a pre-existing fiber service available to them and do not
desire SiFi to connect such Premises. SiFi shall not be required or obligated to
make the System available to such Primary Premises described in (i) through (iv)
in this definition and Substantial Completion determination shall not be impacted
as a result. If any Premises are excluded under subsection (iii) above, City will
have the option to request SiFi meet and confer regarding potential solutions,
including the use of any City owned or controlled conduit, duct or other similar

Page3 of32

Page 854

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



facility, to Pass such Premises, which solutions would have to be mutually agreed
in good faith and in writing between the Parties. "Public Way" shall mean City-
owned public right-of-way, including the surface of, and the space above and

below, existing now or in the future City owned land. Public Way includes City-
owned public street, road, highway, parkway, driveway, freeway, lane, path,

court, sidewalk, bridge, alley, boulevard, traffic signals, lamp post, public way, or
other public right of way or easement including public utility easements dedicated

utility strips, located thereon now or hereafter held by, granted or dedicated to or
under the jurisdiction of the City within the Boundary. For the avoidance of
doubt, the term "Public Way" shall also mean any easement now or hereafter held
by the City within the Boundary for the pulpose of public travel, or for utility
service use.

ooRelease" when used with respect toHazardous Material means any

actual or imminent spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting, emptying,
discharging, injecting, escaping, leaching, dumping, or disposing into or inside
any existing improvements or any improvements constructed hereunder, including
the System.

ooService" means internet, voice, data, and video service or any
combination thereof, provided by the City or another Service Provider over the
System.

ooservice Providers" means any entity, which enters into a contract with
SiFi Networks to provide Services over the System.

"Shelter" means the above ground facility housing System equipment as

further described in Section 4.2 and in Exhibit A hereto.

oosubscribe" means an agreement to receive from a Service Provider.

"Subscriber" means any Person (which for purposes of this definition
shall include the City) that has entered into an agreement to receive or otherwise
lawfully receives Service.

oosubstantial Completion" means the date on which, the System has been
installed such that it Passes the addresses of each of the Primary Premises and the
System is capable of providing Service to each such Primary Premises (but for the
lack of a Drop) or four (4) years post Construction being commenced, whichever
event occurs first; provided, however, in the event that Substantial Completion is
deemed to have occurred due to the expiration of four (4) years post Construction
being cornmenced, SiFi shall use commercially reasonable efforts to complete,
subject to the conditions in the proviso above, such construction as is necessary to
provide service to all Primary Premises within a commercially reasonable time.

"System" means all parts of the FON system under and above ground in
the City that is designed to support the delivery of Service to Subscribers,

Page 4 of32

Page 855

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



including the fiber optic cable and its component parts and appurtenances, and the

other cables, wires, components, facilities, cabinets, ducts, conduits, connectors,

vaults, Chambers, telecom manholes, telecom manhole covers, pedestals,

appliances, splitters, attachments, and other property, equipment, components,
materials, apparatus and appurtenances to the FON system.

SECTION 2

2. Grant of License.

2.I Grant of Temporarv and Non-Exclusive License.

2.lJ License to Use Citv Public Way. This Agreement sets forth the

basic terms and conditions upon which SiFi is hereby granted a non-exclusive no

cost, except for payment of applicable City fees, license, during the Term, to install,
operate and maintain the System in the Public Way. The particular terms and

location of each portion of the System shall be specified in the applicable permit
approved by the City as described in Section 3.2 Permits and General Obligations.
Provided SiFi Networks' is not in breach of this Agreement and the applicable
permits, City grants to SiFi Networks a non-exclusive no cost license, during the

Term, to erect, install, construct, repair, replace, reconstruct, maintain, operate or
retain in, on, over, under, upon, across, or along any Public Way, the System,

within the Boundary, and all extensions and additions thereto. SiFi Networks shall
have the right to determine the final engineering design and location of all
equipment and other parts of the System, subject to the City's prior written approval
for their placement. Both Parties agree to cooperate during the design and

permitting process and SiFi Networks must first disclose all engineering designs to
the City for permit approval. Notwithstanding the foregoing, installation of the

System and access to and use of the Public Way is subject to the applicable permit
for a specific location. It is understood that SiFi's license to place the System is

non-exclusive, except for the Facilities, but that upon issuance of the applicable
permit, SiFi's use of the area specified therein shall not be unreasonably interfered
by the City or its contractors. Further, in the event of a material breach of this
Agreement by SiFi, SiFi's license granted under this Agreement and the particular
permit are revocable only if SiFi Networks fails to cure any alleged breach as

described in Section 8.1, prior to the expiration or earlier termination of this
Agreement.

2.1.2 Abandonment of the Svstem upon Termination of Agreement.
Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, SiFi Networks shall have the
right, but not the obligation, to remove from or abandon in place all or any part of
the System in the Public Way. Any part of the System abandoned by SiFi
Networks as described in this Agreement shall become the property of the City.
Within ninety (90) days prior to the expiration or termination of this Agreement,
SiFi must notifu the City in writing of its intent not to abandon the System. Failure

to provide such written notice within the time specified shall be deemed

abandonment upon the expiration or termination of the Agreement.

Page 5 of32

Page 856

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



2.2 Term of Asreement. This Agreement shall become effective upon the

execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Parties (the "Effective Date").
The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and run until
midnight on the date that is thirty (30) years after the Commencement Date (the

"Initial Term"). No later than one year prior to the expiration of the Term, SiFi
may submit a request in writing that the City approve renewing this Agreement for
an additional term of fifteen (15) years, commencing on the thirtieth (30th)

anniversary of the Commencement Date ("Renewal Terms," and, collectively with
the Initial Term, the "Term"), which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
If SiFi Networks elects to not renew this Agreement the System will be deemed

abandoned and shall become the property of the City.

2.3 License to Citv-owned propertv.

(D City hereby grants, at no additional charge, to SiFi, and its licensees,

successors, lessees, transferees, and assigns, a revocable non-exclusive license
during the Term of the Agreement ("License') to enter and occupy portions of the
City-owned property in or outside of the Public Way for up to two (2) specific
locations as further described in Section 4.2 and from the System in the Public
Way to each of the Facilities, which locations will be mutually agreed upon in
writing and in good faith between the City and Licensee (the ool-icense Area"), for
the purposes of erecting, installing, constructing, operating, repairing, replacing,
reconstructing, removing, maintaining, using and retaining said System,

including, without limitation, wires, cables, ducts, conduits, connectors, vaults,
manholes, manhole covers, fencing, pedestals, appliances, splitters, attachments,

and other property, equipment, components, materials, apparatus and

appurtenances to the System and the Facilities (the "Improvements"). This
License is subject to easements, covenants, conditions, and regulations in
existence as of the date hereof.

(ii) Subject to easements, covenants, conditions, and regulations in existence as of
the date hereof SiFi shall be permitted to use microtrenching for fiber optic
cables and make such alterations to the License Area as approved, which approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned, by the City to erect,

install, construct, repair, replace, reconstruct, remove, maintain, operate, and use,

the System including, without limitation, the Improvements, and adding and

moving electrical lines and other utilities and apparatus. SiFi shall be responsible
for all costs incurred in the alterations. All construction, installation, maintenance

and repair of the License Area shall be conducted so as to interfere as little as

practicable with City's use and operation of the Public Way. The installation of
the System and alterations by SiFi in the License Area shall be done in a good and

workmanlike manner by competent personnel or contractors, and except for the
specifications and construction techniques approved in this Agrebment, in
conformity with all applicable permits, licenses, ordinances, laws and regulations,
free from any liens for labor or materials, and subject to final inspection and

approval by the City. Any damage to the License Area caused by reason of the

Page 6 of32

Page 857

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



exercise of SiFi's rights hereunder shall be corrected within a reasonable time by
SiFi at its sole cost and expense.

(iii) SiFi will maintain the Improvements in accordance with this Agreement.

(iv) SiFi shall not install or construct any other structures or improvements other
than the Improvements and associated appurtenances described herein.

(v) The Improvements installed within the License Area by SiFi shall be made at
no expense to City. SiFi shall be responsible, and assume all costs, for any
relocation or protection of any part of the System in the event the relocation or
protection of the System is necessary due to changes in any Public Way at any
time during the term of this Agreement.

(vi) Other than SiFi's obligation to repair any damage SiFi or SiFi's contractors
cause to the City's Public Way at its sole cost and expense, City, at its sole cost,

shall operate, maintain and repair the Public Way so as to avoid damage or
minimize adversely affecting the System and the License Area. City shall not
make any modifications to, or alter, the License Area without prior written notice
to SiFi.

(vii) City, its agents, or assigns, or any utility company or City franchisee may at

any time, enter upon the areas covered by this Agreement for the purpose of
installing, maintaining, relocating, altering, enlarging, repairing, or inspecting any
utility, facility, or public work thereon. City will not be liable to SiFi for any
damages to the System, Improvements and Facilities.

(viii) SiFi shall restore damaged or disturbed surfaces or underground utilities at
or adjacent to the License Area to substantially the same as the original condition.
Restoration shall be carried out immediately after construction. Any damage not
repaired to the satisfaction of the City shall be a cause to suspend any operations
within the City's limits by the party causing the damage until the repairs are

satisfactory to the City.

(ix) The System and all of its parts and components which are installed and
constructed by SiFi in the License Area shall at all times be and remain the
property of SiFi.

(x) Except for the Facilities, City shall not unreasonably impede, disturb, interfere
with, or restrict, SiFi's access to, use and possession of, the License Area.

(xi) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, whenever possible SiFi shall
not install any Improvement, when running parallel, within 3 feet from existing
underground utilities, and further shall not install any Improvement above or on
top of water of sewer pipelines except with express written authorization by the
Environmental and Water Resources Department of the City.

PageT of32

Page 858

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



(xii) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, in the event SiFi or its
contractor damages water or sewer infrastructure, SiFi shall immediately notifu
the City and shall further make the repair, or cause to be repaired, the damaged

infrastructure within 4 hours. At the City's sole and completion discretion, City
may permit SiFi to pay City to make the necessary repairs at SiFi's sole cost and

expense.

2.a @l The terms, conditions and rights contained herein shall be covenants

running with the land and shall remain in effect for as long as the Agreement

remains in effect. Within thirty days after termination of this Agreement, SiFi shall

remove any abandoned or unused Improvements from the Public Way. The terms

and conditions contained herein shall bind, inure to the benefit of, and be

enforceable by, City and SiFi, and their respective successors and assigns
(including, without limitation, any and all successors to City in title to all or any

portion of the Public Way).

2.4 Citv Accommodation. SiFi Networks acknowledges that this Agreement is

entered into by the City to accommodate SiFi Network's request,that the City
would not have entered into this Agreement had it been exposed to liability for
damages from SiFi Networks, and that therefore and notwithstanding any provision
to the contrary, SiFi Networks hereby waives any and all claims for damages

against the City and its officers, agents and employees for breach of this
Agreement. SiFi Networks further acknowledges that damages are not a remedy

under this Agreement, and therefore and notwithstanding any provision to the
contrary, SiFi Networks waives all claims for damages against the City and its
officers, agents and employees in the event that this Agreement or any other permit
or land use entitlement is: (1) not approved by the City or (2) is approved by the

City but with new changes, amendments, conditions or deletions to which SiFi
Networks is opposed.

2.5 Exclusivity. Until after the first anniversary of the Effective Date, the
City shall not solicit any third party regarding any competing fiber optic cable

system within the City's Boundary, subject to any obligation or requirements
imposed upon the City in its capacity as a land use authority under federal or state

law or regulation.

2.6 Efficient Permitting Process.

2.6.I During the Term, the City shall endeavor to provide expedited,
diligent review of all applications for permits by SiFi and/or its contractors, to the

extent reasonably possible and to the extent permits are necessary, including permits

or other necessary items for construction work on the System within the Public Way.

The City acknowledges and agrees that expeditiousness in connection with permitting,
licensing, and approval of the System is important to SiFi Networks' performance

under this Agreement. Accordingly, the City agrees to endeavor to the process and

Page 8 of32

Page 859

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



timeframes below in connection with all applications for permits by SiFi Networks
and/or its contractors in connection with this Agreement:

O If possible, the City shall within two (2) business days of
submittal by SiFi Networks and/or its contractors of an application or
other request for a permit in connection with this Agreement provide
written acknowledgment to SiFi Networks andlor its contractor confirming
receipt of such submittal; and

(ii) If possible, the City shall within seven (7) business days of
submittal by SiFi Networks and/or its contractors of an application or
other request for a permit in connection with this Agreement acknowledge
in writing that such application is properly submitted and complete, or in
the event such application is not properly submitted and complete, provide
SiFi Networks and/or its contractors with a detailed written explanation of
any deficiencies. Upon curing any such deficiencies, the City shall
undertake an expedited review of the application or other request for
permit by SiFi Networks and/or its contractors in order to comply with this
Section.

(iiD If possible, the City shall within fifteen (15) calendar days

of submittal by SiFi Networks and/or its contractors of an application or
other request for a permit in connection with this Agreement provide
written notification of initial review and provide in writing to SiFi
Networks andlor its contractors a detailed explanation of any additional
information needed for the City to complete its review process. In the
event no additional information is needed, the City shall so notifu SiFi
Networks and/or its contractors in writing.

(iv) If possible, the City shall within twenty-one (21) calendar
days of submittal by SiFi Networks andlor its contractors of an application
or other request for a permit in connection with this Agreement provide
final approval and issue any necessary approval or permits to SiFi
Networks andlor its contractors.

(v) The aforementioned timelines are subject to extension by
City in the event information or document reasonably necessary or
required to process the requested permit is not submitted by SiFi Networks
or its contractors in a timely manner.

2.6.2 Invoices and Pavments. SiFi agrees to pay all City permit
review and processing fees (as set and adjusted by the City from time to time)
associated with SiFi's work under and subject to this Agreement, including but
are not limited to plan check fees, encroachment permit fees, inspection fees,

and any other applicable fees for SiFi's work.

Page9 of32

Page 860

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



2.6.3 Permit applications shall be submitted by SiFi Networks in
substantially the form required by the City. The engineering details provided
in Exhibit A are a sample of typical details that may or may not change during
the final engineering design process.

2.6.4 No permit, license, or other land use approval of any other
approval requested by or required from SiFi Networks shall be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed by the City. Furtherrnore, SiFi Networks shall
have no liability for any of its obligations hereunder (except for payment of City
fees), if the necessary permits, licenses or approvals are not issued by the City.
City retains all rights to deny applications not meeting applicable laws, rules and

regulations.

2.7 Other City charges. In recognition of the public benefit being
served in encouraging and facilitating the construction of the fully privately funded
SiFi's System and other valuable consideration and benefits to City and the public
gained from and due to the System, City agrees that SiFi shall not have to pay for
use of the Public Way. Except as expressly set forth herein, each Party shall bear

and be responsible for all of its own costs, fees and expenses incurred in executing
and performing this Agreement. The City agrees that this Agreement shall not
require SiFi Networks to comply with or otherwise be subject to any obligations or
liabilities as a grantee of a franchise under the City's municipal code, ordinances or
similar laws. The City agrees that City bonding and insurance requirements will be

satisfied by bonds and insurance coverage provided as part of the encroachment
permit application and supplied by the Construction Contractor (as principal)
performing the construction of the System. Such bonds and insurance
documentation to be supplied prior to the start of Construction. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the provisions of this Section
2.6 will survive expiration or termination of this Agreement.

2.7 Relocation.Modification.orAlternations. Excludingrelocations
requested by the City pursuant to this Agreement and repairs or maintenance to the
System, SiFi may not relocate, materially modifu, or materially alter the System

components any time after issuance of the permit(s) for the System, except upon
City's written approval which approval will not be unreasonably withheld, delayed,
or conditioned.

SECTION 3

3. The Svstem.

3.1 System Description. SiFi Networks agrees to install the System
within the Boundary using the Public Way, and further agrees to install, subject to a
separate written agreement, the System to link at substantially below market rates

City buildings and facilities including but not limited to traffic signals and

municipal buildings within 4 years of commencement of Construction. The City
will provide SiFi Networks a comprehensive list of locations and prioritization.

Page 10 of32

Page 861

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



The System shall use fiber optic cable emanating from the Shelter to the applicable
Cabinet in the Public Way and then to the private Premises Wall for each applicable
Primary Premise. The City acknowledges and agrees that SiFi Networks has the
right to install the System within the Boundary using the Public Way in order to

make the delivery of Service over the System available to all Premises within the
Boundary. The Parties acknowledge and agree that there is no agreed design or
configuration of the actual location of the System within the Public Way at this time
and that SiFi Networks shall submit such designs specification, plan and associated

details to the City for approval when ready. The City will work with SiFi Networks
to approve the physical location of the fiber optic cable and other equipment and

components of the System in, on, over, under, upon, across, or along the Public
Way and from the Public Way to the Premises Wall.

3.2 Permits and General Oblisations. SiFi is deemed to have approval

to locate the System within the Boundary, subject to applicable permits including
but not limited to encroachments, licenses, or other forms of plan review and

approval or authorization necessary to construct, install, operate, maintain, replace,

reconstruct, or repair the System, or any part thereof, during the term of this
Agreement and any extensions. Nothing herein entitles SiFi Networks to access or
encroach upon private property without permission of the property owners. SiFi
Networks shall provide plans to the City for City approval for the issuance of
permits to construct the System. Construction and installation of the System shall be

performed in a safe manner using materials of good and durable quality. Other than

for the construction techniques agreed in Section 4.1 and described in Exhibit A, all
permits shall be subject to the provisions set forth in the City's latest Encroachment
Permit and Construction Specifications listed at

https ://www.folsom.ca.us/community/engineering/specs.asp and unless otherwise

stated in this document. Subject to compliance with the City's Noise Control
Ordinance listed at
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Folsom/html/Folsom08/Folsom0842.html.
standard work hours will be daily from Tamto 7pm local time unless City has different
requirements which must be provided to SiFi Networks in advance. All transmission
and distribution structures and equipment installed by SiFi Networks for use in the

System in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be

located so as to minimize interference with the proper use of the Public Way and

the rights of property owners who own property that adjoin any such Public Way.
SiFi Networks shall provide, or cause to be provided by its contractors, all
necessary traffic control measures and waming signage for the protection of
pedestrian and vehicular traffic. No installation in the City's Sewer and storm
drainage system will be permitted. SiFi Networks will adhere to all City building
code requirements; provided, however in the event of an inconsistency or conflict
between the permits granted to SiFi Networks pursuant to this Agreement and the

most current City building code provision, the City building code provision shall
control other than for (i) the construction techniques agreed in Section 4.1 and

described in Exhibit A, and (ii) previously constructed portions of the System.

Page 11 of32

Page 862

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



4.

SECTION 4

Construction and F'acilities.

4.I Construction of the Svstem. SiFi Networks will use commercially
reasonable efforts to commence Construction on or before a date that is twenty-four
(24) months after the Effective Date (the "Construction Commencement
Deadline"); provided however, in the event of a Force Majeure Event, the

Construction Commencement Deadline shall be extended by the time impact
resulting from the Force Majeure Event. In addition, SiFi Networks will use

commercially reasonable efforts to complete construction of the System on or

before a date that is forty eight (48) months after the Construction Commencement
Deadline (the "Construction Completion Deadline"); provided however, in the

event of a Force Majeure Event, the Construction Completion Deadline shall be

extended by the time impact resulting from the Force Majeure Event. The timeline
shall also be extended due to and for the length of any delay by the City in
performing its obligations hereunder or issuing the permits, licenses and approvals

to SiFi or its contractors. Both Parties recognize and agree that SiFi Networks
cannot guarantee the Construction Commencement Deadline or the Construction
Completion Deadline as many elements are outside of its control. SiFi Networks
will keep the City informed of the progress of its schedule at reasonable intervals.

SiFi agrees it shall make reasonable efforts to collaborate and coordinate with City
in the installation of the System ahead of planned asphalt overlay projects by City.
Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, SiFi Networks agrees that it will
only use slot cut micro-trenching as set forth in the specifications set forth in
Exhibit A to this Agreement for all work in the City's Public Way. City approves

only the above referenced construction method and agrees to work cooperatively

with SiFi Networks in reviewing all other potential construction methods; however,

the City retains all rights to disapprove at the Crty's sole and complete discretion
any other construction method it does not approve.

4.I.2 SiFi shall be solely responsible for all repairs, maintenance,

and adjustments, and damages, caused by SiFi or its contractors, to the System

and City-owned property used by SiFi Networks under this Agreement and not
caused by City's sole negligence or willful misconduct. The City shall be liable
to the extent any loss or damages to the System or other SiFi property and

equipment results from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of acts or
omissions the City or its employees or contractors.

4.2 Location of Equipment/Tacilities.

4.2.1 Facilities. During the Term and if approved by the City in
accordance with this Agreement, the City shall permit SiFi Networks access and

grarfi alicense to and use of the Facilities on City-owned property, at market rate

to SiFi Networks for the installation and operation of SiFi Networks' Shelters

(approximately 1,000 square feet per location), distributed cabinets and other

Page 12 of32
Page 863

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



5

System equipment, components, parts, and other appurtenances for the System

and related facilities, and from which the fiber optic cables will be deployed, and

SiFi Networks shall pay all costs of electricity required for such Shelters.

4.2.2 Shelters and Cabinets Location. SiFi Networks agrees to
provide engineering designs including intended locations of Shelters and Cabinets

required for the System to the City prior to Construction in accordance with City's
permitting process. The City and SiFi Networks agree to cooperate in the
selection of suitable sites for the Shelters and Cabinets. However, City has sole

and absolute discretion to reject a proposed location; provided that, the City will
use reasonable efforts to consider suitable alternative locations.

4.3 SubscriberConnections.

4.3.1 Fiber to the Premises Wall. SiFi Networks will provide a
terminated fiber to each Subscriber's Premises receiving a Drop in a manner to be

determined by SiFi Networks. The location and the method of the Drop will vary
depending on the circumstances of the location of the Subscriber's Premises.

4.3.2 System Connection to the Premises Wall. The following will
apply to the connection to each Premises receiving a Drop:

(i) SiFi Networks or its designee shall be solely responsible
for securing private property easement access rights necessary, advisable
or appropriate to connect the System from the Subscriber property
boundary to the Premises Wall. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event

SiFi Networks cannot install fiber optic cable or other necessary

equipment on private property because of a lack of a right to access the
property, SiFi Networks shall not be required to make the System

available to such Premises.

(iD SiFi Networks shall have no duty to provide any additional
connection after the terminated fiber has been taken to the ONT on the

Premises Wall.

SECTION 5

Oversieht and Reeulation bv Citv.

5.1 Oversisht of Construction. In accordance with applicable law, the
City shall have the right to oversee and inspect the Construction of the System in
the Public Way.

5.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. SiFi Networks shall, at all
times during the Term, be subject to and comply with all applicable federal, state

laws and local laws regarding the Construction of the System in the Public Way.

Page 13 of32

Page 864

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



5.3 Treatment of SiFi Provided Information. The City agrees to
notiff SiFi Networks if the City receives a California Public Records Act request

relating to SiFi Networks provided information and documents or the System.

SECTION 6

6. Insurance.

SiFi shall procure at its sole expense and maintain from the Effective Date and for
the duration of the Term of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to
persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the

performance of the work hereunder by the SiFi, its agents, representatives,

employees, or subcontractors.

6.1 Minimum Scope and Limit of Coverage.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

A. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office
(ISO) Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an oooccurrence" basis, including
products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury and

personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per

occuffence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate

limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04)
or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.
Coverage shall include blanket contractual liability and broad form property

damage, premi ses, operations, explosion, collapse, undergroun d hazar d

(commonly referred to as o'X", ooC" and ooIJ" coverages

B. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form CA 0001

covering Code 1 (any auto), with limits no less than $1,000,000 per accident

for bodily itjuty and property damage.

C. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of
California, with Statutory Limits, and Employers' Liability insurance with a
limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

D. Builder's Risk (Course of Construction) insurance utilizing an

"All Risk" (Special Perils) coverage form, with limits equal to the

completed value of the project and no coinsurance penalty provisions.

E. Professional Liability with limits no less than $1,000,000 per

occurrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate. The retroactive date

must be shown, and this date must be before the execution date of the

contract or the beginning of contract work. Insurance must be maintained,

and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after

completion of contract work. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and

Page 14 of32

Page 865

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date

prior to the contract effective, or start of work date, the SiFi must purchase

extended reporting period coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after

completion of contract work. A copy of the claims reporting requirements

must be submitted to the City for review.

F. Pollution Legal Liability andlor Asbestos Legal Liability and/or

Errors and Omissions (if project involves environmentalhazards) with limits
no less than $1,000,000 per occrurence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy
aggregate. Ifthe services involve lead-based paint or asbestos

identification/remediation, the Pollution Liability policy shall not contain

lead-based paint or asbestos exclusions. If the services involve mold
identification/remediation, the Contractors Pollution Liability policy shall

not contain a mold exclusion, and the definition of Pollution shall include

microbial matter, including mold.

If the Contractor or SiFi maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the

minimums shown above for all policies, the City requires and shall be entitled to the

broader coverage and/or higher limits maintained by the Contractor or SiFi. Any
available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance

and coverage shall be available to the City to the extent necessary to cover any

actual damages suffered by the City.

6.2 Self-Insured Retentions

Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City. At the option

of the City, SiFi shall cause the insurer to reduce or eliminate such self-insured

retentions as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers; or

SiFi shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the City guaranteeing

payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense

expenses. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the

self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or City.

6.3 Other Insurance Provisions:

A. Additional Insured. The City, its officers, offrcials, employees, and

volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL and automobile
policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed by or

on behalf of SiFi including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection

with such work or operations and automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed

by or on behalf of SiFi. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of
an endorsement to the Sifi's insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10

11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33', or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms

if later revisions used).

Page 15 of32

Page 866

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



B. Primary and Non-Contributory Insurance. For any claims related to

this project, SiFi's CGL and automobile insurance coverage shall be primary

insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects the City,
its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance

maintained by the City, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be

excess of the SiFi's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

C. Notice of Cancellation. SiFi shall provide immediate written notice if (1)

any of the required insurance policies is terminated; (2) the limits of any of the

required policies are reduced; (3) or the deductible or self-insured retention is

increased. In the event of any cancellation or reduction in coverage or limits of
any insurance, Sifi shall forthwith obtain and submit proof of substitute insurance.

D. Builder's Risk (Course of Construction) Insurance. SiFi may, if
requested by the City, submit evidence of Builder's Risk insurance in the form of
Course of Construction coverage. Such coverage shall name the City as a loss

payee as their interest may appear.

If the project does not involve new or major reconstruction, at the option of
the City, an Installation Floater may be acceptable. For such projects, a Property

Installation Floater shall be obtained that provides for the improvement, remodel,

modification, alteration, conversion or adjustment to existing buildings,
structures, processes, machinery and equipment. The Property Installation Floater

shall provide property damage coverage for any building, structure, machinery or

equipment damaged, impaired, broken, or destroyed during the performance of
the Work, including during transit, installation, and testing at the City's site.

E. Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers

authorized to conduct business in the state with a current A.M. Best rating of no

less than A: VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the City.

F. Waiver of Subrogation. SiFi hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation

which any insurer of SiFi may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment

of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to

affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether

or not the City has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the

insurer. However, the Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a

waiver of subrogation in favor of the City for all work performed by the

Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

G. Verification of Coverage. SiFi shall furnish City with Certificates of
Insurance including all required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the

applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause) and a

copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy listing all
policy endorsements to City before the date of the start of Construction.

However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning

Page 16 of32

Page 867

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



shall not waive the SiFi's obligation to provide them. The City reserves the right
to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including
endorsements, required by these specifications, at any time.

H. Contractor/Subcontractors. SiFi shall require and veriS that its Contractor

and all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated

herein, and SiFi shall require its Contractor and all the subcontractors to list City
is an additional insured on insurance required from subcontractors. For CGL
coverage subcontractors shall provide coverage with a form at least as broad as

cG 20 38 04 13.

I. Special Risks or Circumstances. City reserves the right to modifu, at any

time, these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior
experience, insurer, coverage, or other circumstances.

SECTION 7

7. Parties' Oblisations.

7.1 City Cooperation. City agrees to work in good faith with SiFi Networks
as it applies to City for permits that may be required by City and in the event state or
federal law or regulations prevents or precludes compliance with one or more provisions
of this Agreement, or requires material modification of the Agreement, SiFi Networks
shall promptly notiff the City in writing of the anticipated duration of any delay caused

thereby, and provided any such delay is not the fault of SiFi Networks, the parties agree

SiFi Networks may seek an extension of this Agreement as approved by the City as may
be reasonably necessary to comply with such new state and federal laws or regulations or
the regulations of other govemmental jurisdictions.

When reasonably able, City will provide SiFi Networks with a

least thirfy (30) days advance notice of any work in the Public Way that
requires the relocation of the System. In addition, where necessary, the

City will provide SiFi Networks with an opportunity to access the System
at the time of the excavation in the Public Way by others.

7.2 Oblieations of SiFi Networks. In addition to all other duties and

obligations contained elsewhere in this Agreement, SiFi Networks has the following
duties and obligations:

(i) Work closely with the SPOC of the City and relevant City
departments with respect to the construction of the System.

(ii) Comply with all requirements of City for permit and Public
Way use applications, to the extent they may be required.

(iiD Provide or arange for the maintenance of the System and
its functionality and operation.

Page l7 of32

Page 868

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



(iv) SiFi Networks and its contractors shall register with
California DigAlert; and

(v) SiFi Networks to relocate its facilities as needed for City
capital improvement projects provided however that such City capital
improvements project shall be limited to only those projects impacting,
directly or indirectly, more than three hundred (300) contiguous feet of the
System in the Public Way or the Sewer System ("Major Public Works
Project"). Such Major Public Works Project(s) shall not include routine
maintenance and repair that does not impact the System, including without
limitation repair of pot holes, milling and repaving of roadways, and repair
and replacement of sewer pipes and/or other aspects of the Sewer System.

The City shall provide SiFi Networks with not less than sixty (60) days

written notice of such Major Public Works Project, and SiFi shall
temporary relocate or cause to be relocated any of its impacted System

within one hundred eighty (180) days of notification by the City at its sole

cost and expense. In the event SiFi Networks determines in its sole

discretion that such Major Public Works Project will have a material
impact on the System such that it would be in the best interests of the
Parties to temporarily or permanently relocate some or all of the System,

the City agrees to provide all reasonable accommodations as reasonably
requested by SiFi Networks and with no cost or charge by the City to SiFi
Networks other than standard encroachment permit application and

inspection fees, to allow and facilitate SiFi Networks the ability to
temporarily or permanently relocate such portion of the System in or
around the Public Way or Sewer System in a manner sufficient to maintain
the operation of the System pursuant to the terms of the Agreement. SiFi
Networks shall be responsible for the cost of any such temporary or
permanent relocation of any portion of the System in connection with a
Major Public Works Project.

(vi) SiFi Networks will endeavor to facilitate an introductory
meeting between the City and Service Provider(s) who use the Network to
provide services to residential and business, and further will advise any

such Service Provider(s) that the City may require fees as required by law
or regulation.

(vii) Provide response times in connection with repairs to be

undertaken by SiFi Networks andlor contractors retained by SiFi
Networks (as opposed to repairs to be undertaken by the City) and to
establish the necessary personnel levels for required dispatch, repair,
inventory, maintenance, and service of the System commencing no earlier
than Substantial Completion as follows:

(i) Depending upon the type of fault or the method of
identification, the City shall noti$ SiFi of a suspected fault and the

Page 18 of32
Page 869

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



generation of a service ticket. The City shall issue to SiFi one of
the following service ticket(s), for which SiFi shall provide the

corresponding response time :

(1) StandardResponse("STANDARD")

a) Description: Construction rn
progress, capital improvement and other such
projects impacting or potentially impacting the SiFi
System and/or may impact the SiFi System, about
which the City is aware of in advance. Examples of
such projects include mill and filIprojects, side

relocations, road reclamation projects, and other
similar projects, provided that any such

STANDARD repair is subject to the then current
Califomia Dig Safe laws and regulations, and all
other applicable laws and regulations.

b) SiFi's contractor response time: On-
site within forty-five (45) business days

(2) Non life threatening Emergency Response
("NON-LTER")

a) Description: Curb and gutter
projects, and utility (including telecommunications)
projects requiring relocation, repair, or replacement
that are impacted by the SiFi System and/or may
impact the SiFi System, provided that any such
NON-LTER repair is subject to the then current
California Dig Safe laws and regulations, and all
other applicable laws and regulations.

b) SiFi response time: On-site within
seventy-two (72) hours

(3) Life Threatening Emergency Response
("LTER")

a) Description: Break or hit in the main
gas, main electric, main water, or main sewer line
in the Public Way that has an immediate and direct
impact to the traveling safety of the public in or
around the Public Way, and wherein the City's
ability to implement repairs are impacted by the
SiFi System and/or City repairs may impact the SiFi
System.

Page 19 of32

Page 870

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



b) SiFi's contractor response time: On-
site within four (4) hours

(iD Upon receipt of a service ticket as set forth herein,
SiFi will use reasonable efforts to dispatch a technician to the
specified fault location as identified by the City. SiFi, working
with the City, will then make the determination as to whether the
technician will proceed with the repair(s) if possible, wait for
arrival of a City contractor if necessary for investigation and/or
repair of work, or leave the site.

SECTION 8

8. Breach: Riehts and Remedies; Termination; Indemnification

8.1. SiFi Networks Breach or Default. In the event the City believes that
SiFi Networks has not complied with or is otherwise in default with regard to any term of
this Agreement, the City shall promptly noti$ SiFi Networks in writing with specific
details regarding the exact nature of the alleged noncompliance or default (a "City
Breach Notice").

8.1.1 SiFi Networks' Risht to Cure or Respond. SiFi Networks shall
have thirty (30) calendar days from its receipt of a City Breach Notice (the
"Initial SiFi Cure Period") to:

(D respond to the City, contesting the assertion of
noncompliance or default and in such event the Parties shall use

commercially reasonable efforts to promptly resolve such contest and to
the extent the Parties are unable to resolve such contest within thirty (30)
calendar days of SiFi Networks' response, each Party shall be entitled to
seek any and all rights and remedies available to it at law or in equity to
resolve such contest; or

(ii) cure an actual default or noncompliance; provided,
however, in the event that the default is curable but due to the nature of the
default or noncompliance, such default or noncompliance cannot be cured
within the Initial SiFi Cure Period, so long as SiFi Networks initiates
reasonable steps to remedy and continuously and diligently uses all
reasonable efforts to cure such default or noncompliance promptly and
notifies the City of the steps being taken and the projected date that they
will be completed, the Initial SiFi Cure Period shall be extended for a
reasonable amount of time to permit such cure but not to exceed sixty (60)
calendar days from SiFi Networks' receipt of a City Breach Notice (the
"Extended SiFi Cure Period" and together with the Initial SiFi Cure
Period, the "SiX'i Cure Period").

8.I.2 Citv Rishts and Remedies.

Page20 of32

Page 871

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



(D Except as provided in Sections 8.1.2(ii), (iii) and (iv) below
which shall control in connection with the events described therein, if SiFi
Networks fails to cure any actual noncompliance or default as provided in
Section 8.1.1(ii) above within the SiFi Networks' Cure Period, the City
may:

(a) seek specific performance of any provision of this
Agreement which lends itself to such remedy as an
alternative to money damages; or

(b) seek money damages from SiFi Networks; or

(c) in the event of the breach of, noncompliance with or
default under any material term of this Agreement, terminate this
Agreement and seek any and all rights and remedies available to it
at law or in equity.

(ii) Subject to Section 10.2 below and provided that all
applicable permits have been issued by the City, in the event SiFi
Networks fails to commence Construction on or before the Construction
Commencement Deadline in accordance with Section 4.1 above and
subsequently fails to commence Construction within the SiFi Cure Period,
the City may provide written notice to SiFi Networks of the City's intent to
terminate this Agreement for such failure. SiFi Networks shall have an
additional thirty (30) calendar day period after the SiFi Cure Period to
cornmence Construction (the "Additionat SiFi Cure Period"). If SiFi
Networks fails to commence Construction by the last day of the
Additional SiFi Cure Period, the City may terminate this Agreement by
written notice to SiFi Networks and seek appropriate damages under this
Agreement.

(iii) Subject to Section 10.2 below and provided that all
applicable permits have been issued by the City, in the event SiFi
Networks fails to complete construction of the System by the Construction
Completion Deadline in accordance with Section 4.1 above and
subsequently fails to complete said construction within the SiFi Cure
Period, the City may provide written notice to SiFi Networks of the City's
intent to terminate this Agreement for such failure. SiFi Networks shall
have an additional thirty (30) calendar day period after the SiFi Cure
Period to complete construction (the "Additionat SiFi Completion Cure
Period"). If SiFi Networks fails to complete said construction by the last
day of the Additional SiFi Completion Cure Period, then SiFi Networks
shall cease further construction but shall be allowed to operate the
partially completed System.

(iv) Subject to Section 10.2 below and provided that all
applicable permits have been issued by the City, at any time after

Page2l of32

Page 872

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



Substantial Completion is achieved, in the event no internet, voice, data, or
video service of any kind is capable of being provided over the System due

solely to the acts or omissions of SiFi Networks for a period in excess of
thirty (30) consecutive calendar days and SiFi Networks fails to restore such

capability within the SiFi Cure Period, the City may provide written notice
to SiFi Networks of the City's intent to terminate this Agreement. SiFi
Networks shall have an additional thirty (30) calendar day period after the
SiFi Cure Period to restore the capability of the System to provide Service
(the "Additional SiFi Service Cure Period"). If SiFi Networks fails to
restore the capability of the System to provide Service by the last day of the

Additional SiFi Service Cure Period, then SiFi Networks shall cease further
construction but shall be allowed to operate the partially completed System.

(v) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this
Agreement, in no event shall the City be permitted to terminate this
Agreement if the City is in breach of or default under this Agreement.

8.2 Citv Breach or Default. In the event SiFi Networks believes that the City
has not complied with or is otherwise in default with regard to any term of this
Agreement, SiFi Networks shall promptly notiff the City in writing with specific details
regarding the exact nature of the alleged noncompliance or default (a "SiFi Breach
Notice"). The failure to promptly provide such notice, however, shall not act as a waiver
of any rights and remedies of SiFi Networks hereunder unless and only to the extent that
the City is materially prejudiced by such failure.

8.2.1 City's Risht to Cure or Respond. The City shall have

thirty (30) calendar days from its receipt of a SiFi Breach Notice (the "City Cure
Period"; provided that the City Cure Period for a failure of the City to review
permit applications and issue a permit(s) necessary to construct the System as

required under Sections 3.2 and7.2.l(iv) (a "Permit Issuance Breach") shall be

seven (7) business days from its receipt of a SiFi Breach Notice) to:

(i) respond to SiFi Networks, contesting the assertion of
noncompliance or default and in such event the Parties shall use

commercially reasonable efforts to promptly resolve such contest and to
the extent the Parties are unable to resolve such contest within thirty (30)
calendar days of the City's response, each Party shall be entitled to seek

any and all rights and remedies available to it at law or in equity to resolve
such contest; or

(ii) cure an actual default or noncompliance; provided,
however, in the event that the default is curable but due to the nature of the
default or noncompliance, such default or noncompliance cannot be cured
within the City Cure Period, so long as the City initiates reasonable steps

to remedy and continuously and diligently uses all reasonable efforts to
cure such default or noncompliance promptly and notifies SiFi Networks
of the steps being taken and the projected date that they will be completed,

Page22 of32

Page 873

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



the City Cure Period shall be extended for a reasonable amount of time to
' permit such cure but not to exceed ninety (90) calendar days from the

City's receipt of a SiFi Breach Notice (the "Extended City Cure
Period"); provided further, however, no Extended City Cure Period shall
apply to a Permit Issuance Breach.

8.2.2 SiFi Networks Riehts and Remedies. If the City fails to
cure any actual noncompliance or default as provided in Section 8.2.1(iD above

within the applicable City Cure Period, SiFi Networks may:

(i) seek specific performance of any provision of this Agreement
which lends itself to such remedy as an alternative to money
damages; or

(ii) in the event of the breach of, noncompliance with or default
under any material term of this Agreement, terminate this
Agreement.

8.3 Additional Riehts to Terminate.

8.3.1 At any time prior to commencing Construction or in the event the
City fails to comply with the requirements of the Agreement, SiFi Networks
shall have the immediate right, at its option, upon notice to the City to
tenhinate this Agreement and shall be entitled to any and all other rights and

remedies available to it at law or in equity, subject to the specific legal
limitations SiFi Networks agreed to in this Agreement.

8.3.2 A Party shall have the right, at its option, upon notice to the
other Party to terminate this Agreement if the other Party becomes (i)
insolvent, admits in writing its inability to pay its debts as they mature, makes

an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or becomes subject to direct control
of a trustee, receiver or similar authority, or (ii) subject to any bankruptcy or
insolvency proceeding under federal, state or foreign statutes which is not
rescinded or dismissed within thirty (30) calendar days.

8.4 Indemnification.

SiFi Networks shall defend, indemnifu and hold the City, its officials,
officers, employees, volunteers and agents free and harmless from any and all
claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or
injury, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, in
any manner which actually or allegedly arise out of or are incident to any

alleged intentional or negligent acts, errors, omissions, or willful misconduct of
SiFi Networks, its officials, officers, employees, agents, contractors and

subcontractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the

Services, the Project or this Agreement, including without limitation the
payment of all attorney's fees and other related costs and expenses except

Page23 of32

Page 874

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



where caused by the sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the City its
officers, officials, employees and volunteers. SiFi Networks shall defend, at its
own cost, expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or other
legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or instituted against the

City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers. SiFi
Networks shall pay and satisfu any judgment, award or decree that may be

rendered against the City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents

or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding. SiFi Networks
shall reimburse the City, its officials, officers, employees, agents and/or
volunteers, for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each ofthem in
connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided. SiFi
Networks' obligation to indemnifi shall not be restricted to insurance
proceeds, if any, received by the City its officials, officers, employees, agents

or volunteers. It is understood that the duty of SiFi Networks to indemniff and

hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the
California Civil Code. Acceptance by City of insurance certificates and

endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve SiFi Networks
from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This
indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims
for damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined
to apply, and shall further survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement. By execution of this Agreement, SiFi Networks acknowledges
and agrees to the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of
consideration.

8.5 Limitation of Liabilitv. IN NO EVENT WILL EITHER PARTY
BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY FOR ANY INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL,
SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, RELIANCE, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES OF ANY KIND
ORNATURE WHATSOEVER, INCLUDING ANY LOST SAVINGS OR HARM TO
BUSINESS. EACH PARTY HEREBY RELEASES THE OTHER PARTY AND ITS
AFFILIATES AND THEIR RESPECTIVE DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, MANAGERS,
MEMBERS, EQUITY AND DEBT HOLDERS, PARTNERS, EMPLOYEES,
CONTRACTORS AND REPRESENTATIVES AND THEIR HEIRS, SUCCESSORS
AND ASSIGNS, FROM CLAIMS FOR ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the provisions of this Section 8.5

will survive expiration or termination of this Agreement.

SECTION 9

9. Disputes.

9.1 For all claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in connection
with, the breach, interpretation, application, or enforcement of this Agreement, or arising
out of, or in connection with, the System which cannot be settled through negotiation, the
Parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the matter by mediation in Sacramento

County, California, prior to commencing litigation.

Page24 of32

Page 875

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



9.2 All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in connection with,
the breach, interpretation, application, or enforcement of this Agreement, or arising out
of, or in connection with, the System, shall be decided in a court of law. The sole and

exclusive venue for all claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in connection
within the breach, interpretation, application, or enforcement of this Agreement, or
arising out of, or in connection with, the System, shall be in a state court in Sacramento

County, California.

SECTION 10

10. MiscellaneousProvisio4s

10.1 Assisnment. The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and

shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and each of their respective successors and

assigns as provided herein. The City shall not be permitted to assign, sell or transfer this
Agreement, or its rights and duties under this Agreement, without the prior written
consent of SiFi Networks, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned, or delayed. SiFi Networks shall have the right to assign, novate, sell,
encumber, or transfer this Agreement and the System or any part thereof, without the

consent of the City to Sifi's principal, affiliates, subsidiaries, subsidiaries of its principal
or to any entity which acquires all or substantially all of the SiFi's assets in the market by
reason of a merger, acquisition, or other business reorganization, provided such assignee,

purchaser, or transferee has all appropriate licenses, to the extent SiFi's licenses, permits

and approvals cannot be assigned or transferred, for the operation, management, and

maintenance of the facilities contemplated herein and sufficient financial resources to
fulfill all applicable terms and obligations under this Agreement. All other assignment,

sale, or transfer by SiFi Networks of this Agreement shall require prior written consent of
the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. At least

thirty (30) calendar days prior to the effective date, or as soon as practicable, of any such

assignment, sale or transfer, SiFi shall provide City with a fully executed copy of the

assignment, sale or transfer document, signed by both Sifi and

assignee/purchaser/transferee, indicating the assignee's/purchaser's/ transferee's

assumption of all of SiFi's performance duties, liabilities and obligations under this
Agreement. SiFi shall not be relieved of its perfonnance duties, liabilities or obligations
under this Agreement until City is in receipt, of a fully executed copy of the document
evidencing such assignment of the obligations herein and the
assignee's/purchaser's/transferee's assumption of SiFi's performance duties, liabilities,
and obligations under this Agreement. Sifi may not otherwise assign this Agreement or
the System without City's consent, City's consent not to be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned, or delayed. Upon any such assignment, sale, transfer, or novation, SiFi
Networks shall be released from all obligations and liabilities under this Agreement from
and after the date of such assignment. SiFi Networks shall give the City thirty (30) days'

advance notice of such assignment, sale, transfer or novation disclosing the identity of the
Person to whom it has been assigned, transferred, sold or novated. The City agrees from
time to time to promptly deliver (and in no event later than ten (10) days after request by
SiFi Networks) to SiFi Networks an estoppel certificate addressed to the assignee, buyer

Page25 of32

Page 876

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



or transferee designated by SiFi Networks, affirming for the benefit of such buyer,
assignee or transferee the following (to the extent that the following are then true): the
Agreement is in full force and effect; SiFi Networks is not in default thereunder; and such
other matters as such assignee, buyer or transferee may reasonably request.

10.2 Force Maieure. Except as otherwise expressly set forth in this
Agreement, SiFi Networks will not be held in default under, or in breach or
noncompliance with, the provisions of this Agreement, nor suffer any enforcement or
penalty relating to noncompliance or default (including termination, cancellation or
revocation of this Agreement), where such noncompliance or alleged defaults occurred or
were caused by any of the following events (each a ooX'orce Majeure Event"): failure by
the City to issue permit(s) required to construct the System or any part thereof to SiFi
Networks or its contractor(s), failure by the City to comply with this Agreement, conduct
by the City that materially interferes with SiFi Networks' ability to perform, labor strike,
riot, war, earthquake, flood, hurricane, drought, tornado, unusually severe weather
conditions, or other act of nature, labor disputes, failure of utility service necessary to
construct the System, govefirmental, administrative or judicial order, or other event that is
beyond SiFi Networks'reasonable control. Force Majeure Events also include work
delays caused by waiting for utility providers to service or monitor their own utility
infrastructure on which SiFi Networks' fiber optic cable and/or equipment may be
deployed, as well as unavailability of materials and/or reasonably qualified labor to
perform the work.

10.3 Notice. All notices and communications hereunder shall be in writing and
shall be served upon the other party by hand delivery, nationally recognized overnight
delivery service, United States certified mail, return receipt requested, electronic mail, or
by facsimile with confirmed transmission and addressed as follows:

IF TO THE CITY:
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
Attn: City Attorney

IF TO SIFI NETWORKS:
SiFi Networks
841 Apollo Street, Suite 470
El Segundo,CA90245
Email: NOTICES@SiF iNetworks.com

or to such other address as such Party may hereafter speciff for the purpose by notice to
the other Party in the manner provided in this Section 10.3. All such notices, requests
and other communications will be deemed received on the date of receipt if received prior
to 5 p.m. on any business day in the place of receipt. Otherwise, any such notice, request
or communication will be deemed not to have been received until the next succeeding

Page26 of32

Page 877

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



business day in the place of receipt. Rejection or other refusal to accept or inability to
deliver because of change of address of which no notice was given shall be deemed to be

receipt of the notice.

10.4 Entire Asreement. This Agreement, including all Exhibits, embodies the
entire understanding and agreement of the City and SiFi Networks with respect to the
subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes all other agreements whether written,
verbal, or otherwise between SiFi Networks and the City with respect to the subject of
this Agreement.

10.5 Severabilitv. If any term or provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal
or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall
not affect any other term or provision of this Agreement (which other terms and
provisions shall remain in full force and effect) or invalidate or render unenforceable
such term or provision in any other jurisdiction. Upon such determination that any term
or other provision is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the Parties hereto shall negotiate in
good faith to modi$ this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the Parties as

closely as possible in a mutually acceptable manner in order that the transactions
contemplated hereby be consummated as originally contemplated to the greatest extent
possible.

10.6 Governins Law. This Agreement shall be deemed to be executed in the
State of California and shall be governed in all respects, including validity, interpretation
and effect, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of California as

applicable to contracts entered into and performed entirely within the State, irrespective
of conflict of laws principles.

10.7 Modification. This Agreement shall not be amended or otherwise
modified, in whole or in part, except by an instrument, in writing, duly executed by the
City and SiFi Networks. For the avoidance of doubt, this Agreement cannot be amended
or modified orally or by course of conduct, and no executory agreement, oral agreement
or course of conduct shall be effective to amend or modiff this Agreement in whole or in
part.

10.8 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement or in any prior
agreement is or was intended to confer third party beneficiary status on any party or
Person not a party to this Agreement including a member of the public.

10.9 No Waiver of Riehts. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a

waiver of any rights, substantive or procedural that SiFi Networks or the City may have
under federal or state law unless such waiver is expressly stated herein.

10.10 No Riehts to the System. The City expressly agrees that, except as

expressly set forth in this Agreement, it does not and shall not claim at any time any
interest or estate of any kind or extent whatsoever in the System, throughout the term of
this Agreement. Except as provided in SectionS.L2 (iii) and Section 8.1.2 (iv) above,
SiFi Networks shall, at all times, retain title to and ownership of the System and all future

Page27 of32
Page 878

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



extensions of the System, and shall have the right to lease the System or parts thereof to a
provider ofinternet, data, voice, video and other services.

10.1 1 Representations and Warranties.

10.1 1 .1 The City represents and warrants to SiFi Networks that: (a)
it has full authority (including the authority required by any applicable law,
ordinance, rule or regulation) to enter into and perform this Agreement and the
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the consummation of
the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby are within the right, power and
authority of the City and have been duly authorizedby all necessary action on the
part of City, (b) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the City
and it constitutes a legal, valid and binding agreement of the City enforceable
against the City in accordance with its terms (except as enforcement may be
limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or
similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally and by general principles of
equity) and (c) the execution and delivery of this Agreement by the City and its
performance hereunder and thereunder will not violate any law, ordinance, rule,
or regulation applicable to the City.

l0.ll.2 SiFi Networks represents and warrants to the City that: (a)
it has full authority to enter into and perform this Agreement and the execution,
delivery and performance of this Agreement and the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby are within the power and authority
of SiFi Networks and have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the
part of SiFi Networks, (b) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered
by SiFi Networks and it constitutes alegal, valid and binding agreement of SiFi
Networks enforceable against SiFi Networks in accordance with its terms (except
as enforcement may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium or similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally
and by general principles of equity) and (c) the execution and delivery of this
Agreement by SiFi Networks and its performance hereunder and thereunder will
not violate any law, rule, or regulation applicable to SiFi Networks.

10.1 1 .3 OTHER THAN EXPLICIT REPRESENTATIONS AND
WARRANTIES MADE BY SIFI TO CITY, SIFI NETWORKS MAKES NO
REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES TO THE CITY OR ANY PERSON
WITH RESPECT TO THE SYSTEM (OR THE COMPONENTS THEREOF)
AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR
STATUTORY WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE, AVAILABILITY, ERROR-FREE OR UNINTERRUPTED
OPERATION, AND ANY WARRANTIES ARISING FROM A COURSE OF
DEALING, COURSE OF PERFORMANCE, OR USAGE OF TRADE. TO THE
EXTENT THAT SIFI NETWORKS MAY NOT AS A MATTER OF
APPLICABLE LAW DISCLAIM ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY, THE SCOPE

Page28 of32

Page 879

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



AND DURATION OF SUCH WARRANTY WILL BE THE MINIMUM
PERMITTED LTNDER SUCH LAW.

10.12 Third Parties. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a
contractual relationship with, or a cause of action in favor of, a third party against either
SiFi Networks or the City.

10.13 No Partnership. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create a
partnership, joint venture or agency relationship between the City and SiFi Networks or
any other relationship other than a contractual relationship as expressly set forth in this
Agreement. Neither Party shall in any manner act or indicate to any third party that is
acting as the agent of the other Party. SiFi Networks shall at all times remain an
independent contractor. Neither Party shall control or direct the day-to-day affairs of the
other Party, or their mode or method of performing their respective obligations
hereunder.

10.14 Headinss. The headings and captions of this Agreement are solely for the
convenience of the Parties and shall not be deemed to modifu or vary any of the
substantive terms thereof.

10.15 Construction. Each of the Parties acknowledge that each Party to this
Agreement has been represented by counsel in connection with this Agreement. Legal or
equitable principles that might require the construction of this Agreement or any
provision hereof against the party drafting this Agreement shall not apply in any
construction or interpretation of this Agreement and is expressly waived. In the event an

ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement shall be construed
as if drafted jointly by the parties and no presumption or burden of proof shall arise
favoring or disfavoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions of
this Agreement. The words oohereof', "herein" andoohereunder" and words of like import
used in this Agreement will refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular
provision of this Agreement. References to Articles, Sections, and clauses are to
Articles, Sections and clauses of this Agreement unless otherwise specified. Any
singular term in this Agreement will be deemed to include the plural, and any plural term
the singular. Whenever the words o'include", "includes" or "including" are used in this
Agreement, they will be deemed to be followed by the words "without limitation",
whether or not they are in fact followed by those words or words of like import.
"Writing", oowritten" and comparable terms refer to printing, typing and other means of
reproducing words (including electronic media) in a visible form. References to any
agreement or contract are to that agreement or contract as amended, modified or
supplemented from time to time in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof.
References to any Person include the successors and permitted assigns of that Person.
References from or through any date mean, unless otherwise specified, from and
including or through and including, respectively.

10.16 Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in any number of
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, with the same effect as if the
signatures were upon the same instrument. A signed copy of this Agreement delivered

Page29 of32

Page 880

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission (including PDF) shall be

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this
Agreement.

10.17 X'urther Assurances. Each Party agrees that it will execute and deliver
such other documents and take such other action as may be reasonably requested by the

other Party to effectuate the purposes and intention of this Agreement.

10.18 No Waiver. No provision of this Agreement may be waived unless such
waiver is in writing and signed by the Party against whom the waiver is to be effective.
No failure or delay by a Party in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall
operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise thereof preclude any
other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any right, power or privilege
hereunder. No waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall be held to constitute a

waiver of any other or subsequent breach.

[Signature page follows]

Page 30 of32

Page 881

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



IN WITNESS WHEREOX', the Parties have caused this FiberNetworks Installation
Agreement to be executed as of the day and year stated above.

CITY OF FOLSOM,
a municipal corporation

Dated: 2020

City Manager

Approved as to form:

City Attorney

SIFI NETWORKS FOLSOM LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Dated: 2020
By:

Its:

Page 31 of32

Page 882

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



EXHIBIT A

SPECIFICATIONS, SHELTERS, CABINETS

Page32 of 32

Page 883

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 884

12/14/2021 Item No.31.



ll",if-$.[,s{_}jrfl
(, .trrreir/! lr rnYr tJ

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Move to Adopt Resolution No. 10776 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Approving an
Affordable Housing Loan in the Amount of $6,860,000 from the City's Housing Funds to
Mangini Place Affordable, LP, Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute Loan Agreement and
Related Documents for the Construction of 152 Affordable Housing Units at the Mangini Place
Multifamily Affordable Housing Development, and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Mangini Place Apartments project is a highly amenitized master planned community
comprised of 152 income restricted family rental housing residences. The project site is located
on the 6.07-acre site at the northwest corner of Savannah Parkway and Mangini Parkway
(14776 Mangini Parkway) within the Folsom Plan Area. Mangini Place Apartments will have
access to a master planned system of trails, parks and bicycle paths and will be within walking
proximity to Mangini Ranch Elementary school, Mangini Park (a planned and funded public
park) and a master planned Transit Conidor with a fully planned dedicated Bus Rapid Transit
System.

MEETING DATE: December 14,2021

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: ResolutionNo.l0776 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom
Approving an Affordable Housing Loan in the Amount of
$6,860,000 from the City's Housing Funds to Mangini Place
Affordable, LP, Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute Loan
Agreement and Related Documents for the Construction of 152

Affordable Housing Units at the Mangini Place Multifamily
Affordable Housing Development, and Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Community Development Department

1

Page 885

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



FIGURE I: MANGINI PLACE PROJECT SITE

On January 26,202I, staff requested City Council direction regarding affordable housing loan

funding requests for two separate projects: the USA Properties, Inc. (USA) Sage at Folsom
multifamily senior apartment project and the St. Anton Communities, LLC (St. Anton)
Mangini Place affordable apartment project. Historically, the City had received affordable
housing fund requests sequentially and thus had analyzed and brought those individual requests

forward for City Council consideration. In each previous circumstance, the City's available
housing funds exceeded the individual requests. In 2020, the City had two requests for
affordable housing funds, which collectively exceeded the available housing fund balance at

the time of approximately $7,437,000. As such, staff provided project information, analysis by
TDA Consulting, Inc. (a national provider of affordable housing consulting services), and a
preliminary recommendation to the City Council regarding the two affordable housing
projects' funding requests for consideration and direction. Given that USA had entitlements in
place and was further along in the process, the City Council reviewed and preliminarily
approved the funding request for USA's Sage project. In addition, City Council supported a
future affordable housing loan for the Mangini Place project and directed staff to come back
with a specific funding plan for Mangini Place once the project was further along in the process

and additional housing funds became available.

On August 11,202I, the Mangini Place project received "private activity bond" allocation
from the Califomia Debt Limit Allocation Committee ("CDLAC").

2

resolution

Site

Park

Elementary
School

Page 886

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



On August 18, 2021, the project, which includes development of six three-story apartment
buildings, featuring 90 one-bedroom, 22 two-bedroom, and 40 three-bedroom units was
approved by the Planning Commission. With more than 25 percent of the units designated as

three-bedroom, this project is categorized as ool-arge Family" and targets family households.
Two of the 152 units will be manager units and the remaining 150 units are to be income and
rent restricted to households with incomes between 30 percent and 70 percent of the Area
Median Income for Sacramento County.

POLICY / RULE

Financial support of affordable housing projects is consistent with the City's Housing Element
Goal of facilitating affordable housing.

ANALYSIS

Affordable Housing Needs Analysis

The Mangini Place project is a 152-unit 100 percent affordable multifamily, The development
includes one, two, and three-bedroom floor plans, with a density of approximately 33.3
dwelling units per acre and will serve low and very-low-income households. The City's
recently adopted (August 24,2021) Housing Element, which implements the City's "fafu share"
of the regional affordable housing needs allocated to the City by SACOG, calls for 2,226 very
low-income units and 1,341low-income units over the eight-year period from202l to 2029.
This Project will provide 150 units toward meeting that goal. In addition, the project furthers
Housing Element Goal H-5 which calls for the City to provide a range of housing services for
Folsom residents with special needs, including seniors, persons with disabilities, single
parents, large families, the homeless, and residents with extremely low incomes. Not only does

the project provide housing for 40 three-bedroom units for large family households, 15 of the
total units will be for households with extremely low incomes.

City Housing Funds

As of November 2021, the City's total unencumbered housing fund balance available for
affordable housing projects is $9.97 million and is comprised of four separate funds, as

summarized in Table 1 below:

*In addition to providing affordable housing financial subsidies, Total includes funds utilized for consulting services, special
reports, and other housing related activities.

3

Housine FundName Source Fund Balance
Housins Trust Fund Gund22l\ Commercial Fees sL,265,283
Folsom Housins Fund Gund 238) Inclusionary In-lieu Fees $8,538,583
Oaks at Willow Springs (Fund274) Willow Springs Inclusionary Fee $24,059
Bonds Fund (Fund 280) Former Redevelopment Bonds $r40,293
Total $9,968,218*

Table l-FolsomHousin Funds

Page 887

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



It is important to note, of the four types of housing funds, only the Folsom Housing Fund (Fund
238) and the Housing Trust Fund (Fund 221) arc expected to generate future City housing
funds. During the past year, the City collected over $5.6 million in inclusionary inlieu fees as

a result of the thriving new single-family housing development (primarily in the Folsom Plan
Area) and approximately $6,857.00 in housing trust fund fees associated with new commercial
development. In addition to providing affordable housing loans, these funds are used for other
housing related activities such as the Housing Element Update and housing financing
consulting services.

Over the last 18 years the City has utilized housing funds to provide affordable housing loans
to support multiple affordable housing projects. A summary of projects and funding amounts
is included as Attachment 4.

Funding Analysis

In evaluating the applicant's request for an affordable housing loan in the amount of $6.86
million to facilitate the development of a 152-unit affordable multifamily housing project, the
City's affordable housing loan consultant, TDA conducted a detailed review of the developer's
updated financial proforma projections and project funding information. The project's
assumptions, methodologies, and calculations were reviewed and evaluated for reasonableness
and accuracy. In addition, secondary sources of information were consulted to confirm or
validate the project pro forma and additional information was requested of the developer to
clari$ or support specific items in the pro forma. Based on TDA's analysis and
recommendations, the loan amount of $6.86 million was supported as a reasonable amount to
support the project; however, a couple of modifications to the specific terms of the Crty's
affordable housing loan were recommended by TDA. Most notably was the addition of a net
cost savings/increased sources provision that allows the City to reduce the City's loan amount
in the event thatthat total project sources are in excess of project costs.

The total project development costs are estimated to be approximately $63.1 million with the
majority of the funding assumed to come from a noncompetitive four percent Tax Credit
Equity program and apermanent loan. The City loan will carry a three percent simple interest
rate for a 35-year term. Furtheilnore, as is common practice for repaying affordable housing
loans, payments on the City's loan equal to 50 percent of residual cash flow will be defened
as indicated in the summary below.

Loan Terms

A term sheet outlining the conditions of the loan has been prepared and is included in the staff
report (Attachment 3). Key specifics of this term sheet include:

l. Loan amount of $6,860,000
2. 3% simple interest
3. 35-year repayment term

4
Page 888

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



4. Repayment equal to 50Yo of residual cash flow.
5. City's loan will be deferred until the earlier of i) 15 years following Permanent Loan

Conversion or ii) repayment of the Deferred Developer Fee, provided further that the
Defened Developer Fee note shall carry no interest.

6. At expiration of the loan term, I00% of the principal balance of the loan and all accrued

interest will be due and payable.

7. Net cost savings provision in the event project sources are in excess of uses for the
project.

The City loan will be in second place, behind the permanent construction loan. Staff
recommends that the first commitment of dollars be tied to the developer receiving approval
of the other sources of funding.

Overall, TDA's in-depth analysis of the Mangini Place project financial proformas and project
details indicates that the requested $6.86 million dollar loan is reasonable. In addition, it is
important to note that the per-unit cost for the City loan is approximately $45,733 per
affordable unit, which (as shown in Table 2 below) is less than other affordable housing
projects that have received financial assistance from the City. The primary reason for the lower
per unit cost is a result of the COVID-l9 relief package passed by Congress in December 2020
that included apermanent4o/o floor for of Low-Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) projects'
tax credit rate. This is a significant change to affordable housing underwriting and serves to
increase the amount of equity thatagiven affordable housing developmentproject can generate
from the syndication of Low-Income Housing Tax Credits. As such, the Mangini Place project
has a reduced City subsidy request.

Development Impact Fee Deferral

The developer has also requested deferral of City-imposed development impact fees
(development impact fees from non-City agencies remain payable unless defened by the
imposing agency). Staff supports the developer's request to defer the Project's development
impact fees under Chapter 16.60 of the Folsom Municipal Code, which allows the City Council
to approve deferral of City-imposed development impacts fees not to exceed 75 percent of the
total amount of the impact fees applicable to low income andlor very low-income units in a

5

ProjectName Number of Affordable Units Price per Affordable Unit

Mangini Place 150 $45,733
Bidwell Place 75 $5s,333
Bidwell Pointe 100 $53,000
Parkway Apartments 7l $65,915
Forestwood Apartment 55 $54,545
Granite City 80 $51,000

Tablc 2 - Afforclable Housing Per Unit Cost Comparison

Page 889

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



"qualified residential project". In order to be a "qualified residential project" under Chapter
16.60, the residential development project must have all required discretionary development
approvals and entitlements and include at least 10 percent of its total units affordable to very
low-income households, and at least 30 percent of its units affordable to low-income
households. The entire Mangini Place project is a "qualified residential project".

The estimated total amount of City-imposed development impact fees applicable to the
Mangini Place project is approximately $8,366,223.00 and 75 percent of that amount
($6,274,667.25) is eligible for deferral. Pursuant to Section 16.60.030 and 16.60.040(F), the
maximum fee deferral period is 15 months from the date of building permit issuance, and the
deferred fees are due and payable upon the close of permanent loan financing or upon the
expiration of the maximum fee deferral period, whichever is earlier. The processing and the
deferual of development impact fees will comply with the requirements of Chapter 16.60 of
the Folsom Municipal Code, and a development impact fee deferral agreement satisfactory to
the City Attorney will be required in order to secure repayment of the deferred fees.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

Funding for the requested affordable housing loan for this project is available from the City's
housing funds. The majority of funding, $5,860,000, will come from the Folsom Housing Fund
(Fund 238), with the remaining $1,000,000 from the Housing Trust Fund (Fund 221). An
appropriation will be required in the amount of $6,860,000. Funding for the project does not
impact the City's General Fund.

The above-identified funding will only be provided upon proof, satisfactory to the City, that
St. Anton has financing commitments from all other sources of project financing necessary to
fund the project.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The Mangini Place Apartments project is exempt from environmental review under
Government Code Section 65457 and Section 15182 of the California Environmental Quality
Act Guidelines.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10776 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Approving an Affordable
Housing Loan in the Amount of $6,860,000 from the City's Housing Fund to Mangini
Place Affordable, LP, Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Loan Agreement and
Related Documents for the Construction of 152 Affordable Housing Units at the
Mangini Place Multifamily Affordable Housing Development, and Appropriation of
Funds

2. Loan Term Sheet
3. Site Plan and Project Rendering
4. Summary of City of Folsom Affordable Housing Loans

6
Page 890

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

7
Page 891

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



Attachment L

Resolution No. 10775 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Approving an

Affordable Housing Loan in the Amount of 56,850,000 from the City's Housing

Fund to Mangini Place Affordable, LP, Authorizing the City Manager to Execute

Loan Agreement and Related Documents for the Construction of t52 Affordable

Housing Units at the Mangini Place Multifamily Affordable Housing Development,

and Appropriation of Funds

Page 892

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



RESOLUTION NO. 10776

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM APPROVING AN AFFORDABLE
HOUSING LOAN IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,860,000 FROM THE CITY'S HOUSING

FUND TO MANGINI PLACE AFFORDABLE, LP, AUTHORIZING THE CITY
MANAGER TO EXECUTE LOAN AGREEMENT AND RELATED DOCUMENTS FOR
THE CONSTRUCTION OF 152 AFFORDABLE HOUSING UNITS AT THE MANGINI

PLACE MULTIFAMILY AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PROJECT, AND
APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, St. Anton Communities, LLC (St. Anton) is the developer of the proposed
Mangini Place project, located at the northwest corner of the intersection of Savannah Parkway
and Mangini Parkway in the Folsom Plan Area, is in the process of securing funding necessary to
build the 152-unit multifamily 100% affordable housing affordable to extremely low-, very low-
and low-income households ("Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Project received "private activity bond" allocation from the California
Debt Limit Allocation Committee ("CDLAC") on August ll,202l; and

WHEREAS, St. Anton has requested an affordable housing loan from the City of
Folsom in the amount of $6,860,000 in order to assist with Project financing; and

WHEREAS, providing financial assistance to affordable housing projects is consistent
with the Goal H-3: Facilitating Affordable Housing in the City's Housing Element; and

WHEREAS, the request for an affordable housing loan of $6,860,000 is appropriate
given the Project's costs and development expenses; and

WHEREAS, funding for the requested affordable housing loan is available from the
City's housing funds, with $5,860,000 coming from the Folsom Housing Fund (Fund 238) and
$1,000,000 from the Housing Trust Fund (Fund 221);however, an appropriation will be
required; and

WHEREAS, the primary term of the affordable housing loan will be 35 years at three
percent simple annual interest, to be repaid with a share of residual cash flow to be generated
from the Project with repayment terms subject to approval by the Finance Director; and

WHEREAS, receipt of all loan repayments will be deposited into the City's Housing
Fund (Fund 238) and the Housing Trust Fund (Fund 22t) will be used to provide future
assistance for affordable housing.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby approve an affordable housing loan, in the amount of $6,860,000, to Mangini Place
Affordable,LP, a California limited partnership, to construct the 152-unit affordable multifamily
project known as the Mangini Place, located at the northwest corner of the intersection of

Resolution No. 10776
Page I of2

Page 893

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



Savannah Parkway and Mangini Parkway in the Folsom Plan Area (14776 Mangini Parkway),
subject to the borrower entering into an affordable housing loan agreement in a form acceptable
to the City Attorney.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that defenal of up to 75% of City-imposed
development impact fee applicable to the Mangini Place project for up to 15 months from the
date of building permit issuance is hereby approved, subject to the developer entering into a
development impact fee deferral agreement acceptable to the City Attorney.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is authorized to execute an
affordable housing loan agreement, and other related documents, consistent with and in
furtherance of this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is directed to appropriate
$5,860,000 from the City's Housing Fund (Fund 238) and $1,000,000 from the Housing Trust
Fund (Fund 221) to provide an affordable housing loan for the construction of the Mangini Place
project.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14ft day of December 2021by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10776
Page2 of2 Page 894

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



Attachment 2

Loan Term Sheet

Page 895

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



Loan Term Sheet
Mangini Place Apartments

City of Folsom
November 23,2O2L

1. Lender: City of Folsom, a municipal corporation

2. Borrower: Mangini Place Affordable, LP, a California limited partnership, composed of

i, General Partners

t. St. Anton Mangini Place Affordable, LLC (Co-GP)

2. PacH Anton South Holdings, LLC (Managing GP) (Parent Company:Pacific

Housing, lnc.)

ii. Limited Partners
7. Bank of America, N.A. or its affiliate - lnvestor Limited Partner
2. Bank of America CDC Special Holding Company, lnc. -Special Limited Partner

3. Loan Amount: 56,860,000

3, Purpose: Construction and operation of a 152-unil!00% rent- and income-restricted property. The

planned affordability mix is 15 extremely low-income (30% AMI), 15 very low-income (50% AMI),

84 low-incom e (50% AMI), 36 low-income (70% AMll, and two (2) exempt manager's units.

4. Timine of Fundins: The City's loan will be funded upon closing of the primary construction loan

closing.

5. lnterest Rate: 3% simple per annum
a. Annual Pavments: Repayment of the principal amount of the loan together with accrued

interest will be to the extent "Residual Cash Flow" exists. Principal and interest payments

equal to fifty percent (50%) of "Residual Cash Flow" are due beginning on May L't of each

year untilthe loan is fully repaid. Notwithstanding, annual payments on the City's loan

will be deferred until the earlier of i) L5 years following Permanent Loan Conversion or ii)

repayment of the Deferred Developer Fee, provided further that the Deferred Developer

Fee note shall carry no interest.

5. Residual Cash Flow: Residual Cash Flow is identified as all income generated by the project after:

a, Payment of typical operating expenses for the project, including:

i. Property management fee not to exceed 3%

ii. Advertising, legal, accounting, security, and other general office administration
expenses

iii. Payroll, benefits, and payroll taxes

iv. All utilities
v. All repair and maintenance costs

vi. Property insurance

vii. Property taxes, business licenses, and permits

b. Replacement reserve replenishment: cash deposited into a reserve for capital

replacements of project improvements in such reasonable amounts as are required by

the project lenders, including the City, and/ortax credit investor

Page 896

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



c. Senior amortizing debt service agreed to by the City as of initial closing

For purposes of the Borrower's accounting and tax records, distributions of Residual Cash Flow may
be characterized pursuant to the Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement as may be
amended on project financing.

Notwithstanding, for the purpose of determining the deferral of annual payments on the City's loan,
Residual Cash Flow shall be characterized as follows:

a. First, for payment of an Asset Management Fee to the Limited Partner in the amount of
no more than S10,000 for the first year and escalating at no more than 3% per year
thereafter;

b. Second, for payment of a Partnership Management Fee to the non-profit Managing

General Partner (MCP) for their management duties in an amount equal to 1.00% of the
project's gross annual income for the previous calendar year. MGP fee is capped at

532,000 per year, but eligible for up to a 2% annual increase based on the Consumer Price

lndex. The annual adjustment shall never exceedZYo;

c. With all remaining Residual Cash Flow used as payment toward any outstanding Deferred

Developer Fee.

Upon distribution of 53,372,8t3 (or such deferred developer fee evidenced by the final cost
certification prepared by an independent CPA and implementation of the net cost savings/increased
sources provision herein) in excess of any amounts related to items (a) and (b) above, the deferral
period shall end, and annual payments shall begin. For the sake of clarity, the City will accept
submission of the cost certification prepared for and submitted to the California Tax Credit Allocation
Committee (TCAC) as part of the Borrower's Form 8609 Request,

These categories as listed above shall not materially change without written approval of the City for
the purposes of calculating the annual payment.

7. Term: 35 years from Permanent Loan Conversion. Balance of loan will be due on sale.

8. Balloon Payment: At the expiration of the loan lerm, 700% of the principal balance of the loan and

all accrued interest will be due.

9, Refinancing: ln the event of refinancing, the City will subordinate to the new senior loan on

substantially similar terms as the original financing.

10. Conditions: The funding of the City loan is conditioned on the following:

a. The project has secured the unconditional commitment of all funding sources necessary to
develop the project pursuant to the pro forma, including the construction loan, the
permanent loan, and 4%lax credit equity

b. The Borrower has fee ownership of the land (the developer currently holds fee simple title of
the land)

c. The project has secured all building permits or permit-ready letters and is ready to begin

construction

d. ln the event of cost overruns in development of the project, the Developer will defer as

much of its estimated developer fee as IRS requirements permit prior to requesting any

Page 897

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



additional funding from the City.

11. Net Cost Savinss/lncreased Sources: Following completion of construction Borrower shall submit to
City a cost certification prepared by a qualified independent CPA acceptable to City setting forth the

totalsourcesandusesfortheProject. TotheextenttheCostCertificationshowsthatprojectsources

are in excess of project costs (assuming a deferred developer fee of $3,372,813), 5O% of such an

amount shall be used to reduce the City's loan and 50% lo reduce deferred developer fee. Further,

for purposes of this evaluation and notwithstanding the manner in which the Borrower characterizes

such receipts for tax or accounting purposes, "net operating income" collected by the Borrower prior

to the date of permanent loan conversion shall be treated as a project source.

12. Reporting: Developer will provide the City with annual audited financial statements for the project

demonstrating compliance with the formula for the distribution of cash flow,

13. Securitv: City's loan will be secured by a deed of trust junior to construction and permanent

financing sources set forth.

Page 898

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



Attachment 3

Site Plan and Project Rendering

Page 899

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



I

I

l

F
I
!

N

I

I

I

oNo

@@@PFP
ccczzz
lllaaa

N
ioI
r
cz
Ia

SAVANNAH PARKWAY

sad
8RB9s=oP
LPijjp
8Ef*-- xmz
Ee o

NN

I+mOP}
dxv!

2(
zo

zo
z
!
nx
=

U){m
-o

Fz.

%l-
o€e

e

lif 
'

MANGINI PLACE AFFORDABLE
152 UNIT APARTMENT PROJECT

MANGINI PARruAY
FOLSOM, CALIFORNIA

triffi

>DDD!D9

!I@+
m
!
Fz

Page 900

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



t

I
D>>DDnm>zvol

ma5
zo
G)

o)
lililt

c

4

sMANGINI PLACE AFFORDABLE
152 UNIT APARTMENT PROJECT

MANGINI PARKWAY

FOLSOM, CALIFORNIA
fd$ Page 901

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



Attachment 4

Summary of City of Folsom Affordable Housing Loans

Page 902

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



AFFORDABLE HOUSING LOAN SUMMARY- December 2021

I
I

.l
I

I I
I .t

I
i
t
t.

It qsrlr;6e
I

f L.ilo,soo

i r,om.oog j

I

[ ]ra-r6,ooo'

i ,raoeepqr
I
I

T 6rapo,om
I

i +rso.otn

i 4?s6"os
I
I

l$,gq$g8;Ef;$,

Onb,d.
lttillmsfisriasF

SFfl17!

!LSCA,O.'-$

:,$ ,qps9Jgff

.Eorrl3ins_.fg

inar,Ug-f

troJoo,

raeso,

':$., EE49m'

Eobm'
$treecscaA{gcnqr

Iirf,ED'

.$ L*,ts;€ad..

,s ;l=I7'5;8ffi

Eoborn:. l6'usiag
shd'&1f,

$ s$i;sFg.

LrIooS@:

e;trjoar

Ls15;me

85-5:iel

,S'irSOOSOo:

*,r6o;m:

**€w
r'+,fto$el

| €iJill;frT$

gpo.s

s0p4

sll1

strt*l

s0ffi

sotc

gCIEr

aDtg

spsi

lfhtqp.Tfeqrf;*=Eh

gFr*.{d!'sI&nEc,

F.opeat-gqod

f &Erlfi iliisd(,--_ltdry{g}

Frqits$lly

ftilsd[Friiqe

gietdHnee

Par|c-ugj;r,tr€{e56go,flile'l

fcUfrie Wro''GasF)

Tffi'

Page 903

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 904

12/14/2021 Item No.32.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council appoint an at-large member to the Planning
Commission for the remainder of the term ending in December 2022.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

There is currently an at-large vacancy with the term ending in December 2022. The vacancy
was created as a result of the relocation of one of the current at-large Planning Commissioners
outside of Folsom. A Notice of Vacancy was published in the Folsom Telegraph, posted on
the City of Folsom's web page, and on the bulletin boards located at City Hall.

POLICY / RULE

Folsom's Charter, approved by the voters of Folsom in 1990, establishes the Planning
Commission. Section 4.05 of the Charter specifies the appointment process; namely that
each member of the Council shall appoint one member whose terms shall run concurrent with
that of the Councilmember so appointing and that two members shall be appointed by the
City Council for two-year terms.

Folsom Municipal Code Section 2.35.030 states, in part, that an"at-large appointment" is an
appointment made by a majority vote of the city council or an appointment made by the
mayor with the approval of the city council.

I

MEETING DATE: t2lr4l202r

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Appointment of At-Large Member to the Folsom Planning
Commission

FROM: City Clerk's Department

Page 905

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



ANALYSIS

Among other duties set forth within the Folsom Municipal Code. the Planning Commission
shall act as a board of zoning adjustment within the meaning of Article 2, Chapter 4,Title 7

of the Government Code, and shall have the powers, duties, and responsibilities vested
therein; issue permits for conditional uses of property within the city; grant applications for
variances, review all applications for building or other permits required by the city which
directly affect master or general plans, precise plans, zoning ordinances, or subdivision
restrictions.

ATTACHMENTS

Applications received from the following individuals:

1. George Condon
2. Bob Delp
3. William Romanelli
4. Dianne Smith

Respectfully submitted,

Christa Freemantle, CMC
City Clerk

2
Page 906

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 907

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



*.€ffiaF]Fl
c{fl alxt$I-B0I ?hE?\'.Ifx'1*$'i'*n

ltanlyou forpurinterestin serving on a Folsom commission or committee.
Dr!tr.af tl a- tt:lal

BeforcYouBqgin:
. PleasereadthicfomandiDstructionscarefirllp
' Completeallpages andsigntheapplication.
. AppHcationsremain actirteforsix monthsafterzubmittal

Retrurr coqilcfred apltllcations to:
City OerlCs peparment, Folson Ctty Hall, So Natoma Stneet, Folsom' C"{' 9S6go

Appllcant Infulndonr (All infonnation is rcquircd)

Nane: George Gondon

ResidenceAddress:

Email:

Phone:

Enployer and Ocuryation:

jllmmmG@comcast.net

Orrreutly Serving on a Conmission/Conmittee? If yes, please specr4y:

No

Folsom Becidency/ negbt€redVoterYerlficadon: Commission and Committee memben must be
resid€ots and registered voters of Folsom.

Yes
negisMtorrcte? IndicateYes/ No

fihandal Dlsclosure / Ethics Tlatntng:

Iqndersbndthatcommiscionandcommitteemembersmustfilestatementsdisclosing
financial infornation.

I understand that commission and committee members must eomplete ethics and
harassmenttraining.

IndicateYes /N
Yes

IndicateYe/ti
Yes

If:uth and Accuracy: I certifi that the inforrnation contained. on this forrn is true and aecurate:

Novembet 1,2021
Signahrre: Date:

Important hrbHc Reords Informadon: The city may receirre requests from the public to review documents
this-form and the city is obligated to release these public reoords, including all information contained on the fonn.

UpdatedMayeozr
Page 1 of4

Page 908

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



Clroice of Commission or Comrnittee:
(If fou are interested in mrdtiple commissions, please rank them numerically accordi4g to your preference)

Arb and Culture Commission

Historic Disnrict Commission*

Please identiswhich seat you qualiff for:

representative who is active$ inrrclved with historic presernation
represeatatirre who is a residelrt of the Historic District
rqnesentativewho orms a bruiness within the Sutter Street Subarea
Plonning Commiesionm

, repreceatative fnll a Historic Distdctbusiuess outside the Sutter Sheet 9ubarea
arrcnitect, landscape arrchitect, or o,ttrer design professionalwitt orpertise in historic preser

Iandscaping anit tigbting Dis;trictAdvisory Committeer

Please advise whieih I*L Districtyou live in:

Distictof Residence:

IibraryConmisdon

Parks and Recreation Conmissio!

PlanningCommission

Trafic Safety Committee*

Please identify which seat you qualify fur:

representative representing a wide cross section of interests
represenAtive wLo has demonstrated an interest in or a concern for pedestrian and bicycle

x UtilityConmissiqn

Other:

Condnuetonextpage

+Appllcation Supplement Requirodr
Suffrlemental infoifration is required for the Historic District Commission, Iandscape and Lightins DistrictAdvit
Coilnittee,andtheTrafresafttyCommittee. Theseboardsharrcspecialqualificationrequirementsforcertainse

Page 2 of 4

Page 909

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



-v$ ribvvs

for):

r. I4lhy do you want to serve on this commission or committee:

I have been a resident of Folsom for 16 yeaftt. I also owled rental property in Folsom and
uorked vvell with fie crty departnenB during that time.
I continue to feel that the CW of Folsom is a very well run city that offer many different
services to the citizens.
I continue to belierrc that this cig has sfrong police and fire departnents. The many different
ommittees and commisslons proro b me the city is sffong and wonderful place to live and
raise a family.
I lhink with my involvement on the Boad of Directors of the Empire Ranch HOA and my many
year in the consuuction business, as a Plumbing Gontractor and a General Contractor, will
give me good insight inb the commission's work.

z. What do pu thinkis(are) the top isnre(s) ecingthis oomrnlsgion or onnitbe:
lmplementation of the organics recycling program as mandated by the state and water supply.

Condnuetonextpage

Page 3 of4

Page 910

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



g. Briefly describe how your experiences qualify you to servre on the commission or committee:

As I stated above my 60 years in the consfuction industry'.
Before retiring my last position was Proiect Manager of the Sacramento lntemational
Airport Terminal B. I was part of the Design Build Team primarily focused on the
Plumbing and lltilities.

+. Whic.h commission or committee megtiq8s have you atb-nded?

ENDOFAPPUCAfiONFORM

Retum completed appllcations to:
Ctty OerlCs Deparhent, Folsom City Hdl, 5o Natoma Street, Folsom, CA gS6go

Page 4 of 4

Page 911

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 912

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



FoL5trl'l }llTtl CLEKS L)EFT

30 NnV 
l21PHl:L'l

&*oL80r}{
atr et

ollttatt Yl t' latatr

Folsom Commission and Committee

APPLICATION

thank ylou for your interest in sendng on a Folsom cosrmission or committee.

BdoreYouBegln:. Please read this form and instructious carefully,
. Complete all pages and sign the application.
. Applications remain active for six months after submittal'

Return completed applications to:
City Clerk's Department, Folsom City Hall, So Natoma Street, Folsom, C*A' 9563o

Applicent Informadon: (All information is required)

Name:

ResidenceAddress:

Email:

Phone:

Employer and Occupation:

Bob Delp

bdelp@live.com

Benchmark Resources / Envlronmentral and Land Use Plannlng Consultant

Currently Serving on a Commission/Committee? If yes, please specifi:

Yes; Traffic Safety Commlttee,

Foleom Rsstdency / Registered Voter Verification; Commission and Committee members must be
residents and registeredrroters of Folsom,

Registeredto vote? IndicateYes / No
Yes

Financial Disclosure / Ethics Training:
Indicate Yes / No;

YesI understandthat commission and committeemembers must file statements disclosing
financial information.

I understandtlat commission and commifieemernbers must complete ethics and
harassment training,

IndlcateYes / No:

Yes

Truth and Accuracy: I certifr that the information contained on this form is true and accurate:

Signature: Date:
November 30,2021

Important Public Records Information: The city may receive requests from the public to review ilocuments such as

this forsr and the city is obligated to release these public records, including all information contained on t}te form,

Updated May eozr
Page 1 of4

Page 913

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Bob Delp

Choice of Commission or Committee:
(If you are interested in multiple commissions, please rank tlem numerically according to your preference)

Arts and Culture Commission

2 Historic District Commission*

Please identifu which seat you qualiff for:

x representative who is actively involved with historic presenration
x representativewho is a resident of the Historic District

representative who owns a business within the Sutter Street Subarea

rqlresentative from a Histodc Districtbusiness outside the Sutter Street Subarea
architect, landscape architect, or other design professional with e>eertise in historic presen'ation

Landscaplng and Lighting District Advisory Committee*

Please advise which I&L Districtyou live in:

District of Residence:

LibraryCommission

Parls and Recreation Commission

Planning Commission

Trafif, c Safety Committee*

Please identifywhich seat you qualifr for:

1

representative representing a wide cross section of interests
representativewho has demonstrated an interest in or a concern for pedestrian and bicyde safety

Utility Commission

Other:

*Applicadon Supplement Required:
Supplementalinformationis required forthe Historic District Commission, Landscape and Lighting DistrictAdvisory
Committee, and the Traffrc Safety Committee. These boards have special qualification requirements for certain seats.

Continueto nextpage

PageZ 4

Page 914

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AI{D COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Bob Delp

Infonnational Questione: (you must answer all four questions, for all commissions or committees you are applying
for):

r. Why do you want to serve on this commission or committee:

My wife and I have lived in Folsom's Historic District since 2012. We own two properties here and
have a vested interest in helping this important area of Folsom continue to thrive. But our lives in
Folsom extend beyond the Historic District. The company I work for, the bike trails I ride, the gym I

go to, the grocery stores I shop at, and the local entertainment I enjoy are spread throughout the
City. All of these amenities and opportunities are important to my life here in Folsom.

I am interested in knowing that the issues and projects that come before the Planning Commission
and the Historic District Commission are thoughtfully considered, and I would welcome the
opportuni$ to provlde my perspectives and opinions as a part of the Plannlng Commission and/or
the Historic District Commission deliberation and decision making processes.

e. I{tat do you think is(are) the top issue(s) facing this commission or committee:

Top issues facing the Planning Commission are:
- ongoing City-wide zoning code update
- review and approvals of projects in the Folsom Plan Area and other growth areas
- accomplishing affordable housing allocations
- reinvigoration of older business areas (e.9., northern East Bidwell Street corridor)

Top issues facing the Historic District Gommission are:
- ongoing zoning code update as relates to the Historic District
- reviews of individual residential and commercial development proposals for Historic District and
zoning code compliance and compatibly
- plannihg for future developmenUuse of the Corporation Yard
- parking and traffic management addressing concems of residents while ensuring access to
businesses
- fire prevention, emergency response, and public safety

Continueto nextpage

Page 3 of4

Page 915

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



FOISOM COMMISSION AIVD COMMITIEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Bob Delp

g. Briefly describe how your orperiences qualiff you to serve on the commission or committee:

I have been a land use/environmental consultant for over 25 years, and I understiand land use
planning, zoning, environmental review processes. I have been engaged at the local level in Folsom
providing my perpectives on projects in the Historic District and other areas of the Gity. Through that
involvement I have become familiar with the City zoning code and the City's project review process. I

have been and am cunently involved in historic preservation efforts both as an involved citizen in
Folsom's Historic Distric't (e.9., questioning the suitability of a faux prison in the Sutter Street
commerclal distrlct, urging for evaluatlon of potentlally historic residential struqtures prior to approving
modifications) and in my career as an environmental professional (e.9., cunently working with the
State Department of Parks and Recreation as a consultant assisting in review of a water quallty
project while protecting historic rcsources at a State Historic Park).

My credentials include:
- 8.A., Economics with emphasis on Energy and Environmentat lssues, Califomia Stiate University,
Chico, 1992
- Certificate in Land Use and Environmental Planning, University of California, Davis, 2010

4. Which commission or comnittee meetings have you attended?

Virtual or in-person attendance or participation in most Historic District Commission meetings in2020
and 2021.

END OFAPPLICATIONFORM

Return completed applications to:
City Clerk s Department, Folsom City Hall, 5o Natoma Street, Folsom, Cd, 9563o

Page 4 of 4

Page 916

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 917

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



Folsom Conimission and Committee

APPUCATION

Thurkrou frr your inbreet in sewing on a Foleom courhicsion or comrnittaq

BcfusYonBcgln:
. -ptcrrcn"a rIls trm 

"na 
inrtnactions carcfolF'

. Oompktea[pogesanilsigglheaDpltcadon'
' ;;iltHo; ffin "n* 

for stu-rontb ascr srrbmisel'

nclrr €onltf cfi ed qDllcedonr to:
CXty Cfoff, @ IiofL So ff*onre Strcet Fokom' C'A 9563o

Apemcmt

Nane:

Sipature:

Infcuaflon; (Atrl idormation is rl$ft€il)

William Mlchael Romanelli

RcsidcnceAildrcsr:

Email:

Phone:

Enployen and OcarPation :

Crrnut$ Serving on s Commlsslon/Conmtttee? If yer' please spcd4F

No

FoleomRceldency/rudsureavotenverlfrcadonr commissionrlitcomuitteemmbelBmugtbe

regaenrs and rcgisteced wters of Folsom'

Regl$er€dto rCIte? IndicateYes / No Yes

Sfnanciaf Digctocune / E'thicc ldnlng:

I und€rsteal that conmigrion and comdtteenrembero murt file stat€'menE diedoaing

ffnansialfoformttton.

I rmilerstanit that commiseion and comrrittee members must complete ethics antl

InillcateYa/No

Yes

Indlcatc Yee / Nol

Yesharassmenttraining.

lluthaldAccruacY contained on thfu form is true and accurate:

Date:
1012512021

UpdatdM4rzoar

Page 1 of4

mchas

Page 918

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



FoIsoMcoMMIs$oNA}itDG0MMITTEEAPPLIC'AIIoN

Ap$icantNene:
William Midrael Romanelli

Chotcc of Commbdon on ComgrlStcct
(ffr,o' arc tntcr,esb6 t" ;itff*ffiffis, please rar* thcra nuracrlcolly accordlngto your pnfcrtnce)

Artt and Cdhtre Comrnlcgion

Historic Dlstrtct Commlssionf

Plcasc irtenti$ which seatyou Wdis for;

rcPlel€mtwrryhoir.aglivel.Iitr',oht€dwlhlrlrtoriclrcserwdou
,nenoffi r*o to e rxdLnt of th8 Hlstorls DtEdct

,arr;;#; ;b" r*" 
" 

b'do"r. wlthtn the suttcr street gub'ea

-j|ffi Dturrrrctbudnecs outsldle the sutu $best SubsE€a

rrcbtgct, larrrSeapc arcbttect, ii[i*l*rri proera"""twitb expsdsc h hletoric preoervadon

Ianibcaping en<t Uibtirg DistrictAdvborry Cotmitteer

Please advise n'hich LSiL DisEictyou [w in:

Districtof Rcsiilcnce

IrlbnrYConniesion

Parlo uril Recreetion Commlgsion

I PlanningCommiseion

XfficsafetYCommitce'

Please iilentffy wlrldr eeat 1ou gualtfl for:

rqneseldattvercpre*irttnga wftle cross secdon of tntelests

r€Fsentativewho bae dem*ffitua * rot rrt ln or a concem for peileehien and bie$le sefety

UtiUtYComniseion

Other:

ts
DisdctAdvisorY

Omnittee andthsTra$c
fur ceftain seats.

Condnueto ne*tPagc

Page 2 of '*

Page 919

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



FOISOM COMMIS$ON AI{D COMMIMEE APPLIC'AMON

.AppliontNamc:
Wlliam Michael Romanelli

Continueto nstPage

rrfomrdmrl (lnrcrdone (pu must answcr all four querdonr, for all commlrsions or corrmitteo ]ou alc applytns

for):

r. Wby ilo you lvent to sene on this conniesion or eommiilee:

A colleague and mentor of mlna oncs told me lf you want to .' glvn back ' or pay lt foruard, then do

it in tha olace you call home. ln so doing you c"i see ilie fruitsbf your bbor dlrectly in your orn

ffiru'iity, atio n"n"nt from ftem at the same fime'

As a Folsom resldent for mora than 22years,a suocessft,l p.ubllc afialrs consulbnt, an acwe

memberof the Forsom chamber and a loiii"tit6who trai had the prMrege of teflrng stories of

Folsorn , s hlsbry 
""0 

pitpf" since 20O4' I love ilre qua[ty of life we enJoy here' My famlly and I

have allbenefitbd ftom ltgrea0y. l ' va also appredabd fie very smartapproadr ts growth ourcity

has tel(en, and while that growttr bilngs mot" n""dr and challenges ln brns of our clty ' s future,

our ptanning commissisn--{iorklng clo-sely with our city counciFhas establlshed a legacy of smart

dsdslons that have served Folsom vuell'

To ms, servlng on the ptanning commlseion rcpresents the best opporhrnlty to givg baok' while also

gMng ms a voice h Jrf,uring firat we pr"Jitil'irt-"t-lrgl"v of smait grovttth, as well as the quality of

ilf r,re all mJoy eo mudt.

z. what do you think idare) the top irnre(s) frcing thls commission or committee:

Having sat rn on severar commissron rneetings thrs year, some of the biggest rssues and challenges I

see ar€:
* Making sure Folsom resldents understand the reallues of Folsom ' I water supply (l'e', our

ailocaffon graaily 
"*"oi, 

o..i;-"o;i;pt'on, evgn altrJt buirdout) white atthe sams lime maklng new

and proposed pq".G'ttt"i, as mu*'as pbsiiut", in horthey use and conserve water and energy'

'Meetlng Folsom , s mandatas for afiordable houslng, parilculady at thE modEnte lncome level,

and keeflng a focus on lntegrating ADUs'
, countedng the nanafive eipoused by a small, but very vocal few, that the plannlng commlsslon ls

slmply a rubbar stamP.
. From my porsonalvieur, whilo the commisslon is largaly charged with overseeing projects that

relate to Fotsom resident 
, s ability to live and work here, r ' d llke to see mora lnteraction wlth the

parks and Recreafion commisslon to,n"* *" rnders:tand, and can ptwlde, the klnd of amenltles

residents and visitors demand.
, ongolng issues .ni iilioirs related to preservatlon of open space, ptane for the River District'

and homelessness.
, Better oommunlcatlons in general on how the commisslon ' s work ls servlng and benefitting all

Folsom resldents.

Page 3

Page 920

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



3. Bricftyitescdbehowpurorpedmcee qualifyputo serveon the commisslonormmmitteel

As a pubilc afiatrs prao,fiilonerfur ngar.ry gg years.t am wefl v_ersed rn navrgatrng ald communioatlng

oomplex lssues 
"ith 

il;;|t!, ;'"i"k"r;dd"fo-ano consdhrencies. tw experience ln lssue

managpment, message developmept.tiJf!*tmunicanons, medla reliffons' sftakeholder

engagement ano worfrng ,lh regy.ragr. iiJ"ri'6JaJcer tothc commission, and to tre clty. ln

addidon, a fiairamountof my past (but *t?r#ittir*rr tras lntrolved assisting dlents in thE building

and development indusffy, so I bring a solfi unJentandlng qf thatworld to fte table'

lle also he6 several leadership poeldons ln various organizations, indudlng Presldent of my local

orofesgronar assocrdon, and rernarn .alrJ rtifrJ aomffunttv. Hrghilghb of rnv nElevant oFerlence

ffiH[ff{;###?r1[jllglEon",n'.nt Affarrg Gommrree chatr (ounent vear) and member

slnca 2018 anO .loFFAd cottnnr"" member (2019' prssent)
. Bov Smut Troop &4: Advancsmem co'chaii-ana nien badge counselor (Z0lgpresent)

' ;;d"k;t*ii sfonott Volunteer educator (2015) 
-.* Ga[ardo enmentary Stnoort sne co919! .Pou-zolsl

- cmien Vofce: Boari Member eafi'2o12\
* califomla Game Wardens Foundatlon: volunteer - communlcatlons (2007'2010)

' ieaderchlp Sacramento: Class of 2006
* Sacramsnts publlc Relafions Assoclailon: Presldent (2001-2002) and Board member (1996-2003)

+. Wbtch connissloaor oommitteemeednpharnyou attended?

with one excepilon, r have been a regurar, in-person attendee at ail prannrng commlsslon mee0ngs

sinoe JulY.

FoIsoMcoMIvIIssIoNANDCoMMITIEEAPPIJCATIoN

ApplimntName:
William Michael Romanelli

ENDOFAPPLICATIONFORM

cityoerlcsD*"*,ffi'*:3iffi,fi $,H$#..,"t$,Forcom,cAe568o

Page4of4

Page 921

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



ATTACHMENT 4

Page 922

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



iffii
$fr$t,qiuffio'*'

t: t:,{ .'*i(f }+
i -ll.<r.l.r'.ir aa

Folsom Commission and Committee

APPLICATION

l,hankyou for your interest in sewing on a Folsom commission or conmittee.

BeforeYouBegin:
. Plcose rcad thiq form and insrnctious carcfulty.
. Complete all pages and signthe application.
. Applicationsremainactiveforsixmonths aftensubmittal.

Return completed applicationa to:
Cif Oerk's Department, Folsom City Hall, 5o Natoma Street, Folsom, CA gSfgo

Agiltcant Inftmqdon: (All information is required)

Name:

ResidenceAddress:

Email:

Phone:

Dianne Smith

d ksmith2O0@com€st.net

Retired

Employer and Occupation: Retired

Currently Serving on a Gommission/Committee? If yes, please specifin

No

Folsom Reeid€ncy / Resistered Voter Verificadon: Commission and Committee members must be
residents and registeredvoters of Folsom.

Registeredtovote? IndicateYes / No Yes

Financial Disclosure / Ethics Training:

I understand that commission and committee members must file statements disclosing
financial information.

I understand that commission and committee members must complete ethics and
harassnienttaining.

Tluth and Accuracy: I certiff that the information contained on tlis form is'true and accurate:

Signature: Date: t( /sa/a r

InilicateYes / No:

Yes

IndicateYes / No:

Y"s

/t
ftnportant hrblic Records Irfonration: The city may receive requeste from the public to review dosuments such as
this fonn and the city is obligated to release these public records, including all irdormation contained on the forrr.

Updated May zozr
Page 1 of4

Page 923

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



FOISOM COMMISSION A\ID COMMITIEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName:
Dianne Smith

Choice of Cornmission or Committee:
(If you are interested in muftiple ommissions, please rank them numerically according to your preference)

Arts and Chlture Commission

Historic Disbict Commission*

Please tdendfywhich seatyou qualify fot:

reprcentativewho is activelyinvolved with historic presenration

representativewho is a resident of the Historic District

, PlinningGonsissiouers

Landscaping and Liglting District Advisory Cornmittee*

Please aclvise which L8d, Distristlou live in:

Districtof Residence:

LibraryCommission

Parks and Recreation Commission

- x PlanningCommission

Tiraffc SafetY Committee*

Please itlentify wli'ich seat you qualify for:

representative representing a wide cross section of interests

representative who has demonstrated an interest in or a concern for petlestrian and biqycle safety

UtilityCommission

Other:

*Applieation Supplenrent Requtred:
s"iitil""t t infohation is reqoir6d for the Historic District commission, Iandse,ape and Ughting District Advisory

Coiti-iti.", 
"od 

the Ttaffic Saftty Committee. These boards have special qualification requirements for certain seats.

Continueto nqtPage

Page? of 4

Page 924

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



FOLSOM COMMISSION A}.ID COMMIT]EE APPLICAIION

ApplicantName: Dianne Smith

Infornational Questions: (you must answer all four questions, for all commissions or committeesyou are applying
for):

r. Whydoyou wantto sen'eon tlis conmissionor committee:

We recently moved to Folsom and due to the pandemic have had a limited chance to get to be part
of Folsom. I have begun to look forways to become more involved in this community. Planning
Commlsslon seemed such a way as plannlng has been a long standlng lntercst of mine.

z. What do pu think is(are) the top issue(s) facing this commission or committee:

As I understand it, the City is currently in the process of revising its zoning code which is, in my
opinion, a major issue as it has a such an impact on the community. Also, concerned about
providing a wide variety of housing.

Gontinueto nextpage

Page 3 of4

Page 925

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



FOISOM COMMISSION AIVD COMMITTEE APPIJCATION

ApplicantName: Dianne Smith

3. Briefty describe how your experiences qualify you to serve on tle commission or comrnittee:

I am a retired city planner having worked br the City of Stockton and San Joaquin County for about
15 years.

+. Which crmmission or committee meetings have you attended?

I have not attended any meetings of the Planning Commission. We moved to Folsom near the start of
the pandemic so I have only seen portions of some meetings on the intemet.

END OF APPLIC.ATION FORM

Return c"ompleted appHcations to:
City ClerPs Department, Folsom City HaIl,5o Natoma Street, Folsom, Cd. 9563o

Page 4 of4

Page 926

12/14/2021 Item No.33.



Folsom City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff requests that the Mayor, with approval from the City Council, appoint three at-large
members to the Folsom Historic District Commission for a two-year term ending in December
2023.

Staff requests that the Mayor, with approval from the City Council, appoint Justin Raithel as the
Planning Commission representative to the Historic District Commission for the remainder of the
term ending in December 2022, as recommended by the Planning Commission.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 17.52 establishes the Folsom Historic District Commission and
defines the Committee's purpose of the Historic District Commission, in part, as to preserve and
enhance the historic, small-town atmosphere of the Historic District; to encourage an active
business climate which promotes the development of a diverse range of businesses compatible with
the Historic District; to retain the residential areas within the Historic District; to ensure that new
residential and commercial development is consistent with the historical character of the Historic
District; and to increase the awareness, understanding, and appreciation of the history of the city.

The Commission is comprised of seven members consisting of one representative who is actively
involved with historic preservation, one representative who is a resident of the Historic District,

1

MEETING DATE: r2tr4l202r

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Appointment of Three At-Large Members to the Folsom Historic
District Commission
and
Appointment of Planning Commissioner to Serve on the Historic
District Commission

FROM: City Clerk's Department

Page 927

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



one representative who owns a business within the Sutter Street Subarea, two Planning
Commissioners, one representative from a Historic District business outside the Sutter Street
Subarea, and one architect, landscape architect, or other design professional with expertise in
historic preservation.

Two members of the Planning Commission are designated by ordinance to serve on the Historic
District Commission. Historically the Planning Commission has voted to recommend members
of the Planning Commission to serve on the Historic District Commission.

At-Large Members
The three current vacantpositions are for a representative who is a business owner within the
Sutter Street subarea, a resident within the Historic District and an applicant representing the
Historical Society / Historic Preservation. The three vacancies were created due to the expiration
of each of the existing appointee's two-year terms ending in December 202I . In addition to the
three vacancies, there is also avacancy for a Planning Commission representative due to the
existing appointee's resignation whose term ends in December of 2022.

A Notice of Vacancy was published in the Folsom Telegraph and in the City's newsletter, posted

on the city's website, and on the bulletin boards located at City Hall. Correspondence was sent to
current Historic District Commission members whose terms expire in December 2021 inviting
them to submit an application for reappointment.

Planning Commission Representative
One of the current Planning Commission representatives to the Historic District Commission
resigned as a result of the relocation of their family outside of Folsom. At the December 1,2021,
meeting, the Planning Commission nominated Justin Raithel as a replacement to serve on the
Historic District Commission for the remainder of the term expiring in December 2022.

POLICY / RULE

Folsom Municipal Code Section 2.35.030 states that at-large appointments to the Historic District
Commission shall expire as follows:

December of even numbered years:
o Planning Commission Members (2 appointees)
o Representative from a Historic District Business outside the Suffer Street subarea
o Architect, Landscape architect, or other design profession

December of odd-numbered years:
o HistoricPreservation
. Resident of the Historic District
o Business Owner within the Sutter Street subarea

Folsom Municipal Code Section 17.52.020 states that the mayor shall appoint each of the
members, subject to the approval of the city council.

2
Page 928

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



ANALYSIS

There are currently three vacancies for representatives of the Folsom Historic District Committee
consisting of a business owner within the Sutter Street subarea, a resident within the Historic
District and an applicant representing the Historical Society / Historic Preservation. Each of the
two-year terms will end in December 2023. In addition to the three vacancies, there is also a
vacancy for a Planning Commission representative due to the resignation of one of the
representatives whose term ends in December of 2022.

The City has received three applications for the three at-large seats

*Applicant is currently serving on the Traffic Safety Committee and would have to step down
from that committee if appointed due to the one-seat limitation (FMC $2.35.030).

ATTACHMENTS
Applications received from the following individuals:

l. Kathleen Cole
2. Mark Dascallos
3. Bob Delp

Respectfully submitted,

Christa Freemantle, CMC
City Clerk

J

Elieible to Represent:

Applicants
Historic
Preservation

Resident of the
Historic District

Business Owner
within the
Sutter Street
subarea

Kathleen Cole (incumbent) x
Mark Dasc allos (incumbent X

Bob Delp* x X

Page 929

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 930

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



NbcrernVror 22{?ffJ^
lort.l?rn

ffi Folsom Commission and Committee

APPLICATION

lbank you frr l,our iuterest in serving on a Folsom commission or committee.

3 L-itr.f?$tD ${

a

Be.forcYouBedn3. Pleasereadthisformand insbuctionscarefirlly.. Complete all pages irnd aigrr the application,. Applicationsrcmain aetiye for six months after nrbmittal.

Rrfiun comgileted applicadonc to:
City ClerPs Departrnent, Folsom City HaIl, 5o Natoma Street, Folsom, C*{, 9969o

Applicant ldorrhadon: (All information is required)

Name: Kathleen Marie Cole

ResidenceAddress:

Enail: kcolepolicy@gmail. com

Phone:

Employer and Occlrpation: Qo}i.. J
Currertly Serving on d. Conndssion/Commlttee? Ifyes, please specift

Yes, resident member of the Historio District Commission

Folsom Reaidency / negistered Voter Verification: Conmission and Committee mernbers must be
residents and registeredvoters of Folsom.

Registered to vote? Indicate Yes / No Yes

Ftnancial Disclooure / Btbics Training:

I understand that commi$sionand committee members must file statements disclosing
financial information.

I understandthat commissionand committeemembers must complete ethics and
harassnent truining.

InillcateYes / No:

Yes

IndicateYes /No:

Yes

Truth andAccuracyr I certifythat the iaformation contained on tlis form is true and accurate:

Signature: rn. CL Date: Novembet 21,2021

Importarrt hrbHc Recordc Information: The ciS may receive requests from the public to reyielv documents zuch as
this form and the city is obligated to release these public records, including all inforrnation contained on the form.

Updated Mayzoer
Page 1 of4

Page 931

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



FOISOM COMMISSION AI{D COMMITTEE APPIJCAfi ON

ApplicantName: Kathleen Marie Cole

(holce of Commlcslon or Committee:
(Ifpu art interestedin multiplecomnissions,please ranktherr numericallyaccordingto yourprtference)

Arts and Culhre.Commission

'I _ IlistoricDistrictConmission*

Please identifr which seat you qualifl fon

rqutsentativewho is actiralyinvolved with bistoric preservation
I rE rcscntativerryto is a resident of the Historic District

repreentativewho oums a bueineeswithinthe Sutter gtreet Subarea
nrnnlngComflssionen
representatirre from a Historic Distrist br:sinese outslde the Sutter Street Subarea
architeet, laadscape architect, or other design pmftseionat with orpertise in blstoric preoenntion

-, 

Iandscapingand Ughting DistrictMvisory Comnrittee.

Please advisevthich If,rL Districtpu lirn in:

Distdstof R$idence:

LibraryComrnission

Psd<s and R€creadon Commission

PlanningCorrnission

TIafi c Safety Committee+

Please identify rrhich seat you qualif for:

representative representing a wide cross section ofinterests
representative who has demonstrated an interest in or a concera for pedestrian and bicyde safety

UtilityCommicsion

Other:

*Application 9upplemont Required:
Supplemental information is required for the Historic District Commission, Iandscape and Lighting District Aclvisory
Committee, and the Traffic Safety Committee. These boards have special qualification requirements for certain seats.

Conlinueto nextpage

Page2 4

Page 932

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



FOI,SOM COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Kathleen Marie Cole

trforuational Quesdons: (1ou must ansrver all four questions, for all commissions or committees you are applylng
for):

r. Why do you wairt to sewe on this commission or committee:

I moved to the Historlc Oi$trict in October2016, after selllng my residence of 25 years in neighboring
Clttts Helghts., Having grown up in Rancho Cordova, I have wlhessed the signifrcant growtf, and
change to the Sacramento mehopolltan aroa. I appreciate and understand the importa-nce of smart
planning and finding balanee between economic growth and the needs of existing'residenb.

I uaas appointed to the Historic District Commission in December 2019 and would like to continue my
service to the community as the commission's resident mernber. The Covld-1g pandemic dorninated
most of my first two years on $re commission. Although I had hoped to personaily and actively
engage with businesses and residents alike to befter understand thelr respectl've visions and 

-

oonooms forthe Histotic Distrlct, vlrhral meetings and phone conversatons became the norm during
lost o{ my tenure. I am committed to having more of a physical prcgenoe in the communig going
forward.

The Historic Dleffict is a vibrant community with a rich history. I willstrive to preserve and enhance
the historic, small-town charm of this community while balancing the freedom of cholce in use and
design of the property o$rner, con$istent with the Deslgn and Development Guidelines that govem
dwelopment in the distriet.

I want to "give bacK'to my'community and have the time and energies lo dedicate to my service on
the cummisslon.

a. I{hat do puthink is(are) tbe top issue(s) facingttris commission or eom:nittee:

To eneourage a diverse rEnge of business activity in the district, particulariy post-pandemio, whlte
ensuring compatibility with the hlstoric legacy of the community.

To help flnd a sustalnable path furward to address parking problems in ttre residentialareas
stemming fiom visibrs that come to enjoy the commercial ac{ivities available here.

To retain the quali$ of life fbr Hlstoric Dlstrlct residents, to the extent feaslble and withln the
jurisdiction of the Historic District Commission.

Continueto nextpage

Page 3 of4

Page 933

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



FOISOM COMMISSION AI{D COMMITTEE APPUCATION

ApplicantName: Kathleen Marie Cole

3. Brief,y describe how your experiences qualifr ]ou to serve on the commission or committee:

I have served two years as the resident member of the Historic Distriet Commission.

For over 35 years, I served as a state leglslative advocate on behalf of publlc agencles, induding,
c{fies, a large urban @u!ty and spedaldlstrlcts. My engagement on tergistafiorianO reiulafions-'
cgvered a broad nango oJ issues, lncluding, but not limited to, plannlng, localgovemmeit finance and
goveman@, water supplt 

-and 
q.u?llty and-government transparency and accountabillty. I engaged

dkecdy wih elected officialg end heir staff state ag.ency and deparimant leaderuhip a-na projrah
stafi; and.pollcy experts to promote or prctect my clients prioritiis and objectives. i have'fur.frd mat
oollabonation and respec'ting p0ints.of-vievv arGt key b finding middle grouird on dlvi$iVe and comp6x
issues.

I was in fie ".relationship business' and leamed early in my career the imporbnce of building trust
and being forthright. lt is important to put personal opinions aside and kbep an open mind t6 new
ideas or rccommendatlons. I work hard to find fair and balanced sotutione-to conntcts that arise.
I know what I don't knornr and undersiland the imporhnce of building a team of subject matter experts
as a nesource, should the need arise. I'm not afaid to ask tough qtrestlong to hglp me come to an
informed decision.

4. Whidr commission or cornmittee meetings have you attended?

I have attended City Council meetings, in person and virtually over the, past two years. t have
attended Hisbric Dishict Gommission meetings, as the resident rnember, and have chalred severat
meetings in the Ghairman's absence. I am familiar with the Brovrrn Act and its requirements for public
bansparency.

END OF APPLICATION FORI\4

Return completed applications tos
City ClerlCs Department, Folsom City Hall, go Natoma Street, Folsom, C.{ 9S6go

Page 4 o 4

Page 934

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 935

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



F[LSI]|4 (rlTtl r:LERiri,g DEPT
16 NfiU'2i pu?:25

alrF a

Il$IJ*,ffut
Dtfrt tc?.-'?r- -a

Folsom Commission and Committee

APPLICATION

lbankyou foryour interest in serving on a Folsom cpmmission or committee.

BeforeYouBegin:
. Pleasereadthis form and insEuctions carefully.
. Complete all pages and sign the application.
. Applications remain active for six months after submittal.

Rcturn completed applications to:
City Clerk's Department, Folsom City Hall, 5o Natoma Street, Folsom, C"{ 9563o

Appllcantlnformation: (All information is required)

rsame: Mark Dascallos

ResidenceAddress:

Email:

Phone:

Employer and Occupation:

m.dascal los@yahoo. com

Currently Serving on a Commission/Committee? If yes, please specifo:

Historic District Commssion

Folsom Rcsidenc,y / Regictered Voter Ver.lfication: Commission and Committee members must be
residents and registeredroters of Folsom.

Registeredto vote? IndicateYes / No Yes

Financial Disclosure / Ethics Tlaining:
Indicate Yes / No:

YesI understand that commission and committee members must file statements disclosing
financial information.

I understandthat commission and committee members must complete ethics and
harassment training.

Inclicate Yes / No:

Yes

Tluth and Accuracy: I certiff that the information contained on this form is true and accurate:

Signature: Date:

Important Public Records Information: The city may receive requests from the public to review documents such as

this form and the city is obligated to release these public records, including all information contained on the form.

Updated May zozr
Page 1 of4

Page 936

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



FOISOM COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Mark Dascallos

Choiceof Commisslon or Committee:
(If pu are interesteil in multiple commissions, please rank them numerically according to your preference)

Arts and Culture Commission

x Historic District Commission*

Please idearti& which seatyou qualiff for:

representative who is actively involved with historic presenation
representativewho is a resident of the Historic Disbict

x representativewho owns a business within the Sutter Street Subarea
Planning Commissioners
representative from a Historic District business outside the Sutter Street Subarea
architect, landscape are.hitect, or other desigrr professional with expertise in historic preservation

Iandscaping and Lighting District Advisory Committee*

Please advisewhich L&L Districtyou live in:

District of Residence:

*Application Supplement Required:
Supplementd information is required for the Historic District Commission, L_andscape and Lighting District Advisory
Committee, and the Traffrc Safety Committee. These boards have special qualification requirements for certain seats.

LibraryCommission

Parla and Recreation Commission

Planning Cornnission

Trafi c Safety Committeer

Please identifr whidt seat you qualify for:

representative representing a wide cross section of interests
representative who has demonstrated an interest in or a concern for pedestrian antl bicycle safety

UtilityCommission

Other:

Continueto nextpage

Page2 4

Page 937

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



FOISOM COMMISSION A].ID COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Mark Dascallos

Infomational Questions: (you must answer all four questions, for all commissions or committees you are applying
for):

r. Why do you want to serve on this commission or committee:

was appointed to the Folsom Historic Commission in March of this year. I feel it takes some time to
get settled in and leam from my peer about the importance protecting the historic districts great
history and architecture. I was looking fonrard to growing into a valuable objective commissioner. I

would like to request that I stay on the commision. I look forward to helping thls special place we
call "Old Folsom'for as long as I can.

e. What do you think is(are) the top issue(s) facing this commission or committee:

Public Safety Parking in the Historic District. Preserving the archltecture to remain authentic to the
1850-1950 era. Building a strong relationship between the residents and the business/building
owners in the district. Making sure we have forward progress in the business district with a balance
of retail, ad, music, restaurants and bars.

Continue to next page

Page 3 of4

Page 938

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AI.ID COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Mark Dascallos

g. Briefly describe how your orperiences qualif you to serve on the commission or committee;

l've been privileged to own a business on Sutter St. for five years. I have been on the FHDA Board as
a director for three years. I have a passion for district and its historic past. I believe I'm an objective
person. I look at issues with the intent of doing what's best for my fellow citizens. I also feel I can
bring people together with a calm professional approach.

+. Which commission or committee meetings have you attended?

I've been one of the committee members for the Folsom Hometown parade since its inception which is
held the weekend before the historic Folsom Pro Rodeo. l've attended commision meetings priorto
my appointment on the commission and have attended all meeting as a commissioner this year on the
historic district commision.

END OFAPPLICATIONFORM

Return completed applications to:
City Clerk's Department, Folsom City Hall, 5o Natoma Street, Folsom, C'A gS6go

Page 4 of.4

Page 939

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 940

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



F0LSEi'l'llTtl CLEKS DEPT

30 NgV 
t21PPl:1'l

atr ea

Folsom Commission and Committee

APPLICATION

Thank you for your interest in serving on a Folsom commission or committee.

&'oLBOr}{
olttta!t vl f' ,atr(t

BdoreYouBegin:. Please read this form and instructions carefirlly,
. Complete all pages and sign the application.
. Applications remain active for six months after submittal'

Return completed applications to :
City Clerk's Department, Folsom City Hall, 5o Natoma Street, Folsom, C,A 9553o

Appltcant Informadon: (All information is required)

Name:

ResidenceAddress:

Email:

Phone:

Employer and Occupation:

Bob Delp

bdelp@live.com

Benchmark Resources / Envlronmental and Land Use Plannlng Consultant

Currently Serving on a Commission/Committee? If yes, please speci$:

Yes; Traffic Safety Commlttee.

Foleom Restdency/ RcgisteredVoterVerificationl Commission and Committee members mustbe
residents and registeredroters of Folsom,

Registeredto vote? IndicateYes / No
Yes

Financid Disclosure / Ethics Training:
Indicate Yes / No:

YesI understandthat commission and committee members must file statements disclosing
financial information.

I understandthat commission and committeemembers must complete ethics and
harassmenttraining.

Indicate Yes / No:

Yes

Tnrth and Accurac.y: I certifu that the information contained on this form is true and accurate:

Signature: Date:
November 30,2021

Important Public Records Informadon: The city may receive requests from the public to review d,ocuments such as

thiJforsr and the city is obligated to release these public records, including all information contained on the form.

Updated May eozr
Page I of 4

Page 941

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AI{D COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Bob Delp

Cholce of Commlssion orCommittee:
(Ifpu are interested in multiple commissions, please rank tlem numerically according to your preference)

Arts and Culture Commission

2 Historic DistrictCommission*

Please identify which seatyou qualiff for:

x representative who is actively involved with historic preservation
x representativewho is a resident of the Historic District

representativewho owns a businesswithinttre Sutter Street Subarea

representative from a Historic District business outside the Sutter Street Subarea
architest, laDdscape ardritect, or other design professional with expertise in historicpresenation

Landscaping and Lighting District Advisory Committee*

Please advise which L&L Districtyou live in:

District of Residence:

LibraryCommission

Parks and Recreation Commission

1 Planning0ommission

Trafi fi c Safety Committee*

Please identifywhich seat you qualifr for:

representative representing a wide cross section of interests
reprcsentative who has demonstrated an interest in or a concern for pedestrian and bicycle safety

Utility Commission

Other:

*Application Supplement Required:
Supplemental information is required for the Historic District Commission, Landscape and Lighting District Advisory
Committee, and the TrafEc Safety Committee. These boards have special qualification requirements for certain seats.

Continueto nextpage

Page2 4

Page 942

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



FOLSOM COMMISSION A}ID COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Bob Delp

Informational Questions: (you must answer all four questions, for all commissions or committeesyou are applying
for):

r. Why do you want to senre on this commission or committee:

My wife and I have lived in Folsom's Historic District since 2012. We own two properties here and
have a vested interest in helping this important area of Folsom continue to thrive. But our lives in
Folsom extend beyond the Historic District. The company I work for, the bike trails I ride, the gym I

go to, the grocery stores lshop at, and the local entertainment I enjoy are spread throughout the
City. All of these amenities and opportunities are important to my life here in Folsom.

I am interested in knowing that the issues and projects that come before the Planning Commission
and the Historic District Commission are thoughtfully considered, and lwould welcome the
opportunity to provide my perspectives and opinions as a part of the Planning Commission and/or
the Historic District Commission deliberation and decision making processes.

e. l{hat do you think is(are) the top issue(s) facing this commission or committee:

Top issues facing the Planning Commission are:
- ongoing City-wide zoning code update
- review and approvals of projects in the Folsom Plan Area and other groMh areas
- accomplishing affordable housing allocations
- reinvigoration of older business areas (e.9., northern East Bidwell Street corridor)

Top issues facing the Historic District Commission are:
- ongoing zoning code update as relates to the Historic District
- reviews of individual residential and commercial development proposals for Historic District and
zoning code compliance and compatibly
- plannihg for future developmenUuse of the Corporation Yard
- parking and traffic management addressing concerns of residents while ensuring access to
businesses
- fire prevention, emergency response, and public safety

Continueto nextpage

Page3 of 4

Page 943

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



FOISOM COMMISSION AI{D COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Bob Delp

3. Briefly describehowyour experiences qualiffyou to serve on the commission or committee:

I have been a land use/environmental consultant for over 25 years, and I understand land use
planning, zoning, environmentral review processes. I have been engaged at the local level in Folsom
providing my perspectives on projects in the Historic District and other areas of the City. Through that
involvement I have become familiar with the City zoning code and the City's project review process. I

have been and am cunently involved in historic preservation efforts both as an involved citizen in
Folsom's Historic District (e.9., questioning the suitability of a faux prison in the Sutter Street
commerclal dlstrict, urglng for evaluatlon of potentially historic residential struqtures prior to approving
modifications) and in my career as an environmental professional (e.9., cunently working with the
State Department of Parks and Recreation as a consultant assisting in review of a water quality
project while protecting historic resources at a State Historic Park).

My credentials include:
- 8.A., Economics with emphasis on Energy and Environmental lssues, Califomia State University,
Chico, 1992
- Certificate in Land Use and Environmental Planning, University of California, Davis, 2010

4. Which commission or comsrittee meetings have you attended?

Virtuaf or in-person attendance or participation in most Historic District Commission meetings in2020
and2O21.

END OFAPPLICATIONFORM

Rctum completed applicadons to :

City Clerk's Department, Folsom City Hall, 5o Natoma Street, Folsom, C,A 9563o

Page 4 of 4

Page 944

12/14/2021 Item No.34.



Book 2 Page 82

Folsom Public Financhg Authority
September 74,2027

Meetinq Minutes

Joint Folsom Gitv Council. Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agencv. Folsom Public
Financinq Authoritv. South of 50 Parkinq Authoritv. and Folsom Ranch Financins

Authority Meetins

September 14,2021

GALL TO ORDER:

The joint City Council / Redevelopment Successor Agency / Public Financing Authority / Folsom South
of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority meeting was called to order at 8:51 p.m, in
City Council Chambers, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlowski presiding.

ROLL CALL: Gouncil/ Board Members: Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez,
Kozlowski

GONSENT GALENDAR:

19. Approval of the June 8, 2021 Joint City Council/ SuccessorAgency / Public Financing
Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Meeting
Minutes

20. Approval of the June 22,2021 Joint City Council / Public Financing Authority Meeting Minutes

21. Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the
Folsom Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50
Parking Authority Monthly lnvestment Reports for the Month ol June 2021

Motion by Councilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve the Consent Calendar.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the joint City Council / Redevelopment Successor
Agency / Public Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing
Authority, the meeting was adjourned to the regular City Council meeting at 8:52 p.m.

DMFT - Not fficial until approved Page 945

12/14/2021 Item No.35.



Book 2 Page 83

Folsom Public Financing Authodty
September 14,2027

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City ClerUBoard Secretary

ATTEST

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor/Board Chair

DMFT - Not fficial until approved Page 946

12/14/2021 Item No.35.



nr'"{-bL$1*tl"$t
l:

I' blt.afl.! ti rlt!,ll

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Finance Department recommends that the City Council receive and file the City of Folsom,
the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority monthly
Investment Reports for the month of September 2021.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Under the Charter of the City of Folsom and the authority granted by the City Council, the
Finance Director is responsible for investing the unexpended cash of the City Treasury. The
primary objectives of the City's investment policy are to maintain the safety of investment
principal, provide liquidity to meet the short and long-term cash flow needs of the City, and
earn a market-average yield on investments. The City's portfolio is managed in a manner
responsive to the public trust and is consistent with state and local laws and the City's
investment policy. The Finance Department hereby submits the investment reports for the
City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing
Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority for
the month of September 2021.

1

MEETING DATE: t2ll4l202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment
Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking
Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of
September 2021

FROM: Finance Department

Page 947

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



POLICY / RULE

l. Section 3.30.010(a) of the Folsom Municipal Code states "the term 'city' shall
encompass the city of Folsom, the Folsom community redevelopment agency, and all
other agencies and instrumentalities of the city under either the direct or indirect control
of the city council, and this chapter regulates the investment of all moneys of those
agencies." ,

2. Section 3.30.030(D of the Folsom Municipal Code states that "the city's chief
investment offrcer shall each month submit an investment report to the city council,
which report shall include all required elements as prescribed by California
Government code section 53646."

3. California Government Code, Sections 53601 through 53659 sets forth the state law
governing investments for municipal governments in California.

4. Section 3.30.020(9) of the Folsom Municipal,Code states that "all city cash shall be
consolidated into one general bank account as set out in this code and invested on a
pooled concept basis. Interest earnings shall be allocated to all city funds and subfunds
according to fund and subfund cash and investment balance on at least a quarterly
basis."

ANALYSIS

Overview
The City has diversified investments in accordance with the City Investment Policy and

Government Code. The City of Folsom's total cash and investments are invested on a pooled
basis as required by the Folsom Municipal Code

The Portfolio Summary of the City's current report includes a o'Pooled Equity Section"
identiffing the Redevelopment Successor Agency's (RDSA) and Folsom Public Financing
Authority's (FPFA) portion of the investment pool. The RDSA and FPFA list these amounts
under "Cash" in their respective sections. Currently, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
(FRFA) has no funds invested in Pooled Equity.

City of Folsom

Total Cash and Investments
The following graph illustrates the City's monthly cash and investment balances for fiscal
years 2018 through 2022. Monthly fluctuations in cash and investments are the result oftypical
receipt of revenues less expenditures for operations, debt service, and capital improvements.
As of September 30,2021, the City's cash and investments totaled $146,444,211; an increase
of $9,884,190 (7%) from September 30, 2020.

2 Page 948

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



City of Folsom Total Cash and Investments
(Fiscal Yerr)

+20r7lr8 .+2018/19 
-2OL9|2O -2020121

+202U22

,UT AUG ,IUN

a
9
E

The following chart shows the City's monthly cash and investment balances and percentage
change for Fiscal Year 2021-22 along with the yearly dollar and percentage changes.

S18o

S160

S14o

S12o

s100

S80

Total City Cash and Investrnents

Monthly
2021-22 Change 2020-21

Monthly
Change

Yearly $
Change

Yearly Vo

Change

FE8 MAYMARoEcSEP ocT NOV APRJAN

Jul
Aug
Sep

$ 163,280,753

s 149,509,252

$ 146,444,211

$ 148,832,109

$ 140,982,833

$ 136,560,020

s 14,448,645

$ 8,526,419

$ 9,884,190

t0%
6%

7%

5%

3%

-8%

-2%

The City's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments. In addition, in accordance
with Section 3.30.020(c) of the Municipal Code, less than 50% of the City's total cash is
invested for a period longer than one year.

J
Page 949

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



To Maturityas of September 3O,2A2l

4-5 Yrs

3-4 Yrs

10,845,365

8,306,L70

2-3 Yrs

t4,622,383
9.5%

0 Days

23,505,97L
15.396

1-2 Yrs

73,977,641.

184-365 Days

15,667,052
LO,2%

1 Day

2-183

64,099,656
41,6%

3,021,743
2,0%

Investment Performance
The City's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of September 2021 is
presented in Attachment I to this report. Portfolio investment earnings (including pooled
equity earnings for the RDSA and FPFA) for the three-month quarter ended September 30,
2021totaled $332,899. The total rate of return of the investment portfolio for the same period

' was 0.79%.

The following graph illustrates the total dollar amount and allocation percentages for
September 30, 2020 and September 3 0, 2021 . The percentages in this graph are based on book
value.

4
Page 950

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



City of Folsom Portfolio Allocation

$100,000,000

$80,000,000

$60,000,000

$40,000,000

$20,000,000

$-
Cash - Checking Money Markel Local

Government
lnvestm€nt Pool

Certificates of Corporate Bonds US Agencies Municipal Bonds
Deposit

E September 30, 2020 City Portfolio lSeptember 30, 2021 City Portfolio

15,70.A

7,38%

A detailed listing of the portfolio holdings as of September 30, 202I is included in Attachment
2 to this report.

The Local Government Investment Pool (LAIF) yield typically moves in the same direction as

market yields, but is less volatile, lagging somewhat behind market moves. This can be seen

in the chart on the next page, illustrating the historical monthly change in yield from July 2019
through September 2021 for LAIF and two-year US Treasury securities. The effective rate of
return for the City Portfolio is also included.

The Federal Funds rate reached its post-2008 global economic downturn peak at 2.50%o in
December 2018. The Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) began lowering the rate in
July 2019, with three cuts resulting in the Federal Funds rate at 1.75% as of December 31,
2019. Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the FOMC cut rates twice in March 2020, by 50 basis
points on March 3rd, and lYo on March 15th. The effect of these rate cuts was to push down
borrowing costs to help consumers and businesses handle the financial challenges posed by
the economic slowdown that resulted from the pandemic. The Fed has maintained these low
rates for nearly a year and a half, and at its meeting on November 2-3,202I the Fed kept the
target range unchanged due to the economic turmoil caused by the ongoing public health crisis.
Despite economic activity continuing to gain momentum in recent months amid ample fiscal
stimulus, employment is expected to remain below its pre-pandemic levels in the short term
and the sectors most affected by Covid-19-related restrictions remain fragile, although they
continue to show signs of improvement. Nevertheless, elevated inflationary pressures since
April have raised concems over the extent to which price pressures remain transitory,
prompting the Fed to begin tapering its stimulus of purchasing Treasury and other securities in

5 Page 951

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



Yield Comparison
July 2019 - September 2A2l

3.000h

2.500

2.00o/o

l.50Vo

1.000h

0.507o

0.00Yo

1$ se! +{s"l," {rt dp- 1$ eoi *:"; {rt $p- r$ sd

+I,AIF .+2 Yr Trcy {*city

a

\.---.*-.

\ \ t

the open market. However, until the labor market is seen to be on stronger footing, the Federal
Funds rate is not likely to be increased.

A listing of transactions for the first quarter of fiscal year 2022 is included in Attachment 3 to
this report.

Folsom Redevelopment S uccessor Agency

Total Cash and Investments
The RDSA had total cash and investments of $7 ,474,875 as of September 30, 2021. This is an
increase of $415,013 (6%) since September 30,2020. The cash held by the RDSA is comprised
of city-held funds, as well as 201I bond proceeds to be utilized for housing and non-housing
projects. These proceeds held by the Agency are broken out individually in the Portfolio
Management Summary inAttachment 1.

The following table and graph illustrate the monthly balances and their respective percentage
changes for the reporting period. Monthly fluctuations in cash and investments are the result
of typical receipt of revenues less expenditures for operations, debt service, and capital
improvements.

6
Page 952

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



Folsom Redeve lopme nt Successor Agency

2021-22

Monthly
Change 2020-21

Monthly
Change

Yearly $
Change

Yeafly oh

Change

Jul
Aug
Sep

$

$

$

10,454,334

7,474,685

7,474,875

$ 10,002,863

s 7,059,737

$ 7,059,862

5%

6%

6%0%

29%

0%

29%

451,471

414,948

415,013

$

$

$

Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency Total Cash and Investments

s15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

s0
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

tr 2019-20 s 2020-2 I t2021-22

The RDSA's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

Investment Performance
The RDSA's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of September 202I is
presented in Attachment 1. The RDSA's investment eamings for the three-month quarter
ended September 30, 202I totaled $14,948. The effective rate of return for the RDSA
investment portfolio for the same time period is 0.78o/o.

Folsom Public Financing Authority

Total Cash and Investments
The FPFA cash and investments totaled $38,732,656 as of September 30,2021. This is a
decrease of $5,222,667 (I2%) from September 30, 2020. Monthly fluctuations in cash and
investments are the result of typical receipt of debt service repayment revenues and the
subsequent debt service expenditures. The following table and graph illustrate the monthly
balances and their respective percentage changes for the reporting period.

7 Page 953

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



Folsom Public Financing Authority

2021-22
Monthly
Change 2020-21

Monthly
Change

Yeady $
Change

Yeaiy "/o

Change
Jul
Aug
Sep

0%

-12%
4%

-28%

$

$

$

43,982,425

43,982,425

38,732,656

$ 58,623,181

$ 61,219,871

$ 43,955,323

$ (14,640,756)

$ (17,237,446)

$ (5,222,667)

-2s%

-28%

-12%

Folsom Public Financing Authority Total Cash and Investments

s75,000,000

s65,000,000

s55,000,000

s45,000,000

s35,000,000
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

tr2019-20 E 2020-21 12021-22

The FPFA's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

Investment Perform ance
The FPFA's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of September 2021 is
presented in attachment 1. The FPFA's investment earnings for the three-month quarter ended
September 30,2021totaled $316,349. The effective rate of return for the FPFA investment
portfolio for the same time period is 3.02Yo.

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

Total Cash and Investments
The FRFA cash and investments totaled $95,290,000 as of September 30,202I, an increase of
$24,185,000 from the prior year. This increase is due to the issuance of $12,925,000
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), Improvement Area 1 Local Obligations
on October 30,2020 and the issuance of $11,815,000 Community Facilities District No. 21
(White Rock Springs Ranch) Local Obligations on April 21,2021. The only other activity

8 Page 954

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



within FRFA was the maturing of $555,000 of local obligations held by FRFA on September
r,202r.

The Authority's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

Investment Performance
The FRFA's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of September 2021 is
presented in attachment 1. The FMA's investment earnings for the three-month quarter ended
September 30,202I totaled $1,108,737. The effective rate of retum for the FRFA investment
portfolio for the same time period is 4.72%.

South of 50 Parking Authorily

Total Cash and Investments
The South of 50 Parking Authority cash and investments totaled $0 as of September 30,202I

The Authority's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

Investment Performance
There is no investment activity for the South of 50 Parking Authority.

ATTACHMENTS

1. City of Folsom, Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, Folsom Public Financing
Authority, and Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Portfolio Management Summary
September 2021

2. City of Folsom Portfolio Holdings as of September 30,2021
3. City of Folsom Transaction Summary, First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2022

Submitted,

Finance Director
Agency Finance Officer
Folsom Public Financing Authority Treasurer
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Treasurer
South of 50 Parking Authority Treasurer

9
Page 955

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 956

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



F(O]LS()N4T

YTf OCo.t
Face AmounU

Sharss GGtV.luc
2,086,8?2.00

7,149,751.00

17.063,8m.00

6.019.940.00

81,057.657.97

4.286,0&) s5

36,331.029.30

CctVelue
370,699.83

2,591,295.(n

4,512,O7f 17

294

CoetVrlue
128,898.41

't58,757.59

38,445,000.00

Codrr.b.

Book
Valuo

0.19

9529{t.fito.00

ilarkst
Value

2,086,Ei12-0,J

7,336,325.50

17,{t65,51t.30

6,009,060.{n

81,057,657 97

4,286,08S.55

36.732,892-50

50 Natome SL

Fdsom, CA 95630

(916) 451-6080

%of
Portfollo

136
4,65

11 06

3.90

52 66

278
23.59

%ot
Pottfollo

City of Folsom
Combined City of Folsom, Redevelopment

Successor Agency, FPFA & FRFA
Portfolio Summaries

September 3O,2O21

Clty of Folsom
Cash

Certificate of Deposit

Corporste Bond

FHLB Bond

Local Govrmment lnr€stment Pool

Money Market

Municipal Bond

Tolbl rAlrsnrge

Cash

NoGHousing 201 lA Proceeds

Housing 20118 Prcds
Money Market

Total rAY€r.g.

Cash

Money Marl(et

Municipal Eond

Tot l,AEr.ge

Money UarlGt

Municipal Bond

Tdl rAvsrage

0.580%

2.3:t9%

2.O19%

1.007%

o211%
0.010%

1.456%

2,086,872.00

7,150,000.00

17,030,000.00

6,0m,000.00

61,057,657 S7

4,286,089.55

36,315,000.00

370,699.83

2,591,295.00

4,51?,877 17

294

128,898.41

158,757 69

38,445,000_00

0-19

95.290.000.00

2.086,872.00

7.14s,755.54

17,O51,773.71

6,019,563.35

81.057,657.97

4.286,089.55

36.396.268.99

$ 14$144,210.71

7,474,472.@
't28,E98.41

t 154.tp.981.12

Book

Valuo

370,699.83

2,591,295.00

4.5',t2.977 17

2.94

Book
Value

128,898.41

158,757.69

38,445,000.00

Book

Value

D.Fto
Hrrltv

1

45
938

1576

1

1

760

D.t to
krrtty

36,748.89

107,804.34

4,724.99

135809.35

Accrucd
lnterurt

A.crued
lnt€r€d

Accrued

lnter€lt

Accrued

Inter€lt

0.8/16% I 153,925,519.52 $ 15:1,995,159.!2 I 154,047,381.'12 3 15.[,574,43012 36't I 286,,tE?.Cl

Book %of

100.00

lnterest Total R.t
of RetumPooled

City of Fobom Cash and Investm€nts (exduding RDSA, FPFA & FRFA amounts)

Redevelopmed Sucessor Agency (included in RDSA lnveslrnent Report)

Public Financing Authodty (induded in PFA lnvestrnent Report)

Fobom Ranch Financing Authority (induded in FRFA lnt estnent Report)

Tffil Pooled Equity

95-(F96

4.8596

0.08.16

0.(x)%

Redevolopment Successor Agency YTt @ coEt
0.80s16

0.E(xl%

0.80(}t6

0.01$6

0.800%

0.050%

2.!,67%

0"(x)5%

4.&1

Face Amounu
Sharec

lm.qt:tr

tartst
Vslue

370,699-E:t

2,s91,295.00

4,512.477 fl
Lg

trd@t
Value

124,Apa.11

154,757.@

38.rt45,mO.m

Ir.F to
fftrrfty

DaFto
nedtv

Face &nounu
Shareo

4.96

34.67

60.37

0.00

0.10016$ 7A74a14.94 t 7l74,C74.',4 I 7A74,8A.E4 J 7+7a$t4,s

Fece Amounu
Sh.rca

r0o.m

%ot
Portfolio

0.33

0.41

99.26

t00.m

%ol
Porfrlio

tarLot
Value

0.19

95.290.rDo.m

r$

Folsorn Public Financlng Authority YTX eCoct
I
1

27A7 92.506.12

2.l,f;l!r $ 38,732,656.10 3 38,n2,556.10 S 38,732,656.10 I 38,nt2,686..t0 Z168 I 92,5/0i8.12

Fobom Ranch Flnancing Authori$ YTt e C6t
0.19

95.29,.0q).00
0.00

100.007489 356.27a.O7

4.efit6 $ 95,290,000.19 I 95,2$,OO.1e $ 95,290,000.re I 95,290,tm.19 7no $ 368,2rE.07

November 30, 2021

736.92

0.79%

0.78%

3.02%

1.72Xi

$ 332.09E.61

u,94A.2A

316,340.63

SEcey Tam4ni, Finance DiE{or Date

100.00

Page 957

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 958

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



City of Folsom

Portfolio Holdings
Portfolio Holdings for lnv Report

Report Format: By Transac'tion

Portfolio / Report Group: City of Folsom

Group By: Security TyPe

Average By: Fac€ Amount / Shares

As of 9/30/2021

Detcdptlon lasu€r Coupon Rab Flce Amughri.! %al
Porifullo

Cash

Wells Faroo Cash lWells Fargo 0.000 86.872 00 0.06

Wells Farso Cash lW€lls Farso 0 060 2.000.000.00 130
ub Total / Averade Cash I 0 058 2.086.872.00 1.36

Appalachian Community CU 3.2 212812022 ADoalechian Communitv CU 3.200 245.000.00 016
Belmont Savinqs Bank 2.7 5 311412023 Belmont Savinos Bank 2.750 246.000 00 016
Beneficlsl Bsnk 2 15 1011812022 Benelicial Bank 2 15A 247.000 00 016
Centerstate Bank, NA 'l 43/30n022 Centerstato Bank. NA 1 400 248.000.00 016
CIT Bank, NA 1 05 312812022 CIT Benk. NA 1 050 248.000 00 016
Ciuzens Deposit Bank of Arllngton, lnc 3 1 6/29/ Citiz€ns DeDosit Bank of Arlinoton, lnc 3 100 246.000.00 016
)iscover Bank 2.25 211512022 Discover Benk 2250 247.000 00 016
Essential FCU 3.55 121512023 Essential FCU 3.550 245.000 00 016
Farmer's & Merchants Bank3 3 9127 12023 Fermer's & Merchants Bank 3 300 245.000 00 016
First Bank of Hiohland Perk 228n3n022 First Bank of Hiohland Park 2200 247.000.00 0.16

Gr€enstate Credit Union 1 9 212812022 Greenstate Credit Union 1 900 249.000 00 016
Jefferson Financial FCU 2.45 11n1n022 Jeffurson Financial FCU 2450 245.000 00 0.16

Medallion Bank 2 15 1011112022 Medallion Bank 2 150 247.000 00 016
Moroan Stanley Bank, NA 2.2 712512024 Moroan Stanlev Bank. NA 2.200 247.000 00 0.16

Morqan Stanlev Private Bank, N422711812024 Moroan Stanlev Private Bank. NA 2200 247.000 00 016
Nationaf Cooperative Bank. N43.4 1212112023 National Coooerative Bank. NA 3 400 245.000,00 016
Neishbors FCU 3 3 911912023 Neiohbors FCU 3.300 245,000.00 0.16

New York Communitv Bank O 65 9nOnO24 New York Communitv Bank 0 650 249.000 00 01
Public Service CU 3.'15 1012612021 Public SeNice CU 3 150 245,000.00 016
Ravmond James 8ank. NA 1 95 812312023 Ravmond James Bank. NA 1 950 247,000 00 0,16

Sallie Mae Bank 2 6 411812022 Sallie Mae Bank 2.600 246,000 00 016
Svnchronv Bank 24 511912022 Svnchronv Bank 2400 240,000 00 016
Svnovus Benk 1 45 1011712022 Svnovus Bank 1 450 248.000 00 016
T|AA. FSB 2.24n6t2022 TIAA. FSB 2200 247,000.00 016
UBS Bank USA 2I 41312024 UBS BanK USA 2.900 249.000 00 016
Uinta Countv Bank 2.6 416n023 Uinta Countv Bank 2.600 246.000.00 016
VisionBank ol lo\r,re 2 15 5131 12022 VisionBank of lowa 2 150 247.000 00 016
Wells Farso National Bank West LV 19112912023 Wells Faroo National Bank west LV 1.900 249.000.00 016
Wex Bank 1.4 418t2022 Wex Bank 1 400 248.000 00 016
Sub Total / Average Certificate Of Deposit 2.338 7.150.000.00 4.

orporate Bond

Bank of America Corp 0 8 212412026-22 Bank of America Corp 0,800 2.000.000 00 1.30

Bank of Montreal 1 223t1712026-22 Bank of Montreal 1 224 2,000,000 00 13(

Bank of Montreal Step 71302025-21 Bank of Montreal 1 000 2.000,000 00 1.3(

tank of NY Mellon 2 6 21712022-22 Bank of NY Mellon 2 600 1,000,000 00 0.t

Bsnk of NY Msllon 3 5 412812023 Bank of NY Mellon 3 500 1.000.000.00 06c
Barclavs Bank PLC 3 1011712023-22 Barclavs Bank PLC 3.000 2,000.000 00 130

MUFG Union Bank NA 3.15 4/1n022-22 MUFG Unlon Bank NA 3 150 1.000.000 00 0.65

Pacific Litu GF ll 1 2 612412025 Pacific Life GF ll 1.204 1,500,000.0c 0,97

State Street Corp 2653 511512023-22 State Street CorD 2.653 2.530.000.00 't 64

Wells Faroo & Co 2.625 7 l2Z2O22 Wells Faroo & Co 2625 1.000.000 0c 0.65

Wells Faroo & Co 3 059 1n412O23-22 Wells Faroo & Co. 3.069 1.000.000.00 0.65

Sub Total / Averaoe Coroorate Bond 2.OU 17.030.000.00 1 1.06

FHLB Bond

FHLB 0 6 1417t2024-21 FHLB 0.6001 2.000.000.001 1 30

FH LB 1.375 8/26 t2028-22 FHLB 1 37sl 2.000.000.001 1 30

FHLB Steo712912026-21 FHLB 0.s001 2,000,000.001 1 30

Sub Totral / Averao€ FHLB Bond 0 E25l 6,000,000 001 3.90

Page 959

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



LAIF Clty LGIP LAIF Cltv 02411 5
LAIF FPFA LGIP LAIF FPFA 0.2421 25
Sub Totel / Avaraoe Local Govsmmant lnvestment Pool 0.2411 8

Wells Famo MM lWells Faroo 0.01( 866,990.1 056
Wells Faroo MM lWells Faroo 0.010 3.419.099.44 2.22
Sub Total / Averaoe Monev Market I 0.010 4.286.089. 278

Alvo'd USD GOBS 1.062 8fil2025 Alvord USD GOBS 1-062 1.280.000.00 083
Belmont-Redwood Shores SD 0.269 8112022 BelmonfRedwood Shores SD 0.259 300.000.00 019
Belmont-Redwood Shor$ SD 0.389 811 12023 Belmont Redwood Shoros SD 125.000.00 008
lelmont-Redwood Shores SD 0 638 8t112024 Belmont-Redwood Shor€s SD 0.638 250.000.00 016
lelmont-Redwood Shores SO Ser B 0.269 81112022 Belmont'Rodwood Shor€s SD Ser B 0.26S 't40.000.00 0.09
Belmont-R€dwood Shores SD Ser B 0 369 81112023 Belmont-Redwood Shores SD Ser B 0.36S 170.000.00 011

evorlv Hills PFA L€ase Rev 0.499 6/1/2023 everlv Hills PFA Leas6 R€v 0.4ss 300.000.00 019
Beverly Hills PFA Leas€ Rev 0 73 61112024 Beverlv Hills PFA Lease Rev 0.730 300.000.00 019
CA St DWR Pwr Suoo R€v 2 5/112022 CA St DWR Pwr SUDD Rev 2,000 1.000.000.00 0.85

CA St DWR Pwr Suoo Rev 2 511t2O22 CA St DWR Pwr Suoo Rev 2.000 1.000.000. 0,6s
Cabrillo CCD 1 913 8fin022 Cabrillo CCD 1.913 230.000.00 0.15
Cal St Hlth Fac Fin Auth Rev 1 893 61112022 Cal St Hlth Fac Fin Auth Rev 1.893 1,000,000.00 0.65

Carson RDA SA TABS 2.992 2112022-17 Carson RDA SA TABS 2.992 100,000.00 006
Carson RDASA TAB€ O.9Og 81112022 Carson RDASA TABS 0.909 400,000,00 0.26

CaBon RDASA TABs 0.981 81112023 Car3on RDASATABS 0,981 300,000.00 0.19

Carson RDASATABS I 188 91n024 Carson RDASA TABs 1.1 88 400,000,00 0.28
CaBon RDASA TAB9 1 288 81112025 CaBon RDASA TAB8 1.28t I 300,000.00 019
Cltrus CCD GOBS 0.669 81112024 Cltrus CCD GOBs 0_ 400,000,00 0.26
Citrus CCD GOBS 0.819 8/1/2025 Cltrus CCD GOB8 0.819 400.000.00 0.26
Coast CCD GOBg 1.975 81112023 Cosst CCD GOBs 197 1.265.000.00 082
Colton USD 0.702 811 12023 Colton USD o.702 1,000,000.0( 0,65
Colton USD 0.882 81 1 12024 Colton USD 0 882 't.000.000. 0.65
CSU Revenue Bonds 0.685 1111n024 CSU Revenue Eonds 0 685 500.000.0r 0.32
CSU Revenue Bonds 2.982 111112021 CSU Revenue Bonds 2.982 300 000.00 019
Davis RDA-SA TAB9 1.7291112022 Davis RDA-SA TABs 1 720 't.225.000.00 0.80
Davis RDA-SA TABs 1 75 91112023 Davis RDA-SA TABs 1 750 625.000.00 0_41

xon USD 0.953 8/1/2025 Dixon USD 0.953 1 00.000.00 0.06
Folsom Cordova USD lmp Oist22101112021 Folsom Cordova USD lmD Dist 2 2.000 1 75.000.00 0.11

Folsom Cordova USD lmD Dist 2 2 101'112022 Folsom Cordova USD lmD Dist 2 2 000 160.000.00 0.10
Folsom Cordova USD lmD Dlsl2 2 101112023 Folsom Cordova USD lmp Dist 2 2.000 1 65.000.00 0 'tl
Folsom Cordova USD lmo Dl3t 2 2 101112024 Fol8om Cordova USD lmp Dist 2 2.000 'r.000.000.00 0.65
Folsom Cordova USD lmo Dist22'10h12025 Folsom Cordova USD ImD Dist 2 2.000 1.040.000.0i 0.68
Hlohland RDA.SA TAB8 2.25 U112022 Hiohland RDA.SA TAB8 2.254 390.000.00 o.25

oo€ ESD 0 97 81112025 ope ESD 0,970 300.000.00 0.19
ope ESD 1.17 8/1n026 ope ESD 1.170 285.000.00 019

LA Cnty RDA Ref Auth 291'112022 Lq CnV RDA RefAuth 2.000 1.235.000.00 0.80
Los Altos SD 1 '101112024 Los Altos SD 1.000 2.000.000.00 1.30

Murrieta RDA-SA TABS 2,5 81112022 MUTT|EIA RDA-SA TABS 2.500 250.000.00 0.16
rk Grove SD 0.561 811n024 Oak Grove SD 0.561 600.000.00 0.39

Oxnard SD GOBS 0.587 81112022 Oxnard SD GOBS 0.587 700.000,00 0.45
Oxnard SD GOB9 0.82 81 112024 Oxnard SD GOBS 0.820 345.000.00 o.22
Piftsburo USD 0.57 U1n024 ftsburo USD 0.670 680.000.00 044
Rancho Santiaoo CCD GOBs 0.634 911f2024 Rencfio Santiaoo CCD GOBS 0.634 1.000.000.00 0.65

RiveBide Cnty PFA 18471112023 Riverside Cntv PFA 1 840 195,000.00 013
Sen Bcmardino CCD 0.605 8/112024 San Bemardino CCD 0.605 1,000,000.00 0.65

San Jose Everor€€n CCD 0.921 9l'|12025 San Jose Ev€roreen CCD o.s21 1,000,000.00 0.65
San Jose RDA-S A 2.83 I I'l 12022 San Jose RDA-SA 2.630 1.000.000.00 0.55
Sen Jose RDA-SA 2.63 8/1/2022 San Jose RDA-SA 2.630 1.000.000.00 0.65

Sen Jose RDASA TABS 2 828 U1n023 San Jose RDASA TABS 2.828 500.000.00 0.32
Santa Clarita PFA Leas€ Rev 0.97661112024-20 Santa Clarita PFA Lease Rev 0.976 355.000 00 0.23
Sants Clarita PFA Leas€ R€v 1 17661'112025-20 Sants Clarita PFA Lees€ R€v 1.176 360.000.00 023
SF BART Rev Bonds 2.621 7nn023-17 SF BART Rev Bonds 2.621 735.000.00 0.48

tat€ ot CA GO 2.5 101112022 ;tate of CA GO 2 500 1.000.000.00 0.65
Univ ofCA Revenue 0.628 511512023-23 Univ of CA Revenue 0.628 12s.000.00 0.08
Univ of CA Revenue 0.833 511512024-24 Univ of CA Revenue 0.833 250.000.00 016
Univ ot CA Revenue 2.657 511512023-19 Univ of CA Revenue 2.657 500.000.00 0.32
Univ of CA Revenue 3.283 511512022-'18 Jniv of CA Revenue 3.283 500.000.00 0.32
West Contra Costa USD 1.4U 81112022 /est Contra Costa USD 1.4U 360.000,0 0.23

Page 960

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



Page 961

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 962

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



City of Folsom
Transactions Summary

Transaction Summary - lnvestment Report
Portfolio / Report Group: City of Folsom

Group By: Action
Begin Date: 0710112021, End Date: 0913012021

Oc.crlpdon 9ecurltyType
Sotrlemcnt

Oato
Malurl[y

Odc
Faee

AmUShalrr
Princlp.l YTilE

Cort

Bank of illontreal 1.22 31 17 12028-22 Coroorate Bond 9117t2021 3t17t2026 2.000.000.00 2.000.000.00 1.220

Belmont-Redwood Shores SD 0.269 81112022 Municioal Bond 81412021 8t1t2022 300.000 00 300.000.00 0,269

Belmont-Redwood Shores SD 0 369 8/1/2023 MuniciDel Bond e4t2021 8t't12023 1 25.000.00 1 25,000 00 0 369

B€lmont-Redwood Shores SD 0 638 81112024 Municipal Bond 8t412021 8t1t2024 250.000.00 250,000.00 0 638

Belmont-Redwood Shores SD Ser B 0.269 81112022 iunicioal Bond 8t4t2021 8t1t2022 140,000 0( 140,000 00 0.269

Belmont-Redwood Shores SD Ser B 0.369 8/1/2023 MuniciDal Bond 8t4t2021 170.000.00 170.000 00 0 369

FHLB 0.6 1U17t2024-21 FHLB Bond 9t17t2021 1211712024 2.000.000.00 2.000.000.00 0 600

FHLB 1.375 8126 t20215-22 FHLB Bond 8t26t2021 8t26t2026 2.000.000.00 2.019.%0.00 1.15S

FHLB SteD 712912026-21 FHLB Bond 7t2912021 7t29t2026 2,000,000 00 2,000,000.00 1.253

Hooe ESD 0 S7 E1112025 Municioal Bond 9t2312021 8t1t2025 300.000 301.362.00 0.850

Hope ESD 1 17 81112026 Municipal Bond 9t23t2021 8t1t2026 285.000.00 286.613.'10 1 050

New York Community Bank 0 65 911012024 Certilicat€ Ctt Deposlt 911012021 9r10t2024 249,000 00 248.751.00 0 664

Pacific LifE GF ll 12612412025 Corporat€ Bond 9t3t2021 6t24t2025 1.500.000 00 1,516,230 00 0.910

Piftsbum USD 0 67 81112024 Municipal Bond Et10t2021 680,000.00 680.000.00 0.670

San Bemardino CCD 0.605 81112024 Municioal Bond 8t5t2021 8t1t2024 1.000.000.00 1.000.000.00 0,605

Sub Total / Averaqe Buy 12.999,000.00 1 3.037.896. I 0

Callod
FHLB O.82 8t2712025.21 FHLB Bond 8t27t2021 8t27t2025 2,000,000.001 2,000,00000 0.000

Sub Total / Avsraqe Called 2.000.000.001 2.000.000.00

Matured

BMW Bank 2,1 911512021 Certificate Of DeDosit 9t15t2021 s11512021 247.000 00 247.000 00 0.000

Cabrillo CGD '1.913 81112021 Municipal Bond 8t1t2021 8t1t2021 225.000 00 225.000.00 0.000

lent Contra Costa San Dist R€v Bonds 2.96 9/1120 Municipal Bond 9t112021 9nt2a21 235,000 00 235,000 00 0 000

Davis RDA-SA TABS 1.8E91112021 dunicioal Bond 9t1t2021 911t2021 1.200,000 0( 1.200^000 00 0 000

East Boston Savinos Bank 2 3713012021 Certificate Of D€posit 7t30t202' 247.OOO.O0 247,000 00 0.000

roY USD 1.721 81112021 Municipal Bond 8t1t2021 8t1t2021 320.000.00 320,000 00 0.00

lmo€rial CCD 1 874 81112021 Municioel Bond 8t1t2021 81112021 200.000.00 200,000 0( 0.000

Ke$ler FCU 3 oS 813012021 Certificat€ Of DeDoBit 8t30t2021 013012021 249.000.00 249.000.00 0 000

Lono Beach CCD 1 738 81112021 MuniciDal Bond 8t112021 8t1t2021 780.000 00 780.000.00 0.000

irarin CCO GOB92243 U11202'l-16 Municioal Bond 81112021 8t112021 650.000 00 650.000 00 0.00

lunieta RDA-SA TABS 2 25 81112021 Municipel Bond 81112021 Et112021 350,000 00 350,000 00 0.00

Richmond RDASA 0.43 S/1/2021 Municioal gond st1t2021 9t1t2021 200.000.00 200.000.00 0.000

San Francisco RDA SA TABS 2 796 81112021 Municioal Bond 8t1t2021 81112021 't.000.000.00 1.000.000 00 0 000

Third Fed€ral Savinos End Loan2712812021 Certificate Of Deposit 712812021 7t2812021 245.000.00 245.000.00 0.000

Valley Stronq CU 1 1912012021 Certificate of Deposlt 9t2012021 9t20t2021 249,000 00 249,000.00 0 000

west contra costa usD GoBs 3 031 81112021 ,tlunicioal Bond 8t1t2021 8t112021 300.000,00 300,000.00 0.000

W€st Sacramento Area Flood Control Aov 1 7s7 91112 Municioal Bond 9t1t2021 911t2021 200.000.00 200.000 00 0.000

Sub Total /Averaoe Matured 6.897.000.00 6.897.000 00

Page 963

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 964

12/14/2021 Item No.36.



XJLI.l,hiLIhT
Ot

(), ttl t Clrl a a\ !At!rll

Folsom City Council
Staff rt

MEETING DATE: t2/1412021

CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The City Council shall select a Mayor and Vice Mayor for 2022.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Mayor and Vice Mayor serve at the pleasure of the City Council, with the Vice Mayor
authorized to possess and perform the duties of the Mayor in the absence of the Mayor.
Traditionally, the City Council selects a Mayor and Vice Mayor each December to serve for the
following calendar year.

POLICY/ RULE

Folsom Charter sections 2.03 and 2.05 establish the selection of the Mayor and Vice Mayor by
the City Council.

The Mayor's primary responsibilities include:
r Presiding at meetings of the Council;
o Meeting regularly and as appropriate with the City Manager to provide policy

guidance relative to the actions of the Council, expressing the desires of the Council
and its members, and monitoring the administrative implementation of Council
policies;

1

SECTION: Elections

SUBJECT: Selection of Mayor and Vice Mayor for 2022

F'ROM: City Clerk's Department

Page 965

12/14/2021 Item No.37.



o Recommending City policy, legislation, and programs, subject to approvalby a
majority of the City Council;

. Representing the City for ceremonial purposes;
o Represent the City in intergovernmental relations, personally or by a designated

representative with the concurrence of the Council; and
o Establishing and dissolving limited-term ad hoc committees, subject to the approval

of the Council

The Vice Mayor's primary responsibility is to perform the Mayor's duties in the Mayor's
absence.

ATTACHMENTS

None

Re spectfully submitted,

Christa Freemantle, CMC
City Clerk

2
Page 966

12/14/2021 Item No.37.


	Top
	12/14/2021 Item No.1.	Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming January 2022 as Tamil Heritage Month in the City of Folsom
	12-14 Staff Report Proclamation - Tamil Heritage Month

	12/14/2021 Item No.2.	Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming Sikh Awareness and Appreciation Month in the City of Folsom
	12-14 Staff Report Proclamation - Sikh Awareness and Appreciation Month

	12/14/2021 Item No.3.	Presentation by PG&E on PG&E Overhead Transmission Lines Vegetation Management and Tree Removal Project
	12-14 Staff Report - Presentation by PG&E

	12/14/2021 Item No.4.	Approval of October 26, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes
	12-14 STAFF REPORT MINUTES OF OCTOBER 26, 2021

	12/14/2021 Item No.5.	Approval of November 9, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes
	12-14 Approval of November 9, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes

	12/14/2021 Item No.6.	Appointment of Representative to the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District
	12-14 Staff Report - Appointment of Representative to the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District

	12/14/2021 Item No.7.	Ordinance No. 1318 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 10.20.510 of the Folsom Municipal Code to Increase Parking Penalty in Certain Areas of the Historic District (Second Reading and Adoption)
	12-14 Staff Report ORD 1318 Parking Penalty in Historic District Second Reading and Adoption

	12/14/2021 Item No.8.	Ordinance No. 1319 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Sections 3.20.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Responsible Parties for Municipal Services (Second Reading and Adoption)
	12-14 Staff Report ORD 1319 Responsible Parties for Municipal Services Second Reading and Adoption

	12/14/2021 Item No.9.	Ordinance No. 1320 – An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Replacing the Garbage Collection Ordinance as Set Forth in Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal Code to Incorporate New State Law Mandates (Second Reading and Adoption)
	12-14 Staff Report ORD 1320 Repealing and Replacing the Garbage Collection Ordinance- Second Reading and Adoption

	12/14/2021 Item No.10.	Receive and File SB-165 Annual Reports for Community Facilities Districts No. 13, No. 14, No. 2013-1, No. 16, No. 17, No. 18, No. 19, No. 20, No. 21, No. 22, and No. 23 to Comply with the Local Agency Special Tax Bond And Accountability Act
	12-14 Staff Report SB-165 Annual Reports CFD Special Tax Bond and Accountability Act

	12/14/2021 Item No.11.	Resolution No. 10751 – A Resolution of the City Council Making Findings to Continue Teleconferencing Options for Public Meetings Under AB 361
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10751 Teleconferencing Options for Public Meetings AB 361

	12/14/2021 Item No.12.	Resolution No. 10752 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 20-034) with Water Works Engineers, LLC for Design Services for the Folsom Blvd 27-Inch Trunk Sewer Project (SECAP Project)
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10752 Amendment No 1 Water Works Engineers Sewer Project

	12/14/2021 Item No.13.	Resolution No. 10753 - A Resolution Authorizing the Police Department to Accept a U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance, Alzheimer’s & Developmental Disability Tracking Devices Grant in The Amount Of $121,491.00 and Appropriation of Funds
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10753 Police Department Tracking Devices Grant

	12/14/2021 Item No.14.	Resolution No. 10754 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Downtown Ford Sales to Purchase Two Ford Trucks for the Parks & Recreation Department
	12-14 Staff Report - RES 10754 Purchase Two Ford Trucks for the Parks & Recreation Department

	12/14/2021 Item No.15.	Resolution No.10755 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 3 to the Contract with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. for Grant Application Assistance for the Folsom Placerville Rail Trail Project (Contract No. 173-21 17-013) and Appropriation of Funds
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10755 Amendment No 3 Kimley Horn Folsom Placerville Rail Trail Project

	12/14/2021 Item No.16.	Resolution No. 10757 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Lease Agreement between the City of Folsom and Kelli Vaccaro, a Sole Proprietor Doing Business as Kid's Inc., for Lease of City Property Located at 405 Natoma Station Drive
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10757 Kid's Inc. Lease Agreement at 405 Natoma Station Drive

	12/14/2021 Item No.17.	Resolution No. 10761 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Design and Consulting Services Contract with TJKM for the Folsom Lake Crossing and East Natoma Street Safety Improvements Project and Appropriation of Funds
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10761 TJKM Folsom Lake Crossing and East Natoma Street Safety Project

	12/14/2021 Item No.18.	Resolution No. 10762 - A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of an Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of Folsom and the Folsom Middle Management Group
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10762 Adoption of Amendment to MOU FMMG

	12/14/2021 Item No.19.	Resolution No. 10763 - A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of an Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of Folsom and International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 39
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10763 Adoption of Amendment to MOU Local 39

	12/14/2021 Item No.20.	Resolution No. 10764 - A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of an Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle Management Employees
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10764 Adoption of Amendment to MOU FDMME

	12/14/2021 Item No.21.	Resolution No. 10765 - A Resolution Accepting the AB1600 Development Fees Annual Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10765 AB1600 Development Fees Annual Report

	12/14/2021 Item No.22.	Resolution No. 10766 – A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District for Sacramento Emergency Clean Air and Transportation Program Funding for Two Zero Emission Electric Refuse Trucks
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10766 Grant from SMAQMD for Two Zero Emission Electric Refuse Trucks

	12/14/2021 Item No.23.	Resolution No. 10773 - A Resolution Authorizing Additional Spending Under the Current Agreement with Schaefer Systems Inc. (Contract No. 173-21 17-067) for the Purchase of Residential Solid Waste Containers and Appropriation of Funds
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10773 Purchase of Residential Solid Waste Containers

	12/14/2021 Item No.24.	Resolution No. 10774 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction Agreement with Sierra National Construction, Inc. for the Duchow Way at Rumsey Way Intersection Drainage Improvement Project
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10774 Duchow Way at Rumsey Way Drainage Project

	12/14/2021 Item No.25.	Resolution No. 10778 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of Folsom and the Folsom Police Officers Association (FPOA)
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10778 MOU Folsom POA

	12/14/2021 Item No.26.	Resolution No. 10775 – A Resolution of the City Council Setting Forth Results of Protests in Connection with Utility Rate Hearing Conducted Pursuant to Proposition 218 and Establishing New Solid Waste Rates and Fees
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10775 Results of Protests Prop 218

	12/14/2021 Item No.27.	City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended Improvement Area No. 3 and Improvement Area No. 7
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10767-10772 and ORD 1321-1322 CDF 23 Folsom Ranch Amended Imp Area No 3 and Imp Area No 7

	12/14/2021 Item No.28.	Broadstone Estates Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map Extension – Southeast corner of Placerville Road and U.S. Highway 50 (PN 21-234)  i.	Resolution No. 10759 – A Resolution extending the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the Broadstone Estates Subdivision project (PN 21-234)
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10759 Broadstone Estates Subdivision Project (PN 21-234)

	12/14/2021 Item No.29.	Folsom Heights Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map Extension – Northeast corner of the Folsom Plan Area (PN 21-234)  i.	Resolution No. 10760 – A Resolution extending the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the Folsom Heights Subdivision project (PN 21-233)
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10760 Folsom Heights Subdivision Project (PN 21-233)

	12/14/2021 Item No.30.	Resolution No. 10777 - A Resolution of the City Council Approving the Sale of Surplus Land Located at 300 Persifer Street Property to Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento, Inc. for Purpose of Developing Affordable Housing
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10777 Sale of Surplus Land at 300 Persifer Street

	12/14/2021 Item No.31.	Resolution No. 10744 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Fiber Networks Installation Agreement with SiFi Networks Folsom LLC for the Installation of a Fiber Optic Network in the City of Folsom
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10744 Installation of Fiber Optic Network in the City of Folsom

	12/14/2021 Item No.32.	Resolution No. 10776 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Approving an Affordable Housing Loan in the Amount of $6,860,000 from the City’s Housing Fund to Mangini Place Affordable, LP, Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Loan Agreement and Related Documents for the Construction of 152 Affordable Housing Units at the Mangini Place Multifamily Affordable Housing Development, and Appropriation of Funds
	12-14 Staff Report RES 10776 Affordable Housing Loan Mangini Place Affordable, LP

	12/14/2021 Item No.33.	Appointment of At-Large Member to the Folsom Planning Commission
	12-14 Staff Report - Appointment of At-Large Member to the Folsom Planning Commission

	12/14/2021 Item No.34.	Appointment of Three At-Large Members to the Folsom Historic District Commission and Appointment of Planning Commissioner to Serve on the Historic District Commission
	12-14 Staff Report - Appointment of Three At-Large Members to the HDC and Appointment of Planning Commissioner to the HDC

	12/14/2021 Item No.35.	Approval of the September 14, 2021 Joint City Council / Successor Agency / Public Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Meeting Minutes
	12-14 Approval of September 14, 2021 Meeting Minutes

	12/14/2021 Item No.36.	Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of September 2021
	12-14 Staff Report Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of September 2021

	12/14/2021 Item No.37.	Selection of Mayor and Vice Mayor for 2022
	12-14 Staff Report Selection of Mayor and Vice Mayor for 2022

	Bottom

